

efforts being undertaken by the provider or local land use authorities to foster a more transit-friendly operating environment.

(c) Provider's Mission and Goals. The TDP shall contain the provider's vision, mission, goals, and objectives, taking into consideration the findings of the situation appraisal.

(d) Alternative Courses of Action. The TDP shall develop and evaluate alternative strategies and actions for achieving the provider's goals and objectives, including the benefits and costs of each alternative. Financial alternatives, including options for new or dedicated revenue sources, shall be examined.

(e) Ten-Year Implementation Program. The TDP shall identify policies and strategies for achieving the provider's goals and objectives and present a ten-year program for their implementation. The ten-year program shall include: maps indicating areas to be served and the type and level of service to be provided, a monitoring program to track performance measures, a ten-year financial plan listing operating and capital expenses, a capital acquisition or construction schedule, and anticipated revenues by source. The implementation program shall include a detailed list of projects or services needed to meet the goals and objectives in the TDP, including projects for which funding may not have been identified.

(f) Relationship to Other Plans. The TDP shall be consistent with the Florida Transportation Plan, the local government comprehensive plans, the MPO long-range transportation plan, and regional transportation goals and objectives. The TDP shall discuss the relationship between the ten-year implementation program and other local plans.

(4) Annual Update. Annual updates shall be in the form of a progress report on the ten-year implementation program, and shall include:

(a) Past year's accomplishments compared to the original implementation program;

(b) Analysis of any discrepancies between the plan and its implementation for the past year and steps that will be taken to attain original goals and objectives;

(c) Any revisions to the implementation program for the coming year;

(d) Revised implementation program for the tenth year;

(e) Added recommendations for the new tenth year of the updated plan;

(f) A revised financial plan; and

(g) A revised list of projects or services needed to meet the goals and objectives, including projects for which funding may not have been identified.

(5) Plan Submission and Approval.

(a) To be approved by the Department, a TDP must meet all applicable deadlines and address all requirements of this rule, including a public involvement plan that included opportunities for review and comment by interested agencies, and citizens or passengers during the development of the

provider's mission, goals, and objectives during the development of alternatives and during the development of the ten-year implementation program.

(b) The Department will accept TDPs for review at any time. Provider adopted TDPs must be submitted to the Department by September 1. Late filed TDPs will be accepted if extenuating circumstances beyond the provider's control exist and the District Office is able to complete its review and approval process by the last business day of December. Within 60 days of receiving an adopted TDP or annual update the Department will notify the provider as to whether or not the TDP or annual update is in compliance with the requirements of this rule, and, if not in compliance, a list of deficiencies. Within 30 days of any resubmitted TDP or annual update the Department will notify the provider as to whether or not the resubmission is in compliance with the requirements of this rule.

(6) Grant Administration. Public transit funds will be considered on the basis of public transit needs as identified in TDPs. The Department is authorized to fund up to such percentages as are designated for each type of public transportation project by Chapter 341, Florida Statutes, for the respective state and federal projects described therein. The Department shall, within statutory parameters, determine the level of funding participation for each project.

(a) State funding participation in public transit projects and services shall require a duly executed agreement, unless otherwise required by law.

(b) Eligibility to receive state public transit grants from the Department is limited to those providers specifically designated by law to receive such grants, and determined by statutory budgeting and programming requirements.

(c) Written requests for appropriated public transit grant funds by a provider are to be addressed to the District Office in which district the provider operates public transit service. The request shall include at a minimum the name and address of the provider, level of funding being requested, type of funding or program participation requested, and use to be made of the requested funds. Where a deadline for applications has been established, applications received after the deadline shall be returned. Deadlines for each program application may be obtained from the District Office.

(d) Federal funds for which the Department is the primary recipient may involve special application procedures or submittal format, imposed by the federal grantor agency as a condition of receiving federal funds. The provider will be notified by the District Office of special application requirements at the time of submission of a written request for funding if the District Office has not previously distributed such information to the provider.

(e) The Department will award public transit grant funds after July 1 of each state fiscal year, but will not award funds until a provider's TDP has been found to be in compliance with this rule.

(f) Annual updates and approved TDPs shall be on file at the appropriate District Office by the last business day of December of the state fiscal year for which funding is sought. If a provider's annual report has not been submitted by the last day of December in the fiscal year for which funding is sought, the provider will not receive any state public transit grant funds in that state fiscal year, and funds previously allocated for the provider will be allocated among the remaining providers. If a provider's TDP has not been submitted and found in compliance by the last business day of December of the state fiscal year the annual or five year update was due, the provider will not receive any public transit grant funds in that state fiscal year, and funds previously allocated for the provider will be allocated among the remaining providers.

Specific Authority ~~334.044(2), 341.041(12)(b)~~ FS. Law Implemented ~~341.07, 341.09, 332.003-332.007, 339.135, 339.155, 341.041, 341.051, 341.052, 341.071-341.053, 341.302, 341.303~~ FS. History--New 9-24-75, Formerly 14-73.01, Amended 12-8-92,_____.

BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE INTERNAL IMPROVEMENT TRUST FUND

Pursuant to Chapter 2003-145, Laws of Florida, all notices for the Board of Trustees of the Internal Improvement Trust Fund are published on the Internet at the Department of Environmental Protection's home page at <http://www.dep.state.fl.us/> under the link or button titled "Official Notices."

**STATE BOARD OF ADMINISTRATION
Florida Hurricane Catastrophe Fund**

RULE TITLE: Procedures to Determine Ineligibility for Participation and Exemption from Participation in the Florida Hurricane Catastrophe Fund

RULE NO. 19-8.012

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: To discuss proposed amendments to Rule 19-8.012, F.A.C., which addresses the rule governing ineligibility and exemption from the Florida Hurricane Catastrophe Fund ("Fund" or "FHCF").

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: Exemption and ineligibility for participation in the FHCF.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 215.555(3) FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 215.555 FS.

A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATE AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

TIME AND DATE: 9:00 a.m. – 12:00 Noon (EST), January 19, 2006

PLACE: Room 116 (Hermitage Conference Room), 1801 Hermitage Blvd., Tallahassee, Florida 32308, Telephone: The conference call number for those who wish to participate by telephone is (850)487-8540 or Suncom 277-8540

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS: Jack E. Nicholson, Senior FHCF Officer, State Board of Administration, P. O. Box 13300, Tallahassee, Florida 32317-3300; telephone (850)413-1340.

Copies of the proposed amended rules and the agenda for the workshop may be obtained from: Donna Sirmons, State Board of Administration, P. O. Box 13300, Tallahassee, FL 32317-3300; (850)413-1349. Any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this proceeding is asked to advise Donna Sirmons at least five (5) calendar days before such proceeding.

DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS

RULE TITLE: Placement of Inmates into Community Release Programs

RULE NO.: 33-601.606

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose and effect of the proposed rule is to amend eligibility requirements for community release programs by expanding eligibility time periods prior to release date.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: Community release programs.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 945.091 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 945.091 FS.

IF REQUESTED IN WRITING AND NOT DEEMED UNNECESSARY BY THE AGENCY HEAD, A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE NOTICED IN THE NEXT AVAILABLE FAW.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT AND A COPY OF THE PRELIMINARY DRAFT IS: Perri King Dale, 2601 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2500

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS:

33-601.606 Placement of Inmates into Community Release Programs.

(1) No change.

(2) Eligibility and Ineligibility Criteria.

(a) No change.

(b) In order to be eligible for community release programs an inmate must:

1. through 3. No change.

4. Inmates with non-advanceable dates must be within 19 ~~15~~ months of their tentative release date or presumptive parole release date for CWA, community-based residential substance abuse program, or pre-work release program or within 14 ~~10~~ months of their earliest tentative release date for CWR.

5. Inmates without non-advanceable dates must be within ~~28~~ 21 months of their tentative release date for CWA, community-based residential substance abuse program, or pre-work release program or within ~~19~~ 15 months of their tentative release date for CWR.

6. No change.

(3) through (5) No change.

Specific Authority 945.091 FS. Law Implemented 945.091 FS. History—New 3-14-01, Amended 9-2-01, 3-19-02, 11-18-02, 5-31-04, 11-25-04, _____.

DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS

RULE TITLE: Maximum Management
 RULE NO.: 33-601.820

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose and effect of the proposed rule is to: delete obsolete and unnecessary language; define relevant terms; provide requirements for documentation of actions and decisions related to maximum management; describe the process for maximum management placement, review and release; provide for the imposition of immediate restrictions; and clarify authority and responsibilities associated with maximum management review and decision-making.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: Maximum management.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 944.09 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 944.09 FS.

IF REQUESTED IN WRITING AND NOT DEEMED UNNECESSARY BY THE AGENCY HEAD, A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE NOTICED IN THE NEXT AVAILABLE FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE WEEKLY.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT AND A COPY OF THE PRELIMINARY DRAFT IS: Perri King Dale, 2601 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2500

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS:

33-601.820 Maximum Management.

~~(1) General. Maximum Management is a temporary status for an inmate who, through a recent incident or a series of recent incidents, has been identified as being an extreme security risk to the Department and requires an immediate level of control beyond that available in close management or death row.~~

~~(1)(2) Definitions.~~

~~(a) Close Management I (CM I) — the most restrictive single cell housing level of all the close management status designations.~~

~~(b) Institutional Classification Team (ICT) for Maximum Management Review — refers to the team consisting of the Warden or Assistant Warden, Classification Supervisor, a correctional officer chief, and other members as necessary~~

~~when appointed by the Warden or designated by rule. The ICT is responsible for making work, program, housing and inmate status decisions at a facility and for making other recommendations to the State Classification Office (SCO).~~

~~(a)(e) Maximum Management (MM) — refers to a temporary status for an inmate who, through a recent incident or series of recent incidents, has been identified as being an extreme security risk to the Department and requires an immediate level of control beyond that available in close management or death row. The Secretary shall designate which institutions are authorized to house maximum management inmates, based upon the needs of the Department.~~

~~(d) Maximum Management Cell — a single cell housing type that has two doors, a grille front with a securable opening for feeding and cuffing, and a solid door in close proximity of the external grille door.~~

(b) Maximum Management Review Team — refers to the committee in Central Office that has approval authority for placement in maximum management and the modification of conditions and restrictions imposed at the time an inmate is initially placed in maximum management. The Maximum Management Review Team shall consist of the following staff or those acting in that capacity:

1. Deputy Assistant Secretary of Institutions – Operations (Chairperson);
2. Chief, Bureau of Classification and Central Records;
3. Chief, Bureau of Security Operations; and
4. Deputy Assistant Secretary of Health Services (clinical).

~~(e) Shift Supervisor — the highest-ranking Correctional Officer on duty.~~

~~(f) Staff Assistant — refers to an employee assigned to the inmate to explain the recommendation for placement or procedures to the inmate when the inmate is illiterate or does not understand English. A staff assistant shall not take the position of an advocate or defense attorney.~~

~~(2)(3) Maximum Management Placement Criteria.~~

~~(a) An inmate shall have, at a minimum, met the criteria for placement in Close Management I or death row and participated in a recent incident or series of recent incidents which demonstrate:~~

- ~~1. through 4. renumbered (a) through (d) No change.~~

(3) Initial Placement in Maximum Management Housing.

(a)(b) Whenever an inmate has met at least one of the conditions above, and the Shift Supervisor believes that the inmate cannot be controlled in a status less than maximum management, the Shift Supervisor shall recommend immediate placement in maximum management on by completing Section 4 of Form DC6-101, Referral for Maximum Management. Form DC6-101 is hereby incorporated by reference. A copy of this form is available from the Forms Control Administrator, Office of Research, Planning and Support Services, 2601 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2500. The effective

date of this form is _____. Form DC6-101 is incorporated by reference in subsection (6) of this rule. Approval from the warden or duty warden shall be received prior to placement of the inmate in maximum management.

~~(b)(e)~~ The Warden or Duty Warden shall review the Referral for Maximum Management, Form DC6-101, and document his or her decision. Approval from the Warden or Duty Warden is required prior to placement of the inmate in maximum management pending completion of the hearing process in subsection (5) approve or disapprove the immediate placement of an inmate in maximum management by signing Form DC6-101, Referral for Maximum Management.

~~(c)~~ The Shift Supervisor who recommended placing an inmate in maximum management shall ensure delivery of the Referral for Maximum Management to the inmate prior to being relieved of duty. The Referral for Maximum Management shall inform the inmate of the reason for the placement and that a hearing will be held no sooner than 24 hours from the delivery of the notice to review the recommendation for placement in maximum management. The inmate may waive the 24 hour waiting period or his or her appearance at the hearing by signing the 24 Hour/Refusal to Appear Waiver, Form DC6-104. Form DC6-104 is hereby incorporated by reference. Copies of this form are available from the Forms Control Administrator, Office of Research, Planning and Support Services, 2601 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2500. The effective date of this form is _____.

~~(d)~~ Whenever an inmate has met at least one of the conditions in subsection 33-601.820(3), F.A.C., and the Shift Supervisor believes that the inmate should be reviewed for but not immediately placed in maximum management at the present time, then the Shift Supervisor shall recommend placement by completing Section 1 of Form DC6-101, Referral for Maximum Management. The Shift Supervisor shall notify the Classification Supervisor in writing of the recommendation no later than the following administrative workday.

~~(d)(e)~~ No change.

(4) Conditions of Placement in Maximum Management. Inmates shall be subject to the following conditions upon initial placement in maximum management:

(a) ~~The~~ During initial placement of an inmate shall into maximum management the following will be provided clothing and bedding. If the inmate's behavior requires, the Shift Supervisor may authorize the removal of clothing or bedding or that the solid door be closed for security reasons either upon initial placement or at any time during maximum management status. The Shift Supervisor shall notify the Warden. If in agreement with the action, the Warden shall notify the Regional Director. If the Regional Director agrees with the action, the Deputy Assistant Secretary of Institutions - Operations will be contacted for final approval no later than the first work day following the Shift Supervisor's action. If an

~~inmate's clothing is removed, a modesty garment shall be immediately given to the inmate. If the inmate chooses not to wear the garment, the garment shall be left in the cell and this action shall be documented on Form DC6-229A, CM Daily Record of Segregation. Form DC6-229A is incorporated by reference in Rule 33-601.800, F.A.C. Under no circumstances shall an inmate be left without a means to cover him or herself.:~~

~~1. Clothing—(one set of blue pants and shirt, boxer shorts, tee shirt, coat during the winter, and one pair of shower slides);~~

~~2. Bedding—(one mattress, one pillow, one pillow case and one blanket);~~

~~3. Solid Door—Should an inmate's behavior require that the solid door be closed for security reasons, the Shift Supervisor may authorize this immediate restriction. The Shift Supervisor shall notify the ICT the following day and the ICT shall approve, disapprove or modify this restriction. The ICT shall notify the warden for final approval, disapproval or modification of the ICT decision as described in subsection (5) of this rule.~~

~~(b)4. Reading materials – possession limited to (a bible, religious testament or other reading material specifically related to the inmate's faith only);~~

~~(c)5. Out-of-doors recreation –(limited to once every 30 days);~~

~~(d)6. Meals shall be served on paper or styrofoam products only;~~

~~(e)7. Possession of legal materials shall be permitted;~~

~~8. Inmate Grievance forms;~~

~~(f)9. Legal Visits shall be permitted;~~

~~10. Mail correspondence as provided for Close Management inmates.~~

~~(g)(b) Inmates in maximum management status shall not be allowed to make routine bank transactions or canteen purchases shall not be allowed, with the exception of stamp, paper and envelope purchases for mail.~~

~~(e) The conditions set forth in paragraphs (a) and (b) above shall be reviewed at least weekly by the ICT, and when the ICT determines the inmate has sufficiently demonstrated positive adjustment, consideration shall be given to adjusting the inmate's conditions to the extent authorized for Close Management I inmates. The Institutional Classification Team shall document their justification for adjustment on Form DC6-101, Referral for Maximum Management.~~

~~(5) Maximum Management Conditions After Initial Placement Hearing and Decision Process. Should the inmate's behavior require alteration of initial placement conditions or previously relaxed conditions as described in paragraphs (4)(a) and (b), the Institutional Classification Team shall make the recommendation to the warden on Form DC6-101, Referral for Maximum Management. The warden shall approve, disapprove or modify the recommendations.~~

~~(6) Inmate Notice of Maximum Management Hearing. The Shift Supervisor who recommends placing an inmate in maximum management shall ensure delivery of the Notice of Referral for Maximum Management, Form DC6-101, to the inmate prior to being relieved of duty. Form DC6-101 is hereby incorporated by reference. Copies of this form are available from the Forms Control Administrator, Office of the General Counsel, 2601 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2500. The effective date of this form is December 7, 2000. The written notice will provide the inmate with an explanation of the reason for the recommendation or placement and inform the inmate that a hearing will be held no sooner than 24 hours of the recommended placement in maximum management. The inmate may waive the 24-hour period or appearance at the hearing by signing the Waiver of Right to Appear/Waiver of 24 Hour Period, Form DC6-104. Form DC6-104 is hereby incorporated by reference. Copies of this form are available from the Forms Control Administrator, Office of the General Counsel, 2601 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2500. The effective date of this form is December 7, 2000.~~

~~(7) Conducting the Hearing:~~

~~(a) No change.~~

~~(b) The inmate shall be present for the hearing, unless:~~

~~1. The inmate waives his right to appear by signing the 24 Hour/Refusal to Appear Waiver, of Right to Appear/Waiver of 24 Hour Period Form DC6-104; or~~

~~2. No change.~~

~~3. If the inmate did not attend the hearing, the reasons the inmate did not appear at the hearing shall be included in the ICT recommendation entered ~~documented~~ on Form DC6-171, Report of DC6-101, Referral for Maximum Management. Form DC6-171 is hereby incorporated by reference. Copies of this form are available from the Forms Control Administrator, Office of Research, Planning and Support Services, 2601 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2500. The effective date of this form is _____.~~

~~(c) through (d) No change.~~

~~(e) The Institutional Classification Team chairperson shall have authority to postpone the hearing to gather further information or order an investigation regarding any pertinent issues. If the hearing is postponed, the reasons for postponement shall be included in the ICT recommendation entered on the Report of Maximum Management, Form DC6-171.~~

~~(f) The Institutional Classification Team shall recommend approval approve or disapproval of disapprove the recommendation for placement in maximum management and modification of the initial conditions of placement as listed in subsection (4), if changes were made. The initial conditions of placement are intended to be short-term and should be modified when the inmate's adjustment to maximum management and the inmate's level of threat to the security of~~

the institution indicate that modification is appropriate. These conditions can only be modified to the level permitted for Close Management I inmates. The Institutional Classification Team's recommendations and the basis for the recommendations shall be documented on the Report of Maximum Management, Form DC6-171.

~~(g) The inmate shall be informed verbally and in writing of the ICT decision.~~

(g)(h) If the Institutional Classification Team's recommendations shall be forwarded to the Warden for review disapproves placement, the inmate shall immediately be reclassified to his original status and removed from the maximum management cell. The Warden's recommendation for approval or disapproval of maximum management placement and any modifications of the initial conditions and the basis for the recommendations shall be documented on the Report of Maximum Management, DC6-171.

(h) The Warden's recommendations shall be forwarded to the Regional Director for review. The Regional Director's recommendation for approval or disapproval of maximum management placement and any modifications of the initial conditions and the basis for recommendations shall be documented on the Report of Maximum Management, Form DC6-171.

(i) The Regional Director's recommendations shall be forwarded to the Maximum Management Review Team for review and final approval or disapproval of the maximum management placement and any modifications of the initial conditions. The Maximum Management Review Team's decisions shall be documented on the Report of Maximum Management, Form DC6-171. If the Institutional Classification Team approves placement, the decision will be forwarded to the warden who will review the recommendation.

(j) If the Maximum Management Review Team disapproves the maximum management placement, the inmate shall immediately be reclassified to his original status and removed from the maximum management cell.

(k) The Classification Supervisor at the maximum management facility shall ensure that Form DC6-229A, CM Daily Record of Segregation, is documented with any status or condition changes approved by the Maximum Management Review Team. The Classification Supervisor shall also ensure that the inmate is informed verbally and in writing of the Maximum Management Review Team's decision. Form DC6-229A is incorporated by reference in Rule 33-601.800, F.A.C.

(l) The Institutional Classification Team at the maximum management facility is responsible for ensuring that staff adhere to any time frames approved in reference to inmate conditions.

(m) An inmate shall not be released from maximum management status or be subjected to modifications of initial placement conditions until the actions are approved by the Maximum Management Review Team except as allowed in paragraph (4)(a) above.

(8) Final Review of Placement.

~~(a) The warden shall approve or disapprove the ICT recommendation based on the criteria in paragraph (3)(a). If the ICT recommendation is incomplete or additional data is needed, the warden shall return the recommendation to the ICT for additional information.~~

~~(b) If the warden disapproves placement, the inmate shall immediately be reclassified to his original status.~~

(6)(9) Review of Maximum Management Status and Conditions.

(a) The Institutional Classification Team shall review the inmate's maximum management status, the conditions set forth in subsection (4) above, and previously modified conditions, weekly for the first sixty days two months from the date of placement, and at least monthly thereafter.

1. Weekly reviews by the Institutional Classification Team during the first sixty days of maximum management status and monthly thereafter shall be documented on Form DC6-229A, CM Daily Record of Segregation. A recommendation for release from maximum management shall be set forth in memorandum and forwarded to the State Classification Office for review.

2. If the Institutional Classification Team recommends the inmate's release from maximum management or a modification of the inmate's conditions during the first sixty days, the Institutional Classification Team shall also document its recommendation on the Report of Maximum Management, Form DC6-171. An inmate shall not be released from maximum management status until authorized by a member of the State Classification Office.

3. All reviews conducted at least monthly by the Institutional Classification Team after the first sixty days of maximum management status shall be documented on the Report of Maximum Management, Form DC6-171. This documentation shall include any recommendations for modifications of the inmate's conditions.

(b) All Institutional Classification Team reviews documented on the Report of Maximum Management, Form DC6-171, shall be reviewed by the Warden. The Warden shall document his or her reason for approval, disapproval or modification of the Institutional Classification Team recommendations on the Report of Maximum Management, Form DC6-171.

(c) The Warden's recommendations for approval, disapproval or modification of the inmate's status or conditions shall be reviewed by the Regional Director. The Regional

Director shall document approval, disapproval or modification of the Warden's recommendation on the Report of Maximum Management, Form DC6-171.

(d) If the Regional Director approves the inmate for continuation of maximum management status, no further review of the placement or modification of conditions is required. An inmate shall not be subjected to modification of conditions until the modifications are approved by the Regional Director, except as allowed in paragraph (4)(a) above.

(e) If the Regional Director recommends release from maximum management status, the recommendation shall be forwarded for review and final decision to the Deputy Assistant Secretary of Institutions – Operations. The Deputy Assistant Secretary of Institutions – Operations shall document approval, disapproval, or modification of the Regional Director's recommendations on the Report of Maximum Management, Form DC6-171.

(f) The Classification Supervisor at the maximum management facility shall ensure that Form DC6-229A, CM Daily Record of Segregation, is documented with any status or condition changes approved by the Regional Director or Deputy Assistant Secretary of Institutions – Operations.

(g) The ICT at the maximum management facility shall ensure that staff adhere to any time frames approved in reference to inmate conditions.

(h) An inmate shall not be released from maximum management status until that action is approved by the Deputy Assistant Secretary of Institutions – Operations.

(7) On-Site Review of Maximum Management.

(a)(b) If an inmate remains in maximum management status for 90 days or more, the Regional Director or designee a member of the State Classification Office shall conduct an on-site review of the inmate's maximum management status and conditions in conjunction with the monthly review of the Warden's recommendations. This on-site review shall take place after every 90 days period of continued maximum management status from the date of placement. The Regional Director's designee shall be a Regional Assistant Warden, Regional Classification Administrator, or State Classification Officer.

~~(b)(4) The Institutional Classification Team shall participate in the review of the inmate's adjustment with the Regional Director or his designee State Classification Office member.~~

~~2. The State Classification Office member is authorized to reclassify an inmate from maximum management status at any point during the reviews.~~

~~3. The Institutional Classification team shall be authorized to appeal the decision to reclassify the inmate to the State Classification Office chairperson.~~

~~4. The inmate shall not be released from maximum management status until the State Classification Office chairperson rules upon the appeal. The ruling of the State Classification Office chairperson is final.~~

(c) The Regional Director's recommendations following this on-site review will be documented on the Report of Maximum Management, Form DC6-171.

~~(8)(10) Security Requirements.~~

(a) No change.

(b) Additionally, the following security precautions shall be followed for maximum management inmates:

1. No change.

2. A maximum management MM inmate shall exit the cell only in handcuffs behind the back with handcuff cover and in the presence of a minimum of two officers.

3. through 7. No change.

~~(9)(11) Other Conditions of Confinement.~~

~~(a) Inmates in maximum management shall not be allowed to check out books from the library.~~

(b) through (d) renumbered (a) through (c) No change.

~~(d)(e) Inmates who are housed in maximum management will have mental health and medical care services to the same extent as all close management inmates. Monitoring of inmates will be as described in Rule 33-601.800, F.A.C.~~

Specific Authority 944.09 FS. Law Implemented 944.09 FS. History--New 12-7-00, Amended 11-23-03, 4-1-04,_____.

AGENCY FOR HEALTH CARE ADMINISTRATION

Medicaid

RULE TITLE: Physician Services
 RULE NO.: 59G-4.230

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose of this rule amendment is to incorporate by reference update January 2006 to the Florida Medicaid Physician Services Coverage and Limitations Handbook. The handbook update contains the policies and forms for the Recipient Assignment Program (R.A.P.). The 2004 Florida Legislature mandated that the Florida Medicaid Program implement a program to prevent excessive and inappropriate utilization of Medicaid goods and services by recipients in the MediPass and fee-for-service programs. The new program, referred to as the Recipient Assignment Program (R.A.P.), is similar to managed care in regard to the assignment of health care services to a primary care physician (PCP). The accepting PCP will act as a case manager or "gatekeeper" for coordination of the recipient's non-emergency medical services. Certain services are exempt from management by the PCP.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: Physician Services.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 409.919 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 409.905, 409.907, 409.908, 409.9081 FS.

IF REQUESTED IN WRITING BY AN AFFECTED PERSON AND NOT DEEMED UNNECESSARY BY THE AGENCY HEAD, A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATE AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW.

TIME AND DATE: 1:00 p.m., Tuesday, January 17, 2006

PLACE: Agency for Health Care Administration, 2727 Mahan Drive, Building #3, Mail Stop 20, Conference Room C, Tallahassee, Florida

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS: Kathy Canfield, Bureau of Medicaid Services, 2727 Mahan Drive, Mail Stop 20, Tallahassee, Florida 32308, (850)414-0193

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS:

59G-4.230 Physician Services.

(1) No change.

(2) All physician services providers enrolled in the Medicaid program must be in compliance with the Florida Medicaid Physician Services Coverage and Limitations Handbook, January 2004, updated January 2005-1, ~~and~~ January 2005-2, and January 2006, which is incorporated by reference, and the Florida Medicaid Provider Reimbursement Handbook, CMS-1500, which is incorporated by reference in Rule 59G-4.001, F.A.C. Both handbooks are available from the Medicaid fiscal agent.

(3) No change.

(4) The following forms that are included in Chapter 4 of the Florida Medicaid Physician Services Coverage and Limitations Handbook are incorporated by reference: Enrollment Notification Letter, January 2006, two pages; Enrollment Notification Letter, Spanish version, January 2006, two pages; Recipient Assignment Program, Election of Rights form, January 2006, two pages; Recipient Assignment Program, Election of Rights form, Spanish version, January 2006, two pages; Request for Change of Address for Recipient Assignment Program (R.A.P.), January 2006, one page; Request for Change of Address for Recipient Assignment Program (R.A.P.), Spanish version, January 2006, one page; and the Recipient Assignment Program, Enrollee Physician Notification form, January 2006, two pages. The Enrollee Physician Notification form is available from the Bureau of Medicaid Services. The other forms are available from the Medicaid fiscal agent.

Specific Authority 409.919 FS. Law Implemented 409.905, 409.907, 409.908, 409.9081 FS. History--New 1-1-77, Revised 2-1-78, 4-1-78, 1-2-79, 1-1-80, Amended 2-8-82, 3-11-84, Formerly 10C-7.38, Amended 1-10-91, 11-5-92, 1-7-93, Formerly 10C-7.038, Amended 6-29-93, 9-6-93, Formerly 10P-4.230, Amended 6-13-94, 2-9-95, 3-10-96, 5-28-96, 3-18-98, 9-22-98, 8-25-99, 4-23-00, 8-5-01, 2-20-03, 8-5-03, 6-27-04, 8-3-04, 8-31-05,_____.

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Pursuant to Chapter 2003-145, Laws of Florida, all notices for the Department of Environmental Protection are published on the Internet at the Department of Environmental Protection’s home page at <http://www.dep.state.fl.us/> under the link or button titled “Official Notices.”

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

Board of Physical Therapy Practice

RULE TITLE: Requirements for Reactivation of an Inactive or Retired License

RULE NO.: 64B17-5.001

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The Board proposes the development of a rule amendment to address retired status licensees and criteria for reinstatement of licensure.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: Retired status and criteria for reinstatement of licensure.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 486.025, 486.085(2), (4)(a), 486.108(2), 456.036 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 486.085, 486.108, 456.036 FS.

IF REQUESTED IN WRITING AND NOT DEEMED UNNECESSARY BY THE AGENCY HEAD, A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE SCHEDULED AND ANNOUNCED IN THE FAW.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT AND A COPY OF THE PRELIMINARY DRAFT IS: Susan Love, Executive Director, Board of Physical Therapy Practice/MQA, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C05, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3253

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS:

64B17-5.001 Requirements for Reactivation of an Inactive or Retired License.

(1) Depending upon the time of reactivation, an inactive or retired license shall be reactivated upon demonstration that the licensee has paid the reactivation fee, the biennial renewal fee for an active license or the difference between the inactive or retired status renewal fee and the active status renewal fee, and if applicable, a change of status and/or delinquency fee, provided that the licensee has:

(1) through (4) renumbered (a) through (d) No change.

(e) Documented successful passage of the Laws & Rules examination.

(2) The Board of Physical Therapy may reinstate the license of the licensee with any restrictions that the Board deems appropriate, including, but not limited to the requirement to practice under direct supervision, to ensure the safe practice of the licensee and to safeguard the health, safety and welfare of the citizens of Florida. A licensee seeking to reactivate an inactive or retired license, who has not practiced as a physical therapist or a physical therapist assistant or who

has been practicing as a physical therapist or physical therapist assistant in a setting that does not involve direct patient care, for a period greater than two (2) years shall be required to practice under direct supervision:

(a) Up to 3 months, if the time out of practice or practicing without direct patient care is greater than 3 years but less than 5 years;

(b) Up to 6 months if the time out of practice or practicing without direct patient care is 5 years or greater but less than 10 years;

(c) Up to 1 year if the time out of practice or practicing without direct patient care is 10 years or greater.

(d) If the licensee has been out of the practice of physical therapy or practicing physical therapy in a setting that does not involve direct patient care for a period of five (5) years or more, the Board may require the licensee to take and pass the licensing examination required for initial licensure.

Specific Authority 486.025, 486.085(2), (4)(a), 486.108(2), 456.036 FS. Law Implemented 486.085, 486.108, 456.036 FS. History—New 8-6-84, Formerly 21M-8.11, Amended 9-22-87, 12-30-87, 6-20-89, Formerly 21M-8.011, Amended 3-24-93, Formerly 21MM-5.001, 61F11-5.001, Amended 12-22-94, 4-4-95, 8-16-95, 7-1-97, Formerly 59Y-5.001, Amended 8-9-04, _____.

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

Office of Public Health Research

RULE TITLE: Institutional Review Board Applications

RULE NO.: 64H-2.002

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose of this rule is to provide an application mechanism and fee schedule for requesting Institutional Review Board review, pursuant to the provisions of Section 381.86(5), F.S.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: Institutional Review Board.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 381.86 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 381.86(5) FS.

IF REQUESTED IN WRITING AND NOT DEEMED UNNECESSARY BY THE AGENCY, A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATE AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

TIME AND DATE: 9:00 a.m. – 10:00 a.m., EST., Wednesday, January 18, 2006

PLACE: Department of Health, 4030 Esplanade Way, Tallahassee, FL

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS: Sylvia McDaniel, Office of Public Health Research, Department of Health, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Mail Bin A24, Tallahassee, FL 32399, (850)245-4585

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS:

64H-2.002 Institutional Review Board Applications.

Applications for Institutional Review Board review shall be submitted electronically using the IRB Wise™ system available at the department’s website <http://www.doh.state.fl.us/execstaff/irb/index.html>. The website address is also available by contacting the Office of Public Health Research, Department of Health, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Mail Bin A-24, Tallahassee, Florida 32399, (850)245-4585. An application fee shall be charged according to the following schedule: Initial Applications \$1,500, Amendments \$500, and Continuing Reviews \$500. Application fees are due at the time of submission and applications will not be processed until payment is received by the department. Application fees are waived for any student who is a candidate for a degree at a university located in this state.

Specific Authority 381.86 FS. Law Implemented 381.86(5) FS. History—New 4-1-06.

DEPARTMENT OF CHILDREN AND FAMILY SERVICES

Agency for Persons with Disabilities

RULE TITLE: Determination of Mental Retardation: RULE NO.:

Intelligence Tests to be Administered 65B-4.033

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: This rule specifies the intelligence tests to be used in the determination of Mental Retardation for the purpose of determining program eligibility.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: Intelligence tests.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 393.063(38), 916.106, 393.501(1) FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 393.063(38) FS.

IF REQUESTED AND NOT DEEMED UNNECESSARY BY THE AGENCY HEAD, A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATE AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

TIME AND DATE: 10:00 a.m. – 12:00 Noon, January 26, 2006

PLACE: 4030 Esplanade Way, Room 370 A, Tallahassee, FL 32399, (850)488-1553

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS: Charles L. Ball, Florida Agency for Persons with Disabilities (APD), 4030 Esplanade Way, Room 370D, Tallahassee, FL 32399, (850)488-1553

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS

65B-4.033 Determination of Mental Retardation: Intelligence Tests to be Administered.

(1) For the purposes of Chapters 393 and 916, F.S., the Stanford-Binet Intelligence Scale or the Wechsler Adult & Infant Intelligence Scale, administered by or under the direct

supervision of a psychologist or school psychologist licensed under Chapter 490, F.S., shall be used to determine mental retardation and the level of intellectual functioning.

(2) Notwithstanding subsection (1), if, given the condition of the individual to be tested, the Stanford-Binet Intelligence Scale or the Wechsler Adult & Infant Intelligence Scale are not valid and reliable as determined by the person authorized to administer such tests, an alternative test or evaluation procedure, administered and interpreted in conformance with instructions provided by the producer of the tests or evaluation materials, may be used. The results of the testing or evaluation must include reference to published validity and reliability data for the specified test or evaluation procedure.

Specific Authority 393.63(38), 916.106, 393.501(1) FS. Law Implemented 393.63(38), 916.106 FS. History—New _____

DEPARTMENT OF CHILDREN AND FAMILY SERVICES

Mental Health Program Office

RULE TITLE: Right to Quality Treatment RULE NO.: 65E-5.180

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: Rule 65E-5.180, F.A.C., is being revised to comply with Section 394.459(4)(b)3., F.S., of the Baker Act, requiring facilities develop a system for investigating and responding to certain complaints.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: Development of a rule to comply with the statutory requirements of Section 394.459(4)(b)3., F.S., of the Baker Act.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 394.459(4)(b) FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 394.459(4)(b)3. FS.

A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATE AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

TIME AND DATE: 9:00 a.m., January 19, 2006

PLACE: Building 6, Conference Room “A”, Winewood Office Complex, 1317 Winewood Blvd., Tallahassee, Florida

Persons with disabilities requiring accommodations in order to participate in this workshop should contact Linda Henshaw, Department of Children and Families, Mental Health Program Office, 1317 Winewood Blvd., Building 6, Room 271, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0700, (850)921-5724, (Voice) or (850)921-5724 (TDD), as soon as possible, but no later than five full working days prior to the workshop.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT AND A COPY OF THE PRELIMINARY DRAFT, AVAILABLE AT NO CHARGE IS: Ron Kizirian, Medical/Healthcare Program Analyst, Mental Health Program Office, 1317 Winewood Blvd., Building 6, Room 211, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0700, telephone: (850)921-8880

ANY PERSON MAY SUBMIT INFORMATION REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT TO THE ABOVE NAME AND ADDRESS.

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS:

65E-5.180 Right to Quality Treatment.

The following standards shall be required in the provision of quality mental health treatment:

(1) through (5) No change.

(6) Each ~~designated receiving and treatment facility and service provider~~ shall develop a written procedure for the receipt, review, tracking, and prompt investigation of oral or written complaints by a person or other individual on the person's behalf concerning the person's about his or her care while receiving services in a facility or by a service provider hospitalized, which shall be documented in the person's clinical record.

(a) The grievance process shall be verbally explained during the orientation process in written orientation materials and shall be posted in plain view in common areas and at the point of contact for the provision of services.

(b) Any grievance may be verbal or written. When the grievance is verbal, the facility will designate an individual not named in the dispute to assist the complainant in writing the grievance. The grievance shall detail the issue and the remedy sought.

(c) All grievances shall be addressed, and immediately forwarded, to the staff person in the facility who is assigned to track grievances.

(d) The grievance shall be date-stamped upon receipt and entered into a tracking system which documents:

1. The nature of the complaint;
2. The name of the person receiving services;
3. The name of the person making the complaint;
4. The individual assigned to investigate the complaint;
5. The due date for the written response; and
6. A copy of the written response to the grievance.

(a) The person receiving services and the complainant shall receive a verbal response to the grievance within 24 hours from the date and time of initial receipt. Every effort must be made to immediately address those grievances that do not require extensive investigation.

(b) A written response must be given to or mailed to the complainant within two working days from the date and time of initial receipt. A copy of the written response shall be given to the individual staff member assigned to track grievances. If the complainant has an assigned staff advocate, that advocate must attempt to mediate the resolution to the grievance.

(c) The complainant may appeal the disposition of a grievance to the administrator of the facility or service provider.

(d) If appealed, the facility or service provider administrator or his or her designee shall review the written complaint and the initial response. Within five working days, the facility administrator or his or her designee will make a

final decision concerning the outcome of the grievance and will provide a written response to the complainant. A copy of the written response shall also be given to the staff member assigned to track grievances.

(e) The complainant shall also be advised that he or she can contact the Local Advocacy Council, the Advocacy Center for Persons with Disabilities, or any other individual or agency at anytime during the complaint process to request assistance.

(7) through (13) No change.

Specific Authority 394.457(5), ~~394.459(4)(b)~~ FS. Law Implemented 394, Part I, 394.459(2)(d), (4), (4)(b)3., 401.455 FS. History--New 11-29-98, Amended 4-4-05, _____.

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL SERVICES

Division of Workers' Compensation

RULE TITLE:

RULE NO.:

Florida Workers' Compensation Medical

Services Billing, Filing and Reporting Rule 69L-7.602

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose of this rule amendment is to address both ministerial changes made to the recently adopted Florida Workers' Compensation Medical Services Billing Rule and to update the Florida Workers' Compensation Medical EDI Implementation Guide (MEIG), 2006, to reflect its most current edition. The effect of this rule amendment is to promote compliance by insurers and submitters with requirements associated with the electronic submission, filing and reporting, relating to the Florida Workers' Compensation Medical Services Billing Rule, streamline the application of administrative fines and penalties on insurers for non-compliance, and to update relevant reference material to reflect the most current edition.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: Rule amendment reflecting changes and updates to reference materials associated with the recently adopted Florida Workers' Compensation Medical Services Billing Rule.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 440.13(4), 440.15(3)(b), (d), 440.185(5), 440.525(2), 440.591, 440.593(5) FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 440.09, 440.13(2)(a), (3), (4), (6), (11), (12), (14), (16), 440.15(3)(b), (d), 440.185(5), (9), 440.20(6), 440.593 FS.

A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATE AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

TIME AND DATE: 2:00 p.m., January 17, 2006

PLACE: Room 317, Hartman Building, 2012 Capital Circle, S.E., Tallahassee, Florida

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT AND A COPY OF THE PRELIMINARY DRAFT IS: Don Davis, Division of Workers' Compensation, Office of Data Quality and Collection, Department of Financial Services, 200 East Gaines Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-4226, phone (850)413-1711

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this program, please advise the Department at least 5 calendar days before the program by contacting the person listed above.

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS:

69L-7.602 Florida Workers' Compensation Medical Services Billing, Filing and Reporting Rule.

(1) No change.

(a) through (n) No change.

(o) "Electronic Filing" means the computer exchange of medical data from a submitter to the division in the standardized format defined in the Florida Workers' Compensation Medical EDI Implementation Guide (MEIG), 2006~~5~~.

(p) "Electronic Form Equivalent" means the format, provided in the Florida Workers' Compensation Medical EDI Implementation Guide (MEIG), 2006~~5~~, to be used when a submitter electronically transmits required data to the division. Electronic form equivalents do not include transmission by facsimile, data file(s) attached to electronic mail, or computer-generated paper-forms.

(q) through (s) No change.

(t) "Florida Workers' Compensation Medical EDI Implementation Guide (MEIG), 2006~~5~~" is the Florida Division of Workers' Compensation's reference document containing the specific electronic formats and data elements required for insurer reporting of medical data to the Division.

(u) through (jj) No change.

(kk) "UB-92, National Uniform Billing Data Element Specifications as Adopted by the Florida State Uniform Billing Committee, September April 2005" (UB-92 manual) is the reference document providing billing and reporting completion instructions for the Form DFS-F5-DWC-90 (UB-92 HCFA-1450, Uniform Bill, Rev. 1992).

(2) No change.

(a) Form DFS-F5-DWC-9 (CMS-1500 Health Insurance Claim Form, Rev. 12/90); Form DFS-F5-DWC-9-A (Completion Instructions for Form DFS-F5-DWC-9)-A (comprised of three sets of completion instructions for use by health care providers, ambulatory surgical centers, and work hardening and pain management programs), Rev. 5/26/05; Form DFS-F5-DWC-10 (Statement of Charges for Drugs and Medical Supplies Form), Rev. 5/26/2005; ~~Completion Instructions for Form DFS-F5-DWC-10—A, Rev. 5-26-05;~~ Form DFS-F5-DWC-11 (American Dental Association Dental Claim Form, Rev. 2002); Form DFS-F5-DWC-11-A (Completion Instructions for Form DFS-F5-DWC-11)-A, Rev. 5/ ~~May~~ 26/ 2005; Form DFS-F5-DWC-25 (Florida Workers' Compensation Uniform Medical Treatment/Status Reporting Form), Rev. 11/07/2005 ~~5/26/2005~~;

~~Completion/Submission Instructions for Form DFS-F5-DWC-25, Rev. May 26, 2005; and Form DFS-F5-DWC-90 (UB-92 HCFA-1450, Uniform Bill, Rev. 1992) are hereby incorporated by reference into this rule.~~

1. through 4. No change.

5. A copy of the Form DFS-F5-DWC-90 can be obtained from the CMS web site: <http://cms.hhs.gov/forms/>. Completion instructions can be obtained from the UB-92, National Uniform Billing Data Element Specifications as Adopted by the Florida State Uniform Billing Committee (Rev. September April 2005) and subparagraph (4)(e)5. of this rule.

(b) No change.

1. No change.

2. The form provides all information required to be submitted to the division, pursuant to the MEIG, 2006, on the Form DFS-F5-DWC-10. Forms DFS-F5-DWC-9, DFS-F5-DWC-11 or DFS-F5-DWC-90 shall not be submitted as an alternate form.

(3) No change.

(a) UB-92, National Uniform Billing Data Element Specifications as Adopted by the Florida State Uniform Billing Committee (Rev. September June 2005). A copy of this manual can be obtained from the Florida Hospital Association by calling (407)841-6230.

(b) The Florida Workers' Compensation Medical EDI Implementation Guide (MEIG), 2006~~5~~. The Florida Workers' Compensation Medical EDI Implementation Guide (MEIG), 2006~~5~~ can be obtained from the DFS/DWC web site: http://www.fldfs.com/WC/pdfMedDataElecFilingManual2005_5-26-05.pdf.

(c) through (k) No change.

(4) (a) through (c) No change.

1. The Form DFS-F5-DWC-25 does not replace physician notes, medical records or Division-required medical ~~billing~~ reports.

2. All information submitted on physician notes, medical records or Division-required medical ~~billing~~ reports must be consistent with information documented on the Form DFS-F5-DWC-25.

(d) 1. through 4. No change.

5. Certified, licensed physician assistants, anesthesia assistants and registered nurse first assistants who provide surgical assistance ~~on procedures with codes permitting an assistant—surgeon-physician~~ shall bill on a Form DFS-F5-DWC-9 entering the CPT code(s) plus modifier(s), which represent the service(s) rendered, in Field 24D, and must enter his/her Florida Department of Health license number in Field 33.

6. through 8. No change.

9. a. through e. No change.

f. Dispensing physicians, physician assistants or ARNPs shall bill by entering code 99070 in Field 24D, on a Form DFS-F5-DWC-9, when supplying over-the-counter drugs and shall submit documentation ~~an invoice~~ indicating the name, dosage, package size and cost of the drug(s).

g. No change.

10. through 11. No change.

12. Health care providers and other insurer authorized providers rendering health care services reimbursable under workers' compensation, whose billing requirements are not otherwise specified in this rule (e.g. home health agencies, independent ambulance services, transportation services, translation services, etc.), shall bill on their invoice or business letterhead. These providers shall not submit the Forms DFS-F5-DWC-9, DFS-F5-DWC-11 or DFS-F5-DWC-90 as an invoice.

(e) through (f) No change.

(5) (a) through (d) No change.

(e) Required data elements on Forms DFS-F5-DWC-9, DFS-F5-DWC-10, DFS-F5-DWC-11, and DFS-F5-DWC-90, for both medical only and lost-time cases, shall be filed with the division within 45 calendar days of insurer, service company/TPA or any entity acting on behalf of the insurer, payment, adjustment and payment, disallowance or denial. This 45- calendar day requirement includes initial submission and correction and re-submission of all errors identified in the "Medical Claim Processing Report", as defined in the Florida Workers' Compensation Medical EDI Implementation Guide (MEIG), 2006~~5~~.

(f) An insurer shall be responsible for accurately completing required data filed with the division, as of the effective date of this rule, pursuant to the Florida Workers' Compensation Medical EDI Implementation Guide (MEIG), 2006~~5~~ and subparagraphs (4)(e)2.-5. of this rule.

(g) through (j) No change.

1. through 2. No change.

3. Required information is illegible, inaccurate, or omitted; ~~or~~

4. The bill is an exact duplicate of a previously paid, adjusted and paid, disallowed or denied bill.

(k) through (n) No change.

1. and 2. No change.

a. through n. No change.

o. 15 Invalid ~~procedure~~ code. (Use when other valid ~~procedure~~ codes are present.)

p. through t. No change.

(o) through (q) No change.

(6) No change.

(a) No change.

1. Additionally, an insurer shall be responsible for accurately completing the electronic record layout programming requirements for the reporting of the Form

DFS-F5-DWC-9 Claim Detail Record Layout – Revision "C" and the Form DFS-F5-DWC-10 Claim Detail Record Layout – Revision "C", Form DFS-F5-DWC-11 Claim Detail Record Layout – Revision "C" and Form DFS-F5-DWC-90 Claim Detail Record Layout – Revision "C" in accordance with the Florida Workers' Compensation Medical Implementation Guide (MEIG), 2005, to the division in accordance with the phase-in schedule as denoted below in sub-subparagraphs a., b., and c. of this section. The electronic record layout for Form DFS-F5-DWC-9 in the MEIG, 2005, adds the new field 30A for submission of the pre-payment/employee payment indicator and the new field 31A for submission of the duplicate override indicator and adds the new field 18B for submission of the National Drug Code (NDC) number. The electronic record layout for Form DFS-F5-DWC-10 in the MEIG, 2005, adds the new field 25A ~~24A~~ for submission of the pre-payment/employee payment indicator and the new field 26A ~~25A~~ for the submission of the duplicate override indicator and adds a claim detail record layout, which includes form fields 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14 and 15 for Section 2 – Prescription Drugs. The electronic record layout for Form DFS-F5-DWC-11 in the MEIG, 2005, adds the new field 27A for submission of the pre-payment/employee payment indicator and the new field 28A for submission of the duplicate override indicator. The electronic record layout for Form DFS-F5-DWC-90 in the MEIG, 2005, adds the new field 40A for submission of the pre-payment/employee payment indicator and the new field 41A for submission of the duplicate override indicator. The conversion implementation schedule is as follows:

a. through c. No change.

2. The Division will, resources permitting, allow submitters that volunteer to complete ~~the~~ test transmission to production transmission processes earlier than any ~~the~~ schedule denoted within this rule ~~above~~. Each voluntary submitter shall have six weeks to complete test transmission to production transmission processes, for all electronic form equivalents, that comply with requirements set forth in this rule ~~the Florida Workers' Compensation Medical EDI Implementation Guide (MEIG), 2005~~.

3. With the effective date of this rule, an insurer shall be responsible for accurately completing the electronic record layout programming requirements for the reporting of Form DFS-F5-DWC-10 Claim Detail Record Layout – Revision "D" in accordance with the Florida Workers' Compensation Medical Implementation Guide (MEIG), 2006. The electronic record layout for Form DFS-F5-DWC-10 in the MEIG, 2006, adds the new field 16B for submission of the Amount Paid by Insurer. The electronic record layouts for Forms DFS-F5-DWC-9, DFS-F5-DWC-11 and DFS-F5-DWC-90, after the effective date of this rule, will also be known as Record Layout – Revision "D".

a. All submitters shall begin testing on April 10, 2006 and shall be in production with Form DFS-F5-DWC-10 Record – Layout Revision “D” no later than May 22, 2006.

(b) Required data elements shall be submitted in compliance with the instructions and formats as set forth in the Florida Workers’ Compensation Medical EDI Implementation Guide (MEIG), 2006.

(c) No change.

(d) Submitters who experience a catastrophic event resulting in the insurer’s failure to meet the reporting requirements in paragraph (5)(e) of this rule, shall submit a written request within 15 3 business days of the catastrophic failure to the division for approval to submit in an alternative reporting method and an alternative filing timeline. Approval must be obtained from the Division’s Office of Data Quality and Collection, 200 East Gaines Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-4226. Approval to submit in an alternative reporting method and an alternative filing timeline shall be granted if a catastrophic event beyond the control of the submitter prevents electronic submission.

(7) Insurer Administrative Penalties and Administrative Fines for Untimely Provider-Payment or Disposition of Medical Bills.

(a) ~~Insurer administrative penalties for untimely provider payment or disposition of medical bills.~~ The department shall impose insurer administrative penalties for failure to comply with the payment, adjustment and payment, disallowance or denial requirements pursuant to Section 440.20(6)(b), F.S. Timely performance standards for timely payments, adjustments and payments, disallowances or denials, reported on Forms DFS-F5-DWC-9, DFS-F5-DWC-10, DFS-F5-DWC-11 and DFS-F5-DWC-90, shall be calculated and applied on a monthly basis for each separate form category that was received within a specific calendar month.

(b) ~~Insurer administrative fines for failure to submit, untimely submission, filing and reporting of medical data requirements.~~ Pursuant to Section 440.185(9), F.S., the department shall impose insurer administrative fines for failure to comply with the submission, filing or reporting requirements of this rule. Insurer administrative fines shall be applied as follows:

1. Calculated on a monthly basis for each separate form category (Forms DFS-F5-DWC-9, DFS-F5-DWC-10, DFS-F5-DWC-11, DFS-F5-DWC-90) received and accepted by the division within a specific calendar month; and

2. Insurers are required to report all medical billing reports timely pursuant to subparagraph (5)e. of this rule. Insurers that fail to submit a minimum of 95% of all medical billing reports timely are subject to an administrative fine. Each untimely filed medical billing report which falls below the 95% requirement is subject to the following penalty schedule:

~~Imposed for each failure to file, untimely filed, rejected and not re-submitted, or rejected and re-submitted untimely medical data report according to the following schedule:~~

- a. 1 – ~~30~~15 calendar days late \$~~5~~ 40.00;
- b. ~~31~~16 – ~~60~~30 calendar days late \$~~120~~0.00;
- c. ~~61~~ – ~~90~~45 calendar days late \$~~25~~ 30.00;
- d. ~~91 or greater~~ 46 – 60 calendar days late \$~~100~~ 40.00.;
- e. ~~61~~ – 75 calendar days late \$50.00;
- f. ~~76~~ – 90 calendar days late \$100.00; and
- g. ~~91~~ calendar days or greater \$500.00.

3. Each medical billing report that does not pass the electronic reporting edits shall be rejected by the Division and considered not filed pursuant to subparagraph (5)e. of this rule. If the medical billing report remains rejected and not corrected, resubmitted and accepted by the division for greater than 90 days, an administrative fine shall be assessed in the amount of \$100.00 for each such medical billing report. Rejected and not resubmitted medical billing reports will not be included in the 95% timely reporting requirement.

4. Untimely filed medical reports for a given month will be excluded from the administrative fine set forth in section 3 above as falling within the performance standard between 100% and 95% in the following order:

- a. Medical Reports filed 1 – 30 calendar days late; then
- b. Medical Reports filed 31 – 60 calendar days late; then
- c. Medical Reports filed 61 – 90 calendar days late; then
- d. Medical Reports filed 91+ calendar days late.

Specific Authority 440.13(4), 440.15(3)(b), (d), 440.185(5), 440.525(2), 440.591, 440.593(5) FS. Law Implemented 440.09, 440.13(2)(a), (3), (4), (6), (11), (12), (14), (16), 440.15(3)(b), (d), 440.185(5), (9), 440.20(6), 440.593 FS. History–New 1-23-95, Formerly 38F-7.602, 4L-7.602, Amended 7-4-04, 10-20-05,_____.

FINANCIAL SERVICES COMMISSION

Office of Insurance Regulation

RULE TITLE: Unfair Discrimination in Private Passenger Motor Vehicle Insurance Rates – Based on History of Accidents

RULE NO.: 690-175.008

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: To identify specific methods of competition or acts or practices prohibited by Section 626.9541, Florida Statutes.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: Unfair discrimination in private passenger motor vehicle insurance rates based on the history of accidents.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 624.308(1), 626.9611 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 624.307(1), 626.9541(1)(o)3.a. FS.

IF REQUESTED IN WRITING AND NOT DEEMED UNNECESSARY BY THE AGENCY HEAD, A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATE AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

TIME AND DATE: 9:30 a.m., February 21, 2006

PLACE: Room 116, Larson Building, 200 East Gaines Street, Tallahassee, Florida

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT AND A COPY OF THE PRELIMINARY DRAFT, IF AVAILABLE, IS: Michael Milnes, Property and Casualty Product Review, Office of Insurance Regulation, E-mail: michael.milnes@fldfs.com.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this program, please advise the Office at least 5 calendar days before the program by contacting the person listed above.

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS NOT AVAILABLE.

Section II Proposed Rules

DEPARTMENT OF LAW ENFORCEMENT

Criminal Justice Standards and Training Commission

RULE CHAPTER TITLE: RULE CHAPTER NO.:

Salary Incentive Program 11B-14

RULE TITLE: RULE NO.:

General Program Provisions 11B-14.002

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: Revises Commission form CJSTC-67.

SUMMARY: Revises Training Report form CJSTC-67.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COSTS: None.

Any person, who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated regulatory cost, or to provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative, must do so in writing within 21 working days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 943.03(4), 943.12(1), 943.22(2)(h) FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 943.22 FS.

IF REQUESTED, IN WRITING, WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATE AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW (IF NOT REQUESTED, THIS HEARING WILL NOT BE HELD):

TIME AND DATE: 10:00 a.m., January 24, 2006

PLACE: 2331 Phillips Road, Elevator Conference Room, Quad C, 3rd Floor, Tallahassee, Florida 32308-1489

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Donna Hunt, Florida Department of Law Enforcement, Criminal Justice Professionalism Program, 2331 Phillips Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32308, telephone number: (850)410-8615

NOTICE UNDER THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT: Pursuant with the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations

to participate in this program, please advise the Department at least 5 days prior to the workshop by contacting Donna Hunt at (850)410-8615 or TDD Number (850)656-9597.

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

11B-14.002 General Program Provisions.

(1) No change.

(2) Career Development Training Program Courses, as defined in subsection 11B-14.001(1), F.A.C., and Advanced Training Program Courses, as defined in subsection 11B-14.001(3), F.A.C., that have been successfully completed, as defined in subsection 11B-14.001(9), F.A.C., by eligible officers, shall be verified by the training center director or designee, as defined in paragraph 11B-21.005(8)(a), F.A.C. To verify successful completion of a Commission-approved Advanced or Career Development Training Program Course and to authorize salary incentive payments, a Training Report, form CJSTC-67, revised May 5, 2005 ~~May 6, 2004~~, hereby incorporated by reference, shall be electronically transmitted to Commission staff through the Commission's ATMS.

(3) through (15) No change.

Specific Authority 943.03(4), 943.12(1), 943.22(2)(h) FS. Law Implemented 943.22 FS. History--New 10-16-78, Amended 9-11-79, 1-13-81, 5-16-83, 1-7-85, Formerly 11B-14.02, Amended 7-13-87, 9-3-87, 5-23-88, 5-14-92, 12-13-92, 1-2-97, 7-7-99, 8-22-00, 7-29-01, 11-5-02, 11-30-04, _____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE: Ms. Donna Hunt, Government Operations Consultant, Florida Department of Law Enforcement, Criminal Justice Professionalism Program, 2331 Phillips Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32308-1489, telephone number: (850)410-8615

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Bureau Chief Vickie Marsey, Florida Department of Law Enforcement, Criminal Justice Professionalism Program

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: December 19, 2005

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: September 16, 2005

DEPARTMENT OF LAW ENFORCEMENT

Criminal Justice Standards and Training Commission

RULE CHAPTER TITLE: RULE CHAPTER NO.:

Criminal Justice Standards and 11B-18

Training Trust Fund 11B-18

RULE TITLE: RULE NO.:

Regional Training Areas 11B-18.004

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: Adds a new Commission-certified criminal justice training school to Region IX and X.

SUMMARY: Updates the Commission-certified criminal justice training school list.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COSTS: None.

Any person, who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated regulatory cost, or to provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative, must do so in writing within 21 working days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 943.03(4), 943.12(1), (2) FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 943.25(5) FS.

IF REQUESTED, IN WRITING, WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATE AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW (IF NOT REQUESTED, THIS HEARING WILL NOT BE HELD):

TIME AND DATE: 10:00 a.m., January 24, 2006

PLACE: 2331 Phillips Road, Elevator Conference Room, Quad C, 3rd Floor, Tallahassee, Florida 32308-1489

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Donna Hunt, Florida Department of Law Enforcement, Criminal Justice Professionalism Program, 2331 Phillips Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32308, telephone number: (850)410-8615

NOTICE UNDER THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT: Pursuant with the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this program, please advise the Department at least 5 days prior to the workshop by contacting Donna Hunt at (850)410-8615 or TDD Number (850)656-9597.

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

11B-18.004 Regional Training Areas.

For the purposes of Officer Training Monies activities, there are established the following sixteen regional training areas:

- (1) through (8) No change.
- (9) Region IX.
 - (a) No change.
 - (b) Commission-certified training schools within Region IX: Hillsborough Community College Criminal Justice Institute, Manatee Technical Institute Criminal Justice Academy, Manatee Sheriff's Office Training Center, Pasco-Hernando Community College/Pasco-Hernando Police Academy, and St. Petersburg Junior College Southeastern Public Safety Institute.
- (10) Region X.
 - (a) No change.
 - (b) Commission-certified training schools within Region X: Sarasota County Technical Institute/Sarasota Criminal Justice Academy, and Lee County Vocational High Technical Center (Central)/Southwest Florida Public Service Criminal Justice Academy.
- (11) through (16) No change.

Specific Authority 943.03(4), 943.12(1), (2) FS. Law Implemented 943.25(5) FS. (Supp. 1998). History--New 1-13-81, Amended 7-28-82, 1-7-85, Formerly 11B-18.04, Amended 7-13-87, 1-2-97, 7-7-99, 8-22-00, 11-5-02, 11-30-04, _____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE: Ms. Donna Hunt, Government Operations Consultant, Florida Department of Law Enforcement, Criminal Justice Professionalism Program, 2331 Phillips Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32308-1489, telephone number: (850)410-8615

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Bureau Chief Vickie Marsey, Florida Department of Law Enforcement, Criminal Justice Professionalism Program

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: December 19, 2005

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: September 16, 2005

DEPARTMENT OF LAW ENFORCEMENT

Criminal Justice Standards and Training Commission

RULE CHAPTER TITLE: Certification of Criminal Justice

RULE CHAPTER NO.: 11B-20

Training Instructors 11B-20

RULE TITLES: Definitions and Minimum Requirements

RULE NOS.:

for General Certification of Instructors 11B-20.001

Minimum Requirements for High-Liability and Specialized Topics Instructor Certification 11B-20.0014

Inspection of Instructor Certification Applications 11B-20.0016

Maintenance and Duration of Instructor Certifications 11B-20.0017

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: Revises Commission forms;

clarifies the requirements for obtaining high-liability instructor certification; clarifies when a certified law topic instructor shall be used to instruct cross-over training programs; removes obsolete training programs; and revises the deadline for renewal of instructor certifications.

SUMMARY: Revises Commission forms CJSTC-10, 67, 71, and 84; removes the requirement for completing courses in a specific sequence to obtain certification as a high-liability instructor; removes the Traditional Correctional to Law Enforcement Basic Recruit Cross-Over Training Program from the list of programs that require a certified law topics instructor; adds rule language to clarify that instructor renewal dates shall not change when adding additional instructor certification topics; and adds the specific date of March 31st for renewal of instructor certifications.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COSTS: None.

Any person, who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated regulatory cost, or to provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative, must do so in writing within 21 working days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 120.60(1), 943.03(4), 943.12(1), 943.14(3) FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 120.60(1), 943.12(3), (9), 943.13(6), 943.14(3) FS.

IF REQUESTED, IN WRITING, WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATE AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW (IF NOT REQUESTED, THIS HEARING WILL NOT BE HELD):

TIME AND DATE: 10:00 a.m., January 24, 2006

PLACE: 2331 Phillips Road, Elevator Conference Room, Quad C, 3rd floor, Tallahassee, Florida 32308-1489

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULES IS: Donna Hunt, Florida Department of Law Enforcement, Criminal Justice Professionalism Program, 2331 Phillips Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32308, telephone number: (850)410-8615

NOTICE UNDER THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT: Pursuant with the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this program, please advise the Department at least 5 days prior to the workshop by contacting Donna Hunt at (850)410-8615 or TDD Number (850)656-9597.

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

11B-20.001 Definitions and Minimum Requirements for General Certification of Instructors.

(1) Definitions:

(a) "Successful completion" of a course is documented as a "Pass" on the completed Training Report, form CJSTC-67, revised May 5, 2005 ~~May 6, 2004~~, hereby incorporated by reference.

(b) through (g) No change.

(2) Instructor applicants applying for instructor certification shall:

(a) Complete the Instructor Certification Application, form CJSTC-71, revised May 5, 2005 ~~May 6, 2004~~, hereby incorporated by reference;

(b) through (c) No change.

(3) through (4) No change.

Specific Authority 943.03(4), 943.12(1), 943.14(3) FS. Law Implemented 943.12(3), (9), 943.14(3) FS. History—New 7-21-82, Formerly 11B-20.01, Amended 10-26-88, 5-14-92, 12-8-92, 1-10-94, 1-2-97, 7-7-99, 8-22-00, 7-29-01, 11-5-02, 11-30-04, _____.

11B-20.0014 Minimum Requirements for High-Liability and Specialized Topics Instructor Certification.

(1) No change.

(2) High-Liability Instructor Certifications. Instructor applicants, who apply for a High-Liability Instructor Certification, shall have completed the applicable High-Liability Instructor Course within four years of the date the instructor applicant applies for certification. Instructor applicants, who apply for a High-Liability Instructor

Certification more than four years from the date training was completed, shall complete an internship and demonstrate the proficiency skills applicable to the high-liability topic. Instructor applicants shall meet the following requirements for High-Liability Instructor Certification for each topic requested.

(a) No change.

(b) CMS Vehicle Operations Instructor Certification. Instructor applicants who request to obtain certification to instruct vehicle operations topics in Commission-approved Basic Recruit Training Programs, the CMS Vehicle Operations Instructor Course, and CMS Vehicle Operations Instructor Transition Course, shall comply with the requirements for CMS General Instructor Certification pursuant to paragraph 11B-20.001(3)(b), F.A.C., and prior to successfully complete ~~completing~~ one of the following training courses through a training school:

(c) No change.

(d) CMS Firearms Instructor Certification. Instructor applicants who request to obtain certification to instruct firearms topics in Commission-approved Basic Recruit Training Programs, the CMS Firearms Instructor Course, and CMS Firearms Instructor Transition Course, shall comply with the requirements for CMS General Instructor Certification pursuant to paragraph 11B-20.001(3)(b), F.A.C., and prior to successfully complete ~~completing~~ one of the following training courses through a training school:

(e) No change.

(f) CMS Defensive Tactics Instructor Certification. Instructor applicants who request to obtain certification to instruct defensive tactics topics in Commission-approved Basic Recruit Training Programs, the CMS Defensive Tactics Instructor Course, and CMS Defensive Tactics Instructor Transition Course, shall comply with the requirements for CMS General Instructor Certification pursuant to paragraph 11B-20.001(3)(b), F.A.C., and prior to successfully complete ~~completing~~ one of the following training courses through a training school:

(g) No change.

(h) CMS First Aid Instructor Certification. These individuals shall possess a valid CPR instructor certification, which is at minimum, at the BLS "Healthcare Provider Level" with the American Heart Association, "CPR for the Professional Rescuer" with the American Red Cross, and American Safety and Health Institute, or "Advanced First Aid and CPR" with the National Safety Council. Instructor applicants who request to obtain certification to instruct the CMS First Aid for Criminal Justice Officers Course in Commission-approved Basic Recruit Training Programs, the CMS First Aid Instructor Course, and CMS First Aid Instructor Transition Course, shall comply with the requirements for CMS General Instructor Certification

pursuant to paragraph 11B-20.001(3)(b), F.A.C., ~~and prior to~~ successfully complete ~~completing~~ the following training courses through a training school:

(3) Specialized Topics Instructor Certifications. To obtain certification to instruct in specialized topics, the instructor applicant shall meet the following requirements for each specialized topic requested:

(a) Law Topics Instructor Certification for Traditional Basic Recruit Training Programs. Instructor applicants who request to obtain certification to instruct Commission-approved law topics of Arrest Laws, Attempt, Conspiracy and Solicitation, Burden of Proof, Civil and Criminal Liability, Classification of Offenses, Constitutional Law, Constitutional Law Overview, Court Rules and Trial Procedures, Court Structure, Elements of a Crime, Evidence Concepts, Evidence Rules, Intent, Legal Defense, Legal Show-up, Legal Line-up, Parties to a Crime, Probable Cause, Search and Seizure Concepts, Stop and Frisk Laws, and Use of Force, shall possess substantial law training and experience of a minimum of fifteen semester hours or college credit law courses, to include constitutional law and criminal law with a grade of "C" or above, and possesses six months of criminal justice experience. The following Commission-approved Basic Recruit Training Programs require certified law topic instructors:

1. through 4. No change.

~~5. Traditional Correctional to Law Enforcement Basic Recruit Cross-Over Training Program.~~

~~5.6. Traditional Correctional to Correctional Probation Basic Recruit Cross-Over Training Program.~~

~~6.7. Traditional Correctional Probation to Law Enforcement Basic Recruit Cross-Over Training Program.~~

~~7.8. Traditional Correctional Probation to Correctional Basic Recruit Cross-Over Training Program.~~

~~8.9. Law Enforcement Auxiliary Officer Basic Recruit Training Program.~~

~~9.10. Correctional Auxiliary Officer Basic Recruit Training Program.~~

~~10.11. Correctional Probation Auxiliary Officer Basic Recruit Training Program.~~

~~12. Law topics in the Commission-approved Basic Recruit Training Programs that require a law topics certified instructor.~~

(b) Speed Measurement Instructor Certifications. To be certified to instruct speed measurement training courses, an instructor applicant is required to complete the following training:

1. Radar Instructor Certification. An instructor applicant shall successfully complete the Radar Speed Measurement Instructor Course for Law Enforcement Officers at a training school, with the results recorded on a Laser and Radar Speed Measurement Device Instructor Field Evaluation, form CJSTC-10, revised May 5, 2005 ~~May 6, 2004~~, hereby incorporated by reference.

2. No change.

(c) through (d) No change.

Specific Authority 943.03(4), 943.12(1), 943.14(3) FS. Law Implemented 943.12(3), (9), 943.13 (6), 943.14(3) FS. History--New 7-29-01, Amended 11-5-02, 11-30-04,_____.

11B-20.0016 Inspection of Instructor Certification Applications.

(1) through (2) No change.

(3) The effective date of the instructor certification shall be the date the application is approved by Commission staff. Application for additional instructor certification topics shall be made pursuant to Rules 11B-20.001 and 11B-20.0014, F.A.C. An instructor's renewal date shall not change with the addition of instructor certification topics. Any additional instructor certification topics applied for within six months of the instructor's renewal deadline shall automatically renew on the renewal deadline.

(4) No change.

Specific Authority 120.60(1), 943.03(4), 943.12(1), 943.14(3) FS. Law Implemented 120.60(1), 943.12(3), (9), 943.14(3) FS. History--New 7-29-01, Amended 11-5-02, 11-30-04,_____.

11B-20.0017 Maintenance and Duration of Instructor Certifications.

Documentation for instructors shall be maintained in the instructor's file at the respective training school or agency. Additionally, the training school or agency shall submit or transmit to Commission staff, through the Commission's ATMS, an Instructor Compliance Application, form CJSTC-84, revised May 5, 2005 ~~May 6, 2004~~, hereby incorporated by reference, to verify compliance with the mandatory retraining requirements. Instructors whose Traditional General Instructor Certification or CMS General Instructor Certification has lapsed shall complete the General Instructor Refresher Course. Instructors whose High-Liability Instructor Certification has lapsed shall demonstrate proficiency skills in the applicable high-liability topic. Instructors whose Specialized Topics Instructor Certification has lapsed shall complete an internship in the applicable high-liability topic.

(1) Instructors shall successfully complete the instructional, proficiency, and continuing education requirements outlined below every four years. The expiration of an instructor's certification shall be March 31st of the fourth year following the instructor's initial certification.

Example:

<u>Original Instructor Certification Date</u>	<u>November 21, 2005</u>
<u>Instructor Four-year Anniversary Date</u>	<u>November 21, 2009</u>
<u>Instructor Renewal Deadline</u>	<u>March 31, 2010</u>

~~(2)(+)~~ Instructors shall maintain Good Moral Character Standards pursuant to paragraph 11B-20.0012(2)(c), F.A.C.

~~(3)~~~~(2)~~ Traditional General Instructor Certification. Instructors who possess a Traditional General Instructor Certification shall instruct in a Traditional Basic Recruit Training Program Course, Advanced Training Program Course, or non-CMS Specialized Training Program Course delivered at a training school, or in-service training course delivered at an agency, once every four years.

~~(4)~~~~(3)~~ CMS General Instructor Certification. Instructors who possess a CMS General Instructor Certification shall instruct in a Commission-approved Basic Recruit Training Program Course, Advanced Training Program Course, or Specialized Training Program Course delivered at a training school, or in-service training course delivered at an agency, once every four years.

~~(5)~~~~(4)~~ High-Liability Instructor Certification. Commission-certified Instructors who possess a High-Liability Instructor Certification shall comply with the following requirements, every four years, to maintain an active certificate for each high-liability certification:

(a) through (c) No change.

~~(6)~~~~(5)~~ Specialized Topics Instructor Certification. Instructors who possess a Specialized Topics Certification shall comply with the following requirements, every four years, to maintain certification:

(a) through (b) No change.

~~(7)~~~~(6)~~ Commission staff and Alcohol Testing Program staff responsible for the oversight of training schools are exempt from the instructor maintenance requirements for Commission certification.

Specific Authority 943.03(4), 943.12(1), 943.14(3) FS. Law Implemented 943.12(3), (9), 943.14(3) FS. History—New 7-29-01, Amended 11-5-02, 11-30-04, _____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE: Ms. Donna Hunt, Government Operations Consultant, Florida Department of Law Enforcement, Criminal Justice Professionalism Program, 2331 Phillips Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32308-1489, telephone number: (850)410-8615

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Bureau Chief Vickie Marsey, Florida Department of Law Enforcement, Criminal Justice Professionalism Program

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: December 19, 2005

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: September 16, 2005

DEPARTMENT OF LAW ENFORCEMENT

Criminal Justice Standards and Training Commission

RULE CHAPTER TITLE: Certification of Criminal Justice

RULE CHAPTER NO.: 11B-21

Training Schools 11B-21

RULE TITLES: Local Advisement and Definitions 11B-21.001

Criminal Justice Training School

Requirements for Certification and Re-certification 11B-21.005

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: Revises Commission forms and revises the deadline for submitting the Training School Customer Survey to Commission staff.

SUMMARY: Requires the Training School Customer Survey to be conducted twice during the school's certification period versus conducted annually and corrects a typographical error on form CJSTC-202.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COSTS: None.

Any person, who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated regulatory cost, or to provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative, must do so in writing within 21 working days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 943.03(4), 943.12(1), (2) FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 943.12(3), (5), (7), 943.14, 943.17(1)(g), 943.25(5), (9) FS.

IF REQUESTED, IN WRITING, WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATE AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW (IF NOT REQUESTED, THIS HEARING WILL NOT BE HELD):

TIME AND DATE: 10:00 a.m., January 24, 2006

PLACE: 2331 Phillips Road, Elevator Conference Room, Quad C, 3rd Floor, Tallahassee, Florida 32308-1489

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULES IS: Donna Hunt, Florida Department of Law Enforcement, Criminal Justice Professionalism Program, 2331 Phillips Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32308, telephone number: (850)410-8615

NOTICE UNDER THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT: Pursuant with the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this program, please advise the Department at least 5 days prior to the workshop by contacting Donna Hunt at (850)410-8615 or TDD Number (850)656-9597.

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULES IS:

11B-21.001 Local Advisement and Definitions.

(1) through (4) No change.

(5) Training School Customer Survey. With respect to the services provided by training schools, ~~an Annual~~ Satisfaction Survey of officer training needs shall be conducted to maintain on-going communication with criminal justice agencies. The survey shall be conducted twice during the certification period and Annual Satisfaction Survey shall be distributed to criminal justice agencies and returned to Commission staff for compilation of survey findings. The survey findings shall be forwarded to the respective training schools for review and a ~~an annual~~ report containing the compilation of survey findings shall be submitted to the Criminal Justice Standards and Training Commission.

Specific Authority 943.03(4), 943.12(1), (2) FS. Law Implemented 943.12(5), (7), 943.14, 943.25(5), (9) FS. History—New 7-21-82, Amended 1-26-83, 9-1-83, 1-28-86, Formerly 11B-21.01, Amended 1-2-97, 7-7-99, 11-5-02, 11-30-04,_____.

11B-21.005 Criminal Justice Training School Requirements for Certification and Re-certification.

Training Schools certified by the Commission shall comply with the following requirements:

(1) through (3) No change.

(4) Comply with the driving range facility, equipment, and instructor to student ratio requirements, pursuant to subsection 11B-35.0021(4), F.A.C., and as set forth in the Driving Range Facility and Equipment Requirements, form CJSTC-202, revised May 5, 2005 ~~May 6, 2004~~, hereby incorporated by reference, when conducting Commission-approved vehicle operations training. Should any driving range proposed for construction after July 1, 1988, deviate from the standards set forth in form CJSTC-202, plans for such construction shall be submitted to Commission staff for initial review, and then to the Commission for final approval or disapproval. Justification for such construction shall include a statement of explanation and supporting documentation justifying the need to deviate from the established standard. A recommendation for deviation from the Commission’s driving facility requirement shall ensure that vehicle operation training exercises can be safely and effectively performed.

(5) through (11) No change.

Specific Authority 943.03(4), 943.12(1), (2) FS. Law Implemented 943.12(3), (7), 943.14, 943.17(1)(g) FS. History—New 7-21-82, Formerly 11B-21.05, Amended 1-28-86, 8-30-89, 12-24-89, 6-3-91, 12-13-92, 1-2-97, 7-7-99, 8-22-00, 7-29-01, 11-5-02, 11-30-04,_____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE: Ms. Donna Hunt, Government Operations Consultant, Florida Department of Law Enforcement, Criminal Justice Professionalism Program, 2331 Phillips Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32308-1489, telephone number: (850)410-8615

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Bureau Chief Vickie Marsey, Florida Department of Law Enforcement, Criminal Justice Professionalism Program

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: December 19, 2005

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: September 16, 2005

DEPARTMENT OF LAW ENFORCEMENT

Criminal Justice Standards and Training Commission

RULE CHAPTER TITLE: Certification and Employment or Appointment

RULE CHAPTER NO.: 11B-27

RULE TITLES: Moral Character

RULE NOS.: 11B-27.0011

Certification, Employment or Appointment, Reactivation, and Terminating Employment or Appointment of Officers

Maintenance of Officer Certification 11B-27.00212

Temporary Employment Authorization 11B-27.00213

Background Investigations 11B-27.0022

Revocation or Disciplinary Actions; Disciplinary Guidelines; Range of Penalties; Aggravating and Mitigating Circumstances 11B-27.005

Canine Team Certification 11B-27.013

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: Revises Commission forms; revises moral character offenses; revises officer discipline penalty guidelines; revises the penalty range for acts that violate Commission rules and statute; revises the mandatory retraining requirement; and adds a time line for submitting certification eligibility form CJSTC-59 to Commission staff.

SUMMARY: Revises Commission forms CJSTC-4 CMS, CJSTC-58, 74, 76, 83, and 259, and creates forms CJSTC-86 and 86A; removes the moral character offense of “making a false statement”; revises officer discipline penalty guidelines and range of penalties for a DUI in certain circumstances; adds rule language requiring completion of the Law Enforcement Officer Firearms Qualification Standard, every two years, as part of the law enforcement officer’s mandatory retraining requirement for retaining his or her certification; and adds a time line of “30 days of the applicant’s compliance with the certification requirements” to submit the certification eligibility form CJSTC-59 to Commission staff.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST: None.

Any person, who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated regulatory cost, or to provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative, must do so in writing within 21 working days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 943.03(4), 943.12(1), 943.133(3) FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 943.12, 943.12(3), (17), 943.13, 943.13(7), 943.13(11), 943.131, 943.133, 943.135, 943.139, 943.1395, 943.1395(3), (7), (8), 943.1701, 943.1715, 943.1716, 943.253 FS.

IF REQUESTED, IN WRITING WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATE AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW (IF NOT REQUESTED, THIS HEARING WILL NOT BE HELD):

TIME AND DATE: 10:00 a.m., January 24, 2006

PLACE: 2331 Phillips Road, Elevator Conference Room, Quad C, 3rd Floor, Tallahassee, Florida 32308-1489

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULES IS: Donna Hunt, Florida Department of Law Enforcement, Criminal Justice Professionalism Program, 2331 Phillips Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32308, telephone number: (850)410-8615

NOTICE UNDER THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT. Pursuant with the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this program, please advise the Department at least 5 days prior to the workshop by contacting Donna Hunt at (850)410-8615 or TDD Number (850)656-9597.

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULES IS:

11B-27.0011 Moral Character.

(1) through (3) No change.

(4) For the purposes of the Criminal Justice Standards and Training Commission's implementation of any of the penalties specified in Sections 943.1395(6) or (7), F.S., a certified officer's failure to maintain good moral character required by Section 943.13(7), F.S., is defined as:

(a) through (b) No change.

(c) The perpetration by an officer of acts or conduct that constitute the following offenses:

1. through 11. No change.

~~12. Making a false statement(s) of fact, under oath, as to misconduct related to an agency duty with the intent to mislead or deceive. "Agency duty" means any duty as defined by the agency head, or his or her designee.~~

~~12.13. Intentional abuse of a Temporary Employment Authorization, pursuant to Section 943.131(1), F.S. pursuant to Rule 11B-27.00225, F.A.C., or is consistent with and indicative of the ingestion of a controlled substance pursuant to Chapter 893, F.S., and not having a specific nanogram level listed in Rule 11B-27.00225, F.A.C., shall be an affirmative defense to this provision to establish that any such ingestion was lawful. Any test of this kind relied upon by the Commission for disciplinary action, shall comply with the requirements for reliability and integrity of the testing process pursuant to Rule 11B-27.00225, F.A.C.~~

(5) through (8) No change.

Specific Authority 943.03(4), 943.12(1) FS. Law Implemented 943.13(7), 943.1395(7) FS. History—New 1-7-85, Formerly 11B-27.011, Amended 7-13-87, 10-25-88, 12-13-92, 9-5-93, 1-19-94, 8-7-94, 11-5-95, 1-2-97, 7-7-99, 8-22-00, 11-5-02, 4-11-04, 11-30-04.

11B-27.002 Certification, Employment or Appointment, Reactivation, and Terminating Employment or Appointment of Officers.

(1) No change.

(2) The employing agency head is required, within 30 days of hire, to submit to Commission staff or electronically transmit through the Commission's Automated Training Management System (ATMS), and maintain in file a Registration of Employment Affidavit of Compliance, form CJSTC-60, revised February 7, 2002, hereby incorporated by reference, attesting to compliance by the employing agency with the following requirements:

(a) For law enforcement, correctional, and correctional probation officer applicants who have not been previously certified and who have complied with the certification requirements pursuant to Section 943.13(1)-(10), F.S., the employing agency shall certify to the Commission that the applicant is eligible for certification by submitting to Commission staff or electronically transmitting through the Commission's Automated Training Management System (ATMS), a completed Officer Certification Application, form CJSTC-59, revised February 7, 2002, hereby incorporated by reference, within 30 days of the applicant's compliance with the certification requirements. Upon receipt of an Officer Certification Application Deficiency Notification, form CJSTC-259, revised May 5, 2005 ~~February 7, 2002~~, the employing agency shall maintain on file, a copy of form CJSTC-59 and any other employment documentation. The employing agency shall submit a copy of form CJSTC-259 and the missing or deficient documentation to Commission staff within 90 days of the date the form was signed and issued to the agency. Failure by the employing agency to submit missing or deficient documentation within the required 90 days may result in denial of an applicant's request for certification. An officer applicant shall not work in a sworn capacity prior to meeting the requirements of Sections 943.13 and 943.131, F.S.

(b) No change.

(3) Employment requirements pursuant to Section 943.13, F.S., shall be documented on an Agency New Hire Report, form CJSTC-207, revised February 7, 2002, hereby incorporated by reference.

(a) The files of newly hired officers are subject to an on-site inspection by Commission staff to ensure compliance with the requirements of Chapter 943, F.S., and Rule Chapter 11B-27, F.A.C. The following documents shall be reviewed for completeness:

1. through 10. No change.

11. An Equivalency-of-Training, form CJSTC-76, revised May 6, 2004, and an Equivalency-of-Training Proficiency of Demonstration, form CJSTC-76A, revised May 5, 2005 ~~May 6, 2004~~, hereby incorporated by reference for previous Florida and out-of-state, federal, or military officers, if the officer utilized this training option.

- 12. through 15. No change.
- (4) through (6) No change.

Specific Authority 943.03(4), 943.12(1) FS. Law Implemented 943.12(3), 943.13, 943.133, 943.139, 943.1395 FS. History—New 10-6-82, Amended 4-26-84, 1-7-85, Formerly 11B-27.02, Amended 9-3-87, 3-29-89, 5-14-92, 12-13-92, 9-5-93, 1-19-94, 1-2-97, 7-7-99, 8-22-00, 7-29-01, 11-5-02, 11-30-04,_____.

- 11B-27.00212 Maintenance of Officer Certification.
- (1) through (3) No change.

(4) Continuing education or training pursuant to Section 943.135, F.S. Upon an officer’s completion of the required continuing education or training the employing agency shall submit or electronically transmit to Commission staff through the Commission’s ATMS, a completed Mandatory Retraining Report, form CJSTC-74, revised May 5, 2005 ~~February 7, 2002~~, hereby incorporated by reference.

- (5) through (14) No change.

(15) Law Enforcement Officer Firearms Qualification Standard. Beginning July 1, 2006, a law enforcement officer shall be required to qualify on the Commission’s approved course of fire with the proficiency skills documented on the Law Enforcement Officer Firearms Qualification Standard form, CJSTC-86A, created August 4, 2005, hereby incorporated by reference, and maintained in the officer’s employment file.

(a) A certified law enforcement officer who fails to demonstrate proficiency skills on the required firearms qualification standard shall not perform the duties of a sworn officer.

(b) Reporting of the compliance with this standard shall be June 30, 2008, and every two years thereafter. Documentation supporting the demonstration of proficiency skills shall be reported on the Mandatory Firearms Training Report, Form CJSTC-86, created August 4, 2005, hereby incorporated by reference, and maintained in the officer’s employment file. The employing agency shall submit or electronically transmit to Commission staff through the Commission’s ATMS, a completed form CJSTC-86.

(c) In the event a certified law enforcement officer fails to meet this standard by June 30 of each reporting year, the officer’s certificate shall become inactive until the employing agency provides documentation to Commission staff establishing that the firearms qualification standard has been satisfied.

(d) The certificate of a law enforcement officer shall become inactive if the officer has separated from employment or appointment and is not reemployed or reappointed within

the two-year reporting cycle. The officer will be required to comply with the firearms qualification standard upon employment or appointment.

Specific Authority 943.03(4), 943.12(1) FS. Law Implemented 943.12, 943.13(11), 943.135, 943.1395(3), 943.1701, 943.1715, 943.1716, 943.253 FS. History—New 11-5-02, Amended 12-3-03, 11-30-04,_____.

Editorial Note: See 11B-27.0023, F.A.C.

11B-27.00213 Temporary Employment Authorization.

A Certificate of Compliance shall not be issued to officers employed on a Temporary Employment Authorization (TEA) prior to meeting the requirements of Sections 943.13(1)-(10), F.S.

- (1) No change.
- (2) An agency head is authorized to request to waive the firearms training requirement for a TEA by placing a statement in the officers file at the employing agency, which has been signed by the agency head, confirming that the TEA appointed officer shall not be permitted to carry a firearm until the following classroom training requirements have been fulfilled:

- (a) No change.
- (b) Firearms Range Training. The trainee’s proficiency demonstration shall be documented on a CMS Firearms Performance Evaluation, form CJSTC-4 CMS, revised May 5, 2005 ~~created May 6, 2004~~, hereby incorporated by reference, and maintained in the trainee’s file at the employing agency. The instructor shall qualify the trainee with a handgun using the Commission’s Basic Recruit Training Firearms Course of Fire, pursuant to form CJSTC-4 CMS, and the form shall be maintained in the trainee’s file at the employing agency. Trainees shall fire a long gun as prescribed in the Commission-approved Basic Recruit Training Program.

- (3) through (5) No change.

Specific Authority 943.03(4), 943.12(1) FS. Law Implemented 943.12(3), 943.13, 943.131, 943.133, 943.139, 943.1395, 943.17(1)(a) FS. History—New 11-5-02, Amended 11-30-04,_____.

11B-27.0022 Background Investigations.

- (1) No change.
- (2) The employing agency shall, at a minimum, use the following background investigation procedures:

- (a) No change.
- (b) Obtain previous employment data from prior employers. Criminal justice agencies conducting background investigations have the option of using the Authority for Release of Information, form CJSTC-58, revised May 5, 2005 ~~May 6, 2004~~, pursuant to Sections 943.134(2) and (4), F.S., hereby incorporated by reference.

- (c) through (e) No change.
- (3) No change.

Specific Authority 943.03(4) 943.12(1), 943.133(3) FS. Law Implemented 943.133, 943.139 FS. History—New 10-6-82, Amended 1-7-85, Formerly 11B-27.022, Amended 7-13-87, 10-17-90, 5-13-92, 5-14-92, 12-13-92, 9-5-93, 8-7-94, 1-2-97, 7-7-99, 8-22-00, 11-5-02, 11-30-04,_____.

11B-27.005 Revocation or Disciplinary Actions; Disciplinary Guidelines; Range of Penalties; Aggravating and Mitigating Circumstances.

(1) through (4) No change.

(5) When the Commission finds that a certified officer has committed an act that violates Section 943.13(7), F.S., the Commission shall issue a final order imposing penalties within the ranges recommended in the following disciplinary guidelines:

(a) No change.

	Violation	Recommended Penalty Range
10.	Driving or boating under the influence (316.193 and 327.35, F.S.) Second DUI Offense	Probation with substance abuse counseling Prospective suspension to revocation

11. through 12. No change.

(c) For the perpetration by the officer of an act or conduct, as described in paragraph 11B-27.0011(4)(c), F.A.C., if such act or conduct does not constitute a crime described in

(b) For the perpetration by the officer of an act that would constitute any of the misdemeanor offenses, pursuant to paragraph 11B-27.0011(4)(b), F.A.C., but where there was not a violation of Section 943.13(4), F.S., the action of the Commission shall be to impose a penalty ranging from probation of certification to suspension of certification. Specific violations and penalties that shall be imposed, absent aggravating or mitigating circumstances, include the following:

1. through 9. No change.

paragraphs (5)(a)-(b) of this rule section, the action of the Commission shall be to impose the following penalties, absent aggravating or mitigating circumstances:

1. through 11. No change.

	Violation	Recommended Penalty Range
12.	Making a false statement(s) of fact, under oath, as to misconduct related to an agency duty, as defined in subparagraph 11B-27.0011(4)(c)12., F.A.C., with the intent to mislead or deceive	Suspension to revocation
12 13.	Conduct that subverts or attempts to subvert the Basic Abilities Test process pursuant to paragraphs 11B-35.0011(1)(a)-(f), F.A.C.	Revocation

(d) No change.

(6) through (10) No change.

Specific Authority 943.03(4), 943.12(1) FS. Law Implemented 943.12(3), 943.1395(8) FS. History—New 10-6-82, Amended 1-7-85, Formerly 11B-27.05, Amended 3-29-89, 12-13-92, 2-17-93, 1-19-94, 8-7-94, 11-5-95, 1-2-97, 7-7-99, 8-22-00, 7-29-01, 11-5-02, 4-11-04, 11-30-04,_____.

11B-27.013 Canine Team Certification.

(1) through (2) No change.

(3) Required documentation for certification of a patrol canine team. Documentation of compliance for Commission certification of patrol canine teams shall include:

(a) through (b) No change.

(c) Documentation of successful completion of the Patrol Canine Team Proficiency Examination administered by two Commission-approved canine team evaluators, one of whom is not affiliated with the Commission-certified training school or the agency conducting the training, and one of whom is not affiliated with the agency employing the canine team. A Commission-approved canine team evaluator shall not administer a proficiency examination to a canine assigned to them as a work partner. The proficiency examination shall be

documented on the Patrol Duty Canine Team Proficiency Examination and Equivalency, form CJSTC-83, revised May 5, 2005 ~~May 6, 2004~~, hereby incorporated by reference.

1. through 2. No change.

(4) through (8) No change.

Specific Authority 943.03(4), 943.12(1) FS. Law Implemented 943.12(17) FS. History—New 3-29-89, Amended 12-13-92, 1-2-97, 7-7-99, 8-22-00, 7-29-01, 11-5-02, 11-30-04,_____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE: Ms. Donna Hunt, Government Operations Consultant, Florida Department of Law Enforcement, Criminal Justice Professionalism Program, 2331 Phillips Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32308-1489, telephone number: (850)410-8615

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Bureau Chief Vickie Marsey, Florida Department of Law Enforcement, Criminal Justice Professionalism Program

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: December 19, 2005

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: September 16, 2005

DEPARTMENT OF LAW ENFORCEMENT

Criminal Justice Standards and Training Commission

RULE CHAPTER TITLE:	RULE CHAPTER NO.:
State Officer Certification Examination	11B-30
RULE TITLES:	RULE NOS.:
State Officer Certification Examination	
General Eligibility Requirements	11B-30.006
Applicant Conduct at Test Site and Notice of Protection of Program Privileges	11B-30.009
Examination Scoring and Grade Notification	11B-30.011
Post Review of Examination Questions, Answers, Papers, Grades, and Grading Key	11B-30.012

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: Revises Commission forms; revises the sanctions imposed on applicants who violate the Commission’s statewide certification examination procedures; and revises the procedures for admission into the examination testing site.

SUMMARY: Revises Commission forms CJSTC-67, 510, 511, and 516; provides flexibility for imposing one or more sanctions for acts committed by an applicant for violating the Commission’s statewide certification examination procedures; and require for security purposes that only the Examination Admission Voucher Form CJSTC-517 shall be allowed in the examination test site.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COSTS: None.

Any person, who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated regulatory cost, or to provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative, must do so in writing within 21 working days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 943.03(4), 943.12(1), (18), 943.173(3) FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 943.12(17), 943.13(2), (7), 943.131(2), 943.1397(1), (3), 943.173 FS.

IF REQUESTED, IN WRITING, WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATE AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW (IF NOT REQUESTED, THIS HEARING WILL NOT BE HELD):

TIME AND DATE: 10:00 a.m., January 24, 2006

PLACE: 2331 Phillips Road, Elevator Conference Room, Quad C, 3rd Floor, Tallahassee, Florida 32308-1489

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULES IS: Donna Hunt, Florida Department of Law Enforcement, Criminal Justice Professionalism Program, 2331 Phillips Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32308, telephone number: (850)410-8615

NOTICE UNDER THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT: Pursuant with the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this program, please advise the Department at least 5 days prior to the workshop by contacting Donna Hunt at (850)410-8615 or TDD Number (850)656-9597.

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

11B-30.006 State Officer Certification Examination General Eligibility Requirements.

(1) For the purposes of this rule chapter, the terms “successfully completed” and “successfully complete” are defined as being denoted with a “Pass,” pursuant to subsection 11B-35.001(7), F.A.C., on the completed Training Report, form CJSTC-67, revised May 5, 2005 ~~May 6, 2004~~, hereby incorporated by reference.

(2) through (4) No change.

Specific Authority 943.03(4), 943.12(1) FS. Law Implemented 943.12(17), 943.131(2), 943.1397 FS. History—New 1-10-94, Amended 8-7-94, 1-2-97, 7-7-99, 8-22-00, 7-29-01, 11-5-02, 11-30-04.

11B-30.009 Applicant Conduct at Test Site and Notice of Protection of Program Privileges.

(1) through (4) No change.

(5) When the Commission finds that an applicant has committed an act that violates subsections (1)–(3) of this rule section, the Commission applicant shall impose one or more of the following sanctions:

- (a) Have their SOCE declared invalid;
- (b) Forfeit the application fee;
- (c) Be ineligible to apply to take the SOCE in any discipline for a period of five years;
- (d) Be subject to denial of certification by the Commission pursuant to Rule 11B-27.007, F.A.C.;
- (e) Be subject to disciplinary action taken against any currently held Commission certification;
- (f) Be subject to the imposition of other sanctions by the Commission, pursuant to Section 943.13(7), F.S., and Rule Chapter 11B-27, F.A.C.

(6) The Commission shall ensure the security of the test site for the SOCE by prohibiting applicants from signing in to the test area with anything other than the Commission-approved Examination Admission Voucher CJSTC-517 an applicant identification, and pencils, ~~certificate of completion, Equivalency of Training Proficiency Demonstration form CJSTC 76A, revised May 6, 2004, hereby incorporated by reference, or other documentation required by the Commission.~~ An applicant who is found with items in their possession, other than described herein, shall be in violation of subsections (1)-(3) of this rule section and shall be subject to discipline as described in subsection (5) of this rule section. Violation of this subsection shall be documented as provided in subsection (4) of this rule section.

Specific Authority 943.03(4), 943.12(1), (18), 943.173(3) FS. Law Implemented 943.12(17), 943.13(7), 943.1397(3), 943.173 FS. History—New 1-10-94, Amended 1-2-97, 7-7-99, 7-29-01, 11-5-02, 11-30-04.

11B-30.011 Examination Scoring and Grade Notification. Individuals who graduate from a Commission-approved Basic Recruit Training Program shall be required to achieve a passing score on the State Officer Certification Examination (SOCE) with an overall scale score equal to or higher than the established cut-off score. Commission staff shall notify the applicant, within thirty days of the test date, on an Applicant State Officer Certification Examination Overall Test Results, form CJSTC-516, revised May 5, 2005 ~~February 7, 2002~~, hereby incorporated by reference. The SOCE is an entry-level competency examination and therefore examination results are reported as “pass” or “fail” on form CJSTC-516. To protect each examinee’s privacy, only individuals who have taken the SOCE are permitted to obtain their personal numerical score. This score will be available only at a regularly scheduled monthly Examination Review Session held pursuant to subsection 11B-30.012(2), F.A.C.

Specific Authority 943.03(4), 943.12(1), (18) FS. Law Implemented 943.12(17), 943.1397(1) FS. History—New 1-10-94, Amended 1-2-97, 7-7-99, 7-29-01, 11-5-02, 11-30-04, _____.

11B-30.012 Post Review of Examination Questions, Answers, Papers, Grades, and Grading Key.

(1) Individuals who have failed the State Officer Certification Examination (SOCE) shall have the right to review their examination results by submitting a State Officer Certification Examination Grade Review Request, form CJSTC-510, revised May 5, 2005 ~~February 7, 2002~~, hereby incorporated by reference. To be eligible to file form CJSTC-510, pursuant to Rule 11B-30.013, F.A.C., the form shall be submitted to Commission staff within forty-five calendar days of the individual’s SOCE date. Individuals who fail to meet the forty-five day deadline shall not be allowed to file a challenge, but may review the SOCE results.

(2) The SOCE grade reviews shall be conducted in the presence of Commission staff at a regularly scheduled monthly Examination Review Session conducted at the Florida Department of Law Enforcement, Criminal Justice Professionalism Program. The SOCE grade review schedule is produced annually and is available at Commission-certified training schools, the Florida Department of Law Enforcement’s (FDLE) website at <http://www.fdle.state.fl.us>, or from FDLE, Criminal Justice Professionalism Program, Post Office Box 1489, Tallahassee, Florida 32302, Attention SOCE Section. Individuals shall be scheduled to review their SOCE grades within forty calendar days of Commission staff’s receipt of the completed form CJSTC-510. Participants in the Examination Review Session shall be permitted to review only one examination for each session.

(a) No change.

(b) Individuals requesting a grade review shall be provided with the SOCE test results and the State Officer Certification Examination Review, form CJSTC-511, revised May 5, 2005 ~~May 6, 2004~~, hereby incorporated by reference. Form

CJSTC-511 shall be signed by the individual requesting the review at the conclusion of an Examination Review Session. Only individuals scheduled for the Examination Review Session shall be present during an Examination Review Session.

(c) No change.

(3) through (4) No change.

Specific Authority 943.03(4), 943.12(1), (18) FS. Law Implemented 943.12(17), 943.173 FS. History—New 1-10-94, Amended 1-2-97, 7-7-99, 8-22-00, 7-29-01, 11-5-02, 11-30-04, _____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE: Ms. Donna Hunt, Government Operations Consultant, Florida Department of Law Enforcement, Criminal Justice Professionalism Program, 2331 Phillips Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32308-1489, telephone number: (850)410-8615

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Bureau Chief Vickie Marsey, Florida Department of Law Enforcement, Criminal Justice Professionalism Program

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: December 19, 2005

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: September 16, 2005

DEPARTMENT OF LAW ENFORCEMENT

Criminal Justice Standards and Training Commission

RULE CHAPTER TITLE:	RULE CHAPTER NO.:
Training Programs	11B-35
RULE TITLES:	RULE NOS.:
General Training Programs; Requirements and Specifications	11B-35.001
Basic Recruit Training Programs for Law Enforcement, Correctional, and Correctional Probation	11B-35.002
Student Performance in Commission-Approved High-Liability Basic Recruit Training Courses and High-Liability Instructor Training Courses	11B-35.0024
Basic Recruit Training Programs for Law Enforcement, Correctional, and Correctional Probation Auxiliary Training	11B-35.003
Advanced Training Program	11B-35.006
Specialized Training Program	11B-35.007
Exemption from Basic Recruit Training	11B-35.009

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: Revises Commission forms; revises course names and hours in the Commission’s basic recruit training programs for law enforcement, correctional, and correctional probation; and revises course names and hours in the Commission’s advanced specialized training program courses.

SUMMARY: Revises Commission forms CJSTC-4 CMS and 7 CMS and CJSTC-9, 67, and 76A; decreases course hours in the Traditional Correctional Basic Recruit Training Program and

cross-over training programs; retires the Traditional Correctional to Law Enforcement Basic Recruit Cross-Over Training program and include provisions for completion of the program prior to implementation of the new CMS Traditional Correctional to Law Enforcement Basic Recruit Cross-Over Training Program; corrects basic recruit training program course names; revises and adds advance and specialized training program courses.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 943.03(4), 943.12(1), (2), 943.17 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 943.12, 943.12(5), 943.131(2), 943.17, 943.175, 943.17(1), 943.17(1)(a), 943.25 FS.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COSTS: None.

Any person, who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated regulatory cost, or to provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative, must do so in writing within 21 working days of this notice.

IF REQUESTED IN WRITING, WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATE AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW (IF NOT REQUESTED, THIS HEARING WILL NOT BE HELD):

TIME AND DATE: 10:00 a.m., January 24, 2006

PLACE: 2331 Phillips Road, Elevator Conference Room, Quad C, 3rd Floor, Tallahassee, Florida 32308-1489

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULES IS: Donna Hunt, Florida Department of Law Enforcement, Criminal Justice Professionalism Program, 2331 Phillips Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32308, telephone number: (850)410-8615

NOTICE UNDER THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT: Pursuant with the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this program, please advise the Department at least 5 days prior to the workshop by contacting Donna Hunt at (850)410-8615 or TDD Number (850)656-9597.

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULES IS:

11B-35.001 General Training Programs; Requirements and Specifications.

(1) through (6) No change.

(7) Student performance in courses.

(a) Each training school shall make available to its students and Commission staff a written copy of its performance standards.

(b) A student enrolled in a Commission-approved Basic Recruit Training Program shall achieve a score of no less than 80% on each of the end-of-course examinations, exclusive of demonstration of proficiency skills in the High-Liability Basic Recruit Training Courses. A student enrolled in a Commission-approved Advanced or Specified Specialized Training Program Course shall achieve a score of no less than

75% on the end-of-course examination, exclusive of demonstration of proficiency skills in the ~~High-Liability Basic Recruit Training Courses~~.

(c) through (e) No change.

(8) No change.

(9) Field-test of the CMS Application-Based Basic Recruit Training Program. The Criminal Justice Standards and Training Commission is currently developing and evaluating the CMS Application-Based Basic Recruit Training Programs for use as a basic recruit training program for criminal justice officers. These programs are based on a statewide job-task analysis of each of the criminal justice disciplines, and provide an enhanced learning environment for the student, through lesson plans provided for each module, and ensure a "standardized delivery" of statewide training curricula. A CMS Field-Test utilizing a classroom environment with student participation is necessary to evaluate the program before certain course criteria can be established and final rules adopted. To accomplish these goals:

(a) through (f) No change.

(g) Not withstanding subsection 11B-27.002(4), F.A.C., a basic recruit student enrolled in a Commission-approved Traditional Correctional to Law Enforcement Basic Recruit Cross-Over Training Program with a beginning date prior to April 1, 2005, shall be allowed to continue in the program until the student successfully completes, fails, or withdraws from the program.

1. A basic recruit student who is unable to graduate from a Commission-approved Traditional Correctional to Law Enforcement Basic Recruit Cross-Over Training Program because of failure to achieve a passing score on the end-of-course examination(s), pursuant to subsection 11B-35.001(7), F.A.C., shall be granted a re-test for each course failed.

2. The re-examination provisions outlined for a basic recruit student in subsection (12) of this rule section shall not apply.

3. A basic recruit student who meets the conditions stated in this rule section shall have successfully passed the end-of-course examination(s) by March 31, 2006.

(10) Reporting requirements for Commission-approved Basic Recruit, Advanced, and Specialized Training Program Courses are as follows:

(a) The training center director or designee shall determine the beginning and ending dates of each Basic Recruit Training Program, and thirty days following the class starting date shall forward a Training Report, form CJSTC-67, revised May 5, 2005 ~~May 6, 2004~~, hereby incorporated by reference, to Commission staff through the Commission's Automated Training Management System (ATMS).

(b) through (c) No change.

(11) through (15) No change.

Specific Authority 943.03(4), 943.12(1), (2), 943.17 FS. Law Implemented 943.12, 943.17 FS. History—New 12-13-92, Amended 8-7-94, 1-2-97, 7-7-99, 8-22-00, 7-29-01, 11-5-02, 11-30-04.

11B-35.002 Basic Recruit Training Programs for Law Enforcement, Correctional, and Correctional Probation.

(1) There are established by the Criminal Justice Standards and Training Commission, Basic Recruit Training Programs that provide the minimum required knowledge and proficiency

skills necessary for officer employment and certification pursuant to Sections 943.10(1)-(3), F.S. Individuals who apply for employment as a Florida law enforcement, correctional, or correctional probation officer, shall successfully complete one of the following Commission-approved Basic Recruit Training Programs:

(a)	Traditional Law Enforcement Basic Recruit Training Program (Retired June 30, 2004)	672.0 hours
(b)	Traditional Correctional Basic Recruit Training Program	532.0 hours
(c)	Traditional Correctional Probation Basic Recruit Training Program	412.0 424.0 hours
(d)	CMS Application-Based Law Enforcement Basic Recruit Training Program	760.0 hours
(e)	Traditional Law Enforcement to Correctional Basic Recruit Cross-Over Training Program	156.0 hours
(f)	Traditional Law Enforcement to Correctional Probation Basic Recruit Cross-Over Training Program	134.0 150.0 hours
(g)	Traditional Correctional to Law Enforcement Basic Recruit Cross-Over Training Program (Retired March 30, 2005)	302.0 hours
(h)	Traditional Correctional to CMS Law Enforcement Basic Recruit Cross-Over Training Program	434.0 hours
(i)(+)	Traditional Correctional to Correctional Probation Basic Recruit Cross-Over Training Program	172.0 180.0 hours
(j)(+)	Traditional Correctional Probation to <u>Law Enforcement</u> Correctional Basic Recruit Cross-Over Training Program	412.0 hours
(k)(+)	Traditional Correctional Probation to <u>Correctional</u> Law Enforcement Basic Recruit Cross-Over Training Program	256.0 hours
(l)(+)	Law Enforcement Auxiliary Officer Basic Recruit Training Program	302.0 294.0 hours
(m)(+)	Correctional Auxiliary Officer Basic Recruit Training Program	254.0 hours
(n)(+)	Correctional Probation Auxiliary Officer Basic Recruit Training Program. To become certified as a Correctional Probation Auxiliary Officer, pursuant to subsection 11B-35.003(7), F.A.C., a basic recruit student shall complete the Correctional Probation Basic Recruit Training Program, pursuant to paragraph (8)(c) of this rule section.	

(2) through (7) No change.

(8) Commission-approved Basic Recruit Training Programs. Pursuant to Section 943.12, F.S., Commission-approved Basic Recruit Training Programs establish the minimum required entry-level training for law enforcement, correctional, and correctional probation officers. Individuals who are requesting employment as an officer, and have not had previous basic recruit training or have not been certified as an officer in the discipline for which certification is sought, and have met the requirements of Sections 943.13(1)-(8) and (11), 943.14(7), and 943.17(1)(g), F.S., shall

successfully complete a Commission-approved Basic Recruit Training Program pursuant to this rule section. The Commission’s Basic Recruit Training Programs are:

(a) No change.

(b) Traditional Correctional Basic Recruit Training Program:

	Course Name	Course Number	Course Hours
1.	Criminal Justice Legal 1	CJD_770	46.0
2.	Criminal Justice Legal 2	CJD_771	22.0
3.	Criminal Justice Communications	CJD_772	42.0
4.	Interpersonal Skills 1	CJD_773	62.0
5.	CMS Criminal Justice Defensive Tactics	CJK_0050	80.0
6.	CMS Criminal Justice Firearms	CJK_0040	80.0
7.	CMS First Aid for Criminal Justice Officers	CJK_0031 0030	40.0
8.	Interpersonal Skills 2	CJD_750	50.0
9.	Emergency Preparedness	CJD_741	26.0
10.	Correctional Operations	CJD_752	64.0
11.	CMS Criminal Justice Special Topics, Module 15	CJK_0095	20.0
	TOTAL		532.0

(c) Traditional Correctional Probation Basic Recruit Training Program:

	Course Name	Course Number	Course Hours
1.	Correctional Probation Legal	CJD_790	60.0
2.	Correctional Probation Operations	CJD_791	16.0
23.	Correctional Probation Interpersonal Skills	CJD_792	68.0
34.	Correctional Probation Communication Skills	CJD_793	70.0
45.	Correctional Probation Supervision	CJD_794	58.0 54.0
56.	CMS Criminal Justice Defensive Tactics	CJK_0050	80.0
67.	CMS Correctional Probation Firearms	CJK_0255 FBA	16.0
78.	CMS First Aid for Criminal Justice Officers	CJK_0031 0030	40.0
89.	Criminal Justice Special Topics, Module 15	CJK_0095	20.0
	Total		412.0 424.0

(d) CMS Application-Based Law Enforcement Basic Recruit Training Program:

	Course Name	Course Number	Course Hours
1.	Introduction and Law	CJK_0006	67.0
2.	Human Issues	CJK_0010	50.0
3.	Communications	CJK_0015	77.0
4.	CMS Law Enforcement Vehicle Operations	CJK_0020	48.0
5.	CMS First Aid for Criminal Justice Officers	CJK_0031 0030	40.0
6.	CMS Criminal Justice Firearms	CJK_0040	80.0
7.	CMS Criminal Justice Defensive Tactics	CJK_0050	80.0
8.	Patrol	CJK_0060	57.0
9.	Investigations	CJK_0070	53.0
10.	Investigating Offenses	CJK_0075	40.0
11.	Traffic Stops	CJK_0080	62.0
12.	Traffic Crash Investigations	CJK_0085	32.0
13.	Tactical Applications	CJK_0090	54.0 14.0
14.	Criminal Justice Special Topics	CJK_0095	20.0
	Total		760.0

(9) Commission-approved Basic Recruit Cross-Over Training Programs. The Commission has established basic recruit cross-over training programs to provide lateral movement of officers between criminal justice disciplines.

(a) through (d) No change.

(e) Traditional Law Enforcement to Traditional Correctional Probation Basic Recruit Cross-Over Training Program. A law enforcement officer shall complete the following courses to cross-over from the “Law Enforcement Discipline” to the “Correctional Probation Officer Discipline”:

	Course Name	Course Number	Course Hours
1.	Cross-Over Law Enforcement to Correctional Probation 1	CJD_735	66.5
2.	Cross-Over Law Enforcement to Correctional Probation 2	CJD_736	67.5
3.	Correctional Probation Operations	CJD_791	16.0
	Total		134.0 150.0

(f) Traditional Correctional to Traditional Law Enforcement Basic Recruit Cross-Over Training Program (Retired March 30, 2005). A correctional officer shall

complete the following courses to cross-over from the “Correctional Discipline” to the “Law Enforcement Discipline”:

	Course Name	Course Number	Course Hours
1.	Cross-Over Correctional to Law Enforcement	CJD_781	48.0
2.	Law Enforcement Legal 3	CJD_730	32.0
3.	Law Enforcement Patrol	CJD_731	64.0
4.	Law Enforcement Traffic	CJD_732	46.0
5.	CMS Law Enforcement Vehicle Operations	CJK_0020	48.0
6.	Law Enforcement Investigations	CJD_734	64.0
	Total		302.0

(g) Traditional Correctional to CMS Law Enforcement Basic Recruit Cross-Over Training Program. A correctional officer shall complete the following courses to cross-over from the “Correctional Discipline” to the “Law Enforcement Discipline”:

	Course Name	Course Number	Course Hours
1.	Cross-Over Correctional to CMS Law Enforcement Introduction	CJK_0211	94.0
2.	Cross-Over Correctional to Law Enforcement CMS High-Liability (End-of-course examination is not required for CJK_0212)	CJK_0212	8.0
3.	Cross-Over Correctional to Law Enforcement Tactical Applications	CJK_0213	40.0
4.	CMS Law Enforcement Vehicle Operations	CJK_0020	48.0
5.	Patrol	CJK_0060	57.0
6.	Investigations	CJK_0070	53.0
7.	Investigating Offenses	CJK_0075	40.0
8.	Traffic Stops	CJK_0080	62.0
9.	Traffic Crash Investigations	CJK_0085	32.0
	Total		434.0

(h)(g) Traditional Correctional to Traditional Correctional Probation Basic Recruit Cross-Over Training Program. A correctional officer shall complete the following courses to cross-over from the “Correctional Discipline” to the “Correctional Probation Discipline”:

	Course Name	Course Number	Course Hours
1.	Cross-Over Correctional Legal to Correctional Probation	CJD_774	30.0
2.	Cross-Over Correctional to Correctional Probation	CJD_775	14.0 26.0
3.	Correctional Probation Communication Skills	CJD_793	70.0
4.	Correctional Probation Supervision	CJD_794	58.0 54.0
	Total		172.0 180.0

(i)(h) Traditional Correctional Probation to Traditional Law Enforcement Basic Recruit Cross-Over Training Program. A correctional probation officer shall complete the following courses to cross-over from the “Correctional Probation Discipline” to the “Law Enforcement Discipline”:

1. through 7. No change.

(j)(i) Traditional Correctional Probation to Traditional Correctional Basic Recruit Cross-Over Training Program. A correctional probation officer shall complete the following courses to cross-over from the “Correctional Probation Discipline” to the “Correctional Discipline”:

1. through 5. No change.

Specific Authority 943.03(4), 943.12(1), (2), 943.17 FS. Law Implemented 943.12, 943.17 FS. History—New 12-13-92, Amended 1-10-94, 8-7-94, 1-2-97, 7-7-99, 8-22-00, 7-29-01, 11-5-02, 11-30-04, _____.

11B-35.0024 Student Performance in Commission-Approved High-Liability Basic Recruit Training Courses and High-Liability Instructor Training Courses.

(1) through (2) No change.

(3) Completion of a high-liability course and demonstration of proficiency in the high-liability topics is required for each of the following courses: CMS Criminal Justice Defensive Tactics Course, CMS Defensive Tactics Instructor Courses, CMS Criminal Justice Firearms Course, CMS Firearms Instructor Courses, CMS Law Enforcement Vehicle Operations Course, CMS Vehicle Operations Instructor Courses, CMS First Aid for Criminal Justice Officers Course, and CMS First Aid Instructor Courses.

(a) through (b) No change.

(c) CMS Criminal Justice Firearms Course.

1. No change.

2. A basic recruit student shall demonstrate the required Firearms High-Liability Proficiency Skills at 80% or higher using a handgun (revolver or semi-automatic pistol for both daylight and night), with the results recorded on the required CMS Firearms Performance Evaluation form CJSTC-4 CMS, revised May 5, 2005 ~~created May 6, 2004~~, hereby incorporated by reference.

3. No change.

(d) through (f) No change.

(g) CMS Law Enforcement Vehicle Operations Course.

1. The CMS Law Enforcement Vehicle Operations Course shall be delivered to students enrolled in a Commission-approved Basic Recruit Training Program.

2. A basic recruit student shall demonstrate the required Vehicle Operations Proficiency Skills with four out of five runs (80%) for each exercise, with the results recorded on the required CMS Vehicle Operations Performance Evaluation, form CJSTC-7 CMS, revised May 5, 2005 ~~created May 6, 2004~~, hereby incorporated by reference.

(h) No change.

Specific Authority 943.03(4), 943.12(1), (2) FS. Law Implemented 943.12, 943.17 FS. History—New 2-17-93, Amended 1-2-97, 7-7-99, 8-22-00, 7-29-01, 11-5-02, 11-30-04, _____.

11B-35.003 Basic Recruit Training Programs for Law Enforcement, Correctional, and Correctional Probation Auxiliary Training.

(1) through (4) No change.

(5) Law Enforcement Auxiliary Officer Basic Recruit Training Program requirements.

(a) Law Enforcement Auxiliary Officer Prerequisite Course topics effective January 1, 1997:

	Topic Areas	Course Number	Minimum Hours
1.	Administration		1
2.	Community Interaction		6
3.	Introduction to Basic Law		24
4.	Post Crime Considerations		6
5.	Introduction to Traffic		5
6.	Field Activities		12
7.	CMS First Aid for Criminal Justice Officers	CJK_0031 0030	40
	Total Law Enforcement Auxiliary Officer Prerequisite Course Hours		94
(b)	CMS Criminal Justice Firearms	CJK_0040	80
(c)	CMS Criminal Justice Defensive Tactics	CJK_0050	80
(d)	CMS Law Enforcement Vehicle Operations (Optional: Based on employing agency requirements)	CJK_0020	48
	Total Law Enforcement Auxiliary Officer Program Hours		302

(6) Correctional Auxiliary Officer Basic Recruit Training Program requirements.

(a) Correctional Auxiliary Officer Prerequisite Course topics effective January 1, 1997:

	Topic Areas	Course Number	Minimum Hours
1.	Administration		1
2.	Legal		24
3.	Report Writing		4
4.	Safety Issues		4
5.	Interpersonal Skills		5
6.	Security Procedures and Inmate Supervision		4
7.	Equipment		2
8.	Facility Movement		4
9.	Correctional Operation and Intake Procedures		1
10.	Inmate Property		2
11.	Search Procedures		3
12.	CMS First Aid for Criminal Justice Officers	CJK_0031 0030	40
	Total Correctional Auxiliary Officer Prerequisite Course Hours		94

(b)	CMS Criminal Justice Firearms	CJK_0040	80
(c)	CMS Criminal Justice Defensive Tactics	CJK_0050	80
	Total Correctional Auxiliary Officer Program Hours		254

(7) No change.

Specific Authority 943.03(4), 943.12(1), (2) FS. Law Implemented 943.12(5), 943.17(1)(a) FS. History—New 12-13-92, Amended 1-2-97, 7-7-99, 8-22-00, 7-29-01, 11-5-02, 11-30-04, _____.

11B-35.006 Advanced Training Program.
 (1) No change.

(2) The following is a complete list of Advanced Training Program Courses:

Course Number	Course Name	Course Hours
006	Line Supervision	80 hours
007	Middle Management	80 hours
011	Developing and Maintaining a Sound Organization	40 hours
012	Planning the Effective Use of Financial Resources	40 hours
013	Building and Maintaining a Sound Behavioral Climate	40 hours
016	Narcotics Identification and Investigation	40 hours
019	Criminal Law	40 hours
020	Case Preparation and Court Presentation	40 hours
032	Special Tactical Problems	40 hours
033	Sex Crimes Investigation	40 hours
036	Injury and Death Investigation	40 hours
047	Interviews and Interrogations	40 hours
050	Stress Awareness and Management Techniques Resolution	40 hours
053	Crisis Intervention	40 hours
054	Organized Crime	40 hours
055	Radar Speed Measurement Training Course for Law Enforcement Officers	40 hours
057	Discipline and Special Confinement Techniques	40 hours
058	Youthful Offender Program	40 hours
068	Advanced Report Writing and Review	40 hours
072	Fire Fighting for Correctional Officers	40 hours
073	Human and Community Relations	40 hours
074	Drug Abuse Awareness and Education	40 hours
077	Underwater Police Science and Technology	80 hours
080	Computer Applications in Criminal Justice	40 hours
085	Emergency Preparedness for Correctional Officers	40 hours
087	Advanced Traffic Accident Investigations	80 hours
088	Traffic Accident Reconstruction	80 hours
090	School Resource Officer	40 hours
091	Domestic Intervention	40 hours
093	Hostage Negotiations	40 hours
094	Drug Abuse Resistance Education (D.A.R.E.) – FDLE instructed only	80 hours
095	Laser Speed Measurement Operators Course for Law Enforcement Officers	40 hours
096	Drug Abuse Resistance Education (D.A.R.E.)	40 hours
094 & 097	Drug Abuse Resistance Education (D.A.R.E.)	40 hours
098	Traffic Homicide Investigation	80 hours
100	Crimes Against the Elderly and Disabled	40 hours
809	*CMS Field Training Officer Program Course (This course is not mandated for field training officers)	40 hours
1100	*Field Training Officer Course for Correctional and Probation Officers	40 hours
<u>1151</u>	<u>Conducting Background Investigations</u>	<u>40.0 TBA</u>
<u>1152</u>	<u>Investigation and Supervision of Officer Involved Shootings</u>	<u>40.0</u>

*Officers who are currently receiving salary incentive payment for completion of the Field Training Officer Course number 051, are not eligible to receive additional salary incentive credit for course number 809 or 1100.

(3) through (4) No change.

(5) To successfully complete an Advanced Training Program Course, a student shall comply with student attendance, performance, and course documentation requirements pursuant to Rule 11B-35.001, F.A.C.

(a) No change.

(b) A Laser Operator Performance Report, form CJSTC-9, revised ~~May 5, 2005~~ ~~May 6, 2004~~, hereby incorporated by reference, shall be completed for the Laser Speed Measurement Operators Course for Law Enforcement Officers.

(6) No change.

Specific Authority 943.03(4), 943.12(1), (2) FS. Law Implemented 943.12(5), 943.17(1) FS. History—New 12-13-92, Amended 1-10-94, 1-2-97, 7-7-99, 8-22-00, 7-29-01, 11-5-02, 11-30-04.

11B-35.007 Specialized Training Program.

(1) through (3) No change.

(4) Commission-approved Specialized Training Program Courses developed and approved by the Commission that have not been designated as Commission-approved Advanced Training Program Courses:

(a) through (cc) No change.

	Course Number	Course Names	Course Hours
(dd)	1149	CMS Special Populations Course	32.0
(ee)	1150	CMS Problem-Solving Model: SECURE Specialized Training Course	6.0

(5) through (7) No change.

Specific Authority 943.03(4), 943.12(1), (2) FS. Law Implemented 943.175, 943.25 FS. History—New 12-13-92, Amended 8-7-94, 1-2-97, 7-7-99, 8-22-00, 7-29-01, 11-5-02, 11-30-04,_____.

11B-35.009 Exemption from Basic Recruit Training.

(1) through (5) No change.

(6) High-Liability Basic Recruit Training proficiency skills requirements for out-of-state, federal, or inactive Florida officers. Prior to applying for certification, an out-of-state or federal officer, or inactive Florida officer, who is exempt from completing a Commission-approved Basic Recruit Training Program, pursuant to Section 943.131(2), F.S., shall demonstrate proficiency in the required High-Liability Basic Recruit Training Proficiency Skills of vehicle operations, firearms, defensive tactics, and first aid, pursuant to Rule 11B-35.0024, F.A.C., for the discipline for which certification is sought. Such officers shall achieve a passing score on the State Officer Certification Examination, pursuant to paragraph 11B-30.008(2)(c), F.A.C. Upon demonstration of proficiency in the required High-Liability Basic Recruit Training Proficiency Skills the training school shall complete an Equivalency-of-Training Proficiency Demonstration, form CJSTC-76A, revised May 5, 2005 ~~May 6, 2004~~, hereby incorporated by reference, and provide a copy of the form to the officer. The training center director or designee shall, within thirty days of course completion, electronically transmit a completed Training Report form CJSTC-67 through the Commission’s ATMS, or submit an updated form CJSTC-67.

(7) through (8) No change.

Specific Authority 943.03(4), 943.12(1), (2) FS. Law Implemented 943.131(2) FS. History—New 1-2-97, Amended 7-7-99, 11-5-02, 11-30-04,_____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE: Ms. Donna Hunt, Government Operations Consultant, Florida Department of Law Enforcement, Criminal Justice Professionalism Program, 2331 Phillips Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32308-1489, telephone number: (850)410-8615

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Bureau Chief Vickie Marsey, Florida Department of Law Enforcement, Criminal Justice Professionalism Program

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: December 19, 2005

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: December 30, 2005

DEPARTMENT OF LAW ENFORCEMENT

Division of Local Law Enforcement Assistance

RULE TITLES:	RULE NOS.:
Definitions	11D-8.002
Department Inspection and Registration of Breath Test Instruments	11D-8.004
Agency Inspection of Breath Test Instruments	11D-8.006
Approved Breath Test Instruments – Access, Facility Requirements, Observation Period, and Operational Procedures	11D-8.007
Breath Test Operator and Agency Inspector	11D-8.008
Denial, Revocation, and Suspension of Permits	11D-8.015
Forms	11D-8.017

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: Revisions to the above rules are necessary to address new instrumentation for use in Florida.

SUMMARY: Revisions to Chapter 11D-8, F.A.C., concerning regulation and implementation of Florida's implied consent and alcohol testing program. The revisions govern definitions of terminology; regulation of and qualifications for alcohol test permit holders; use and maintenance of breath test instruments.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST: None.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated regulatory cost, or to provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative, must do so in writing within 21 working days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 316.1932(1)(a)2., 316.1932(1)(f)1., 322.63(3)(a), 327.352(1)(b)3., 327.352(1)(d) FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 316.1932(1)(b), 316.1933(2)(b), 316.1934(3), 322.63(3), 327.352(1)(e), 327.353(2)(b), 327.354(3) FS.

IF REQUESTED IN WRITING, WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATE AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW (IF NOT REQUESTED, A HEARING WILL NOT BE HELD):

TIME AND DATE: 10:00 a.m., January 24, 2006

PLACE: 1819 Miccosukee Commons, Conference Room, Tallahassee, Florida

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULES IS: Rafael E. Madrigal, Assistant General Counsel, Florida Department of Law Enforcement, P. O. Box 1489, Tallahassee, Florida 32302

NOTICE UNDER THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT: Pursuant with the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this program, please advise the Department at least 5 days prior to the workshop by contacting Donna Hunt at (850)410-8615 or TDD Number (850)656-9597.

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULES IS:

11D-8.002 Definitions.

(1) through (12) No change.

(13) Authorized Repair Facility – the Department, the breath test instrument manufacturer, or an entity authorized by the breath test instrument manufacturer to service and repair such breath test instrument.

(14) through (26) No change.

Specific Authority 316.1932(1)(a)2., (f)1., 316.1933(2)(b), 316.1934(3), 322.63(3)(a), (b), 327.352(1)(b)3., FS. Law Implemented 316.1932(1)(b)2., 316.1933(2)(b), 316.1934(3), 322.63(3)(b), 327.352(1)(e), 327.353(2), 327.354(3) FS. History–New 10-31-93, Amended 1-1-97, 7-6-99, 7-29-01, 11-5-02, 12-9-04, _____.

11D-8.004 Department Inspection and Registration of Breath Test Instruments.

(1) through (2) No change.

(3) Department inspections shall be conducted in accordance with Department Inspection Procedures FDLE/ATP Form 35 – Rev. August 2005 ~~March 2004~~ for the Intoxilyzer 5000 Series, or Department Inspection Procedures – Intoxilyzer 8000 FDLE/ATP Form 36 – Rev. August 2005 ~~March 2004~~ for the Intoxilyzer 8000; and the results reported on FDLE/ATP Form 26 – Department Inspection Report – Rev. March 2004 for the Intoxilyzer 5000 Series, or FDLE/ATP Form 41 – Department Inspection Report – Intoxilyzer 8000 – Rev. August 2005 for the Intoxilyzer 8000.

(4) No change.

Specific Authority 316.1932(1)(a)2., (f)1., 322.63(3)(a), 327.352(1)(b)3. FS. Law Implemented 316.1932(1)(b)2., 316.1934(3), 322.63(3)(b), 327.352(1)(e), 327.354(3) FS. History–New 10-31-93, Amended 1-1-97, 7-29-01, 11-5-02, 12-9-04, _____.

11D-8.006 Agency Inspection of Breath Test Instruments.

(1) Evidentiary breath test instruments shall be inspected by an agency inspector at least once each calendar month. The agency inspection shall be conducted in accordance with Agency Inspection Procedures FDLE/ATP Form 16 – Rev. March 2004 for the Intoxilyzer 5000 Series, or Agency Inspection Procedures – Intoxilyzer 8000 FDLE/ATP Form 39 – Rev. August 2005 ~~March 2004~~ for the Intoxilyzer 8000; and the results reported on FDLE/ATP Form 24 – Agency

Inspection Report – Rev. March 2001 for the Intoxilyzer 5000 Series, or FDLE/ATP Form 40 – Agency Inspection Report – Intoxilyzer 8000 – March 2004 for the Intoxilyzer 8000.

(2) through (3) No change.

Specific Authority 316.1932(1)(a)2., (f)1., 322.63(3)(a), 327.352(1)(b)3. FS. Law Implemented 316.1932(1)(b)2., 316.1934(3), 322.63(3)(b), 327.352(1)(e), 327.354(3) FS. History–New 10-31-93, Amended 1-1-97, 7-29-01, 11-5-02, 12-9-04, _____.

11D-8.007 Approved Breath Test Instruments – Access, Facility Requirements, Observation Period, and Operational Procedures.

(1) Evidentiary breath test instruments shall only be accessible to a person issued a valid permit by the Department and to persons authorized by a permit holder. This section does not prohibit agencies from sending an instrument to an authorized repair facility. Only authorized repair facilities are authorized to remove the top cover of an Intoxilyzer 8000 evidentiary breath test instrument.

(2) through (3) No change.

(4) When operating an Intoxilyzer 5000 Series instrument, a breath test operator shall conduct a breath test in accordance with, and shall record the results on, the Breath Test Results Affidavit FDLE/ATP Form 14 – Rev. March 2002. When operating an Intoxilyzer 8000 instrument, a breath test operator shall conduct a breath test in accordance with Operational Procedures Intoxilyzer 8000 FDLE/ATP Form 37 – Rev. August 2005 ~~March 2004~~, and the results of the test shall be recorded on the Breath Alcohol Test Affidavit – Intoxilyzer 8000 FDLE/ATP Form 38 – March 2004.

(5) No change.

Specific Authority 316.1932(1)(a)2., (f)1., 322.63(3)(a), 327.352(1)(b)3. FS. Law Implemented 316.1932(1)(b)2., 316.1934(3), 322.63(3)(b), 327.352(1)(e), 327.354(3) FS. History–New 10-31-93, Amended 1-1-97, 7-29-01, 11-5-02, 12-9-04, _____.

11D-8.008 Breath Test Operator and Agency Inspector.

(1) Qualifications for Breath Test Operator Permit – An applicant for a breath test operator permit must meet the following qualifications:

(a) through (d) No change.

(e) Submit to the Department a complete written application and proof of course completion, examination results, proficiency testing documentation and proof of age upon successful completion of the breath test operator course, but no later than ninety days after completion.

(2) Qualifications for Agency Inspector Permit – An applicant for an agency inspector permit must meet the following qualifications:

(a) through (b) No change.

(c) Submits to the Department a complete written application and proof of course completion, examination results and proficiency testing documentation upon successful completion of the agency inspector course, but no later than ninety days after completion.

- (d) No change.
- (3) through (8) No change.

Specific Authority 316.1932(1)(a)2., (f)1., 322.63(3)(a), 327.352(1)(b)3. FS. Law Implemented 316.1934(3), 322.63(3)(b), 327.354(3) FS. History—New 10-31-93, Amended 1-1-97, 7-29-01, 11-5-02, 12-9-04,_____.

11D-8.015 Denial, Revocation, and Suspension of Permits.

- (1) through (2) No change.
- (3) The Department is authorized to revoke any permit for any of the following reasons:

(a) Knowingly making a false statement or providing false information on any agency document or on any document required by these rules.

- (b) through (e) No change.
- (4) through (6) No change.

Specific Authority 316.1932(1)(a)2., (f)1., 316.1933(2)(b), 316.1934(3), 322.63(3)(a), (b), 327.352(1)(b)3. FS. Law Implemented 316.1933(2)(b), 316.1934(3), 322.63(3)(b), 327.353(2), 327.354(3) FS. History—New 10-31-93, Amended 1-1-97, 7-29-01, 11-5-02, 12-9-04,_____.

11D-8.017 Forms.

The following forms referenced in these rules are hereby incorporated by reference:

- FDLE/ATP Form 13 – Breath Test Log – Effective January 1997.
- FDLE/ATP Form 14 – Breath Test Result Affidavit – Revised March 2002.
- FDLE/ATP Form 16 – Agency Inspection Procedures – Revised March 2004.
- FDLE/ATP Form 24 – Agency Inspection Report – Revised March 2001.
- FDLE/ATP Form 26 – Department Inspection Report – Revised March 2004.
- FDLE/ATP Form 32 – Certificate of Assurance – Revised March 2001.
- FDLE/ATP Form 34 – Instrument Evaluation Procedures – Revised March 2004.
- FDLE/ATP Form 35 – Department Inspection Procedures – Revised August 2005 ~~March 2004~~.
- FDLE/ATP Form 36 – Department Inspection Procedures – Intoxilyzer 8000 – Revised August 2005 ~~March 2004~~.
- FDLE/ATP Form 37 – Operational Procedures – Intoxilyzer 8000 – Revised August 2005 ~~March 2004~~.
- FDLE/ATP Form 38 – Breath Alcohol Test Affidavit – Intoxilyzer 8000 – March 2004.
- FDLE/ATP Form 39 – Agency Inspection Procedures – Intoxilyzer 8000 – Revised August 2005 ~~March 2004~~.
- FDLE/ATP Form 40 – Agency Inspection Report – Intoxilyzer 8000 – March 2004.
- FDLE/ATP Form 41 – Department Inspection Report – Intoxilyzer 8000 – Revised August 2005.

These forms may be obtained by contacting the Florida Department of Law Enforcement, Alcohol Testing Program, P. O. Box 1489, Tallahassee, Florida 32302. Agencies will be provided blank forms upon request and without cost for their alcohol testing program use.

Specific Authority 316.1932(1)(a)2., (f)1., 316.1933(2)(b), 316.1934(3), 322.63(3)(a), (b), 327.352(1)(b)3. FS. Law Implemented 316.1932(1)(b), 316.1933(2)(b), 316.1934(3), 322.63(3)(b), 327.352(1)(e), 327.353(2)(b), 327.354(3) FS. History—New 10-31-93, Amended 2-1-95, 1-1-97, 9-29-01, 11-5-02, 12-9-04,_____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE: Rafael E. Madrigal, Assistant General Counsel, Florida Department of Law Enforcement, P. O. Box 1489, Tallahassee, Florida 32302, telephone number (850)410-7810

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Michael Ramage, General Counsel, Department of Law Enforcement, 2331 Phillips Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32308

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: December 19, 2005

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: September 16, 2005

**DEPARTMENT OF LAW ENFORCEMENT
Division of Local Law Enforcement Assistance**

RULE CHAPTER TITLE:	RULE CHAPTER NO.:
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program	11D-9
RULE TITLES:	RULE NOS.:
Definitions	11D-9.001
Funds Availability for JAG-Countywide and JAG Direct	11D-9.002
Limitations on Funds Use	11D-9.003
Eligible Purposes and Programs	11D-9.004
Application and Award Procedures for JAG-Countywide and JAG-Direct	11D-9.005
Forms and Instructions	11D-9.006

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: Revises rule language to comply with the requirements for merging the Edward Byrne Memorial State and Local Law Enforcement Assistance Formula Grant Program with the Local Law Enforcement Block Grant (LLEBG) Program. Repeals Rule 11D-9.003, F.A.C., Limitations on Funds Use and Rule 11D-9.004, F.A.C., Eligible Purposes and Programs.

SUMMARY: Updates and clarifies rule language to conform to federal program requirements governing the merger of the Edward Byrne Memorial State and Local Law Enforcement Assistance Formula Grant Program with the Local Law Enforcement Block Grant (LLEBG) Program; Identifies two federal funding streams (60% of the funding will be called JAG-Countywide and 40% of the funding will be called JAG-Direct); and repeals Rule 11D-9.003, F.A.C., Limitations on Funds Use and Rule 11D-9.004, F.A.C., Eligible Purposes and Programs.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COSTS: None.

Any person, who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated regulatory cost, or to provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative, must do so in writing within 21 working days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 943.03(4), 943.403 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 943.25(1), 943.402 FS.

IF REQUESTED, IN WRITING, WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATE AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW (IF NOT REQUESTED, THIS HEARING WILL NOT BE HELD):

TIME AND DATE: 10:00 a.m., January 24, 2006

PLACE: 2331 Phillips Road, Elevator Conference Room, Quad C, 3rd Floor, Tallahassee, Florida 32308-1489

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULES IS: Clayton Wilder, Florida Department of Law Enforcement, 2331 Phillips Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32308, telephone number: (850)410-8700

NOTICE UNDER THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT: Pursuant with the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this program, please advise the Department at least 5 days prior to the workshop by contacting Clayton Wilder at (850)410-8700 or TDD Number (850)656-9597.

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULES IS:

~~EDWARD BYRNE MEMORIAL JUSTICE STATE AND LOCAL LAW ENFORCEMENT ASSISTANCE FORMULA GRANT PROGRAM~~

11D-9.001 Definitions.

As used in these rules, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning, the following terms shall have the meaning indicated:

(1) "Act" means the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968, 42 U.S.C. 3701, et. seq., as amended.

(2) "BJA" means the Bureau of Justice Assistance, Office of Justice Programs, U.S. Department of Justice.

(3) "JAG" ~~"Byrne Program"~~ means the Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program ~~Memorial State and Local Law Enforcement Assistance Formula Grant Program~~.

(4) "JAG-Countywide" means the 60% funding stream that was formerly known as the Byrne Program.

(5) "JAG-Direct" means the 40% funding stream that was formerly known as the Local Law Enforcement Block Grant Program.

~~(4) "CJRI Plan" means the Criminal Justice Records Improvement Plan.~~

~~(5) "Criminal History Records (CHR) Set-aside Funds" means that percentage of available Anti-Drug Abuse Act of 1988 funds as determined by the BJA which must be utilized~~

~~by state and local units of government for the purpose of improving the completeness, accuracy and timely submission of the information contained within offender criminal history records.~~

(6) "Criminal Justice System" means agencies established by state and local units of government to apprehend, prosecute, and adjudicate criminal offenders, including correctional agencies established to carry out the sentence imposed upon criminal offenders.

(7) "Department" means the Florida Department of Law Enforcement.

(8) "Eligible Application" is an application for Act funds, which meets the requirements of Rules 11D-9.002, 11D-9.003, 11D-9.004 and 11D-9.005, F.A.C.

~~(9) "Florida's Federal Funding Work Group" means the organizational body which will provide recommendations to the Department regarding the state's effort to improve the contents of Florida's Criminal History Records in accordance with the requirements of the federal Anti Drug Abuse Act of 1988. The work group shall consist of a representative from the Office of the State Courts Administrator, the Florida Department of Law Enforcement, the Florida Department of Corrections, the Florida Department of Juvenile Justice and the Florida Association of Court Clerks.~~

~~(9)(10)~~ "Local Applicant" means any governing body of a city or county, however styled, including that of a consolidated or metropolitan government and including an Indian Tribe which performs law enforcement functions as determined by the Secretary of the Interior.

~~(10)(11)~~ "OCJG" means the Office of Criminal Justice Grants, Business Support Programs, Florida Department of Law Enforcement.

~~(11)(12)~~ "State Applicant" means any unit of the executive, legislative or judicial branches of state government which performs functions related to the purposes of the Act.

~~(12)(13)~~ "Statewide Strategy for Drug Control, Violence Prevention, and System Improvement" means a policy designed to address the problems of illegal drug use and violent crime and to improve the efficiency and effectiveness of the criminal justice system in accordance with the Act.

~~(13)(14)~~ "Substance Abuse and Violent Crime Identification Matrix" means a set of statistical factors and values used by the Department to ascertain the degree of the drug problem or violent crime within any particular county relative to any other particular county.

Specific Authority 943.03(4), 943.403 FS. Law Implemented 943.25(1), 943.402 FS. History—New 2-6-90, Amended 4-2-92, 2-7-95, Formerly 9G-16.002, Amended 3-8-99, Formerly 9B-61.002, Amended 11-5-02,_____.

11D-9.002 Funds Availability for JAG-Countywide and JAG Direct.

(1) JAG-Countywide. The amount of funds available shall be that amount allocated each federal fiscal year to the State of Florida by the federal government under the Act and appropriated by the legislature.

(2) The Department shall attempt to obligate all of the funds available in the current federal fiscal year, but may obligate part or all of the funds in a later federal fiscal year, when permitted by Federal law and applicable Florida Statutes.

~~(3) The percentage of funds obligated to state units of government, in the aggregate, shall be no more than that percentage equal to the state government share of total state and local criminal justice expenditures as determined annually by the BJA.~~

~~(a) Based on appropriations by The Florida Legislature the Department shall notify in writing those state agencies known to have been appropriated a portion of the Act funds, including CHR set aside funds. Such notice shall identify funding available, the purposes for which these funds may be used and the procedures required for receipt of such funds.~~

~~(b) State agencies so notified shall be obligated the appropriated funds upon receipt of an application for such funds from the affected agency.~~

(4) The percentage of federal funds obligated to local units of government, in the aggregate, shall be no less than the percentage equal to the local government share of total state and local criminal justice expenditures as determined annually by the BJA.

(3)(a) The Department shall establish a Substance Abuse and Violent Crime Identification Matrix which, ~~less Criminal History Records Set aside Funds~~, shall be used, in conjunction with population, to determine the amount of funds allocated to each county in accordance with paragraph 11D-9.002(4)(c), F.A.C., of this subsection. Through analysis of statewide databases, the Department shall determine the rate, trend and magnitude of the following group indices and their identified variables for the most recent five years of available data in each of Florida's counties:

~~(a)1.~~ Violent Crime Index.

~~1.a.~~ Number of Burglary Offenses.

~~2.b.~~ Number of Larceny Offenses.

~~3.e.~~ Number of Robbery Offenses.

~~4.d.~~ Number of Murder Offenses.

~~(b)2.~~ Juvenile Involvement in Drugs Index.

~~1.a.~~ Number of juveniles arrested for sale and possession of marijuana.

~~2.b.~~ Number of juveniles arrested for sale and possession of cocaine.

~~3.e.~~ Drug Arrest Index. Number of arrests for sale and possession of any drug.

~~(c)4.~~ Cocaine Factor Index. Number of arrests for sale and possession of cocaine.

~~(4)(b)~~ Based on the rate, trend and magnitude of these indices in each county relative to every other county, the Department shall generate a listing of the counties. Such listing shall be generated every two years.

~~(5)(e)~~ Each county shall be allocated a percentage of local share federal funds equal to one-half of the sum of that county's percentage of statewide need as determined by the Substance Abuse and Violent Crime Identification Matrix plus that county's percentage of the total state population.

~~(6)(d)~~ Each application for local share JAG-Countywide Byrne Program funds shall represent agreement on expenditure of grant funds among at least 51 percent of the local units of government which also represent at least 51 percent of the population within the geographic boundaries of the applicant's county.

~~(7)(e)~~ In the event that at least 51 percent of the units of government which also represent at least 51 percent of the population in any county are unable to agree upon the expenditure of funds by the application deadline established by the program announcement or are unable to expend all of their allocated funds by the end of the grant period, said funds shall be distributed at the discretion of the Department.

~~(5) The Department shall allocate local CHR set-aside funds to the criminal justice system for the purpose of improving the completeness, accuracy and timely submission of information contained in the Florida Department of Law Enforcement's offender criminal history records. The recommendations of the Florida Federal Work Group shall be considered by the Department prior to such allocation.~~

~~(a) Local recipients of CHR set-aside funds shall be notified by the Department.~~

~~(b) The requirement for 51 percent letters that applies to other local applications does not apply in this case.~~

(8) JAG-Direct. BJA determines eligibility of JAG-Direct funds. Distribution of JAG-Direct funds will be determined by using the latest available UCR data and distributed to local units of government.

Specific Authority 943.03(4), 943.403 FS. Law Implemented 943.25(1), 943.402 FS. History—New 2-6-90, Amended 4-2-92, 2-7-95, Formerly 9G-16.003, Amended 3-8-99, Formerly 9B-61.003, Amended 11-5-02,_____.

11D-9.003 Limitations on Funds Use.

~~Restrictions on the use of monies for routine equipment, personnel costs, construction and supplanting of state and local funds, land acquisition, and the number of months applicants may receive financial support are as follows:~~

~~(1) Equipment and Hardware. The purchase or acquisition of equipment or hardware with grant funds is prohibited unless the purchase or acquisition is utilized in an approved program.~~

~~(2) General Salaries and Personnel Costs. Payment of personnel costs with grant funds is prohibited unless the costs for services are directly related to the grant as a part of a program. Grant funds may be used to compensate personnel for time engaged in conducting or participating in training programs or to compensate personnel engaged in research, development, demonstration or short-term programs related to the purposes of the Act.~~

~~(3) Construction. Use of the grant funds for construction projects is prohibited, except construction of correctional facilities.~~

~~(4) Land Acquisition. Acquisition of land with grant funds is prohibited.~~

~~(5) Non-Supplantation. Grant funds shall not be used to supplant state or local funds, but will be used to increase the amounts of such funds that would, in the absence of grants funds, be made available for drug and violent crime law enforcement activities.~~

~~(6) Projects which have received grant funds made available under the Act for an aggregate of 48 calendar months, including funds received under the Anti Drug Abuse Act of 1986 and the Justice Assistance Act of 1984, shall not be considered an eligible project in any subsequent funding cycle, except for the following projects:~~

~~(a) Administration.~~

~~(b) Victims Assistance Programs, or Multijurisdictional Gang or Drug Task Forces.~~

~~(c) Criminal History Records when waived by BJA, because it is essential to continue funding a particular subgrantee to complete an individual project beyond 4 years in order to achieve the goals established by the Act and State's approved CJRI Plan.~~

Specific Authority 943.03(4), 943.403 FS. Law Implemented 943.25(1), 943.402 FS. History--New 2-6-90, Amended 2-7-95, Formerly 9G-16.006, 9B-61.006, Amended 11-5-02, Repealed _____.

11D-9.004 Eligible Purposes and Programs.

The Act provides that funds may only be used for the purposes as authorized by Congress pursuant to Title I of the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968, 42 U.S.C. 3701, et. seq., as amended. Any other uses or proposed uses shall be denied.

Specific Authority 943.03(4), 943.403 FS. Law Implemented 943.25(1), 943.402 FS. History--New 2-6-90, Amended 2-7-95, Formerly 9G-16.007, 9B-61.007, Amended 11-5-02, Repealed _____.

11D-9.005 Application and Award Procedures for JAG-Countywide and JAG-Direct.

(1) JAG-Countywide Notification Process for State Applicants.

(a) The Department shall notify in writing state agencies that are appropriated a portion of the JAG-Countywide funds. Such notice shall identify the funding available, the purposes for which these funds may be used and the procedures required for receipt of such funds.

(b) State agencies so notified shall be obligated the appropriated funds upon receipt of an application for such funds from the affected agency.

(c) Applicants who submit proposals to the Department for consideration shall submit two originals of the completed application package which is filled out via the Subgrant Information ON-line System (SIMON).

(2)(1) JAG-Countywide Notification Process for Local Applicants.

(a) To initiate a funding cycle, the Department shall notify all eligible agencies and jurisdictions through publication in the Florida Administrative Weekly. The funding cycle shall be advertised in the Florida Administrative Weekly at least 30 days prior to the deadline for submitting applications.

(b) In addition to the notice specified in paragraph (1)(a) of this section, the Department shall send notice of the funding cycle and a program announcement to the Chairman, Board of County Commissioners, in each county. The Department shall also provide a courtesy copy of said notice and program announcement to the Chief Elected Official of the governing body of each city located in each county so notified.

(c) The Chairman, Board of County Commissioners, in each county so notified shall return to the Department within 30 days of receiving notification, a statement of certification indicating the county's willingness to serve as the coordinating unit of government for at least 51 percent of the units of government which also represent at least 51 percent of the population located in said county. When the county identifies a county coordinator, the Department shall send application forms to the coordinator.

(d) In the event the county declines to serve as the coordinating unit of government, the Department shall request the governing body of each municipality, in descending order of population, to serve as the coordinating unit of government.

(3)(2) JAG-Countywide Local Application Process.

(a) Each applicant is encouraged to appoint a Substance Abuse and Violent Crime Policy Advisory Board, the membership of which shall include at a minimum the following persons or their authorized designee: Chief Circuit Judge, State Attorney, Public Defender, Sheriff, Chief of Police of each municipality within the county or a Chief of Police designated by those Chiefs of Police as their representative, Jail Administrator, Clerk of the Court, Superintendent of Education and a representative of local drug treatment programs. An existing Board or Council whose membership includes the listed representatives may be utilized in lieu of appointing a new Board or Council. The Substance Abuse and

Violent Crime Policy Advisory Board shall serve as the primary body for coordinating drug abuse efforts undertaken with funds provided by the Act.

(b) Each applicant is encouraged to designate an Office of Substance Abuse and Violent Crime Policy for the purposes of:

1. Providing administrative support to the Substance Abuse and Violent Crime Policy Advisory Board;
2. Preparing an application on behalf of at least 51 percent of the local units of government that also represents at least 51 percent of the population in the applicant's county;
3. Administering funds received from the OCJG, including receipt, review, processing, monitoring, progress and financial report review, technical assistance, grant adjustment, accounting, auditing and fund disbursements; and
4. Coordinating the drug control and violent crime prevention and enforcement activities of the county's criminal justice system, education system and drug treatment systems.

(c) An office or agency performing other functions within the applicant unit of government may be designated as the Office of Substance Abuse and Violent Crime Policy.

(d) Applicants who submit proposals to the Department for consideration shall submit two originals of the completed application package which is filled out via the Subgrant Information ON-line System (SIMON).

(e) The Department shall review all applications for JAG-Countywide Act funds and shall reject any application not meeting the requirements of these rules and applicable federal and state laws.

(4) JAG-Direct Notification Process for Local Applicants. To initiate a funding cycle, the Department shall send notice of the funding cycle and a program announcement to the local agency head, being the mayor of the city or the chairman, in each county.

(5) JAG-Direct Local Application Process.

(a) Applicants who submit proposals to the Department for consideration shall submit two originals of the completed application package which is filled out via the Subgrant Information ON-line System (SIMON).

(b) The Department shall review all applications for Act funds and shall reject any application not meeting the requirements of these rules and applicable federal and state laws.

Specific Authority 943.03(4), 943.403 FS. Law Implemented 943.25(1), 943.402 FS. History--New 2-6-90, Amended 2-7-95, Formerly 9G-16.008, Amended 6-22-00, Formerly 9B-61.008, Amended 11-5-02,_____.

11D-9.006 Forms and Instructions.

Copies of the materials and forms incorporated by reference herein may be obtained by writing or calling: Office of Criminal Justice Grants, Department of Law Enforcement, 2331 Phillips Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32308, Telephone (850)410-8700.

Forms Required

- (1) Financial Claims Report OCJG-001 (rev. October 2005 03/25/2002)
- (2) Financial Closeout Package OCJG-002 (rev. October 2005 03/25/2002)
- (3) Project Generated Income Agreement OCJG-003 (rev. October 2005 03/25/2002)
- (4) Program Generated Income Report OCJG-004 (rev. October 2005 03/25/2002)
- (5) Application for Funding Assistance OCJG-005 (rev. April 2005 03/25/2002)
- (6) Certification of Compliance with Equal Employment Opportunity (EEO) Program Requirements/Subgrantee Certification OCJG-006 (rev. October 2005 03/25/2002)
- (7) Certification of Compliance with Equal Employment Opportunity (EEO) Program Requirements/Criminal Justice Agency Certification OCJG-007 (rev. October 2005 03/25/2002)
- (8) Confidential Funds Certification OCJG-008 (rev. October 2005 03/25/2002)
- (9) Criminal Intelligence System Certification OCJG-009 (rev. October 2005 03/25/2002)
- (10) Automated Data Processing (ADP) Equipment and Software and Criminal Justice Information and Communication Systems Request for Approval Form OCJG-010 (rev. October 2005 03/25/2002)
- (11) Sole Source Justification for Services and Equipment Form OCJG-011 (rev. October 2005 03/25/2002)
- (12) Certification of Acceptance of Subgrant Award OCJG-012 (rev. October 2005 03/25/2002)

Specific Authority 943.03(4), 943.403 FS. Law Implemented 943.25(1), 943.402 FS. History--New 2-6-90, Amended 2-7-95, Formerly 9G-16.009, Amended 6-22-00, Formerly 9B-61.009, Amended 11-5-02,_____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE: Mr. Clayton Wilder, Florida Department of Law Enforcement, 2331 Phillips Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32308-1489, telephone number: (850)410-8615

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Administrator Clayton Wilder, Florida Department of Law Enforcement, Office of Criminal Justice Grants

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: December 19, 2005
DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: September 16, 2005

DEPARTMENT OF LAW ENFORCEMENT

Violent Crime and Drug Control Council

RULE CHAPTER TITLE: Violent Crime Investigative
RULE CHAPTER NO.: 11N-1

Emergency and Drug Control Strategy Implementation Account 11N-1

RULE TITLES: Drug Control Investigative Funding 11N-1.0022

Limitations on Drug Control Investigative Funding 11N-1.0031

Procedures for Formal Funding Requests for Violent Crime Investigative Reimbursement Funding 11N-1.005

Procedures for Funding Requests for Drug Control Investigative Funding 11N-1.0051

Contributions 11N-1.006

Victim/Witness Protection Program 11N-1.009

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: To clarify language concerning matching funding for the Violent Crime and Drug Control Strategy Implementation Account, update the name of the database used in tracking drug crime, funding request deadline is changed to allow staff more time to process requests, clarify when and how overtime and leave records for members paid from Council funding is addressed, ensure that penalty language for agencies violating the rule are clear and the information agencies send to FDLE is received in a timely manner, clarify which forms must be sent to which workgroup, change the recipient for Victim/Witness applications from an individual to a position.

SUMMARY: Methods for requesting funding and reporting expenses for the Violent Crime and Drug Control Strategy Implementation Account.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COSTS: None.

Any person, who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated regulatory cost, or to provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative, must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 943.03(4), 943.042 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 943.031, 943.042 FS.

IF REQUESTED, IN WRITING, WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATE AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW (IF NOT REQUESTED, THIS HEARING WILL NOT BE HELD):

TIME AND DATE: 10:00 a.m., January 24, 2006

PLACE: 2331 Phillips Road, Elevator Conference Room, Quad C, 3rd Floor, Tallahassee, Florida 32308-1489

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE MAKING AND A COPY OF THE PRELIMINARY DRAFT IS: Joyce Gainous-Harris, Florida Department of Law Enforcement, 2331 Phillips Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32308, telephone number: (850)410-7096
NOTICE UNDER THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT: Pursuant with the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this program, please advise the Department at least 5 days prior to the workshop by contacting the FDLE Office of Human Resources at (850)410-7900 or TDD Number (850)656-9597.

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

11N-1.0022 ~~Matching~~ Drug Control Investigative Funding.

(1) In determining whether requests for drug control ~~matching~~ funding relate to multi-agency or statewide drug control or illicit money laundering investigative or task force efforts that:

(a) Significantly contribute to achieving the state’s goal of reducing drug-related crime as articulated by the Office of Drug Control;

(b) Represent a significant illicit money laundering investigative effort; or

(c) Otherwise significantly support statewide strategies developed by the Statewide Drug Policy Advisory Council, the following criteria shall be considered:

1. Mandatory Factors:

a. through g., No change.

h. The proposed investigative effort shall provide that all known targets in a drug investigation proposed to be funded by the Council funds shall be entered into the “InSite” “DrugNet” database maintained by the Florida Department of Law Enforcement. The funding request shall indicate that such entry has been accomplished. All targets becoming known after application to the Council or after funding by the Council or both shall be promptly entered into “InSite” “DrugNet.” All drug seizures related to drug control Council funded investigations shall be entered into “Insite.” Upon failure to make such entry, the Council is authorized to suspend funding not yet provided and to direct refund of all unexpended funds previously provided by the Council.

2.a. through i., No change.

Specific Authority 943.03(4), 943.042 FS. Law Implemented 943.031, 943.042 FS. History—New 10-25-01, Amended 11-5-02, 12-3-03,_____.

11N-1.0031 Limitations on ~~Matching~~ Drug Control Investigative Funding.

(1) Requests for ~~matching~~ funding from the Violent Crime Investigative Emergency and Drug Control Strategy Implementation Account shall be limited to case-related investigative expenses, salary and overtime for the efforts of

officers and employees directly linked to a funded investigation and other expenses related to investigations approved for funding by the Council.

(2) Each ~~matching~~ funding request shall designate a lead investigative agency that will serve as the liaison between the Council and the participating agencies for the purposes of coordinating the collection of information and in disbursing funds approved by the Council. Each participating agency shall agree to promptly provide requested information to the Council, to provide regular performance reports and information related to funded investigations as required by the Council, retain documentation and proof of expenditures or personnel efforts as may be required by the Council, and submit to any audit or review of the use of received funds as may be required by the Council.

(3) If an additional agency is brought into the investigation after funding has already been appropriated and no additional monies are being sought and there is no change of focus of the investigation, a lead investigative agency is authorized to request that the additional agency be permitted to share in council funds for the investigation.

(a) The lead agency shall verify and endorse both that agency match funding is available from the new agency and that all requirements of Rule 11N-1.0031, F.A.C., will be fulfilled by the new agency.

(b) Pursuant to Rule 11N-1.0031, F.A.C., the new agency shall guarantee its agreements are completed and obtain agency match funding before presenting its package, with the lead agency's endorsement, to the Chairperson of the Council.

(c) The Council Chairperson shall have the ability to make interim ratification of additional agencies participation in a specific funded investigation until the next regularly scheduled council meeting at which time the entire Council shall vote upon the issue.

(4) No change.

(5) ~~Matching~~ Funding from the Violent Crime Investigative Emergency and Drug Control Strategy Implementation Account is available only to a Florida state or local law enforcement agency, and such funding shall be used for investigative purposes directly linked to the investigative effort approved for funding by the Council. As used herein, "law enforcement agency" includes a Florida police department, a Florida sheriff's office, a regional office of the Florida Department of Law Enforcement or other Florida state law enforcement agency, the Department of Financial Services, ~~Florida Comptroller's Office of Financial Investigations~~, or a troop of the Florida Highway Patrol.

However, the term excludes state attorneys' offices and the Office of Statewide Prosecution except for resources provided by such offices exclusively dedicated to investigative efforts approved for funding by the Council.

(6) Limits Upon Drug Control Matching Funding.

(a) The maximum ~~matching~~ funding provided by the Council on a single investigation shall be \$100,000. However, an approved investigative effort may consist of multiple investigations, each of which may receive ~~matching~~ funding up to \$100,000.

(b) No law enforcement agency as defined herein may receive more than \$200,000 in Council drug control matching funds during the agency's fiscal year.

(c) In each agency fiscal year, payment of overtime with Council matching funds shall not exceed \$10,000 per officer or employee dedicated to the funded investigative effort.

(d) The Council may fund all, a portion, or none of a proposed investigative effort seeking drug control matching funding.

(e) No change.

Specific Authority 943.03(4), 943.042 FS. Law Implemented 943.031, 943.042 FS. History--New 10-25-01, Amended 12-3-03,_____.

11N-1.005 Procedures for Formal Funding Requests for Violent Crime Investigative Reimbursement Funding.

(1) No change.

(2) In order to assure careful consideration of requests before presentation to the Council, written requests for funding shall be submitted by the head of the Regional Violent Crime Investigative Coordinating Team so that they are received at least ~~thirty fifteen~~ days prior to the next scheduled Violent Crime and Drug Control Council meeting. Requests shall be mailed to: Florida Violent Crime and Drug Control Council, c/o Florida Department of Law Enforcement, P. O. Box 1489, Tallahassee, Florida 32302, and shall indicate who will be making the presentation to the Council.

(3) through (9) No change.

Specific Authority 943.03(4), 943.042 FS. Law Implemented 943.031, 943.042 FS. History--New 3-10-94, Amended 10-10-95, 10-25-01, 12-3-03,_____.

11N-1.0051 Procedures for Funding Requests for ~~Matching~~ Drug Control Investigative Funding.

(1) No change.

(2) All requests for ~~matching~~ drug control investigative effort funds from the Violent Crime and Drug Control Council must be developed in conjunction with, and approved by, the Team in the region from in which the lead requesting agency is located. No request submitted without the endorsement of the Team will be considered by the Council.

(3) Prior to submitting a request for drug control matching funds to the Department of Law Enforcement for review and consideration for Council funding, the Team shall assure that the various requirements of this rule have been satisfied. The Team shall discuss each mandatory criteria element stated in this rule, explaining in detail how the criteria is met. In addition, the Team shall identify and discuss each non-mandatory criteria identified in this rule reasonably applicable to the request. The Team shall assure that the

funding proposal has been explained in sufficient detail to promote a fair review and evaluation of the request by the Department and the Council.

(4) through (6), No change.

(7) The Office of Statewide Intelligence (OSI) shall present to the Council all cases forwarded to it by the regional Teams, indicating its prioritization determinations at a meeting of the Council. The presentation must include a recommendation of which cases OSI believes should receive funding priority and the amount of drug control matching funding recommended and may identify the relative strengths and weaknesses of the cases under consideration in meeting the underlying goals of Council matching funding.

(8) The Council will make its drug control matching funding decisions based upon the information presented to it by OSI, or otherwise made available at a Council meeting, and the availability of funds for use by the Council. The Council may direct that approved funding shall be paid in a lump sum or in installments. The Council may fund all, a portion, or none of a request presented to it.

(9) No change.

(10) Council-provided drug control matching funds shall be expended in a manner consistent with the investigative purposes approved by Council, and may not be utilized to pay any part of the commitment made by the recipient agencies in determining their amount of agency match funds ~~to be matched by the Council provided funds.~~

(11) No change.

(12) In order to assure careful consideration of original requests for drug control matching funding and resubmitted requests for funding that have been previously denied, the written requests and approvals shall be submitted by the head of the Team to the Office of Statewide Intelligence no later than 30 days prior to the meeting of the Council in which the request for matching funding might be considered.

(13) Agencies seeking drug control matching funding under this section shall cooperate with the Team in the agencies' area, and provide all information as requested by the Team to assist in the preparation of a funding request, including information to identify the amounts of agency funds being committed by each participating agency to be matched by Council drug control matching funds. The head of each requesting agency that seeks to receive Council drug control matching funds shall include in the submission to the Team a certification in writing that to the agency head's best knowledge and belief, the request complies with the requirements established by law and this rule for funding. The agency head shall also agree to provide requested information to the Council to assist the Council in its performance-monitoring obligations and shall agree to retain proof and documentation as may be required by the Council and to submit to any audits or reviews of agency utilization of Council funds or funds derived from any Council-funded

investigative effort as may be performed. The request shall be accompanied by Form FDLE/OSI-003, ~~Matching Drug Control & Money Laundering Application~~, revised 12/03/2004 ~~10/07/01~~, incorporated by reference.

(14) Funding Calculations.

(a) In calculating the amount being provided ~~by~~ as an ~~requesting~~ agency match ~~for which matching Council funds may be provided~~, the Council shall consider:

1. The base salary (including benefits and taxes) and overtime compensation pledged (including benefits and taxes) of agency employees for that portion of the employees' efforts dedicated exclusively to the proposed investigative effort, and

2. Normal operating costs directly attributable to the proposed investigative effort as specifically identified by the requesting agency, subject to the exclusions listed below.

(b) No change.

(15) Council-provided funds shall not be used for any purposes ~~used~~ by the requesting agency in calculating its ~~agency match contribution to be matched by Council Funds~~. Where an employee's overtime has been pledged by an agency as a ~~match contribution to be matched by Council funds~~, no Council-provided funds may be used for the employee's overtime until such time as the agency's ~~pledged~~ match overtime funding has been completely expended. Council Matching funds shall not be used to purchase or lease vehicles, vessels, aircraft or conveyances, computer equipment, or buildings or the maintenance or repair of any such property or equipment. Council Matching funds shall not be used to pay employee base salaries. In each agency's fiscal year, up to \$10,000 in Council matching funds may be applied to an employee's overtime (including benefits and taxes) for efforts dedicated exclusively to the funded investigative effort. Matching Council funds may be used for the temporary rental of property or equipment for an undercover operation in support of the investigative effort, or for use in surveillance activities tied to the investigative effort. Matching Council funds may be utilized to pay overtime of agency employees' efforts directly in support of the funded investigative effort, limited to \$10,000 per employee in the employee's agency's fiscal year.

(16) Council Matching Funding Documentation.

(a) Agencies receiving drug control matching funding under this section shall provide a written quarterly report of expenditures of Council funds and of the progress of the investigative effort. The report shall be prepared in consultation with the Regional Drug Enforcement Coordinating Team and submitted by that Team through the Office of Statewide Intelligence for compilation and presentation to the Council at a quarterly meeting. Form FDLE/OSI-004A, ~~Matching Drug Control Quarterly Report~~, revised 12/03/2004 ~~10/08/02~~, incorporated by reference, shall be utilized to make the report. In addition, the Council may require oral progress reports to be made at Council meetings by

a representative of the Regional Drug Enforcement Coordinating Team or a designee of the lead investigative agency in a funded investigative effort. Agencies receiving Drug Control funding after September 1, 2005, shall utilize FDLE/OSI-004B, Drug Control Bi-Annual Report, revised 12/03/2004, hereby incorporated by reference.

(b) Agencies receiving ~~matching~~ Council funding shall retain documentation supporting the amounts and purposes of expenditures made from ~~matching~~ Council funds, the amounts and purposes of expenditure of agency match funds pledged as the basis for the amount of funds to be matched by the Council, the performance and accomplishments of the investigative efforts, and shall make these available to the Council upon request. With regard to agency personnel assigned to investigative efforts receiving Council funds, each agency shall retain, and make available to the Council as requested, each employee's official time and leave records and such other documentation demonstrating the time devoted by the employee to the funded investigative effort, but these records shall not be submitted with either FDLE/OSI-004A or FDLE/OSI-004B.

(c) Agencies receiving ~~matching~~ Council funding shall provide such other information as ~~may be~~ required by the Council or the Office of Statewide Intelligence in its capacity as support staff, to assist ~~the Council~~ in preparing its annual report to the Legislature, to assist audits of Council activities, or to assist the Council and OSI in fulfilling their ~~its~~ role to monitor the performance of funded investigations.

(17) No change.

(18) If an agency receiving Council ~~matching~~ funds is subsequently reimbursed or funded from another source of funding for the expenditures funded by the Council, the receiving agency shall return to the Council an amount that is the lesser of the subsequent reimbursement or the ~~matching~~ funding received from the Council.

(19) If agencies receiving Council funding fail to submit the required forms, FDLE/OSI-004A or FDLE/OSI-004B, by the stated deadline, the Council Chair in consultation with FDLE/OSI staff is authorized to request that all unexpended funds be returned within 30 days. Upon such a finding, the Agency Head of the funded agencies will be notified in writing as to the manner in which such funds must be returned. Any agency that is delinquent in submitting either form FDLE/OSI-004A or FDLE/OSI-004B by 90 or more days shall be subject to this provision.

Specific Authority 943.03(4), 943.042 FS. Law Implemented 943.031, 943.042 FS. History--New 10-25-01, Amended 12-3-03,_____.

11N-1.006 Contributions.

Local law enforcement agencies may contribute to the Violent Crime Investigative Emergency and Drug Control Strategy Implementation Account by submitting funds to the executive director of the Department of Law Enforcement. Contributions should be accompanied by a written statement designating the

funds to the Violent Crime Investigative Emergency and Drug Control Strategy Implementation Account. Agencies receiving forfeiture proceeds by reason of an investigative effort receiving ~~matching~~ Council funds may contribute a portion of those proceeds to the Department of Law Enforcement for use by the Council in further ~~matching~~ funding efforts.

Specific Authority 943.03(4), 943.042 FS. Law Implemented 943.031, 943.042 FS. History--New 3-10-94, Amended 10-10-95, 10-25-01,_____.

11N-1.009 Victim/Witness Protection Program.

(1) Requests for Victim Witness Protection funding, pursuant to Section 943.031(6), F.S., must be made using the Victim/Witness Protection Program Application, form FDLE/OSI-005, revised 10/8/02 and incorporated by reference.

(2) In order to be considered for funding, completed applications shall be submitted to ~~FDLE, OSI the Victim and Witness Protection Review Committee~~, at least 30 ~~15~~ days prior to the next scheduled Violent Crime and Drug Control Council (VCDCC) meeting.

Application information and dates of scheduled VCDCC meetings can be found at: <http://osiweb.fldle.flcfn.net/VCDCC/vwcases/vwapplication.htm>.

(3) Completed forms shall be mailed to: Chairperson, Florida Violent Crime & Drug Control Council, c/o Florida Department of Law Enforcement, Post Office Box 1489, Tallahassee, Florida 32302-1489, Attn: Violent Crime Agent/Office of Statewide Intelligence ~~Attn: SA Kris Cullen/Office of Statewide Intelligence~~.

Specific Authority 943.03(4) FS. Law Implemented 943.031(6), 914.25 FS. History--New 12-3-03, Amended_____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE: Ms. Joyce Gainous-Harris, Florida Department of Law Enforcement, Criminal Justice Professionalism Program, 2331 Phillips Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32308-1489, telephone number: (850)410-7096

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Special Agent Supervisor Jennifer Pritt, Florida Department of Law Enforcement, Office of Statewide Intelligence

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: December 19, 2005

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: September 16, 2005

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

RULE CHAPTER TITLE:	RULE CHAPTER NO.:
Incorporation by Reference	14-15
RULE TITLE:	RULE NO.:
Safety and Security Oversight Program	
Standards Manual for Fixed Guideway	
Transportation Systems	14-15.017

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: This new rule incorporates by reference a new manual, entitled, *Safety and Security Oversight Program Standards Manual for Fixed Guideway Transportation Systems*. Upon adoption of this new rule, Rule Chapter 14-55, F.A.C., Fixed Guideway Transportation Systems Safety Criteria, will be repealed in its entirety.

SUMMARY: The *Safety and Security Oversight Program Standards Manual for Fixed Guideway Transportation Systems*, February 2006, edition, is being incorporated by reference within this rule. Upon adoption as a rule, Rule Chapter 14-55, F.A.C., Fixed Guideway Transportation Systems Safety Criteria, will be repealed.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 341.061 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 341.041, 341.061 FS.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST: No Statement of Estimated Regulatory Cost has been prepared.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated regulatory costs, or to provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE SCHEDULED AND ANNOUNCED IN THE NEXT AVAILABLE FAW.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: James C. Myers, Clerk of Agency Proceedings, Florida Department of Transportation, Office of the General Counsel, 605 Suwannee Street, Mail Station 58, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0458

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

14-15.017 Safety and Security Oversight Program Standards Manual for Fixed Guideway Transportation Systems.

The Safety and Security Oversight Program Standards Manual for Fixed Guideway Transportation Systems, February 2006, edition, 725-030-014, is hereby incorporated by this rule and made a part of the rules of the Department of Transportation. Copies of this Department manual and any amendments thereto are available from the Department of Transportation, Public Transit Office, 605 Suwannee Street, Mail Station 26, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0450, or on line at www.dot.state.fl.us/transit.

Specific Authority 341.061 FS. Law Implemented 341.041, 341.061 FS. History—New

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE: Mike Johnson, Administrator, Transit Operations
 NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Denver J. Stutler, Jr., P.E., Secretary
 DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: December 16, 2005

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: July 1, 2005

BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE INTERNAL IMPROVEMENT TRUST FUND

Pursuant to Chapter 2003-145, Laws of Florida, all notices for the Board of Trustees of the Internal Improvement Trust Fund are published on the Internet at the Department of Environmental Protection's home page at <http://www.dep.state.fl.us/> under the link or button titled "Official Notices."

DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS

RULE TITLE: Law Libraries
 RULE NO.: 33-501.301

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose and effect of the proposed rule is to: revise population threshold requirements for law library collections; correct references to court forms; revise forms for clarity; and revise the procedure for addressing inmates' failure to return borrowed law library materials.

SUMMARY: The proposed rule: raises the threshold for minor collections from 400 to 500 inmates; eliminates starter collection law libraries; eliminates language allowing law libraries to suspend confinement services for failure to return materials and substitutes language providing for disciplinary action; revises reference to court forms provided by law library; and revises Form DC5-152, Law Library Interlibrary Loan Request, for clarity.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST: None.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated regulatory costs, or to provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 944.09, 944.11 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 20.315, 944.09, 944.11 FS.

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE SCHEDULED AND ANNOUNCED IN THE FAW.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Perri King Dale, Office of the General Counsel, Department of Corrections, 2601 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2500

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

33-501.301 Law Libraries.

- (1) No change.
- (2) Definitions.
 - (a) through (k) No change.

(l) Major collection: refers to a law library that includes the following legal publications: an annotated edition of the Florida Statutes; an annotated edition of the U.S. Constitution

and federal statutes governing habeas corpus and prisoner's rights; Florida and federal case reporters; Florida and federal Shepard's citation indexes; Florida and federal practice digests; forms manuals; and secondary source materials providing research guidance in the areas of federal habeas corpus, Florida post-conviction and post-sentence remedies, and prisoner's rights. Major collection law libraries also maintain current copies of departmental rules and regulations as provided in paragraph ~~(5)(4)~~(b).

(m) Minor collection: refers to a law library that includes the following legal publications: an annotated edition of the Florida Statutes; Florida case reporters; Shepards Florida Citations; Florida and federal practice digests; an annotated edition of the U.S. Constitution and federal statutes governing habeas corpus and prisoner's rights; forms manuals; and secondary source materials providing research guidance in the areas of federal habeas corpus, Florida post-conviction and post-sentence remedies, and prisoner's rights. Minor collection law libraries also maintain current copies of departmental rules and regulations as provided in paragraph ~~(5)(4)~~(b).

(n) through (s) No change.

~~(t) Starter collection: refers to a law library that includes the following legal publications: an annotated edition of the Florida Statutes; an annotated edition of the Title 42, United States Code, Section 1983; the Florida and federal rules of court; and a legal dictionary.~~

~~(u)~~(v) Working day: refers to any weekday, i.e., Monday to Friday, except when the day is an official state holiday.

(3) No change.

(4) Law Library Access for Inmates in Administrative Confinement, Disciplinary Confinement, Close Management, Protective Management, on Death Row, and in Medical or Mental Health Units.

(a) through (e) No change.

(f) Inmates shall be limited to possession of no more than 15 research items from the law library. Research items shall be loaned for a maximum of 21 days. Inmates who fail to return ~~If~~ research items ~~are not returned to the law library within 21 days, then the inmate's privilege to borrow research items from the law library shall be subject to disciplinary action as provided in Rules 33-601.301-.314, F.A.C suspended until the material is returned.~~ Institutions shall also limit the accumulation of research materials when possession of same in an inmate's cell creates a safety, sanitation or security hazard.

(5) Major; and minor ~~and starter~~ collection law libraries.

(a) Major or minor collection law libraries shall be established at all institutions and satellite correctional facilities housing more than ~~500~~ 400 inmates. ~~Starter collection law libraries shall be established at institutions and satellite correctional facilities housing less than 400 inmates and located 50 or more miles from the main unit of the institution or other institutions with major or minor law library~~

~~collections.~~ In determining whether a major collection shall be established at an institution, consideration shall be given to the following factors:

1. through 5. No change.

(b) No change.

(c) Major; and minor ~~and starter~~ collections shall be maintained in a current condition by annual subscription service. The library services administrator shall be responsible for ensuring that all legal collections are current and complete.

(d) through (e) No change.

(f) Requests for the addition or deletion of titles in major; and minor; ~~and starter~~ law library collections shall be submitted in writing to the library services administrator in the central office. The library services administrator shall review all requests and make a recommendation to the chief of the bureau of programs. Requests shall be reviewed according to the material's primary research value and whether it substantively provides additional information, or merely duplicates what is in the current collection. If the recommendation is approved, the materials shall be ordered and placed in the appropriate law library collections.

(g) No change.

(6) Interlibrary loan services for law libraries.

(a) Major collection law libraries shall provide research assistance to minor ~~and starter~~ collection libraries and to inmates housed at satellite correctional facilities without law libraries. On receipt of Form DC5-152, Law Library Interlibrary Loan Request, the law library supervisor shall immediately assign an inmate law clerk to provide legal assistance. Form DC5-152 is incorporated by reference in subsection (11) of this rule. All assistance that can be provided through use of that institution's major collection shall be completed within 3 working days of receipt, not including the day of receipt, except where the request requires the researching of complex or multiple legal issues or is so broad in scope that work can not be initiated without further information from the requesting inmate.

(b) No change.

~~(c) Inmates at facilities with starter collection law libraries, who need access to legal materials in major or minor collection law libraries, shall submit Form DC5 152, Law Library Interlibrary Loan Request, to the law library supervisor at the main unit of the institution. The law library supervisor shall review the request to determine whether it can be completed by that institution's law library.~~

1. If the law library has the information that the inmate has requested, the request shall be completed within three working days of receipt, not including the day of receipt, except when the request requires the researching of complex or multiple legal issues or is so broad in scope that work cannot be initiated without further information from the requesting inmate. The

law library supervisor shall provide a copy of Form DC5-152, Law Library Interlibrary Loan Request, and the requested material to the inmate.

2. If the law library does not have the information that the inmate has requested, then within 2 working days of receipt, not including the day of receipt, the law library supervisor shall forward the request to the law library supervisor at a major collection law library for completion.

- (d) through (g) renumbered (c) through (f) No change.
- (7) through (8) No change.
- (9) Grievance and Court Forms.
- (a) No change.

(b) Major and minor collection law libraries shall provide inmates access to court-approved forms needed to file ~~Rule 3.800 and~~ Rule 3.850, Florida Rules of Criminal Procedure, post-conviction relief petitions with the Florida courts. Inmates shall secure fFederal habeas corpus, affidavits of insolvency, and civil rights complaint forms from ~~shall only be supplied if~~ copies of the forms are provided to the law library by the federal courts. ~~In all instances, law libraries are obligated to provide only 1 copy of the form.~~ If additional copies are required for submission to the courts, the inmate shall secure them using the procedures established in Rule 33-501.302, F.A.C.

- (10) No change.
- (11) Forms. The following forms are hereby incorporated by reference. A copy of any of these forms is available from the Forms Control Administrator, Office of Research, Planning and Support Services, 2601 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2500.

(a) Form DC5-152, Law Library Interlibrary Loan Request, effective _____ ~~12-23-03~~.

(b) No change.

Specific Authority 944.09, 944.11 FS. Law Implemented 20.315, 944.09, 944.11 FS. History—New 4-6-93, Amended 7-3-94, 11-2-94, 4-28-96, 9-30-96, 12-7-97, Formerly 33-3.0055, Amended 2-15-01, 11-4-01, 12-23-03, _____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE:
 Allen Overstreet, Library Services Administrator
 NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED
 THE PROPOSED RULE: George Sapp, Assistant Secretary of
 Institutions
 DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY
 HEAD: October 14, 2005
 DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT
 PUBLISHED IN FAW: October 28, 2005

WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICTS

Northwest Florida Water Management District

RULE TITLES	RULE NOS.:
Definitions	40A-2.021
Permits Required	40A-2.041
Exemptions	40A-2.051
Reservation of Water	40A-2.223

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The proposed amendments are intended to reduce the permitting requirements for certain water users whose withdrawals pose minimal impact to the water resources, expedite the remediation of contaminated ground water, describe reservations and provide clarifying definitions.

SUMMARY: The proposed revisions will add definitions that address topics commonly discussed with the public during the permitting of water uses under Chapter 40A-2, F.A.C.; eliminate the requirement that an Individual Water Use Permit be obtained for non-community public water supply uses located in Permit Areas B and C and non-community public supply water uses in Permit Area A withdrawing an annual daily average of 15,000 gallons or less and certain uses associated with ground water remediation projects. Additionally, reservations are described for the Apalachicola and Chipola Rivers and Chipola Cutoff.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST: An estimate of regulatory cost was not prepared.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated regulatory costs or to provide a proposal for a lower regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 373.044, 373.113, 373.116, 373.118, 373.171, 373.216, 373.219 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 373.171, 373.216, 373.219, 373.223, 373.226 FS.

A HEARING WILL BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATE AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

TIME AND DATE: 1:30, p.m., ET., January 26, 2006
 PLACE: District Headquarters, Governing Board Room, U.S. Highway 90, Midway, Florida

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULES IS: Angela Chelette, Chief, Bureau of Ground Water Regulation. For a copy of the proposed rule contact, Terri Peterson, Northwest Florida Water Management District, 152 Water Management Drive, Havana, Florida 32333, (850)539-5999, (850)539-2777 (fax)

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULES IS:

- 40A-2.021 Definition.
- (1) through (10) No change.

(11) Conservation rate structure – a schedule of utility water rates designed to promote efficient use of water by providing economic incentives.

(11) through (15) renumbered (12) through (16) No change.

(17) Drought rate structure – an element of a utility rate structure intended to provide an economic incentive to reduce water use during times of drought.

(16) through (21) renumbered (18) through (23) No change.

(24) Governing Board – the governing board of a water management district created under Section 373.069, F.S.

(22) through (24) renumbered (25) through (27) No change.

(28) Informative billing – a system of providing water utility customers with useful information on the relationship between the amount of water they use and the cost associated with that use.

(25) through (41) renumbered (29) through (45) No change.

(46)(42) Reclaimed water – except as specifically provided in Chapter 62-610, F.A.C., water that has received at least secondary treatment and basic disinfection, and is reused after flowing out of a wastewater treatment facility.

(43) through (46) renumbered (47) through (50) No change.

(51) Seasonal rate structure – a utility water rate structure in which the amount charged per unit of water increases during the peak demand season.

(52)(47) Soil flooding use – the use of water for raising of water levels on agricultural lands for purposes not directly related to such purposes as crop growth, soil preservation, crop harvesting and pest control.

(53) Stormwater recycling – capturing stormwater for irrigation or other beneficial use.

(48) through (54) renumbered (54) through (60) No change.

(61)(55) Well casing size – the nominal diameter of the well casing (e.g., 4-inch well casing means casing 4.5-inches outside diameter as a standard dimension). For purposes of this rule, the diameter of the well at ground surface will be presumed to be the diameter of the well for the entire length unless the well owner or well contractor can demonstrate that the well has a smaller diameter water bearing casing below ground surface.

(56) through (58) renumbered (62) through (64) No change.

PROPOSED EFFECTIVE DATE: February 27, 2006.

Specific Authority 373.044, 373.113, 373.171 FS. Law Implemented 373.171, 373.216 FS. History–New 10-1-82; Amended 5-17-83, 3-1-84, 1-5-86, 8-1-89, 5-31-92, 11-2-92, 11-1-93, 10-1-95, 7-1-98, 1-1-05, 2-27-06.

40A-2.041 Permits Required.

(1) through (2) No change.

(3) Unless expressly exempted by law or District rule, a water use permit must be obtained from the District prior to any use or withdrawal of water according to the following criteria:

(a) through (b) No change.

(c) In Area B, as delineated on the map identified in Rule 40A-2.902, Florida Administrative Code, an Individual Water Use Permit is required for ground water use if:

1. through 3. No change.

4. The withdrawal is for community public supply or bottled water use.

(d) In Area C, as delineated on the map identified in Rule 40A-2.902, Florida Administrative Code, an Individual Water Use Permit is required for ground water use if:

1. through 2. No change.

3. The withdrawal is for community public supply or bottled water use.

(e) An Individual Water Use Permit is required for surface water use if:

1. through 2. No change.

3. The withdrawal is for community public supply or bottled water use.

(f) No change.

(4) through (5) No change.

PROPOSED EFFECTIVE DATE: February 27, 2006.

Specific Authority 373.044, 373.113, 373.116, 373.118, 373.171 FS. Law Implemented 373.171, 373.219, 373.226 FS. History–New 10-1-82; Amended 1-5-86, 5-4-87, 8-1-89, 5-31-92, 11-1-93, 10-1-95, 7-1-98, 1-1-05, 2-27-06.

40A-2.051 Exemptions.

(1) No change.

(2) An Individual Water Use Permit shall not be required for withdrawals of water from non-community public supply wells four (4) inches or smaller in diameter, withdrawing an annual daily average of 15,000 gallons or less in Permit Area A.

~~(3)(2)~~ No change.

~~(4)(3)~~ An Individual Water Use Permit shall not be required for aquifer or ground water quality remediation projects provided the following conditions are met: the project is conducted under the auspices of the Department or U.S. Environmental Protection Agency ~~amount of water withdrawn is an annual daily average of 100,000 gallons or less, the treated effluent water returned meets applicable Department of Environmental Protection water quality standards, the treated effluent is returned via subsurface infiltration or direct injection into the same formation and supply source from which it was obtained, the project is conducted under the supervision and auspices of the Department or U.S. Environmental Projection Agency and a preliminary well abandonment plan is submitted to the District.~~

(4) through (9) renumbered (5) through (10) No change.
PROPOSED EFFECTIVE DATE: February 27, 2006.

Specific Authority 373.044, 373.113, 373.171 FS. Law Implemented 373.171, 373.216, 373.219 FS. History—New 10-1-82, Amended 5-17-83, 3-1-84, 1-5-86, 8-1-89, 5-31-92, 11-2-92, 10-1-95, 7-1-98, 1-1-05, 2-27-06.

40A-2.223 Reservation of Water.

(1) At U.S. Geological Survey gauging station No. 02358000, Apalachicola River at Chattahoochee, the magnitude, duration and frequency of observed flows are reserved for the protection of fish and wildlife of the river, floodplain and Apalachicola Bay.

(2) At U.S. Geological Survey gauging station No. 02358700, Apalachicola River near Blountstown, the magnitude, duration and frequency of observed flows are reserved for the protection of fish and wildlife of the river, floodplain and Apalachicola Bay.

(3) At and below U.S. Geological Survey gauging station No. 02359170, Apalachicola River near Sumatra, the magnitude, duration and frequency of observed flows are reserved for the protection of fish and wildlife of the river, floodplain and Apalachicola Bay.

(4) At U.S. Geological Survey gauging station No. 02359000, Chipola River near Altha, the magnitude, duration and frequency of observed flows are reserved for the protection of fish and wildlife of the Chipola River, Apalachicola River, the associated floodplains and Apalachicola Bay.

(5) The Governing Board finds that consumptive withdrawals of surface water from the main stem of the Apalachicola River are not in the public interest and therefore reserves from use by permit the flows specified in paragraphs (1), (2), and (3). Such reservation is made for all seasons of the year.

(6) The Governing Board finds that consumptive withdrawals of surface water from the main stem of the Chipola River and the Chipola Cutoff are not in the public interest and therefore reserves from use by permit the flows specified in paragraph (4). Such reservation is made for all seasons of the year.

(7) For purposes of this Rule 40A-2.223, F.A.C., consumptive withdrawals shall mean withdrawals minus returns but shall not include evaporative losses. Diversions of surface water for cooling purposes, fish and wildlife propagation, fish and wildlife refuge, water based migratory bird hunting refuges and similar diversions are exempt from the provisions of this Rule 40A-2.223, F.A.C., provided that such diverted water, minus evapotranspiration, is returned to the Apalachicola River Basin.

(8) Nothing in this section shall exempt diversions as specified in paragraph (7) from obtaining consumptive use permits required elsewhere in this Chapter 40A-2, F.A.C.

(9) The Governing Board finds that surface water withdrawals by the City of Port St. Joe from the Chipola River is an alternative water supply as contemplated by sections 373.019, and 373.196 and are therefore exempt from the provisions of this Rule 40A-2.223, FAC. Nothing in this section shall exempt the City of Port St. Joe from the permitting requirements of this Chapter 40A-2, F.A.C.

(10) This section shall terminate on January 1, 2016 unless specifically extended by the Governing Board.
PROPOSED EFFECTIVE DATE: February 27, 2006.

Specific Authority 373.044, 373.113, 373.171, 373.216, 373.219 FS. Law Implemented 373.216, 373.219, 373.223, FS. History—New 2-27-06.

AGENCY FOR HEALTH CARE ADMINISTRATION

Division of Health Quality Assurance

RULE CHAPTER TITLE:	RULE NO.:
Disputed Reimbursement Rule	59A-31
RULE TITLES:	RULE NOS.:
Disputed Reimbursement Avoidance	59A-31.001
Disputed Reimbursement	59A-31.002

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: To repeal Rule 59A-31.001, F.A.C., Reimbursement Avoidance Process, for which the Agency has no grant of rule authority to implement and to amend Rule 59A-31.002, F.A.C., to reflect the Agency's current Utilization and Reimbursement Dispute process.

SUMMARY: The rule repeals the provision for a reconsideration period before a petition for the resolution of a reimbursement dispute can be submitted to the Agency for a determination of the appropriateness of a carrier's disallowance or adjustment of reimbursement.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST: None.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated regulatory costs, or to provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative, must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 440.13(7) FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 440.13(7) FS.

IF REQUESTED IN WRITING WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE A HEARING WILL BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATE AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW (IF NOT REQUESTED, THIS HEARING WILL NOT BE HELD):

TIME AND DATE: 9:00 a.m., January 20, 2006

PLACE: Room 104J, Hartman Bldg., 2012 Capital Circle, S.E., Tallahassee, Florida 32399

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULES IS: Beverly Williams, Medical Health Care Program Analyst, AHCA, Workers' Compensation Unit, 2727 Mahan Drive, Mail Station 27, Tallahassee, Florida 32301

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULES IS:

**UTILIZATION AND REIMBURSEMENT DISPUTE RULE
DISPUTED REIMBURSEMENT**

59A-31.001 Disputed Reimbursement Avoidance.

Specific Authority 440.13(7) FS. Law Implemented 440.13(2)(a)(1) FS. History—New 5-15-91, Formerly 38F-7.517, 4L-7.517, Repealed.

59A-31.002 Disputed Reimbursement.

~~In those instances when a provider does not agree with a carrier's reconsidered reimbursement decision, the Agency will, upon request provide for a settlement of such reimbursement dispute through a review process conducted by the Agency's Bureau of Managed Health Care.~~

(1) through (3)(b) No change.

Specific Authority 440.13(7) FS. Law Implemented 440.13(2)(a),(i) FS. History—New 5-15-91, Formerly 38F-7.517, 4L-7.517, Amended.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE: Beverly J. Williams, Medical Health Care Program Analyst
NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Thomas Warring, Chief, Bureau of Managed Health Care
DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: November 20, 2005
DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: September 30, 2005

**AGENCY FOR HEALTH CARE ADMINISTRATION
Medicaid**

RULE TITLE: Outpatient Hospital Services
PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose of the proposed rule amendment is to incorporate by reference update August 2005 to the Florida Medicaid Provider Reimbursement Handbook, UB-92. The update contains revisions to the instructions for completing a UB-92 claim form. The revisions are necessary in order to maintain compliance with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA). The effect will be to incorporate by reference in rule update August 2005 to the Florida Medicaid Provider Reimbursement Handbook, UB-92.
SUMMARY: The purpose of the proposed rule amendment is to incorporate by reference update August 2005 to the Florida Medicaid Provider Reimbursement Handbook, UB-92. The effect will be to incorporate by reference in rule update August 2005 to the Florida Medicaid Provider Reimbursement Handbook, UB-92.
SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST: No statement of estimated regulatory cost has been prepared.
Any person who wishes to provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

RULE NO.: 59G-4.160

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 409.919 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 409.905, 409.908, 409.9081 FS.

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATE AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW (IF NOT REQUESTED, THIS HEARING WILL NOT BE HELD.)

TIME AND DATE: 10:00 a.m., Monday, January 23, 2006

PLACE: Agency for Health Care Administration, 2727 Mahan Drive, Building 3, Conference Room B, Tallahassee, Florida 32308

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Melissa Vergeson, Bureau of Medicaid Services, 2727 Mahan Drive, Mail Stop 20, Tallahassee, FL 32308, (850)922-7724

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

59G-4.160 Outpatient Hospital Services.

(1) No change.

(2) All hospital providers enrolled in the Medicaid program must comply with the provisions of the Florida Medicaid Hospital Services Coverage and Limitations Handbook, March 2003, updated January 2005, and the Florida Medicaid Provider Reimbursement Handbook, UB-92, April 2004, updated August 2005, both incorporated by reference in this rule. Both handbooks are available from the Medicaid fiscal agent by calling Provider Enrollment at (800)377-8216 or from the fiscal agent's website at <http://floridamedicaid.acs-inc.com>. Click on Provider Support, and then on Handbooks contractor.

(3) The following forms that are included in the Florida Medicaid Provider Reimbursement Handbook, UB-92, are incorporated by reference: The UB-92 Claim Form, UB-92 HCFA 1450, one page double-sided; State of Florida, Florida Medicaid Authorization Request, PA01 04/2002, one page; Medically Needy Billing Authorization, DF-ES 2902, June 2003, one page; State of Florida, Sterilization Consent Form, SCF 7/94, one page; State of Florida, Hysterectomy Acknowledgment Form, HAF 07/1999, one-page; State of Florida, Exception to Hysterectomy Acknowledgment Requirement, ETA 07/2001, one page; State of Florida, Abortion Certification Form, August 2001, one page. All the forms are available from the Medicaid fiscal agent by calling Provider Inquiry at (800)289-7799 or from its website at <http://floridamedicaid.acs-inc.com>. Click on Provider Support, and then on Medicaid Forms.

Specific Authority 409.919 FS. Law Implemented 409.905, 409.908, 409.9081 FS. History—New 1-1-77, Revised 12-7-78, 1-18-82, Amended 7-1-83, 7-16-84, 7-1-85, 10-31-85, Formerly 10C-7.40, Amended 9-16-86, 2-28-89, 5-21-91, 5-13-92, 7-12-92, 1-5-93, 6-30-93, 7-20-93, 12-21-93, Formerly 10C-7.040, Amended 6-13-94, 12-27-94, 2-21-95, 9-11-95, 11-12-95, 2-20-96, 10-27-98, 5-12-99, 10-18-99, 3-22-01, 8-12-01, 2-25-03, 8-14-03, 11-28-04, 8-18-05, _____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE: Melissa Vergeson
NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Alan Levine, Secretary
DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: December 16, 2005
DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: September 30, 2005

DEPARTMENT OF MANAGEMENT SERVICES

Agency for Workforce Innovation

RULE TITLE: Filing Initial and Additional Claims; Reopening Previously Filed Claims
RULE NO.: 60BB-3.013

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: This rule implements the federal requirement that a claimant filing for unemployment compensation benefits must disclose any pending child support obligations in accordance with 42 USC 503(e)(2)(A)(i).

SUMMARY: This rule implements the federal requirement that a claimant filing for unemployment compensation benefits must disclose any pending child support obligations in accordance with 42 USC 503(e)(2)(A)(i).

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST: None.

Any person, who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated regulatory cost, or to provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative, must do so in writing within 21 working days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 120.53(1)(b), 120.54(6), 443.171(2)(a) FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 443.036(8), 443.091(1), 443.051 FS.

IF REQUESTED WITHIN TWENTY (21) DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE SCHEDULED AND ANNOUNCED IN THE FAW:

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: John Perry, Senior Attorney, 107 East Madison Street, MSC 110, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-4128, (850)245-7150

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

60BB-3.013 Filing Initial and Additional Claims; Reopening Previously Filed Claims.

(1) No change.

(2) No change.

(3) Disclosure of Support Obligations.

Each individual filing a new or additional claim for unemployment compensation must disclose at the time of filing whether he or she owes support obligations which are being enforced by the Florida Department of Revenue pursuant to 42 USC 502(e)(2)(A)(i) and 42 USC 654.

(3) through (4) renumbered (4) through (5) No change.

Specific Authority 120.53(1)(b), 120.54(6), 443.171(2)(a) FS. Law Implemented 443.036(8), 443.091(1), 443.051 FS. History--New 8-25-92, Formerly 38B-3.013, Amended _____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE: John Perry, Senior Attorney, 107 East Madison Street, MSC 110, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-4128, (850)245-7150

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Mindy K. Raymaker, Deputy General Counsel, 107 East Madison Street, MSC 110, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-4128, (850)245-7150

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: December 13, 2005

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: August 26, 2005

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Pursuant to Chapter 2003-145, Laws of Florida, all notices for the Department of Environmental Protection are published on the Internet at the Department of Environmental Protection's home page at <http://www.dep.state.fl.us/> under the link or button titled "Official Notices."

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

Board of Nursing Home Administrators

RULE TITLE: Citations
RULE NO.: 64B10-14.006

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The Board finds it necessary to update the violations which may be disposed of by fines.

SUMMARY: The Board finds it necessary to add a violation that may be resolved by the issuance of a citation. The violation to be added is failure to timely pay the special assessment imposed by Rule 64B10-12.018, F.A.C.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST: No Statement of Estimated Regulatory Cost was prepared.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated costs, or to provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 456.073, 456.077 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 456.077 FS.

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A NOTICE OF HEARING DATE WILL BE SCHEDULED AND ANNOUNCED IN THE NEXT AVAILABLE FAW.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Joe Baker, Executive Director, Board of Nursing Home Administrators/MQA, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C07, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3257

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

64B10-14.006 Citations.

(1) As used in this rule, "citation" means an instrument which meets the requirements set forth in Section 456.077, F.S., and which is served upon a licensee or certificateholder for the purpose of assessing a penalty in an amount established by this rule.

(2) In lieu of the disciplinary procedures contained in Section 456.073, F.S., the Department is hereby authorized to dispose of any violation designated herein by issuing a citation to the subject within six months after the filing of the complaint that is the basis for the citation. If a violation for which a citation may be issued is discovered during the course of an investigation for an unrelated violation, the citation must be issued within 6 months from the discovery of the violation and filing of the uniform complaint form by the investigator.

(3) The following violations with accompanying fines may be disposed of by citation:

(a) Practice on an inactive license or certificate for less than six months. The fine shall be \$50 for each month of practice.

(b) Falsely certifying compliance with continuing education hours required for renewal of licensure or certification. If the individual has no documentation, the fine shall be \$500. If the individual has some documentation, the penalty is \$25 per missing hour, to a maximum of \$500. For failing to provide documentation of the HIV/AIDS course, the fine shall be \$100.00. All missing CEUs shall be made up within six months of the date the citation becomes a Final Order.

(c) Failure to comply with Rule 64B10-11.012, F.A.C. (change of address). The fine shall be \$100.00.

(d) Paperwork deficiencies that have been corrected and have no patient harm (violation of Section 468.1755(1)(m), F.S.). The fine shall be \$250.00.

(e) First time failure to comply with Rule 64B10-15.001, F.A.C. The fine shall be \$500.00. For each hour of continuing education not completed or completed late, the licensee shall be required to complete one (1) additional hour of continuing education within six (6) months of the issuance of the citation.

(f) Failing to report to the Board within 30 days after the licensee has been convicted or found guilty of, or entered a plea of nolo contendere to, regardless of adjudication, a crime in any jurisdiction. The fine shall be \$500.

(g) Failure to comply with Rule 64B10-12.018, F.A.C. (Special Assessment). The fine shall be \$500.00.

(4) Prior to issuance of the citation, the investigator must confirm that the violation has been corrected or is in the process of being corrected. If the violation is a substantial threat to the public health, safety and welfare, such potential for harm must be removed prior to issuance of the citation.

(5) The procedures described herein apply only for an initial offense of the alleged violation. Subsequent violation(s) of the same rule or statute shall require the procedure of Section 456.073, F.S., to be followed. In addition, should an initial offense for which a citation could be issued occur in conjunction with violations not described herein, then the procedures of Section 456.073, F.S., shall apply.

Specific Authority 456.073, 456.077 FS. Law Implemented 456.077 FS. History—New 3-1-92, Formerly 21Z-14.006, 61G12-14.006, Amended 7-21-97, Formerly 59T-14.006, Amended 5-15-00, 8-23-00.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE:
Board of Nursing Home Administrators

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Board of Nursing Home Administrators

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: December 19, 2005

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: November 23, 2005

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

Board of Physical Therapy Practice

RULE TITLE: Licensure by Endorsement
RULE NO.: 64B17-3.003

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The proposed rule amendment is intended to set forth criteria for approval of licensure by endorsement with conditions upon said licensure when the applicant has been out of practice for a period of time.

SUMMARY: The proposed rule amendment sets forth criteria for approval of licensure by endorsement with conditions upon said licensure when the applicant has been out of practice for a period of time.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST: No Statement of Estimated Regulatory Cost was prepared.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated costs, or to provide a proposal for a lower regulatory cost alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 486.025, 486.081 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 486.081 FS.

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE SCHEDULED AND ANNOUNCED IN THE NEXT AVAILABLE FAW.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Susan Love, Executive Director, Board of Physical Therapy Practice/MQA, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin # C05, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3255

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

64B17-3.003 Licensure by Endorsement.

(1) An applicant demonstrating that he or she meets the requirements of Rule 64B17-3.001, F.A.C., may be license to practice physical therapy by endorsement by presenting evidence satisfactory to the Board that the applicant has active licensure in another jurisdiction and has passed an examination before a similar, lawful, authorized examining board in physical therapy in such other jurisdiction if their standards for licensure are as high as those maintained in Florida. The standard for determining whether the standards of another jurisdiction are as high as the standards in Florida shall be whether the written examination taken for licensure in such other jurisdiction by applicant meeting Florida's minimum education qualifications was through the national physical therapy examination provider certified by the Department. An applicant who has failed to pass the national physical therapy examination by or on the fifth attempt, regardless of the jurisdiction through which the examination was taken, is precluded from licensure.

(2) The Board of Physical Therapy may approve licensure of the applicant with any restrictions that the Board deems appropriate, including, but not limited to the requirement to practice under direct supervision, to ensure the safe practice of the licensee and to safeguard the health, safety and welfare of the citizens of Florida. An applicant for licensure by endorsement, who has been out of the practice of physical therapy or practicing physical therapy in a setting that does not involve direct patient care, for a period greater than two (2) years shall be required to practice under direct supervision:

(a) Up to 3 months, if the time out of practice or practicing without direct patient care is greater than 3 years but less than 5 years;

(b) Up to 6 months if the time out of practice or practicing without direct patient care is 5 years or greater but less than 10 years;

(c) Up to 1 year if the time out of practice or practicing without direct patient care is 10 years or greater.

Specific Authority 486.025, 486.081 FS. Law Implemented 486.081 FS. History—New 8-6-84, Formerly 21M-7.26, Amended 5-18-86, Formerly 21M-7.026, 21MM-3.004, 61F11-3.004, 59Y-3.004, Amended 4-21-02, 11-11-02, 11-1-04, 12-5-04,_____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE:
Board of Physical Therapy Practice

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Board of Physical Therapy Practice

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: November 30, 2005

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: October 21, 2005

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

Board of Physical Therapy Practice

RULE TITLE: Licensure by Endorsement

RULE NO.: 64B17-4.003

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The proposed rule amendment is intended to set forth criteria for approval of licensure by endorsement with conditions upon said licensure when the applicant has been out of practice for a period of time.

SUMMARY: The proposed rule amendment sets forth criteria for approval of licensure by endorsement with conditions upon said licensure when the applicant has been out of practice for a period of time.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST: No Statement of Estimated Regulatory Cost was prepared.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated costs, or to provide a proposal for a lower regulatory cost alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 486.025, 486.107(1) FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 486.107(1) FS.

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE SCHEDULED AND ANNOUNCED IN THE FAW.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Susan Love, Executive Director, Board of Physical Therapy Practice/MQA, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin # C05, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3255

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

64B17-4.003 Licensure by Endorsement.

(1) An applicant demonstrating that he or she is licensed in another state may be licensed to practice as a physical therapist assistant by endorsement by presenting evidence of active licensure in another jurisdiction, under oath, and evidence satisfactory to the Board that the applicant from such other jurisdiction has been licensed under standards for licensure as high as those maintained in Florida. The standard for determining whether those requirements are as high as those in Florida shall be whether the applicant was required to meet education standards equivalent to those set forth in subsection 64B17-4.001(3), F.A.C., and whether the written examination taken for licensure in such other jurisdiction was through the designated national physical therapist assistants examination provider certified by the Department. An applicant who has failed to pass the national physical therapy examination by or on the fifth attempt, regardless of the jurisdiction through which the examination was taken, is precluded from licensure.

(2) The Board of Physical Therapy may approve licensure of the applicant with any restrictions that the Board deems appropriate, including, but not limited to the requirement to practice under direct supervision, to ensure the safe practice of

the licensee and to safeguard the health, safety and welfare of the citizens of Florida. An applicant for licensure by endorsement, who has not practiced as a physical therapist assistant or practiced as a physical therapy assistant in a setting that does not involve direct patient care, for a period greater than two (2) years shall be required to practice under direct supervision:

(a) Up to 3 months, if the time out of practice or practicing without direct patient care is greater than 3 years but less than 5 years;

(b) Up to 6 months if the time out of practice or practicing without direct patient care is 5 years or greater but less than 10 years;

(c) Up to 1 year if the time out of practice or practicing without direct patient care is 10 years or greater.

Specific Authority 486.025, 486.107(1) FS. Law Implemented 486.107(1) FS. History—New 8-6-84, Formerly 21M-10.26, Amended 5-18-86, Formerly 21M-10.026, 21MM-4.004, 61F11-4.004, 59Y-4.004, Amended 7-11-02, 11-11-02, 12-5-04,_____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE:
Board of Physical Therapy Practice

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Board of Physical Therapy Practice
DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: November 30, 2005

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: October 21, 2005

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

Division of Emergency Medical Operations

RULE TITLES: Trauma Registry
Funding for Verified Trauma Centers

RULE NOS.: 64E-2.018
64E-2.040

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The rule is being amended to provide a precise method for determining funding allocations for distribution to Florida’s trauma centers in accordance with the legislative directives included in House Bill 497 and House Bill 1697 passed during the 2005 Legislative Session and to revise the Trauma Registry Manual, December, 2004.

SUMMARY: The rule implements trauma center funding allocation formulas, defines local funding contribution and weighted ISS volume, and revises the Trauma Registry Manual, December, 2004.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST: None Prepared.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated regulatory costs, or to provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 318.14(5), 318.18(14), 318.21(13), 395.4036, 395.404 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 395.4036 FS.

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATE AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW (IF NOT REQUESTED, THIS HEARING WILL NOT BE HELD):

TIME AND DATE: 10:00 a.m., Monday, January 23, 2006

PLACE: Marriott Tampa Airport, Tampa International Airport, Tampa, Florida

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULES IS: Susan McDevitt, Office of Trauma, Department of Health, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C18, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1738, (850)245-4440, ext. 2760; email susan_mcdevitt@doh.state.fl.us; Fax (850)488-2512

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULES IS:

64E-2.018 Trauma Registry.

Instructions for completing and submitting data are defined in the Florida Trauma Registry Manual, December 2005 ~~December 2004~~, which is incorporated by reference and available from the department.

Specific Authority 395.405, 401.35 F.S. Law Implemented 395.3025(4)(f), 395.401, 395.4015, 395.402, 395.4025, 395.404, 395.4045, 395.405, 401.30, 401.35 F.S. History—New 8-3-88, Amended 12-10-92, 11-30-93, Formerly 10D-66.103, Amended 7-14-99, 11-19-01, 6-3-02, 6-9-05,_____.

64E-2.040 Funding for Verified Trauma Centers.

(1) For Purposes of Section 318.14, F.S., Section 395.4036, F.S. and this rule, in addition to those terms defined in the Florida Trauma Registry Manual, December 2005, (see Rule 64E-2.018, F.A.C.) and elsewhere in these rules, the following definitions also apply:

(a) “Attestation” – means a letter on hospital letterhead, signed under oath consistent with Section 92.50, F.S., by the person with direct or delegated authority to make such a statement, stating that the proceeds received by the hospital under Section 395.4036, F.S., were used in compliance with law.

(b) “Certified Trauma Center”, “Verified Trauma Center” and “Trauma Center” – all means a Level I, Level II or Pediatric Trauma Center.

(c) “Caseload Volume”, “Trauma Caseload Volume”, and “Volume of Trauma Cases” – all mean the number of patients served by a trauma center during a calendar year, after 2004, on whom data timely supplied by the trauma center to the trauma registry satisfies the Florida Trauma Registry Manual, December 2005, reporting requirements for determining trauma caseload volume (see page 5 of the manual). Solely for calendar year 2004, this definition shall be the number of patients served by a trauma center during 2004 on whom data was supplied timely by the trauma center consistent with the Florida Trauma Registry Manual, December 2004.

(d) “Local Funding Contribution” – means local municipal, county or tax district funding dedicated to and received by the trauma center.

(e) “Weighted ISS Volume” – means (The number of patients in the caseload volume for the previous calendar year with an ISS score of 14 and below) + (3 x the number of patients in the caseload volume for the previous calendar year with an ISS score of 15 and above).

(2) Funds collected under Section 318.14(5), F.S., and Section 318.18(14), F.S., and deposited into the department’s administrative trust fund shall be distributed during the subsequent first quarter and during the subsequent third quarter as follows:

(a) First quarter distribution shall be calculated, consistent with (d) and (e) below, using timely submitted caseload volume data from the year preceding the previous calendar year.

(b) Third quarter distribution shall be calculated, consistent with (d) and (e) below, using timely submitted caseload volume data for the previous calendar year.

(c) All distribution shall be consistent with (2) or upon resolution of all relevant administrative and judicial challenges, whichever is later.

(d) Funds collected under Section 318.14(5), F.S. and deposited into the department’s administrative trust fund shall be distributed to the trauma center as follows: [($.5 \times \text{funds}$)/Current total number of trauma centers] + [($.5 \times \text{funds}$) x (Caseload volume for the trauma center for the previous calendar year/The sum of caseload volume for all trauma centers during the previous calendar year)].

(e) Funds collected under Section 318.18(14), F.S. and deposited into the department’s administrative trust fund under Section 395.4095(1), F.S., shall be distributed as follows:

1. To each trauma center in a region receiving a local funding contribution as of December 31 of the previous year: ($.2 \times \text{funds}$) x (Caseload volume for the trauma center for the previous calendar year/The sum of caseload volume for all trauma centers receiving funding under (2)(e)1. of this rule).

2. To each trauma center: [($.4 \times \text{funds}$) x (Caseload volume of the trauma center during the previous calendar year/The sum of caseload volume for all trauma centers during the previous calendar year)].

3. To each trauma center: [($.4 \times \text{funds}$) x (The trauma center’s weighted ISS volume/The sum of all trauma centers’ weighted ISS volume)].

Specific Authority 318.14(5), 318.18(14), 318.21(13), 395.4036, 395.404 FS. Law Implemented 395.4036 FS. History—New _____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE:
Susan McDevitt, Executive Community Health Nursing Director

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Jennifer Bencie Fairburn, M.D., M.S.A., Director, Division of Emergency Medical Operations

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: December 15, 2005
DATE NOTICES OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: July 15, 2005 and October 14, 2005
P.O. B00829

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

Office of Public Health Research

RULE TITLE: Institutional Review Board
RULE NO.: 64H-2.001

PURPOSE, EFFECT AND SUMMARY: The purpose of this rule is to adopt federal regulations concerning human research protections. The effect is that the Institutional Review Board will conduct business according to federal regulations pursuant to Section 381.86, F.S. The federal regulations set forth requirements for conducting research involving human subjects.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 381.86 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 381.86 (1) FS.

THIS RULEMAKING IS UNDERTAKEN PURSUANT TO SECTION 120.54(6), F.S.

WRITTEN COMMENTS MAY BE SUBMITTED WITHIN 14 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE TO: Sylvia McDaniel, Office of Public Health Research, Department of Health, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Mail Bin A24, Tallahassee, FL 32399

SUBSTANTIALLY AFFECTED PERSONS MAY WITHIN 14 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, FILE AN OBJECTION TO THIS RULEMAKING WITH THE AGENCY. THE OBJECTION SHALL SPECIFY THE PORTIONS OF THE PROPOSED RULE TO WHICH THE PERSON OBJECTS AND THE SPECIFIC REASONS FOR THE OBJECTION.

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

64H-2.001 Institutional Review Board.

The Institutional Review Board adopts the federal regulations for human research protections as set forth in 45 C.F.R. part 46 and 21 C.F.R. parts 50 and 56.

This rule shall become effective January 24, 2006.

Specific Authority 381.86 FS. Law Implemented 381.86(1) FS. History—New 1-24-06.

DEPARTMENT OF CHILDREN AND FAMILY SERVICES

Economic Self-Sufficiency

RULE TITLES: RULE NOS.:
Food Stamp Program Definitions 65A-1.601
Food Stamp Program Case Processing 65A-1.602
Food Stamp Issuance 65A-1.604

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: Economic Self-Sufficiency Rules were reviewed to determine those that needed amendment to remove obsolete and overlapping language; align with state/federal laws and regulations; and, combine rules that address the same subject. Administrative Rules 65A-1.601, 65A-1.602, and 65A-1.604, F.A.C., contain obsolete and overlapping Food Stamp Program (FSP) language. The proposed rule amendments provide for the repeal of Administrative Rules 65A-1.601 and 65A-1.604, F.A.C., and pertinent provisions moved to Rule 65A-1.602, F.A.C. Rule 65A-1.602, F.A.C., will be amended to provide clarification of FSP case processing and definitions; Electronic Benefit Transfer (EBT) issuance requirements; Simplified Reporting (SR) option requirements; and, Child Support Enforcement (CSE) option requirements.

SUMMARY: The proposed rule amendments remove obsolete FSP definitions and overlapping language and provide for the addition of food stamp SR and CSE cooperation requirements. Administrative Rules 65A-1.601 and 65A-1.604, F.A.C., will be repealed and the EBT requirements and relevant food stamp definitions moved to Administrative Rule 65A-1.602, F.A.C. Rule 65A-1.602, F.A.C., will be amended to clarify FSP case processing and definitions and provide EBT Requirements. It also provides for the adoption of the SR option requiring assigned assistance groups (AG) to semi-annually report changes in income unless their gross income exceeds 130 percent of the federal poverty level for their size AG and establishes CSE requirements as a condition of eligibility for food stamps. It also incorporates forms by reference to notify individuals of the CSE requirements.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST: None.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated regulatory costs, or to provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 414.45 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 409.942, 414.31, 414.32 FS.

IF REQUESTED IN WRITING WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATE AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW (IF NOT REQUESTED, THIS HEARING WILL NOT BE HELD):

TIME AND DATE: 10:30 a.m., January 20, 2006

PLACE: 1317 Winewood Boulevard, Building 3, Room 439, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0700

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULES IS: Jennifer Lange, Chief, Program Policy, Economic Self-Sufficiency, 1317 Winewood Boulevard, Building 3, Room 450, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0700, Telephone (850)921-0253

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULES IS:

65A-1.601 Food Stamp Program Definitions.

Specific Authority 414.45 FS. Law Implemented 414.31 FS. History--New 1-31-94, Formerly 10C-1.601, Amended 11-30-98, Repealed _____.

65A-1.602 Food Stamp Program Case Processing.

(1) Food Stamp Program case processing is done in accordance with the eligibility determination process in Administrative Rule 65A-1.205, and 7 CFR 273.2. Application Processing Delays Caused by the Department. If during the 30 day period which begins the date of application an applicant's eligibility for food stamps is not determined due to delays caused by the department, the application will continue to be processed until an eligibility determination is made. The applicant will not be required to submit a new application in making this determination.

(2) Food Stamp Program Verification-

(a) ~~When an AG provides incomplete verification or indicates they will have difficulty in obtaining required verification the case manager will offer assistance. If the third party refuses to provide the requested verification, the case manager will accept the information provided by the AG after resolving any discrepancies.~~

(b) ~~AGs are required to provide verification of reported changes which result in an increase in benefits prior to the department taking action on the changes.~~

(3) ~~Certification Periods for AGs entitled to Expedited Service. When an AG is certified on an expedited service basis and has postponed verification, the AG will be assigned either a certification period which is limited by the postponed verification, i.e., either one or two months in length, or the certification period warranted by the AG circumstances.~~

(2) Responsible Member is defined as any member of the Standard Filing Unit (SFU) capable of representing the Assistance Group (AG) by providing sufficient and accurate information concerning the AG circumstances.

(3) Authorized Representative is defined as an adult non-household member authorized to represent the household during an interview. The authorized representative must be appointed in writing by the head of the AG, the spouse or responsible household member.

(4) 24-Month Reporting Requirements: Apply to AGs in which all members of the SFU meet all of the following criteria:

(a) Are elderly or disabled;

(b) Do not have any earned income; and

(c) Have stable circumstances.

(5) Able Bodied Adults Without Dependents (ABAWD). ABAWDs are required to report whenever their hours of employment are less than 20 hours per week. They may have their certification period shortened in order to comply with the time limit provisions assigned to them.

(6) Simplified Reporting (SR): Simplified Reporting applies to all AGs except those that meet the criteria in paragraph (4) or (5). AGs assigned to the SR category will have a six-month certification period. AGs assigned to SR are only required to report a change in income and circumstances during the certification period when an income change causes their gross income to exceed 130 percent of the Federal Poverty Level for their AG size. Gross income means the amount of all earned and unearned income before any deductions, such as taxes, are applied. The change in income must be reported within the first ten days of the month, following the month of change. Voluntarily reported changes will be processed as a required change when received and verification is provided according to regular food stamp processing procedures. The food stamp reporting requirements do not change the reporting requirements for other programs such as Medicaid and Temporary Cash Assistance.

(7) Child Support Enforcement (CSE) Cooperation. Child Support Enforcement cooperation by a custodial parent or caretaker relative is required as a condition of eligibility for food stamps in accordance with Section 414.32, F.S. and 7 CFR 273.11(o), unless good cause for non-cooperation exists.

(a) Information on good cause criteria will be provided when application for benefits is being made using CF-ES Form 2641, Claim Notice Good Cause for Refusal to Cooperate, May 05, incorporated by reference.

(b) Right to Claim Good Cause. The right to claim good cause exists when cooperation in establishing paternity or in establishing, modifying, or enforcing a child support order may not be in the best interest of the child, or the parent, or the caretaker relative and the child pursuant to 7 CFR 273.11(o)(1)(i), (iii), or (iv) and (2), or if cooperation is expected to result in at least one of the following:

1. Physical harm to the child – examples are broken bones, bruises, burns, lacerations, etc.,

2. Emotional harm to the child – examples are poor school performance, sleep disturbances, self-destructive behavior, eating disorders, etc.,

3. Physical harm to the custodial parent or caretaker relative which reduces their capacity to care for the child adequately (such as broken bones, bruises, burns, lacerations, or life threatening injury),

4. Emotional harm to the custodial parent or caretaker relative to such a degree that their capacity to adequately care for the child is diminished (such as psychological disorder or dysfunction which has a serious negative impact on their ability as a caretaker),

5. The child was conceived as a result of incest or rape,

6. Legal proceedings for the adoption of the child are pending before a court, or

7. The custodial parent or caretaker relative is being assisted by a public or licensed private social agency to determine whether or not to relinquish the child for adoption (this circumstance is valid for three months).

(c) Upon determination by the department that the custodial parent or caretaker relative's failure to cooperate was without good cause, the application will be denied or a food stamp penalty imposed for the non-cooperative individual only and a notice of adverse action will be mailed to the individual. The non-cooperative individual's income will be prorated and their assets will be counted in full in determining eligibility for the remaining AG members. The remaining AG members meeting eligibility requirements may be approved. The non-cooperative individual will be excluded until verification of CSE cooperation is received by the department.

(d) Upon verification that the individual is cooperating with CSE and all other eligibility requirements have been met, action will be taken to add the individual to the AG or to remove the sanction and reinstate food stamp benefits.

(8) Food stamps are issued through the Electronic Benefit Transfer (EBT) system.

(9) Benefit Availability.

(a) Food stamp availability dates are staggered over the first 15 days of each month. Benefit availability to AGs is based on the terminal digits of the AG's case number. AGs are able to receive their monthly allotment on their assigned availability date or any subsequent day in that month. Food stamp benefits placed in the EBT account may be accessed for 365 days after the date of their initial availability in the account.

(b) The EBT system supports mass overrides of benefit availability dates in instances of disasters or other emergencies. This permits individuals in areas where hurricanes or other disasters are threatening to be able to access their benefits earlier to prepare for such events.

Specific Authority 414.45 FS. Law Implemented 409.942, 414.31, 414.32 FS. History–New 1-31-94, Formerly 10C-1.602, Amended 7-29-01, _____.

65A-1.604 Food Stamp Issuance.

Specific Authority 414.45 FS. Law Implemented 409.942, 414.31 FS. History–New 1-31-94, Formerly 10C-1.604, Amended 3-18-03, Repealed _____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE:
Lonna Cichon, Government Operations Consultant II

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED
THE PROPOSED RULE: Jennifer Lange

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY
HEAD: December 6, 2005

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT
PUBLISHED IN FAW: May 20, 2005

BE ADVISED THAT THESE PROPOSED RULES MAY BE FILED FOR ADOPTION AS SOON AS POSSIBLE FOLLOWING THE COMMISSION MEETING AT WHICH THEY ARE CONSIDERED IF THE RULES ARE NOT CHANGED. IF CHANGED, THE RULES MAY BE FILED AS SOON AS POSSIBLE AFTER PUBLICATION OF A NOTICE OF CHANGE IN THE FAW.

FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION

Freshwater Fish and Wildlife

RULE CHAPTER TITLE: Licenses and Permits: Issuance and Revocation

RULE CHAPTER NO.: 68A-5

RULE TITLE: Quota Hunt Permits and Special-Opportunity Permits – Application; Selection; Issuance

RULE NO.: 68A-5.005

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose of this rule amendment is to merge the quota hunt program into the Total Licensing System (TLS) to provide a modern, streamlined application process. This will require modifying out dated regulations for the old paper application process. The proposed modifications to this rule will eliminate the constant need to change the rule as the TLS quota program evolves. General eligibility, restrictions, and limits remain in the rule. The proposal would also allow the preference drawing to be expanded to other quota hunt programs.

SUMMARY: The basic rules of operation remain unchanged. References to application forms, the mailing of forms, etc., were removed. Application periods and deadlines will now be specified in the application instructions and were removed from rule. Quota Hunt Permits and Special-Opportunity Permits were separated into their own sections. Each specific quota hunt program is identified. The regular and special quota programs were renamed. The management area permit requirement was extended to all quota hunt programs. Exempt hunters will remain exempt from the management area permit requirement. The preference drawing was limited to three quota programs, changes will allow it to be expanded to other programs.

A STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST HAS NOT BEEN PREPARED REGARDING THESE PROPOSED RULES.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated regulatory costs, or to provide a proposal for lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: Article IV, Section 9, Florida Const.
LAW IMPLEMENTED: Article IV, Section 9, Florida Const.; 372.57(4)(f) FS.

THE FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION WILL CONDUCT A PUBLIC RULEMAKING HEARING ON THE PROPOSED RULES

DURING THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE COMMISSION TO BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATES AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

TIME AND DATES: 8:30 a.m. – 5:00 p.m., each day, February 1-2, 2006

PLACE: Hilton University of Florida Conference Center, 1714 S.W. 34th St., Gainesville, Florida 32607

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 calendar days before the workshop/meeting by contacting the ADA Coordinator, at (850)488-6411. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency by calling (850)488-9542.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: James V. Antista, General Counsel, Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission, 620 South Meridian Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1600

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

(Substantial rewording of Rule 68A-5.005 follows. See Florida Administrative Code for present text.)

68A-5.005 Quota Hunt Permits and Special-Opportunity Permits – Application; Selection; Issuance.

(1) The application for, selection of, and issuance of Quota Hunt Permits and Special-Opportunity Permits as designated by Rule 68A-15.005, F.A.C., and in the number specified in Rule 68A-15.005, F.A.C., shall be as provided in this rule, unless other procedures are set forth in the application instructions for a particular hunt.

(2) Quota Hunt Permits.

(a) Types of Quota Hunt Permits:

1. Gun
2. Archery/Muzzleloading
3. Quail
4. Youth
5. Family
6. Spring Turkey
7. Track
8. Airboat
9. Mobility-impaired
10. Hog

(b) Applicant Requirements:

1. All applicants, unless exempt, must have a valid Management Area Permit, or other license or permit that includes a Management Area Permit.

2. Track and Airboat Quota Hunt applicants must provide proof of a current track vehicle registration or airboat vessel registration.

3. Youth Quota Permit applicants must be at least eight years old by the first day of the earliest hunt date and less than 16 years old by the last day of the latest hunt that they apply for.

4. Mobility-impaired Quota Hunt applicants must be certified mobility-impaired as established by Rule 68A-9.008, F.A.C.

(c) Phase I – Application; Selection; Issuance:

1. Quota Hunt Permits for each hunt type shall be selected by random drawing from the applications submitted during the Phase I application period. The Phase I application period will be specified in the application instructions.

2. A preference drawing may be held for each Quota Hunt type if specified in the application instructions.

a. Preference eligibility – All applicants included in either the preference drawing or second drawing, and not issued a Quota Hunt Permit, shall be eligible for the preference drawing the following year for that specific Quota Hunt type. All applicants applying as a group must be eligible for the preference drawing in order for the group to be included in the preference drawing.

b. When a preference drawing is specified, a second random drawing will be held for all applicants who applied during the Phase I application period and were not eligible for the preference drawing.

3. Only one application may be submitted per applicant for each type of Quota Hunt during Phase I, except that airboat and track applicants may submit an application for each track or airboat owned by the applicant. Only one Quota Hunt Permit may be issued per applicant during Phase I for each type of Quota Hunt. An applicant that receives a Track Quota Hunt Permit is not eligible to receive an Airboat Quota Hunt Permit during Phase I.

(d) Phase II – Application; Selection; Issuance:

1. Quota Hunt Permits remaining un-issued after the Phase I random drawings will be issued on a first-come, first-served basis during Phase II. The Phase II period will be specified in the application instructions.

2. Applicants that received a Quota Hunt Permit in Phase I can not apply for that same type of Quota Hunt Permit in Phase II.

3. Only one application may be submitted and only one Quota Hunt Permit may be issued for each type of Quota Hunt during Phase II.

4. An applicant that received a Track Quota Hunt Permit in Phase I or II is not eligible to receive an Airboat Quota Hunt Permit during Phase II.

(e) Phase III – Application; Selection; Issuance:

1. Quota Hunt Permits remaining un-issued after Phase II will be issued on a first-come, first-served basis during Phase III. The Phase III period will be specified in the application instructions.

2. Persons issued a Quota Hunt Permit during Phase I or Phase II may apply for additional permits for the same Quota Hunt type during Phase III.

3. No applicant for Mobility Impaired Quota Hunt Permits shall be eligible to receive more than one Quota Hunt Permit for the same hunt, including permits that were issued during Phase I and II.

4. All other applicants shall not be eligible to receive more than five Quota Hunt Permits for the same hunt, including permits that were issued during Phase I and II.

(3) Special-Opportunity Hunts.

(a) Special-Opportunity Hunt Permits shall be issued by a random drawing from applications and non-refundable application fees submitted during the application period. The application period will be specified in the application form instructions.

(b) Special-Opportunity Permit fees for applicants chosen in the random drawing must be paid by the deadline. Selected applicants who fail to pay the fees by the deadline forfeit their permit to the next applicant selected for that specific hunt.

(c) Applicants may submit more than one application for each Special-Opportunity Hunt.

(d) Permits will be limited to one Special-Opportunity Permit per person, per hunt.

(e) No more than ten percent of the Special-Opportunity Permits for each specific hunt shall be issued to non-residents provided that at least one permit may be available to non-residents in the event that the ten percent calculation results in a number less than one.

(4) Duplicate Quota and Special-Opportunity Permits – A replacement permit may be issued to the original permittee following loss, destruction or non-receipt of mail upon submission of a written statement to the Office of Licensing and Permitting, attesting to the non-delivery or setting forth circumstances leading to the loss or destruction of the original permit. No person shall be eligible for more than one replacement permit per season. The original permit shall be invalid upon the issuance of a duplicate permit. The use or possession of an original permit that has been invalidated by the issuance of a duplicate permit is prohibited.

Specific Authority Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const. Law Implemented Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const., 372.57(4)(f) FS. History–New 7-1-85, Formerly 39-5.05, Amended 6-1-86, 5-10-87, 4-13-88, 7-1-89, 4-11-90, 4-14-92, 6-1-97, 4-12-98, 6-23-99, Formerly 39-5.005, Amended 5-13-02, 7-28-02, 5-1-03, 7-1-04, 3-15-05,_____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE:
Ms. Susan Weaver
NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Mr. Kenneth D. Haddad, Executive Director

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: September 21, 2005
 DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: November 23, 2005

FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION

Freshwater Fish and Wildlife

RULE CHAPTER TITLE: Miscellaneous Permits
 RULE TITLE: Special-Use Permits; Short-Term Use Permits; Fees; Special-Opportunity Hunting and Fishing
 RULE CHAPTER NO.: 68A-9
 RULE NO.: 68A-9.007

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose of the proposed rule changes is to encourage outdoor family recreation on Wildlife Management Areas. The effect of the proposed rule change is to exempt the spouse and dependent children of a WMA permit holder from daily-use fees on FWC managed WMAs where such fees apply, when participating in non-hunting related activities.

SUMMARY: The proposed rule change would exempt the spouse and dependent children of a WMA permit holder from daily-use fees on FWC managed WMAs where such fees apply.

A STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST HAS NOT BEEN PREPARED REGARDING THESE PROPOSED RULES.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated regulatory costs, or to provide a proposal for lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: Article IV, Section 9, Florida Const. LAW IMPLEMENTED: Article IV, Section 9, Florida Constitution; 372.57 FS.

THE FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION WILL CONDUCT A PUBLIC RULEMAKING HEARING ON THE PROPOSED RULES DURING THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE COMMISSION TO BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATES AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

TIME AND DATES: 8:30 a.m. – 5:00 p.m., each day, February 1-2, 2006

PLACE: Hilton University of Florida Conference Center, 1714 S.W. 34th St., Gainesville, Florida 32607

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 calendar days before the workshop/meeting by contacting the ADA Coordinator, at (850)488-6411. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency by calling (850)488-9542.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: James V. Antista, General Counsel, Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission, 620 South Meridian Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1600

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

68A-9.007 Special-Use Permits; Short-Term Use Permits; Fees; Special-Opportunity Hunting and Fishing. Special-use permits, short-term use permits, and fees for such permits are hereby established as follows:

- (1) through (3) No change.
- (4) The Commission establishes short-term permits and fees as follows:
 - (a) No change.
 - (b) Andrews WMA, Three Lakes WMA, Fred C. Babcock/Cecil M. Webb WMA, Chassahowitzka WMA, J.W. Corbett WMA, and those portions of Hilochee WMA in Lake county.

1. A daily-use permit for outdoor recreational activities other than hunting is \$3 per person or \$6 per non-commercial vehicle.

2. For groups of 25 to 100 people, a daily-use permit is \$75.

3. For groups of 101 people or more, a daily-use permit is \$150.

4. A daily-use permit shall not be required for persons participating in Commission-sponsored meetings or activities.

5. A daily-use permit shall not be required for persons using the Florida Trail for recreational hiking.

6. A daily-use permit shall not be required for persons exempt from management area permit requirements by Section 372.562, F.S.

7. A daily-use permit shall not be required for the spouse or dependent children of persons in possession of a management area permit while traveling in the same vehicle or in the company of the permit holder.

PROPOSED EFFECTIVE DATE: July 1, 2006.

Specific Authority Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const. Law Implemented Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const., 372.57 FS. History—New 9-15-96, Amended 1-9-97, 6-1-97, 4-12-98, 4-15-99, Formerly 39-9.007, Amended 7-1-00, 5-13-02, 7-1-06.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE: Mr. Nick Wiley, Director, Division of Hunting and Game Management

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Mr. Kenneth D. Haddad, Executive Director.

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: September 21, 2005

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: November 23, 2005

FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION

Freshwater Fish and Wildlife

RULE CHAPTER TITLE: RULE CHAPTER NO.:
 Rules Relating to Game 68A-12
 RULE TITLE: RULE NO.:
 General Methods of Taking Game; Prohibitions 68A-12.002

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose of the proposed rule change is to facilitate the establishment of new opportunities for hunting with bows and crossbows. The effect of the proposed rule change is to provide additional hunting opportunities.

SUMMARY: The proposed rule would prohibit the possession of firearms during crossbow season to enable the establishment of a season when only bows and crossbows would be permitted for hunting.

A STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST HAS NOT BEEN PREPARED REGARDING THESE PROPOSED RULES.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated regulatory costs, or to provide a proposal for lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: Article IV, Section 9, Florida Const. LAW IMPLEMENTED: Article IV, Section 9, Florida Const. THE FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION WILL CONDUCT A PUBLIC RULEMAKING HEARING ON THE PROPOSED RULES DURING THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE COMMISSION TO BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATES AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

TIME AND DATES: 8:30 a.m. – 5:00 p.m., each day, February 1-2, 2006

PLACE: Hilton University of Florida Conference Center, 1714 S.W. 34th Street, Gainesville, Florida 32607

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 calendar days before the workshop/meeting by contacting the ADA Coordinator, at (850)488-6411. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency by calling (850)488-9542.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: James V. Antista, General Counsel, Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission, 620 South Meridian Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1600

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

68A-12.002 General Methods of Taking Game; Prohibitions.
 (1) through (2) No change.

(3) Game birds, crows or game mammals may be taken with any of the following:

- (a) through (c) No change.
- (d) Bow or crossbow.

1. The possession or use of arrows having explosive or drug-administering heads while hunting is prohibited.

2. Any arrow used in the hunting of deer, hog or turkey shall be equipped with a broadhead that has a minimum of two sharpened edges with a minimum width of 7/8 inches.

3. Hunting with a bow equipped with sights or aiming devices with electronic computational capabilities or light projection (laser) features during any archery season is prohibited.

4. No person shall possess any firearm or crossbow while archery hunting during any special archery season.

5. No person shall possess any firearm during any crossbow season.

- (e) No change.
- (4) through (9) No change.

PROPOSED EFFECTIVE DATE: July 1, 2006.

Specific Authority Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const. Law Implemented Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const. History—New 8-1-79, Amended 6-4-81, 11-17-81, 6-21-82, 7-1-83, 7-1-84, 7-1-85, Formerly 39-12.02, Amended 6-1-86, 4-11-90, 4-14-92, 4-20-93, 3-1-94, 3-30-95, 4-1-96, 12-28-98, Formerly 39-12.002, Amended 7-1-05, 7-1-06.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE: Mr. Nick Wiley, Director, Division of Hunting and Game Management

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Mr. Kenneth D. Haddad, Executive Director

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: September 21, 2005

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: November 23, 2005

BE ADVISED THAT THESE PROPOSED RULES MAY BE FILED FOR ADOPTION AS SOON AS POSSIBLE FOLLOWING THE COMMISSION MEETING AT WHICH THEY ARE CONSIDERED IF THE RULES ARE NOT CHANGED. IF CHANGED, THE RULES MAY BE FILED AS SOON AS POSSIBLE AFTER PUBLICATION OF A NOTICE OF CHANGE IN THE FAW.

FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION

Freshwater Fish and Wildlife

RULE CHAPTER TITLE: RULE CHAPTER NO.:
 Rules Relating to Game 68A-12
 RULE TITLE: RULE NO.:
 Taking Destructive Birds and Mammals 68A-12.009

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose of the proposed rule change is to replace the current nuisance wildlife trapper permit requirement with a registration requirement and allow

proposed rule would allow harvest of antlerless deer during crossbow season under the authority of an antlerless deer permit where the aggregate daily bag of antlerless and antlered deer shall not exceed 2. The proposed rule changes would simplify and update the process by which antlerless deer permits are obtained and delete record-keeping requirements.

A STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST HAS NOT BEEN PREPARED REGARDING THESE PROPOSED RULES.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated regulatory costs, or to provide a proposal for lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: Article IV, Section 9, Florida Const.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: Article IV, Section 9, Florida Const.

THE FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION WILL CONDUCT A PUBLIC RULEMAKING HEARING ON THE PROPOSED RULES DURING THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE COMMISSION TO BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATES AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

TIME AND DATES: 8:30 a.m. – 5:00 p.m., each day, February 1-2, 2006

PLACE: Hilton University of Florida Conference Center, 1714 S.W. 34th Street, Gainesville, Florida 32607

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 calendar days before the workshop/meeting by contacting the ADA Coordinator, at (850)488-6411. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency by calling (850)488-9542.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: James V. Antista, General Counsel, Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission, 620 South Meridian Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1600

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

68A-13.004 Open Season for Taking and Bag Limits for Non-Migratory Game and Issuance of Antlerless Deer Permits. The open season and bag limits for non-migratory game shall be as follows unless otherwise amended by the Commission, provided that regulations for hunting on wildlife management areas shall be as established by specific rule.

(1) Bag and possession limits:

(a) Deer: Possession limit, four; daily bag as follows:

1. Two (2) antlered deer during the antlered deer, crossbow, muzzleloading gun or archery/muzzleloading gun seasons.

2. One (1) antlered and 1 antlerless deer or 2 antlered deer during the antlerless deer season.

3. Two (2) antlerless deer, or 2 antlered deer, or 1 antlered and 1 antlerless deer during the archery season.

4. Antlerless deer taken under the authority of an antlerless deer permit issued under subsection (3) of this rule shall be included in the daily bag, but the aggregate daily bag of antlerless and antlered deer shall not exceed 2.

(b) through (d) No change.

(2) Open seasons:

(a) through (h) No change.

(i) Notwithstanding the provisions of paragraphs (2)(a), (b), (c), (d), (e), and (h), antlered deer, gobblers or bearded turkeys, gray squirrel, quail and wild hogs may be taken:

1. During a crossbow season opening 19 days prior to the first day of the antlered deer season and closing 4 days thereafter in the South Zone; opening 19 days prior to the first day of the antlered deer season and closing 4 days thereafter in the Central Zone, and opening on the Monday following Thanksgiving Day and closing 6 days thereafter in the Northwest Zone except that turkey may not be taken in Holmes County.

~~2.1.~~ During a muzzleloading gun season opening 14 days prior to the first day of the antlered deer season and closing 8 days thereafter in the South Zone; opening 14 days prior to the first day of the antlered deer season and closing 8 days thereafter in the Central Zone, and opening 6 days prior to the first day of the antlered deer season and closing 2 days thereafter in the Northwest Zone except that turkey may not be taken in Holmes County.

~~3.2.~~ During an ~~archery~~/muzzleloading gun season in the Northwest Zone opening the day following the last day of the antlered deer season and closing 10 days thereafter, provided that turkeys may not be taken.

(3) Issuance of antlerless deer permits to landowners – Antlerless deer may be taken under permit from the executive director during the crossbow, muzzleloading gun, archery/muzzleloading gun, and antlered deer seasons in accordance with the following:

(a) A person who owns, leases or otherwise has written permission to take antlerless deer on specifically identified lands may apply for an antlerless deer permit in accordance with this subsection. An antlerless deer permit will be issued for property or an aggregate of contiguous properties not less than 640 acres in size; or for property or an aggregate of contiguous properties not less than 150 acres in size which are contiguous to property under a current antlerless deer permit. The owners of the property (not less than 640 acres or not less than 150 acres if the applicant land is contiguous to land receiving antlerless deer permits) where the antlerless deer are to be taken shall make written application (on GFC Form ADPA 1000, effective July 1, 1998, adopted and incorporated herein by reference, and available from the Commission's regional offices) to the executive director showing proof of ownership of the land in question. A group of landowners may

~~apply jointly provided the aggregate contiguous acreage is at least 640 acres.~~ Agricultural lands that have been permitted under Rule 68A-12.009, F.A.C., within the previous 12 months for taking of deer for crop depredation purposes shall be exempt from the minimum acreage requirement of this rule.

(b) Applications for antlerless deer permits shall be on such a form as prescribed by the Commission and shall include: a written description of the property boundaries; total acreage of the property; name, street or physical address, and telephone numbers for the applicant and the landowner; a signature of the landowner or legal agent of the landowner providing permission to take antlerless deer where the landowner is not the applicant; and other information pertaining to the proposed activity necessary for permit issuance and enforcement of this subsection. A Commission biologist shall assess the status of the deer population and recommend the number of antlerless deer to be removed.

~~(c) Upon approval, the Division of Wildlife shall furnish to the landowner an identifying tag for each antlerless deer to be taken from the approved area. These tags may be issued to individual persons at the discretion of the landowner.~~

(c)(d) The permittee shall be furnished an identifying tag for each antlerless deer to be taken from the permitted area. Each person who takes an antlerless deer shall immediately lock the identifying tag to the carcass of the deer. Antlerless deer may not be possessed unless the identifying tag has been locked on the carcass. Each tag shall remain locked on the carcass until the deer is dismembered and stored at the hunter's domicile.

~~(e) The landowner to whom the permit and the identifying antlerless deer tags are furnished shall maintain records on forms (GFC Form ADR 1001, effective July 1, 1998, adopted and incorporated herein by reference) furnished by the Commission.~~

~~(f) Records of all antlerless deer taken shall be returned to the Commission within 30 days following the close of the deer season.~~

(d)(g) Commission personnel shall be granted access to collect biological specimens and data on antlerless deer taken under the provisions of this subsection.

PROPOSED EFFECTIVE DATE: July 1, 2006.

Specific Authority Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const. Law Implemented Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const. History--New 8-1-79, Amended 5-19-80, 6-4-81, 6-21-82, 7-1-83, 7-1-84, 7-1-85, Formerly 39-13.04, Amended 6-1-86, 5-10-87, 6-8-87, 5-1-88, 7-1-89, 7-1-90, 7-1-91, 7-1-92, 7-1-93, 3-1-94, 7-1-94, 7-1-96, 10-28-97, 4-27-98, 12-28-98, Formerly 39-13.004, Amended 7-1-01, 5-13-02, 10-16-02, 7-1-05, 7-1-06.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE: Mr. Nick Wiley, Director, Division of Hunting and Game Management

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Mr. Kenneth D. Haddad, Executive Director

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: September 21, 2005

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: November 23, 2005

BE ADVISED THAT THESE PROPOSED RULES MAY BE FILED FOR ADOPTION AS SOON AS POSSIBLE FOLLOWING THE COMMISSION MEETING AT WHICH THEY ARE CONSIDERED IF THE RULES ARE NOT CHANGED. IF CHANGED, THE RULES MAY BE FILED AS SOON AS POSSIBLE AFTER PUBLICATION OF A NOTICE OF CHANGE IN THE FAW.

FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION

Freshwater Fish and Wildlife

RULE CHAPTER TITLE: General Hunting Regulations
RULE TITLE: Hunting Regulations on Public Small-Game Hunting Areas
RULE CHAPTER NO.: 68A-13
RULE NO.: 68A-13.007

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose of the proposed rule change is to provide standard rule language regarding the possession of dogs on public lands. The effect of the proposed rule changes is to enable the agency to better manage fish and wildlife resources and public use on public lands.

SUMMARY: The proposed rule is a technical correction, providing standard rule language regarding the possession of dogs.

A STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST HAS NOT BEEN PREPARED REGARDING THESE PROPOSED RULES.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated regulatory costs, or to provide a proposal for lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: Article IV, Section 9, Florida Const.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: Article IV, Section 9, Florida Const.

THE FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION WILL CONDUCT A PUBLIC RULEMAKING HEARING ON THE PROPOSED RULES DURING THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE COMMISSION TO BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATES AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

TIME AND DATES: 8:30 a.m. – 5:00 p.m., each day, February 1-2, 2006

PLACE: Hilton University of Florida Conference Center, 1714 S.W. 34th Street, Gainesville, Florida 32607

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 calendar days before the workshop/meeting

by contacting the ADA Coordinator, at (850)488-6411. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency by calling (850)488-9542.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: James V. Antista, General Counsel, Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission, 620 South Meridian Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1600

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

68A-13.007 Hunting Regulations on Public Small-Game Hunting Areas.

(1) No change.

(2) The general regulations for public small-game hunting areas shall be as follows:

(a) through (c) No change.

(d) Waterfowl retrievers, bird dogs, and other dogs with a shoulder height of 17 inches or less may be used for hunting during open seasons unless prohibited by specific area regulation. Dogs may be possessed, under physical restraint only, during any period in which the taking of wildlife by the use of dogs is prohibited. ~~Dogs not normally used for hunting may be possessed provided they are kept under restraint.~~

(e) through (m) No change.

PROPOSED EFFECTIVE DATE: July 1, 2006.

Specific Authority Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const. Law Implemented Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const. History--New 10-4-82, Formerly 39-13.07, Amended 7-1-89, 7-1-96, Formerly 39-13.007, Amended 4-30-00, 7-1-06.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE: Mr. Nick Wiley, Director, Division of Hunting and Game Management

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Mr. Kenneth D. Haddad, Executive Director

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: September 21, 2006

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: November 23, 2005

BE ADVISED THAT THESE PROPOSED RULES MAY BE FILED FOR ADOPTION AS SOON AS POSSIBLE FOLLOWING THE COMMISSION MEETING AT WHICH THEY ARE CONSIDERED IF THE RULES ARE NOT CHANGED. IF CHANGED, THE RULES MAY BE FILED AS SOON AS POSSIBLE AFTER PUBLICATION OF A NOTICE OF CHANGE IN THE FAW.

FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION

Freshwater Fish and Wildlife

RULE CHAPTER TITLE: Type I Wildlife Management Areas
RULE TITLE: Establishment Orders
RULE CHAPTER NO.: 68A-14
RULE NO.: 68A-14.001

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose of the proposed rule change is to allow public small-game hunting areas (PSGAs) to be established within Public Use Areas (PUAs) and not limit the legal to take on PSGHAs to dove only. The effect of the proposed rule change is to enable the agency to better manage fish and wildlife resources and public use on public lands.

SUMMARY: The proposed rule would clarify that PSGAs may be established for special hog hunts on Wildlife Management Areas, Wildlife and Environmental Areas, Fish Management Areas and PUAs.

A STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST HAS NOT BEEN PREPARED REGARDING THESE PROPOSED RULES.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated regulatory costs, or to provide a proposal for lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: Article IV, Section 9, Florida Const. LAW IMPLEMENTED: Article IV, Section 9, Florida Const.

THE FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION WILL CONDUCT A PUBLIC RULEMAKING HEARING ON THE PROPOSED RULES DURING THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE COMMISSION TO BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATES AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

TIME AND DATES: 8:30 a.m. – 5:00 p.m., each day, February 1-2, 2006

PLACE: Hilton University of Florida Conference Center, 1714 S.W. 34th Street, Gainesville, Florida 32607

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 calendar days before the workshop/meeting by contacting the ADA Coordinator, at (850)488-6411. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency by calling (850)488-9542.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: James V. Antista, General Counsel, Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission, 620 South Meridian Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1600

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

68A-14.001 Establishment Orders.

Whenever the Commission establishes an area to be a wildlife management area; a wildlife and environmental area; a refuge; a bird sanctuary; a restricted hunting area; a critical wildlife area; a fish management area; or a miscellaneous area, it shall do so by an establishment order.

(1) through (2) No change.

(3) Public small-game hunting areas may be established within wildlife management areas, wildlife and environmental areas, ~~and~~ fish management areas, and public use areas

pursuant to Rule 68A-13.007, F.A.C., ~~for the purpose of designating dove hunt only areas.~~ Regulations for each public small-game hunting area so established shall supersede ~~supereede~~ regulations for the wildlife management area, wildlife and environmental area, ~~or~~ fish management area or public use area within which it occurs.

PROPOSED EFFECTIVE DATE: July 1, 2006.

Specific Authority Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const. Law Implemented Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const. History—New 8-1-79, Amended 6-21-82, Formerly 39-14.01, Amended 10-28-97, 6-30-99, Formerly 39-14.001, Amended 12-20-99, 7-18-00, 5-1-03, 7-1-06.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE:
Mr. Nick Wiley, Director, Division of Hunting and Game Management

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Mr. Kenneth D. Haddad, Executive Director

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: September 21, 2005

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: November 23, 2005

BE ADVISED THAT THESE PROPOSED RULES MAY BE FILED FOR ADOPTION AS SOON AS POSSIBLE FOLLOWING THE COMMISSION MEETING AT WHICH THEY ARE CONSIDERED IF THE RULES ARE NOT CHANGED. IF CHANGED, THE RULES MAY BE FILED AS SOON AS POSSIBLE AFTER PUBLICATION OF A NOTICE OF CHANGE IN THE FAW.

FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION

Freshwater Fish and Wildlife

RULE CHAPTER TITLE: Type I Wildlife Management Areas RULE CHAPTER NO.: 68A-15

RULE TITLE: General Regulations Relating to Wildlife Management Areas RULE NO.: 68A-15.004

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose of the proposed rule changes is to revise general regulations on all Wildlife Management Areas (WMAs). The effect of the proposed rule changes is to enable the agency to better manage fish and wildlife resources and public use on WMAs.

SUMMARY: The proposed rule changes would codify the change from WMA Stamp to WMA Permit; delete the daily use permit exemption for recreational use by spouse and dependent children for Babcock/Webb, Yucca Pens Unit and Corbett WMAs, as the exemption is being applied in another rule to all management areas requiring a daily use fee; clarify that dogs may be possessed under physical restraint on WMAs, unless prohibited by specific area rule; and allow a person with a valid Concealed Weapon or Firearm License to possess a

concealed handgun throughout the year, pursuant to the provisions of Section 790.06, F.S., unless pre-empted by federal or state law.

A STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST HAS NOT BEEN PREPARED REGARDING THESE PROPOSED RULES.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated regulatory costs, or to provide a proposal for lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: Article IV, Section 9, Florida Const. LAW IMPLEMENTED: Article IV, Section 9, Florida Const.; 372.121, 372.57 FS.

THE FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION WILL CONDUCT A PUBLIC RULEMAKING HEARING ON THE PROPOSED RULES DURING THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE COMMISSION TO BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATES AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

TIME AND DATES: 8:30 a.m. – 5:00 p.m., each day, February 1-2, 2006

PLACE: Hilton University of Florida Conference Center, 1714 S.W. 34th Street, Gainesville, Florida 32607

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 calendar days before the workshop/meeting by contacting the ADA Coordinator, at (850)488-6411. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency by calling (850)488-9542.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: James V. Antista, General Counsel, Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission, 620 South Meridian Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1600

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

68A-15.004 General Regulations Relating to Wildlife Management Areas.

(1) No change.

(2) Permits required:

(a) A wildlife management area permit stamp as provided by Section 372.57, F.S., in addition to all regular license requirements, is required for persons, except those exempted in subsection (3) hereof, to hunt, trap or be in possession of a gun, trap or other device for taking wildlife or fur-bearing animals on a wildlife management area.

(b) No change.

~~(c) A wildlife management area stamp shall be required of any person, except those exempted in subsection (3) hereof, who engages in any outdoor recreation activity on the J. W. Corbett and Cecil M. Webb areas (except for organized group activity under contractual agreement with the Commission).~~

~~Members of a stampholder's family (includes spouse and dependent children) traveling in the company of a stampholder are exempt from these recreational stamp requirements.~~

~~(c)(d)~~ A written authorization or permit issued by the Department of Defense, in addition to licensing as required by Section 372.57, F.S., shall be required to hunt, fish or frog on any Wildlife Management Area owned by the United States of America, Department of Defense. This authorization or permit shall be displayed for inspection upon the request of any law enforcement officer.

~~(d)(e)~~ The lead managing agency or landowner of a wildlife management area may authorize persons to engage in otherwise prohibited activities not relating to the taking of fish or wildlife, to allow for access, vehicles, vessels, camping, or horses, valid only during periods closed to hunting. The landowner of a wildlife management area that requires a Recreational Use Permit (RUP) may only give such authorization to persons holding a RUP for that area. Persons so authorized must possess a copy of the authorization when engaged in such activities.

(3) through (5) No change.

(6) Guns:

(a) No person shall possess any gun on any wildlife management area during any period in which hunting by the use of a gun is prohibited unless otherwise authorized by permit from the executive director.

(b) The possession of a firearm or crossbow is prohibited on any wildlife management area during established seasons for archery hunting unless otherwise stipulated in a regulation established for a specific area. The possession of a gun (except a muzzleloading gun) is prohibited on any wildlife management area during seasons for muzzleloading gun hunting. The possession of a gun is prohibited on any wildlife management area during any season open only for the taking of fur-bearing animals or frogs unless otherwise stipulated in a regulation established for a specific area.

(c) Notwithstanding the provisions of paragraphs (a), (b), or (f), a person in possession of a valid Concealed Weapon or Firearm License may carry concealed handguns under the provisions of Section 790.06, F.S., throughout the year, unless otherwise prohibited pursuant to state or federal law.

~~(d)(e)~~ No person shall have any gun under his control while under the influence of alcohol or drugs.

~~(e)(d)~~ The possession of center-fire rifles is prohibited during small game season.

~~(f)(e)~~ The possession of any firearm containing shells or cartridges, or any capped or primed muzzleloading gun is prohibited on any public campsite or check station area. The discharge of firearms is prohibited on, from or across any campsite or check station area.

~~(g)(f)~~ Centerfire shotguns are permitted during established area seasons when one or more migratory game birds are legal to take except when prohibited by specific area rule.

(7) Dogs:

(a) through (b) No change.

(c) Dogs may be possessed, under physical restraint only, during any period in which the taking of wildlife by the use of dogs is prohibited, unless otherwise prohibited by specific area rule.

(d) No change.

(8) through (15) No change.

PROPOSED EFFECTIVE DATE: July 1, 2006.

Specific Authority Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const. Law Implemented Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const., 372.121, 372.57 FS. History—New 8-1-79, Amended 6-4-81, 6-21-82, 6-9-83, 9-27-83, 7-5-84, 7-1-85, Formerly 39-15.04, Amended 5-7-86, 5-10-87, 4-13-88, 8-18-88, 4-19-90, 4-4-91, 4-14-92, 10-22-92, 7-26-94, 11-6-94, 3-30-95, 10-23-95, 9-15-96, 6-1-97, 7-1-98, 12-28-98, 4-15-99, Formerly 39-15.004, Amended 7-1-00, 6-2-02, 5-1-03, 7-1-04, 7-1-05, 7-1-06.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE: Mr. Nick Wiley, Director, Division of Hunting and Game Management

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Mr. Kenneth D. Haddad, Executive Director

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: September 21, 2005

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: November 23, 2005

FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION

Freshwater Fish and Wildlife

RULE CHAPTER TITLE: Type I Wildlife Management Areas
 RULE CHAPTER NO.: 68A-15

RULE TITLE: Quota Permits; Antlerless Deer Permits;
 RULE NO.: 68A-15.005

Special-Opportunity Permits 68A-15.005

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose of the proposed rule change is to allow increased hunting opportunities for young persons on public lands, restrict the transfer of quota permits issued to exempt persons (underage, disabled, senior citizen) to persons within specified exemption classifications, revise hunter quotas on wildlife management area (WMAs) and wildlife and environmental areas (WEAs), add new hunter quotas for recently established WMAs, make clarifications and standardizations to the quota list, and reincorporate the list of quotas by area and hunt. The effect of the proposed rule changes is to enable the agency to better manage fish and wildlife resources and public use on public lands.

SUMMARY: The proposed rule changes would allow one person younger than 16 years of age to accompany an adult quota permit holder and participate in the hunt on WMAs or WEAs where no exemptions are allowed, provided the bag limit of game is shared and specify that permits issued to persons in a specific exempt category (underage, disabled,

senior citizen) may be transferred only to persons in the same category, except permits issued to a senior citizen may also be transferred to an underage hunter.

The proposed rule would make technical clarification revisions for Green Swamp WMA – to clarify that spring turkey quota permits are issued through the Total Licensing System for the first weekend and each day at the check station following the first weekend; Green Swamp West WMA – to clarify quota permits are issued each day at the check station during small game season; Upper Hillsborough WMA – to clarify quota permits are issued each day at the check station during small game and spring turkey seasons; Arbuckle WMA – to clarify that quota permits are issued each day at the check station during the weekday archery and muzzleloading gun hunts, and the entire spring turkey season; Hilochee WMA – to clarify that quota permits are issued each day at the check station during small game season; Lake Marion Creek WMA – to clarify that quota permits are issued each day at the check station during small game season; Lake Wales Ridge WEA – Royce Unit – a technical correction to delete the dove hunt quota which is established by a public small game hunting area executive order; Big Bend WMA, Snipe Island Unit – to clarify that a quota permit is needed only during the first nine days of the archery season; Cedar Key Scrub WMA – to clarify that half the quota permits are issued each day at the check station during the general gun season; Flying Eagle WMA – to clarify that quota permits are issued each day at the check station during the early duck and small game seasons; Homosassa WMA – to clarify that quota permits are issued each day at the check station during the small game season; Potts WMA – to clarify that quota permits are issued each day at the check station during the small game season; Mallory Swamp WMA – to clarify that half the quota permits are issued each day at the check station during the muzzleloading gun season; Devil’s Hammock WMA – to clarify that half the quota permits are issued each day at the check station during the archery, muzzleloading gun, general gun and spring turkey seasons; Middle Aucilla WMA – to clarify that there are no exemptions during the archery, muzzleloading gun, general gun or spring turkey seasons; Little River WMA – to clarify that there are no exemptions during the archery and muzzleloading gun seasons; Bayard WMA – to clarify that there are no exemptions during the archery, muzzleloading gun and spring turkey seasons; Steinhatchee Springs WMA – to clarify that half the quota permits are issued each day at the check station during the muzzleloading gun, general gun and spring turkey seasons; CREW WEA – to make a technical change in spelling from “Crew” to “CREW” for all seasons; John C. and Marianna Jones WMA – to correct a spelling error in the name of the WMA, from Marianna to Mariana; Half Moon WMA – to clarify that quota permits are issued each day at the check station during the small game and general gun hog

seasons; Lake Panasoffkee WMA – to clarify that quota permits are issued each day at the check station during the small game season.

The proposed rule would revise quotas for Hilochee WMA – general gun hog (quota increased from 20 to 30); Camp Blanding WMA – first archery hunt (quota removed); Goethe WMA – general gun still (season increased from four to six days, split season into two three-day hunts and quota increased from 250 to 300 per hunt), general gun dog (season increased from five to seven days, split season into a three-day and a four-day hunt, and quota increased from 105 to 125 per hunt); spring turkey (season increased from nine to 16 days, split season into two hunts, and quota increased from 100 to 130 per hunt); Talquin WMA – eliminate one-day antlerless deer hunt; Dinner Island Ranch WMA – archery, muzzleloading gun and general gun seasons (quota increased from 30 to 45, each hunt), spring turkey (quota increased from 15 to 20); Seminole Forest WMA – small game (quota increased from 50 to 75); and Salt Lake WMA – archery, muzzleloading gun and general gun (quota increased from 30 to 40, each hunt), general gun hog (quota increased from 15 to 20, each hunt).

The proposed rule would establish new quota hunts on Hickory Hammock – archery (five by special quota application, no exemptions); Lochloosa WMA – general gun (add third hunt, 50 by regular quota application); Andrews WMA – family hunt (20 by family hunt application, each hunt, no exemptions); Citrus WMA – spring turkey (25 by spring turkey application, each hunt, no exemptions); Devil’s Hammock WMA – family hunt (10 each hunt by family hunt application and 10 each day at the check station, no exemptions); Lafayette Creek WMA – archery (10 by special quota application, each hunt, no exemptions), muzzleloading gun (10 by special quota application, no exemptions), family hunt (7 by family hunt application, no exemptions), general gun (10 by regular quota application, each hunt, no exemptions), spring turkey (5 by spring turkey application, each hunt, no exemptions); Wakulla WMA – archery (25 by special quota application, each hunt, no exemptions); archery and muzzleloading gun (25 by special quota application, each hunt, no exemptions), spring turkey (10 by spring turkey application, each hunt, no exemptions); and Dinner Island Ranch WMA – family hunt (30 by family hunt application, each hunt, no exemptions).

A STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST HAS NOT BEEN PREPARED REGARDING THESE PROPOSED RULES.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated regulatory costs, or to provide a proposal for lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: Article IV, Section 9, Florida Constitution.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: Article IV, Section 9, Florida Constitution.

THE FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION WILL CONDUCT A PUBLIC RULEMAKING HEARING ON THE PROPOSED RULES DURING THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE COMMISSION TO BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATES AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

TIME AND DATES: 8:30 a.m. – 5:00 p.m., each day, February 1-2, 2006

PLACE: Hilton University of Florida Conference Center, 1714 S.W. 34th St., Gainesville, Florida 32607

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 calendar days before the workshop/meeting by contacting the ADA Coordinator, at (850)488-6411. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency by calling (850)488-9542.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: James V. Antista, General Counsel, Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission, 620 South Meridian Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1600

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

68A-15.005 Quota Permits; Antlerless Deer Permits; Special-Opportunity Permits.

(1) During the first nine days of the general hunting season and at other times specified herein, a quota or special-opportunity permit in addition to other license, permit and stamp requirements, shall be required for any person while hunting on wildlife management areas, wildlife and environmental areas, and fish management areas or specified units thereof, identified in this rule. Those persons exempt from license requirements by Section 372.57(1), F.S., or stamp requirements by Section 372.57(4), F.S., or persons age 65 or over who have obtained a Florida lifetime hunting or lifetime sportsman's license are also exempt from quota permit requirements on all areas except those specified by "(no exemptions)" in this rule. On those areas specified by "(no exemptions)," one person younger than 16 years of age may accompany a person older than 18 years of age who holds a valid regular, special, or spring turkey quota permit and participate in the hunt provided that both hunters must share a single bag limit of game. Quota, antlerless deer and special-opportunity permits shall be in the hunter's possession and shall be displayed upon request by any Commission employee. Quota, antlerless deer, and special-opportunity permits shall be transferable, except that ~~quota, antlerless deer, and special-opportunity permits issued to exempt persons shall be transferable only to another exempt person, and application for same, if necessary, shall be made in accordance with Rule 68A-5.005, F.A.C.~~ Quota and antlerless deer permits issued to an underage applicant may only be transferred to another underage hunter. Quota hunt and antlerless deer permits issued

to a disabled applicant may only be transferred to another disabled hunter. Quota hunt and antlerless deer permits issued to a senior citizen may only be transferred to another senior citizen or underage hunter.

(2) The maximum number of quota and special-opportunity permits to be issued for each wildlife management area, fish management area, or wildlife and environmental area shall be maintained on a list titled "Quota and special-opportunity permits," dated May 1, ~~2006~~ 2005, incorporated herein by reference and kept by the Commission at its headquarters office and regional offices.

(3) Antlerless deer permits will be issued on specified wildlife management areas or wildlife and environmental areas during such hunting seasons or portions thereof as may be ordered by the Executive Director. Estimated deer density, estimated carrying capacity of available habitat and management objectives will be considered in determining the number of antlerless deer permits to be issued. Antlerless deer permits shall be transferable. No person shall take any antlerless deer on a management area unless authorized by permit or by area regulations.

(4) No person shall sell, purchase or offer to purchase any quota permit or any antlerless deer permit.

PROPOSED EFFECTIVE DATE: May 1, 2006.

Specific Authority Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const. Law Implemented Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const. History—New 8-1-79, Amended 5-19-80, 6-22-80, 12-29-80, 6-4-81, 8-4-81, 6-21-82, 7-29-82, 7-1-83, 7-5-84, 7-1-85, 9-19-85, Formerly 39-15.05, Amended 5-7-86, 6-10-86, 5-10-87, 6-8-87, 10-8-87, 4-13-88, 6-7-88, 7-1-89, 7-1-90, 9-1-90, 7-1-91, 7-2-91, 7-1-92, 8-23-92, 7-1-93, 7-1-94, 3-30-95, 6-20-95, 8-15-95, 4-1-96, 6-27-96, 9-15-96, 10-20-96, 6-1-97, 8-7-97, 11-23-97, 7-1-98, 7-2-98, 8-11-98, 12-28-98, 5-13-99, Formerly 39-15.005, Amended 12-9-99, 4-30-00, 7-1-01, 8-1-01, 11-1-01, 5-13-02, 10-16-02, 5-1-03, 7-1-03, 9-29-03, 7-1-04, 7-2-04, 8-1-04, 5-1-05, 5-1-06.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE: Mr. Nick Wiley, Director, Division of Hunting and Game Management

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Mr. Kenneth D. Haddad, Executive Director

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: September 21, 2005

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: November 23, 2005

BE ADVISED THAT THESE PROPOSED RULES MAY BE FILED FOR ADOPTION AS SOON AS POSSIBLE FOLLOWING THE COMMISSION MEETING AT WHICH THEY ARE CONSIDERED IF THE RULES ARE NOT CHANGED. IF CHANGED, THE RULES MAY BE FILED AS SOON AS POSSIBLE AFTER PUBLICATION OF A NOTICE OF CHANGE IN THE FAW.

FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION

Freshwater Fish and Wildlife

RULE CHAPTER TITLE: Type I Wildlife Management Areas
 RULE CHAPTER NO.: 68A-15

RULE TITLE: Regulations Relating to Miscellaneous Areas
 RULE NO.: 68A-15.006

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose of the proposed rule changes is to revise specific area regulations for miscellaneous areas. The effect of the proposed rule changes is to enable the agency to better manage fish and wildlife resources and public use on the Kissimmee River Public Use Area.

SUMMARY: The proposed rule changes would revise specific area regulations on Kissimmee River Public Use Area by allowing the take of wild hog with no size or bag limit during small game season and prohibit modern firearms in the posted archery/muzzleloading gun area during all established seasons. A STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST HAS NOT BEEN PREPARED REGARDING THESE PROPOSED RULES.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated regulatory costs, or to provide a proposal for lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: Article IV, Section 9, Florida Const.
 LAW IMPLEMENTED: Article IV, Section 9, Florida Const.

THE FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION WILL CONDUCT A PUBLIC RULEMAKING HEARING ON THE PROPOSED RULES DURING THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE COMMISSION TO BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATES AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

TIME AND DATES: 8:30 a.m. – 5:00 p.m., each day, February 1-2, 2006

PLACE: Hilton University of Florida Conference Center, 1714 S.W. 34th St., Gainesville, Florida 32607

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 calendar days before the workshop/meeting by contacting the ADA Coordinator, at (850)488-6411. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency by calling (850)488-9542.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: James V. Antista, General Counsel, Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission, 620 South Meridian Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1600

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

68A-15.006 Regulations Relating to Miscellaneous Areas.

- (1) No change.
- (2) Kissimmee River Public Use Area.

(a) No change.

(b) Legal to take: All legal game, furbearers, fish, and frogs. Wild hogs may be taken only during open seasons for deer or squirrel. Antlerless deer may be taken only during the archery seasons and during the eighth and ninth days of the antlered deer seasons for the South and Central Zones, as applicable, established in Rule 68A-13.004, F.A.C. Bag and possession limits and shooting hours shall be those established under Rules 68A-13.003, 68A-13.004 and 68A-13.008, F.A.C., except that shooting hours for turkeys during the spring season shall be from one-half hour before sunrise until 1 p.m., and there shall be no bag or size limits on wild hogs.

(c) General regulations:

1. The possession of guns shall be prohibited in the marshes and uplands except during the period beginning on the opening day of rail season established in Rule 68A-13.008, F.A.C., and ending on the closing day of spring turkey season established in Rule 68A-13.004, F.A.C. Center-fire rifles are prohibited. The marshes shall be those lands outside the Kissimmee River channel, the C-38 canal, and the Istokpoga canal. In posted archery/muzzleloading gun areas, only bows may be used during the zonal archery season, only muzzleloading guns may be used during the zonal muzzleloading gun season, only bows may be used during the antlered deer season, and only bows and muzzleloading guns may be used during other established seasons ~~spring-turkey season~~. The possession of guns shall be prohibited in the marshes and uplands in the northern portion of Bluff Hammock lying in the west 1/2 of Section 26 and the east 1/2 of Section 27, Township 34 South, Range 31 East, which are posted as closed to possession of guns.

2. Shooting frogs shall be permitted only during hunting seasons established for this area and only with guns that are legal to use during each particular open hunting season.

3. All public use shall be prohibited in those areas posted as closed to afford protection to biologically sensitive resources or sites, protection of archeological or cultural resources, or for public safety reasons. Hunting shall be prohibited within 300 yards of any active construction site.

4. The use of airboats is prohibited in those areas posted as closed to airboat use.

PROPOSED EFFECTIVE DATE: July 1, 2006.

Specific Authority Art. IV, Sec 9, Fla. Const. Law Implemented Art IV, Sec 9, Fla. Const. History—New 12-9-99, Amended 5-13-02, 5-1-03, 5-23-04, 7-1-06.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE: Mr. Nick Wiley, Director, Division of Hunting and Game Management

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Mr. Kenneth D. Haddad, Executive Director

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: September 21, 2005

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: November 23, 2005
 BE ADVISED THAT THESE PROPOSED RULES MAY BE FILED FOR ADOPTION AS SOON AS POSSIBLE FOLLOWING THE COMMISSION MEETING AT WHICH THEY ARE CONSIDERED IF THE RULES ARE NOT CHANGED. IF CHANGED, THE RULES MAY BE FILED AS SOON AS POSSIBLE AFTER PUBLICATION OF A NOTICE OF CHANGE IN THE FAW.

FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION

Freshwater Fish and Wildlife

RULE CHAPTER TITLE: Type I Wildlife Management Areas
 RULE CHAPTER NO.: 68A-15
 RULE TITLE: Specific Regulations for Wildlife Management Areas – Southwest Region
 RULE NO.: 68A-15.061

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose of the proposed rule changes is to revise specific area regulations on Wildlife Management Areas (WMAs) in the Southwest Region and conform to calendar year date changes. The effect of the proposed rule changes is to enable the agency to better manage fish and wildlife resources and public use on WMAs.

SUMMARY: The proposed rule changes would adjust season dates to conform to calendar year changes and revise specific area regulations on Wildlife Management Areas (WMAs) in the Southwest Region as follows:

Green Swamp WMA – The proposed rules would allow vehicle access during periods open for camping, scouting, and fishing and frogging; and require hunters to remove hunting equipment on the last day of each hunting season.

Green Swamp West WMA – The proposed rule would list hog as legal to take with no size or bag limit and list furbearers, other than bobcat and otter, as legal to take.

Babcock/Webb WMA – The proposed rule would allow hunting equipment to be taken on the area one week prior to archery season.

Upper Hillsborough WMA – The proposed rule would clarify hog as legal to take with no size or bag limit.

KICCO WMA – The proposed rule would clarify hog as legal to take with no size or bag limit and allow vehicles to be parked within 25 feet of a named or numbered road in addition to designated parking areas.

Hickory Hammock WMA – The proposed rules would allow the take of hog with no size or bag limit during all quota hunts; establish a new archery hunt; establish the bag limit for the new archery hunt as one antlered and one antlerless deer per quota permit; add one additional day to each of five quota hunts; and move one weekend muzzleloader hunt to a weekdays.

Walk-in-the-Water WMA – The proposed rule would allow the take of hog with no size or bag limit during small game season.
 Lake Marion Creek WMA – The proposed rule would add a general gun hog season with hog only as legal to take with no size or bag limit.

Croom WMA - The proposed rules would expand duck and coot season to the statewide waterfowl season and allow the take of hog with no size or bag limit during small game season.
 Chassahowitzka WMA – The proposed rule would expand duck and coot season to the statewide waterfowl season.

A STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST HAS NOT BEEN PREPARED REGARDING THESE PROPOSED RULES.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated regulatory costs, or to provide a proposal for lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: Article IV, Section 9, Florida Constitution; 372.121, 375.313 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: Article IV, Section 9, Florida Constitution; 372.121, 375.313 FS.

THE FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION WILL CONDUCT A PUBLIC RULEMAKING HEARING ON THE PROPOSED RULES DURING THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE COMMISSION TO BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATES AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

TIME AND DATES: 8:30 a.m. – 5:00 p.m., each day, February 1-2, 2006

PLACE: Hilton University of Florida Conference Center, 1714 S.W. 34th Street, Gainesville, Florida 32607

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 calendar days before the workshop/meeting by contacting the ADA Coordinator, at (850)488-6411. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency by calling (850)488-9542.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: James V. Antista, General Counsel, Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission, 620 South Meridian Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1600

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

68A-15.061 Specific Regulations for Wildlife Management Areas – Southwest Region.

(1) Green Swamp Wildlife Management Area.

(a) Open season:

1. General gun – November ~~11~~ through January ~~7~~ 8.

2. Archery – September ~~23~~ through October ~~22~~ 23, Fridays, Saturdays and Sundays only.

3. Small game – January ~~13~~ ~~14~~ through February ~~11~~ ~~12~~, Saturdays and Sundays only.

4. Spring turkey – March ~~17~~ ~~18~~ through April ~~22~~ ~~23~~.

5. Fishing and frogging – Permitted during periods in which hunting is allowed; and Saturdays and Sundays from May ~~5~~ ~~6~~ to June ~~17~~ ~~18~~. Fishing and frogging is permitted at all other times provided that access is by foot only.

(b) Legal to take: All legal game, hog, fish, frogs and furbearers. No bag or size limit ~~restrictions~~ on ~~wild hogs~~.

(c) No change.

(d) General regulations:

1. Hunters shall check in and out at a check station when entering and exiting the area and shall check all game taken.

2. Only tents, trailers or self-propelled camping vehicles may be used for camping.

3. No deer or hog shall be quartered or otherwise dismembered until checked and tagged.

4. Hunters may enter or exit the area at designated access points only during hours in which check stations are in operation.

5. Hunting with dogs (other than bird dogs) is prohibited. During non-hunting periods the possession of dogs shall only be as authorized by the Southwest Florida Water Management District.

6. Vehicles may be operated from 1.5 hours before sunrise until 1.5 hours after sunset during established open seasons, except during the designated fishing and frogging season when vehicles may be operated during daylight hours only. Vehicles may be operated after 8 a.m. until 1.5 hours after sunset one day prior to each archery hunt, general gun season and spring turkey season for scouting. Vehicle access to the designated campsites is allowed at anytime after 8 a.m. one day prior to archery hunts, general gun season and spring turkey season until 1.5 hours after sunset on the last day of the hunt or season, and after 4 p.m. on Friday until 1.5 hours after sunset on Sunday during the small game and fishing and frogging seasons. No person shall operate a motorized vehicle except during established open seasons or by written permission of the Southwest Florida Water Management District. Motorized vehicles may be operated only on named or numbered roads, except Stanley Fish Hole, Orange Lake and Tillman Lake roads shall be open only during the designated fishing and frogging season. Bicycles may be operated only on named or numbered roads and designated bicycle trails. During the designated fishing and frogging season Tanic Grade, Powder Grade and Levee Road north of Main Grade will be closed to vehicle traffic. ~~Designated unimproved roads are open only during the fishing and frogging season.~~

7. Tracked vehicles, airboats, motorcycles, all-terrain vehicles and horses are prohibited.

8. Camps shall be removed by 8:00 p.m., April ~~22~~ ~~23~~ and June ~~17~~ ~~18~~ from the Rock Ridge campground and by April ~~22~~ ~~23~~ from the 471 campground.

9. Hunting during the small game season shall be permitted only in that portion of the area located in T24S, R23E, Sections 7, 8, 17, 18, 19, 20, 29, 30 and 32 and those portions of Sections 16, 21, 28 and 33 south of Bull Barn and west of Levee Roads; and T25S, R23E, Section 5 and those portions of Sections 4 and 9 south of Main, west of Levee and north of Tram Grades and those portions of Sections 7, 8 and 18 along the Withlacoochee River and bounded by state fence.

10. Authorized hunting equipment or dogs may be taken on the area after 8 a.m. one day before the opening of a season and shall be removed from the area on the last day of each season.

(2) Green Swamp Wildlife Management Area – West Unit.

(a) Open season:

1. Special-opportunity turkey – March ~~17-20~~ ~~18-21~~, March ~~26-29~~ ~~27-30~~, March 31 through April 3 ~~4-4~~, April 9-12 ~~10-13~~ and ~~14-17~~ ~~15-18~~.

2. Special-opportunity archery – November ~~4-7~~ ~~5-8~~ and ~~16-19~~ ~~17-20~~.

3. Special-opportunity general gun – December ~~14-17~~ ~~15-18~~, January ~~8-11~~ ~~9-12~~ and ~~18-21~~ ~~19-22~~.

4. Special-opportunity hog-still – February ~~2-4~~ ~~3-5~~.

5. Special-opportunity hog-dog – February ~~14-16~~ ~~15-18~~.

6. Small game – February ~~23-25~~ ~~24-26~~ and March ~~2-4~~ ~~3-5~~.

7. Fishing and frogging – Permitted throughout the year.

8. Trapping – Prohibited.

(b) Legal to take: All legal game, ~~and hogs~~, fish, frogs and furbearers (except bobcat and otter). Turkeys may be taken only during the special-opportunity turkey hunts. The bag limit for turkey shall be one gobbler (or bearded turkey) per special-opportunity turkey hunt permit. One antlered deer may be taken per special-opportunity deer hunt permit. Antlerless deer (except spotted fawns) may be taken by antlerless deer permit only. Taking of antlered deer not having at least one antler with four or more points is prohibited. Only hogs may be taken during the special-opportunity hog-still and special-opportunity hog-dog seasons. No bag or size limits on ~~wild hogs. Fish and frogs throughout the year.~~

(c) through (d) No change.

(3) Fred C. Babcock/Cecil M. Webb Wildlife Management Area.

(a) Open season:

1. General gun – October ~~28~~ ~~29~~ through November ~~5~~ ~~6~~.

2. Small game:

a. November ~~11-19~~ ~~12-20~~, and

b. November ~~22~~ ~~23~~ through January ~~14~~ ~~15~~ on Wednesdays, Thursdays, Saturdays, Sundays only and November ~~24~~ ~~25~~.

3. Fishing and frogging – Throughout year.

4. Archery – September ~~9-10~~ ~~10-11~~.

5. Quail – Wednesday, Thursday, Saturday, and Sunday – November ~~15-19~~ ~~16-20~~, ~~22-26~~ ~~23-27~~, November ~~29~~ ~~30~~ through December ~~3~~ ~~4~~, December ~~6-10~~ ~~7-11~~, ~~13-17~~ ~~14-18~~ and ~~20-24~~ ~~21-25~~.

(b) through (c) No change.

(d) General regulations:

1. Hunters shall check in and out at a check station when entering and exiting the area and shall check all game taken.

2. Users may enter the designated campsite at anytime. All users shall enter the remainder of the management area via Tucker Grade (I-75 side). During archery season, hunters shall enter the area no earlier than 5:00 a.m. and shall exit no later than 9:00 p.m. During all other periods open to hunting, hunters shall enter the area no earlier than 5:00 a.m. and shall exit no later than 8:00 p.m. During periods closed to hunting, users shall enter the area no earlier than one-half (1/2) hour before sunrise and shall exit no later than one-half (1/2) hour after sunset.

3. Hunting will be permitted on the field trial area and Boy Scout area during the following periods:

a. General gun – October ~~28~~ ~~29~~ through November ~~5~~ ~~6~~, by walking hunters.

b. Small game season on Wednesdays and Thursdays only, by walking hunters, provided that the taking of quail is prohibited.

c. Field trial quail – January ~~27-28~~ ~~28-29~~.

d. Archery season – by walking hunters.

4. The use of motorcycles, all-terrain vehicles or airboats is prohibited, except that motorcycles may be used to access the shooting range along the most direct route on Tucker Grade between the shooting range and the check station.

5. Hunting camps may be set up after 8:00 a.m. October ~~20~~ ~~21~~ and shall be removed by 9:00 p.m. the last day of the small game season. Camping is permitted from 5:00 p.m. Friday to 9:00 p.m. Sunday and on Memorial Day, Independence Day, Martin Luther King Jr. Day, and Labor Day during the remainder of the year.

6. Bird dogs may be trained in designated areas during the bird dog training season, September ~~16~~ ~~17~~ through February ~~11~~ ~~12~~. Dogs shall be caged or leashed in camp areas. Hunting with dogs during the general gun season is prohibited. During quail season, bird dogs may be trained on Mondays, Tuesdays, and Fridays only.

7. During closed seasons vehicles may be operated only on named or numbered roads in the recreational area lying south of the northern boundaries of Sections 19, 20 and 21, Township 41S, Range 24E and west of the first north-south fence line east of the Seaboard Grade. The operation of vehicles is prohibited in Sections 13, 14, 23 and 24, Township 42S, Range 24E and the west 1/2 of Section 19, Township 42S, Range 25E.

8. The name, address and telephone number of the person responsible for each campsite shall be visibly affixed to camping shelters.

9. Persons may use the shooting range during periods when hunting is not allowed on the area, provided that access shall only be along the most direct route on Tucker Grade between the shooting range and the check station. Guns transported to the shooting range shall be unloaded and cased. Possession of a gun during periods when hunting is not allowed is prohibited except on the shooting range and that portion of Tucker Grade directly between the shooting range and the check station. During periods open to hunting, persons possessing a gun on that portion of the area other than the shooting range or that portion of Tucker Grade directly between the range and the check station shall comply with all stamp and license requirements specified in Section 372.57, F.S., and Commission rules. Users shall not enter the shooting range before sunrise and shall exit the shooting range by sunset.

10. No person shall operate a vehicle off named or numbered roads, except during the general gun and small game seasons or when training bird dogs without guns in the recreation area during the bird dog training season.

11. Vehicular access for scouting shall be permitted one week prior to the archery season on named and numbered roads only.

12. During the quail season, shotguns shall be plugged to a three-shell capacity with a one-piece filler that cannot be removed without disassembling the gun.

13. Authorized hunting equipment may be taken on the area beginning one week prior to the archery season.

(4) Fred C. Babcock/Cecil M. Webb Wildlife Management Area – Yucca Pens Unit.

(a) Open season:

1. General gun – October ~~28~~ ~~29~~ through November ~~5~~ ~~6~~.

2. Small Game – November ~~11~~ ~~12~~ through January ~~14~~ ~~15~~ on Wednesdays, Thursdays, Saturdays, Sundays only and November ~~24~~ ~~25~~.

3. Muzzleloading gun – October ~~13-15~~ ~~14-16~~.

4. Fishing and frogging – Throughout the year.

(b) through (d) No change.

(5) Upper Hillsborough Wildlife Management Area.

(a) Open season:

1. Archery – December ~~9-17~~ ~~10-18~~ and January ~~6-14~~ ~~7-15~~, Saturdays and Sundays only.

2. Muzzleloading gun – November ~~11~~ ~~12~~ through December ~~3~~ ~~4~~, Saturdays and Sundays only.

3. Small game – January ~~20~~ ~~21~~ through February ~~4~~ ~~5~~, Saturdays and Sundays only.

4. Spring turkey – March ~~21-22~~ ~~22-23~~, ~~28-29~~ ~~29-30~~, April ~~4-5~~ ~~5-6~~, ~~11-12~~ ~~12-13~~ and ~~18-19~~ ~~19-20~~.

5. Fishing and frogging – Permitted year-round.

(b) Legal to take: All legal game, hog, fish, frogs, and furbearers. No bag or size limit ~~restrictions~~ on ~~wild~~ hogs.

(c) No change.

(d) General regulations:

1. No deer, turkey or hog may be dismembered or quartered until checked and tagged.

2. Hunters shall check in and out at a check station when entering and exiting the area and shall check all game taken.

3. Tracked vehicles, airboats, motorcycles and all-terrain vehicles are prohibited.

4. Horses are prohibited during periods when hunting is allowed, but are permitted at other times with written permission from the Southwest Florida Water Management District.

5. Motorized vehicles may be operated only on named or numbered roads designated as open to vehicular traffic.

6. Bicycles may be operated only on named or numbered roads or designated bicycle trails.

7. During periods not open for hunting, access to the area is limited to pedestrians.

8. Hunting with dogs other than bird dogs is prohibited. During non-hunting periods the possession of dogs shall only be as authorized by the Southwest Florida Water Management District.

9. Only tents, trailers or self-propelled camping vehicles may be used for camping.

10. Guns and camping equipment may be taken into the area beginning 3:00 p.m. the day before each hunting period and shall be removed by 8:00 p.m. the last day of each hunting period except during spring turkey season when guns and camping equipment shall be removed by 5:00 p.m. the last day of each hunt.

11. During the small game season, only shotguns are permitted. During the spring turkey season only muzzleloading guns, shotguns and bows and arrows are permitted.

(6) Arbuckle Wildlife Management Area.

(a) Open season:

1. Archery – October ~~14~~ ¹⁵ through November ~~3~~ ⁴.

2. Muzzleloading gun – November ~~4-12~~ ⁵⁻¹³.

3. General gun hog – November ~~18-26~~ ¹⁹⁻²⁷, Saturdays and Sundays only.

4. Spring turkey – March ~~20-22~~ ²¹⁻²³ and April ~~3-5~~ ⁴⁻⁶.

5. Fishing – Permitted year-round. Frogging – Prohibited.

(b) through (d) No change.

(7) KICCO Wildlife Management Area.

(a) Open season:

1. Archery – September ~~23~~ ²⁴ through October ~~22~~ ²³, Saturdays and Sundays only.

2. Muzzleloading gun – October ~~28~~ ²⁹ through November ~~5~~ ⁶, Saturdays and Sundays only.

3. General gun hog – November ~~11~~ ¹² through December ~~10~~ ¹¹, Saturdays and Sundays only.

4. Small game – December ~~16~~ ¹⁷ through January ~~7~~ ⁸.

5. Spring turkey – March ~~17~~ ¹⁸ through April ~~15~~ ¹⁶, Saturdays and Sundays only.

6. Fishing, frogging and other recreational use – Permitted year-round.

(b) Legal to take: All legal game, hog, fish, frogs, and furbearers; ~~(except bobcat, and otter)~~. Turkey bag limit – one per quota permit. No size or bag limit on ~~wild~~ hogs. During the general gun hog season, only ~~wild~~ hogs may be taken.

(c) No change.

(d) General regulations:

1. Hunters in possession of a valid quota hunt permit may operate motor vehicles on named or numbered roads during the archery, muzzleloading gun, spring turkey, and general gun hog seasons. Vehicles must be parked in designated parking areas or within 25 feet of a named or numbered road. The use of tracked vehicles, airboats, motorcycles or all-terrain vehicles is prohibited. Horses are prohibited except by written permission from the South Florida Water Management District.

2. Fires other than campfires at designated campsites are prohibited.

3. The possession or use of centerfire or rimfire rifles or pistols is prohibited.

4. Hunters shall check in and out at the check station when entering or exiting the area and shall check all game taken.

5. Only tents may be used for camping at designated hunt campsites.

6. No deer, turkey, or hog may be dismembered or quartered until checked and tagged at the check station.

7. Hunting with dogs is prohibited during the archery, muzzleloading gun and general gun seasons. The use of dogs, other than retrievers, bird dogs and dogs with a shoulder height of 15 inches or less is prohibited during the small game season.

8. The portion of the area north and east of River Ranch Road shall be open to hunting only during the general gun hog season.

9. Vehicular access to the area is prohibited during the period from 1.5 hours after sunset to 1.5 hours before sunrise.

(8) Hickory Hammock Wildlife Management Area.

(a) Open season:

1. General gun hog – September ~~15-17~~ ¹⁷⁻¹⁸ and ~~22-24~~ ²⁴⁻²⁵ and January ~~12-14~~ ¹⁴⁻¹⁵.

~~2. Archery – October 20-22.~~

~~3. Muzzleloading gun – October 30 through November 1~~ ²⁹⁻³⁰ and November ~~3-5~~ ⁵⁻⁶.

~~4. General gun – November 10-12~~ ¹²⁻¹³.

~~5. Small game – November 13~~ ¹⁴ through January ~~7~~ ⁸.

~~6. Early duck – In the September season as established by Rule 68A-13.003, F.A.C., until noon.~~

~~7. Migratory game birds – During the migratory game bird seasons as established by Rules 68A-13.003 and 68A-13.008, F.A.C. During the duck and coot season, hunting is limited to the period one-half (1/2) hour before sunrise until noon.~~

~~8.7.~~ Falconry – During the falconry season as established by Rules 68A-13.004 and 68A-13.008, F.A.C.

~~9.8.~~ Spring turkey – March ~~22-24~~ ~~23-25~~ and April ~~12-14~~ ~~13-15~~.

~~10.9.~~ Fishing and frogging – Permitted throughout the year.

(b) Legal to take: All legal game, fish, frogs and furbearers ~~except wild hogs may be taken only during the general gun hog season.~~ Taking of antlered deer not having at least one antler with three or more points, one inch or more in length, is prohibited. During the muzzleloading gun and general gun seasons the ~~The~~ bag limit for antlered deer shall be one per quota ~~hunt~~ permit. During the archery season the bag limit for deer shall be one antlered and one antlerless deer per quota permit. No size or bag limits on wild hogs. During spring turkey season, the bag limit shall be one gobbler (or bearded turkey) per quota hunt permit. Only wild hog may be taken during the general gun hog season.

(c) through (d) No change.

(9) Walk-in-the-Water Wildlife Management Area.

(a) Open season:

1. Archery – ~~September 30 through October 15~~ ~~14-16~~.

2. Muzzleloading gun – ~~October 27-29~~ ~~28-30~~.

3. General gun hog – ~~January 13-21~~ ~~14-22~~.

4. Small game – ~~November 18~~ ~~19~~ through ~~December 10~~ ~~11~~ and ~~February 3-18~~ ~~4-19~~.

5. Fishing – Permitted throughout the year. Frogging is prohibited.

(b) Legal to take: All legal game (except turkeys), hog and fish. Deer bag limit – one per day. No size or bag limit on hog. ~~Wild hog bag limit – no size or bag limits.~~ During the general gun hog season only ~~wild~~ hogs may be taken.

(c) through (d) No change.

(10) Hilochee Wildlife Management Area.

(a) Open season:

1. Special-opportunity dove – The first, second, and fourth Saturdays only during the first phase; the first and third Saturdays only during the second phase; and the first, third, and fifth Saturdays only during the third phase of the mourning dove and white-winged dove season established by Rule 68A-13.008, F.A.C.

2. Spring turkey – ~~March 23-25~~ ~~24-26~~ and ~~April 6-8~~ ~~7-9~~.

3. Muzzleloading gun – ~~November 3-5~~ ~~4-6~~.

4. General gun hog – ~~December 1-3~~ ~~2-4~~, ~~January 12-14~~ ~~13-15~~ and ~~19-21~~ ~~20-22~~.

5. Small game – ~~January 26~~ ~~27~~ through ~~February 4~~ ~~5~~.

6. Archery – ~~October 20-22~~ ~~21-23~~.

7. Fishing – Permitted on Peat Lake, Little Peat Lake, Hidden Lake, Stock Lake, and Turtle Pond by those in possession of a Hilochee Fishing Permit. The possession of nets (except dip nets), fish traps, trotlines, set lines, minnow seines, cast nets, or bush hooks is prohibited. Fishing is

permitted on Saturdays only and during daylight hours only. Ten fishing permits shall be available for each Saturday. Permits shall be nontransferable with no exemptions.

(b) through (d) No change.

(11) Lake Marion Creek Wildlife Management Area.

(a) Open season:

1. Archery – ~~September 23-25~~ ~~24-26~~ and ~~September 29~~ ~~30~~ through ~~October 1~~ ~~2~~.

2. Muzzleloading gun – ~~October 28-30~~ ~~29-31~~.

3. General gun – ~~November 11-13~~ ~~12-14~~ and ~~17-19~~ ~~18-20~~.

4. Small game – ~~December 8-10~~ ~~9-11~~ and ~~15-17~~ ~~16-18~~.

5. General gun hog – January 6-8.

~~6.5.~~ Spring turkey – ~~March 17-19~~ ~~18-20~~, ~~March 30~~ ~~31~~ through ~~April 1~~ ~~2~~ and ~~April 13-15~~ ~~14-16~~.

~~7.6.~~ Fishing and frogging – Permitted throughout the year.

(b) Legal to take: All legal game, fish and furbearers. One antlered deer may be taken per quota ~~hunt~~ permit. No more than one antlerless deer may be taken per archery quota permit. Antlerless deer may be taken by permit only during the muzzleloading and general gun seasons. There shall be no size or bag limit restrictions on wild hogs. During the spring turkey season, the bag limit for turkey shall be one gobbler (or bearded turkey) per quota ~~hunt~~ permit. Only wild hog may be taken during the general gun hog season.

(c) through (d) No change.

(12) Avon Park Air Force Range Wildlife Management Area.

(a) Open season:

1. Archery – ~~September 23~~ ~~24~~ through ~~October 22~~ ~~23~~ in areas and during days specified by the Installation Commander.

2. Muzzleloading gun – ~~October 28~~ ~~29~~ through ~~November 5~~ ~~6~~ in areas and during days specified by the Installation Commander.

3. General gun – ~~November 11~~ ~~12~~ through ~~January 21~~ ~~22~~ in areas and during days specified by the Installation Commander.

4. Small game – ~~January 1~~ ~~2~~ through ~~March 4~~ ~~5~~ in areas and during days specified by the Installation Commander.

5. Spring turkey – ~~March 17~~ ~~18~~ through ~~April 22~~ ~~23~~ in areas and during days specified by the Installation Commander.

6. Antlerless deer – ~~November 18-24~~ ~~19-25~~ in areas and during days specified by the Installation Commander.

7. Trapping – Prohibited.

8. Fishing and frogging – During periods when hunting is allowed and at other times specified by the Installation Commander.

(b) through (d) No change.

(13) Croom Wildlife Management Area.

(a) Open season:

1. Muzzleloading gun – ~~October 27-29~~ ~~28-30~~.

2. General gun – ~~November 11~~ ~~12~~ through ~~December 3~~ ~~4~~.

- 3. Small game – December ~~4~~ ⁵ through March ~~4~~ ⁵.
- 4. Spring turkey – March ~~20-22~~ ²¹⁻²³, April ~~3-5~~ ⁴⁻⁶ and ~~17-19~~ ¹⁸⁻²⁰.
- 5. Fox, raccoon and bobcat – December ~~14~~ ¹⁵ through March ~~11~~ ¹². Hunting is permitted from 5:00 p.m. Thursday to sunrise Sunday with dogs only. No guns allowed.
- 6. Fishing and frogging – Throughout year.
- 7. Duck and coot – During the migratory game bird seasons as established by Rule 68A-13.003, F.A.C.
 - (b) Legal to take: All legal game, hog, fish, frogs and furbearers. No size or bag limit on ~~wild~~ hogs. During spring turkey season, the bag limit shall be one gobbler (or bearded turkey) per quota ~~hunt~~ permit.
 - (c) No change.
 - (d) General regulations:
 - 1. Hunting with dogs is prohibited November ~~11~~ ¹² through December ~~3~~ ⁴. Hunting with dogs other than bird dogs is prohibited December ~~4-13~~ ⁵⁻¹⁴, except that dogs may be used for hunting fox, raccoon or bobcat during the fox, raccoon and bobcat season, and dogs with a shoulder height of 15 inches or less may be used to hunt small game during the small game season in the portion of the area south of the ~~Tucker Hill~~ Croom ~~graded~~ road, bounded on the east by Croom-Rital Road to its juncture with the boundary fence of the Croom Motorcycle area located in Sections 17, 18, 19, 30, 31 and those parts of Sections 7 and 8 lying south of the old railroad right-of-way, Township 22 South, Range 21 East, and thence bounded by said boundary fence. Trailing dogs on a leash are permitted.
 - 2. Motorcycles and all-terrain vehicles may be operated off roads in Sections 17, 18, 19, 30, 31 and those parts of Sections 7 and 8 lying south of the old railroad right-of-way, Township 22 South, Range 21 East (Croom Motorcycle area) only. Operation of motorcycles and all-terrain vehicles in this area is permitted throughout the year but all such vehicles shall be permitted by the state Division of Forestry. Vehicles may be operated only on named or numbered roads in that portion of the area lying outside the Croom Motorcycle Area, but such vehicles must be properly licensed under Chapter 320, F.S., or otherwise legal to operate on public roads. ~~During the general gun, muzzleloading gun, spring turkey and small game seasons, all terrain vehicles are prohibited on that portion of the area lying outside the Croom Motorcycle Area.~~
 - 3. Horses may be ridden only on named or numbered roads or on designated horse trails.
 - 4. The possession of firearms is prohibited at all times in Sections 17, 18, 19, 30, 31 and those parts of Sections 7 and 8 lying south of the old railroad right-of-way, Township 22 South, Range 21 East.
 - 5. Only tents, trailers or self-propelled camping vehicles may be used for camping.

- 6. During the general gun, spring turkey, and muzzleloading gun seasons, all game taken shall be checked at the check station, and no turkey shall be dismembered until checked at the check station.
- 7. The possession of guns is prohibited on the Withlacoochee State Trail. Hunters shall only use designated crossings to transport guns across the State Trail.
 - (14) Chassahowitzka Wildlife Management Area.
 - (a) Open season:
 - 1. Archery – September ~~23~~ ²⁴ through October ~~22~~ ²³.
 - 2. Muzzleloading gun – October ~~27-29~~ ²⁸⁻³⁰.
 - 3. General gun – November ~~11~~ ¹² through January ~~7~~ ⁸.
 - 4. Duck and coot – Wednesdays, Saturdays and Sundays ~~only during the migratory game bird seasons as of the duck and coot season established by Rule 68A-13.003, F.A.C.~~
 - 5. Fishing, frogging and other recreational use – Permitted year-round.
 - ~~6. Small game – December 1 through January 8.~~
 - ~~6.7. Spring turkey – March 24-27 25-28 and March 28 29 through April 1 2.~~
 - (b) through (d) No change.

PROPOSED EFFECTIVE DATE: July 1, 2006.

Specific Authority Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const., 372.121, 375.313 FS. Law Implemented Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const., 372.121, 375.313 FS. History—New 6-21-82, Amended 7-1-83, 11-17-83, 7-5-84, 10-1-84, 7-1-85, 9-19-85, 5-7-86, 5-10-87, 6-8-87, 10-8-87, 5-1-88, 7-1-89, 7-1-90, 7-1-91, 7-2-91, 7-1-92, 8-23-92, 7-1-93, 7-1-94, 7-1-95, 7-1-96, 9-15-96, 6-1-97, 8-7-97, 7-1-98, 10-20-98, 12-28-98, 7-1-99, Formerly 39-15.061, Amended 12-9-99, 3-30-00, 7-1-00, 7-1-01, 5-13-02, 5-25-03, 7-1-04, 7-1-05, ~~7-1-06~~.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE: Mr. Nick Wiley, Director, Division of Hunting and Game Management

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Mr. Kenneth D. Haddad, Executive Director

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: September 21, 2005

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: November 23, 2005

FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION

Freshwater Fish and Wildlife

RULE CHAPTER TITLE: Type I Wildlife Management Areas
 RULE TITLE: Specific Regulations for Wildlife Management Areas – North Central Region
 RULE CHAPTER NO.: 68A-15
 RULE NO.: 68A-15.062

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose of the proposed rule changes is to revise specific area regulations on Wildlife Management Areas (WMAs) in the North Central Region and

conform to calendar year date changes. The effect of the proposed rule changes is to enable the agency to better manage fish and wildlife resources and public use on WMAs.

SUMMARY: The proposed rule changes would adjust season dates to conform to calendar year changes and revise specific area regulations on Wildlife Management Areas (WMAs) in the North Central Region as follows:

Cypress Creek WMA – The proposed rule change would allow camping at any time with a permit from the landowner.

Gulf Hammock WMA – The proposed rule changes would increase general gun season from 58 to 72 days; increase muzzleloading gun season from three to nine days; allow hogs to be taken during the entire general gun season; and, establish a still hunt only area where the possession or use of dogs, other than waterfowl retrievers or bird dogs is prohibited, except as provided by Rule 68A-15.004, F.A.C.

Lochloosa WMA – The proposed rule changes would add a third quota hunt to the general gun season and prohibit tracked vehicles, ATVs and unlicensed vehicles on the area.

Osceola WMA – The proposed rule changes would require that in the area south of I-10, vehicles be restricted to numbered roads throughout the year and increase the number of roads open for public use to conform with a change in U.S. Forest Service access regulations; eliminate a redundant rule allowing shotguns during archery season; and, make a technical correction to allow guns on the gun range year-round.

Big Bend WMA, Tide Swamp Unit – The proposed rule changes would open additional roads for a new driving tour and make a technical correction to allow dogs on a leash for trailing wounded game and during non-hunting periods.

Big Bend WMA, Hickory Mound Unit – The proposed rule change would allow only the taking of migratory game birds, within the Hickory Mound Impoundment, on days that waterfowl and coot hunting is allowed.

Big Bend WMA, Snipe Island Unit – The proposed rule changes would make a technical correction to allow dogs on a leash for trailing wounded game and during non-hunting periods.

Raiford WMA – The proposed rule change would allow the take of hogs with no size or bag limit.

Andrews WMA – The proposed rule changes would add a third 3-day small game hunt; establish two 2-day family hunts for hogs only; allow only the take of deer and hog during the youth hunt; allow hunters to have their zone tag in their possession rather than wearing it; and, make a technical change to eliminate the name of a road.

Big Shoals WMA – The proposed rule change would only require hunters to have their zone tag in their possession rather than being required to wear it visibly.

Twin Rivers WMA – The proposed rule change would eliminate the requirement for a quota permit and zone tag during the small game season.

Holton Creek WMA – The proposed rule would allow camping at any time with a permit from the landowner.

Goethe WMA – The proposed rule changes would increase the length of the archery season from 16 to 23 days; increase the length of the general gun still season from four to six days and split the quota hunt into two 3-day hunts; increase the length of the general gun dog season from five to seven days and split the quota hunt into a 3-day and a 4-day hunt; increase the length of the small game season from 16 to 23 days and move the season from late November to mid January; increase the length of the spring turkey season from nine to 16 days and add a second quota hunt; allow camping with a permit from the landowner; create a dove only hunting area in which only shotguns would be allowed; and, prohibit public access from 1.5 hours after sunset until 1.5 hours before sunrise (camping allowed by permit).

San Pedro Bay WMA – The proposed rule changes would increase the length of the muzzleloading gun season from three to nine days and remove the bag and size limit, and time frame restriction on taking hogs.

Citrus WMA – The proposed rule changes would establish three new 3-day spring turkey hunts; allow the take of hogs with no size or bag limit during small game season; and, make a technical correction to clarify the boundary of the field trial area.

Flying Eagle WMA – The proposed rule change would allow the take of hogs with no size or bag limit during small game season.

Potts WMA – The proposed rule change would add all furbearers, except bobcat and otter, as legal to take.

Homosassa WMA – The proposed rule changes would require hunters to check their game and change the word “firelines” to “trails”.

Devil’s Hammock WMA – The proposed rule changes would establish two 2-day family hunts for hogs with only hog as legal to take and increase the length of the small game season from 16 to 30 days.

Mallory Swamp WMA – The proposed rule changes would allow the take of hogs with no size or bag limit during small game season; expand the still hunt area by adding approximately 3,000 acres, which are currently closed to hunting, and allow hunting in this new area except during general gun season; and, reduce the checking requirement during the general gun season.

Middle Aucilla WMA – The proposed rule change would make a technical correction to allow dogs on a leash for trailing wounded game and during non-hunting periods.

Little River WMA – The proposed rule change would allow camping at any time with a permit from the landowner.

Troy Springs WMA – The proposed rule change would allow camping at any time with a permit from the landowner.

Bayard WMA – The proposed rule change would allow public access year-round in an area that is not open for hunting.

Grove Park WMA – The proposed rule changes would increase the length of the muzzleloading gun season from three to nine days and clarify that persons without a Recreational Use Permit may access the recreational trails, identified on the WMA brochure map, for horseback riding, bicycling and hiking.

Steinhatchee Springs WMA - The proposed rule change would make a technical correction to allow dogs on a leash for trailing wounded game and during non-hunting periods.

Nassau WMA – The proposed rule changes would increase the length of the muzzleloading gun season from three to nine days, and make a technical correction to allow dogs on a leash for trailing wounded game and during non-hunting periods.

Ralph E. Simmons WMA – The proposed rule change would allow only one quota permit to be used per person, per season; and, establish a bag limit for deer of one antlered and one antlerless deer per person, except that antlerless deer may only be taken during the archery and mobility-impaired seasons.

A STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST HAS NOT BEEN PREPARED REGARDING THESE PROPOSED RULES.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated regulatory costs, or to provide a proposal for lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: Article IV, Section 9, Florida Constitution; 372.121, 375.313 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: Article IV, Section 9, Florida Constitution; 372.121, 375.313 FS.

THE FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION WILL CONDUCT A PUBLIC RULEMAKING HEARING ON THE PROPOSED RULES DURING THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE COMMISSION TO BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATES AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

TIME AND DATES: 8:30 a.m. – 5:00 p.m., each day, February 1-2, 2006

PLACE: Hilton University of Florida Conference Center, 1714 S.W. 34th Street, Gainesville, Florida 32607

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 calendar days before the workshop/meeting by contacting the ADA Coordinator, at (850)488-6411. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency by calling (850)488-9542.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: James V. Antista, General Counsel, Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission, 620 South Meridian Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1600

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

68A-15.062 Specific Regulations for Wildlife Management Areas – North Central Region.

(1) Camp Blanding Wildlife Management Area.

(a) Open season:

1. General gun – November ~~11~~ ~~12~~ through January ~~7~~ ~~8~~.

2. Spring turkey – Hunters shall be afforded at least two five-day periods of hunting, with specific hunt dates and locations to be determined by, and at the discretion of, the Camp Blanding Base Commander.

3. Archery – September ~~27-29~~ ~~28-30~~ and October ~~4-6~~ ~~5-7~~, north of State Road 16 and County Road 215 and east of County Road 225 only, and November ~~11~~ ~~12~~ through January ~~7~~ ~~8~~ in the designated archery area west of County Road 225 and north of Yerkes Road only.

4. Supervised youth – The Saturday and Sunday prior to Columbus Day, and the Saturday and Sunday 12 and 13 days (respectively) after Columbus Day, site to be determined.

5. Muzzleloading gun – October ~~11-13~~ ~~12-14~~ and ~~18-20~~ ~~19-21~~, north of State Road 16 and County Road 215 and east of County Road 225 only.

6. Fishing – Permitted only on designated fish management areas.

7. Trapping – December 1 through January ~~7~~ ~~8~~, only in portion of area north of State Road 16 and County Road 215 and east of County Road 225.

(b) through (d) No change.

(2) Cypress Creek Wildlife Management Area.

(a) Open season:

1. Spring turkey – March ~~17-25~~ ~~18-26~~.

2. Archery – September ~~23~~ ~~24~~ through October ~~8~~ ~~9~~.

3. Muzzleloading gun – October ~~27-29~~ ~~28-30~~.

4. Fishing – Permitted throughout the year.

5. Small game – the Saturday before Thanksgiving through the second Sunday after Thanksgiving.

(b) No change.

(c) Camping: ~~Prohibited during periods when the area is open to hunting. During the periods closed to hunting, camping is~~ allowed by permit only, from the Suwannee River Water Management District.

(d) No change.

(3) Gulf Hammock Wildlife Management Area.

(a) Open season:

1. General gun – November ~~11~~ ~~12~~ through January ~~21~~ ~~8~~.

2. Spring turkey – March ~~17~~ ~~18~~ through April ~~22~~ ~~23~~.

3. Archery – September ~~23~~ ~~24~~ through October ~~22~~ ~~23~~.

4. Muzzleloading gun – October 28 through November ~~5~~ ~~4-6~~.

5. Fishing and frogging – Permitted only during periods when hunting is allowed.

(b) Legal to take: All legal game, fish, frogs and furbearers. ~~Wild hogs may not be taken after the first 23 days of general gun season.~~

(c) Camping: Prohibited.

(d) General regulations:

1. Vehicles may be operated only on established roads.

2. Public access is permitted only when hunting is allowed and on the Friday prior to archery and spring turkey season and on the consecutive Friday, Saturday, and Sunday prior to the general gun season.

3. Public access to the area is permitted only at designated entrances. Public access during periods when hunting is permitted is limited to entering the area no earlier than one hour before legal shooting hours and exiting the area no later than one hour after legal shooting hours.

4. Fires other than campfires are prohibited.

5. Access is permitted only by individuals possessing a valid recreational user permit, except as provided by Section 372.57, F.S.

6. The taking of wildlife by use of a gun on or from the right-of-way of Butler Road south of its intersection with Buckhead Road is prohibited as provided by Rule 68A-4.008, F.A.C.

7. The possession or use of dogs, other than bird dogs or waterfowl retrievers, is prohibited in that portion of the area south of King Road, east of the powerline right-of-way, south of Howell Road and east of Butler Road; except as provided by paragraph 68A-15.004(7)(c) and (d), F.A.C.

(4) Lochloosa Wildlife Management Area.

(a) Open season:

1. General gun – November ~~11-24~~ ~~12~~, November ~~25~~ through December ~~10~~ and December ~~11~~ through January ~~7~~ ~~8~~.

2. Spring turkey – March ~~17~~ ~~18~~ through April ~~22~~ ~~23~~.

3. Archery – September ~~23~~ ~~24~~ through October ~~22~~ ~~23~~.

4. Muzzleloading gun – October ~~27-29~~ ~~28-30~~.

5. Duck and coot – During the duck and coot season established by Rule 68A-13.003, F.A.C.

6. Small game – January ~~8~~ ~~9~~ through March ~~4~~ ~~5~~.

7. Fishing and frogging – Throughout year.

(b) Legal to take: All legal game, hog, fish, frogs and furbearers. No size or bag limit on hogs.

(c) No change.

(d) General regulations:

1. The taking of hogs by the use of dogs is prohibited.

2. Vehicles are restricted to established roads. Tracked vehicles, all-terrain vehicles (ATVs) and unlicensed vehicles are prohibited. Non-motorized bicycles are permitted, but may be ridden only on established roads.

3. During the general gun and small game seasons, hunting as specified by paragraph 68A-24.002(2)(b), F.A.C., is permitted.

4. Taking of wildlife by use of a gun on or from the rights-of-way of County Road 325 is prohibited as provided by Rule 68A-4.008, F.A.C.

5. Fires are prohibited on the area.

6. Horses are permitted only during periods closed to hunting. Horses may be ridden only on established roads.

(5) Osceola Wildlife Management Area.

(a) Open season:

1. General gun – November ~~11~~ ~~12~~ through January ~~7~~ ~~8~~.

2. Small game – January ~~8~~ ~~9~~ through March ~~4~~ ~~5~~.

3. Spring turkey – March ~~17~~ ~~18~~ through April ~~22~~ ~~23~~.

4. Archery – September ~~23~~ ~~24~~ through October ~~15~~ ~~16~~.

5. Muzzleloading gun – October ~~20-27~~ ~~21-28~~ in the still hunt area only.

6. Fox, raccoon, opossum and bobcat – August ~~5~~ ~~6~~ through September ~~26~~ ~~27~~ in the dog hunt portion of the area only from sunset to sunrise.

7. Early duck – In the September season established by Rule 68A-13.003, F.A.C.

8. Fishing and frogging – Throughout year.

9. Trapping – January ~~8~~ ~~9~~ through March 1.

(b) Legal to take: All legal game, fish, frogs, furbearers. Wild hogs may be taken only during the archery, muzzleloading gun, general gun and small game seasons ~~hunts~~. No size or bag limits on wild hogs.

(c) No change.

(d) General regulations:

1. The western dog hunt area includes that portion of the area bounded on the west by Forest Service Road 237; on the south by Forest Service Road 263 and County Road 250; on the east by Forest Service Roads 233, 232, 262, 214, 272 and 270; and on the north by the National Forest Service boundary to the junction with Forest Service Road 237. The eastern dog hunt area includes those lands bounded by the following roads and survey lines: Begin at the intersection of County Road 125 and the northern boundary of the National Forest, proceed south on County Road 125 to the eastern boundary of the National Forest, then south and west along the National Forest boundary to County Road 229, then north along County Roads 229 and 250, then west along Forest Service Road 232, then northwest along Forest Service Road 235 until it becomes Forest Road 39, then generally north along Forest Road 39, then northwest along Forest Road 46, then west along Forest Road 36 to the Baker County/Columbia County line, then north along the west side of Section 31, Township 1 South, Range 19 East, to the northwest corner of Section 30, Township 1 South, Range 19 East, then east along the north boundary of Section 30, Township 1 South, Range 19 East, to the NE corner of the NW 1/4 of the NW 1/4 Section 29, Township 1 North, Range 19 East, then south to the south boundary of Section 29, Township 1 South, Range 19 East, then east to the southeast corner of Section 27, Township 1

South, Range 19 East, then north along the east side of Section 27, Township 1 South, Range 19 East, to the northwest corner of Section 23, Township 1 South, Range 19 East, then east to Forest Road 5, then northwest along Forest Road 5 until it becomes Forest Service Road 297, then along Forest Service Road 297 to Forest Service Road 295, then northwest and eventually northeast along Forest Service Road 295 to State Road 2, then southeast along State Road 2 to Eddy Grade, then south along Eddy Grade to the junction of Forest Road 3, then west along Forest Road 3, southwest, west, and then south along Forest Road 4, then southeast along Forest Road 24 until it intersects the northern boundary of Section 5, Township 1 South, Range 20 East, then east along the Base Line to the Northeast corner of the Northwest 1/4 of Section 3, Township 1 South, Range 20 East, then south along the east boundary of the West 1/2 of Section 3, Township 1 South, Range 20 East to the southwest corner of the North 1/2 of the Northeast 1/4 of Section 10, Township 1 South, Range 20 East, then east back to the beginning point on County Road 125. Except for these areas, the possession or use of dogs other than bird dogs or retrievers is prohibited. However, leashed or caged dogs may be kept at the East Tower, Sandhill and West Tower hunt camps during the general gun season.

2. Deer dogs may be trained from October ~~28~~ 24 through November ~~6~~ 2, except in the still hunt area.

3. Taking of wildlife by use of a gun on or from the rights-of-way of Interstate 10, County Roads 250, 250A, 229, 127 and 125, Forest Service Road 236 (between U.S. 90 and C.R. 250), and State Road 2 is prohibited as provided by Rule 68A-4.008, F.A.C.

~~4. In that portion of the western dog hunt area, north of Forest Service Road 262, vehicles shall be restricted to numbered roads from August 1 through January 15. In that portion of the area south of I-10 vehicles shall be restricted to numbered roads year-round. In that portion of the area lying north and northeast of Forest Service Road 200, west of Forest Service Road 255, north of Forest Service Road 232, north of Forest Service Road 212, and north of Forest Service Road 212-A in Baker County; and those lands lying north of Forest Road 36 in Columbia County, vehicles shall be restricted to numbered roads year-round. Vehicles shall be restricted to numbered roads during the periods November 1 through January 15 in that portion of the still hunt area south of Interstate 10 and east of Forest Service Road 236, and August 1 through January 15 in that portion of the western dog hunt area north of Forest Service Road 262. Vehicles shall be restricted to numbered roads on those lands lying north and northeast of Forest Service Road 200, west of Forest Service Road 255, north of Forest Service Road 232, north of Forest Service Road 212, and north of Forest Service Road 212-A in Baker County; and those lands lying north of Forest Road 36 in Columbia County.~~

5. All deer taken must be checked at a check station. No deer shall be dismembered until checked at a check station.

6. Operation of a vehicle in areas posted as closed to vehicles is prohibited.

~~7. Shotguns are permitted on the area during the early experimental duck season established by Rule 68A-13.003, F.A.C., but only by hunters meeting the permit and license requirements for hunting ducks.~~

~~7.8.~~ No person shall transport dogs, other than bird dogs or retrievers, through the still hunt area to the western dog hunt area except on Forest Service Road 285; on Forest Service Road 236 eastward from US 441; on Forest Service Road 263; on Forest Service Road 262 east from US 441; on Forest Service Road 233 north from County Road 250; on Forest Service Road 233 east from US 441 to its juncture with Forest Service Road 237 and then north on Forest Service Road 237 to the boundary of the dog hunt area, and on Forest Service Road 232 west from the east dog hunt area.

~~8. Persons may possess and use guns year-round on the shooting range. Guns being transported to and from the range shall be unloaded and cased. During periods when hunting is not allowed guns must be transported to and from the range from US 90, north on McCloskey Avenue to Forest Road 278, then west to the gun range; or from Williams Road to Forest Road 217, then easterly on Forest Road 278 to the range.~~

(6) Big Bend Wildlife Management Area – Tide Swamp Unit.

(a) Open season:

1. General gun – November ~~11~~ 12 through January ~~7~~ 8.

2. Archery – September ~~23~~ 24 through October ~~22~~ 23.

3. Muzzleloading gun – October ~~27-29~~ 28-30.

4. Small game – January ~~8~~ 9 through March ~~4~~ 5.

5. Fishing and frogging – Throughout the year.

6. Early duck – In the September season established by Rule 68A-13.003, F.A.C.

7. Duck and coot – During the duck and coot season established by Rule 68A-13.003, F.A.C.

8. Spring turkey – March ~~17~~ 18 through April ~~22~~ 23.

9. Trapping – January ~~8~~ 9 through March 1.

(b) through (c) No change.

(d) General regulations:

1. Possession or use of dogs other than waterfowl retrievers or ~~and~~ bird dogs is prohibited, except as provided by paragraph 68A-15.004(7)(c) or (d), F.A.C.

2. Motorized vehicles may be operated only on named or numbered roads from September 1 through April 30. From May 1 through August 31 all motorized vehicles shall be operated only on Dallus Creek Road, Hagen's Cove Road, Tide City Mainline, Turkey Track Tram, Pine Island Road, Indian Island Road and Bridge Road Bradley Springs Road.

3. Hunters shall check in and out at a check station when entering or exiting the area and shall check all game taken during the general gun, archery, muzzleloading gun, and spring turkey seasons.

4. During the archery, muzzleloading gun, general gun, and spring turkey seasons no person shall enter or exit the area except through the designated check stations on the Dallis Creek Road and Tide City Mainline.

5. Fires are prohibited.

6. Taking of wildlife by use of a gun on or from the right-of-way of County Road 361 is prohibited as provided by Rule 68A-4.008, F.A.C.

7. The use of all-terrain vehicles (ATVs) is prohibited.

8. During the archery, muzzleloading gun, general gun, and spring turkey seasons hunters shall obtain a daily hunt permit, issued at either check station, when entering the area and retain it in their possession while on the area.

(7) Big Bend Wildlife Management Area – Spring Creek Unit.

(a) Open season:

1. General gun – November ~~11~~ ~~12~~ through January ~~7~~ ~~8~~.

2. Archery – September ~~23~~ ~~24~~ through October ~~22~~ ~~23~~.

3. Muzzleloading gun – October ~~27-29~~ ~~28~~ through ~~30~~.

4. Small game – January ~~8~~ ~~9~~ through March ~~4~~ ~~5~~.

5. Spring turkey – March ~~17~~ ~~18~~ through April ~~22~~ ~~23~~.

6. Trapping – January ~~8~~ ~~9~~ through March 1.

7. Early duck – In the September season established by Rule 68A-13.003, F.A.C.

8. Duck and coot – During the duck and coot season established by Rule 68A-13.003, F.A.C.

9. Fishing and frogging – Throughout year.

(b) through (d) No change.

(8) Big Bend Wildlife Management Area – Hickory Mound Unit.

(a) Open season:

1. General gun – November ~~11~~ ~~12~~ through January ~~7~~ ~~8~~.

2. Small game – January ~~8~~ ~~9~~ through March ~~4~~ ~~5~~.

3. Spring turkey – March ~~17~~ ~~18~~ through April ~~22~~ ~~23~~.

4. Archery – September ~~23~~ ~~24~~ through October ~~22~~ ~~23~~.

5. Early duck – Mondays, Wednesdays, and Saturdays on the Hickory Mound Impoundment and permitted every day of the season on the remainder of the area as established by Rule 68A-13.003, F.A.C.

6. Duck and coot – Mondays, Wednesdays, Saturdays and the first day of each phase of the duck and coot season on the Hickory Mound Impoundment and permitted every day of the season on the remainder of the area as established by Rule 68A-13.003, F.A.C.

7. Fishing and frogging – Throughout the year.

8. Trapping – January ~~8~~ ~~9~~ through March 1.

(b) through (c) No change.

(d) General regulations,

1. Duck and coot shooting hours for the Hickory Mound Impoundment: From the beginning of shooting hours established pursuant to Rule 68A-13.003, F.A.C., until noon.

2. Airboats or vehicles are prohibited inside the Hickory Mound Impoundment Area. Gas-powered outboard motors are prohibited in the Hickory Mound Impoundment from August 31 until March 31. Gas-powered outboard motors of 4 h.p. or less are permitted in the Hickory Mound Impoundment from April 1 through August 30.

3. Commercial fishing or crabbing is prohibited in the Hickory Mound Impoundment.

4. Possession of shotguns within the Hickory Mound Impoundment is allowed only during days when duck and coot hunting is allowed and only for taking migratory game birds permitted.

5. The discharge of any firearm from the Hickory Mound Impoundment dikes is prohibited.

6. Hunters shall check in and out at a designated check station when entering or exiting the area and shall check all game taken during the archery, general gun, spring turkey, early duck and regular duck and coot seasons. Hunters shall obtain a daily hunt permit upon checking in and retain it in their possession while on the area.

7. Only shotguns or bows and arrows are permitted in the Hickory Mound Impoundment.

8. Motorized vehicles may be operated only on named or numbered roads from September 1 through April 30. From May 1 through August 31, motorized vehicles may be operated only on Cow Creek Grade, Coker Road, Swartz Tram west of Cow Creek Grade and J.C. Franklin Grade.

9. During the general gun and small game seasons, hunting as specified by paragraph 68A-24.002(2)(b), F.A.C., is permitted.

10. Hunting from permanent blinds or structures in the Hickory Mound Impoundment is prohibited.

11. Fires are prohibited.

12. Hunting with dogs is prohibited during the archery season except that waterfowl retrievers may be used during the early duck season.

(9) Big Bend Wildlife Management Area – Jena Unit.

(a) Open season:

1. General gun – November ~~11~~ ~~12~~ through January ~~7~~ ~~8~~.

2. Spring turkey – March ~~17~~ ~~18~~ through April ~~22~~ ~~23~~.

3. Small game – January ~~8~~ ~~9~~ through March ~~4~~ ~~5~~.

4. Fishing and frogging – Permitted throughout the year.

5. Early duck – In the September season established by Rule 68A-13.003, F.A.C.

6. Duck and coot – During the duck and coot season established by Rule 68A-13.003, F.A.C.

7. Trapping – January ~~8~~ ~~9~~ through March 1.

(b) through (d) No change.

(10) Big Bend Wildlife Management Area – Snipe Island Unit.

(a) Open season:

1. Archery – September ~~23~~ 24 through October ~~22~~ 23.
2. Muzzleloading gun – October ~~27-29~~ 28-30.
3. General gun – November ~~11~~ 12 through December ~~3~~ 4.
4. Small game – January ~~6~~ 7 through February ~~4~~ 5.
5. Spring turkey – March ~~17~~ 18 through April ~~8~~ 9.
6. Trapping – January ~~6~~ 7 through March 1.
7. Fishing and frogging – Permitted throughout the year.

(b) through (c) No change.

(d) General Regulations:

1. The use of tracked vehicles, airboats, motorcycles or all-terrain vehicles is prohibited.

2. Fires are prohibited.

3. Vehicles shall be operated only on named and numbered roads from September 1 through April 30. From May 1 to August 31, vehicles shall be operated only on Mandalay Road and Snipe Island Grade.

4. All hunters shall check in and out at the check station on Mandalay Road or Snipe Island Grade when entering and exiting the area. Hunters shall check all game taken. When check stations are unmanned, hunters shall use self-service check stations.

5. The possession or use of dogs other than waterfowl retrievers ~~or~~ and bird dogs is prohibited, except as provided by paragraph 68A-15.004(7)(c) or (d), F.A.C.

6. Horses are permitted only during periods closed to hunting.

(11) No change.

(12) Raiford Wildlife Management Area.

(a) Open season:

1. Archery – September ~~23~~ 24 through October ~~8~~ 9.
2. Muzzleloading gun – October ~~27-29~~ 28-30.
3. Archery and muzzleloading gun – November ~~11-19~~ 12-20.
4. Spring turkey – March ~~17-25~~ 18-26.
5. Fishing and frogging – During periods in which hunting is allowed.

(b) Legal to take: All legal game, hog, fish, frogs, and furbearers. No size or bag limit on hog. Wild turkeys may be taken during the muzzleloading gun and archery/muzzleloading gun seasons.

(c) through (d) No change.

(13) Cedar Key Scrub Wildlife Management Area.

(a) Open season:

1. General gun – November ~~11-19~~ 12-20.
2. Archery – September ~~23~~ 24 through October ~~8~~ 9.
3. Muzzleloading gun – October ~~27-29~~ 28-30.

(b) - (d) No change.

(14) Andrews Wildlife Management Area.

(a) Open season:

1. Archery – September ~~29~~ 30 through October ~~1~~ 2 and October ~~6-8~~ 7-9.

2. Muzzleloading gun – October ~~27-29~~ 28-30 and November ~~3-5~~ 4-6.

3. General gun – November ~~17-19~~ 18-20.

4. Small game – January ~~5-7~~, ~~6-8~~ 12-14 and ~~19-21~~ 13-15.

5. Family hunt – February 3-4 and 10-11.

~~6.5.~~ Spring turkey – March ~~23-25~~ 24-26 and April ~~13-15~~ 14-16.

~~7.6.~~ Supervised deer-hog youth hunt – October ~~14-15~~ 15-16 and ~~21-22~~ 22-23.

~~8.7.~~ Fishing and frogging – Throughout the year.

(b) Legal to take: All legal game, hog, fish, frogs and furbearers. The bag limit shall be one deer per quota hunt permit. No size or bag limit on ~~wild~~ hogs. During the family hunt, only hog may be taken. During the supervised deer-hog youth hunt, only antlered deer, antlerless deer by permit only, and hog may be taken.

(c) Camping: Prohibited.

(d) General regulations:

1. A quota permit shall be required for each hunter entering the area. The hunter quota has been divided proportionately between zones as follows:

a. Archery – A-4, B-10, C-12, D-12, E-6, F-16.

b. Muzzleloading gun and general gun, small game, and supervised youth hunts – A-3, B-7, C-7, D-9, E-4, F-10.

c. Family hunt – A-2, B-4, C-4, D-4, E-2, F-4.

d.e. Spring turkey – A-2, B-5, C-5, D-7, E-3, F-8.

2. No person shall hunt in any zone other than that to which he is assigned by zone tag. Zone tags shall not be transferred. All hunters shall keep the zone tag in their possession wear zone tags visibly. Zone tags shall be returned to the check station before exiting the area. Zone tags may be reserved for the next day.

3. Hunters shall check in and out at a check station when entering or exiting the area, and shall check all game taken.

4. Vehicles may be operated only on designated portions of named or numbered roads. During periods when the area is closed to hunting, persons may enter the area no earlier than one-half hour before sunrise and shall exit no later than one-half hour after sunset. Horses and all-terrain vehicles are prohibited on the area.

5. Hunting with dogs is prohibited.

6. During the supervised youth hunts, only persons under sixteen years of age but not younger than eight years of age, and under the supervision and in the presence of an adult no younger than 18 years of age as provided in Section 790.22, F.S., may hunt.

7. During open hunting seasons access to the area shall be restricted to individuals with a valid quota hunt permit for the area.

8. During periods open to hunting, no person shall enter the area prior to one hour before legal shooting hours or exit the area after one hour past legal shooting hours.

9. During periods open to hunting, entry into or exit from the area at locations other than designated entrances ~~the check station via CR 211~~ is prohibited.

10. Fires are prohibited.

(15) Big Shoals Wildlife Management Area.

(a) Open season:

1. Archery – September 25-30 ~~26 through October 1, October 2-7~~ 3-8 and 9-14 ~~10-15~~.

2. Muzzleloading gun – October 27-29 ~~28-30~~ and November 3-5 ~~4-6~~.

3. Small game – December 18-23 ~~19-24~~ and December 25-30 ~~26-31~~.

4. Spring turkey – March 22-24 ~~23-25~~ and April 12-14 ~~13-15~~.

5. Fishing – Permitted throughout the year.

(b) Legal to take: During the archery season only antlerless and antlered deer, wild hogs, turkey of either sex ~~either sex turkeys~~, rabbit, and gray squirrel may be taken. During the muzzleloading gun season only antlered deer, wild hogs, rabbits and gray squirrels may be taken. During the small game season only rabbits and gray squirrels may be taken. During the spring turkey season only bearded turkeys or gobblers may be taken. No size or bag ~~or size~~ limit on wild hogs. All legal fish.

(c) No change.

(d) General regulations:

1. No person shall hunt in any zone other than that to which he is assigned by zone tag. Zone tags shall not be transferred. All hunters shall keep the zone tag in their possession ~~wear zone tags visibly~~.

2. Hunters shall check in and out at a check station when entering or exiting the area, and shall check all game taken.

3. During hunting periods, access for hunters will be only through the check station on CR 135.

4. Vehicles may be operated only on designated portions of named or numbered roads. The use of tracked vehicles, motorcycles, airboats or all-terrain vehicles is prohibited on the area. Horses are permitted on roads open to vehicular use or on designated horse trails.

5. Hunting with dogs is prohibited.

6. Persons may enter the area no earlier than one and one-half (1 1/2) hours before sunrise and shall exit no later than one and one-half (1 1/2) hours after sunset year around.

(16) Twin Rivers Wildlife Management Area.

(a) Open season:

1. Archery – September 23 ~~24~~ through October 8 ~~9~~.

2. Muzzleloading gun – October 27-29 ~~28-30~~.

3. General gun – November 11-21 ~~12-22~~.

4. Small game – December 2-24 ~~3-25~~.

5. Spring turkey – March 23-25 ~~24-26~~ and April 13-15 ~~14-16~~.

6. Fishing – Throughout the year.

(b) through (c) No change.

(d) General regulations:

1. ~~A quota permit shall be required for each hunter entering the area.~~ The quota has been divided proportionately between zones as follows: Archery, Muzzleloading Gun and General Gun, A-5, B-35, C-20; Spring Turkey, A-4, B-15, C-5.

2. Hunters shall check in and out at the check station on Highway 90 in Zone B during the archery, muzzleloading gun, general gun and spring turkey seasons and report all game taken.

3. During archery, muzzleloading gun, general gun and spring turkey seasons, no person shall hunt in any zone other than that for which he has a zone tag.

4. Hunters shall obtain a zone tag when they check in at the check station, except during the small game season, and keep it in their possession while hunting on the area.

5. Horses are permitted only during daylight hours on designated roads.

6. Vehicles may be operated only during daylight hours and only on the following roads: Zone A – Spring Road (only during the period from the first Monday after the close of the spring turkey season through Labor Day) and Loop Road; Zone B – Withlacoochee Road, Powerline Road, Loop Road and West Road; Zone C – Road A, Road B, Road C, Road 1, Road 2, Road 3, and Springs Road.

7. All-terrain vehicles are prohibited on the area.

8. Persons may enter and exit the area only on the following roads and trails: Zone A – Loop Road; Zone B – Withlacoochee Road, Powerline Road, Loop Road and West Road; Zone C – Road A, Road B, Road C, Road 1, Road 2, Road 3, Springs Road, and the Florida Trail.

9. Hunting with dogs is prohibited except during the small game season.

10. Wild hogs may not be transported alive.

(17) No change.

(18) Jennings Forest Wildlife Management Area.

(a) Open season:

1. Archery – September 23 ~~24~~ through October 8 ~~9~~.

2. Supervised small game – October 14-22 ~~15-23~~, east of Black Creek only.

3. Muzzleloading gun – October 27-29 ~~28-30~~.

4. General gun – November 11-26 ~~12-27~~.

5. Small game – January 12 ~~13~~ through February 11 ~~12~~, Fridays, Saturdays and Sundays only.

6. Spring turkey – March 17-20 ~~18-21~~ and 21-25 ~~22-26~~.

7. Fishing – Throughout the year.

(b) Legal to take: All legal game, fish and furbearers except bobcat and otter. During the archery, muzzleloading gun and general gun seasons, the bag limit for deer shall be one per

quota ~~hunt~~ permit. During the spring turkey season, the bag limit for turkeys shall be one gobbler (bearded turkey) per quota ~~hunt~~ permit. No size or bag limits on wild hogs.

(c) through (d) No change.

(19) Holton Creek Wildlife Management Area.

(a) Open season:

1. Mobility-impaired general gun – October ~~13-15~~ ~~14-16~~, ~~27-29~~ ~~28-30~~, November ~~3-5~~ ~~4-6~~ and December ~~15-17~~ ~~16-18~~.

2. Mobility-impaired spring turkey – March ~~23-25~~ ~~24-26~~ and April ~~13-15~~ ~~14-16~~.

3. Fishing – Throughout the year.

(b) Legal to take: Any deer (except spotted fawns), wild hogs, bearded turkey, gray squirrel and rabbit. The bag limit shall be one deer and one turkey per quota ~~hunt~~ permit. No size or bag limit on hogs. All legal fish.

(c) Camping: ~~Prohibited during periods open to hunting. During periods closed to hunting, camping is allowed by only with a permit only, from the Suwannee River Water Management District landowner.~~

(d) No change.

(20) Goethe Wildlife Management Area.

(a) Open season:

1. Archery – September ~~23~~ ~~24~~ through October ~~15~~ ~~9~~.

2. Muzzleloading gun – October ~~27-29~~ ~~28-30~~.

3. General gun (still hunt) – November ~~11-13~~ ~~and 14-16~~ ~~12-15~~.

4. General gun (dog hunt) – November ~~17-19~~ ~~and 20-23~~ ~~16-20~~.

5. Small game – ~~January 13 through February 4~~ ~~November 26 through December 11~~.

6. Spring turkey – March ~~17-23~~ ~~and March 24 through April 1~~ ~~18-26~~.

7. Fishing – Throughout the year.

(b) No change.

(c) Camping is allowed by permit only, from the Division of Forestry. ~~Prohibited during periods when the area is open to hunting. During periods closed to hunting, camping is by special permit only from the Division of Forestry.~~

(d) General Regulations:

1. Vehicles may be operated only on named or numbered roads unless otherwise posted as closed.

2. Taking wildlife by use of a gun on or from the rights-of-way of State Road 121 or county roads 343, 326, 337, or 336 is prohibited as provided by Rule 68A-4.008, F.A.C.

3. Fires are permitted only at locations specified by the Division of Forestry.

4. Hunting with dogs is prohibited during the general gun still hunt season, archery season, and muzzleloading gun season. Hunting with dogs other than bird dogs is prohibited during the small game season.

5. The use of tracked vehicles, airboats, and all-terrain vehicles is prohibited. Horses are permitted only on roads and designated horse trails.

6. Entry into or exit from the area at locations other than the entrances designated on the hunt map is prohibited.

7. Dogs with a shoulder height of more than 17 inches are prohibited during the general gun dog hunt.

8. The portion of the area north of Hospital Road and east of County Road 337 (also known as Hog Pond Tract) shall be open for hunting only during the small game season.

9. Hunters shall check all deer, hogs, and turkeys at one of the area check stations before leaving the area.

10. That portion of the area south of County Road 326 and adjacent to the east side of County Road 337 shall be open only for taking doves as established by Rule 68A-13.008, F.A.C. Only shotguns are allowed on this portion of the area.

11. Public access is prohibited from 1.5 hours after sunset until 1.5 hours before sunrise, except by persons in possession of a camping permit from the Division of Forestry.

(21) San Pedro Bay Wildlife Management Area.

(a) Open season:

1. General gun – November ~~11~~ ~~12~~ through January ~~7~~ ~~8~~.

2. Small game – January ~~8~~ ~~9~~ through March ~~4~~ ~~5~~.

3. Spring turkey – March ~~17~~ ~~18~~ through April ~~22~~ ~~23~~.

4. Archery – September ~~23~~ ~~24~~ through October ~~22~~ ~~23~~.

5. Muzzleloading gun – October ~~28~~ ~~through November 5~~ ~~28-30~~.

6. Early duck – In the September season established by Rule 68A-13.003, F.A.C.

7. Fishing and frogging – During periods the area is open.

8. Trapping – January ~~8~~ ~~9~~ through March 1.

(b) Legal to take: All legal game, hog, fish, frogs, and furbearers. No size or bag limit on hog. ~~Wild hogs may be taken only during the archery season, muzzleloading gun season, and the first 30 days of general gun season.~~

(c) through (d) No change.

(22) Citrus Wildlife Management Area.

(a) Open season:

1. General gun – December ~~16-17~~ ~~17-18~~ and January ~~6-7~~ ~~7-8~~.

2. Small game – January ~~8~~ ~~9~~ through March ~~4~~ ~~5~~.

3. Muzzleloading gun – December ~~9-10~~ ~~10-11~~ and December ~~30-31~~ ~~31~~ through January 1.

4. Archery – November ~~11~~ ~~12~~ through December ~~3~~ ~~4~~.

5. Spring turkey – March 20-22, April 3-5 and 17-19.

~~6-5~~ Fishing and frogging – Throughout the year.

(b) Legal to take: All legal game (~~except turkeys~~), hog, fish, frogs and furbearers. During the archery, muzzleloading gun and general gun seasons, antlerless deer may be taken by permit only. Turkey may be taken only during the spring turkey

season. The bag limit shall be one gobbler (or bearded turkey) per spring turkey quota permit. No size or bag limit on ~~for~~ wild hogs.

(c) Camping: Permitted in designated campsites only.

(d) General regulations:

1. Only bird dogs may be used for hunting during the small game season. Dogs are prohibited at other times except as authorized.

3. Vehicles may be operated only on named or numbered roads. 2. The use of all-terrain vehicles is prohibited.

4. No deer shall be dismembered or removed until checked at the check station.

5. The use of horses for hunting is prohibited except during the small game season.

6. The take of ~~Hunting~~ quail is prohibited ~~east of County Road 491~~ between Trail 16 and ~~County Road State Road~~ 480.

7. Bird dogs may be used during authorized field trials.

8. Bird dogs may be trained in the area ~~east of County Road 491~~ between Trail 16 and Trail 20 October 1 through 31. Scheduled bird dog trial events are authorized only in the area ~~east of County Road 491~~ between Trail 16 and County Road 480.

9. Only tents, trailers or self-propelled camping vehicles may be used for camping.

10. Taking of wildlife by use of a gun on or from rights-of-way of all paved roads is prohibited as provided by Rule 68A-4.008, F.A.C.

11. Camping equipment may not be taken into the area prior to 14 days before the archery season and shall be removed by 6:00 p.m. six days after the close of the small game season.

12. Persons operating vehicles shall enter and exit only at designated entrances.

13. Horses are restricted to named or numbered roads and designated horse trails.

(23) Flying Eagle Wildlife Management Area.

(a) Open season:

1. Archery – ~~September 30 through~~ October ~~8~~ ~~1-9~~.

2. Muzzleloading gun – October ~~27-29~~ ~~28-30~~.

3. General gun – November ~~11-19~~ ~~12-20~~.

4. Small game – November ~~24-26~~ ~~25-27~~ and December ~~15-17~~ ~~16-18~~.

5. Spring turkey – March ~~17-20~~ ~~18-21~~ and ~~21-25~~ ~~22-26~~.

6. Early duck – In September, season established by Rule 68A-13.003, F.A.C.

7. Fishing and frogging – Permitted throughout the year.

(b) Legal to take: All legal game, hog, fish, frogs and furbearers (except otter). Antlerless deer may be taken by permit only during the muzzleloading gun and general gun seasons. No size or bag limit on ~~wild~~ hogs.

(c) through (d) No change.

(24) Potts Wildlife Management Area.

(a) Open season:

1. Spring turkey – March ~~17-20~~ ~~18-21~~ and ~~21-25~~ ~~22-26~~.

2. Archery – October ~~7-15~~ ~~8-16~~.

3. Muzzleloading gun – November ~~3-5~~ ~~4-6~~.

4. General gun hog-dog – November ~~17-19~~ ~~18-20~~.

5. Small game – December ~~8-10~~ ~~9-11~~, January ~~5-7~~ ~~6-8~~, and February ~~2-4~~ ~~3-5~~.

6. Fishing and frogging – Permitted throughout the year.

7. Trapping – Prohibited.

(b) Legal to take: All legal game, ~~wild~~ hogs, fish, ~~and~~ frogs ~~and~~ furbearers (except bobcat and otter). The bag limit for turkey shall be one gobbler (or bearded turkey) per spring turkey quota ~~hunt~~ permit. No size or bag limit on ~~wild~~ hogs. Only ~~wild~~ hogs may be taken during the general gun hog-dog ~~season~~ ~~hunt~~.

(c) No change.

(d) General regulations:

1. During periods when the area is closed to hunting, public access other than on foot, bicycle or horseback is prohibited unless by permit from the Southwest Florida Water Management District with the following exception: vehicular access is permitted one day prior to each hunt from 8 a.m. to 6 p.m., except prior to small game season.

2. Vehicles may be operated only on named or numbered roads and shall be parked within 25 feet of those roads. Bicycles may be ridden only on designated trails.

3. The use of tracked vehicles, motorcycles or all-terrain vehicles is prohibited. During periods when the area is closed to hunting, horses may be ridden only on designated roads and designated trails.

4. Hunters shall check in and out at the check station when entering or exiting the area and shall check all game taken.

5. No game shall be dismembered until checked at the check station.

6. Only tents, trailers or self-propelled camping vehicles may be used for camping.

7. The name and address and telephone number of the person responsible for each campsite shall be visibly affixed to the camping shelter.

8. The use of dogs, other than bird dogs and dogs with a shoulder height of 15 inches or less during the small game season, is prohibited except that dogs may be used during the general gun hog-dog season. During the general gun hog-dog season, no more than three ~~3~~ dogs per quota permit shall be allowed. During non-hunting periods the possession of dogs shall only be as authorized by the Southwest Florida Water Management District.

9. During the general gun hog-dog season, a quota permit shall be required for each group of two hunters, and only one gun may be possessed per quota permit.

(25) Homosassa Wildlife Management Area.

(a) Open season:

1. Small game – November ~~11-12~~ through December ~~3-4~~ and December ~~23-24~~ through January ~~7-8~~.

2. General gun hog – February ~~8-11~~ ~~9-12~~ and ~~22-25~~ ~~23-26~~.

3. Special-opportunity spring turkey – March ~~17-23~~ ~~18-24~~ and ~~March 31 through~~ April ~~6-7~~.

4. Fishing and frogging – Permitted throughout the year.

(b) Legal to take: Only wild hogs may be taken during the general gun hog season. No size or bag limit on hog. There is no bag or size limit restrictions on hogs. All legal small game and furbearers may be taken during the small game season. Wild turkeys may only be taken during the special-opportunity spring turkey season. The bag limit for turkeys shall be one gobbler (or bearded turkey) per special-opportunity permit. Fish and frogs are legal to take throughout the year.

(c) Camping: Prohibited.

(d) General regulations:

1. The use of dogs, other than bird dogs and dogs with a shoulder height of 15 inches or less, is prohibited. Hunting hogs with dogs is prohibited.

2. Vehicles may be operated only on named or numbered roads. Bicycles may be operated only on named or numbered roads and designated trails firelines.

3. Vehicles shall be parked within 25 feet of a named or numbered road.

4. The use of tracked vehicles, airboats, all-terrain vehicles or horses is prohibited.

5. Hunters shall enter and exit the area at designated entrances, ~~and~~ register at the hunt headquarters and check all game taken.

6. Public access to the area is prohibited during the period from 1.5 hours after sunset to 1.5 hours before sunrise.

7. A special-opportunity hunt permit shall be required for every person entering the area during special-opportunity hunts.

8. The possession of centerfire rifles is prohibited.

(26) Devil’s Hammock Wildlife Management Area.

(a) Open season:

1. Archery – September ~~23-26~~ ~~24-27~~, September ~~27-28~~ through October ~~1-2~~ and October ~~2-8~~ ~~3-9~~.

2. Family hunt – October ~~14-15~~ and ~~21-22~~.

~~3-2~~ Muzzleloading gun – October ~~27-29~~ ~~28-30~~.

~~4-3~~ General gun – November ~~11-14~~ ~~12-15~~ and ~~15-19~~ ~~16-20~~.

~~5-4~~ Small game – November 25 through December ~~24~~ ~~10-25~~.

~~6-5~~ Spring turkey – March ~~17-20~~ ~~18-21~~ and ~~21-25~~ ~~22-26~~.

~~7-6~~ Trapping – Prohibited.

~~8-7~~ Fishing – Permitted year-round.

(b) Legal to take: Deer, gray squirrel, rabbit, ~~wild~~ hogs, game birds, and fish. No size or bag limits on ~~wild~~ hogs. Only hog may be taken during the family hunt.

(c) - (d) No Change.

(27) Mallory Swamp Wildlife Management Area.

(a) Open season:

1. Archery – September ~~23-24~~ through October ~~22-23~~.

2. Muzzleloading gun – October ~~28-29~~ through November ~~5-6~~ (still hunt area only).

3. General gun – November ~~11-12~~ through January ~~7-8~~.

4. Small game – January ~~8-9~~ through February ~~4-5~~.

5. Spring turkey – March ~~17-18~~ through April ~~1-2~~.

6. Duck and coot – During the duck and coot season and the early duck season in September established pursuant to Rule 68A-13.003, F.A.C.

7. Trapping – January ~~8-9~~ through March 1.

8. Fishing and frogging – Throughout the year.

(b) Legal to take: All legal game, hog, fish, frogs and furbearers. No size or bag limits on ~~wild~~ hogs.

(c) Camping: Prohibited.

(d) General regulations:

1. Dogs with a shoulder height of more than 17 inches are prohibited during the general gun season. Hunting with dogs other than bird dogs is prohibited in the still hunt area, which are those that portions of the area lying west of Crapps Tower Grade and north of L.A. Bennett Grade, and in that portion of the area lying west of Crapps Tower Grade and south of Deserter’s Hammock Road, and that portion of the area lying south and east of McCall’s Chapel Grade and east of East Mainline.

2. During the muzzleloading gun season and first nine days of the general gun seasons, hunters shall check all game taken at the check station.

3. The use of tracked vehicles, airboats, motorcycles or all-terrain vehicles is prohibited, except that all-terrain vehicles and motorcycles shall be allowed only by permit from the Suwannee River Water Management District. Horses are permitted only on roads and designated horse trails during daylight hours and only during periods closed to hunting.

4. Motorized vehicles may be operated only on established roads. Vehicular traffic is prohibited on roads identified and posted as closed.

5. Fires are prohibited.

6. Licensed trappers may possess .22 rimfire rifles or pistols from February ~~5-7~~ through March 1.

7. During the general gun season, taking of wildlife is prohibited south and east of McCall’s Chapel Grade and east of East Mainline.

(28) Middle Aucilla Wildlife Management Area.

(a) Open season:

1. General gun – November ~~11-12~~ through January ~~7-8~~.

2. Muzzleloading gun – October ~~28-29~~ through November ~~5-6~~.

3. Small game – January ~~8-9~~ through March ~~4-5~~.

4. Archery – September ~~23-24~~ through October ~~22-23~~.

5. Spring turkey – March ~~17-18~~ through April ~~22-23~~.

6. Trapping: Prohibited.
7. Fishing: Permitted throughout the year.
- (b) through (c) No change.
- (d) General Regulations:
1. Vehicles may be operated only on designated roads.
 2. The use of all-terrain vehicles is prohibited.
 3. Fires are prohibited.
 4. The possession or use of dogs, other than bird dogs or waterfowl retrievers, is prohibited, except as provided by paragraph 68A-15.004(7)(c) or (d), F.A.C.
 5. A quota permit is required of all hunters entering the area during open hunting seasons, except during the small game season.
 6. Hunting hogs by the use of dogs is prohibited.
- (29) Little River Wildlife Management Area.
- (a) Open season:
1. Archery – September 23-25 24-26, September 30 through October 2 1-3 and October 7-9 8-10.
 2. Muzzleloading gun – October 27-29 28-30.
 3. Small game – December 2-6 3-7 and 23-27 24-28.
 4. Fishing – Permitted throughout the year.
 5. Trapping – Prohibited.
- (b) No change.
- (c) Camping is allowed by permit only, from the Suwannee River Water Management District. ~~Permitted only by landowner permit.~~
- (d) No change.
- (30) Troy Springs Wildlife Management Area.
- (a) Open season:
1. Small game – November 11 12 through January 7 8, except on Sundays, and only in that portion of the area known as the Adams Tract located northeast of U.S. 27, east and south of County Road 251, and southwest of the Suwannee River.
 2. Fishing – Permitted throughout the year.
- (b) No change.
- (c) Camping is allowed by permit only, from the Suwannee River Water Management District. ~~Permitted year round on Ruth Springs and Walker tracts. Permitted only during periods closed to hunting on the Adams Tract. A written permit from the Suwannee River Water Management District is required for all camping.~~
- (d) No change.
- (31) Bayard Wildlife Management Area.
- (a) Open season:
1. Archery – September 23 24 through October 8 9 and November 18-26 19-27.
 2. Muzzleloading gun – October 28 29 through November 5 6.
 3. Spring turkey – The first three days of the Central Zone season, and the Friday, Saturday, and Sunday of the third and fifth weekends of the Central Zone season.
4. Trapping – Prohibited.
5. Fishing and frogging – Permitted throughout the year.
- (b) Legal to take: All legal game, fish, frogs, and furbearers. The bag limit shall be one deer per quota hunt permit; wild hogs of any size with no bag limit may be taken during any hunt except spring turkey.
- (c) No change.
- (d) General regulations:
1. Hunting with dogs is prohibited.
 2. Vehicles may be operated only on named or numbered roads.
 3. Vehicles may be parked only at designated parking areas.
 4. The use of tracked vehicles, motorcycles, or all-terrain vehicles is prohibited.
 5. During hunting periods, public access in Areas 2, 3 and 4 is restricted to those individuals with valid hunt permits.
 6. All hunters must check in and out at the designated check station and check all game taken.
 7. Horses are permitted throughout the year in Area 1 but only during non-hunting periods in Areas 2, 3 and 4.
 8. Horses and non-motorized bicycles may be used only on named or numbered roads and designated trails.
 9. Vehicular access is permitted on all hunt days plus the weekend and the day before all hunts except spring turkey season when it shall be permitted only on hunt days and the day before each hunt.
 10. Hunting is prohibited in Area 1.
 11. Only shotguns may be used during the spring turkey season.
 12. Vessels may be used to access the area from the St. Johns River.
- (32) Grove Park Wildlife Management Area (~~Alachua County~~).
- (a) Open season:
1. Archery – September 23 24 through October 22 23.
 2. Muzzleloading gun – October 28-30 through November 5.
 3. General gun – November 11 12 through January 7 8.
 4. Duck and coot – During the duck and coot season established by Rule 68A-13.003, F.A.C.
 5. Trapping – December 1 through January 7 8.
 6. Spring turkey – March 17 18 through April 22 23.
 7. Fish and frogging – Throughout the year.
- (b) through (c) No change.
- (d) General regulations:
1. Hunting with dogs other than bird dogs is prohibited.
 2. Vehicles are prohibited year-round in the Camps Canal area, in those lands lying south of County Road 346, and in those lands lying north of County Road 2082. Vehicles are restricted to named or numbered ~~established~~ roads in the

remaining portion of the area. Non-motorized bicycles are permitted, but may be ridden only on named or numbered established roads or designated recreational trails identified in the area brochure.

3. Taking of wildlife by use of a gun on or from the rights-of-way of County Roads 325, 2082, and 346 is prohibited as provided by Rule 68A-4.008, F.A.C.

4. Fires are prohibited on the area.

5. Horses are prohibited during periods open to hunting, except on the designated recreational trails identified in the area brochure. ~~permitted only~~ During periods closed to hunting, ~~h~~Horses may be ridden only on named or numbered established roads or designated recreational trails.

6. Access is permitted only by individuals possessing a valid recreational user permit, except as provided by Section 372.57, F.S. or by any person using the designated recreational trails identified in the area brochure for horseback riding, bicycling or hiking.

7. Non-permitted individuals may not operate any vehicle on any portion of the area, except when engaging in through travel on Prison Farm, Ivey and Johnson Roads.

(33) Steinhatchee Springs Wildlife Management Area.

(a) Open season:

1. Archery – September ~~23 24~~ through October ~~22 23~~.
2. Muzzleloading gun – October ~~27-29 28-30~~.
3. General gun – November ~~11 12~~ through December ~~3 4~~.
4. Small game – January ~~20 21~~ through February ~~18 19~~.
5. Spring turkey – March ~~17 18~~ through April ~~8 9~~.
6. Trapping – Prohibited.
7. Fishing and frogging – Permitted throughout the year.

(b) through (c) No change.

(d) General regulations:

1. The possession or use of dogs, other than waterfowl retrievers ~~or and~~ bird dogs is prohibited, except as provided by paragraph 68A-15.004(7)(c) or (d), F.A.C.

2. Motorized vehicles may be operated only on named or numbered roads.

3. The use of tracked vehicles, airboats, motorcycles, or all-terrain vehicles is prohibited.

4. Fires are prohibited.

5. Horses are prohibited during periods open to hunting. During periods closed to hunting, horses shall be restricted to designated roads and trails.

6. Hunters shall check all game taken during the muzzleloading gun, general gun, and spring turkey seasons.

7. The taking or attempt to take wildlife or the display or use of a gun on or from the rights-of-way of State Road 51 or County Road 357 is prohibited as provided by Rule 68A-4.008, F.A.C.

(34) Nassau Wildlife Management Area.

(a) Open season:

1. General gun – November ~~11 12~~ through January ~~7 8~~.

2. Small game – January ~~8 9~~ through March ~~4 5~~.

3. Spring turkey – March ~~17 18~~ through April ~~22 23~~.

4. Archery – September ~~23 24~~ through October ~~22 23~~.

5. Muzzleloading gun – October 28 ~~30~~ through November 5.

6. Fishing and frogging – During periods the area is open for hunting or scouting.

7. Trapping – January ~~8 9~~ through March 1.

(b) No change.

(d) General regulations:

1. The possession or use of dogs, other than bird dogs ~~or and~~ waterfowl retrievers is prohibited, except as provided by paragraph 68A-15.004(7)(c) or (d), F.A.C. during the general gun season.

2. Vehicles may be operated only on named or numbered roads.

3. Hunting with dogs is prohibited during the archery and muzzleloading gun seasons.

4. Fires are prohibited.

5. Vehicles are prohibited on the area from 1.5 hours after sunset to 1.5 hours before sunrise. Vehicles may only enter and exit the area at designated locations.

6. Access to the area is permitted only by individuals possessing a valid recreational use permit and only from the Saturday prior to the archery season through the last day of the spring turkey season.

(35) Cary Wildlife Management Area.

(a) Open season:

1. Archery – October ~~14-15 15-16~~, November ~~4-5 5-6~~ and ~~18-19 19-20~~, December ~~9-10 10-11~~ and ~~23-24 24-25~~.

2. Muzzleloading gun – December ~~30-31 31~~ through January 1 and January ~~13-14 14-15~~.

3. Bird dog training – October through January, Wednesdays, Saturdays and Sundays, except during scheduled hunting periods.

(b) through (d) No change.

(36) Ralph E. Simmons Memorial Wildlife Management Area.

(a) Open season:

1. General gun – November ~~18-26 19-27~~.

2. Archery – September ~~23 24~~ through October ~~1 2~~.

3. Muzzleloading gun – October ~~28 29~~ through November ~~5 6~~.

4. General gun for mobility-impaired – October ~~14-17 15-18~~.

5. Small game – December ~~18-31 19~~ through January 1 and February ~~3-11 4-12~~.

6. Trapping – Prohibited.

7. Spring turkey – The first three days of the Central Zone season, and the Friday, Saturday, and Sunday of the third and fifth weekends of the Central Zone season.

8. Fishing and frogging – Permitted throughout the year.

(b) Legal to take: All legal game, hog, furbearers, fish, and frogs and furbearers. The bag limit for deer shall be one antlered and one antlerless deer per quota permit. Antlerless deer (except spotted fawns) may be taken only during the archery and general gun for mobility-impaired seasons ~~only~~. Only one quota permit may be utilized per individual, per season. No size or bag limit on hog. The bag limit shall be one antlered deer and one antlerless deer per quota hunt permit. Wild hogs of any size with no bag limit.

(c) No change.

(d) General regulations:

1. Hunting with dogs is prohibited except bird dogs may be used during the small game season.

2. Vehicles may be operated only on named or numbered roads except that mobility-impaired hunters may use tracked vehicles, all-terrain vehicles, and horses throughout the area during the general gun for mobility-impaired season.

3. Vehicles may be parked only at designated parking areas, except during the general gun for the mobility-impaired season.

4. Vehicular access is permitted on all hunt days plus the weekend and day before all hunts except spring turkey, and small game seasons when it shall be permitted only on hunt days and the day before each hunt. The use of tracked vehicles, motorcycles, or all-terrain vehicles is prohibited.

5. During hunting periods, public access is restricted to those individuals with valid hunt permits, except during small game season. ~~Only one mobility-impaired quota hunt permit may be utilized per individual per hunt.~~ No more than two non-disabled helpers may accompany a mobility-impaired permit holder. Non-disabled helpers may not hunt or possess firearms during the general gun for mobility-impaired season.

6. All hunters must check in and out at the designated check station and check all game taken.

7. Horses are prohibited during periods open to hunting except when used by mobility-impaired hunters. During periods closed to hunting, horses may be used only on named or numbered roads and designated trails.

8. Non-motorized bicycles may be used only on named or numbered roads and designated trails.

PROPOSED EFFECTIVE DATE: July 1, 2006.

Specific Authority Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const., 372.121, 375.313 FS. Law Implemented Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const., 372.121, 375.313 FS. History—New 6-21-82, Amended 7-1-83, 11-17-83, 7-5-84, 7-1-85, 2-16-86, 5-7-86, 6-10-86, 11-27-86, 5-10-87, 5-1-88, 6-7-88, 7-1-89, 8-17-89, 7-1-90, 9-1-90, 7-1-91, 7-2-91, 7-1-92, 7-2-92, 8-23-92, 10-22-92, 7-1-93, 7-1-94, 2-9-95, 7-1-95, 7-1-96, 9-15-96, 6-1-97, 7-1-98, 7-2-98, 7-1-99, Formerly 39-15.062, Amended 12-9-99, 7-1-00, 7-1-01, 11-11-01, 6-2-02, 10-16-02, 5-25-03, 7-7-03, 9-29-03, 7-1-04, 8-1-04, 7-1-05, 8-1-05, 7-1-06.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE:
Mr. Nick Wiley, Director, Division of Hunting and Game Management

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Mr. Kenneth D. Haddad, Executive Director

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: September 21, 2005

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: November 23, 2005

FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION

Freshwater Fish and Wildlife

RULE CHAPTER TITLE: Type I Wildlife Management Areas

RULE CHAPTER NO.: 68A-15

RULE TITLE: Specific Regulations for Wildlife Management

RULE NO.: 68A-15.063

Areas – Northwest Region

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose of the proposed rule changes is to revise specific area regulations on Wildlife Management Areas (WMAs) in the Northwest Region and conform to calendar year date changes. The effect of the proposed rule changes is to enable the agency to better manage fish and wildlife resources and public use on WMAs.

SUMMARY: The proposed rule changes would adjust season dates to conform to calendar year changes and revise specific area regulations on Wildlife Management Areas (WMAs) in the Northwest Region as follows:

Apalachee WMA – The proposed rule change would list hog as legal to take with no size or bag limit.

Apalachicola WMA – The proposed rule changes would list hog as legal to take and clarify that guns may be possessed and used year-round at the shooting range and transported to and from the range unloaded and encased.

Apalachicola Bradwell Unit WMA – The proposed rule change would list hog as legal to take.

Blackwater WMA – The proposed rule changes would clarify that deer dogs may only be used in the dog hunt area and only during the general gun dog hunt season; list hog as legal to take with no size or bag limit; and allow the use of dogs with a shoulder height of 15 inches or less during the small game season, except in the field trial area.

Blackwater WMA – Carr Unit – The proposed rule change would extend the special-opportunity released quail hunts from four to seven days and no longer allow quail to be released the day before the first day of each hunt.

Joe Budd WMA – The proposed rule changes would define antlerless deer as any deer (except spotted fawns) without antlers or any deer with antlers less than one inch in length visible above the hairline; revise legal to take as deer with at least one antler having three or more points of at least one inch in length; and list hog as legal to take.

Blue Water Creek WMA – The proposed rule change would list hog as legal to take with no size or bag limit.

Talquin WMA – The proposed rule changes would eliminate the one-day antlerless deer quota hunt; establish a 24-day small game season (January 5 through March 4 on Fridays, Saturdays and Sundays only); and remove redundant language prohibiting guns on the area outside of hunting season.

Ochlockonee River WMA – The proposed rule changes would allow vehicles on named roads in addition to numbered roads and remove redundant language prohibiting guns on the area outside of hunting season.

Tate's Hell WMA – The proposed rule change would list hog as legal to take.

Aucilla WMA – The proposed rule changes would allow archery hunting for deer in the small game area, located south of Highway 98, during the archery and general gun season; allow fishing year-round throughout the area; allow the use of dogs to take hog with no size or bag limit during the general gun season; remove daily hunt permit requirement for the Western Sloughs portion of the area; and allow vehicles to be operated only on named or numbered roads.

Flint Rock WMA – The proposed rule changes would extend the muzzleloading gun season from three to nine days; extend the general gun season from 58 to 72 days; require all persons to enter and exit the area through a designated entrance only; and remove requirement for hunters to check in and out at a check station and check all game taken.

Escambia River WMA – The proposed rule changes would prohibit the taking of fish and wildlife from Keyser Landing Road and Webb Landing Road and list hog as legal to take with no size or bag limit.

Tyndall AFB WMA – The proposed rule change would list hog as legal to take with no size or bag limit.

Choctawhatchee River WMA – The proposed rule change would list hog as legal to take with no size or bag limit.

Upper Chipola River WMA – The proposed rule change would list hog as legal to take with no size or bag limit.

Yellow River WMA – The proposed rule changes would prohibit alcohol in the Grassy Point area and list hog as legal to take with no size or bag limit.

Econfina Creek WMA – The proposed rule changes would allow fishing on the Fitzhugh/Carter area with daily quotas (one angler per 10 acres of open water); prohibit the taking of wildlife from Cat Creek Road and Enfinger Road; require all persons to enter and exit the Fitzhugh/Carter area through a designated entrance only; and list hog as legal to take with no size or bag limit.

Box-R WMA – The proposed rule change would list hog as legal to take.

Lafayette Creek WMA – The proposed rule changes would create regulations for a new WMA with the following open seasons: (a) Archery – October 14-20 and 21-29; (b) Muzzleloading gun – November 17-19; (c) Family hunt – November 23-26; (d) General gun – January 20-23 and 24-28; (e) Small game – December 1 through January 14 (Fridays,

Saturdays and Sundays only); (f) Spring turkey – March 17 through April 22 (Saturdays and Sundays only); and (g) Fishing and other recreational uses – during daylight hours only during periods closed to hunting. It would establish as legal to take all legal game, hog, fish, frogs and furbearers with no size or bag limit on hog. The new area would (a) Allow camping at designated sites or by permit from the Northwest Florida Water Management District; (b) Allow vehicles to be operated only on named or numbered roads; (c) prohibit ATVs; (d) Allow hunting with bird dogs and retrievers; (e) Require all persons to enter and exit the area at a designated entrance; and (f) Allow horses on designated horse trails only; and (g) Allow one or two persons per hunt permit under 16 years of age but not younger than 8 years of age to hunt during the family hunt provided that an adult may only hunt when in the presence of at least one person under 16 years of age but not younger than 8 years of age.

Wakulla WMA – The proposed rule changes would create regulations for a new WMA with the following open seasons: (a) Archery – October 14 through November 12 (Fridays, Saturdays and Sundays only); (b) Archery and muzzleloading gun – November 24-26 and December 9-31 (Fridays, Saturdays and Sundays only); (c) Small game – January 5 through March 4 (Fridays, Saturdays and Sundays only); (d) Spring turkey – March 17 through April 22 (Saturdays and Sundays only); (f) Fishing and frogging – throughout the year. It would establish as legal to take, all legal game, hog, fish, frogs and furbearers with no size or bag limit on hog. The new area would (a) Allow camping at designated sites by permit from the Division of Forestry; (b) Allow vehicles to be operated only on named or numbered roads; (c) Prohibit ATVs; (d) Allow hunting with bird dogs and retrievers; (e) Allow the use of modern shotguns, muzzleloading guns and bows during the spring turkey season; and (f) Require all hunters entering or exiting the area to do so only at a designated entrance.

A STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST HAS NOT BEEN PREPARED REGARDING THESE PROPOSED RULES.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated regulatory costs, or to provide a proposal for lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: Article IV, Section 9, Florida Constitution; 372.121, 375.313 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: Article IV, Section 9, Florida Constitution; 372.121, 375.313 FS.

THE FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION WILL CONDUCT A PUBLIC RULEMAKING HEARING ON THE PROPOSED RULES DURING THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE COMMISSION TO BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATES AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

TIME AND DATES: 8:30 a.m. – 5:00 p.m., each day, February 1-2, 2006

PLACE: Hilton University of Florida Conference Center, 1714 S.W. 34th Street, Gainesville, Florida 32607

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 calendar days before the workshop/meeting by contacting the ADA Coordinator, at (850)488-6411. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency by calling (850)488-9542.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: James V. Antista, General Counsel, Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission, 620 South Meridian Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1600

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

68A-15.063 Specific Regulations for Wildlife Management Areas – Northwest Region.

(1) Apalachee Wildlife Management Area.

(a) Open season:

1. General gun – November ~~23-26~~ ~~24-27~~ and December ~~9-10~~ through February ~~11-12~~ (Mondays, Wednesdays and Fridays closed to hunting in Zones A and B).

2. Archery – October ~~14-15~~ through November ~~12-13~~.

3. Fishing and frogging – Throughout the year.

4. Muzzleloading gun – November ~~17-19~~ ~~18-20~~.

5. Early duck – On Tuesdays, Thursdays, Saturdays and Sundays of the September season established by Rule 68A-13.003, F.A.C.

6. Duck and coot – On Tuesdays, Thursdays, Saturdays and Sundays of the duck and coot season established in Rule 68A-13.003, F.A.C.

7. Dove – On Tuesdays, Thursdays, Saturdays and Sundays of the dove season established in Rule 68A-13.008, F.A.C.

8. Quail (Zone A) – December ~~19-20~~ through January ~~7-8~~ (Mondays, Wednesdays and Fridays closed to hunting).

9. Spring turkey (Zones B and C) – March ~~17-18~~ through April ~~22-23~~ (Fridays, Saturdays, and Sundays only).

(b) Legal to take: All legal game, hog, fish, frogs and furbearers. Antlerless deer may be taken during the general gun season by permit only. Quail may be taken in Zone A only during the archery, and muzzleloading gun, and during the quail season by permit only. No size or bag limit on hog.

(c) Camping: Prohibited.

(d) General regulations:

1. ~~Taking wildlife~~ ~~Hunting~~ with dogs is prohibited except that bird dogs and retrievers are permitted during the general gun, muzzleloading gun, early duck, duck and coot, dove, and quail seasons.

2. Dove and waterfowl may be hunted in accordance with federal migratory bird regulations on Tuesdays, Thursdays, Saturdays and Sundays.

3. Vehicles may be operated only on named or numbered roads.

4. The possession or use of rifles is prohibited, except during the muzzleloading gun season.

5. Hunters shall check in and out at a check station when entering and exiting Zone A and shall check all game taken when hunting in Zone A.

6. Taking of wildlife by use of a gun on or from rights-of-way of County Road 271 is prohibited as provided by Rule 68A-4.008, F.A.C.

7. Two hundred zone tags will be issued for Zone A on a first-come, first-served basis at the check station. A zone tag is not required in Zones B or C.

8. During quail season, taking quail after 3:00 p.m. Central Standard Time is prohibited.

(2) Apalachicola Wildlife Management Area.

(a) Open season:

1. General gun – November ~~23-26~~ ~~24-27~~ and December ~~9-10~~ through ~~January 31~~ ~~February 1~~.

2. Small game – November ~~11-22~~ ~~12-23~~, November ~~27-28~~ through December ~~8-9~~ and February ~~1-2~~ through March ~~4-5~~.

3. Spring turkey – March ~~17-18~~ through April ~~22-23~~.

4. Archery – October ~~14-15~~ through November ~~12-13~~.

5. Muzzleloading gun – November ~~17-19~~ ~~18-20~~.

6. Muzzleloading gun and archery – February ~~15-25~~ ~~16-26~~.

7. Early duck – In the September season established by Rule 68A-13.003, F.A.C.

8. Fox, raccoon, opossum and bobcat – October 1 through March ~~4-5~~ in that portion of the area in Liberty County lying west of State Road 65 (except in that portion of the area lying north and east of the Florida River and Larkins Slough) and in that portion in Leon County and Wakulla County south of State Road 267 bounded on the east by Forest Roads 313, F.H. 13 and 356, on the south by Forest Roads 349 and 357, on the west by Forest Roads 348 and F.H. 13, 309, 314, and 344. No guns may be used prior to November ~~23-24~~.

9. Trapping – February ~~1-2~~ through March 1.

10. Fishing and frogging – Throughout the year.

(b) Legal to take: All legal game, hog, fish, frogs and furbearers. Bearded turkeys or gobblers may be taken from November ~~23-26~~ ~~24-27~~ and from December ~~9-20~~ ~~10-21~~. ~~Hog Wild hogs~~ may be taken only during the archery, muzzleloading gun, general gun, archery and muzzleloading and small game seasons hunts. No size or bag limits on ~~wild~~ hogs.

(c) Camping: Throughout the year.

(d) General regulations:

1. Camping is permitted only on designated campsites during general gun season, except on Northwest Florida Water Management District lands where camping is permitted throughout the area.

2. Bird dogs may be trained from June 1 through March 4 5. Deer dogs may be trained from October 28 29 through November 16 17 in that portion of the area open to hunting fox, raccoon, opossum and bobcats.

3. Dove hunting is permitted during the first phase of the established dove season.

4. During the November 11 12 through March 4 5 period, hunting as specified by paragraph 68A-24.002(2)(b), F.A.C., is permitted.

5. Taking of wildlife by use of a gun on or from rights-of-way of State Road 267, 67, 375, 65, 299, 368, 369, 260, 373, 263, 379, 12 or that portion of County Road 22 east of the Ochlockonee River is prohibited as provided by Rule 68A-4.008, F.A.C.

6. Taking wildlife Hunting with dogs, other than bird dogs and retrievers, is prohibited in that portion of the area lying west and south of State Road 375 and east of the Ochlockonee River; also those lands lying north and east of the Florida River and Larkins Slough.

7. Taking of deer is prohibited on or from the rights-of-way of State Road 375 and 50 yards outward from the rights-of-way.

8. The use of all-terrain vehicles is prohibited on that portion of the area posted as Northwest Florida Water Management District lands.

9. Persons may possess and use guns year-round on the shooting range. Guns being transported to and from the range shall be unloaded and cased.

(3) Apalachicola Wildlife Management Area – Bradwell Unit.

(a) Open season:

1. General gun – November 23–26 24-27 and December 9–13 10-14.

2. Archery – October 14–29 15-30.

3. Muzzleloading gun – November 17–19 18-20.

4. Small game – November 11–16 12-17 and 20–22 21-23.

5. Spring turkey – March 17–18 18-19 and March 30 31 through April 1 2.

6. Early duck – In the September season established by Rule 68A-13.003, F.A.C.

7. Fishing and frogging – Throughout the year.

(b) Legal to take: All legal game, hog, fish, frogs, and furbearers. Antlerless deer may be taken by permit only. The bag limit for antlered deer shall be one per quota ~~hunt~~ permit. During spring turkey season, the bag limit for turkey shall be one gobbler or bearded turkey per quota ~~hunt~~ permit. Hog Wild

~~hogs~~ may be taken only during the archery, muzzleloading gun, and general gun seasons ~~hunts~~. No size or bag limit on ~~wild~~ hogs.

(c) Camping: Prohibited.

(d) General Regulations:

1. Vehicles may be operated only on named or numbered roads and may be parked only at designated parking areas.

2. Taking wildlife Hunting with dogs, other than bird dogs and retrievers, is prohibited.

(4) Blackwater Wildlife Management Area.

(a) Open seasons in the still hunt area (which includes that portion of the area south of Highway 4 except for the field trial area and that portion of the area north of State Road 4 except for the dog hunt area):

1. General gun – November 23–26 24-27 and December 9 10 through January 31 February 1.

2. Small game – November 11–22 12-23, November 27 28 through December 8 9 and February 1 2 through March 4 5.

3. Spring turkey – March 17 18 through April 22 23.

4. Archery – October 14 15 through November 12 13.

5. Muzzleloading gun – November 17–19 18-20.

6. Muzzleloading gun and archery – February 15–25 16-26.

7. Dove – During the mourning dove and white-winged dove season established by Rule 68A-13.008, F.A.C.

8. Bird dog training – October 1-15 and November 14-30.

9. Fishing and frogging – Throughout the year except on the fish hatchery.

(b) Open seasons in the dog hunt area (which includes that portion of the area north of State Road 4 and west of Three Notch Road, east of Mason West Road, and north of Camp Henderson Road; and that portion of the area north of State Road 4, west of Beaver Creek Highway and Hurricane Lake Road, and east of Belandville Road; and that portion of the area north of Break Fork Fire Line, north of Eadie Cotton Road and Peaden Bridge Road, west of Sherman Kennedy Road, south of Mattie Kennedy Road and Kennedy Bridge Road, west of Bullard Church Road, and east of Beaver Creek Highway and Hurricane Lake Road):

1. General gun dog – November 23–26 24-27, December 9-24 10-25, and January 8 9 through January 31 February 1.

2. General gun still ~~(use of dogs for taking deer is prohibited and hunting with dogs other than bird dogs or retrievers is prohibited)~~ – December 25 26 through January 7 8.

3. Small game – November 11-22 12-23, November 27 28 through December 8 9 and February 1 2 through March 4 5.

4. Spring turkey – March 17 18 through April 22 23.

5. Archery – October 14 15 through November 12 13.

6. Muzzleloading gun – November 17-19 18-20.

7. Muzzleloading gun and archery – February 15-25 16-26.

8. Fox, raccoon, opossum and bobcat – May 1 through March ~~11~~ ~~12~~, in that portion of the dog hunt area east of Belandville Road.

9. Dove – During the mourning dove and white-winged dove season established by Rule 68A-13.008, F.A.C.

10. Bird dog training – October 1-15 and November 14-30.

11. Fishing and frogging – Throughout the year.

(c) Open seasons in the field trial area (which includes that portion of the area bounded by Coldwater Creek on the northwest, the western boundary of Blackwater State Forest to the west and south, State Road 191 on the southeast, and on a line running west 3/4 mile from the intersection of State Road 191 and Forest Road 64 (Spanish Trail), then north one mile and then three miles west to Coldwater Creek at a point ½ mile northeast of the Coldwater Recreation Area:

1. Archery – October ~~14~~ ~~15~~ through November ~~12~~ ~~13~~.

2. Muzzleloading gun and archery – January ~~19-21~~ ~~20-22~~.

3. Dove – During the first phase of the dove season (Monday through Saturday only), the second phase of the dove season (Monday through Wednesday only), and the third phase of the dove season (Monday through Wednesday only) until January 1 on fields posted as open to dove hunting.

4. Bird dog training – October 1-15 and November 14-30.

5. Quail – February ~~5-8~~ ~~6-9~~ and February ~~19-22~~ ~~20-23~~.

6. Fishing and frogging – Throughout the year except on the fish hatchery.

(d) Legal to take: All legal game, hog, fish, frogs and furbearers. During the January ~~19-21~~ ~~20-22~~ archery/muzzleloading gun season on the field trial portion of the area any deer (daily bag limit one) except spotted fawns may be taken. No size or bag limit on hog. ~~Feral hogs may be taken during any period when possession of a gun is otherwise authorized with no size or bag limit on wild hogs.~~ Taking quail is prohibited on the field trial area except during the quail season. The bag limit for quail on the field trial area is 12 per hunting group each day. A group for the purpose of quail hunting on the field trial area shall include up to 2 persons. Taking quail after 3:00 p.m. Central Time is prohibited during the quail season on the field trial area.

(e) Camping: Throughout the year at designated campsites only.

(f) General regulations:

1. During fox, raccoon, opossum and bobcat season, hunting as specified in paragraph 68A-24.002(2)(b), F.A.C., is permitted.

2. Vehicles may be operated only on named or numbered roads, except on that portion of the area lying south of State Road 4 and east of County Road 191 and those lands north of State Road 4 and east of Forest Road 31 (Hurricane Lake Road cutoff and Beaver Creek Road) where vehicles may be operated only on established roads.

3. Taking wildlife with dogs, other than bird dogs or retrievers, is prohibited in the still hunt area and during general gun still in the dog hunt area; however, dogs with a shoulder height of 15 inches or less may be used to take small game during small game seasons in both the still hunt and dog hunt areas. Dogs are prohibited in the field trial area, except as specifically authorized by permit, or during the bird dog training or quail hunting seasons.

4. The discharge of any gun within 300 yards of a public campsite is prohibited.

5. Taking of wildlife by use of a gun on, upon or from rights-of-way of State Road 4, 191, 189 and 2; U.S. Highway 90; County Highway 180; Carpenter Road from County Road 191 to Juniper Creek; Forest Road 31, 47, 25, 86, 23, 72, 48, 6 and the paved portions of Forest Roads 57, 2 and 9 is prohibited as provided by Rule 68A-4.008, F.A.C.

6. The use of airboats, tracked vehicles, or all-terrain vehicles on the area is prohibited, except by Division of Forestry use permit.

7. Vehicles are prohibited on the Florida Gas Transmission Line and from March 1 through September 30 in all of Sections 32 and 33 and portions of Sections 27, 28 and 34, Township 4 North, Range 26 West and all of Section 9 and portions of Sections 5, 8, 14, 15, 16 and 17, Township 3 North, Range 26 West all as posted as Environmental Enhancement Area.

(5) Blackwater Wildlife Management Area – Hutton Unit.

(a) Open season:

1. Archery – October ~~14-22~~ ~~15-23~~.

2. Muzzleloading gun – November ~~17-19~~ ~~18-20~~.

3. Quail – November ~~11-12~~ ~~12-13~~, ~~22-23~~ ~~23-24~~, December ~~2-3~~ ~~3-4~~, ~~11-12~~ ~~12-13~~, ~~16-17~~ ~~17-18~~, ~~25-26~~ ~~26-27~~, and December ~~30-31~~ ~~31~~ through January 1.

4. General gun – January ~~13-21~~ ~~14-22~~.

5. Mobility-impaired general gun – January ~~26-28~~ ~~27-29~~ and February ~~2-4~~ ~~3-5~~.

6. Spring turkey – March ~~17-19~~ ~~18-20~~, March ~~30~~ ~~31~~ through April ~~1~~ ~~2~~, and April ~~13-15~~ ~~14-16~~.

7. Fishing and frogging – Throughout the year.

8. Bird dog training – Monday through Friday in October, except during archery season.

(b) Legal to take: All legal game, fish, frogs and furbearers except that only quail may be taken during the quail season. Taking quail is prohibited except during the quail season. The bag limit for quail is 12 per hunting group each day. A group for the purpose of quail hunting shall include up to three persons. Taking of antlered deer not having at least one antler with three or more points, one inch or more in length, is prohibited. The bag limit for antlered deer shall be one per quota hunt permit, except during the mobility-impaired hunts. Two deer (except spotted fawns) may be taken per mobility-impaired quota hunt permit. During the general gun for mobility-impaired season, only mobility-impaired hunters

may take antlerless deer. During spring turkey season, the bag limit shall be one gobbler or bearded turkey per quota hunt permit. No size or bag limit on wild hogs.

(c) Camping: permitted at designated sites only.

(d) General regulations:

1. During hunting seasons, vehicular access is permitted only by individuals possessing quota hunt permits. Vehicles may be operated only on named or numbered roads, except during the mobility-impaired hunts, and shall enter and exit only at the designated entrance as indicated on the hunt map.

2. Hunters shall check in and out at the check station when entering and exiting the area and shall check all game taken.

3. ~~Taking wildlife Hunting~~ with dogs other than bird dogs or retrievers is prohibited.

4. Taking quail after 3:00 p.m. Central Standard Time is prohibited.

5. The possession or use of all-terrain vehicles is prohibited, except that mobility-impaired hunters may use all-terrain vehicles only on established roads, trails, and firebreaks during the mobility-impaired general gun season.

6. The possession or use of firearms other than shotguns is prohibited during the quail season.

7. During the mobility-impaired general gun hunts, access will be restricted to certified mobility-impaired hunters with quota hunt permits and one additional person per permit holder who may also participate in the hunt. Only one quota permit may be utilized per individual per hunt.

(6) Blackwater Wildlife Management Area – Carr Unit.

(a) Open season:

Quail: November ~~11-17 12-15, 18-24 17-20, November 25 through December 1 24-27, December 2-8 1-4, 9-15 8-11, 16-22 15-18, 23-29 22-25, December 30 29 through January 5 4, January 6-12 5-8, 13-19 12-15, 20-26 19-22, January 27 through February 2 26-29, February 3-9 2-5, 10-16 9-12, 17-23 16-19 and February 24 through March 2 23-26.~~

(b) through (c) No change.

(d) General regulations:

1. A special opportunity quail hunt permit (no exemptions) as provided in Rule 68A-9.007, F.A.C., shall be required for each group entering the area to release or take quail.

2. Each group may release pen-raised quail within the designated boundaries, as indicated on the hunt map. Release of quail is prohibited, except during each day of the hunt ~~and the day before the first day of each hunt.~~ Released quail shall be purchased from a licensed game farm and transported as provided in subsection 68A-12.006(3), F.A.C.

3. Vehicles may be operated only on named or numbered roads, and shall enter and exit only at the designated entrance.

4. Hunters shall sign in and out of the special-opportunity released-quail area when entering and exiting the area, and shall record all game taken.

5. ~~Taking wildlife Hunting~~ with dogs other than bird dogs or retrievers is prohibited.

6. The possession or use of all-terrain vehicles is prohibited.

7. The possession or use of firearms other than shotguns is prohibited.

8. Fires are prohibited.

(7) Joe Budd Wildlife Management Area.

(a) Open season:

1. Archery – December ~~8 9~~ through January ~~7 8~~ (Fridays, Saturdays and Sundays only).

2. Archery and muzzleloading gun – January ~~12-28 13-29~~ (Fridays, Saturdays and Sundays only).

3. Small game – October ~~7 4~~ through December ~~3 4~~ (Saturdays and Sundays only).

4. Spring turkey – March ~~17 18~~ through April ~~22 23~~ (Saturdays and Sundays only).

5. Fishing and other recreational use – Permitted during daylight hours when hunting is not allowed.

(b) Legal to take: All legal game, ~~hog, including~~ turkey of either sex, fish, frogs and furbearers. During ~~the~~ small game ~~season hunts~~, doves (Saturdays only, during phases established by Rule 68A-13.008, F.A.C.), quail and squirrel may be taken. Antlerless deer may be taken during the archery and muzzleloading gun season by permit only. Antlerless deer is any deer, except a spotted fawn, that is without antlers or whose antlers are less than one inch in length visible above the hairline. Taking of antlered deer not having at least one antler with three or more points, one inch or more in length, is prohibited. No size or bag limit on ~~wild~~ hogs.

(c) No change.

(d) General regulations:

1. Vehicles may be operated only on named or numbered roads.

2. ~~Taking wildlife Hunting~~ with dogs is prohibited except that bird dogs and retrievers are permitted during small game hunts.

3. Hunters shall check in and out at a check station when entering and exiting the area and shall check all game taken.

4. No person shall hunt in any zone other than that for which he has obtained a zone tag permit. All hunters shall wear zone tags visibly.

5. Only bows or muzzleloading guns may be used during spring turkey seasons.

6. Shotguns are prohibited during the archery season, and centerfire shotguns are prohibited during the archery and muzzleloading gun season.

7. No person shall enter the area during any period in which the entry gate is closed.

8. Entry into the area is prohibited from one-half hour before sunrise until one hour after sunrise and from one hour before sunset to one-half hour after sunset during the archery,

and archery/muzzleloading gun seasons. During spring turkey season, entry is prohibited from one-half hour before sunrise until one hour after sunrise.

9. All persons entering or exiting the area may do so only at a designated entrance as indicated on the hunt map.

10. Guns are prohibited when the area is closed to hunting, except at the designated campsite.

11. Taking or attempting to take wildlife by use of a gun on or from the rights-of-way of High Bluff Road or County Road 268 is prohibited as provided by Rule 68A-4.008, F.A.C.

(8) Robert Brent Wildlife Management Area.

(a) Open season:

1. General gun – November ~~23-26~~ ~~24-27~~ and December ~~9~~ ~~10~~ through ~~January 31~~ ~~February 1~~.

2. Small game – November ~~11-22~~ ~~12-23~~, November ~~27~~ ~~28~~ through December ~~8~~ ~~9~~ and February ~~1~~ ~~2~~ through March ~~4~~ ~~5~~.

3. Spring turkey – March ~~17~~ ~~18~~ through April ~~22~~ ~~23~~.

4. Archery – October ~~14~~ ~~15~~ through November ~~12~~ ~~13~~.

5. Muzzleloading gun – November ~~17-19~~ ~~18-20~~.

6. Archery and muzzleloading gun – February ~~15-25~~ ~~16-26~~.

7. Dove – During the mourning dove and white-winged dove season established by Rule 68A-13.008, F.A.C.

8. Fishing and frogging – Throughout the year.

9. Trapping – January 1 through March 1 by permit from the Panama City regional office only.

(b) Legal to take: All legal game, fish, frogs and furbearers. Bearded turkeys or gobblers may be taken from November ~~23-26~~ ~~24-27~~ and from December ~~9-20~~ ~~10-21~~. Taking of antlered deer not having at least one antler with three or more points, one inch or more in length, is prohibited.

(c) Camping: Prohibited.

(d) General regulations:

1. The use of all-terrain vehicles is prohibited.

2. Vehicles may be operated only on established roads. Vehicle access and use may be further modified in the event of a reduction in acreage in the WMA.

3. Vehicular access will be limited to designated hunting days and for a period of one week prior to the archery and general gun seasons for scouting. Hunters shall enter and exit the area through Road 2 or Road 1 only.

4. Taking wildlife ~~Hunting~~ with dogs other than bird dogs is prohibited.

5. Taking of wildlife by use of a gun on or from right-of-way of State Road 65 is prohibited as provided by Rule 68A-4.008, F.A.C.

6. Hunters shall check in and out at a designated check station when entering and exiting the area and shall check all game taken, during the muzzleloading gun, general gun and archery/muzzleloading gun seasons.

7. Taking or attempting to take wildlife on, upon or from the rights-of-way of any named or numbered road is prohibited.

(9) Blue Water Creek Wildlife Management Area.

(a) Open season:

1. General gun – November ~~23-26~~ ~~24-27~~ and December ~~9~~ ~~10~~ through ~~January 31~~ ~~February 1~~.

2. Small game – February ~~17~~ ~~18~~ through March ~~4~~ ~~5~~ (Saturdays and Sundays only).

3. Archery – October ~~14~~ ~~15~~ through November ~~12~~ ~~13~~.

4. Spring turkey – March ~~17~~ ~~18~~ through April ~~22~~ ~~23~~.

5. Archery and muzzleloading gun – February ~~1-14~~ ~~2-15~~.

6. Muzzleloading gun – November ~~17-19~~ ~~18-20~~.

7. Fishing and frogging – Prohibited except during designated hunting days and pre-hunt scouting periods.

(b) Legal to take: All legal game, hog, fish, and furbearers. Taking of antlered deer not having at least one antler with three or more points, one inch or more in length, is prohibited. No size or bag limit on hog.

(c) Camping: Prohibited.

(d) General regulations:

1. Vehicles may be operated only on graded roads or maintained fire lanes.

2. Hunters shall check in and out at a check station when entering and exiting the area and shall check all game taken.

3. Taking wildlife ~~Hunting~~ with dogs other than bird dogs is prohibited.

4. Access to the area is permitted only by individuals possessing a valid recreational user permit except as provided by Section 327.57, F.S., and shall be limited to designated hunting days and for a period of one week prior to the archery season and one day prior to the muzzleloading gun, general gun, and spring turkey seasons for pre-hunt scouting.

5. All hunters shall exit the area through check stations not later than one hour after sunset.

6. The use of all-terrain vehicles (ATV's) is prohibited.

7. The display or use of a gun on or upon Firebreak 1 or within 300 yards of an active timber harvest or tree planting operation, in a manner capable of taking wildlife is prohibited.

(10) Point Washington Wildlife Management Area.

(a) Open season:

1. General gun – November ~~23-26~~ ~~24-27~~ and December ~~9~~ ~~10~~ through ~~January 31~~ ~~February 1~~.

2. Small game – November ~~11-22~~ ~~12-23~~, November ~~27~~ ~~28~~ through December ~~8~~ ~~9~~ and February ~~1~~ ~~2~~ through March ~~4~~ ~~5~~.

3. Spring turkey – March ~~17~~ ~~18~~ through April ~~22~~ ~~23~~.

4. Archery – October ~~14~~ ~~15~~ through November ~~12~~ ~~13~~.

5. Muzzleloading gun – November ~~17-19~~ ~~18-20~~.

6. Archery and muzzleloading gun – February ~~15-25~~ ~~16-26~~.

7. Fishing and frogging – Throughout the year.

8. Trapping – January 1 through February 1.

(b) Legal to take: All legal game, fish, frogs and furbearers. No size or bag limit on wild hogs.

(c) Camping: Prohibited.

(d) General regulations:

1. Vehicles may be operated only on established roads.

2. The taking of wild hogs by the use of dogs is prohibited.

3. ~~Taking wildlife~~ ~~Hunting~~ with dogs other than bird dogs is prohibited.

4. Bird dogs may be trained throughout the year except during the spring turkey season.

5. Migratory game birds may be hunted during the early duck, dove and rail seasons.

6. The use of all-terrain vehicles is prohibited.

7. Taking of wildlife by use of a gun on or from rights-of-way of U.S. 98 is prohibited as provided by Rule 68A-4.008, F.A.C.

8. Persons operating vehicles shall enter and exit at designated entrances only.

(11) Talquin Wildlife Management Area.

(a) Open season:

1. General gun – November ~~24-26~~ ~~25-27~~ and December ~~9-31~~ ~~December 10 through January 1~~ (Fridays, Saturdays and Sundays only).

2. Small game – January 5 through March 4 (Fridays, Saturdays and Sundays only).

~~3.2.~~ Archery – October ~~14~~ ~~15~~ through November ~~12~~ ~~13~~ (Fridays, Saturdays and Sundays only).

~~4.3.~~ Spring turkey – March ~~17~~ ~~18~~ through April ~~22~~ ~~23~~ (Saturdays and Sundays only).

~~5.4.~~ Early duck – In the September season established by Rule 68A-13.003, F.A.C.

~~6.5.~~ Fishing and other recreational uses – Permitted during daylight hours only.

(b) Legal to take: All legal game, fish and furbearers. ~~Antlerless deer (daily bag one) may be taken December 31.~~ No size or bag limit on wild hogs.

(c) Camping: Prohibited.

(d) General regulations:

1. Vehicles may be operated only on numbered roads.

2. ~~Taking wildlife~~ ~~Hunting~~ with dogs other than bird dogs or retrievers is prohibited.

3. All hunters entering onto or exiting from this area may do so only at a designated entrance as indicated on the hunt map.

4. Hunters shall check in and out at the check station on December 31 and check all game taken.

~~5. Guns are prohibited when the area is closed to hunting.~~

(12) Ochlockonee River Wildlife Management Area.

(a) Open season:

1. Archery and muzzleloading gun – November ~~24-26~~ ~~25-27~~ and ~~December 9-31~~ ~~December 10 through January 1~~ (Fridays, Saturdays and Sundays only).

2. Small game – January ~~5~~ ~~6~~ through March ~~4~~ ~~5~~ (Fridays, Saturdays and Sundays only).

3. Archery – October ~~14~~ ~~15~~ through November ~~12~~ ~~13~~ (Fridays, Saturdays and Sundays only).

4. Spring turkey – March ~~17~~ ~~18~~ through April ~~22~~ ~~23~~ (Saturdays and Sundays only).

5. Fishing and other recreational uses – Permitted during daylight hours when hunting is not allowed.

(b) Legal to take: All legal game including gobblers or bearded turkeys, fish, frogs and furbearers. No size or bag limit on wild hogs.

(c) Camping: Prohibited.

(d) General regulations:

1. Vehicles may be operated only on named or numbered roads.

2. ~~Taking wildlife~~ ~~Hunting~~ with dogs other than bird dogs or retrievers is prohibited.

3. Modern shotguns, muzzleloading guns and bows are permitted during the spring turkey season.

4. All hunters entering onto or exiting from this area may do so only at a designated entrance as indicated on the hunt map.

~~5. Guns are prohibited when the area is closed to hunting.~~

(13) Tate's Hell Wildlife Management Area.

(a) Open season:

1. General gun – November ~~23-26~~ ~~24-27~~ and December ~~9~~ ~~10~~ through ~~January 31~~ ~~February 1~~.

2. Small game – November ~~11-22~~ ~~12-23~~, November ~~27~~ ~~28~~ through December ~~8~~ ~~9~~ and February ~~1~~ ~~2~~ through March ~~4~~ ~~5~~.

3. Archery – October ~~14~~ ~~15~~ through November ~~12~~ ~~13~~.

4. Muzzleloading gun – November ~~17-19~~ ~~18-20~~.

5. Muzzleloading gun and archery – February ~~15-25~~ ~~16-26~~.

6. Early duck – In September season as established by Rule 68A-13.003, F.A.C.

7. Duck and coot – As established by Rule 68A-13.003, F.A.C.

8. Dove – As established by Rule 68A-13.008, F.A.C.

9. Spring turkey – March ~~17~~ ~~18~~ through April ~~22~~ ~~23~~.

10. Trapping – February 1 through March 1.

11. Fishing and frogging – Throughout the year.

(b) Legal to take: All legal game, hog, fish, frogs and furbearers. No size or bag limit on ~~wild~~ hogs.

(c) No change.

(d) General regulations:

1. Deer dogs may be trained from October ~~28~~ ~~29~~ through November ~~16~~ ~~17~~.

2. During the general gun and small game seasons, hunting as specified by paragraph 68A-24.002(2)(b), F.A.C., is permitted.

3. Vehicles may be operated only on designated roads. Off-Highway Vehicles (all-terrain vehicles and off-highway motorcycles) are prohibited except by permit from the Division of Forestry only. Airboats and tracked vehicles are prohibited.

4. In the still hunt area, which includes that portion of the area east of Whiskey George Creek and south of Dry Bridge Road, east of Car Body Road, south of River Road, east of Burnt Bridge Road from its intersection with River Road to the New River, south of New River and west of Carrabelle River, and those lands lying south and east of the Crooked River, hunting with dogs other than bird dogs and retrievers is prohibited.

5. Taking of wildlife by use of a gun on or from the rights-of-way of State Road 67 is prohibited as provided by Rule 68A-4.008, F.A.C.

(14) Tate's Hell Wildlife Management Area – Womack Creek Unit.

(a) Open season:

1. Archery – October ~~14-22~~ 15-23.

2. Muzzleloading gun – November ~~17-19~~ 18-20.

3. Small game – November ~~11-22~~, November 27 through December 8, ~~December 18-23~~ and January 6-31 ~~12 through February 1~~.

4. General gun still – November ~~23-26~~ 24-27 and ~~December 9-17~~ 10-18.

5. General gun dog – December 24 through January 5.

6. Early duck – In September as established by Rule 68A-13.003, F.A.C.

7. Spring turkey – March ~~17-20~~ 18-21, March ~~29~~ 30 through April ~~1~~ 2 and April ~~5-8~~ 6-9.

8. Trapping – February 1 through March 1.

9. Fishing and frogging – Throughout the year.

(b) Legal to take: All legal game, fish, frogs, and furbearers. No size or bag limit on wild hogs.

(c) No change.

(d) General regulations:

1. ~~Taking wildlife~~ Hunting with dogs, other than bird dogs, retrievers ~~or~~ and dogs with a shoulder height of 15 inches or less, is prohibited except during the general gun dog season ~~hunt~~.

2. Vehicles may be operated only on designated roads.

3. The possession of airboats, all-terrain vehicles, or tracked vehicles is prohibited.

4. Taking of wildlife by use of a gun on or from the rights-of-way of State Road 67 is prohibited as provided by Rule 68A-4.008, F.A.C.

(15) Aucilla Wildlife Management Area.

(a) Open season:

1. General gun – November ~~11~~ 12 through January ~~7~~ 8.

2. Small game – January ~~8~~ 9 through March ~~4~~ 5.

3. Spring turkey – March ~~17~~ 18 through April ~~22~~ 23.

4. Archery – September ~~23~~ 24 through October ~~22~~ 23.

5. Muzzleloading gun – October ~~27-29~~ 28-30.

6. Early duck – In the September season established by Rule 68A-13.003, F.A.C.

7. Duck and coot – During the duck and coot season established by Rule 68A-13.003, F.A.C.

8. Fishing and frogging – Throughout the year ~~except on those portions of the area closed to public access during specified periods. Fishing and frogging in those areas are permitted only when they are open to public access.~~

9. Trapping – January ~~8~~ 9 through March 1.

(b) Legal to take: All legal game, hog, fish, frogs and furbearers. No size or bag limit on ~~wild~~ hogs. Antlerless deer may not be taken during the archery season.

(c) No Change.

(d) General regulations:

1. ~~Taking~~ The taking of wild hogs by the use of dogs is prohibited, except during general gun season in the dog hunt area (which includes that portion of the area east of State Road 59 and north of U.S. 98, west of Powell Hammock Road and south of Goose Pasture Road and that portion of the area north of Goose Pasture Road and west of the Aucilla River).

2. ~~Taking wildlife~~ Hunting with dogs other than bird dogs or waterfowl retrievers is prohibited in the still hunt area (which includes that portion of the area south of U.S. 98 and that portion of the area on those lands lying north of Goose Pasture Road and east of the Aucilla River).

3. ~~Hunters entering the area via the Western Sloughs check station must possess a daily hunt permit (available at the check station) and shall check all game taken.~~

~~3.4.~~ Vehicles may be operated only on named or numbered ~~designated~~ roads.

~~4.5.~~ During the general gun and small game seasons, hunting as specified by paragraph 68A-24.002(2)(b), F.A.C., is permitted.

~~5.6.~~ Taking of wildlife by use of a gun on or from the rights-of-way of U.S. 98 is prohibited as provided by Rule 68A-4.008, F.A.C.

~~6.7.~~ Fires are prohibited.

~~7.8.~~ The use of all-terrain vehicles (ATVs) is prohibited.

~~8.9.~~ Shotguns are permitted on the area during the early duck season established by Rule 68A-13.003, F.A.C.

~~9.10.~~ Taking wildlife ~~Hunting~~ with dogs is prohibited during the archery season, except that waterfowl retrievers may be used during the early duck season.

~~10.11.~~ On that portion of the area south of U.S. 98, hunting shall be restricted to small game and ~~wild~~ hogs, except deer may be taken by bow during archery and general gun seasons.

(16) Flint Rock Wildlife Management Area.

(a) Open season:

1. Muzzleloading gun – ~~October 28 through November 5 28-30.~~

2. General gun – November ~~11 12~~ through January ~~21 8.~~

3. Small game – January ~~8 9~~ through March ~~4 5.~~

4. Spring turkey – March ~~17 18~~ through April ~~22 23.~~

5. Archery – September ~~23 24~~ through October ~~22 23.~~

6. Early duck – In the September season established by Rule 68A-13.003, F.A.C.

7. Duck and coot – During the duck and coot season established by Rule 68A-13.003, F.A.C.

8. Fishing and frogging – Permitted during periods the area is open for access.

9. Trapping – January ~~8 9~~ through March 1.

(b) Legal to take: All legal game, fish, frogs, and furbearers. Taking of antlered deer not having at least one antler with three or more points, one inch or more in length, is prohibited. No size or bag limit on wild hogs.

(c) Camping: Prohibited.

(d) General regulations:

1. ~~Taking wildlife~~ ~~Hunting~~ with dogs other than waterfowl retrievers and bird dogs is prohibited.

~~2. Hunters shall check in and out at a check station when entering and exiting the area and shall check all game taken.~~

~~2.3.~~ Access is permitted only by individuals possessing a valid recreational user permit except as provided by Section 372.57, F.S., and only during periods open to hunting and 7 days before each open hunting season.

~~3.4.~~ Vehicles may be operated only on designated roads, and ~~vehicular~~ access is restricted to designated entrances.

~~4.5.~~ Taking of wildlife by use of a gun on or from the right-of-way of State Road 59 is prohibited as provided by subsection 68A-4.008(4), F.A.C.

~~5.6.~~ Fires are prohibited.

~~6.7.~~ The use of all-terrain vehicles (ATVs) is prohibited.

(17) Pine Log Wildlife Management Area.

(a) Open season:

1. Archery – October ~~14-29 15-30.~~

2. Muzzleloading gun – November ~~17-19 18-20.~~

3. General gun – November ~~23-26 24-27,~~ January ~~20-23 21-24,~~ and January ~~24-28 25-29.~~

4. Small game – December ~~2-31 3-31.~~

5. Spring turkey – March ~~17 18~~ through April ~~1 2.~~

6. Fishing and frogging – Throughout the year.

(b) Legal to take: All legal game, fish, frogs, and furbearers. No size or bag limit on wild hogs.

(c) Camping: Permitted at designated sites only.

(d) General Regulations:

1. Vehicles may be operated only on named or numbered roads and shall enter and exit at designated entrances only.

2. ~~Taking wildlife~~ ~~Hunting~~ with dogs other than bird dogs or retrievers is prohibited.

3. The use of all-terrain vehicles is prohibited.

4. Taking of wildlife by use of a gun on or from the rights-of-way of State Road 79 or County Road 2296 is prohibited as provided by Rule 68A-4.008, F.A.C.

5. Hunters shall check in and out at a check station when entering and exiting the area and shall check all game taken.

6. Firearms and crossbows are prohibited in the archery-only area, delineated as that portion of the area lying north of Pine Log Creek, south of Environmental Road, and west of State Road 79.

(18) Eglin AFB Wildlife Management Area.

(a) Open season:

1. Archery – October ~~14 15~~ through November ~~12 13~~ in areas and during days specified by the Installation Commander.

2. Muzzleloading gun – November ~~17-19 18-20~~ in areas specified by the Installation Commander.

3. General gun – November ~~23-26 24-27,~~ December ~~9 10~~ through February ~~4 5~~ in areas and during days specified by the Installation Commander.

4. Archery and muzzleloading gun – February ~~5-25 6-26~~ in areas and during days specified by the Installation Commander.

5. Small game – November ~~11 12~~ through March ~~4 5~~ in areas and during days specified by the Installation Commander.

6. Dove – In areas and during days specified by the Installation Commander in accordance with Rule 68A-13.008, F.A.C.

7. Spring turkey – March ~~17 18~~ through April ~~22 23~~ in areas and during days specified by the Installation Commander.

8. Raccoon, fox, opossum, and bobcat – May 15 through August 31 in areas specified by the Installation Commander.

9. Trapping – December 1 through March 1 in areas specified by the Installation Commander.

10. Fishing and frogging – Throughout the year in areas and at times specified by the Installation Commander.

(b) Legal to take: All legal game, fish (~~except as provided below~~), frogs and furbearers. The taking of any deer not having at least one antler with three or more points (each point one-inch in length or more) is prohibited in areas specified by the Installation Commander. Antlerless deer may be taken during established seasons by permit from the Installation Commander.

1. No person shall kill or possess any fish on Weekly Pond, Upper Memorial Lake, Hurlburt Lake or Jack Lake.

2. No person shall take more than ten panfish in the aggregate per day, kill or possess any panfish less than eight inches in total length, take more than one black bass per day, or kill or possess any black bass less than 24 inches in total length on Duck Pond or Indigo Pond.

(c) Camping: Prohibited, except at designated campsites.

(d) General regulations:

1. Possession of or taking wildlife hunting with dogs other than bird dogs or retrievers is prohibited in areas specified by the Installation Commander.

2. Vehicles may be operated only on named or numbered roads except those posted as closed.

3. Hunters shall check in and out at a check station when entering and exiting the area and shall check all game taken in areas specified by the Installation Commander.

4. Taking of wildlife by use of a gun on or from the rights-of-way of any paved Eglin road, Range Roads 200, 213, 234, and the portion of Range Road 211 from Highway 85 west to Range Road 610, and all other roads posted as such, is prohibited as provided by Rule 68A-4.008, F.A.C.

5. Use of trotlines or bush hooks is prohibited.

6. During November ~~11-12~~ through March ~~4-5~~, hunting as specified by paragraph 68A-24.002(2)(b), F.A.C., is permitted.

7. Use of all-terrain vehicles is prohibited, except by permit.

8. Dogs may be trained in areas and at times specified by the Installation Commander.

9. Persons shall only enter and exit Eglin AFB in areas and at times specified by the Installation Commander.

10. No person shall operate any boat propelled by an internal-combustion engine on any lake or pond, except as authorized by the Installation Commander.

(19) Escambia River Wildlife Management Area.

(a) Open season:

1. General gun – November ~~23-26~~ ~~24-27~~ and December ~~9-10-31~~.

2. Archery – October ~~14-15~~ through November ~~12-13~~.

3. Muzzleloading gun – November ~~17-19~~ ~~18-20~~.

4. Archery and muzzleloading gun – ~~January 1-31~~ ~~January 1 through February 1~~ and February ~~15-25~~ ~~16-26~~.

5. Small game – ~~November 11-22, November 27 through December 8 and January 1 through March 4~~ ~~November 12 through March 5~~.

6. Spring turkey – March ~~17-18~~ through April ~~22-23~~.

7. Fox, raccoon, opossum, and bobcat – November 1 through July 31 except during spring turkey season.

8. Migratory game birds – Migratory game birds during seasons established by Rules 68A-13.003 and 68A-13.008, F.A.C.

9. Fishing and frogging – Permitted throughout the year.

(b) Legal to take: All legal game, hog, fish, frogs and furbearers. No size or bag limit on hog.

(c) No change.

(d) General regulations:

1. Vehicles may be operated only on named or numbered roads.

2. Taking wildlife Hunting with dogs, other than bird dogs or retrievers, is prohibited on Parker and Morgan Islands (except in accordance with paragraph 68A-24.002(2)(b),

F.A.C., when hunting raccoon) and in that portion of the area north of State Road 184, Mineral Springs Road in Santa Rosa County, and Bogia Road in Escambia County.

3. The use of all-terrain vehicles is prohibited.

4. Taking of wildlife by use of a gun on or from rights-of-way of Keyser Landing Road, Webb Landing Road, State Road 184 and all other paved roads located within the area is prohibited as provided by Rule 68A-4.008, F.A.C. Taking of fish on or from rights-of-way of Keyser Landing Road and Webb Landing Road is prohibited.

5. Raccoon may be taken by the use of firearms only during November 1 through March 1.

(20) Tyndall AFB Wildlife Management Area.

(a) Open season:

1. Archery – October ~~14-15~~ through November ~~12-13~~ during days specified by the Installation Commander.

2. Muzzleloading gun – November ~~17-19~~ ~~18-20~~.

3. General gun – November ~~23-26~~ ~~24-27~~ and December ~~9-10~~ through February ~~14-15~~ during days specified by the Installation Commander.

4. Supervised youth – November ~~18-19~~ ~~19-20~~, December ~~2-3~~ ~~3-4~~ and ~~16-17~~ ~~17-18~~ (only in areas designated by the Installation Commander).

5. Spring turkey – March ~~17-18~~ through April ~~22-23~~ during days specified by the Installation Commander.

6. Small game – November ~~11-12~~ through March ~~4-5~~ during days specified by the Installation Commander.

7. Migratory game birds – During days specified by the Installation Commander within seasons established by Rules 68A-13.003 and 68A-13.008, F.A.C.

8. Fishing and frogging – Throughout the year except in areas posted as closed.

(b) Legal to take: All legal game, hog, fish, frogs and furbearers. Taking of antlered deer not having at least one forked antler and having one or more antlers at least 5 inches in length visible above the hairline is prohibited. Antler restrictions shall not apply during the supervised youth hunt. Antlerless deer may be taken during established seasons by permit from the Installation Commander. No size or bag limit on hog.

(c) Camping: Prohibited, except in designated areas.

(d) General regulations:

1. Taking wildlife Hunting with dogs other than bird dogs or retrievers is prohibited.

2. Taking of wildlife by use of a gun on or from the rights-of-way of U.S. 98 is prohibited as provided by Rule 68A-4.008, F.A.C.

3. Use of trotlines or bush hooks is prohibited.

(21) Choctawhatchee River Wildlife Management Area.

(a) Open season:

1. Archery – October ~~14-15~~ through November ~~12-13~~.

2. Muzzleloading gun – November ~~17-19~~ ~~18-20~~.

3. General gun – November ~~23-26~~ ~~24-27~~ and December ~~9~~ ~~10~~ through January 31 ~~February 1~~ except Holmes Creek Unit and East River Island.

4. Small game – November 11-22, November 27 through December 8 and February 1 through March 4 ~~November 12 through March 5~~.

5. Archery and muzzleloading gun – February 15-25 ~~16-26~~. Holmes Creek Unit and East River Island November 23-26 ~~24-27~~, December ~~9~~ ~~10~~ through January 31 ~~February 1~~ and February 15-25 ~~16-26~~.

6. Spring turkey – March 17 ~~18~~ through April 22 ~~23~~ only in that portion of the area south of the pipeline right-of-way located up river (north) of Cedar Log Landing (Walton County) and Billy Lee Landing (Washington County). March 17-19 ~~18-20~~ in that portion of the area north of the pipeline right-of-way.

7. Migratory game birds – Migratory game birds during seasons established by Rules 68A-13.003 and 68A-13.008, F.A.C.

8. Fishing and frogging – Throughout the year.

9. Trapping – December 1 through March 1 in still hunt areas and February 1 through March 1 in dog hunt areas.

(b) Legal to take: All legal game, hog, fish, frogs and furbearers. In that portion of the area north of the pipeline right-of-way, turkey may be taken only during the spring turkey season and the bag limit for turkey shall be one gobbler or bearded turkey per quota ~~hunt~~ permit. No size or bag limit on hog.

(c) No change.

(d) General regulations:

1. Vehicles may be operated only on named or numbered roads.

2. Taking wildlife ~~Hunting~~ with dogs, other than bird dogs or retrievers, is prohibited in still hunt areas. Designated still hunt areas are north of U.S. Highway 90, Holmes Creek Unit (those lands in Washington County lying east of C.R. 284), and East River Island (those lands in Township 1 North, Ranges 17 and 18 West which are bounded on the south and east by East River and on the west and north by Choctawhatchee River); also those lands south of U.S. Highway 90 lying north of the pipeline right-of-way and east of the Choctawhatchee River.

3. The use of all-terrain vehicles is prohibited.

4. During spring turkey season in that portion of the area north of the pipeline right-of-way, hunters shall check in and out at a check station when entering and exiting the area and shall check all turkeys taken.

(22) Upper Chipola River Wildlife Management Area.

(a) Open season:

1. Archery – October 14 ~~15~~ through November 12 ~~13~~.

2. Muzzleloading gun – November 17-19 ~~18-20~~.

3. General gun – November 23-26 ~~24-27~~ and December ~~9~~ ~~10~~ through January 1.

4. Small game – November 11-22, November 27 through December 8 and January 2 through March 4 ~~November 12 through March 5~~.

5. Archery and muzzleloading gun – February 17-18 ~~18-19~~ and 24-25 ~~25-26~~.

6. Spring turkey – March 17 ~~18~~ through April 22 ~~23~~.

7. Migratory game birds – Migratory game birds during seasons established by Rules 68A-13.003 and 68A-13.008, F.A.C.

8. Fishing and frogging – Throughout the year.

9. Trapping – December 1 through March 1.

(b) Legal to take: All legal game, hog, fish, frogs and furbearers. No size or bag limit on hog.

(c) No Change.

(d) General regulations:

1. Vehicles may be operated only on named or numbered roads.

2. Taking or attempting to take deer or hogs with the aid of dogs is prohibited.

3. The use of all-terrain vehicles is prohibited.

(23) Yellow River Wildlife Management Area.

(a) Open seasons except in the Grassy Point area:

1. Archery – October 14 ~~15~~ through November 12 ~~13~~.

2. Muzzleloading gun – November 17-19 ~~18-20~~.

3. General gun – November 23-26 ~~24-27~~ and December ~~9~~ ~~10~~ through January 31 ~~February 1~~.

4. Small game – November 11 ~~12~~ through March 4 ~~5~~.

5. Archery and muzzleloading gun – February 15-25 ~~16-26~~.

6. Spring turkey – March 17 ~~18~~ through April 22 ~~23~~.

7. Migratory game birds – Migratory game birds during seasons established by Rules 68A-13.003 and 68A-13.008, F.A.C.

8. Fishing and frogging – Throughout the year.

9. Trapping – December 1 through March 1.

(b) Open seasons in the Grassy Point area (the area south of Weaver River):

1. General gun – November 23-26 ~~24-27~~ and January 20-28 ~~21-29~~.

2. Archery – October 14-29 ~~15-30~~.

3. Muzzleloading gun – November 17-19 ~~18-20~~.

4. Spring turkey – March 17-18 ~~18-19~~, March 31 through April 1 ~~April 1-2~~ and April 14-15 ~~15-16~~.

5. Small game – November 11-16 ~~12-17~~ and 20-22 ~~21-23~~.

6. Fishing and frogging – Throughout the year.

(c) Legal to Take: All legal game, hog, fish, frogs and furbearers. No size or bag limit on hog.

(d) No change.

(e) General regulations:

1. Vehicles may be operated only on named or numbered roads.

2. Taking wildlife Hunting with dogs, other than bird dogs or retrievers, is prohibited.

3. The use of all-terrain vehicles is prohibited.

4. The possession or consumption of intoxicating beverages is prohibited in the Grassy Point area.

(24) Econfina Creek Wildlife Management Area.

(a) Open season except in the mobility-impaired, Cat Creek, and Fitzhugh Carter areas.

1. Archery – October ~~14~~ ~~15~~ through November ~~12~~ ~~13~~.

2. Muzzleloading gun – November ~~17-19~~ ~~18-20~~.

3. General gun – November ~~23-26~~ ~~24-27~~ and December ~~9~~ ~~10~~ through ~~January 31~~ ~~February 1~~.

4. Small game – November ~~11~~ ~~12~~ through March ~~4~~ ~~5~~.

5. Archery and muzzleloading gun – February ~~15-25~~ ~~16-26~~.

6. Spring turkey – March ~~17~~ ~~18~~ through April ~~22~~ ~~23~~.

7. Raccoon – November ~~11~~ ~~12~~ through March ~~16~~ ~~17~~ and April ~~23~~ ~~24~~ through July 31.

8. Duck and coot – During duck and coot season as established by Rule 68A-13.003, F.A.C.

9. Fishing and frogging – Permitted throughout the year.

(b) Open seasons in the mobility-impaired hunt area (area south of County Road 388):

1. General gun – November ~~24-26~~ ~~25-27~~, January ~~12-14~~ ~~13-15~~, ~~19-21~~ ~~20-22~~, ~~26-28~~ ~~27-29~~ and ~~January 31 through February 2~~ ~~February 1-3~~.

2. Spring turkey – March ~~17-18~~ ~~18-19~~, ~~23-25~~ ~~24-26~~, March ~~30~~ ~~31~~ through April ~~1~~ ~~2~~, April ~~6-8~~ ~~7-9~~, ~~13-15~~ ~~14-16~~ and ~~20-22~~ ~~21-23~~.

3. Fishing and frogging – Permitted throughout the year.

(c) Open seasons in the Cat Creek (area south of State Road 20 and north of County Road 388) and Fitzhugh Carter (area west of State Road 77) areas:

1. Archery – October ~~14-29~~ ~~15-30~~.

2. Muzzleloading gun – November ~~17-19~~ ~~18-20~~.

3. General gun – November ~~23-26~~ ~~24-27~~, January ~~20-23~~ ~~21-24~~ and ~~24-28~~ ~~25-29~~.

4. Small game – December ~~2-17~~ ~~3-18~~.

5. Spring turkey – March ~~17-19~~ ~~18-20~~, March ~~30~~ ~~31~~ through April ~~1~~ ~~2~~ and April ~~13-15~~ ~~14-16~~.

6. Special September duck – In the September season established by Rule 68A-13.003, F.A.C. (Fitzhugh Carter area only).

7. Fishing and frogging – Permitted throughout the year (except as provided below) ~~that fishing is prohibited in the Fitzhugh-Carter area.~~

(d) Legal to Take: All legal game, hog, fish (except as provided below ~~in the Fitzhugh-Carter area~~), frogs and furbearers. In the mobility-impaired hunt area, antlerless deer (bag limit of two per three-day hunt) may be taken during general gun hunts only by persons possessing valid mobility-impaired certificates. No size or bag limit on hog.

(e) No change.

(f) General regulations:

1. Vehicles may be operated only on named or numbered roads except in the mobility-impaired hunt area by persons possessing mobility-impaired certificates.

2. Taking wildlife Hunting with dogs, other than bird dogs or retrievers, is prohibited west of State Road 77, south of State Road 20, east of Econfina Creek, west of Econfina Road and south of Greenhead Road, and north of Duma Jack Road except that dogs may be used to take raccoons (except in the mobility-impaired hunt area).

3. The use of all-terrain vehicles is prohibited except in the mobility-impaired hunt area by persons possessing mobility-impaired certificates.

4. The possession or consumption of intoxicating beverages is prohibited.

5. Persons hunting in the mobility-impaired area must possess a valid mobility-impaired certificate and mobility-impaired hunt permit, or accompany a person possessing a valid mobility-impaired certificate and mobility-impaired hunt permit. One additional person per permit holder may participate in the hunt. Only one mobility-impaired quota hunt permit may be utilized per individual per hunt.

6. Taking of wildlife by use of a gun on or from rights-of-way of Thomas Road, Rattlesnake Road, Strickland Road, Porter Pond Road, Duma Jack/Deadening Road, Econfina Road, Greenhead Road, Hampshire Boulevard, Cat Creek Road, Enfinger Road, S.R. 20, or C.R. 388 is prohibited.

7. Horses are allowed on designated horse trails only. Horses are prohibited on the Fitzhugh Carter Area.

8. All persons entering or exiting the Fitzhugh/Carter area may do so only at a designated entrance.

9. Hunters and anglers shall check in and out at a check station when entering and exiting the Fitzhugh/Carter area and shall check all game and fish taken.

10. General regulations for taking fish on all Fitzhugh Carter Area lakes and water bodies:

a. Fishing is allowed only by permit issued by the Commission.

b. Days and hours of operation and angler quotas shall be as designated by the Commission and posted at the area headquarters. Angler quotas shall be determined by the following: a maximum of one angler per ten acres of open water with a minimum of two anglers per water body. Fishing is permitted in designated lakes and water bodies only. All other lakes, water bodies and restricted areas are closed to public fishing. Any lake or water body may be temporarily closed to public access for management purposes or in the event that access to the lake or water body exposes the public to danger by posting notice at the headquarters.

c. No person shall take more than 20 panfish in the aggregate per day, kill or possess any bluegill or redear sunfish less than 8 inches in total length, take more than 10 black crappie per day, kill or possess any black crappie less than 10 inches in total length, or kill or possess any black bass.

d. Fish may not be filleted, nor their head or tail fin removed, until the angler has checked out at the check station.

e. The use or possession of nets, seines, fish traps, trotlines, set lines, spears, gigs, snatch hooks, crossbow, bow and arrow or bush hooks is prohibited. Landing nets may be used and possessed for boating fish caught by rod and reel or hook and line.

(25) Box-R Wildlife Management Area.

(a) Open season:

1. Archery – October ~~14-20~~ ~~15-21~~ and ~~21-29~~ ~~22-30~~.

2. Small game – November ~~11-16~~ ~~12-17~~.

3. Muzzleloading gun – November ~~17-19~~ ~~18-20~~.

4. General gun – November ~~23-26~~ ~~24-27~~, January ~~4-7~~ ~~5-8~~, ~~11-14~~ ~~12-15~~ and ~~18-21~~ ~~19-22~~.

5. ~~Hog Wild hog~~ – December ~~2-8~~ ~~3-9~~.

6. Spring turkey – March ~~17-20~~ ~~18-21~~, March ~~29~~ ~~30~~ through April ~~1~~ ~~2~~ and April ~~12-15~~ ~~13-16~~.

7. Fishing and frogging – Permitted throughout the year.

(b) Legal to take: All legal game, hog, fish, frogs and furbearers. The bag limit for deer shall be one antlered deer per quota ~~hunt~~ permit. Antlerless deer may be taken by permit only. Taking of antlered deer not having at least one antler with three or more points, one inch or more in length, is prohibited. During spring turkey season, the bag limit for turkey shall be one gobbler or bearded turkey per quota ~~hunt~~ permit. ~~Hog Wild hogs~~ may be taken only during the archery, muzzleloading gun, ~~wild hog~~, and general gun ~~seasons~~ ~~hunts~~. No size or bag limit on ~~wild hogs~~.

(c) Camping: Prohibited.

(d) General regulations:

1. Vehicles may be operated only on named or numbered roads.

2. Vehicles shall enter and exit only at designated entrances as indicated on the hunt map, except during the small game season.

3. During periods when the area is closed to hunting, public access other than on foot (pedestrian), horseback (equestrian), or by bicycle is prohibited except that motorized vehicles may be used on Bluff Road and one day immediately prior to each hunt.

4. The possession or use of airboats, all-terrain vehicles, motorcycles or tracked vehicles is prohibited.

5. ~~Taking wildlife~~ ~~Hunting~~ with dogs, other than bird dogs or retrievers, is prohibited.

6. Hunters shall check in and out at a check station when entering and exiting the area and shall check all game taken, except during the small game season.

7. No deer or turkey shall be dismembered until checked at a check station.

8. Thirty (30) daily hunt permits shall be available for each ~~the wild~~ hog hunt at the check station on a first-come, first-served basis.

9. Taking or attempting to take wildlife by use of a gun on or from the rights-of-way of County Road 385, County Road 384, Moses Road, Teat Road, or Bluff Road is prohibited.

10. A quota hunt permit shall be required for every hunter entering the area, except during small game season.

(26) Lafayette Creek WMA.

(a) Open season:

1. Archery – October 14-20 and 21-29.

2. Muzzleloading gun – November 17-19.

3. Family hunt – November 23-26.

4. General gun – January 20-23 and 24-28.

5. Small game – December 1 through January 14 (Fridays, Saturdays and Sundays only).

6. Spring turkey – March 17 through April 22 (Saturdays and Sundays only).

7. Fishing and other recreational uses – During daylight hours only when hunting is not allowed.

8. Trapping – Prohibited.

(b) Legal to take: All legal game, hog, fish, frogs and furbearers. No size or bag limit on hog.

(c) Camping: Prohibited, except at designated campsites or by permit from Northwest Florida Water Management District.

(d) General regulations:

1. Vehicles may be operated only on named or numbered roads.

2. ATVs are prohibited.

3. Taking wildlife with dogs, other than bird dogs or retrievers, is prohibited.

4. All persons entering or exiting the area may do so only at a designated entrance.

5. Horses are allowed on designated horse trails only.

6. During the family hunts, one or two persons per hunt permit under 16 years of age but not younger than 8 years of age may hunt as provided in Section 790.22, F.S. These persons must be under the supervision and in the presence of one adult not younger than 18 years of age. The adult may only hunt when in the presence of at least one person under 16 years of age but not younger than 8 years of age.

(27) Wakulla Wildlife Management Area.

(a) Open season:

1. Archery – October 14 through November 12 (Fridays, Saturdays and Sundays only).

2. Archery and muzzleloading gun – November 24-26 and December 9-31 (Fridays, Saturdays and Sundays only).

3. Small game – January 5 through March 4 (Fridays, Saturdays and Sundays only).

4. Spring turkey – March 17 through April 22 (Saturdays and Sundays only).

5. Fishing and frogging – Throughout the year.

(b) Legal to take: All legal game, hog, fish, frogs and furbearers. No size or bag limit on hog.

(c) Camping: Allowed only at designated sites by permit from the Division of Forestry.

(d) General regulations:

1. Vehicles may be operated only on named or numbered roads.

2. ATVs are prohibited.

3. Taking wildlife with dogs, other than bird dogs or retrievers, is prohibited.

4. Only modern shotguns, muzzleloading guns and bows are allowed during the spring turkey season.

5. All hunters entering or exiting the area may do so only at a designated entrance.

PROPOSED EFFECTIVE DATE: July 1, 2006.

Specific Authority Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const., 372.121, 375.313 FS. Law Implemented Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const., 372.121, 375.313 FS. History– New 6-21-82, Amended 7-1-83, 7-5-84, 7-1-85, 5-7-86, 5-10-87, 6-8-87, 5-1-88, 7-1-89, 7-1-90, 9-1-90, 7-1-91, 9-1-91, 7-1-92, 7-2-92, 7-1-93, 3-1-94, 7-1-94, 7-1-95, 7-2-95, 8-15-95, 7-1-96, 7-2-96, 6-1-97, 12-3-97, 7-1-98, 7-2-98, 8-11-98, 7-1-99, Formerly 39-15.063, Amended 11-17-99, 7-1-00, 7-1-01, 7-22-01, 6-2-02, 5-1-03, 7-1-03, 7-1-04, 7-2-04, 8-1-04, 7-1-05, 7-1-06.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE:
Mr. Nick Wiley, Director, Division of Hunting and Game Management

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Mr. Kenneth D. Haddad, Executive Director

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: September 21, 2005

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: November 23, 2005

FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION

Freshwater Fish and Wildlife

RULE CHAPTER TITLE:	RULE CHAPTER NO.:
Type I Wildlife Management Areas	68A-15
RULE TITLE:	RULE NO.:
Specific Regulations for Wildlife Management Areas – South Region	68A-15.064

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose of the proposed rule changes is to revise specific area regulations on Wildlife Management Areas (WMAs) in the South Region and conform to calendar year date changes. The effect of the proposed rule changes is to enable the agency to better manage fish and wildlife resources and public use on WMAs.

SUMMARY: The proposed rule changes would adjust season dates to conform to calendar year changes and revise specific area regulations on Wildlife Management Areas (WMAs) in the South Region as follows:

J. W. Corbett WMA – The proposed rule changes would establish the ending date of the general gun season as either New Year’s Day or the Sunday after for those years where New Year’s Day falls on a Thursday, Friday, or Saturday; add an additional five weekdays (Wednesdays only) to spring turkey season (currently Saturday and Sunday only); restrict vehicle access during small game season to named or numbered roads or trails; allow vehicle access during spring turkey season along all named or numbered roads or trails; allow vehicle access one day prior to the opening of archery season; allow vehicle access during open periods (other than designated hunting seasons and dog training season) to all main grades, trail 6, the Tomato Field grade east of the Big Gopher canal, trail 3 between its junction with Tomato Field Grade and its junction with Trail 5, and Trail 5 between its junction with Trail 3 and the L-8 levee; and, allow vehicle access to the area one day prior to the openings of muzzleloading gun and general gun seasons.

Holey Land WMA – The proposed rule changes would allow waterfowl hunters to access the WMA with airboats (for the purpose of duck and coot hunting) during the archery, muzzleloading, general gun-walk, and general gun-vehicle seasons; allow vehicle access from the end of the duck and coot season through April 30; prohibit all-terrain vehicles with steering mechanisms that would allow the all-terrain vehicle to be operated from elevated platforms; and, require all ATVs to display an orange flag at least six feet above the top of the seat.

Everglades and Francis S. Taylor WMA -- The proposed rule changes would clarify that rifles or pistols are prohibited after the end of general gun-walk season between the Old Miami Canal and the New Miami Canal in Conservation Area 3A ; clarify that rifles or pistols are prohibited after the general gun-vehicle season in Conservation Area 2, Area 3B, and the remainder of Area 3A; prohibit all-terrain vehicles with steering mechanisms that would allow the all-terrain vehicle to be operated from elevated platforms; require all ATVs to display an orange flag at least six feet above the top of the seat; and, allow waterfowl hunters to access Conservation Area 2, 3A South, and 3B with airboats when the duck and coot season overlaps the general gun-vehicle season.

Rotenberger WMA – The proposed rule changes would require a general gun permit during the general gun-vehicle season for any person to operate a vehicle; allow vehicle access from the end of the duck and coot season through April 30; prohibit all-terrain vehicles with steering mechanisms that would allow the all-terrain vehicle to be operated from elevated platforms; and require all ATVs to display an orange flag at least six feet above the top of the seat.

Okaloacoochee Slough WMA – The proposed rule change would allow the take of hogs with no size or bag limit.

Fisheating Creek WMA – The proposed rule change would establish bag limit for deer at one per quota permit.

Dinner Island WMA – The proposed rule change would establish two new family hunts for wild hog only (quota of 30 each hunt) with a bag limit of one per person per quota permit. A STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST HAS NOT BEEN PREPARED REGARDING THESE PROPOSED RULES.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated regulatory costs, or to provide a proposal for lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: Article IV, Section 9, Florida Constitution; 372.121, 375.313 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: Article IV, Section 9, Florida Constitution; 372.121, 375.313 FS.

THE FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION WILL CONDUCT A PUBLIC RULEMAKING HEARING ON THE PROPOSED RULES DURING THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE COMMISSION TO BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATES AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

TIME AND DATES: 8:30 a.m. – 5:00 p.m., each day, February 1-2, 2006

PLACE: Hilton University of Florida Conference Center, 1714 S.W. 34th Street, Gainesville, Florida 32607

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 calendar days before the workshop/meeting by contacting the ADA Coordinator, at (850)488-6411. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency by calling (850)488-9542.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: James V. Antista, General Counsel, Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission, 620 South Meridian Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1600

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

68A-15.064 Specific Regulations for Wildlife Management Areas – South Region.

(1) J. W. Corbett Wildlife Management Area.

(a) Open season:

1. General gun – Nineteen days prior to Thanksgiving day through January 1 except those years when January 1 falls on a Thursday, Friday or Saturday, in which case the season would close on the following Sunday November 5 through January 1.

2. Small game – The day following the close of the general gun season through the second Sunday in February January 2 through February 12.

3. Spring turkey – The first Saturday of March and continuing for 36 days thereafter March 4 through April 9 (Saturdays, and Sundays, and Wednesdays only).

4. Archery – Ten weeks prior to opening of general gun season and continuing for 22 days thereafter August 27 through September 18.

5. Muzzleloading gun – Five weeks prior to opening of general gun season and continuing for 15 days thereafter October 1-16.

6. Raccoon season – The day following the close of the general gun season through the second Sunday in February January 2 through February 12.

7. Fishing and frogging – Permitted throughout the year except when area is closed to public access.

(b) through (c) No change.

(d) General regulations:

1. The use of rifles is prohibited within one-fourth mile of the Seaboard Coastline Railroad, the Pratt-Whitney fence and Mecca Farms.

2. The use or possession of airboats, tracked vehicles, motorized two-wheeled vehicles or all-terrain vehicles on the area is prohibited.

3. All persons shall check in and out at a check station when entering and exiting the area and shall check all game taken. People through-hiking on the Florida Trail may enter or exit the area through the Florida Trail.

4. Camping is permitted from the beginning of archery season through general gun seasons, only on designated campsites. Campsites are available on a first-come, first-served basis. Each camper shall assure that their campsite is clean at all times. At least camping areas L and M (and 1/2 of B during archery season only) shall be designated for short-term camping, with camping being limited to no longer than three days. Campsites may be set up and occupied no earlier than 8:00 a.m. the day prior to the opening of archery season and all vehicles, camps, tents, and other camping equipment and litter removed no later than 24 hours after the close of the general gun season. The alteration, defacing, moving or tampering in any way with official markings of campsites is prohibited. Only tents, trailers, or self-propelled camping vehicles may be used for camping. Kitchen stoves, refrigerators, and freezers, unless contained in mobile campers, lumber, sheet metal or other building materials is prohibited. For the remainder of the year when the area is open camping is permitted at designated campsites on Fridays, Saturdays, and Sundays only but campsites may not be left unattended for more than 24 hours.

5. From 8 a.m. one day before the opening of archery season through the close of ~~During~~ the archery season and during small game and spring turkey seasons, vehicles may be operated only on named or numbered roads or trails. ~~During the spring turkey season, vehicles may be operated only on the Stumpers grade and on named or numbered roads or trails west of and including the North and South grades.~~

6. During dog training season and open periods other than designated hunting seasons, motorized vehicles may be operated only on the North, South, and Stumper's grades, on trail 6, on Trail 3 between its junction with Tomato Field Grade and its junction with Trail 5, on Trail 5 between its junction with Trail 3 and the L-8 levee, and on the Tomato Field grade east of the Big Gopher canal. These vehicle access prohibitions shall not apply from 8 a.m. one day before the opening of muzzleloading gun and general gun seasons through the close of muzzleloading gun and general gun seasons.

7. No deer or hog shall be quartered, or dismembered in the hunt area or removed from the area unless checked at a check station.

8. Dogs shall be removed the last day of the small game season. Dogs other than bird dogs, dogs with a shoulder height of 15 inches or less, or raccoon dogs are prohibited after the last day of the general gun season.

9. Roy R. Burnsed Still Hunt Area: Dogs, except bird dogs during small game season, are prohibited in the still hunt area, delineated as that portion of the area starting at the junction of the South Grade and the Main Canal, then south on the South Grade to the Indian Trails Outfall Canal, then south, east, and south along the wildlife management area boundary, then west along the L-8 Canal to its junction with the Big Gopher Canal, then northeast along the Big Gopher Canal to its junction with the Tomato Field Grade, then east along the Tomato Field Grade to its junction with the Tomato Field, then along the western boundary of the Tomato Field to its junction with the Main Canal, then northeast along the Main Canal to the point of beginning.

10. Deer dogs and bird dogs may be trained beginning 14 days prior to the opening of the general gun season and ending 5 days prior to the opening of the general gun season. The possession of guns is prohibited.

11. Vehicles may be operated only on named or numbered roads or trails within the still hunt area.

12. During raccoon season, firearms and dogs as specified in paragraph 68A-24.002(2)(b), F.A.C., may be used except in the still hunt area.

13. The possession or consumption of intoxicating beverages is prohibited.

14. Unauthorized planting of trees and shrubs is prohibited.

15. Public access is permitted throughout the year except from the Sunday two weeks prior to the opening of archery season until 8:00 a.m. the day prior to the archery season. Hiking on the Florida Trail and use of the Hungryland Boardwalk is permitted throughout the year.

16. Fires other than campfires are prohibited.

17. Dogs, vehicles, firearms and crossbows are prohibited in the Bruce Bowman archery still hunt area, delineated as that portion of the area lying north of the Stumpers Grade, east of the powerline, south and west of Game Canal to the buggy

bridge and west of the youth camp road to the intersection of the Stumpers Grade except that vehicles may be used on established roads to access parking lots at the youth camp, shooting range and nature interpretive center, and firearms and crossbows may be possessed at Commission functions specifically authorizing their use.

18. Hunting on or from the nature trail, boardwalk, entrance road or parking lot in the Bruce Bowman archery still hunt area is prohibited.

19. Archery equipment may be used for hunting during the established muzzleloading gun season in the Bruce Bowman archery still hunt area. All legal to take regulations for muzzleloading gun season shall apply when using archery equipment during this time period.

(2) Holey Land Wildlife Management Area.

(a) Open season:

1. General gun – Walk, October 21-29 ~~22-30~~.

2. General gun – Vehicle, November 4-19 ~~5-20~~ (tracked vehicles and airboats only). Deer hunting by permit only during the general gun-vehicle season.

3. Archery – August 26 ~~27~~ through September 17 ~~18~~.

4. Muzzleloading gun – September 30 through October 15 ~~1-16~~.

5. Migratory game birds – Migratory game birds except crows during seasons established by Rules 68A-13.003 and 68A-13.008, F.A.C.

6. Fishing and frogging – Throughout year.

(b) through (c) No change.

(d) General regulations:

1. During the archery, muzzleloading gun, and general-gun walk seasons, only all-terrain vehicles are permitted for hunting and all other vehicles are prohibited in the area except on levees. Airboats are prohibited during the archery, muzzleloading, general gun-walk, and general gun-vehicle seasons except airboats used for the purpose of duck and coot hunting on days when duck and coot hunting is allowed under Rule 68A-13.003, F.A.C., ~~and by general gun-vehicle hunt permittees.~~ While ~~If~~ an all-terrain vehicle is in motion, no person shall ~~hunt from or~~ occupy any platform or structure attached thereto, ~~which is 4 feet or more in height (as measured from the lowest bottom surface of the all terrain vehicle), and such vehicle shall not have~~ No all-terrain vehicle may be equipped with handlebars a steering mechanism that would enable the all-terrain vehicle to be operated from a platform or structure attached thereto more than 4 feet in height (as measured from the lowest bottom surface of the all terrain vehicle).

2. Vehicles are prohibited on tree islands, strands or wildlife islands.

3. A general gun-vehicle permit is required of any person to operate a vehicle during the general gun-vehicle season. General gun-vehicle permits and tags are not transferable, except as provided in subsection 68A-11.005(9), F.A.C.

4. All hunters shall check out at a check station and record their game harvest.

5. During the general gun-vehicle season, all deer taken shall be immediately tagged.

~~6. Vehicles are prohibited from the end of the duck and coot season established by Rule 68A-13.003, F.A.C., through April 30.~~

~~6.7.~~ Rifles and pistols are prohibited after the end of the general gun-vehicle season.

~~7.8.~~ Hunting with dogs is permitted only during the general gun-vehicle season, except that retrievers may be used during waterfowl season.

~~8.9.~~ Persons may enter and exit the area from the L-5 or Miami Canal Levee only.

~~9.10.~~ During the general gun-vehicle hunt, the area is closed to walk hunting.

~~10.11.~~ Fires other than campfires are prohibited.

~~11.12.~~ Vehicles are prohibited on all levees except the L-5 and Miami Canal Levees.

~~12.13.~~ Only tents, trailers or self-propelled camping vehicles may be used for camping. Camps may not be set up in the area prior to 7 days before archery season and all vehicles, camps, tents and other camping equipment and litter must be removed no later than 6 p.m. seven days after the close of the general gun season. The erection of any permanent structure is prohibited.

~~13.14.~~ Camping during the period from 8 days following the close of the general gun season to 8 days prior to the archery season is permitted but only on Fridays, Saturdays and Sundays, and camps may not be left unattended for more than 24 hours during this period.

~~14.15.~~ Camping is permitted only on the L-5 Levee and the Miami Canal Levee.

~~15.16.~~ The construction of docks of any type is prohibited.

~~16.17.~~ No person shall operate any vessel outside of Water Management District canals unless it is equipped with an orange flag at least 10 inches wide and 12 inches long and displayed at a minimum height of 10 feet above the bottom of the vessel.

~~17.18.~~ The display or use of a gun on or upon the L-5 or Miami Canal levees in a manner capable of taking wildlife is prohibited.

18. No person shall operate any all-terrain vehicle, motorized two wheeled vehicle, or motorized three-wheeled vehicle unless it is equipped with an orange flag at least 10 inches wide and 12 inches long and displayed at a minimum height of 6 feet above the top of the seat.

(e) No change.

(3) Everglades and Francis S. Taylor Wildlife Management Area.

(a) Open season:

1. General gun – Walk, October 21-29 ~~22-30~~, Conservation Areas 3A North and 2 only. December 2-31 ~~3 through January 1~~ in that portion of the area between the Old Miami Canal (Mud Canal) and the New Miami Canal in Conservation Area 3A North only.

2. General gun – Vehicle (airboats and tracked vehicles only), November 4-19 ~~5-20~~, in Conservation Areas 3A North, 3A South, 2, and the Francis S. Taylor Wildlife Management Area by permit only.

3. Archery – August 26 ~~27~~ through September 17 ~~18~~, Conservation Area 3A North only.

4. Muzzleloading gun – September 30 through October 15 ~~1-16~~, in Conservation Area 3A North only.

5. Duck, coot and snipe – Ducks and coots during the duck and coot season established by Rule 68A-13.003, F.A.C., and snipe during the snipe season established by Rule 68A-13.008, F.A.C.

6. Fishing and frogging – Throughout year.

(b) No change.

(d) General regulations:

1. Possession of guns on the levee bordering the Hillsboro Canal (L-39) is prohibited.

2. The possession of rifles or pistols is prohibited after the end of general gun-walk season in Conservation Area 3A between the old Miami Canal (Mud Canal) and the New Miami Canal, and after the general gun-vehicle season in Conservation Area 2 and the Francis S. Taylor Wildlife Management Area (Area 3B), and the remaining portions of Conservation Area 3A.

3. Vehicles and airboats are prohibited on tree islands, wildlife islands or tree strands. Vehicles and airboats are prohibited in that portion of the area between the Old Miami Canal (Mud Canal) and the New Miami Canal.

4. During the archery, muzzleloading gun and general-gun walk seasons, only all-terrain vehicles are permitted for hunting. While if ~~While if~~ an all-terrain vehicle is in motion, no person shall ~~hunt from or~~ occupy any platform or structure attached thereto. No all-terrain vehicle may be equipped with a steering mechanism that would enable the all-terrain vehicle to be operated from a platform or structure attached thereto which is 4 feet or more in height (as measured from the lowest bottom surface of the all terrain vehicle), and such vehicle shall not have handlebars more than 4 feet in height (as measured from the lowest bottom surface of the all terrain vehicle).

5. Access into Conservation Area 2A during the general gun-walk season is permitted only from the L-6 Levee.

6. During archery, muzzleloading gun, and general gun-walk seasons, airboats and other vehicles except all-terrain vehicles are prohibited in Conservation Area 3A North and

Conservation Area 2 during legal shooting hours. Archery equipment, muzzleloading guns, and guns may be transported on boats (other than airboats) and all-terrain vehicles in Conservation Area 3A North and Conservation Area 2 during the archery, muzzleloading gun and general gun-walk seasons respectively.

7. A general gun-vehicle permit is required of any person to operate a vehicle during the general gun-vehicle season. General gun-vehicle permits will be given to both tracked vehicle and airboat hunters. General gun-vehicle permits and tags are not transferable, except as provided in subsection 68A-11.005(9), F.A.C.

8. During the general gun-vehicle season, all deer taken shall be immediately tagged.

9. On Saturdays and Sundays during the general gun-vehicle season deer and hogs may not be quartered or dismembered or removed from the area until checked at a check station.

10. During the general gun-vehicle season, Conservation Areas 3A North, 3A South, that portion of 2A north of the east-west trail, 2B, and the Francis S. Taylor Wildlife Management Area are closed during legal shooting hours to vehicles and airboats. Exceptions include except those vehicles and airboats authorized by permit and airboats used for the purpose of duck and coot hunting in Conservation Areas 2, 3A South, and 3B when duck and coot hunting is allowed under Rule 68A-13.003, F.A.C. Frogging (by airboat only) is permitted from one hour after sunset to one hour before sunrise.

11. Unauthorized motorized vehicles are prohibited on all the levees except the L-4, L-5, and that portion of the L-6 extending from the S-7 pump station north to Sportsman's Crossover.

12. Taking of wildlife by use of a gun on or from rights-of-way of State Road 84, U.S. 41 or U.S. 27 is prohibited as provided by Rule 68A-4.008, F.A.C.

13. Hunting with dogs is permitted only during the general gun-vehicle season except that retrievers may be used during waterfowl season.

14. During the general gun-vehicle hunt, walk hunting is prohibited.

15. Fires other than campfires are prohibited.

16. Only tents, trailers or self-propelled camping vehicles may be used for camping. Camps may not be set up in the area prior to 7 days before archery and all vehicles, camps, tents and other camping equipment and litter must be removed no later than 6:00 p.m. seven days after the close of the general gun season. The erection of any permanent structure is prohibited.

17. Camping during the period from 8 days following the close of the general gun season to 8 days prior to the archery season is permitted but only on Fridays, Saturdays and Sundays and camps may not be left unattended for more than 24 hours during this period.

18. Overnight camping is prohibited in areas posted as closed to camping.

19. The construction of docks of any type is prohibited.

20. No person shall operate any vessel outside of Water Management District canals unless it is equipped with an orange flag at least 10 inches wide and 12 inches long and displayed at a minimum height of 10 feet above the bottom of the vessel.

21. Dogs may be trained in Francis S. Taylor Wildlife Management Area beginning the first Saturday in October and ending nine days thereafter. The possession of guns in the Francis S. Taylor Wildlife Management Area during the dog training season is prohibited.

22. The display or use of a gun on or upon the L-4 or L-5 levees in a manner capable of taking wildlife is prohibited.

23. No person shall operate any all-terrain vehicle, motorized two wheeled vehicle, or motorized three-wheeled vehicle unless it is equipped with an orange flag at least 10 inches wide and 12 inches long and displayed at a minimum height of 6 feet above the top of the seat.

(e) No change.

(4) Rotenberger Wildlife Management Area.

(a) Open season:

1. General gun – Walk, October ~~21-29~~ 22-30.

2. General gun – Vehicle (airboats and tracked vehicles only), November ~~4-19~~ 5-20 by quota permit only.

3. Archery – August ~~26~~ 27 through September ~~17~~ 18.

4. Muzzleloading gun – ~~September 30 through October 15~~ 1-16.

5. Duck, coot and snipe – Ducks and coots during the duck and coot season established by Rule 68A-13.003, F.A.C., and snipe during the snipe season established by Rule 68A-13.008, F.A.C.

6. Fishing and frogging – Permitted throughout the year.

(b) through (c) No change.

(d) General regulations:

1. A general gun permit is required of any person to operate a vehicle to hunt during the general gun-vehicle season. General gun-vehicle permits and tags are not transferable, except as provided in subsection 68A-11.005(9), F.A.C.

~~2. Vehicles are prohibited from the end of the duck and coot season established by Rule 68A-13.003, F.A.C., through April 30.~~

~~3.~~ Vehicles are prohibited on wildlife islands, tree islands, or tree strands.

~~4.~~ The possession of rifles and pistols is prohibited after the end of the general gun-vehicle season.

~~5.~~ Deer taken during the general gun-vehicle seasons shall be immediately tagged.

~~6.~~ All hunters shall check out at a check station and record their game harvest.

~~6.7.~~ Camping is permitted only on the Miami Canal, Manley Ditch and Powerline levees. Only tents, trailers or self-propelled camping vehicles may be used for camping. Camps may not be set up in the area prior to 7 days before archery and all vehicles, camps, tents and other camping equipment and litter must be removed no later than 6:00 p.m. seven days after the close of the general gun-vehicle season. Kitchen stoves, refrigerators and freezers, unless contained in mobile campers, lumber, sheet metal or other building materials is prohibited. The erection of any permanent structure is prohibited.

~~7.8.~~ Camping during the period from 8 days following the close of the general gun season to 8 days prior to the archery season is permitted but only on Fridays, Saturdays and Sundays, and camps may not be left unattended for more than 24 hours during this period.

~~8.9.~~ The construction of docks of any type is prohibited.

~~9.10.~~ During the archery, muzzleloading gun and general-gun walk seasons only all-terrain vehicles are permitted for hunting. While ~~If~~ an all-terrain vehicle is in motion, no person shall ~~hunt from or~~ occupy any platform or structure attached thereto. No all-terrain vehicle may be equipped with a steering mechanism that would enable the all-terrain vehicle to be operated from a platform or structure attached thereto which is 4 feet or more in height (as measured from the lowest bottom surface of the all-terrain vehicle), and such vehicle shall not have handlebars more than 4 feet in height (as measured from the lowest bottom surface of the all-terrain vehicle). Additionally, during the archery, muzzleloading gun and general-gun walk seasons, oOther vehicles may be operated only on levees and airboats are prohibited.

~~10.11.~~ The area is closed to all vehicles and airboats during the general gun-vehicle season except those authorized by permit.

~~11.12.~~ Hunting with dogs is allowed only during the general gun vehicle season, except that retrievers may be used during the duck and coot season established by Rule 68A-13.003, F.A.C., and during the snipe season established by Rule 68A-13.008, F.A.C.

~~12.13.~~ Fires other than campfires are prohibited.

~~13.14.~~ During the general gun-vehicle hunt, walk hunting is prohibited.

~~14.15.~~ Persons may enter and exit the area from the L-4, Powerline, Miami Canal and Manley Ditch levees only.

~~15.16.~~ No person shall operate any vessel outside of Water Management District canals unless it is equipped with an orange flag at least 10 inches wide and 12 inches long and displayed at a minimum height of 10 feet above the bottom of the vessel.

~~16.17.~~ The display or use of a gun on or upon the L-4, Powerline, Manley Ditch or Miami Canal levees in a manner capable of taking wildlife is prohibited.

17. No person shall operate any all-terrain vehicle, motorized two wheeled vehicle, or motorized three-wheeled vehicle unless it is equipped with an orange flag at least 10 inches wide and 12 inches long and displayed at a minimum height of 6 feet above the top of the seat.

(5) Big Cypress Wildlife Management Area.

(a) Open season:

1. General gun – Twelve days prior to Thanksgiving day through January 1 except during those years when January 1 falls on a Thursday, Friday, or Saturday, in which case the season would close on the following Sunday in the Stairsteps, Bear Island, Turner River, Corn Dance, and Loop units.

2. Small game – The day following the close of general gun season through February ~~4~~ 6.

3. Archery – September ~~2~~ 3 through October ~~1~~ 2 in all units and twelve days prior to Thanksgiving day through January 1, except during those years when January 1 falls on a Thursday, Friday or Saturday, in which case the season would close on the following Sunday in the Deep Lake Unit only.

4. Muzzleloading gun – October ~~7-22~~ 8-23, except in the Deep Lake Unit.

5. Spring turkey – March ~~3~~ 4 through April ~~8~~ 9.

6. Early duck – In the September season as established by Rule 68A-13.003, F.A.C., except on the Bear Island and Deep Lake Units.

7. Fishing and frogging – Permitted throughout the year.

(b) through (d) No change.

(6) No change.

(7) Okaloacoochee Slough Wildlife Management Area.

(a) Open season:

1. Archery – September ~~9-15~~ 10-16 and ~~16-24~~ 17-25.

2. Muzzleloading gun – October ~~14-16~~ 15-17.

3. General gun – October ~~28-31~~ 29 through November ~~1~~ and November ~~1-5~~ 2-6.

4. General gun hog – November ~~18-24~~ 19-25.

5. Small game – November ~~25~~ 26 through December ~~17~~ 18.

6. Spring turkey – March ~~3-6~~ 4-7 and ~~7-11~~ 8-12.

7. Dove – Saturdays only during the mourning dove and white-winged dove season established by Rule 68A-13.008, F.A.C.

8. Fishing and frogging – Permitted throughout the year.

(b) Legal to take: All legal game, fish, frogs and furbearers. During the archery, muzzleloading gun, general gun and general gun hog seasons, the bag limit for deer ~~and wild hogs~~ shall be one ~~each~~ per quota permit and wild hogs may be taken with no size or bag limit. Only wild hogs may be taken during the general gun hog season. The taking of antlerless deer is prohibited during archery season. During the spring turkey season, the bag limit for turkey shall be one gobbler (or bearded turkey) per quota permit.

(c) through (d) No change.

(8) Fisheating Creek Wildlife Management Area.

(a) Open season:

1. Archery – September ~~15-17~~ ~~16-18~~ and ~~22-24~~ ~~23-25~~ west of U.S. Highway 27 only.

2. Muzzleloading gun – October ~~13-15~~ ~~14-16~~ and ~~20-22~~ ~~21-23~~ west of U.S. Highway 27 only.

3. General gun – November ~~3-5~~ ~~4-6~~ and ~~24-26~~ ~~25-27~~ west of U.S. Highway 27 only.

4. Spring turkey – March ~~3-6~~ ~~4-7~~, ~~9-12~~ ~~10-13~~, ~~16-19~~ ~~17-20~~, ~~23-26~~ ~~24-27~~ and March ~~30~~ ~~31~~ through April ~~2~~ ~~3~~ west of U.S. Highway 27 only.

5. Special-opportunity spring turkey – March ~~3-9~~ ~~4-10~~ and ~~17-23~~ ~~18-24~~ east of U.S. Highway 27 only.

6. General gun hog – December ~~9-10~~ ~~10-11~~ west of U.S. Highway 27 only.

7. Fishing and frogging – Permitted throughout the year.

(b) Legal to take: All legal game, fish and furbearers except that turkeys may not be taken during the archery season. The bag limit for ~~antlered~~ deer shall be one per quota hunt permit. Wild hogs may be taken with no size or bag limit. During the spring turkey and special-opportunity spring turkey seasons, the bag limit for turkey shall be one gobbler (or bearded turkey) per permit. During the general gun hog season, only wild hogs may be taken.

(c) through (d) No change.

(9) Picayune Strand Wildlife Management Area.

(a) Open season:

1. Archery – September ~~9-24~~ ~~10-16~~ and ~~17-25~~.

2. Muzzleloading gun – October ~~14-16~~ ~~15-17~~.

3. General gun – October ~~28-31~~ ~~29~~ through November ~~1~~ and November ~~1-5~~ ~~2-6~~.

4. Small game – November ~~11-26~~ ~~12-27~~.

5. Spring turkey – March ~~3-6~~ ~~4-7~~ and ~~7-11~~ ~~8-12~~.

6. Fishing and frogging – Permitted throughout the year.

(b) No change.

(10) Dinner Island Ranch Wildlife Management Area.

(a) Open season:

1. Archery – September ~~9-15~~ ~~10-16~~ and ~~16-24~~ ~~17-25~~.

2. Muzzleloading gun – October ~~14-16~~ ~~15-17~~.

3. General gun – October ~~28-31~~ ~~29~~ through November ~~1~~ and November ~~1-5~~ ~~2-6~~.

4. Family hunt – November ~~11-12~~ and ~~18-19~~.

~~5.4~~ Spring turkey – March ~~3-6~~ ~~4-7~~ and ~~7-11~~ ~~8-12~~.

~~6.5~~ Dove – Saturdays only during the mourning dove and white-winged dove season established by Rule 68A-13.008, F.A.C.

~~7.6~~ Fishing and frogging – Permitted throughout the year.

(b) Legal to take: All legal game, fish, frogs and furbearers. The bag limit for deer, turkey, and wild hogs shall be one per person per quota hunt permit. The taking of antlerless deer and turkey is prohibited during archery season. During the family hunt, only wild hog may be taken.

(c) through (d) No change.

(11) Spirit-of-the-Wild Wildlife Management Area.

(a) Open season:

1. Archery – September ~~9-15~~ ~~10-16~~ and ~~16-24~~ ~~17-25~~

2. Muzzleloading gun – October ~~14-16~~ ~~15-17~~.

3. General gun – October ~~28-31~~ ~~29~~ through November ~~1~~ and November ~~1-5~~ ~~2-6~~.

4. Spring turkey – March ~~3-6~~ ~~4-7~~ and ~~7-11~~ ~~8-12~~.

5. Fishing and frogging – Permitted throughout the year.

(b) through (d) No change.

PROPOSED EFFECTIVE DATE: July 1, 2006.

Specific Authority Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const., 372.121, 375.313 FS. Law Implemented Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const., 372.121, 375.313 FS. History– New 6-21-82, Amended 7-1-83, 7-27-83, 9-27-83, 7-5-84, 7-1-85, 5-7-86, 8-5-86, 5-10-87, 8-24-87, 5-1-88, 6-7-88, 7-1-89, 7-1-90, 9-1-90, 7-1-91, 7-1-92, 7-1-93, 7-1-94, 7-1-95, 8-15-95, 7-1-96, 9-15-96, 10-20-96, 6-1-97, 8-7-97, 7-1-98, 7-2-98, 7-1-99, Formerly 39-15.064, Amended 11-17-99, 7-1-00, 7-1-01, 6-2-02, 2-27-03, 5-1-03, 7-1-04, 7-1-05, ~~7-1-06~~.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE: Mr. Nick Wiley, Director, Division of Hunting and Game Management

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Mr. Kenneth D. Haddad, Executive Director

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: September 21, 2005

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: November 23, 2005

FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION

Freshwater Fish and Wildlife

RULE CHAPTER TITLE: Type I Wildlife Management Areas

RULE CHAPTER NO.: 68A-15

RULE TITLE: Specific Regulations for Wildlife Management Areas – Northeast Region

RULE NO.: 68A-15.065

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose of the proposed rule changes is to revise specific area regulations on Wildlife Management Areas (WMAs) in the Northeast Region and conform to calendar year date changes. The effect of the proposed rule changes is to enable the agency to better manage fish and wildlife resources and public use on WMAs.

SUMMARY: The proposed rule changes would adjust season dates to conform to calendar year changes and revise specific area regulations on Wildlife Management Areas (WMAs) in the Northeast Region as follows:

Fort McCoy WMA – the proposed rule changes would extend the muzzleloading gun season from three to nine days and allow Recreational Use Permit holders to access the area from two weeks prior to archery season through the end of spring turkey season.

Richloam WMA – Baird Unit – the proposed rule changes would allow the take of hogs with no size or bag limit during small game season and allow bicycles only on named or numbered roads and designated trails.

Three Lakes WMA – the proposed rule change would restrict vehicles to named and numbered roads or trails throughout the year.

Tiger Bay WMA – the proposed rule change would allow the use of dogs with a shoulder height of 15 inches or less for taking small game.

Relay WMA – the proposed rule change would extend the muzzleloading gun season from three to nine days; allow camping at the designated campsite during periods open to hunting; and allow Recreational Use Permit holders to access the area from two weeks prior to archery season through the end of spring turkey season.

Tosohatchee WMA – the proposed rule changes would add coyote as legal to take and allow take of one antlered and one antlerless deer per permit, per person, per hunt.

Seminole Ranch WMA – the proposed rule change would extend the small game season by one weekend.

Jumper Creek WMA – the proposed rule changes would expand duck and coot season to match the statewide season and allow the take of hogs with no size or bag limit during small game season.

Rock Springs Run WMA – the proposed rule changes would establish as legal to take antlered deer with at least one antler with three or more points on a side and establish a bag limit of one antlered and one antlerless deer per permit, per person, per hunt.

Caravelle Ranch WMA – the proposed rule changes would eliminate the requirement that special-opportunity dove hunters must hunt from assigned stations at the dove field and allow vehicular access from 1.5 hours before sunrise until 1.5 hours after sunset one day prior to each season (except small game) and during periods open to hunting.

Lake George WMA – the proposed rule change would eliminate the reference to special use vehicle permits on specified portions of the area and defer to subsection 68A-15.004(2)(e), F.A.C., for permitting activities during periods closed to hunting.

Lake George WMA – Dexter/Mary Farms Unit – the proposed rule change would specify that take of one deer per permit, per person, per hunt is allowed; allow vehicular access from 1.5 hours before sunrise until 1.5 hours after sunset one day prior to each season (except small game and special-opportunity dove) and during periods open to hunting; eliminate the

requirement that special-opportunity dove hunters must hunt from assigned stations at the dove field; and, allow bicycles to be operated throughout the area.

Seminole Forest WMA – the proposed rule change would allow camping during periods closed to hunting.

Triple N Ranch WMA – the proposed rule change would allow public access from 1.5 hours before sunrise until 1.5 hours after sunset.

Etoniah Creek WMA – the proposed rule change would allow vehicular access from 1.5 hours before sunrise until 1.5 hours after sunset one day prior to each season (except small game) and during periods open to hunting.

Lake Panasoffkee WMA – the proposed rule change would add fish, frog, and furbearers (except bobcat and otter) as legal to take on the area.

Ocklawaha River WMA – Gores Landing Unit – the proposed rule change would allow vehicular access from 1.5 hours before sunrise until 1.5 hours after sunset one day prior to each season and during periods open to hunting.

Twelve Mile Swamp WMA – the proposed rule change would extend the muzzleloading gun season from three to nine days.

Dunns Creek WMA – the proposed rule change would allow tent camping only at the designated campsite.

Matanzas WMA – the proposed rule change would allow vehicular access to all persons during periods open to hunting.

A STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST HAS NOT BEEN PREPARED REGARDING THESE PROPOSED RULES.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated regulatory costs, or to provide a proposal for lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: Article IV, Section 9, Florida Constitution; 372.121, 375.313 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: Article IV, Section 9, Florida Constitution; 372.121, 375.313 FS.

THE FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION WILL CONDUCT A PUBLIC RULEMAKING HEARING ON THE PROPOSED RULES DURING THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE COMMISSION TO BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATES AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

TIME AND DATES: 8:30 a.m. – 5:00 p.m., each day, February 1-2, 2006

PLACE: Hilton University of Florida Conference Center, 1714 S.W. 34th Street, Gainesville, Florida 32607

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 calendar days before the workshop/meeting

by contacting the ADA Coordinator, at (850)488-6411. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency by calling (850)488-9542.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: James V. Antista, General Counsel, Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission, 620 South Meridian Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1600

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

68A-15.065 Specific Regulations for Wildlife Management Areas – Northeast Region.

(1) Bull Creek Wildlife Management Area.

(a) Open season:

1. General gun – November ~~11-12~~ through January ~~7-8~~.

2. Small game – January ~~8-9~~ through March ~~4-5~~.

3. Spring turkey – March ~~17-18~~ through April ~~22-23~~.

4. Archery – September ~~23-24~~ through October ~~22-23~~. A special quota permit will be required for the September ~~23-24~~ ~~24-25~~ hunt.

5. Muzzleloading gun – October ~~27-29~~ ~~28-30~~.

6. Fishing and frogging – Throughout the year.

(b) through (d) No change.

(2) Ft. McCoy Wildlife Management Area.

(a) Open season:

1. General gun – November ~~11-12~~ through January ~~7-8~~.

2. Small game – January ~~8-28~~ ~~9-29~~.

3. Archery – September ~~23-24~~ through October ~~22-23~~.

4. Muzzleloading gun – October 28 ~~through November 5-30~~.

5. Spring turkey – March ~~17-18~~ through April ~~22-23~~.

6. Fishing and frogging – Permitted during periods in which hunting is allowed.

(b) through (c) No change.

(d) General regulations:

1. Vehicles may be operated only on named or numbered roads.

2. Persons operating vehicles shall enter and exit only at designated entrances.

3. Hunting with dogs is prohibited, except bird dogs may be used during the small game season.

4. Access to the area is permitted only from the Saturday two weeks prior to the archery season through the last day of the spring turkey season. The area is closed to public access except during periods when hunting is allowed.

5. Taking of wildlife by use of a gun on or from rights-of-way of all paved roads or Gooski Road is prohibited as provided by Rule 68A-4.008, F.A.C.

6. The possession of center-fire rifles is prohibited during spring turkey season.

7. Access is permitted only by individuals possessing a valid recreational user permit, except as provided by Section 372.57, F.S.

(3) Ocala Wildlife Management Area.

(a) Open season:

1. General gun – November ~~11-12~~ through January ~~7-8~~.

2. Small game – January ~~8-9~~ through March ~~4-5~~.

3. Archery – September ~~23-24~~ through October ~~22-23~~.

4. Muzzleloading gun – October ~~27-29~~ ~~28-30~~, on the Church Lake, Hopkins Prairie and Lake Delancy Management Units only.

5. Fox, bobcat and raccoon – November ~~11-12~~ through April ~~15-16~~.

6. Early duck – In the September season established by Rule 68A-13.003, F.A.C.

7. Spring turkey – March ~~22-25~~ ~~23-26~~, March ~~29-30~~ through April ~~1-2~~, April ~~5-8~~ ~~6-9~~ and ~~12-15~~ ~~13-16~~.

8. Trapping – December 1 through March 1, except in that portion of the Pipeline Management Unit south of S.R. 40, east of County Road 183 AV, and west of S.R. 19.

9. Fishing and frogging – Throughout the year.

(b) Legal to take:

1. All legal game (except antlerless deer), fish, frogs and furbearers. During the spring turkey season the bag limit shall be one gobbler or bearded turkey per quota hunt permit. Deer may only be taken in the Church Lake Unit during the archery season, muzzleloading gun season and the first 9 days of the general gun season. Deer daily bag one, no season bag.

2. Furbearing animals – During the November ~~11-12~~ through March 1 period, hunting as specified in paragraph 68A-24.002(2)(b), F.A.C., is permitted only in the Pipeline and Church Lake Management Units. Raccoons may also be hunted, with dogs only, from March ~~5-6~~ through April ~~15-16~~ only in that portion of the Pipeline Management Unit south of S.R. 40, east of C.R. 183 AV and west of S.R. 19. The hunting of fox and bobcat by the use of dogs only shall be permitted from January ~~8-9~~ through April ~~15-16~~, only in that portion of the Pipeline Management Unit south of S.R. 40, east of C.R. 183 AV, and west of S.R. 19.

(c) Camping: Throughout the year.

(d) General regulations:

1. Camping is permitted by the use of tents, trailers, or self-propelled camping vehicles only on designated campsites during the general gun season.

2. No deer or turkey shall be dismembered or transported out of the hunt area until checked at a check station.

3. All management units will be open for the taking of doves during all phases of the dove season.

4. Hunting with dogs is prohibited in the Hopkins Prairie and Lake Delancy management units, except bird dogs and retrievers are allowed during small game, early duck, dove, and duck and coot seasons. Caged or leashed hunting dogs may be transported on established numbered roads.

5. Taking of wildlife by use of a gun on or from rights-of-way of all paved roads, Forest Road 538 from State Road 42 to County Road 445, Forest Road 573, Forest Road 588, Blue Creek Lodge Road, Forest Road 10 east of Forest Road 65, Forest Road 65 south of Forest Road 10, Forest Road 79 south of Forest Road 76 or that portion of any road adjacent to posted lands, and all Forest Service, county and state roads in the Church Lake Unit is prohibited as provided by Rule 68A-4.008, F.A.C.

6. Bow and arrow may be used to take nongame fish, except catfish, in Salt Springs Run (Marion County).

7. Deer dogs may be trained only in the Pipeline Unit, beginning 14 days prior to the opening of the general gun season and ending nine days thereafter.

8. Dogs may be used to pursue rabbits from January ~~8~~ 9 through April ~~15~~ 16 in that portion of the Pipeline Management Unit south of S.R. 40, east of C.R. 183 AV, and west of S.R. 19.

9. The possession of center-fire rifles is prohibited during the spring turkey season.

(e) No change.

(5) Richloam Wildlife Management Area – Baird Unit.

(a) Open season:

1. Archery – September ~~23~~ 24 through October ~~8~~ 9.

2. Muzzleloading gun – October ~~27-29~~ 28-30.

3. General gun – November ~~11-19~~ 12-20.

4. Spring turkey – March ~~17-19~~ 18-20, ~~23-25~~ 24-26 and March ~~30~~ 31 through April ~~1~~ 2.

5. Small game – January ~~13~~ 14 through February ~~18~~ 19.

6. Fishing and frogging – Permitted throughout the year.

(b) Legal to take: All legal game, hog, fish, frogs and furbearers. Antlerless deer may be taken by permit only during the muzzleloading gun and general gun seasons. No size or bag limits on hogs.

(c) Camping: Prohibited.

(d) General regulations:

1. Hunting with dogs is prohibited, except that waterfowl retrievers, bird dogs, and dogs with a shoulder height of 15 inches or less, may be used during small game season.

2. Vehicles may be operated only on named or numbered roads. Bicycles may be operated only on named or numbered roads and designated trails ~~fire lanes~~.

3. The use of tracked vehicles, airboats, all-terrain vehicles or horses is prohibited.

4. During periods when the area is closed to hunting, public access other than on foot (pedestrian) or bicycle is prohibited except by permit from the Division of Forestry.

5. During archery, muzzleloading gun, general gun, and spring turkey seasons, hunters shall check in at a designated check station when entering and exiting the area, and check all game taken.

6. Public access to the area is prohibited during the period from 8:00 p.m. to 4:30 a.m.

7. Small game hunters shall sign in and out upon entry or exit and record their harvest at a game registration box.

8. Possession of guns is prohibited on the James A. Van Fleet State Trail except at designated crossings. Hunters shall transport guns across the State Trail only at designated crossings.

9. Vehicular access is permitted one day prior to each hunt from 8:00 a.m. until 6:00 p.m., except during the small game season.

(6) Three Lakes Wildlife Management Area.

(a) Open season:

1. General gun – November ~~11~~ 12 through January ~~7~~ 8.

2. Small game – January ~~8~~ 9 through March ~~4~~ 5.

3. Spring turkey – March ~~17~~ 18 through April ~~22~~ 23.

4. Archery – September ~~23~~ 24 through October ~~22~~ 23.

5. Early duck – In the September season established by Rule 68A-13.003, F.A.C., in that area between Prairie Lakes Unit and Canoe Creek Road only.

6. Muzzleloading gun – October ~~27-29~~ 28-30.

7. General gun for mobility impaired – November ~~3-5~~ 4-6.

8. General gun-dog – December ~~7-10~~ 8-11, ~~21-24~~ 22-25 and December ~~28-31~~ 29 through January 1 in that area between the Florida Turnpike and U.S. 441 only.

9. Fishing and frogging – Permitted throughout the year.

(b) through (c) No change.

(d) General regulations:

1. During the first two days of archery season, the muzzleloading gun season and the general gun season except the general gun-dog hunts, the quota of hunters will be admitted daily as follows: 441 check station – 375; Canoe Creek check station – 50; State Road 60 check station – 200. During the general gun-dog hunts, the quota of hunters for the 441 check station will be 100 by regular quota permit east of the Florida Turnpike and 100 daily permits issued at the check station for west of the Florida Turnpike.

2. Only tents, trailers and self-propelled camping vehicles may be used for camping.

3. Vehicles may be operated only on named or numbered roads or named or numbered trails except during the general gun for mobility-impaired ~~and small game~~ seasons. During general gun-dog hunts, quota permit holders may operate vehicles on named or numbered roads and established firebreaks in that area between the Florida Turnpike and U.S. 441.

4. Motorcycles, airboats or tracked vehicles are prohibited except that airboats may be transported to and from the Lake Jackson Public Boat Ramp and may be operated on that portion of Lake Jackson outside the area posted as restricted to airboat access for the protection of environmentally sensitive areas in accordance with subsection 68A-15.004(14), F.A.C.

5. Hunting with dogs other than bird dogs is prohibited except during the general gun-dog hunts when dogs with a shoulder height of 17 inches or less may be used for deer hunting east of the Florida Turnpike.

6. Bird dogs and dogs with a shoulder height of 15 inches or less may be used during the small game season.

7. No deer or hog shall be quartered or otherwise dismembered until it has been checked and tagged at a check station.

8. All users shall enter and exit the area through designated entrances except persons hiking through on the Florida Trail. Hunters shall check in and out at a check station when entering and exiting the area and shall check all game taken.

9. Taking of wildlife by use of a gun on or from rights-of-way of all paved roads is prohibited as provided by Rule 68A-4.008, F.A.C.

10. The possession of center-fire rifles is prohibited during the spring turkey season.

11. During the general gun for mobility-impaired season, hunting is permitted only in that portion of the area east of Canoe Creek Road. All persons participating in the general gun for mobility impaired season shall check in and out at the U.S. 441 check station when entering and exiting the hunt area.

12. Only one mobility-impaired quota hunt permit may be utilized per individual per hunt.

13. Horses may only be ridden on named and numbered roads, except that horses may be ridden on firelines during the general gun-dog season in that portion of the area east of the Florida Turnpike by hunters possessing quota hunt permits for the general gun-dog season. During the small game season, persons hunting from horseback are not restricted to named and numbered roads.

(e) No change.

(7) Prairie Lakes Unit, Three Lakes Wildlife Management Area.

(a) Open season:

1. Archery – September ~~29 30~~ through October ~~1 2~~ and October ~~6-8 7-9~~.

2. Muzzleloading gun – October ~~27-29 28-30~~.

3. General gun – November ~~17-19 18-20~~ and ~~24-26 25-27~~.

4. Small game – December ~~9-10~~ through ~~31~~ ~~January 1~~.

5. Spring turkey – March ~~17-19 18-20~~, March ~~30 31~~ through April ~~1 2~~ and April ~~13-15 14-16~~.

6. Fishing and frogging – Permitted throughout the year.

7. General gun hog – December ~~1-3 2-4~~ and January ~~5-7 6-8~~.

(b) through (d) No change.

(8) Tiger Bay Wildlife Management Area.

(a) Open season:

1. General gun – November ~~11 12~~ through January ~~7 8~~.

2. Archery – September ~~23 24~~ through October ~~22 23~~.

3. Muzzleloading gun – October ~~27-29 28-30~~.

4. Small game – January ~~8 9~~ through March ~~4 5~~.

5. Spring turkey – March ~~17-19 18-20~~, March ~~30 31~~ through April ~~1 2~~ and April ~~13-15 14-16~~.

6. Fishing and frogging – Permitted year-round. Fish may be taken only by hook and line or rod and reel and only during daylight hours.

(b) through (c) No change.

(d) General regulations:

1. Vehicles may be operated only on named or numbered roads.

2. Vehicles shall enter or exit the area only at designated entrances.

3. All persons shall register at designated entrances and record their game or fish harvest upon leaving.

4. Hunting with dogs is prohibited except bird dogs and dogs with a shoulder height of 15" or less may be used for hunting small game ~~Hunting with dogs except bird dogs is prohibited.~~

5. Taking of wildlife by use of a gun on or from rights-of-way of all paved roads is prohibited as provided by Rule 68A-4.008, F.A.C.

6. Airboats, tracked vehicles, and all-terrain vehicles are prohibited.

7. Use of boats is prohibited on Ranch Pond.

8. No person shall operate any boat powered by an internal combustion engine on Woody Pond, Bear Pond, or Rattlesnake Pond and its adjoining canals.

(9) Tiger Bay Wildlife Management Area – Rima Ridge Unit.

(a) Open season:

1. General gun – November ~~11-19 12-20~~.

2. Archery – September ~~23 24~~ through October ~~8 9~~.

3. Muzzleloading gun – October ~~27-29 28-30~~.

4. Small game – November ~~23 24~~ through ~~December 31~~ ~~January 1~~.

5. Spring turkey – March ~~17-19 18-20~~, March ~~30 31~~ through April ~~1 2~~ and April ~~13-15 14-16~~.

6. Fishing and frogging – Permitted throughout the year.

7. Trapping – Trapping is prohibited.

(b) through (d) No change.

(10) Relay Wildlife Management Area.

(a) Open season:

1. General gun – November ~~11 12~~ through January ~~7 8~~.

2. Archery – September ~~23 24~~ through October ~~22 23~~.
3. Muzzleloading gun – October 28 ~~through November 5 30~~.
4. Small game – January ~~8 9~~ through March ~~4 5~~.
5. Spring turkey – March ~~17 18~~ through April ~~22 23~~.
6. Fishing and frogging – Permitted during periods open to hunting.
 - (b) Legal to take: All legal game, fish, frogs and furbearers.
 - (c) Camping:
 1. Camping is permitted only during periods when hunting is allowed and only at the designated campsite.
 2. Camping equipment may be taken on the area the weekend prior to the opening of the archery season and during periods open to hunting. Camping equipment must be removed by the last day of the spring turkey season ~~Prohibited.~~
 - (d) General regulations:
 1. Hunters shall check in and out at a check station when entering and exiting the area and shall check all game taken.
 2. Vehicles or horses may be used only on named or numbered roads.
 3. Access to the area is permitted only from the Saturday two weeks prior to the archery season through the last day of the spring turkey season. The area is closed to public access except during periods when hunting is allowed.
 4. Possession of centerfire rifles (other than muzzleloading) or pistols is prohibited.
 5. Camping equipment may be brought onto the area only during the weekend before the archery season and during periods when hunting is allowed on the area.
 6. Access is permitted only by individuals possessing a valid recreational user permit, except as provided by Section 372.57, F.S.
- (11) Tosohatchee Wildlife Management Area.
 - (a) Open season:
 1. Archery – September ~~28 29~~ through October ~~1 2~~ and October ~~5-8 6-9~~.
 2. Muzzleloading gun – October ~~12-15 13-16~~ and ~~19-22 20-23~~.
 3. General gun – November ~~16-19 17-20~~ and ~~24-26 25-27~~.
 4. Spring turkey – March ~~17-19 18-20~~, March ~~30 31~~ through April ~~1 2~~ and April ~~13-15 14-16~~.
 5. General gun hog – January ~~12-18 13-19~~ and January ~~26 27~~ through February ~~1 2~~.
 6. Fishing and frogging – Permitted throughout the year.
 - (b) Legal to take: Any deer except spotted fawn, turkeys, ~~and~~ wild hog and coyote. No other wildlife species may be taken. A limit of one antlerless and one antlered deer per quota permit is established. Only one regular or special quota permit may be utilized per person, per hunt. No size or bag limit on

wild hogs. Only wild hogs may be taken during the general gun-hog season. Turkeys may be taken only during the spring turkey season.

- (c) through (d) No change.
- (12) Seminole Ranch Wildlife Management Area.
 - (a) Open season:
 1. Archery – October ~~6-8 7-9~~ and ~~13-15 14-16~~.
 2. Muzzleloading gun – October ~~28-29 29-30~~ and November ~~4-5 5-6~~.
 3. General gun – November ~~17-19 18-20~~.
 4. Small game – November ~~25-26, 26-27~~ and December ~~2-3, 3-4~~ and ~~9-10 10-11~~ and January 6-7.
 5. Spring turkey – March ~~17-19 18-20, 23-25 24-26~~ and March ~~30 31~~ through April ~~1 2~~.
 6. General gun hog – February ~~10-16 11-17~~.
 7. Fishing and frogging – Permitted throughout the year.
 - (b) through (d) No change.
 - (13) Jumper Creek Wildlife Management Area.
 - (a) Open season:
 1. Archery – September ~~23 24~~ through October ~~22 23~~.
 2. Muzzleloading gun – October ~~27-29 28-30~~.
 3. General gun – November ~~11 12~~ through January ~~7 8~~.
 4. Small game – January ~~8-28 9-29~~.
 5. Spring turkey – March ~~17 18~~ through April ~~22 23~~.
 6. Fishing and frogging – Permitted throughout the year.
 7. Duck and coot – During the migratory game bird seasons as established by Rule 68A-13.003, F.A.C.
 - (b) Legal to take: All legal game (except antlerless deer), hog, fish, frogs and furbearers. No size or bag limit on wild hogs.
 - (c) through (d) No change.
 - (14) Rock Springs Run Wildlife Management Area.
 - (a) Open season:
 1. Archery – September ~~29 30~~ through October ~~1 2~~ and October ~~6-8 7-9~~.
 2. Muzzleloading gun – October ~~13-15 14-16~~ and ~~20-22 21-23~~.
 3. General gun – November ~~10-12 11-13~~ and ~~17-19 18-20~~.
 4. Small game – December ~~2-3 3-4, 9-10 10-11~~ and January ~~6-7 7-8~~.
 5. Fishing and frogging – Permitted throughout the year.
 - (b) Legal to take: Only deer and wild hogs may be taken during the archery, general gun and muzzleloading gun seasons. Taking of antlered deer not having at least one antler with three or more points, one inch or more in length, is prohibited. Antlerless deer may be taken during the archery season. Any deer except spotted fawn may be taken during archery season. Antlerless deer may be taken by antlerless deer permit ~~only~~ during the muzzleloading gun and general gun seasons. Only rabbits, gray squirrels and bobwhite quail may be taken during the small game season. The bag limit for deer

shall be one antlered and one antlerless deer per quota permit. Only one regular or special quota permit may be utilized per person, per hunt. No size or bag limit on wild hogs.

(c) through (d) No change.

(15) Guana River Wildlife Management Area.

(a) Open season:

1. Duck and coot – Lake Ponte Vedra shall be open in the September season established pursuant to Rule 68A-13.003, F.A.C., and the first day of each phase and on Wednesday and Saturday of the duck and coot season established pursuant to Rule 68A-13.003, F.A.C.

2. General gun – November ~~17-19~~ ~~18-20~~ and ~~24-26~~ ~~25-27~~.

3. Muzzleloading gun – October ~~27-29~~ ~~28-30~~ and November ~~3-5~~ ~~4-6~~.

4. Archery – October ~~13-15~~ ~~14-16~~ and ~~20-22~~ ~~21-23~~.

5. Small game – December ~~1-3~~ ~~2-4~~, ~~8-10~~ ~~9-11~~, January ~~5-7~~ ~~6-8~~, ~~12-14~~ ~~13-15~~, ~~19-21~~ ~~20-22~~ and ~~26-28~~ ~~27-29~~.

6. Fishing – Permitted at all times on Lake Ponte Vedra from Guana Dam to a line two miles north of the dam, and on the remainder of Lake Ponte Vedra and the interior freshwater lakes only from February 10 through November 10.

7. Rails and moorhens – In the rail and moorhen season established by Rule 68A-13.008, F.A.C., and only in the marsh adjacent to the intercoastal waterway.

(b) through (e) No change.

(16) Half Moon Wildlife Management Area.

(a) Open season:

1. Archery – October ~~6-8~~ ~~7-9~~ and ~~13-15~~ ~~14-16~~.

2. Muzzleloading gun – October ~~27-29~~ ~~28-30~~.

3. General gun – November ~~11-13~~ ~~12-14~~ and ~~17-19~~ ~~18-20~~.

4. Small game – December ~~1-3~~ ~~2-4~~, ~~8-10~~ ~~9-11~~ and ~~15-17~~ ~~16-18~~.

5. General gun hog – January ~~13-14~~ ~~14-15~~ and ~~20-21~~ ~~21-22~~.

6. Spring turkey – March ~~23-25~~ ~~24-26~~, March ~~30~~ ~~31~~ through April ~~1~~ ~~2~~ and April ~~6-8~~ ~~7-9~~.

7. Fishing and frogging – Permitted throughout the year.

(b) Legal to take: All legal game, fish, frogs and furbearers. Taking of antlered deer not having at least one antler with three or more points, one inch or more in length, is prohibited. During the archery, muzzleloading gun, and general gun seasons, antlerless deer may be taken by permit only. During the archery, muzzleloading gun and general gun seasons the bag limit for antlered deer shall be one per quota hunt permit. During the spring turkey season, the bag limit for turkey shall be one gobbler (or bearded turkey) per quota hunt permit. No bag or size limit on wild hogs. Only wild hog may be taken during the general gun hog season.

(c) through (d) No change.

(17) Caravelle Ranch Wildlife Management Area.

(a) Open season:

1. Archery – September ~~23~~ ~~24~~ through October ~~1~~ ~~2~~.

2. Supervised small game – October ~~8-16~~ ~~9-17~~.

3. Muzzleloading gun – October ~~27-29~~ ~~28-30~~.

4. General gun – November ~~11-19~~ ~~12-20~~.

5. Special-opportunity dove – The first and second Saturdays only during the first phase; the third Saturday only during the second phase; and the first, third and fifth Saturday only during the third phase the mourning dove and white-winged dove season established by Rule 68A-13.008, F.A.C.

6. Small game – November ~~23~~ ~~24~~ through January ~~7~~ ~~8~~ (Thursdays, Fridays, Saturdays and Sundays only).

7. Spring turkey – March ~~17-20~~ ~~18-21~~ and ~~21-25~~ ~~22-26~~.

8. Fishing and frogging – Permitted throughout the year.

9. During the supervised small game season, only persons under 16 years of age and their adult supervisor may hunt, as provided in Section 790.22, F.S.

(b) through (c) No change.

(d) General regulations:

1. Vehicles may be operated only on named or numbered roads.

2. Hunting with dogs is prohibited except bird dogs may be used during the general gun and small game seasons and on the posted dove fields during special-opportunity dove hunts.

3. The use of tracked vehicles, airboats, motorcycles or all-terrain vehicles is prohibited.

4. Hunters shall check in and out at the check station when entering and exiting the area and shall check all game taken.

5. Vehicular access is permitted from 1.5 hours before sunrise to 1.5 hours after sunset one day prior to each season (except small game), and during periods when the area is open to hunting. During periods when the area is closed to hunting public access other than on foot (pedestrian), or horseback (equestrian), or by bicycle is prohibited at all other times.

6. Persons shall possess a special-opportunity dove hunt permit to hunt in posted dove fields.

7. Shooting hours for special-opportunity dove hunts shall be from noon until sunset. Hunters may enter the area one hour before shooting time and shall exit the area by one hour after sunset.

~~8. Special-opportunity dove hunters shall hunt from assigned stations in the posted field. Hunt station assignments may be transferred at the check station.~~

(18) Lake George Wildlife Management Area.

(a) Open season:

1. Archery – September ~~23~~ ~~24~~ through October ~~22~~ ~~23~~.

2. Muzzleloading gun – October ~~27-29~~ ~~28-30~~.

3. General gun – November ~~11-26~~ ~~12-27~~.

4. Small game – November ~~27~~ ~~28~~ through March ~~4~~ ~~5~~.

5. Spring turkey – March ~~17-19~~ ~~18-20~~, March ~~30~~ ~~31~~ through April ~~1~~ ~~2~~ and April ~~13-15~~ ~~14-16~~.

6. Fishing and frogging – Throughout the year.

(b) through (c) No change.

(d) General regulations:

1. Vehicles may be operated only on named or numbered roads.

2. The use of tracked vehicles, airboats, or all-terrain vehicles is prohibited ~~except as provided by permit from the St. Johns River Water Management District in that portion of the area north of County Road 305.~~

3. Bird dogs or retrievers only may be used during the general gun and small game seasons.

(19) Lake George Wildlife Management Area – Dexter/Mary Farms Unit.

(a) Open season:

1. Small game – November ~~25~~ 26 through December ~~10~~ 11 and December ~~23~~ 24 through January ~~7~~ 8.

2. Special-opportunity turkey – March ~~17-23~~ 18-24, March 31 through April ~~6~~ 7 and April ~~14-20~~ 15-21.

3. General gun hog – January ~~13-16~~ 14-17, ~~17-22~~ 18-23, and ~~23-28~~ 24-29.

4. Special-opportunity dove – The first, second and fourth Saturdays only during the first phase; the first and third Saturdays only during the second phase; and the first, third and fourth Saturdays only during the third phase of the mourning dove and white-winged dove season established by Rule 68A-13.008, F.A.C. No dove hunting is permitted on posted dove fields other than on these dates.

5. Fishing and frogging – Permitted throughout the year.

6. Archery – September ~~23~~ 24 through October ~~8~~ 9.

7. Muzzleloading gun – October ~~27-29~~ 28-30.

8. General gun – November ~~11-19~~ 12-20.

(b) Legal to take: All legal small game, fish, frogs and furbearers.

1. One deer ~~with at least one antler having three or more points of at least one inch in length or one antlerless deer (except spotted fawns)~~ may be taken per quota hunt permit during the archery season. ~~One deer with at least one antler having three or more points of at least one inch in length may be taken per quota hunt permit during the muzzleloading gun and general gun seasons.~~ Taking of antlered deer not having at least one antler with three or more points, one inch or more in length, is prohibited. Antlerless deer may be taken during the archery season only. Only one regular or special quota permit may be utilized per person, per hunt. Turkeys may be taken only during special-opportunity turkey hunts. The bag limit for turkey shall be one gobbler or bearded turkey per special-opportunity turkey hunt permit. Only hogs may be taken during the general gun hog season. No size or bag limit on hogs.

2. Jenkins' Pond: Fish may be taken only by hook and line or rod and reel and only during daylight hours. No person shall kill or possess any black bass. No person shall take in any one day more than 20 panfish, in the aggregate.

(c) Camping: Camping is permitted at designated campsites during special-opportunity turkey hunts and at other times by permit from the Division of Forestry.

(d) General regulations:

1. The use of dogs, other than bird dogs and dogs with a shoulder height of 15 inches or less during the small game season and on the posted dove fields during special-opportunity dove hunts, is prohibited.

2. Vehicles ~~and bicycles~~ may be operated only on named or numbered roads.

3. The use of tracked vehicles, airboats, or all-terrain vehicles is prohibited.

4. Vehicular access is permitted from 1.5 hours before sunrise to 1.5 hours after sunset one day prior to each season (except small game and special-opportunity dove), and during periods when the area is open to hunting. Individuals in possession of a special-opportunity turkey hunt permit shall also have vehicular access to the area from sunrise to sunset on the Saturday and Sunday preceding each hunt. Vehicular access is permitted only by permit from the Division of Forestry at all other times, except the Bluffton Recreation Area shall be open to vehicular access throughout the year from sunrise to sunset via the St. Johns River Road. The Bluffton Recreation Area shall be open throughout the year from sunrise to sunset via the St. Johns River Road only. During periods when the Dexter/Mary Farms Unit is closed to hunting, vehicle access to areas other than the Bluffton Recreation Area is allowed only by permit from the Division of Forestry. Individuals in possession of a special-opportunity turkey hunt permit shall have vehicular access to the Dexter/Mary Farms Unit from sunrise to sunset on the Saturday and Sunday preceding the hunt.

5. Hunters shall enter and exit the area at designated entrances, and register at the hunt headquarters.

6. Deer, turkeys, and hogs must be checked at the hunt headquarters prior to being dismembered or taken from the area.

7. Persons shall possess a special-opportunity dove hunt permit to hunt in posted dove fields.

8. Shooting hours for special-opportunity dove hunts shall be from noon until sunset. Hunters may enter the area one hour before shooting time and shall exit the area by one hour after sunset.

~~9. Hunters shall hunt from assigned hunt stations in the posted dove fields. Hunt station assignments may be transferred at the hunt headquarters.~~

~~9.10.~~ Use of boats is prohibited on Jenkins' Pond.

~~10.11.~~ During non-hunting periods, public access to the area is prohibited during the period from sunset to sunrise, unless camping at designated camping areas.

(e) No change.

(20) Seminole Forest Wildlife Management Area.

(a) Open season:

1. Archery – September ~~23-26~~ ~~24-27~~ and September ~~27~~ ~~28~~ through October ~~1~~ ~~2~~.

2. Muzzleloading gun – October ~~27-29~~ ~~28-30~~.

3. General gun – December ~~2-5~~ ~~3-6~~ and ~~6-10~~ ~~7-11~~.

4. Small game – January ~~13-28~~ ~~14-29~~ (Saturdays and Sundays only).

5. Spring turkey – March ~~17-20~~ ~~18-21~~ and ~~21-25~~ ~~22-26~~.

6. General gun for mobility-impaired – October ~~20-22~~ ~~21-23~~.

7. Fishing and frogging – During periods open to hunting and at other times as access is permitted by the Department of Agriculture and Consumer Affairs, Division of Forestry and these rules. Fish may be taken only by hook and line or rod and reel. Oaks and Bear Ponds are open to fishing only during daylight hours.

(b) Legal to take: All legal game, fish, except as provided below, frogs and furbearers except otter and bobcat. Antlerless deer may be taken by permit only during muzzleloading gun and general gun seasons. No size or bag limit on wild hogs.

1. Bear Pond: No person shall kill or possess any black bass. No person shall possess more than six catfish. No person shall take in any one day more than 20 panfish, in the aggregate.

2. Oaks Pond: No person shall possess more than six catfish. No person shall take in any one day more than 20 panfish in the aggregate.

(c) Camping: Camping is prohibited during periods open to hunting, except hikers may camp at designated primitive campsites along the Florida Trail throughout the year. During periods closed to hunting, camping is allowed only by permit from the Division of Forestry. Permitted only at approved primitive campsites along designated hiking trails during periods closed to hunting.

(d) No change.

(21) Triple N Ranch Wildlife Management Area.

(a) Open season:

1. General gun hog – January ~~26-28~~ ~~27-29~~, February ~~2-4~~ ~~3-5~~ and ~~9-11~~ ~~10-12~~.

2. Special-opportunity deer – October ~~28~~ ~~29~~ through November ~~3~~ ~~4~~ and November ~~11-17~~ ~~12-18~~.

3. Small game – November ~~25~~ ~~26~~ through January ~~21~~ ~~22~~.

4. Special-opportunity turkey – March ~~17-23~~ ~~18-24~~, March 31 through April 6 ~~1-7~~ and April 14-20 ~~15-21~~.

5. Fishing and frogging – Permitted throughout the year.

6. Trapping – Prohibited.

(b) through (c) No change.

(d) General regulations:

1. Only tents, trailers or self-propelled camping vehicles may be used for camping.

2. Vehicles or horses may be used only on named and numbered roads except that horses are not restricted to roads during the small game season.

3. Horses are prohibited during periods when hunting is allowed except that hunters may hunt from horseback during the small game season.

4. Hunting with dogs is prohibited except bird dogs and dogs with a shoulder height of 15 inches or less may be used during the small game season.

5. The use of tracked vehicles, airboats, motorcycles or all-terrain vehicles is prohibited.

6. Hunters shall enter and exit the area at the designated entrance and register at the hunt headquarters. Persons entering the area for purposes other than hunting shall register upon entering and exiting the area. During periods when the area is closed to hunting, public access other than on foot (pedestrian), horseback (equestrian), or by bicycle is prohibited, except that vehicular access is permitted to the parking area at the hunt headquarters on Road 1 and the parking area at the south end of Crabgrass Road.

7. Individuals in possession of a special-opportunity hunt permit may have vehicle access to the area from sunrise to sunset on the Saturday and Sunday preceding the hunt.

8. Hogs, deer and turkeys must be checked at the hunt headquarters prior to being dismembered and taken from the area.

9. Public access to the area is prohibited from 1.5 hours after sunset until 1.5 hours before sunrise during the period from 8:00 p.m. to 5:00 a.m., unless camping at designated camping areas during hunts.

(22) Etoniah Creek Wildlife Management Area.

(a) Open season:

1. Archery – September ~~23~~ ~~24~~ through October ~~8~~ ~~9~~.

2. Muzzleloading gun – October ~~27-29~~ ~~28-30~~.

3. General gun – November ~~11-19~~ ~~12-20~~.

4. Small game – Thanksgiving Day through the first weekend in January.

5. Spring turkey – March ~~17-19~~ ~~18-20~~, ~~23-25~~ ~~24-26~~ and March ~~30~~ ~~31~~ through April ~~1~~ ~~2~~.

6. Fishing and frogging – Permitted throughout the year.

(b) through (c) No change.

(d) General regulations:

1. Hunting with dogs is prohibited except bird dogs and dogs with a shoulder height of 15 inches or less may be used during the small game season only.

2. Vehicles and bicycles may be operated only on named or numbered roads.

3. The use of tracked vehicles, airboats, or all-terrain vehicles is prohibited.

4. Vehicular access is permitted from 1.5 hours before sunrise to 1.5 hours after sunset one day prior to each season (except small game), and during periods when the area is open

to hunting. During periods when the area is closed to hunting, public access other than on foot (pedestrian), horseback (equestrian), or bicycle is prohibited at all other times. Horses are prohibited during periods when the area is open to hunting, except during the small game season.

5. Hunters shall check in at a designated check station when entering and exiting the area, and record all game taken.

(23) Little Big Econlockhatchee Wildlife Management Area – Kilbee Unit.

(a) Open season:

1. Archery – October ~~6-8~~ ~~7-9~~ and ~~13-15~~ ~~14-16~~.

2. Muzzleloading gun – November ~~3-5~~ ~~4-6~~.

3. General gun – November ~~17-19~~ ~~18-20~~.

4. Small game – December ~~9-24~~ ~~10-25~~ (Saturdays and Sundays only).

5. General gun hog – January ~~12-14~~ ~~13-15~~ and ~~26-28~~ ~~27-29~~.

6. Fishing and frogging – Permitted throughout the year.

(b) through (c) No change.

(24) Lake Panasoffke Wildlife Management Area.

1. Special-opportunity turkey – March ~~22-25~~ ~~23-26~~, April ~~3-6~~ ~~4-7~~ and ~~19-22~~ ~~20-23~~. (a) Open season:

2. Special-opportunity archery – September ~~28~~ ~~29~~ through October ~~1~~ ~~2~~, October ~~5-8~~ ~~6-9~~ and ~~17-20~~ ~~18-21~~, November ~~2-5~~ ~~3-6~~ and ~~14-17~~ ~~15-18~~, November 30 through December 3, 4 and December 12-15 ~~13-16~~ and January ~~4-7~~ ~~5-8~~.

3. Special-opportunity hog-still – January ~~12-14~~ ~~13-15~~.

4. Special-opportunity hog-dog – January ~~24-26~~ ~~25-27~~.

5. Small game – February ~~2-4~~ ~~3-5~~ and ~~9-11~~ ~~10-12~~.

6. Fishing and frogging – Permitted throughout the year.

7. Trapping – Prohibited.

(b) Legal to take: All legal game, ~~and wild hogs, fish, frogs and furbearers (except bobcat and otter)~~. Turkeys may be taken only during the special-opportunity turkey hunts. The bag limit for turkey shall be one gobbler (or bearded turkey) per special-opportunity turkey hunt permit. One antlered deer may be taken per special-opportunity deer hunt permit. Antlerless deer (except spotted fawns) may be taken by antlerless deer permit only. Taking of antlered deer not having at least one antler with four or more points is prohibited. Only hogs may be taken during the special-opportunity hog-still and special-opportunity hog-dog seasons. No bag or size limits on wild hogs. ~~Fish and frogs throughout the year.~~

(c) through (d) No change.

(25) No change.

(26) Buck Lake Wildlife Management Area.

(a) Open season:

1. Archery – September ~~23~~ ~~24~~ through October ~~1~~ ~~2~~ and October ~~2-8~~ ~~3-9~~.

2. Muzzleloading gun – October ~~27-29~~ ~~28-30~~.

3. General gun – November ~~11-14~~ ~~12-15~~ and ~~15-19~~ ~~16-20~~.

4. Small game – December ~~2-17~~ ~~3-18~~.

5. Spring turkey – March ~~17-20~~ ~~18-21~~ and ~~21-25~~ ~~22-26~~.

6. General gun hog – January ~~4-7~~ ~~5-8~~ and ~~18-21~~ ~~19-22~~.

7. Fishing and frogging – Permitted throughout the year.

(b) through (d) No change.

(27) Fort Drum Wildlife Management Area.

(a) Open season:

1. Special-opportunity deer – November ~~11-17~~ ~~12-18~~.

2. Small game – December ~~9-24~~ ~~10-25~~.

3. Special-opportunity turkey – March ~~17-23~~ ~~18-24~~, March 31 through April 6, 7 and April 14-20 ~~15-21~~.

4. Special-opportunity wild hog – October ~~6-8~~ ~~7-9~~, ~~13-15~~ ~~14-16~~ and ~~20-22~~ ~~21-23~~.

5. Fishing – Permitted throughout the year.

(b) through (d) No change.

(28) Ocklawaha River Wildlife Management Area – Gores Landing Unit.

(a) Open season:

1. Archery – September ~~23~~ ~~24~~ through October ~~8~~ ~~9~~.

2. Muzzleloading gun – October ~~27-29~~ ~~28-30~~.

3. General gun – November ~~11-19~~ ~~12-20~~.

4. Small game – December ~~2-17~~ ~~3-18~~.

5. Spring turkey – March ~~17-20~~ ~~18-21~~ and ~~21-25~~ ~~22-26~~.

6. Fishing and frogging – Permitted throughout the year.

(b) through (c) No change.

(d) General regulations:

1. Vehicles may be operated only on named or numbered roads from 1.5 hours before sunrise to 1.5 hours after sunset one day prior to each season, and during periods when the area is open to hunting during hunting seasons only.

2. Hunting with dogs is prohibited except bird dogs and retrievers may be used during the small game season.

3. Hunters shall enter and exit the area at designated entrances or from the Ocklawaha River.

4. The use of tracked vehicles, motorcycles, or all-terrain vehicles is prohibited.

(29) Seminole Forest Wildlife Management Area – Lake Tracy Unit.

(a) Open season:

1. Archery – September ~~23-25~~ ~~24-26~~.

2. Muzzleloading gun – October ~~27-29~~ ~~28-30~~.

3. General gun – November ~~11-13~~ ~~12-14~~.

4. Spring turkey – March ~~17-19~~ ~~18-20~~ and ~~23-25~~ ~~24-26~~.

5. Fishing and frogging – During periods open to hunting and at other times as access is permitted by the Division of Forestry and these rules.

(b) through (c) No change.

(30) Twelve Mile Swamp Wildlife Management Area.

(a) Open season:

1. Archery – September ~~23~~ ~~24~~ through October ~~22~~ ~~23~~.

2. Muzzleloading gun – October 28 ~~through November 5~~ ~~–30~~.

3. General gun – November ~~11~~ ~~12~~ through January ~~7~~ ~~8~~.

4. Small game – January ~~8~~ ~~9~~ through March ~~4~~ ~~5~~.

5. Spring turkey – March ~~17~~ ~~18~~ through April ~~22~~ ~~23~~.

6. Fishing and frogging – During periods open for hunting or scouting.

7. Trapping – January ~~8~~ ~~9~~ through March 1.

(b) through (d) No change.

(31) Upper St. Johns River Marsh Wildlife Management Area.

(a) Open season:

1. Archery – September ~~23~~ ~~24~~ through October ~~22~~ ~~23~~.

2. Muzzleloading gun – October ~~28~~ ~~29~~ through November ~~5~~ ~~6~~.

3. General gun – November ~~11~~ ~~12~~ through January ~~21~~ ~~22~~.

4. Small game – January ~~22~~ ~~23~~ through March ~~4~~ ~~5~~.

5. Spring turkey – March ~~17~~ ~~18~~ through April ~~22~~ ~~23~~.

6. Trapping – Prohibited.

7. Fishing and frogging – Permitted year-round.

8. Waterfowl may be hunted in accordance with federal migratory bird regulations.

(b) Legal to take: All legal game, furbearers, fish, and frogs. Antlerless deer may be taken during the period November ~~18-19~~ ~~19-20~~. Turkey of either sex may be taken during the muzzleloading gun season. The period of November ~~11~~ ~~12~~ through January ~~7~~ ~~8~~ is open for bearded turkey only. No bag or size limits on wild hogs. Wild hogs may be taken during the archery, muzzleloading gun, general gun, and small game season.

(c) Camping: Only tent camping is permitted, and only at designated campsites.

(d) General regulations:

1. Motorized tracked or wheeled vehicles are prohibited, except on Fellsmere Grade and Lawton Road. Motorized boats are prohibited in those portions of the area posted as a walk-in only.

2. The possession of any firearm containing shells or cartridges or any capped or primed muzzleloading gun is prohibited on Fellsmere Grade, C-54 right-of-way, and all levees.

3. Taking of wildlife by use of a gun on or from the right-of-way of the Fellsmere Grade is prohibited as provided by Rule 68A-4.008, F.A.C.

4. The possession or use of any device capable of discharging, emitting spray, or introducing any pollutants is prohibited.

5. The use of any air-powered boat or outboard motors greater than 10 horsepower is prohibited as posted in the Blue Cypress Water Management Area.

6. During the duck and coot season in the Stick Marsh/Farm 13, Kenansville Lake, and as posted in the Blue Cypress Water Management Area, the possession or use of guns other than shotguns is prohibited.

7. Public access is prohibited from within 1,000 feet of any posted construction site.

8. Hunting with dogs is prohibited except bird dogs may be used during the small game, duck and coot seasons, and dogs may be used for hog hunting during the period January ~~24-28~~ ~~20-24~~.

9. Airboats must launch and load from the water at the designated airboat launch area when using the Blue Cypress Water Management Area.

10. Airboats must cross levees at designated airboat crossings.

11. Bush hooks are prohibited.

12. Public access on Levee 74 North is allowed only at designated entrances.

(32) Dunns Creek Wildlife Management Area.

(a) Open season:

1. Archery – September ~~23~~ ~~24~~ through October ~~8~~ ~~9~~ and November ~~18-26~~ ~~19-27~~.

2. Muzzleloading gun – October ~~28~~ ~~29~~ through November ~~5~~ ~~6~~.

3. Wild hog – January ~~20-28~~ ~~21-29~~.

4. Spring turkey – March ~~17-19~~ ~~18-20~~, March ~~30~~ ~~31~~ through April ~~1~~ ~~2~~ and ~~April 13-15~~ ~~14-16~~.

5. Trapping – Prohibited.

6. Fishing and frogging – Permitted throughout the year.

(b) No change.

(c) Camping: Only tent camping is permitted, and only at designated campsites only.

(d) No change.

(33) Salt Lake Wildlife Management Area.

(a) Open season:

1. Archery – September ~~23~~ ~~24~~ through October ~~1~~ ~~2~~ and October ~~2-8~~ ~~3-9~~.

2. Muzzleloading gun – October ~~27-29~~ ~~28-30~~.

3. General gun – November ~~11-14~~ ~~12-15~~ and ~~15-19~~ ~~16-20~~.

4. Small game – December ~~2-17~~ ~~3-18~~.

5. General gun hog – January ~~18-21~~ ~~19-22~~.

6. Spring turkey – March ~~17-20~~ ~~18-21~~ and ~~21-25~~ ~~22-26~~.

7. Fishing and frogging – Permitted throughout the year.

(b) through (d) No change.

(34) Matanzas Wildlife Management Area.

(a) Open season:

1. Archery – September ~~23~~ ~~24~~ through October ~~1~~ ~~2~~ and ~~October 2-8~~ ~~3-9~~.

2. Muzzleloading gun – October ~~27-29~~ ~~28-30~~.

3. Family hunt – November ~~11-12~~ ~~12-13~~.

4. General gun – November ~~13-19~~ ~~14-20~~.

- 5. Small game – January ~~8-23~~ ~~9-24~~.
- 6. Spring turkey – March ~~17-20~~ ~~18-21~~ and ~~21-25~~ ~~22-26~~.
- 7. Fishing and frogging – Permitted throughout the year.
- (b) through (c) No change.
- (d) General regulations:

- 1. Hunting with dogs other than bird dogs or retrievers is prohibited.
- 2. Vehicles may be operated only on named and numbered roads and must be parked at designated parking areas or parked within 25 feet of a named or numbered road.
- 3. Airboats, tracked vehicles, unlicensed motorcycles, and all-terrain vehicles are prohibited.
- 4. Hunters shall enter or exit the area only at designated entrances.

~~5. During periods open to hunting, vehicle access to the area is restricted to persons who possess a valid hunt permit, except during small game season.~~

~~5.6.~~ During the family hunts, one or two persons per hunt permit under 16 years of age but not younger than 8 years of age may hunt as provided in Section 790.22, F.S. These persons must be under the supervision and in the presence of one adult not younger than 18 years of age. The adult may only hunt when in the presence of at least one person under 16 years of age but not younger than 8 years of age.

PROPOSED EFFECTIVE DATE: July 1, 2006.

Specific Authority Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const., 372.121, 375.313 FS. Law Implemented Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const., 372.121, 375.313 FS. History– New 6-21-82, Amended 6-29-82, 7-1-83, 7-5-84, 10-1-84, 7-1-85, 5-7-86, 5-10-87, 5-1-88, 7-1-89, 12-19-89, 7-1-90, 7-1-91, 7-2-91, 7-2-92, 7-1-93, 7-1-94, 7-1-95, 7-1-96, 9-15-96, 6-1-97, 7-1-98, 7-2-98, 8-11-98, 12-28-98, 7-1-99, Formerly 39-15.065, Amended 12-20-99, 7-1-00, 12-26-00, 7-1-01, 6-2-02, 7-28-02, 5-1-03, 7-1-03, 10-12-03, 7-1-04, 7-1-05, ~~7-1-06~~.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE:
Mr. Nick Wiley, Director, Division of Hunting and Game Management

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Mr. Kenneth D. Haddad, Executive Director

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: September 21, 2005

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: November 23, 2005

FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION

Freshwater Fish and Wildlife

RULE CHAPTER TITLE:	RULE CHAPTER NO.:
Wildlife and Environmental Areas	68A-17
RULE TITLE:	RULE NO.:
General Regulations Relating to Wildlife and Environmental Areas	68A-17.004

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose of the proposed rule changes is to revise general regulations on all Wildlife and Environmental Areas (WEAs). The effect of the proposed rule changes is to enable the agency to better manage fish and wildlife resources and public use on WEAs.

SUMMARY: The proposed rule changes would allow persons with a valid Concealed Weapon or Firearm License to possess a concealed handgun throughout the year on WEAs, pursuant to the provisions of Section 790.06, Florida Statutes, unless pre-empted by federal or state law; and revise regulations to prohibit the removal of plants, rocks, minerals, animal life, other natural resources on WEAs where the Commission is the landowner or lead managing agency without written authorization from the Executive Director.

A STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST HAS NOT BEEN PREPARED REGARDING THESE PROPOSED RULES.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated regulatory costs, or to provide a proposal for lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: Article IV, Section 9, Florida Const. LAW IMPLEMENTED: Article IV, Section 9, Florida Const.; 372.57 FS.

THE FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION WILL CONDUCT A PUBLIC RULEMAKING HEARING ON THE PROPOSED RULES DURING THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE COMMISSION TO BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATES AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

TIME AND DATES: 8:30 a.m. – 5:00 p.m., each day, February 1-2, 2006

PLACE: Hilton University of Florida Conference Center, 1714 S.W. 34th Street, Gainesville, Florida 32607

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 calendar days before the workshop/meeting by contacting the ADA Coordinator, at (850)488-6411. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency by calling (850)488-9542.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: James V. Antista, General Counsel, Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission, 620 South Meridian Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1600

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

68A-17.004 General Regulations Relating to Wildlife and Environmental Areas.

- (1) through (5) No change.
- (6) Guns:
- (a) through (b) No change.

(c) Notwithstanding the provisions of paragraphs (a), (b), or (f) a person in possession of a valid Concealed Weapon or Firearm License may carry concealed handguns under the provisions of Section 790.06, F.S., throughout the year, unless otherwise prohibited pursuant to state or federal law.

~~(d)~~(e) No person shall have any gun under his control while under the influence of alcohol or drugs.

~~(e)~~(f) The possession of center-fire rifles is prohibited during small game season.

~~(f)~~(e) The possession of any firearm containing shells or cartridges, or any capped or primed muzzleloading gun is prohibited on any public campsite or check station area. The discharge of firearms is prohibited on, from or across any campsite or check station area.

(7) through (11) No change.

(12) Plants:

(a) through (c) No change.

(d) No person shall remove plants, rocks, minerals, animal life, other natural resources or parts thereof where the Commission is the landowner or lead managing agency without written authorization from the Executive Director or designee in accordance with the criteria of Rule 68A-9.002, F.A.C.

(13) through (17) No change.

PROPOSED EFFECTIVE DATE: July 1, 2006.

Specific Authority Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const. Law Implemented Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const., 372.57 FS. History—New 4-12-98, Amended 12-28-98, Formerly 39-17.004, Amended 7-1-00, 7-1-04, 7-1-05, 7-1-06.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE:
Mr. Nick Wiley, Director, Division of Hunting and Game Management

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Mr. Kenneth D. Haddad, Executive Director

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: September 21, 2005

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: November 23, 2005

FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION

Freshwater Fish and Wildlife

RULE CHAPTER TITLE: Wildlife And Environmental Areas
RULE CHAPTER NO.: 68A-17

RULE TITLE: Specific Regulations for Wildlife and Environmental Areas
RULE NO.: 68A-17.005

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose of the proposed rule changes is to revise specific area regulations on Wildlife and Environmental Areas (WEAs) and conform to calendar year

date changes. The effect of the proposed rule changes is to enable the agency to better manage fish and wildlife resources and public use on WEAs.

SUMMARY: The proposed rule changes would adjust season dates to conform to calendar year changes and revise specific area regulations on Wildlife and Environmental Areas (WEAs) as follows:

Santa Fe Swamp WEA – The proposed rule change is a technical correction to allow the taking of fish.

Apalachicola River WEA – The proposed rule change would eliminate the size and bag limit on hogs.

Southern Glades WEA – The proposed rule change would open the frogging season the day following the close the general gun season and allow airboats into the area the day following the close of the general gun season through March 1.

John G. and Susan H. Dupuis Jr. WEA – The proposed rule changes would allow a person younger than 16 to accompany a person older than 18 who possesses a valid quota permit; and make a technical correction to add Martin County to the description of the WEA.

CREW WEA – The proposed rule change would allow quota permit holders vehicle access to the area one day prior to the start of each hunting season for scouting.

John C. and Marianna Jones WEA – The proposed rule changes would reconfigure the existing hunts to provide a total of four 4-day archery hunts and three 3-day general gun hunts (all beginning on Saturdays) and shift the start of small game season one week later; there would also be a technical change to correct the spelling of Marianna (to Mariana) and add Hungryland to the name of the area.

A STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST HAS NOT BEEN PREPARED REGARDING THESE PROPOSED RULES.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated regulatory costs, or to provide a proposal for lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: Article IV, Section 9, Florida Const.; 372.121, 375.313 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: Article IV, Section 9, Florida Const.; 372.121, 375.313 FS.

THE FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION WILL CONDUCT A PUBLIC RULEMAKING HEARING ON THE PROPOSED RULES DURING THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE COMMISSION TO BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATES AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

TIME AND DATES: 8:30 a.m. – 5:00 p.m., each day, February 1-2, 2006

PLACE: Hilton University of Florida Conference Center, 1714 S.W. 34th St., Gainesville, Florida 32607

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 calendar days before the workshop/meeting by contacting the ADA Coordinator, at (850)488-6411. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency by calling (850)488-9542.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: James V. Antista, General Counsel, Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission, 620 South Meridian Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1600

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

68A-17.005 Specific Regulations for Wildlife and Environmental Areas.

(1) Southwest Region.

(a) through (e) No change.

(f) Lake Wales Ridge Wildlife and Environmental Area – Royce Unit – Highlands County.

1. Open season:

a. General gun – November 17-19 ~~18-20~~.

b. Small game – December 8-10 ~~9-11~~ and 22-24 ~~23-25~~, January 19-21 ~~20-22~~ and 26-28 ~~27-29~~.

c. Spring turkey – March 16-18 ~~17-19~~ and March 30 ~~31~~ through April 1 ~~2~~.

d. Fishing and frogging – Permitted throughout the year.

2. Legal to take: All legal game, wild hogs, fish, frogs, and furbearers. The bag limit for antlered deer shall be one per quota hunt permit. During the spring turkey season, the bag limit for turkey shall be one gobbler (or bearded turkey) per quota hunt permit. There shall be no size or bag limit restrictions on wild hogs.

3. General regulations:

a. The use of tracked vehicles, motorcycles, airboats, or all-terrain vehicles is prohibited. Horses and bicycles may be used only on firebreaks and named or numbered roads. The use of horses is prohibited during the general gun and spring turkey seasons.

b. Vehicles may be operated only on named or numbered roads and shall be parked in designated parking areas or within 25 feet of a named or numbered road.

c. During periods when the area is closed to hunting, public access other than by foot, bicycle, or horseback is prohibited, except that motorized vehicles shall be permitted on Royce Road year-round and shall be permitted on all named and numbered roads one day prior to the general gun and spring turkey hunts.

d. During periods when the area is open to hunting, entry or exit at locations other than designated entrances is prohibited.

e. Hunters shall check in and out at the designated check station when entering and exiting the area and shall check all game taken.

f. Hunting with dogs is prohibited except bird dogs and retrievers may be used during the small game season. Hunting hogs with dogs is prohibited.

(g) through (h) No change.

(2) North Central Region.

(a) Santa Fe Swamp – Bradford County.

1. Open season (hunting prohibited at other times):

a. Archery – September 23 ~~24~~ through October 22 ~~23~~.

b. Muzzleloading gun – October 27-29 ~~28-30~~.

c. Archery and muzzleloading gun – November 11 ~~12~~ through January 7 ~~8~~.

d. Spring turkey – March 17 ~~18~~ through April 22 ~~23~~.

e. Fishing is permitted throughout the year.

2. Legal to take: Wild hogs, gray squirrel, rabbit, ~~and~~ deer with one or more antlers at least five inches in length and fish. Deer (except spotted fawns) and turkey of either sex may be taken during the archery season. Only bearded turkey or gobblers may be taken during the spring turkey season. No size or bag limit on hogs.

3. General regulations:

a. Public access into the area is allowed on Cow Pen Road and Little Santa Fe Lake only.

b. Vehicles are prohibited except in the designated parking area.

c. Centerfire or rimfire rifles, shotguns, pistols, and crossbows are prohibited.

d. Hunting with dogs is prohibited.

e. Wild hogs may not be transported alive.

(b) No change.

(c) Suwannee Ridge – Hamilton County.

1. Open season:

a. Mobility-impaired general gun – October 13-15 ~~14-16~~, 27-29 ~~28-30~~, November 3-5 ~~4-6~~ and December 15-17 ~~16-18~~.

b. Mobility-impaired spring turkey – March 23-25 ~~24-26~~ and April 13-15 ~~14-16~~.

c. Fishing – Throughout year.

2. Legal to take: Any deer (except spotted fawn), wild hogs, bearded turkey (during spring turkey season only), gray squirrel, and rabbit. The bag limit shall be two deer or two bearded turkeys per quota permit. Only mobility-impaired hunters may take an antlerless deer.

3. General regulations:

a. Hunters shall check in and out at the designated check station on Holton Creek WMA and report all game taken.

b. During hunting periods, access will be restricted to certified mobility-impaired hunters with quota hunt permits and one additional person per permit holder who may also participate in the hunt. Only one quota hunt permit may be utilized per individual per hunt.

c. Vehicles may be operated only from one and one-half hours before sunrise until one and one-half hours after sunset, only on designated portions of named or numbered roads during periods open to hunting and one day prior.

d. The use of tracked vehicles, airboats, motorcycles, or all-terrain vehicles is prohibited, except all-terrain vehicles may be used during mobility-impaired hunts only, during all hunts.

e. Hunters shall enter and exit through Holton Creek WMA Road 2 only. The area may be accessed during non-hunting periods by use of the Adams Grade parking area.

f. All hunt participants are required to attend a pre-hunt orientation meeting.

g. The possession of dogs or horses is prohibited.

h. During non-hunting periods, access is restricted to foot traffic only.

(d) No change.

(3) Northwest Region.

(a) No change.

(b) Apalachicola River – Gulf, Franklin, and Liberty counties.

1. Hunting shall be allowed only during the open seasons established for migratory birds in Rules 68A-13.003 and 68A-13.008, F.A.C., and during open seasons established for deer, turkey, quail, squirrel, and wild hogs in Rule 68A-13.004, F.A.C., except for the following:

a. Antlerless deer may only be taken during the archery season.

b. Turkeys of either sex may only be taken during the archery and muzzleloading gun seasons.

c. General gun season shall open the fourth Thursday in November and close three days thereafter and reopen the second Saturday in December and close 53 days thereafter.

d. During the first phase of dove seasons established by Rule 68A-13.008, F.A.C., doves may be taken in posted dove fields on Saturdays only.

e. No size or bag limit on wild hogs.

2. Furbearers may be taken in accordance with the provisions of Rule 68A-24.002, F.A.C., except the use or possession of dogs is prohibited during the spring turkey season.

3. General regulations:

a. Camping is limited to tents, trailers, or self-propelled camping vehicles only. Camping is permitted throughout the area, except where posted as no camping. Kitchen stoves, refrigerators, and freezers, unless contained in mobile campers, lumber, sheet metal, or other building materials is prohibited.

b. Unauthorized removal or cutting of trees or plants is prohibited.

c. The use of dogs other than bird dogs or retrievers on posted dove fields is prohibited during the first phase of dove season.

d. Vehicles may be operated only on named or numbered roads.

e. Fires other than campfires are prohibited.

f. Hunting with dogs, other than bird dogs or retrievers, is prohibited in that portion of the area posted as Northwest Florida Water Management District lands (except those lands lying south of the Chipola River and east of the St. Joe Canal) and on those lands lying east of East Bay and Cash Bayou.

g. The use of all-terrain vehicles is prohibited in that portion of the area posted as Northwest Florida Water Management District lands and on those lands lying east of East Bay and Cash Bayou.

(c) No change.

(4) South Region.

(a) Southern Glades – Dade County.

1. Open season:

a. Archery – September ~~9~~ ~~10~~ through October ~~8~~ ~~9~~.

b. Muzzleloading gun – October ~~13-15~~ ~~14-16~~.

c. General gun – October ~~28~~ ~~29~~ through December ~~3~~ ~~4~~.

d. Ducks, coots, and snipe – During the seasons established for these species in Rules 68A-13.003 and 68A-13.008, F.A.C.

e. Fishing is permitted throughout the year.

f. Frogging – The day following the close of the general gun season ~~December 1~~ through March 1.

2. Legal to take: Deer with one or more antlers at least five inches in length and wild hogs with a shoulder height of 15 inches or more. Ducks, coots, and snipe may be taken during seasons established for these species in Rules 68A-13.003 and 68A-13.008, F.A.C.

3. General regulations:

a. Dogs are prohibited except waterfowl retrievers may be used during the duck, coot, and snipe seasons.

b. The possession of any firearm containing shells or cartridges or capped or primed muzzleloading guns is prohibited on levees, improved roads, and at check stations. The discharge of guns is prohibited on, from, or across any check station, levee, or improved road.

c. Hunting or discharge of any firearm east of the C-109 road, within 500 yards of the Dade Work Camp, or any building or structure is prohibited.

d. The use of tracked vehicles, buggies, airboats, motorcycles, and all-terrain vehicles is prohibited in the area except that airboats may be used in Units 1 and 4 from the day following the close of the general gun season ~~December 1~~

through March 1 and outboard motor boats may be used within canals, and vehicles may be operated on named or numbered roads.

e. Vehicles shall not be parked in such a manner as to obstruct roads, gates, or trails.

(b) John G. and Susan H. Dupuis Jr. – Palm Beach and Martin counties ~~County~~.

1. Open season:

a. Archery – September ~~8-10~~ 9-11, 15-17 ~~16-18~~ and 22-24 ~~23-25~~.

b. Muzzleloading gun – October ~~6-8~~ 7-9, 13-15 ~~14-16~~ and 20-22 ~~21-23~~.

c. General gun – October 27-29 ~~28-30~~ and November 3-5 ~~4-6~~.

d. General gun for mobility-impaired – November 11-12 ~~12-13~~.

e. General gun hog – November 14-16 ~~15-17, 21-23~~ ~~22-24, 28-30~~ ~~November 29~~ through ~~December 1~~, and December 5-7 ~~6-8~~. Wild hogs only. No bag or size limit.

f. Spring turkey – March 6-8 ~~7-9, 16-18~~ ~~17-19~~ and 23-25 ~~24-26~~.

g. Small game – December 9 ~~10~~ through January 28 ~~29~~.

h. Trapping is prohibited.

i. Fishing is permitted when public access is allowed.

j. Frogging is prohibited.

2. Legal to take:

a. Antlered deer with at least one antler having three or more points, one inch or more in length. Antlerless deer (except spotted fawns) may be taken during the archery and general gun for the mobility-impaired seasons; and by antlerless deer permit only during the muzzleloading gun and general gun seasons. The bag limit for deer shall be one per quota hunt permit. Wild hogs may be taken with no size or bag limit.

b. Spring turkey season – Gobblers or bearded turkeys only. The bag limit for turkey shall be one per quota hunt permit.

c. Small game season – Quail, gray squirrel, rabbit, armadillo, bobcat, raccoon, opossum, coyote, and skunk. Any migratory game bird may be taken during those portions of seasons established for these species in Rules 68A-13.003 and 68A-13.008, F.A.C., that coincide with the small game season.

3. Camping – During the archery, muzzleloading gun, general gun, general gun for mobility-impaired, spring turkey, and general gun hog seasons, no person shall camp on the area except those possessing a current Dupuis quota hunt permit. Camping is permitted only in the campsite adjacent to Gate 3. During the remainder of the year, camping is permitted only at designated primitive sites on hiking trails, the General Use campground on Jim Lake Grade, and at the designated

equestrian staging area at Gate 3. Small game hunters shall utilize the General Use campground on Jim Lake Grade or the primitive sites on the hiking trails.

4. General regulations:

a. Unauthorized removal or cutting of live or dead trees or plants is prohibited.

b. Fires are prohibited except at designated areas.

c. Hunting over bait or placing bait or other food for wildlife is prohibited.

d. Hunting or the possession of guns is prohibited in areas posted as closed.

e. The possession or consumption of intoxicating beverages is prohibited.

f. Dogs are prohibited except bird dogs and retrievers are permitted during the small game season.

g. Vehicles may be operated only on named roads and designated parking areas except during the general gun for mobility-impaired season when all-terrain vehicles can be used off roads.

h. The use of tracked vehicles, buggies, airboats, motorcycles, or all-terrain vehicles is prohibited except all-terrain vehicles may be used during the general gun for mobility-impaired season.

i. Horses are prohibited during the archery, muzzleloading gun, general gun, general gun for mobility-impaired, spring turkey, and general gun hog seasons. During the remainder of the year horses may be used only on designated equestrian trails and named or numbered roads. The use of horses on all other roads and trails is prohibited. Persons horseback riding on the area shall enter and exit only at Gate 3.

j. During the archery, muzzleloading gun, general gun, general gun for mobility-impaired, spring turkey, and general gun hog seasons, hunters shall check in and out at the check station at Gate 3 and check all game taken. No deer, hog, or turkey may be dismembered until checked at the check station. During the small game season, hunters shall enter and exit the area through Gate 1.

k. During the small game season and periods when the area is closed to hunting, vehicle access is through Gate 1 and hiking access is through Gate 2 by foot only. People through-hiking on the Florida Trail may enter or exit the area through the Florida Trail.

l. During the archery, muzzleloading gun, general gun, general gun for mobility-impaired, spring turkey, and general gun hog seasons, no person shall enter or exit the area except through Gate 3 and all such persons shall possess a quota permit for the area except that one person younger than 16 years of age may accompany a person older than 18 years of age who possesses a valid quota permit.

m. Only tents, trailers, or self-propelled camping vehicles may be used for camping.

n. The designated campsite for hunters is at Gate 3 and may be used by hunters only during the archery, muzzleloading gun, general gun, general gun for mobility-impaired, spring turkey, and general gun hog seasons. Authorized camping equipment may be taken on the area after 8:00 a.m. one day before each three-day hunt of the archery, muzzleloading gun, general gun, general gun hog, general gun for mobility-impaired, and spring turkey seasons. Authorized camping equipment shall be removed from the area before 5:00 p.m. one day following each three-day hunt of the archery, muzzleloading gun, general gun, general gun hog, general gun for mobility-impaired, and spring turkey seasons.

o. Each person hunting during the general gun for mobility-impaired season shall possess quota hunt permit for the hunt.

p. Each hunter participating in the general gun for mobility-impaired season is required to attend a pre-hunt orientation meeting.

q. Only one mobility-impaired quota hunt permit may be utilized per individual per hunt.

r. The possession or use of firearms other than shotguns is prohibited during the small game season.

s. The discharge of firearms within 1/4 mile of the hiking trail campsites is prohibited.

(c) CREW – Collier and Lee Counties.

1. Open season:

a. Archery – September ~~9-17~~ ~~10-18~~.

b. Muzzleloading gun – October ~~14-16~~ ~~15-17~~.

c. General gun – October ~~28~~ ~~29~~ through November ~~5~~ ~~6~~.

d. Spring turkey – March ~~3-6~~ ~~4-7~~ and ~~7-11~~ ~~8-12~~.

e. Trapping is prohibited.

f. Fishing and frogging – Permitted throughout the year.

2. Legal to take: All legal game, fish, frogs, and furbearers. The bag limit for deer shall be one per quota hunt permit. The taking of deer is prohibited in the Corkscrew Marsh Unit. During the spring turkey season, the bag limit for turkey shall be one gobbler (or bearded turkey) per quota hunt permit. The taking of turkey is prohibited during the archery season. There shall be no bag limit restrictions on wild hogs.

3. Camping: Primitive camping is allowed at designated sites by individuals with written authorization from the South Florida Water Management District or by individuals in possession of a valid quota hunt permit.

4. General regulations:

a. The use of trailers or recreational vehicles for camping is prohibited.

b. Fires other than campfires at approved campsites are prohibited.

c. Unauthorized removal, cutting, or possession of live or dead trees or plants is prohibited.

d. Dogs are prohibited, except that dogs not normally used for hunting and kept under restraint may be possessed. No person shall allow any dog to pursue or molest wildlife.

e. The use of tracked vehicles, swamp buggies, motorcycles, all-terrain vehicles, or vessels, except canoes or kayaks, is prohibited, except that swamp buggies may be operated by individuals possessing a valid quota hunt permit.

f. Vehicles may be operated only on named or numbered roads designated for vehicles. During the archery, muzzleloading gun, general gun and spring turkey seasons beginning at 8 a.m. the day prior to the opening of each season vehicles may also be operated on named or numbered trails by individuals possessing a valid quota hunt permit.

g. The use or possession of horses is restricted to designated equestrian trails.

h. Persons may enter and exit the area only at designated access points and hunters must check in and out at the designated check station.

i. Persons may enter the WEA two hours before sunrise and must exit the area within two-hours after sunset, unless camping at a designated campsite.

j. Hunters shall enter and exit the Corkscrew Marsh Unit only through Gate 5 and Gate 6.

k. Hunters shall check in and out at a check station when entering and exiting the area and shall check all game taken.

l. Hunting east of or within 1/4-mile of the western North/South Tram Road and south of Bonita Beach Road in the Bird Rookery Swamp Unit is prohibited.

m. No deer or turkey shall be dismembered until checked at a check station.

n. Centerfire and rimfire rifles are prohibited.

(d) No change.

(e) John C. and Mariana Marianna Jones/Hungryland WEA – Palm Beach and Martin counties.

1. Open season:

a. Archery – September ~~9-12~~, ~~16-19~~, ~~23-26~~, and September 30-October 3 ~~10-16~~ and ~~17-25~~.

b. Muzzleloading gun – October ~~14-16~~ ~~15-17~~.

c. General gun – October ~~28-30~~ ~~29~~ through November ~~1~~ and November ~~4-6~~, ~~11-13~~ ~~2-6~~.

d. Small game – November ~~18~~ – December ~~3~~ ~~12-27~~.

e. Fishing and frogging – Permitted throughout the year.

2. Legal to take: Deer, wild hog, quail, gray squirrel, rabbit, armadillo, raccoon, opossum, coyote, skunk, and migratory game birds as established by Rules 68A-13.003 and 68A-13.008, F.A.C., when migratory game bird season coincides with the archery, muzzleloading gun, general gun, or small game season. The bag limit for deer shall be one each per quota permit. No size or bag limits on wild hogs. The taking of antlerless deer is prohibited during the archery season.

3. Camping: Camping is permitted at designated primitive sites. Only tents may be used for camping.

4. General regulations:

- a. Unauthorized removal or cutting of live or dead trees or plants is prohibited.
- b. Fires are prohibited except at designated camping sites.
- c. Vehicles may be operated only on named or numbered roads and in designated parking areas. Vehicles are prohibited on the Old Jupiter Grade.
- d. The use of tracked vehicles, buggies, airboats, motorcycles, and all-terrain vehicles is prohibited.
- e. Hunters shall check in and out at a check station when entering and exiting the area and shall check all game taken.
- f. No deer shall be dismembered until checked at a check station.
- g. Dogs are prohibited except bird dogs and retrievers may be used for hunting during the small game season.
- h. Centerfire and rimfire rifles are prohibited.
- i. Horses may be used only on designated equestrian trails and named or numbered roads.
- j. Persons shall enter and exit the area only at designated entrances.

(5) No change.

PROPOSED EFFECTIVE DATE: July 1, 2006.

Specific Authority Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const., 372.121, 375.313 FS. Law Implemented Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const., 372.121, 375.313 FS. History—New 7-1-83, Amended 11-30-83, 7-1-84, 8-21-85, Formerly 39-17.05, Amended 6-1-86, 8-13-87, 8-18-88, 8-17-89, 4-11-90, 7-1-91, 10-31-91, 4-14-92, 4-20-93, 7-1-94, 9-15-94, 3-30-95, 8-15-95, 7-1-96, 4-3-97, 10-28-97, 7-1-98, 8-11-98, 7-1-99, Formerly 39-17.005, Amended 7-1-00, 5-1-01, 6-2-02, 5-25-03, 7-1-04, 7-1-05, 7-1-06.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE: Mr. Nick Wiley, Director, Division of Hunting and Game Management

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Mr. Kenneth Haddad, Executive Director

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: September 21, 2005

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: November 23, 2005

FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION

Freshwater Fish and Wildlife

RULE CHAPTER TITLE: Fish Management Areas RULE CHAPTER NO.: 68A-20

RULE TITLE: Specific Fish Management Area Regulations RULE NO.: 68A-20.005

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The proposed rule would change the black bass regulation on Karick Lake in Okaloosa County to provide for more angler harvest of black bass and improve the overall black bass fish population in the lake.

SUMMARY: The proposed rule would change the black bass regulation on Karick Lake Fish Management Area from catch-and release to a 12-inch minimum length limit.

A STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST HAS NOT BEEN PREPARED REGARDING THESE PROPOSED RULES.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated regulatory costs, or to provide a proposal for lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: Article IV, Section 9, Florida Constitution.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: Article IV, Section 9, Florida Constitution.

THE FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION WILL CONDUCT A PUBLIC RULEMAKING HEARING ON THE PROPOSED RULES DURING THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE COMMISSION TO BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATES AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

TIME AND DATES: 8:30 a.m. – 5:00 p.m., each day, February 1-2, 2006

PLACE: Hilton University of Florida Conference Center, 1714 S.W. 34th Street, Gainesville, Florida 32607

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 calendar days before the workshop/meeting by contacting the ADA Coordinator, at (850)488-6411. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency by calling (850)488-9542.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: James V. Antista, General Counsel, Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission, 620 South Meridian Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1600

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

68A-20.005 Specific Fish Management Area Regulations.

(1) Northwest Region.

(a) through (d) No change.

(e) Karick Lake, Okaloosa County:

~~1. No person shall kill or possess any black bass.~~

~~1.2.~~ The use of boats propelled by gasoline motors is prohibited.

~~2.3.~~ Motor vehicles are prohibited on dams, spillways and fishing fingers.

(f) through (i) No change.

(2) through (5) No change.

PROPOSED EFFECTIVE DATE: July 1, 2006.

Specific Authority Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const. Law Implemented Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const. History--New 8-1-79, Amended 2-19-80, 5-19-80, 6-4-81, 9-28-81, 6-21-82, 7-1-83, 11-17-83, 7-1-84, 7-1-85, Formerly 39-20.05, Amended 2-27-86, 6-1-86, 5-10-87, 4-13-88, 7-1-89, 7-1-90, 4-11-91, 7-1-91, 7-2-92, 8-23-92, 4-20-93, 7-1-94, 8-15-95, 10-23-95, 4-1-96, 2-16-97, 6-1-97, 6-29-97, 1-1-98, 7-1-98, 11-2-98, Formerly 39-20.005, Amended 4-30-00, 7-1-00, 10-10-00, 4-1-01, 7-1-01, 10-9-01, 7-1-02, 1-1-03, 7-1-03, 1-1-04, 7-1-04, 7-17-05, 7-1-06.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE: Darrell L. Scovell, Director Division of Freshwater Fisheries Management

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Mr. Kenneth D. Haddad, Executive Director

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: September 21, 2005

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: December 16, 2005

BE ADVISED THAT THESE PROPOSED RULES MAY BE FILED FOR ADOPTION AS SOON AS POSSIBLE FOLLOWING THE COMMISSION MEETING AT WHICH THEY ARE CONSIDERED IF THE RULES ARE NOT CHANGED. IF CHANGED, THE RULES MAY BE FILED AS SOON AS POSSIBLE AFTER PUBLICATION OF A NOTICE OF CHANGE IN THE FAW.

FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION

Freshwater Fish and Wildlife

RULE CHAPTER TITLE: RULE CHAPTER NO.:
Rules Relating to Freshwater Fish 68A-23

RULE TITLE: RULE NO.:
General Methods of Taking Freshwater Fish 68A-23.002

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The proposed rule would provide for additional use of freshwater fisheries resources in Indian River County, reduce confusion among freshwater fishers using cast nets, and simplify and clarify enforcement of rules relating to taking of freshwater fish with cast nets to provide better management of the states freshwater fisheries resources.

SUMMARY: The proposed rule amendment would provide for use of cast nets of any mesh size to take nongame fish in Indian River County and further clarify that no cast nets may be used to take any size freshwater non-game fish in areas closed to use of cast nets.

A STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST HAS NOT BEEN PREPARED REGARDING THESE PROPOSED RULES.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated regulatory costs, or to provide a proposal for lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: Article IV, Section 9, Florida Const.
LAW IMPLEMENTED: Article IV, Section 9, Florida Const.

THE FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION WILL CONDUCT A PUBLIC RULEMAKING HEARING ON THE PROPOSED RULES DURING THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE COMMISSION TO BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATES AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

TIME AND DATES: 8:30 a.m. – 5:00 p.m., each day, February 1-2, 2006

PLACE: Hilton University of Florida Conference Center, 1714 S.W. 34th Street, Gainesville, Florida 32607

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 calendar days before the workshop/meeting by contacting the ADA Coordinator, at (850)488-6411. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency by calling (850)488-9542.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: James V. Antista, General Counsel, Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission, 620 South Meridian Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1600

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULES IS:

68A-23.002 General Methods of Taking Freshwater Fish.

(1) through (2) No change.

(3) Nongame fish may be taken by hook and line, rod and reel or by trotlines, set lines or bush hooks (as specified in Rule 68A-23.004, F.A.C.), or by traps, nets or other devices as specified in Rule 68A-23.003, F.A.C. Nongame fish may be taken for personal use by any person possessing a valid freshwater fishing license by the use of not more than one slat basket or one wire trap, made as specified in Rule 68A-23.003, F.A.C., in those waters where the use of wire traps or slat baskets is permitted for commercial purposes as specified in subsection 68A-23.003(2), F.A.C. Nongame fish may be taken at night by bow and arrow and gigs and during daylight hours by manually operated spears, gigs, snatch hooks, crossbow or bow and arrow from a boat or from shore except at the spillways of the Eureka and Rodman Dams on the Oklawaha River or on the spillway of the Jim Woodruff Dam on the Apalachicola River or in Dade County canals south of the C-4 and east of the L-31N and L-31W canals inclusively. Nongame fish may be taken by the use of cast nets in the Northeast Region, in Citrus and Glades Counties, and in the Southwest Region, except that possession or use of cast nets in waters adjoining Saddle Creek Fish Management Area, Polk County, confined by Morgan Combee Road, U.S. Highway 92 and Fish Hatchery Road are prohibited. ~~Nongame fish may be taken with cast nets in the Northeast Region, except in Indian River County. Nongame fish may be taken by use of cast nets in Citrus and Glades counties.~~

(4) through (5) No change.

(6) Minnows of non-game fish excluding catfish may be taken:

(a) through (b) No change.

(c) By the use of a cast net having a mesh size not greater than one inch stretched in freshwaters of the state unless specifically prohibited.

(d) No change.

(7) through (11) No change.

PROPOSED EFFECTIVE DATE: July 1, 2006.

Specific Authority Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const. Law Implemented Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const. History—New 8-1-79, Amended 5-19-80, 6-4-81, 6-21-82, 7-1-84, Formerly 39-23.02, Amended 6-1-86, 4-13-88, 7-1-89, 7-1-90, 4-20-93, 7-1-93, 7-1-94, 7-1-95, 4-1-96, 7-1-98, 4-15-99, Formerly 39-23.002, Amended 7-1-00, 7-1-01, 7-1-04, 7-1-06.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE: Darrell L. Scovell, Director Division of Freshwater Fisheries Management

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Mr. Kenneth D. Haddad, Executive Director

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: September 21, 2005

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: December 16, 2005

BE ADVISED THAT THESE PROPOSED RULES MAY BE FILED FOR ADOPTION AS SOON AS POSSIBLE FOLLOWING THE COMMISSION MEETING AT WHICH THEY ARE CONSIDERED IF THE RULES ARE NOT CHANGED. IF CHANGED, THE RULES MAY BE FILED AS SOON AS POSSIBLE AFTER PUBLICATION OF A NOTICE OF CHANGE IN THE FAW.

FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION

Freshwater Fish and Wildlife

RULE CHAPTER TITLE: Rules Relating to Freshwater Fish

RULE CHAPTER NO.: 68A-23

RULE TITLE: Bag Limits, Length Limits, Open Season:

RULE NO.:

Freshwater Fish

68A-23.005

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The proposed rule amendment would change regulations for black bass on Lake Kerr in Marion County to allow anglers to utilize the more abundant small fish resources of Lake Kerr while potentially improving the overall quality of the black bass fishery in the lake. The proposed rule also would make a technical change to black bass regulations for the St. Johns River Water Management Area (Farm 13, including the Stick Marsh) to include that part of the area that is in Brevard County. The proposed change would ensure that the black bass regulation applies to the whole St. Johns River Water Management Area and would result in a higher quality black bass fishery and help better manage public use of this area.

SUMMARY: The proposed rule amendment would prohibit the killing or possession of black bass in Lake Kerr, including Little Lake Kerr, that are 15 inches or more in total length and less than 24 inches in total length and reduce the daily black bass bag limit to 3 fish of which only one may be 24 inches or longer in total length. The proposed rule amendment also would prohibit the killing or possession of any black bass in that portion of the St. Johns River Water Management Area (Farm 13, including the Stick Marsh) that lies within Brevard County.

A STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST HAS NOT BEEN PREPARED REGARDING THESE PROPOSED RULES.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated regulatory costs, or to provide a proposal for lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: Article IV, Section 9, Florida Const.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: Article IV, Section 9, Florida Const.

THE FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION WILL CONDUCT A PUBLIC RULEMAKING HEARING ON THE PROPOSED RULES DURING THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE COMMISSION TO BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATES AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

TIME AND DATES: 8:30 a.m. – 5:00 p.m., each day, February 1-2, 2006

PLACE: Hilton University of Florida Conference Center, 1714 S.W. 34 Street, Gainesville, Florida 32607

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 calendar days before the workshop/meeting by contacting the ADA Coordinator, at (850)488-6411. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency by calling (850)488-9542.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: James V. Antista, General Counsel, Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission, 620 South Meridian Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1600

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

68A-23.005 Bag Limits, Length Limits, Open Season: Freshwater Fish.

(1) through (7) No change.

(8) In that portion of the state south and east of the Suwannee River to the line established by reference to certain counties in subsection (9) below, bag or length limits or areas closed to fishing are as follows:

(a) through (c) No change.

(d) Lake Kerr, including Little Lake Kerr: No person shall kill or possess any black bass that is 15 inches or more in total length and less than 24 inches in total length. No person shall take in any one day more than 3 black bass of which only one may be 24 inches or longer in total length.

~~(e)~~ No person shall kill or possess any black bass in the following areas:

1. In Wildcat Lake within the boundaries of the Ocala National Forest.

2. In the St. Johns River Water Management Area, in Indian River ~~and Brevard counties County~~ (commonly known as Farm-13 and including the Stickmarsh).

3. In the St. Johns River Water Management-owned area formerly known as the S.N. Knight Farm in Indian River County.

~~(f)~~ Edward Medard Reservoir, Hillsborough County: No person shall kill or possess any black bass that is 15 inches or more in total length and less than 24 inches in total length. No person shall take in any one day more than 3 black bass.

~~(g)~~ In waters adjoining Saddle Creek Fish Management Area, Polk County, confined by Morgan Combee Road, U.S. Highway 92 and Fish Hatchery Road, no person shall kill or possess any black bass that is 15 inches or more in total length and less than 24 inches in total length. No person shall take in any one day more than 3 black bass.

~~(h)~~ Lake Weohyakapka (Walk-in-Water), Polk County, including all contiguous residential waterways, Weohyakapka (Walk-in-Water) Creek north to the point located 100 yards south of State Road 60, and Tiger Creek west to the point 100 yards west of Walk-in-the-Water Rd.: No person shall kill or possess any black bass that is 15 inches or more in total length and less than 24 inches in total length. No person shall take in any one day more than 3 black bass of which only one may be 24 inches or longer.

~~(i)~~ Lake Okeechobee: No person shall kill or possess any black bass that is 13 inches or more in total length and less than 18 inches in total length.

Lake Okeechobee is defined as any point lakeward of a boundary line delineated by the following points:

Intersection of St. Rd. 78 and U.S. 441, U.S. 441 SE to St. Rd. 5 (“80”)

St. Rd. 5 (“80”) to St. Rd. 25 (U.S. 27)

St. Rd. 25 (U.S. 27) to St. Rd. 78

St. Rd. 78 to U.S. 441

Including:

Harney Pond Canal (C-41) north of St. Rd. 78 to South Florida Water Mgmt. District (SFWMD) structure S-71

Indian Prairie Canal (C-40) north of St. Rd. 78 to SFWMD structure S-72

All of Taylor Creek and Nubbin Slough in Okeechobee County C-38/Kissimmee River south of SFWMD structure S-65E to St. Rd. 78

(9) No change.

PROPOSED EFFECTIVE DATE: July 1, 2006.

Specific Authority Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const. Law Implemented Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const. History--New 8-1-79, Amended 5-19-80, 6-4-81, 6-21-82, 7-1-83, Formerly 39-23.05, Amended 2-27-86, 5-10-87, 3-1-88, 4-13-88, 7-1-89, 4-11-90, 7-1-92, 8-23-92, 4-20-93, 7-1-94, 9-15-94, 4-1-96, 7-1-98, 10-20-98, Formerly 39-23.005, Amended 7-1-00, 7-1-01, 7-1-04, 7-1-05, 7-1-06.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE: Darrell L. Scovell, Director Division of Freshwater Fisheries Management

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Mr. Kenneth D. Haddad, Executive Director

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: September 21, 2005

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: December 16, 2005

BE ADVISED THAT THESE PROPOSED RULES MAY BE FILED FOR ADOPTION AS SOON AS POSSIBLE FOLLOWING THE COMMISSION MEETING AT WHICH THEY ARE CONSIDERED IF THE RULES ARE NOT CHANGED. IF CHANGED, THE RULES MAY BE FILED AS SOON AS POSSIBLE AFTER PUBLICATION OF A NOTICE OF CHANGE IN THE FAW.

FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION

Freshwater Fish and Wildlife

RULE CHAPTER TITLE: RULE CHAPTER NO.:

Rules Relating To Freshwater Fish 68A-23

RULE TITLE: RULE NO.:

Special Regulations for Lake Seminole and the St. Mary’s River 68A-23.0131

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The proposed rule conforms all bag and length limits for freshwater fish in St. Mary’s River tributaries to those of the St. Mary’s River proper to eliminate confusion for Georgia and Florida anglers fishing in this river system and to simplify enforcement to improve overall freshwater fisheries management. The proposed rule also standardizes Florida and Georgia rules relating to taking of striped bass, white bass, or their hybrids in the St. Marys River to simplify enforcement and improve management of these fisheries.

SUMMARY: Bag and length limits for certain freshwater fish in St. Mary’s River tributaries are changed as follows: Black bass daily bag limits are changed from 5 to 10; the black crappie daily bag limit is changed from 25 to 30; Pickerel (chain, grass and redbfin) bag limits are changed from no limit to 15; Striped bass-white bass hybrids or white bass daily bag limits are changed from 15 to 2 all of which must be 22 inches or greater in total length.

A STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST HAS NOT BEEN PREPARED REGARDING THESE PROPOSED RULES.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated regulatory costs, or to provide a proposal for lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: Article IV, Section 9, Florida Const.; 372.021 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: Article IV, Section 9, Florida Const.; 372.57, 372.97, 372.971 FS.

THE FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION WILL CONDUCT A PUBLIC RULEMAKING HEARING ON THE PROPOSED RULES DURING THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE COMMISSION TO BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATES AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

TIME AND DATES: 8:30 a.m. – 5:00 p.m., each day, February 1-2, 2006

PLACE: Hilton University of Florida Conference Center, 1714 S.W. 34 Street, Gainesville, Florida 32607

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 calendar days before the workshop/meeting by contacting the ADA Coordinator, at (850)488-6411. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency by calling (850)488-9542.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: James V. Antista, General Counsel, Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission, 620 South Meridian Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1600

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

68A-23.0131 Special Regulations for Lake Seminole and the St. Mary’s River.

(1) through (2) No change.

(3) No person shall take, catch or have in possession ~~on the above-described waters~~ more than the daily bag limit for any species of game fish, or take, catch or have in possession more than 50 in the aggregate of all species of game fish.

(a) The daily bag limit on the above-described waters for Lake Seminole is as follows:

1. Black bass – 10 (all of which must be 12 inches or greater in total length).
2. Striped bass, striped bass-white bass hybrid and white bass in the aggregate – 15 (only 2 of which may be 22 inches or greater in total length).
3. Bream – Bluegill, redbreast, rock bass and all other species of bream – 50.
4. Crappie – 30.
5. Pickerel – Chain, grass and redbfin – 15.

(b) The daily bag limit for the St. Mary’s River and its tributaries is as follows:

1. Black bass – 10 (all of which must be 12 inches or greater in total length).
2. Striped bass, white bass, or striped bass-white bass hybrids – 2 (all of which must be 22 inches or greater in length).
- ~~3. Striped bass-white bass hybrid or white bass – 15.~~
- ~~3.4.~~ Bream – bluegill, redbreast, rock bass and all other species of bream – 50.
- ~~4.5.~~ Crappie – 30.
- ~~5.6.~~ Pickerel – Chain, grass and redbfin – 15.

PROPOSED EFFECTIVE DATE: July 1, 2006.

Specific Authority Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const., 372.021 FS. Law Implemented Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const., 372.57, 372.97, 372.971 FS. History—New 6-21-82, Formerly 39-23.131, Amended 6-2-86, 8-9-90, 6-11-92, Formerly 39-23.0131, Amended 7-1-06.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE: Darrell L. Scovell, Director Division of Freshwater Fisheries Management

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Mr. Kenneth D. Haddad, Executive Director

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: September 21, 2005

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: December 16, 2005

FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION

Freshwater Fish and Wildlife

RULE CHAPTER TITLE: Rules Relating To Freshwater Fish
 RULE TITLE: Regulations Governing the Taking and Possession of Alligator Gar, Eels and Freshwater Mussels

RULE CHAPTER NO.: 68A-23
 RULE NO.: 68A-23.015

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The proposed rule amendment increases the scope of this rule to include alligator gar and eels. The proposed amendment prohibits the take of alligator gar without permit to reduce impacts to the population of this increasingly rare fish. The proposed rule also will require all commercial eel harvesters to obtain a permit to harvest eels to comply with requirements of the Atlantic States Marine Fisheries Commission American Eel Fishery Management Plan. This will ensure better quality data on landings of all harvested eels, which is needed to develop management alternatives to protect, restore and sustain viable eel populations in Florida and other Atlantic states.

SUMMARY: The proposed rule would prohibit the take of alligator gar without permit and would implement a permit requirement to take eels commercially.

A STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST HAS NOT BEEN PREPARED REGARDING THESE PROPOSED RULES.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated regulatory costs, or to provide a proposal for lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: Article IV, Section 9, Florida Const.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: Article IV, Section 9, Florida Const.

THE FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION WILL CONDUCT A PUBLIC RULEMAKING HEARING ON THE PROPOSED RULES DURING THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE COMMISSION TO BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATES AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

TIME AND DATES: 8:30 a.m. – 5:00 p.m., each day, February 1-2, 2006

PLACE: Hilton University of Florida Conference Center, 1714 S.W. 34 Street, Gainesville, Florida 32607

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 calendar days before the workshop/meeting by contacting the ADA Coordinator, at (850)488-6411. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency by calling (850)488-9542.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: James V. Antista, General Counsel, Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission, 620 South Meridian Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1600

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

68A-23.015 Regulations Governing the Taking and Possession of Alligator Gar, Eels and Freshwater Mussels.

(1) No person shall take or possess alligator gar (*Atractosteus spatula*) without having obtained a permit from the Commission. Permits to take alligator gar shall be issued subject to criteria in Rule 68A-9.002, F.A.C.

(2) Persons licensed in accordance with Section 372.65(1), F.S., may take eels as specified in Rules 68A-23.002, F.A.C., 68A-23.003, F.A.C., or 68A-23.004, F.A.C., only under permit from the Commission. Permits shall be subject to such terms, conditions and restrictions as prescribed therein and shall be issued, denied, renewed or revoked as provided in Rule 68A-5.004, F.A.C. Eel harvest permits shall be issued to applicants who have submitted a completed eel harvest permit application. Eel Harvest Permit Application Form EHPA-1 (7-06) is incorporated herein by reference and obtainable at the Commission's Tallahassee and Regional Offices.

(3)(4) Taking living or dead freshwater mussels for the purpose of sale or selling living or dead freshwater mussels, is prohibited.

~~(4)(2)~~ No person shall take more than 10 freshwater mussels or 20 half-shells of the families Unionidae and Margaritiferidae (Phylum Mollusca, Class Pelecypoda) per day. No person shall possess more than two days' bag limit (20 individual mussels or 40 half-shells) of any mussels of these families. Permits for taking or possession of freshwater mussels of the families Unionidae and Margaritiferidae in excess of prescribed bag or possession limits shall be issued in accordance with Rule 68A-9.002, F.A.C.

~~(5)(3)~~ Except as provided in Rule 68A-23.008, F.A.C., freshwater mussels from families other than Unionidae and Margaritiferidae, such as the Asian clam *Corbicula fluminea*, may be taken for bait or personal use.

~~(6)(4)~~ Mussels shall be taken by hand-picking only. Use of brailles, crowfoot bars, or other mechanical methods for taking freshwater mussels is prohibited.

Specific Authority Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const. Law Implemented Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const. History--New 7-1-96, Formerly 39-23.015, Amended.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE: Darrell L. Scovell, Director Division of Freshwater Fisheries Management

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Mr. Kenneth D. Haddad, Executive Director

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: September 21, 2005

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: December 16, 2005

BE ADVISED THAT THESE PROPOSED RULES MAY BE FILED FOR ADOPTION AS SOON AS POSSIBLE FOLLOWING THE COMMISSION MEETING AT WHICH THEY ARE CONSIDERED IF THE RULES ARE NOT CHANGED. IF CHANGED, THE RULES MAY BE FILED AS SOON AS POSSIBLE AFTER PUBLICATION OF A NOTICE OF CHANGE IN THE FAW.

FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION

Freshwater Fish and Wildlife

RULE CHAPTER TITLE: RULE CHAPTER NO.:

Rules Relating to Fur-bearing Animals and Possession of Hides 68A-24

RULE TITLE: RULE NO.:

License and Tagging Requirements 68A-24.003

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose of the proposed rule change is to revise statutory references that have been changed related to licenses for the taking and possession of fur bearing animals. The effect will be to have the correct statutory citation in the rule.

SUMMARY: Statutory references to licenses have been changed by the legislature. The renumbered references will be replaced.

A STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST HAS NOT BEEN PREPARED REGARDING THESE PROPOSED RULES.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated regulatory costs, or to provide a proposal for lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: Article IV, Section 9, Florida Const.; 372.021, 372.66 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: Article IV, Section 9, Florida Const.; 372.57, 372.66 FS.

THE FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION WILL CONDUCT A PUBLIC RULEMAKING HEARING ON THE PROPOSED RULES DURING THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE COMMISSION TO BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATES AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

TIME AND DATES: 8:30 a.m. – 5:00 p.m., each day, February 1-2, 2006

PLACE: Hilton University of Florida Conference Center, 1714 S.W. 34th Street, Gainesville, Florida 32607

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 calendar days before the workshop/meeting by contacting the ADA Coordinator, at (850)488-6411. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency by calling (850)488-9542.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: James V. Antista, General Counsel, Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission, 620 South Meridian Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1600

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

68A-24.003 License and Tagging Requirements.

(1) Persons taking or possessing any fur-bearing animal or part thereof for commercial purposes shall be licensed as provided by Sections 372.57~~(2)(h) and (2)(i)~~ and 372.66, F.S., and may sell such animals in accordance with the provisions of this chapter. Any person licensed to hunt as provided by Sections 372.57~~(2)(d) and (2)(e), and (2)(f)~~, F.S., exempt from hunting licensure under Section 372.57~~(1)(a) or (1)(b)~~, F.S., or who has obtained a free permanent hunting license as provided in Section 372.561, F.S., may take fur-bearing animals only by shooting or by the use of dogs for non-commercial purposes and may possess one bobcat or otter skin without meeting the tagging requirements of this section.

(2) through (4) No change.

Specific Authority Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const., 372.021, 372.66 FS. Law Implemented Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const., 372.57, 372.66 FS. History— 8-1-79, Amended 6-22-80, 6-4-81, 6-21-82, Formerly 39-24.03, Amended 6-2-86, 5-10-87, Formerly 39-24.003, Amended _____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE: Col. Julie Jones, Director, Division of Law Enforcement

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Mr. Kenneth D. Haddad, Executive Director

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: September 21, 2005

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: December 23, 2005

FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION

Freshwater Fish and Wildlife

RULE CHAPTER TITLE: Rules Relating to Fur-bearing Animals and Possession of Hides

RULE CHAPTER NO.: 68A-24

RULE TITLE: Fur and Hide Dealers: Operations, Reporting Requirements

RULE NO.: 68A-24.004

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose of the proposed rule development is to revise statutory references that have been changed related to the purchase of hides from licensed individuals. The effect will be to have the correct statutory citation in the rule.

SUMMARY: Statutory references to licenses have been changed by the legislature. The renumbered references will be replaced.

A STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST HAS NOT BEEN PREPARED REGARDING THESE PROPOSED RULES.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated regulatory costs, or to provide a proposal for lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: Article IV, Section 9, Florida Const. LAW IMPLEMENTED: Article IV, Section 9, Florida Const.; 372.57, 372.66, 372.6672, 372.6673 FS.

THE FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION WILL CONDUCT A PUBLIC RULEMAKING HEARING ON THE PROPOSED RULES DURING THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE COMMISSION TO BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATES AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

TIME AND DATES: 8:30 a.m. – 5:00 p.m., each day, February 1-2, 2006

PLACE: Hilton University of Florida Conference Center, 1714 S.W. 34th Street, Gainesville, Florida 32607

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 calendar days before the workshop/meeting

by contacting the ADA Coordinator, at (850)488-6411. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency by calling (850)488-9542.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: James V. Antista, General Counsel, Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission, 620 South Meridian Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1600

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

68A-24.004 Fur and Hide Dealers: Operations, Reporting Requirements.

(1) No fur or hide dealer or buyer shall buy or possess any untanned skin of any fur-bearing animal acquired from any person not licensed in accordance with Sections 372.57(2)(b) and (2)(i), F.S., or any untanned hide of an alligator acquired from any person not licensed as an alligator trapper, processor or farmer under Section 372.6673, F.S., or as a hide dealer under Section 372.66, F.S. Every fur or hide dealer shall maintain written records of all purchases of untanned skins of any animal as set forth in subsection (2). Untanned skins possessed or stored on the premises of a dealer or agent buyer for another person shall be tagged to show the name, address, date received and license number of the owner.

(2) through (3) No change.

Specific Authority Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const. Law Implemented Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const., 372.57, 372.66, 372.6672, 372.6673 FS. History—New 8-1-79, Amended 6-22-80, 6-4-81, 6-21-82, Formerly 39-24.04, Amended 6-2-86, 6-7-88, 2-4-89, 4-11-90, 4-1-96, Formerly 39-24.004, Amended _____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE: Col. Julie Jones, Director, Division of Law Enforcement

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Mr. Kenneth D. Haddad, Executive Director

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: November 30, 2005

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: December 23, 2005

FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION

Freshwater Fish and Wildlife

RULE CHAPTER TITLE: Rules Relating to Reptiles

RULE CHAPTER NO.: 68A-25

RULE TITLE: Feeding or Enticement of Crocodilians Unlawful

RULE NO.: 68A-25.001

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose of the proposed rule is to broaden the feeding prohibition to all crocodilians and eliminate provisions allowing county or municipal animal control personnel to use bait when relocating alligators or crocodiles. The effect will be to streamline the rule and clarify under what circumstances crocodilians can be fed or enticed with feed.

SUMMARY: The proposed rule would broaden the feeding prohibition to all crocodilians and eliminate provisions allowing county or municipal animal control personnel to use bait when relocating alligators or crocodiles.

A STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST HAS NOT BEEN PREPARED REGARDING THESE PROPOSED RULES.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated regulatory costs, or to provide a proposal for lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: Article IV, Section 9, Florida Const. LAW IMPLEMENTED: Article IV, Section 9, Florida Const.

THE FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION WILL CONDUCT A PUBLIC RULEMAKING HEARING ON THE PROPOSED RULES DURING THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE COMMISSION TO BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATES AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

TIME AND DATES: 8:30 a.m. – 5:00 p.m., each day, February 1-2, 2006

PLACE: Hilton University of Florida Conference Center, 1714 S.W. 34th Street, Gainesville, Florida 32607

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 calendar days before the workshop/meeting by contacting the ADA Coordinator, at (850)488-6411. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency by calling (850)488-9542

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: James V. Antista, General Counsel, Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission, 620 South Meridian Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1600

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

68A-25.001 Feeding or Enticement of Crocodilians ~~Alligators or Crocodiles~~ Unlawful.

~~(1)~~ No person shall intentionally feed, or entice with feed, any ~~wild~~ crocodilian ~~American alligator~~ (~~Alligator mississippiensis~~) or American crocodile (*Crocodylus acutus*), unless held in captivity under a permit issued by the Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission or otherwise provided by this Title. ~~However, the provisions of this section shall not apply to:~~

~~(a) Those persons feeding alligators or crocodiles maintained in protected captivity for educational, scientific, commercial, or recreational purposes.~~

~~(b) Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission personnel, persons licensed or otherwise authorized by the commission, or county or municipal animal control personnel when relocating alligators or crocodiles by baiting or enticement.~~

~~(2) For the purposes of this section, the term "maintained in protected captivity" means held in captivity under a permit issued by the Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission pursuant to Section 372.921 or 372.922, F.S.~~

Specific Authority Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const. Law Implemented Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const. History—New 3-1-05, Amended _____

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE:
Mr. Nick Wiley, Director, Division of Hunting and Game Management

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Mr. Kenneth D. Haddad, Executive Director

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: September 21, 2005

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: November 23, 2005

BE ADVISED THAT THESE PROPOSED RULES MAY BE FILED FOR ADOPTION AS SOON AS POSSIBLE FOLLOWING THE COMMISSION MEETING AT WHICH THEY ARE CONSIDERED IF THE RULES ARE NOT CHANGED. IF CHANGED, THE RULES MAY BE FILED AS SOON AS POSSIBLE AFTER PUBLICATION OF A NOTICE OF CHANGE IN THE FAW.

FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION

Freshwater Fish and Wildlife

RULE CHAPTER TITLE: RULE CHAPTER NO.:
Rules Relating To Reptiles 68A-25

RULE TITLE: RULE NO.:
General Provisions for Taking, Possession and Sale of Reptiles 68A-25.002

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose of the proposed rule is to remove outdated specific references regarding where forms must be submitted. The effect will be to streamline and simplify the rule.

SUMMARY: The proposed rule would eliminate outdated specific references regarding where forms must be submitted.

A STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST HAS NOT BEEN PREPARED REGARDING THESE PROPOSED RULES.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated regulatory costs, or to provide a proposal for lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: Article IV, Section 9, Florida Const. LAW IMPLEMENTED: Article IV, Section 9, Florida Const.; 372.6672, 372.6673, 372.86, 372.921, 372.922 FS.

THE FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION WILL CONDUCT A PUBLIC RULEMAKING HEARING ON THE PROPOSED RULES DURING THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE COMMISSION TO BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATES AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

TIME AND DATES: 8:30 a.m. – 5:00 p.m., each day, February 1-2, 2006

PLACE: Hilton University of Florida Conference Center, 1714 S.W. 34th Street, Gainesville, Florida 32607

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 calendar days before the workshop/meeting by contacting the ADA Coordinator, at (850)488-6411. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency by calling (850)488-9542.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: James V. Antista, General Counsel, Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission, 620 South Meridian Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1600

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

68A-25.002 General Provisions for Taking, Possession and Sale of Reptiles.

(1) No person shall buy, sell, take, possess, transport, or import any American alligator, or any part thereof, or the nests or eggs of any American alligator except under permit from the executive director, as otherwise provided by this Title, or as follows:

(a) No change.

(b) Persons permitted pursuant to Section 372.921, F.S., and their employees may transport live, lawfully-possessed, untagged alligators to Florida locations for exhibition purposes and persons permitted pursuant to Section 372.921, F.S., may sell, and they and their employees may transport, such alligators to:

1. Other persons permitted pursuant to Section 372.921, F.S.;

2. To persons permitted to receive such alligators; or

3. To persons out of state, provided that all transports/transfers conducted pursuant to subparagraphs 68A-25.002(b)1., 2. and 3., F.A.C., shall be documented on a Captive Alligator and Egg Transportation/Transfer Document (FWC Form 1006AF).

4. All originating exhibitor/seller(s) acting pursuant to this paragraph shall complete and sign the Captive Alligator and Egg Transportation/Transfer Document before the transport, obtain the signature of the recipient on the document, if

appropriate, and forward the document to the Commission's ~~Division of Law Enforcement, Tallahassee Office,~~ within 30 days following the date of transport. A copy of the completed document must accompany the alligators during transport.

(2) through (15) No change.

Specific Authority Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const. Law Implemented Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const., 372.6672, 372.6673, 372.86, 372.921, 372.922 FS. History—New 8-1-79, Amended 6-4-81, 6-21-82, 7-1-83, 7-1-84, 7-1-85, Formerly 39-25.02, Amended 6-1-86, 5-10-87, 10-8-87, 4-13-88, 2-14-89, 7-1-89, 7-1-90, 4-14-92, 4-1-96, 9-15-96, 4-12-98, 7-1-99, Formerly 39-25.002, Amended 4-30-00, _____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE: Mr. Nick Wiley, Director, Division of Hunting and Game Management

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Mr. Kenneth D. Haddad, Executive Director

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: September 21, 2005

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: November 23, 2005

FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION

Freshwater Fish and Wildlife

RULE CHAPTER TITLE:	RULE CHAPTER NO.:
Rules Relating To Reptiles	68A-25
RULE TITLE:	RULE NO.:
Taking and Disposal of Nuisance-Alligators Statewide	68A-25.003

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose of the proposed rule is to remove unnecessary provisions that could otherwise be covered by contract, permit, and existing rule provisions. The effect will be to significantly streamline the rule.

SUMMARY: The proposed rule would remove unnecessary provisions that could otherwise be covered by contract, permit, and existing rule provisions.

A STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST HAS NOT BEEN PREPARED REGARDING THESE PROPOSED RULES.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated regulatory costs, or to provide a proposal for lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: Article IV, Section 9, Florida Const.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: Article IV, Section 9, Florida Const.; 372.6672, 372.6673 FS.

THE FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION WILL CONDUCT A PUBLIC RULEMAKING HEARING ON THE PROPOSED RULES DURING THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE COMMISSION TO BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATES AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

TIME AND DATES: 8:30 a.m. – 5:00 p.m., each day, February 1-2, 2006

PLACE: Hilton University of Florida Conference Center, 1714 S.W. 34th Street, Gainesville, Florida 32607

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 calendar days before the workshop/meeting by contacting the ADA Coordinator, at (850)488-6411. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency by calling (850)488-9542.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: James V. Antista, General Counsel, Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission, 620 South Meridian Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1600

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

68A-25.003 Taking and Disposal of Nuisance-Alligators Statewide.

(1) ~~Only persons under contract with the Commission as nuisance alligator trappers, or their agents and assistants, who have been approved No person other than nuisance alligator trappers designated by the executive director, or his designee, and licensed in accordance with Section 372.6673, F.S., shall take, possess and kill nuisance alligators as authorized by permit herein. No nuisance alligator trapper shall take, possess or kill any alligator except as authorized herein.~~

(2) ~~Persons may apply for nuisance alligator contracts by completing and submitting a Nuisance Alligator Trapper Application (FWC Form 1002AT (2-06)), incorporated by reference herein. Qualification and liability of nuisance alligator trappers:~~

(a) ~~Shall reside in the region where the nuisance alligator trapper is authorized to take, possess or kill alligators.~~

(b) ~~Shall possess the experience and ability to handle wild alligators.~~

(c) ~~Shall be capable of supplying all equipment necessary to take alligators.~~

(d) ~~Shall have sufficient time to adequately and efficiently take designated alligators.~~

(e) ~~Shall not have been convicted of violating any law or rule relating to the illegal taking of crocodilians within five years of the date of application, or within ten years of the date of application if such conviction involved endangered crocodilians.~~

(f) ~~Shall assume personal liability for health, welfare and safety while acting as a nuisance alligator trapper.~~

(g) ~~Those persons employed by alligator farms or engaged in alligator farming shall not be eligible to participate as a nuisance alligator trapper. However, nothing herein shall~~

prohibit the employment of nuisance alligator trappers by alligator farm permittees for the taking of alligators or alligator eggs from the wild in accordance with Commission rules.

(3) Failure of any contracted nuisance alligator trapper, or their agents and assistants, to comply with all contract, permit, or other rule provisions of the Commission may result in termination of contracts and revocation of licenses as prescribed by Rule 68A-5.004, F.A.C., and, if applicable, criminal or civil prosecution pursuant to Florida Statutes. Selection and review:

(a) Applicants and qualifications for appointment shall be reviewed by a selection board appointed in each region by the executive director. The board shall conduct a personal interview and consider each applicant's qualification and personal background. The names of those applicants nominated by the board shall be submitted to the executive director for final consideration and appointment. The number of appointments shall be based on need.

(b) Selected nuisance alligator trappers shall enter into a contract and be licensed as an alligator trapper under Section 372.6673, F.S., to take and possess alligators in accordance with this rule.

(4) Conditions governing operations of authorized nuisance alligator trappers:

(a) The nuisance alligator trapper will be issued a permit assigning in writing a specific nuisance alligator complaint by the designated regional coordinator. Only the alligator(s) specifically designated in the nuisance alligator complaint may be taken. No nuisance alligator trapper shall possess any live alligator for more than 24 hours except as directed by the coordinator.

(b) When warranted under exigent circumstances or when immediate attention is required, the regional coordinator may authorize a nuisance alligator trapper to relocate an alligator less than four feet in length.

(c) Nuisance alligator trappers may collect oviducal eggs from gravid nuisance alligators and the orphaned eggs from the nests of female nuisance alligators, as authorized by the Commission, for the transfer of said eggs to alligator farms permitted as eligible to receive eggs and hatchlings from the wild pursuant to Rule 68A-25.004, F.A.C.

(d) No alligator shall be taken by the use or aid of a firearm without specific written authorization or without authorization by a Commission law enforcement officer at the scene.

(e) An alligator CITES tag furnished by the Commission shall be locked through the skin of the alligator within six (6) inches of the tip of the tail immediately upon killing. The identifying alligator CITES tag shall remain attached to the alligator hide until the hide is tanned, taxidermy mounted, or exported from the state. CITES tags shall be used only one time, and the possession of any alligator hide not tagged as

prescribed herein is prohibited, and such hide shall be subject to seizure and forfeiture to the Commission under the provisions of Section 372.73, F.S.

(f) An alligator harvest report form (FWC Form 1001AT, incorporated by reference herein, effective April 30, 2000) provided by the Commission shall be completed by the trapper within 24 hours of taking each alligator and prior to the transfer of the carcass to another person. The trapper shall submit a legible copy of each completed alligator harvest report form to the Commission's Tallahassee Office, 620 South Meridian Street, Tallahassee, FL 32399-1600 for receipt by January 15 of the following year.

(g) All unused CITES tags must be returned by the permittee to the Commission's Tallahassee Office, 620 South Meridian Street, Tallahassee, FL 32399-1600, by January 15 of the following year. It shall be a violation of this section for any person to possess any unused CITES tag(s) from the previous year after January 15.

(h) Five dollars (\$5) shall be expended by the Commission or its designee on marketing and education for each CITES tag used under the provisions of this rule contingent upon an annual appropriation by the legislature for marketing and education activities.

(i) The meat from alligators taken that is not discarded shall be processed or sold in accordance with Rule 68A-25.052, F.A.C.

(j) Each nuisance alligator trapper may have up to three alligator trapping agents, licensed under Section 372.6673, F.S. Such agents are authorized to conduct nuisance alligator trapping activities under the direction of the nuisance alligator trapper. Such activities may be performed by the agents in the absence of the nuisance alligator trapper.

(k) Each nuisance alligator trapper may have assistant trappers to assist in the taking of nuisance alligators. Assistant trappers shall be licensed as alligator trapper agents under Section 372.6673, F.S., and shall work in the direct supervision and in the immediate presence of the nuisance alligator trapper. Activities of the assistant trapper shall be limited to nuisance alligator removal on public waters.

(l) The nuisance alligator trapper shall be held accountable for the conduct of his agents and assistant trappers. Any confirmed misconduct may result in termination of the nuisance alligator trapper's contract or the revocation of the nuisance alligator trapper's or agents' licenses as prescribed by Rule 68A-5.004, F.A.C.

(m) CITES tags shall remain the property of the Commission until affixed as provided herein. No person except an authorized nuisance alligator trapper and his agents shall possess any unused CITES tag at any time, and such nuisance alligator trapper shall insure that all CITES tags issued to him shall remain in his or his agents' possession.

~~(n) Assignments of alligators to be taken and the issuance of CITES tags to a nuisance alligator trapper shall be discontinued upon receipt of verified information and belief by the executive director that the nuisance alligator trapper has:~~

- ~~1. Attempted to generate alligator complaints,~~
- ~~2. Taken alligators in excess of authorization,~~
- ~~3. Failed to promptly respond to an assigned complaint,~~
- ~~4. Been convicted of a violation of any regulation concerned with the commercialization of wildlife or freshwater fish,~~
- ~~5. Violated any portion of this rule, or~~

~~6. Demonstrated an inability to carry out the assigned duties as required by contract or rule. Following a review by the appropriate regional review board in which the alleged misconduct is confirmed, the contract of the nuisance alligator trapper shall be breached and terminated.~~

~~(5) Sale of alligator parts: Parts of alligators may only be sold in accordance with Rules 68A-25.002 and 68A-25.052, F.A.C.~~

Specific Authority Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const. Law Implemented Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const., 372.6672, 372.6673 FS. History—New 8-1-79, Amended 10-23-79, 6-22-80, 6-4-81, 6-21-82, 7-1-85, Formerly 39-25.03, Amended 6-1-86, 12-23-87, 5-5-88, 2-14-89, 4-11-90, 4-14-92, 3-30-95, 4-1-96, Formerly 39-25.003, Amended 4-30-00, 12-16-03, _____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE:
Mr. Nick Wiley, Director, Division of Hunting and Game Management

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Mr. Kenneth D. Haddad, Executive Director

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: September 21, 2005

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: November 23, 2005

FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION

Freshwater Fish and Wildlife

RULE CHAPTER TITLE:	RULE CHAPTER NO.:
Rules Relating To Reptiles	68A-25
RULE TITLE:	RULE NO.:
Regulations Governing the Operation of Alligator Farms	68A-25.004

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose of the proposed rule is to eliminate outdated provisions and specific references regarding where forms must be submitted. The effect will be to streamline and simplify the rule.

SUMMARY: The proposed rule would eliminate outdated provisions and specific references regarding where forms must be submitted.

A STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST HAS NOT BEEN PREPARED REGARDING THESE PROPOSED RULES.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated regulatory costs, or to provide a proposal for lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: Article IV, Section 9, Florida Const. LAW IMPLEMENTED: Article IV, Section 9, Florida Const.; 372.6673 FS.

THE FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION WILL CONDUCT A PUBLIC RULEMAKING HEARING ON THE PROPOSED RULES DURING THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE COMMISSION TO BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATES AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

TIME AND DATE: 8:30 a.m. – 5:00 p.m., each day, February 1-2, 2006

PLACE: Hilton University of Florida Conference Center, 1714 S.W. 34th Street, Gainesville, Florida 32607

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 calendar days before the workshop/meeting by contacting the ADA Coordinator, at (850)488-6411. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency by calling (850)488-9542.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: James V. Antista, General Counsel, Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission, 620 South Meridian Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1600

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

68A-25.004 Regulations Governing the Operation of Alligator Farms.

Alligator farms may be established and operated and alligators, eggs, and hides may be possessed by alligator farmers and their agents subject to the following:

- (1) No change.
- (2) Licensing and permitting:
 - (a) through (e) No change.

(f) A maximum of 30 permits may be issued that grant farmers authority to take alligator hatchlings under subsection 68A-25.031(1), F.A.C., and a maximum of 30 permits may be issued that grant farmers the first opportunity to participate in the collection and distribution of eggs taken from the wild under subsections 68A-25.031(2) and (3), F.A.C. Such permits shall be issued by the executive director as follows:

~~1. Permits shall be issued to applicants on a first come, first served basis as determined by receipt of a written application.~~

~~2. After the issuance of all available permits, the Commission shall maintain on a first come, first served basis waiting lists for issuance of permits. Applicants wishing to~~

~~maintain their status on said waiting lists must notify the Commission in writing between December 1 and December 31 of each year.~~

~~3. Prior to July 1, 2000, when a permit becomes available, the first applicant on the respective list shall be so notified. Said applicant shall have 10 days after notification to purchase a farming license and 180 days to meet the eligibility criteria for alligator farm facilities specified herein. The applicant may be issued a permit following an inspection and a determination that these requirements have been met. Such applicants who fail to meet these requirements shall be dropped from the list and required to reapply for reinstatement to the list.~~

~~4. On or after July 1, 2000, W~~hen a permit becomes available, notice of such availability shall be published in the Florida Administrative Weekly.

a. Persons wishing to apply for an available permit shall do so in writing within 30 days of publication of the notice in the Florida Administrative Weekly. Persons whose applications are received more than 30 days after publication of the notice shall not be eligible for assignment of the available permit, irrespective of the postmark date on their application. Only persons licensed as alligator farmers pursuant to Section 372.6673, F.S., may apply, and only one application per person will be accepted.

b. Available permits shall be assigned based on a random drawing of qualified applicants.

c. Individuals assigned an available permit on the respective list shall be so notified. Said applicant shall have 180 days after notification to meet the eligibility criteria for alligator farm facilities specified herein. The applicant may be issued a permit following an inspection and determination that these requirements have been met.

~~2.5.~~ No person shall be issued more than one permit for an alligator farm eligible to receive alligator eggs and one permit for an alligator farm eligible to receive alligator hatchlings taken from the wild as specified in this paragraph.

~~3.6.~~ Failure of a permittee to participate in the egg collection and distribution under Rule 68A-25.031, F.A.C., for two consecutive years shall result in revocation of the respective permit issued pursuant to this paragraph.

~~4.7.~~ Failure of a permittee to participate in the hatchling collections under Rule 68A-25.031, F.A.C., for two consecutive years shall result in revocation of the respective permit issued pursuant to this paragraph.

(g) through (j) No change.

(3) Record keeping requirements:

(a) Permittees shall maintain inventory records of the number of alligator eggs and alligators in each incubator, tank, pond, and enclosure. The source and disposition of eggs and alligators added to or removed from each incubator, rearing

tank, and breeding stock enclosure shall be accurately recorded. Such inventory, source, and disposition records shall be kept on the farm on an Alligator Farm Inventory Record (FWC Form 1004AF, effective June 30, 1992, which is incorporated herein by reference and may be obtained from ~~at~~ the Commission's ~~Tallahassee office~~) or in a manner that is substantially in compliance with the required record keeping.

(b) through (c) No change.

(4) Reporting requirements:

(a) An Alligator Farm Annual Report (FWC Form 1000AF, effective July 1, 1994, which is incorporated to this rule by reference and may be obtained from ~~at~~ the Commission's ~~Tallahassee office~~) shall be completed at the conclusion of each calendar year and submitted to the Commission's ~~division of law enforcement~~ by January 31.

(b) No change.

(5) through (7) No change.

(8) Transfer of alligator eggs and live, untagged alligators from alligator farms:

(a) No change.

(b) The transfer of any alligator egg or live, untagged alligator from an alligator farm premises shall be documented on a Captive Alligator and Egg Transportation/Transfer Document (FWC Form 1006AF, effective April 30, 2000, which is incorporated herein by reference and may be obtained from ~~at~~ the Commission's ~~Tallahassee office~~). The originating farm permittee shall complete and sign the Captive Alligator and Egg Transportation/Transfer Document before the transfer, obtain the signature of the recipient on the document, and forward the document to the Commission's ~~Division of Law Enforcement, Tallahassee Office~~, within 30 days following the date of transfer. A copy of the completed document must accompany the alligators or alligator eggs during transport.

Specific Authority Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const. Law Implemented Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const., 372.6673 FS. History—New 8-1-79, Amended 6-21-82, Formerly 39-25.04, Amended 8-24-87, 6-7-88, 2-14-89, 4-11-90, 4-4-91, 4-15-92, 7-1-94, 3-30-95, 4-1-96, 9-15-96, 11-12-98, Formerly 39-25.004, Amended 4-30-00,_____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE:
Mr. Nick Wiley, Director, Division of Hunting and Game Management

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Mr. Kenneth D. Haddad, Executive Director

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: November 30, 2005

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: September 21, 2005

FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION

Freshwater Fish and Wildlife

RULE CHAPTER TITLE: RULE CHAPTER NO.:
 Rules Relating To Reptiles 68A-25

RULE TITLE: RULE NO.:
 Regulations Governing Alligator Egg
 and Hatchling Collections on
 Lands Not Included in Alligator
 Management Programs 68A-25.031

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purposes of the proposed rule are to eliminate specific references regarding where forms are obtained and submitted; eliminate the limitation on the percentage of nests that may be opened during egg collections; eliminate the provisions for Type B egg collections; eliminate the provisions regarding expending monies on alligator marketing and education; and, remove references to private lands in the rule title. The effects will be to simplify the rule and remove the potential need for future changes as entity names or responsibilities change; provide for the implementation of adaptive management strategies that may lead to maximum sustained use of the alligator egg resource; make the rule compatible with proposed changes to 68A-25.032, F.A.C.; and remove provisions referencing marketing and education expenditures already covered by Section 372.6673, F.S.

SUMMARY: The proposed rule would eliminate specific references regarding where forms are obtained and submitted; eliminate the limitation on the percentage of nests that may be opened during egg collections; eliminate the provisions for Type B egg collections; eliminate the provisions regarding expending monies on alligator marketing and education; and, remove references to private lands in the rule title.

A STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST HAS NOT BEEN PREPARED REGARDING THESE PROPOSED RULES.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated regulatory costs, or to provide a proposal for lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: Article IV, Section 9, Florida Const.
 LAW IMPLEMENTED: Article IV, Section 9, Florida Const.; 372.6672, 372.6673, 372.6674 FS.

THE FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION WILL CONDUCT A PUBLIC RULEMAKING HEARING ON THE PROPOSED RULES DURING THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE COMMISSION TO BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATES AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

TIME AND DATES: 8:30 a.m. – 5:00 p.m., each day, February 1-2, 2006

PLACE: Hilton University of Florida Conference Center, 1714 S.W. 34th Street, Gainesville, Florida 32607

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 calendar days before the workshop/meeting by contacting the ADA Coordinator, at (850)488-6411. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency by calling (850)488-9542.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: James V. Antista, General Counsel, Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission, 620 South Meridian Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1600

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

68A-25.031 Regulations Governing Alligator Egg and Hatchling Collections on Lands Not Included in Alligator Management Programs ~~on Private Lands.~~

(1) Conditions governing alligator hatchling collections:

(a) through (c) No change.

(d) Assignment of all alligator hatchling collection areas to farm permittees will be conducted at least once every three (3) years, and the assignment of relinquished collection areas will be conducted in intervening years. Farm permittees who wish to request the assignment of hatchling collection areas will identify their preferred collection areas and total number of alligator hatchlings requested for the year on application forms (FWC Form 1001AF, effective date April 1, 1996, incorporated herein by reference and available ~~from~~ at the Commission's ~~Tallahassee office~~) provided by the Commission. Completed applications must be received by the Commission by June 15 of each year. For purposes of this rule, receipt shall mean actual receipt ~~by~~ in the Commission's ~~Tallahassee Office~~, on or before the deadline, by U.S. Mail, express delivery, hand-delivery or by facsimile (fax) copy. Applications received after June 15 will not be accepted irrespective of the postmark date.

(e) through (i) No change.

(j) Permittees or their agent(s) shall not collect wild alligator hatchlings until receipt of permittee's written report by the Commission's ~~Division of Law Enforcement, Tallahassee~~, identifying the total, calendar-year, hatchling production and the number of remaining viable eggs on the permittee's alligator farm as of September 10 or later of each year. Notwithstanding provisions for inventories in Rule 68A-25.004, F.A.C., the Commission may inventory a permittee's total egg inventory and hatchling production.

(k) No change.

(l) Alligator hatchlings shall be immediately tagged upon capture with alligator hatchling tags, except that hatchlings captured from a boat shall be tagged no later than immediately upon return to shore. A hatchling collection form (FWC Form 1002AF, effective date April 1, 1996, incorporated herein by reference) provided by the Commission must be completed prior to leaving the collection site and shall accompany the

hatchlings at all times until they are delivered to the permittee's alligator farm. Hatchling collection forms shall be submitted to the Commission's Tallahassee Office, 620 South Meridian Street, Tallahassee, FL 32399-1600 by December 16. No person shall possess any untagged alligator hatchlings acquired pursuant to this section.

(m) through (n) No change.

(o) All unused alligator hatchling tags issued pursuant to this section shall be returned to the Commission's Tallahassee Office, 620 South Meridian Street, Tallahassee, FL 32399-1600 by December 16 each year.

(2) Establishment of Type A egg collection areas, groups, coordinators, and quotas:

(a) Type A alligator egg collection areas shall be established by the Executive Director, or his designee, that are suitable for surveying, establishment of quotas, and collection based upon habitat characteristics, expected nest densities, and anticipated costs of surveys and collections.

(b) No change.

(c) Farmers permitted as eligible to receive eggs from the wild as specified in paragraph 68A-25.004(2)(e), F.A.C., and licensed as specified in Section 372.6673, F.S., who wish to participate in egg collections shall apply and identify, in writing, the collection group in which they elect to participate. Farmers also permitted as eligible to participate in the collection and distribution of eggs as specified in paragraph 68A-25.004(2)(f), F.A.C., may identify the person for whom they vote to be permitted as the egg collection coordinator (herein referred to as coordinator). Applications must be received by the Commission by April 1 of each year. Eligible farmers meeting the April 1 application deadline may transfer to the other collection group upon written request received by the Commission. Such transfer requests must be received by April 15. For purposes of this rule, receipt shall mean actual receipt on or before the deadline by in the Commission's Tallahassee Office by U.S. Mail, express delivery, hand-delivery, or facsimile (fax) copy. Applications and transfer requests received after April 1 and April 15, respectively, will not be accepted irrespective of the postmark date. The Executive Director, or his designee, shall issue permits to direct and conduct egg collections on behalf of group participants to the individuals receiving the majority of the votes from eligible voting members in each group. Each coordinator shall be licensed as an alligator farmer as specified in Section 372.6673, F.S., prior to being issued a permit.

(d) Quotas for the number of nests that may be opened on each collection area shall be determined by Commission biologists conducting surveys and will be set to ensure no long term negative impacts on alligator populations not exceed fifty percent (50%) of the nests observed during those surveys.

(e) No change.

(3) Procedures and requirements for alligator egg collections on Type A egg collection areas:

(a) through (d) No change.

(e) Permits shall expire August 7 of each year, except that the Executive Director, or his designee, may extend the expiration date upon request of a group coordinator if collections are delayed for reasons outside of the control of the coordinator and collectors and a concerted effort has been made to complete the collections before August 7. Any quota unused upon expiration of the permit shall be assigned to the other collection group upon purchase of the requisite number of egg permits by the other group's coordinator.

(f) through (o) No change.

(p) Each collection day at the egg inspection site the coordinator shall provide Commission personnel completed copies of FWC form 1005AF (effective June 26, 1994, incorporated herein by reference and available from at the Commission's Tallahassee office) signed by the coordinator and indicating the number of eggs to be transferred to each participating farm or to a designated temporary storage facility. Eggs may be temporarily stored at the designated storage facility for up to 15 days following collection before transfer to the participating farms.

(q) through (r) No change.

~~(s) Of the \$5 fee per egg assessed under paragraph (3)(n), \$1 shall be expended on alligator marketing and education.~~

~~(4) Type B egg collection area establishment procedures and requirements:~~

~~(a) Alligator habitat occurring on public lands may be established as a Type B egg collection area provided that:~~

~~1. The alligator habitat is not accessible to the general public without written authorization or permit, and~~

~~2. The area has not been established as an alligator harvest management unit pursuant to Rule 68A-25.042, F.A.C., and~~

~~3. A determination is made by the Executive Director, based on costs and benefits of surveys and collections, that said alligator habitat is unsuitable for establishment as a Type A egg collection area.~~

~~(b) A governmental body with management authority over public lands or an authorized lessee of public lands may apply for establishment of a Type B egg collection area according to the application procedures specified for alligator management programs on private lands in Rule 68A-25.032, F.A.C.~~

~~(c) Procedures and requirements governing application review, permit issuance, and the taking of eggs shall be as specified in Rule 68A-25.032, F.A.C., for alligator management programs on private lands.~~

Specific Authority Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const. Law Implemented Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const., 372.6672, 372.6673, 372.6674 FS. History--New 8-24-87, Amended 6-7-88, 2-14-89, 4-11-90, 4-15-92, 4-29-93, 6-26-94, 3-30-95, 4-1-96, 9-15-96, 4-12-98, Formerly 39-25.031, Amended 4-30-00, 5-13-02, 4-11-04, _____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE:
Mr. Nick Wiley, Director, Division of Hunting and Game Management
NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Mr. Kenneth D. Haddad, Executive Director
DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: September 21, 2005
DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: November 23, 2005

FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION

Freshwater Fish and Wildlife

RULE CHAPTER TITLE: RULE CHAPTER NO.:
Rules Relating to Reptiles 68A-25
RULE TITLE: RULE NO.:
Regulations Governing the Establishment of Alligator Management Programs 68A-25.032

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purposes of the proposed rule are to eliminate specific references regarding where forms are obtained and submitted; allow the inclusion of public lands other than sovereign submerged lands; eliminate acreage or population limitations as a requisite for eligibility; eliminate the limitation on the percentage of the population that can be harvested; eliminate the provisions regarding expending monies on alligator marketing and education; and, remove references to private lands in the rule title. The effects will be to simplify the rule and remove the potential need for future changes as entity names or responsibilities change; provide public land resource managers the greatest latitude to manage the alligator resource consistent with their land use objectives; provide smaller landowners or special-use landowners greater flexibility in managing the alligator resource on their properties; remove provisions referencing marketing and education expenditures already covered by Section 372.6674, F.S.; and make the rule title consistent with the proposed changes for inclusion of public lands.

SUMMARY: The proposed rule would eliminate specific references regarding where forms are obtained and submitted; provide for inclusion of public lands other than sovereign submerged lands; eliminate acreage or population limitations as a requisite for eligibility; eliminate the limitation on the percentage of the population that can be harvested; eliminate the provisions regarding expending monies on alligator marketing and education; and, remove references to private lands in the rule title.

A STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST HAS NOT BEEN PREPARED REGARDING THESE PROPOSED RULES.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated regulatory costs, or to provide a proposal for lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: Article IV, Section 9, Florida Const.
LAW IMPLEMENTED: Article IV, Section 9, Florida Const.; 372.6672 FS.

THE FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION WILL CONDUCT A PUBLIC RULEMAKING HEARING ON THE PROPOSED RULES DURING THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE COMMISSION TO BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATES AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

TIME AND DATES: 8:30 a.m. – 5:00 p.m., each day, February 1-2, 2006

PLACE: Hilton University of Florida Conference Center, 1714 S.W. 34th Street, Gainesville, Florida 32607

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 calendar days before the workshop/meeting by contacting the ADA Coordinator, at (850)488-6411. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency by calling (850)488-9542.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: James V. Antista, General Counsel, Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission, 620 South Meridian Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1600

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

68A-25.032 Regulations Governing the Establishment of Alligator Management Programs ~~on Private Lands~~.

Alligator management programs designed for the taking of alligator eggs and hatchlings and the trapping of non-hatchling alligators ~~on private lands~~ may only be established on private lands and on public lands, other than sovereign submerged lands, for which a governmental entity can demonstrate an ownership interest or a leasehold interest and approval of the owner (referred to as "public lands" in this section) under the following conditions:

(1) Alligator Management Program – Application and review procedures.

(a) The owner or authorized lessee of property containing alligator habitat (as described in FWC form 1000PW) shall make written application, on forms provided by the Commission (Alligator Management Program Application, FWC form 1000PW, effective April 12, 1998, is incorporated to the rule by reference and may be obtained from the Commission's ~~Tallahassee and regional offices~~), for establishment of an Alligator Management Program each calendar year. A group of landowners or authorized lessees may apply jointly provided their properties are adjoining.

~~Lands owned or leased by water control districts recognized per Chapter 298, F.S., excepting water management districts created per Section 373.069, F.S., shall be construed as private lands for purposes of this rule.~~

(b) The alligator habitat described in the Alligator Management Program Application may not include lands established as an alligator harvest management unit pursuant to Rule 68A-25.042, F.A.C. or an alligator egg collection area pursuant to Rule 68A-25.031, F.A.C.

~~(c)(b)~~ Alligator habitat inventories contained in Alligator Management Program Applications shall be verified by an individual who is designated as an associate wildlife biologist or a certified wildlife biologist under The Wildlife Society's Program for Certification of Professional Wildlife Biologists, The Wildlife Society, 5410 Grosvenor Lane, Bethesda, MD 20814; or who is designated as an associate ecologist, ecologist, or senior ecologist under the Ecological Society of America's Certification Program, ESA Center for Environmental Studies, Arizona State University, Tempe, AZ 85287-3211; or who is designated as an associate fisheries scientist or a certified fisheries scientist under the American Fisheries Society's Professional Certification Program, American Fisheries Society, 5410 Grosvenor Lane, Suite 110, Bethesda, MD 20814-2199; or who is a full Member of the Society of American Foresters, 5400 Grosvenor Lane, Bethesda, MD 20814. Non-hatchling alligator, hatchling and nest surveys contained in said applications shall be verified by an individual who is designated as a certified wildlife biologist by The Wildlife Society's Program for Certification of Professional Wildlife Biologists.

~~(d)(e)~~ Applicants may incorporate by reference in their annual application the habitat inventories and non-hatchling alligator surveys referenced in paragraph (1)~~(c)(b)~~ above that were previously submitted by the applicant and that remain on file with the Commission provided that habitat conditions have not changed on the property. New applicants for previously permitted properties must submit newly verified habitat inventories and non-hatchling alligator surveys as specified in paragraph (1)~~(c)(b)~~ above.

~~(e)(d)~~ Upon review and approval of timely submitted applications, individuals designated in the application (hereinafter referred to as designees) shall be entitled to receive permits to take alligators, eggs, or hatchlings on the permitted property in accordance with permit provisions and provisions of this rule.

~~(f)(e)~~ Applicants may identify one designee for taking non-hatchling alligators, one designee for taking alligator eggs, and one designee for taking alligator hatchlings. Public lands applicants must select designees by a competitive bidding or random selection process. Requests to change a designee shall be in writing.

~~(g)(f)~~ Designees shall be licensed in accordance with the provisions of Section 372.6673, F.S., prior to the issuance of their permits. A permittee's agents shall be licensed prior to said agents taking alligators or alligator eggs and prior to relocating nuisance alligators.

~~(h)(g)~~ Permits shall be issued to designee within 60 days following receipt of a complete application meeting the criteria established herein (applicants should submit applications at least 60 days prior to the opening of the harvest period to ensure timely issuance of harvest permits and tags prior to the opening of the harvest period). Permits may be denied, pursuant to Rule 68A-5.004, F.A.C., to designees who have previously failed to return unused tags and completed forms as specified herein.

(2) Procedures governing the issuance of harvest permits and the taking of non-hatchling alligators.

(a) Harvest quotas for non-hatchling alligators may be requested by submitting the following information:

1. A habitat inventory (as described in FWC form 1000PW) ~~demonstrating at least 1,000 acres of alligator habitat,~~ or

2. A habitat inventory (as described in FWC form 1000PW) ~~demonstrating at least 1,000 acres of alligator habitat~~ and an alligator population survey, or

3. An alligator population survey ~~documenting a population of no less than 100 alligators greater than 4 feet in length.~~

(b) No change.

(c) Upon review of the habitat inventory or the alligator population survey, Commission biologists shall recommend to the Executive Director or his designee a harvest quota ~~not to exceed 15% of the projected population of alligators greater than 4 feet in length~~ for the permitted property. Such recommended quotas shall be based upon the best biological information that indicates the number of alligators that can be removed from the system without long-term adverse impacts on population levels. Upon approval of harvest quotas by the executive director or his designee, the Commission shall furnish the designee a harvest permit and an alligator CITES tag for each non-hatchling alligator to be taken from the approved area. Harvest permits shall expire on December 31 of each year, and associated CITES tags may not be used after that date.

(d) through (g) No change.

(h) An alligator harvest report form (FWC form 1001AT, effective May 28, 2000, is incorporated to the rule by reference and may be obtained from the Commission's Tallahassee and regional offices), provided by the Commission, must be completed by the permittee within 24 hours of taking each alligator and prior to the transfer of the carcass to another person. The permittee shall submit a legible copy of each

completed alligator harvest report form to the Commission's Tallahassee Office, 620 South Meridian Street, Tallahassee, FL 32309-1600 for receipt by January 15 of the following year.

~~(i) Five dollars (\$5) shall be expended by the Commission or its designee on marketing and education for each CITES tag used under the provisions of this rule contingent upon an annual appropriation by the legislature for marketing and education activities.~~

(3) Procedures governing the issuance of collection permits and the taking of alligator eggs and hatchlings.

(a) Alligator eggs and hatchlings may ~~only~~ be collected from properties ~~containing more than 1,000 acres of alligator habitat as described in an alligator habitat inventory submitted as part of FWC form 1000PW, or from properties for which an alligator nest or hatchling pod survey is submitted which results in establishment of quotas of at least five (5) nests or five (5) pods, respectively, as specified in paragraphs (3)(b) to (d), below.~~

(b) through (d) No change.

(e) In addition to the procedures detailed in paragraphs (3)(b) through (d) above, following receipt by the Commission of a written request for an alligator egg collection permit (supervised) and issuance of such permit, eggs may be collected as directed in the harvest permit from up to 50% of the nests observed during an on-site survey by an individual meeting the requirements for verifying nest surveys in paragraph (1)(c)(b) of this rule, provided the permittee has submitted a fee of \$2 per egg to be collected and has been issued one or more Alligator Egg Fee Assessment Records by the Commission that document the number of eggs for which payment was received. Such collections shall only be conducted under the direct supervision of said individual according to the provisions of the collection permit. The permittee must submit to the Commission a map or GPS coordinates of the locations of all alligator nests observed during the on-site survey within 15 days following the expiration date of the egg collection permit. The nest location map or GPS coordinates must be verified by an individual meeting the requirements for verifying nest surveys in paragraph (1)(c)(b) of this rule.

(f) Alligator eggs and/or hatchlings may be taken only at the times and under the conditions set forth in the collection permit. Hatchlings shall be tagged immediately upon capture with an alligator hatchling tag provided by the Commission, except that hatchlings captured from a boat shall be tagged no later than immediately upon return to shore and before leaving the property. An Alligator Egg Fee Assessment Record (FWC Form 1007AF, effective April 1, 1996, which is incorporated herein by reference and may be obtained from ~~at~~ the Commission's ~~Tallahassee office~~) must be completed and signed by the permittee to document all retained eggs on the day of collection and prior to transporting the eggs from the

property or to a licensed farm facility. A copy of such Alligator Egg Fee Assessment Record must remain with the eggs until the eggs are transferred to a licensed farm facility.

(g) through (i) No change.

(4) No change.

(5) All tags issued under this rule shall remain the sole property of the Commission until used as provided herein, and may be possessed only by the permittee, licensees he has authorized to take alligators, or his licensed agent(s) prior to such use. The permittee shall be strictly liable in ensuring that all unused tags remain in his possession, the possession of licensees he has authorized to take alligators, or the possession of his licensed agent(s), and that all unused tags are returned to the Commission's Tallahassee Office, 620 South Meridian Street, Tallahassee, FL 32300-1600, within 15 days following permit expiration.

Specific Authority Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const. Law Implemented Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const., 372.6672 FS. History—New 5-5-88, Amended 2-14-89, 4-11-90, 4-4-91, 4-15-92, 10-22-92, 4-29-93, 4-10-94, 3-30-95, 4-1-96, 9-15-96, 4-12-98, Formerly 39-25.032, Amended 5-28-00, 10-10-00, 5-13-02,_____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE: Mr. Nick Wiley, Director, Division of Hunting and Game Management

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Mr. Kenneth D. Haddad, Executive Director

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: September 21, 2005

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: November 23, 2005

FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION

Freshwater Fish and Wildlife

RULE CHAPTER TITLE: Rules Relating To Reptiles

RULE CHAPTER NO.: 68A-25

RULE TITLE: Regulations Governing Statewide Alligator

Trapping, Permitting, Taking and Sale

68A-25.042

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purposes of the proposed rule are to eliminate specific references regarding where forms are obtained and submitted; eliminate the limitation on the percentage of the population that can be harvested; provide for increased tag fees to participants already in possession of an alligator trapping license valid through the harvest season; eliminate provisions that limit the number of permits that can be issued per person and tags issued per permit; increase the harvest period that alligators may be taken from 5 weeks to 10 weeks; tie deadlines for submission of forms and tags to the expiration date of the harvest permit; and eliminate refunds of unused CITES tags. The effects will be to streamline and simplify the rule and provide staff the flexibility to implement

adaptive management strategies to achieve harvest objectives and remove impediments from achieving 100 percent issuance of harvest permits.

SUMMARY: The proposed rule would eliminate specific references regarding where forms are obtained and submitted; eliminate the limitation on the percentage of the population that can be harvested; provide for increased tag fees to participants possessing an alligator trapping license valid through the harvest season; eliminate provisions that limit the number of permits that can be issued per person and tags issued per permit; increase the harvest period that alligators may be taken from 5 weeks to 10 weeks; and tie deadlines for submission of forms and tags to the expiration date of the harvest permit; and eliminate refunds of unused CITES tags.

A STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST HAS NOT BEEN PREPARED REGARDING THESE PROPOSED RULES.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated regulatory costs, or to provide a proposal for lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: Article IV, Section 9, Florida Const.
LAW IMPLEMENTED: Article IV, Section 9, Florida Const.; 372.6672, 372.6673 FS.

THE FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION WILL CONDUCT A PUBLIC RULEMAKING HEARING ON THE PROPOSED RULES DURING THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE COMMISSION TO BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATES AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

TIME AND DATES: 8:30 a.m. – 5:00 p.m., each day, February 1-2, 2006

PLACE: Hilton University of Florida Conference Center, 1714 S.W. 34th Street, Gainesville, Florida 32607

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 calendar days before the workshop/meeting by contacting the ADA Coordinator, at (850)488-6411. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency by calling (850)488-9542.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: James V. Antista, General Counsel, Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission, 620 South Meridian Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1600

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

68A-25.042 Regulations Governing Statewide Alligator Trapping, Permitting, Taking and Sale.

No person shall take non-hatchling alligators from the wild except as provided herein and under other applicable rules of the Commission.

(1) Establishment of alligator management units and harvest quotas:

(a) No change.

(b) Annual harvest quotas for each management unit shall be established by the executive director, or his designee, and shall be based upon an evaluation of on-site habitat or population inventories for each management unit. The harvest quota for a management unit shall be based on the best estimate of the number of alligators that can be removed from the unit without long-term adverse impacts on population levels ~~and shall not exceed 15 percent of the projected population of alligators greater than 4 feet in length for that unit.~~

(2) Harvest permit issuance:

(a) Harvest permits may be reserved for specific harvest units and harvest periods on a first-come-first-served basis through the Commission's Total Licensing System beginning at the designated time and date 8:00 a.m., July 1 each year by ~~paying:~~

1. Paying for an alligator trapping license as required by Section 372.6673, F.S., and \$10 ~~20~~ for each ~~two~~ CITES tags, pursuant to Section 372.6674, F.S., issued with harvest permits; or

2. and paying for an alligator trapping license as required by Section 372.6673, F.S., or providing evidence of possession of an alligator trapping license valid through the last day of the designated harvest season and paying \$30 for each CITES tag, pursuant to Section 372.6674, F.S., issued with harvest permits ~~October 8 of the current year.~~

(b) Applicants for a harvest permit shall:

1. Be 18 years of age or older by August 15 ~~September 1~~ in the current application year.

2. No change.

~~3. Reserve only one permit.~~

(c) No change.

(d) ~~Two~~ CITES tags shall be issued with each harvest permit, except that ~~two~~ harvest tags bearing the letters "MER" shall also be issued with harvest permits for management units for which the best available scientific data indicates the average mercury concentrations in alligators therein exceeds the Federal limit for legal sale of the meat.

(e) No change.

(f) The number of harvest permits issued per person shall be determined by the executive director or his designee.

(3) Alligator trapping requirements:

(a) No change.

(b) Alligators may be taken from 1/2 hour before sunset to 1/2 hour after sunrise each day during the harvest period specified in the harvest permit. Harvest periods shall be from 1/2 hour before sunset on September 12 ~~October 1~~ through 1/2 hour after sunrise on November 1 ~~October 8~~, and from either 1/2 hour before sunset on August 15 ~~September 1~~ through 1/2

hour after sunrise on August 22 ~~September 8~~, or 1/2 hour before sunset on August 22 ~~September 8~~ through 1/2 hour after sunrise on August 29 ~~September 15~~, or 1/2 hour before sunset on August 29 ~~September 15~~ through 1/2 hour after sunrise on September 5 ~~22~~, or 1/2 hour before sunset on September 5 ~~22~~ through 1/2 hour after sunrise on September 12 ~~October 1~~, except as otherwise provided in the harvest permit.

(c) through (h) No change.

(i) An alligator harvest report form (FWC form 1001AT, effective April 30, 2000) provided by the Commission shall be completed by the permittee within 24 hours of taking each alligator and prior to the transfer of the carcass to another person. The permittee shall submit a legible copy of the alligator harvest report form to the Commissioner's ~~Tallahassee Office, 620 South Meridian Street, Tallahassee, FL 32399-1600~~ for receipt no later than 14 days after the expiration date of the harvest permit ~~October 22~~.

(j) No change.

(k) All unused CITES tags ~~shall be refundable and~~ shall be returned by the permittee to the Commission's ~~Tallahassee Office, 620 South Meridian Street, Tallahassee, FL 32399-1600~~, no later than 14 days after the expiration date of the harvest permit ~~after October 22~~. It shall be a violation of this section for any person to possess any unused CITES tag(s) issued pursuant to this section 14 days after the expiration date of the harvest permit ~~after October 22~~. Permits may be denied, pursuant to Rule 68A-5.004, F.A.C., to applicants who have previously failed to return unused tags and complete forms as specified herein.

(4) through (5) No change.

Specific Authority Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const. Law Implemented Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const., 372.6672, 372.6673 FS. History—New 5-5-88, Amended 2-14-89, 4-11-90, 4-14-92, 4-29-93, 7-1-94, 3-30-95, 4-1-96, 9-15-96, 4-12-98, Formerly 39-25.042, Amended 4-30-00, 5-13-02, 4-11-04, _____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE: Mr. Nick Wiley, Director, Division of Hunting and Game Management

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Mr. Kenneth D. Haddad, Executive Director

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: September 21, 2005

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: November 23, 2005

FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION

Freshwater Fish and Wildlife

RULE CHAPTER TITLE: RULE CHAPTER NO.:
Rules Relating To Reptiles 68A-25

RULE TITLE: RULE NO.:

Regulations Governing the Processing of Alligators and the Sale of Alligator Meat and Parts 68A-25.052

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose of the proposed rule is to eliminate outdated provisions and specific references regarding where forms are obtained and submitted. The effect will be to streamline and simplify the rule.

SUMMARY: The proposed rule would eliminate outdated provisions and specific references regarding where forms are obtained and submitted.

A STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST HAS NOT BEEN PREPARED REGARDING THESE PROPOSED RULES.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated regulatory costs, or to provide a proposal for lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: Article IV, Section 9, Florida Const. LAW IMPLEMENTED: Article IV, Section 9, Florida Const.; 372.6672, 372.6673 FS.

THE FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION WILL CONDUCT A PUBLIC RULEMAKING HEARING ON THE PROPOSED RULES DURING THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE COMMISSION TO BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATES AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

TIME AND DATES: 8:30 a.m. – 5:00 p.m., each day, February 1-2, 2006

PLACE: Hilton University of Florida Conference Center, 1714 S.W. 34th Street, Gainesville, Florida 32607

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 calendar days before the workshop/meeting by contacting the ADA Coordinator, at (850)488-6411. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency by calling (850)488-9542.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: James V. Antista, General Counsel, Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission, 620 South Meridian Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1600

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

68A-25.052 Regulations Governing the Processing of Alligators and the Sale of Alligator Meat and Parts.

(1) through (3) No change.

(4) Alligator processing facilities may be established and operated only under permit from the executive director and shall be licensed as required by Section 372.6673, F.S. The criteria for issuance of an alligator processing facility permit are as follows:

(a) Persons may indicate their intent to establish an alligator processing facility when submitting their alligator trapping, alligator farming, or alligator processing license application, or if already licensed under Section 372.6673, F.S., they may submit a written request for an alligator processing facility permit to the Commission's Bureau of Licensing and Permitting, Tallahassee Office, at least 30 days prior to the proposed date of operation. Such application or written request shall include a copy of the current food permit from the Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services for the proposed facility.

(b) No change.

(5) through (10) No change.

Specific Authority Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const. Law Implemented Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const., 372.6672, 372.6673 FS. History—New 5-5-88, Amended 2-14-89, 4-11-90, 4-1-96, 9-15-96, 6-1-97, 4-12-98, 4-15-99, Formerly 39-25.052, Amended 4-30-00, _____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE: Mr. Nick Wiley, Director, Division of Hunting and Game Management

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Mr. Kenneth D. Haddad, Executive Director

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: September 21, 2005

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: November 30, 2005

FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION

Freshwater Fish and Wildlife

RULE CHAPTER TITLE: Rules Relating to Endangered or Threatened Species

RULE CHAPTER NO.: 68A-27

RULE TITLE: Designation of Species of Special Concern; Prohibitions; Permits

RULE NO.: 68A-27.005

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose of this proposed rule change is to clarify the current prohibition against the take of a gopher tortoise burrow by providing characteristics that define and support the identification of a burrow in the field. The effect of the proposed rule change is to enable the agency to better manage gopher tortoise populations.

SUMMARY: The proposed rule change would clarify the current prohibition against the take of a gopher tortoise burrow by providing characteristics that define and support the identification of the burrow.

A STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST HAS NOT BEEN PREPARED REGARDING THESE PROPOSED RULES.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated regulatory costs, or to provide a proposal for lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: Article IV, Section 9, Florida Constitution.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: Article IV, Section 9, Florida Constitution.

THE FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION WILL CONDUCT A PUBLIC RULEMAKING HEARING ON THE PROPOSED RULES DURING THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE COMMISSION TO BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATES AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

TIME AND DATES: 8:30 a.m. – 5:00 p.m., each day, February 1-2, 2006

PLACE: Hilton University of Florida Conference Center, 1714 S.W. 34th St., Gainesville, Florida

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 calendar days before the workshop/meeting by contacting the ADA Coordinator, at (850)488-6411. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency by calling (850)488-9542.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: James V. Antista, General Counsel, Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission, 620 South Meridian Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1600

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

68A-27.005 Designation of Species of Special Concern; Prohibitions; Permits.

(1) The following species are hereby declared to be of special concern, and shall be afforded the protective provisions specified.

(a) No person shall take, possess, transport, or sell any species of special concern included in this paragraph or parts thereof or their nests or eggs except as authorized by Commission regulations or by permit from the executive director or by statute or regulation of any other state agency, permits being issued upon reasonable conclusion that the permitted activity will not be detrimental to the survival potential of the species.

(b) The following species were listed prior to January 1, 2001, and have been further categorized by the numbers in parentheses under the following criteria: (1) has a significant vulnerability to habitat modification, environmental alteration, human disturbance, or human exploitation which, in the foreseeable future, may result in its becoming a threatened species unless appropriate protective or management techniques are initiated or maintained; (2) may already meet certain criteria for designation as a threatened species but for which conclusive data are limited or lacking; (3) may occupy such an unusually vital or essential ecological niche that should it decline significantly in numbers or distribution other species would be adversely affected to a significant degree; (4) has not sufficiently recovered from past population depletion, and (5) occurs as a population either intentionally introduced or being experimentally managed to attain specific objectives, and the species of special concern prohibitions in Rule 68A-27.002, F.A.C., shall not apply to species so designated, provided that the intentional killing, attempting to kill, possession or sale of such species is prohibited.

1. through 16. No change.

17. Gopher tortoise (*Gopherus polyphemus*) (1, 2, 3). The definition of take set forth in subsection (3) of this rule shall apply to gopher tortoises.

18. through 49. No change.

(2) No change.

(3) No person shall take, attempt to take, pursue, hunt, harass, capture, possess, sell or transport any gopher tortoise (*Gopherus polyphemus*) or parts thereof or their eggs, or take or attempt to take gopher tortoise burrows, except as authorized by Commission permit. For the purpose of this definition of take, a gopher tortoise burrow is a hole in the ground, with a "half moon" or "half circle" shaped entrance, that is flat on the bottom and rounded on top, and approximately half as high as wide. The presence of one or more of the following characteristics support the burrow determination:

(a) Ground surrounding the burrow entrance shows evidence of gopher tortoise activity (including but not limited to: gopher tortoise; gopher tortoise eggs or egg shell fragments; impressions from the bottom shell of the tortoise; foot-prints or tracks left by tortoises; scat; obvious feeding trails radiating out and extending into surrounding vegetation);

(b) Sand mound from the burrow excavation apparent at the burrow entrance;

(c) Located in well-drained to moderately well-drained, sandy soils;

(d) Located in sandhill, scrub, coastal dunes, flatwoods, dry prairie, dry hammock communities, or any disturbed version of these plant communities (such as, but not limited to, pastures, old fields, yards, power line corridors, roadsides);

(e) Other burrows with the shape defined above, and with one or more of the characteristics described in paragraphs (a)-(d) above, located on the site or in proximity on adjacent property.

Specific Authority Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const. Law Implemented Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const. History—New 8-1-79, Amended 6-22-80, 6-21-82, 7-1-84, 7-1-85, Formerly 39-27.05, Amended 6-1-86, 5-10-87, 4-27-89, 10-22-92, 5-26-94, 6-23-99, Formerly 39-27.005, Amended 2-27-01, 5-1-01, 9-29-03,_____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE:
Mr. Tim Breault, Director, Division of Habitat and Species Conservation

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Mr. Kenneth D. Haddad, Executive Director

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: September 21, 2005

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: November 23, 2005

BE ADVISED THAT THESE PROPOSED RULES MAY BE FILED FOR ADOPTION AS SOON AS POSSIBLE FOLLOWING THE COMMISSION MEETING AT WHICH THEY ARE CONSIDERED IF THE RULES ARE NOT CHANGED. IF CHANGED, THE RULES MAY BE FILED AS SOON AS POSSIBLE AFTER PUBLICATION OF A NOTICE OF CHANGE IN THE FAW.

FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION

Marine Fisheries

RULE CHAPTER TITLE: Sharks and Rays
RULE CHAPTER NO.: 68B-44

RULE TITLE: Prohibited Species; Prohibition of Harvest, Landing, and Sale
RULE NO.: 68B-44.008

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose of this rule is to designate Atlantic Angel Shark, Bigeye Sixgill Shark, Bigeye Thresher Shark, Bignose Shark, Caribbean Reef Shark, Dusky Shark, Galapagos Shark, Longfin Mako Shark, Narrowtooth Shark, Night Shark, Sevengill Shark, Sixgill Shark, and Smalltail Shark as prohibited species, thus prohibiting the harvest, landing, possession, purchase, and sale of these species of sharks due to concerns about their vulnerability to depletion. The rule is also being updated by deleting reference to "protected species" status, a designation that has ceased to have significance. The effect of the proposed rule will be to reduce fishing mortality on these species in order to rebuild the spawning stock and/or prevent these resources from becoming endangered, and to make our regulations more consistent with existing federal regulations.

SUMMARY: The "protected species" status designation in subsection (1) of Rule 68B-44.008, F.A.C., has been deleted since this designation that has ceased to have significance. The list of species in this subsection will now be listed as

“prohibited species”. This list will also be expanded to include; Atlantic Angel Shark, Bigeye Sixgill Shark, Bigeye Thresher Shark, Bignose Shark, Caribbean Reef Shark, Dusky Shark, Galapagos Shark, Longfin Mako Shark, Narrowtooth Shark, Night Shark, Sevengill Shark, Sixgill Shark, and Smalltail Shark. The rule language from subsection (2) of Rule 68B-44.008, F.A.C. that stated that these species, or any part thereof, cannot be harvested, possessed, landed, purchased, sold, or exchanged is moved into subsection (1).

A STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST HAS NOT BEEN PREPARED REGARDING THESE PROPOSED RULES.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated regulatory costs, or to provide a proposal for lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: Article IV, Section 9, Florida Const. LAW IMPLEMENTED: Article IV, Section 9, Florida Const.

THE FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION WILL CONDUCT A PUBLIC RULEMAKING HEARING ON THE PROPOSED RULES DURING THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE COMMISSION TO BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATES AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

TIME AND DATES: 8:30 a.m.– 5:00 p.m., each day, February 1-2, 2006

PLACE: Hilton-University of Florida Conference Center, 1714 S.W. 34th Street, Gainesville, Florida 32607

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 calendar days before the workshop/meeting by contacting the ADA Coordinator, at (850)488-6411. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency by calling (850)488-9542.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: James V. Antista, General Counsel, Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission, 620 South Meridian Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1600, (850)487-1764

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

68B-44.008 ~~Prohibited Protected~~ Species: ~~Sawfishes, Basking Shark, Whale Shark, White Shark, Sand Tiger Shark, Bigeye Sand Tiger Shark, Spiny Dogfish, Manta Ray, and Spotted Eagle Ray~~; Prohibition of Harvest, Landing, and Sale.

(1) ~~No person shall harvest, possess, land, purchase, sell, or exchange any~~ Pursuant to Section 370.027(2)(f), Florida Statutes, the smalltooth sawfish (*Pristis pectinata*), largetooth sawfish (*Pristis pristis*), basking shark (*Cetorhinus maximus*), whale shark (*Rhincodon typus*), white shark (*Carcharodon carcharias*), sand tiger shark (~~*Odontaspis*~~ *Carcharias taurus*),

bigeye sand tiger (*Odontaspis noronhai*), Atlantic angel shark (*Squatina dumeril*), bigeye sixgill shark (*Hexanchus nakamurai*), bigeye thresher shark (*Alopias superciliosus*), bignose shark (*Carcharhinus altimus*), Caribbean reef shark (*Carcharhinus perezii*), dusky shark (*Carcharhinus obscurus*), Galapagos shark (*Carcharhinus galapagensis*), longfin mako shark (*Isurus paucus*), narrowtooth shark (*Carcharhinus brachyurus*), night shark (*Carcharhinus signatus*), sevengill shark (*Heptranchias perlo*), sixgill shark (*Hexanchus griseus*), and smalltail shark (*Carcharhinus porosus*), spiny dogfish (*Squalus acanthias*), manta ray (species of the genus *Manta* and *Mobula*), ~~or and~~ spotted eagle ray (*Aetobatus narinari*), ~~or any part of any of these species are hereby declared and designated protected species. The purposes of this designation are to increase public awareness of the need for extensive conservation action in order to prevent these resources from becoming endangered and to encourage voluntary conservation practices:~~

(2) ~~No person shall harvest, possess, land, purchase, sell, or exchange any smalltooth sawfish, largetooth sawfish, basking shark, whale shark, white shark, sand tiger shark, bigeye sand tiger shark, spiny dogfish, manta ray, or spotted eagle ray, or any part of any of these species.~~

Specific Authority Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const. Law Implemented Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const. History–New 4-8-92, Amended 1-1-98, Formerly 46-44.008, Amended 7-1-03, _____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE: Mr. Mark Robson

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Mr. Kenneth D. Haddad, Executive Director

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: December 1, 2005

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: December 23, 2005

BE ADVISED THAT THESE PROPOSED RULES MAY BE FILED FOR ADOPTION AS SOON AS POSSIBLE FOLLOWING THE COMMISSION MEETING AT WHICH THEY ARE CONSIDERED IF THE RULES ARE NOT CHANGED. IF CHANGED, THE RULES MAY BE FILED AS SOON AS POSSIBLE AFTER PUBLICATION OF A NOTICE OF CHANGE IN THE FAW.

FINANCIAL SERVICES COMMISSION

Office of Insurance Regulation

RULE TITLE: _____ RULE NO.:

Procedures for Withdrawal, Surrender of Certificate of Authority, or Discontinuance of Writing Insurance in this State Pursuant to Section 624.430, Florida Statutes 690-141.020

PURPOSE, EFFECT, AND SUMMARY: To properly implement and interpret Section 624.430, F.S., by not requiring the Office to issue an order to accept surrender, it can be

deemed approved via operation of the statute or accepted by order depending on the circumstances. The proposed rule would assist in the administration of the statutes by the Office.
 SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COSTS: None.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated regulatory costs, or to provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative, must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 624.308(1), 624.6012 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 624.307(1), 624.430, 624.6011, 624.6012 FS.

IF REQUESTED IN WRITING WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATE AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW (IF NOT REQUESTED, THIS HEARING WILL NOT BE HELD):

TIME AND DATE: 9:30 a.m., January 24, 2006

PLACE: Room 116, Larson Building, 200 East Gaines Street, Tallahassee, Florida

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Bob Norris, Life and Health Financial Oversight, Office of Insurance Regulation, E-mail bob.norris@fldfs.com.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this program, please advise the Office at least 5 calendar days before the program by contacting the person listed above.

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

690-141.020 Procedures for Withdrawal, Surrender of Certificate of Authority, or Discontinuance of Writing Insurance in this State Pursuant to Section 624.430, Florida Statutes.

(1) through (7) No change.

~~(8) Certificate of Authority Surrender Effected by Office Order. No surrender or attempted surrender of a certificate of authority is effective until accepted by order of the office.~~

(9) through (10) renumbered (8) through (9) No change.

Specific Authority 624.308(1), 624.6012 FS. Law Implemented 624.307(1), 624.430, 624.6011, 624.6012 FS. History—New 1-8-96, Amended 5-26-96, Formerly 4-141.020, Amended _____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE: Bob Norris, Life and Health Financial Oversight, Office of Insurance Regulation

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Rich Robleto, Deputy Commissioner, Office of Insurance Regulation

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: December 15, 2005

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: October 7, 2005

Section III
Notices of Changes, Corrections and Withdrawals

DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE AND CONSUMER SERVICES

Division of Standards

RULE NO.: 5F-2.001 RULE TITLE: Standards

NOTICE OF CORRECTION

Notice is hereby given that the ^ε symbol was inadvertently omitted from the following paragraphs of the above proposed rule, which was published in Vol. 31, No. 50, December 16, 2005 Florida Administrative Weekly.

5F-2.001 Standards.

(1)(a) Standards. All gasoline shall conform to the chemical and physical standards for gasoline as set forth in ASTM International ~~the American Society for Testing and Materials~~ designation D 4814-04b^{ε1} ~~D 4814-04b~~, “Standard Specification for Automotive Spark-Ignition Engine Fuel.”

(b) Analysis. For purposes of inspection and testing, laboratory analyses shall be conducted using the methods recognized by ASTM International ~~the American Society for Testing and Materials~~ designation D 4814-04b^{ε1} ~~D 4814-04b~~, “Standard Specification for Automotive Spark-Ignition Engine Fuel.”

(3)(a) Standards. All diesel fuel oils No. 1-D and No. 2-D shall conform to the chemical and physical standards for diesel fuel oils No. 1-D and No. 2-D as set forth in ASTM International ~~the American Society for Testing and Materials~~ designation D 975-04c^{ε1} ~~D 975-03~~, “Standard Specification for Diesel Fuel Oils.”

(b) Analysis. For purposes of inspection and testing, laboratory analyses shall be conducted using the methods recognized by ASTM International ~~the American Society for Testing and Materials~~ designation D 975-04c^{ε1} ~~D 975-03~~, “Standard Specification for Diesel Fuel Oils.”

(5)(e)2.a. Standards. Biodiesel blends shall meet the specifications set forth by ASTM International designation D 975-04c^{ε1}. “Standard Specification for Diesel Fuel Oils.”

b. Analysis. For purposes of inspection and testing, laboratory analyses shall be conducted using the methods recognized by the ASTM International designation D 975-04c^{ε1}. “Standard Specification for Diesel Fuel Oils.”

(7)(a) ~~ASTM International American Society for Testing and Materials D 4814-04b^{e1} D 4814-04b~~, “Standard Specification for Automotive Spark-Ignition Engine Fuel”;

(b) ~~ASTM International American Society for Testing and Materials D 3699-04 D 3699-03~~, “Standard Specification for Kerosine”;

(c) ~~ASTM International American Society for Testing and Materials D 975-04c^{e1} D 975-03~~, “Standard Specification for Diesel Fuel Oils”;

BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE INTERNAL IMPROVEMENT TRUST FUND

Pursuant to Chapter 2003-145, Laws of Florida, all notices for the Board of Trustees of the Internal Improvement Trust Fund are published on the Internet at the Department of Environmental Protection’s home page at <http://www.dep.state.fl.us/> under the link or button titled “Official Notices.”

DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS

RULE NO.: 33-602.112
 RULE TITLE: Inmate Death Notification Process

NOTICE OF CHANGE

Notice is hereby given that the following changes have been made to the proposed rule in accordance with subparagraph 120.54(3)(d)1., F.S., published in Vol. 31, No. 46, (November 18, 2005), issue of the Florida Administrative Weekly:

33-602.112 Inmate Death Notification Process.

- (1) No change.
- (2) Custody and Disposition of the Body.
- (a) through (b) No change.

(c) The body may be claimed by any relative or friend of the deceased or by a representative of a fraternal organization of which the deceased was a member or by the Anatomical Board at the University of Florida Health Science Center, provided that the Anatomical Board may not claim the body of any military dischargee described in Section 406.53, F.S. If competing claims to the body are received, they shall be honored in the following order:

- 1. through 3. No change.
- 4. Other relatives in order of relationship, in accordance with Section 732.103, F.S.
- 5. through 8. No change.
- (3) through (4) No change.

Specific Authority 944.09 FS. Law Implemented 406.50, 406.53, 54 944.09 FS., ~~Article 37 of the Vienna Convention on Consulate Relations~~. History—New 10-8-76, Amended 9-24-81, Formerly 33-3.09, Amended 6-2-88, 2-18-90, 2-12-97, Formerly 33-3.009, 33-401.301, Amended 3-25-02, 9-9-03,_____.

WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICTS

South Florida Water Management District

RULE NO.: 40E-1.659
 RULE TITLE: Forms and Instructions

NOTICE OF CHANGE

In accordance with subparagraph 120.54(3)(d)1., F.S., notice is hereby given that the following authority has been added to the proposed rules which were published in the Florida Administrative Weekly, Vol. 31, No. 43, on October 28, 2005, pursuant to comments received from the Joint Administrative Procedures Committee:

40E-1.659 Forms and Instructions.

- (1) through (2) No change.

Specific Authority 120.53, 218.075, 373.044, 373.113, 373.4136, 373.416, 695.03 FS. Law Implemented 120.53, 218.075, 373.113, 373.4135, 373.4136, 373.416 FS. History—New 9-3-81, Amended 12-1-82, 3-9-83, Formerly 16K-1.90, Amended 7-26-87, 11-21-89, 1-4-93, Formerly 40E-1.901, Amended 5-11-93, 4-20-94, 10-3-95, 6-26-02, 8-14-02, 8-31-03, 9-16-03, 9-20,04,_____.

WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICTS

South Florida Water Management District

RULE NO.: 40E-4.091
 RULE TITLE: Publications, Rules and Interagency Agreements Incorporated By Reference

NOTICE OF CHANGE

In accordance with subparagraph 120.54(3)(d)1., F.S., notice is hereby given that the following changes have been made to the Basis of Review for Environmental Resource Permitting Within The South Florida Water Management District, which were published in the Florida Administrative Weekly, Vol. 31, No. 43, on October 28, 2005, pursuant to comments received from the Joint Administrative Procedures Committee:

Section 9.2.4

- (a) through (f) No change.
- (g) A Notice of Environmental Resource Permit or Surface Water Management Permit Form No. 1189 shall be ~~attached to the rules and regulations as an exhibit or~~ recorded in the public records of the County(s) where the property is located. The Registered Agent for the Association shall maintain copies of all permitting actions for the benefit of the association.

- (h) No change.

WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICTS

South Florida Water Management District

RULE NO.: 40E-4.101
 RULE TITLE: Content of Permit Applications

NOTICE OF CHANGE

In accordance with subparagraph 120.54(3)(d)1., F.S., notice is hereby given that the following authority has been added to the proposed rules which were published in the Florida Administrative Weekly, Vol. 31, No. 43, on October 28, 2005, pursuant to comments received from the Joint Administrative Procedures Committee:

40E-4.101 Content of Permit Applications.

- (1) through (4) No change.

Specific Authority 373.016, 373.044, 373.113, 373.171, 373.416 FS. Law Implemented 373.016, 373.117, 373.413, 373.416, 373.426, FS. History--New 9-3-81, Amended 1-31-82, 12-1-82, Formerly 16K-4.03(2), 16K-4.07(2), 16K-4.09(2), Amended 7-1-86, 11-21-89, 4-20-94, 10-3-95, 5-28-00, 4-14-03, 8-14-03, _____.

AGENCY FOR HEALTH CARE ADMINISTRATION

Medicaid

RULE NO.: 59G-4.255
 RULE TITLE: Prescribed Drug Coverage Denials
 NOTICE OF CHANGE

Notice is hereby given that the following changes have been made to the proposed rule in accordance with subparagraph 120.54(3)(d)1., F.S., published in Vol. 31, No. 26, July 1, 2005, issue of the Florida Administrative Weekly. These changes are in response to written comments received prior to the public hearing and from comments received from the Joint Administrative Procedures Committee.

The rule incorporates by reference two pamphlets: Important Information about your Florida Medicaid Prescription Drug Benefits, 10/03/05, and Información Importante A cerca de sus beneficios de medicamentos con receta del Medicaid de la Florida, 11/01/05. The following revisions were made to the pamphlets: The date of the pamphlet in English was changed to 10/03/05, and date of the pamphlet in Spanish was changed to 11/01/05. Under Frequently Asked Questions and Answers, we added clarification that first trying drugs that are on the PDL is “called step therapy”; we added information that “if your pharmacist is unable to assist you, contact your Ombudsman at the number you see below to see if you qualify for a three (3) day supply of your current medication”; and we added clarification that verification that the physician tried to get prior authorization “is available either through your physician’s office or the Ombudsman office.” On the Fair Hearing Request Form, in paragraph (2), we replaced “refill” with “for coverage of a medication that I am currently taking”; and in paragraph (3), we reworded, “Evidence that my doctor tried to get prior authorization or that the drug does not required prior authorization is attached,” with “I verified my physician’s request for prior authorization with (check one) ___my physician or ___the Ombudman’s office.”

The rule incorporates by reference the two signs: Important Notice to Medicaid Recipients and Aviso Importante a Recipientes de Medicaid. The date 5/14/2003 was added to the signs.

The rule text was changed as follows:

59G-4.255 Prescription Drug Coverage Denials.

(1) Medicaid-participating pharmacies shall provide the pamphlet, Important Information about your Florida Medicaid Prescription Drug Benefits, 10/03/05, or Información Importante A cerca de sus beneficios de medicamentos con receta del Medicaid de la Florida, 11/01/05, which are incorporated by reference, to Medicaid recipients whose prescription drug claims are denied by Medicaid if the

pharmacy cannot resolve the denial during that day’s pharmacy visit. The pharmacy must write on the pamphlet the date, the recipient’s name, the drug name, and the reason for the denial or write on the pamphlet the date and recipient’s name and attach a printout of the computer screen stating the drug name and the reason for the denial. The pamphlets are available from the Agency for Health Care Administration’s website at http://ahca.myflorida.com/Medicaid/Prescribed_Drug/multi_source.shtml.

(2) Medicaid-participating pharmacies shall post two signs, Important Notice to Medicaid Recipients and Aviso Importante a Recipientes de Medicaid, 5/14/2003, which are incorporated by reference, in a conspicuous location that is visible to recipients. The signs inform recipients of a toll-free number that can be called if the prescription is denied and the pharmacy failed to provide the denial information and an Important Information About Your Florida Medicaid Prescription Drug Benefits or Información Importante A cerca de sus beneficios de medicamentos con receta del Medicaid de la Florida pamphlet to the recipient. The signs are available from the Agency for Health Care Administration’s website at http://ahca.myflorida.com/Medicaid/Prescribed_Drug/multi_source.shtml.

Specific Authority 409.902, 409.919 FS. Law Implemented 409.902, 409.906, 409.919 FS. History--New _____.

DEPARTMENT OF MANAGEMENT SERVICES

Division of Purchasing

RULE NOS.: 60E-1.001, 60E-1.003, 60E-1.004, 60E-1.005
 RULE TITLES: Definitions, Central, Non-Profit Agency Workshops, Procurement Requirements and Procedures

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

Notice is hereby given that a public hearing on the above referenced proposed rules, as noticed in the Florida Administrative Weekly, Vol. 31, No. 49, December 9, 2005, will be held at 9:00 a.m. on Tuesday, January 17, 2006, at the Department of Management Services, 4050 Esplanade Way, Room 101, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0950.

DEPARTMENT OF MANAGEMENT SERVICES

Personnel Management System

RULE CHAPTER NO.: 60L-39
 RULE CHAPTER TITLE: Florida State Employees’ Charitable Campaign
 RULE NO.: 60L-39.005
 RULE TITLE: Application Procedures

NOTICE OF CHANGE

Notice is hereby given that the following amendments have been made to the proposed rules in accordance in subparagraph 120.54(3)(d)1., F.S., published in Vol. 31, No. 47, of the November 23, 2005, issue of the Florida Administrative Weekly.

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

60L-39.005 Application Procedures.

(1) Annual applications for participation in the FSECC (Form DMS-ADM-100, Application for Participation in the Florida State Employees' Charitable Campaign, effective _____, and Form DMS-ADM-101, Renewing Organization Application for Participation in the Florida State Employees' Charitable Campaign, effective _____, which is hereby incorporated by reference) shall be submitted as set forth in rule subsection 60L-39.005(2), F.A.C., to the Steering Committee Chair at the following address:

Florida State Employees' Charitable Campaign
 Department of Management Services
 4050 Esplanade Way, Suite ~~215280~~
 Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0950

Applications must be postmarked by April 1 of each year for a charitable organization to be considered eligible for that year's Campaign. A federated fundraising organization, as defined in subsection 496.404(10), F.S., shall submit applications on behalf of its members. Form DMS-ADM-100 and Form DMS-ADM-101 can be obtained by writing to:

Florida State Employees' Charitable Campaign
 Department of Management Services
 4050 Esplanade Way, Suite ~~215280~~
 Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0950

(2) Applicants that did not participate in the FSECC during the previous year and all independent/unaffiliated organizations shall submit a complete application with documentation verifying compliance with eligibility outlined in Section 110.181(1), F.S., and Rule 60L-39.004, F.A.C. Form DMS-ADM-100, incorporated by reference at subsection 60L-39.005(1), F.A.C. All other applicants shall submit a complete Form DMS-ADM-101, incorporated by reference at subsection 60L-39.005(1), F.A.C.

(3) The Steering Committee shall request additional documentation or information from an applicant if necessary for purposes of clarifying eligibility. Requested documents or information must be supplied within five working days of the receipt of the Committee's request.

(4) Upon a showing of due diligence and excusable neglect by the applicant, the Steering Committee shall accept documentation filed after the April 1 filing deadline, so long as any appeal regarding the application can be concluded by June 30 to allow timely publication of authorized participating organizations in the FSECC brochures.

Specific Authority 110.181(3) FS. Law Implemented 110.181 FS. History--New 1-1-02, Amended 3-5-04, 1-9-05, _____.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULES IS: John Kuczanski, Chairman, Florida State Employees' Charitable Campaign, Department of Management Services, 4050 Esplanade Way, Suite 215, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0950, (850)921-4681

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION

Construction Industry Licensing Board

RULE NO.: 61G4-16.003
 RULE TITLE: Practical Examination for Swimming Pool Specialty Contractors

NOTICE OF CHANGE

Notice is hereby given that the following changes have been made to the proposed rule in accordance with subparagraph 120.54(3)(d)1., F.S., published in Vol. 31, No. 40, of the October 7, 2005, issue of the Florida Administrative Weekly. The changes are in response to written comments submitted by the staff of the Joint Administrative Procedures Committee. The changes are as follows:

1. The title of Rule 61G4-16.003, F.A.C. shall read: "Practical Examination for Swimming Pool Specialty Contractors"
2. The last sentence of subsection (2)(d) shall read "These arrangements include all appropriate equipment and permissions for the presence of the practical examiner."
3. The last sentence of subsection (2)(e) shall read: "These arrangements include payment of the fee to the proctor."
4. Subsection (3)(a) shall read: "The practical examiner must register with the department by completing a prescribed form and paying a fee of \$50 biannually."
5. The second sentence of (3)(b) is omitted.
6. The first sentence of (3)(h) shall read: "The practical examiner must agree to notify the department, by written or electronic transmission to the Department's bureau of Education and Testing of the pending administration of any practical examination not less than 24 hours prior to the examination."
7. Subsection (3)(i) shall read: "The practical examiner must agree to notify the department by written or electronic transmission to the Department's bureau of Education and Testing, of the results of any administration of any practical examination not more than 48 hours after the practical examination was completed."
8. Subsection (4)(a)1. shall read: "15% Reading, understanding and interpreting scaled pool construction plans and surveys."
9. Subsection (4)(a)2. shall read: "5% Understanding and complying with job-site safety requirements."

10. Subsection (4)(a)3. shall read: “5% Handling and properly disposing of hazardous materials.”

11. Subsection (4)(a)4. shall read: “5% Recognizing the tools required to do the job and exhibit the ability to properly use those tools.”

12. The last sentence of section (12) is changed to read: “The applicant is required to repay the fees provided in paragraph (3)(e) of this rule.”

In addition, the Specific Authority shall read: 489.108, 255.217(1), 489.133(6), F.S.; and the Law Implemented shall read: 455.217(1), 489.113(6), 289.115, and 489.109, F.S.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Tim Vaccarro, Executive Director, Construction Industry Licensing Board, 1940 North Monroe Street Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0750.

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION

Board of Landscape Architecture

RULE NO.: 61G10-11.011
 RULE TITLE: Electronic Transmission of Plans, Specifications, Reports, and Seals

NOTICE OF CHANGE

Notice is hereby given that the following change has been made to the proposed rule in accordance with subparagraph 120.54(3)(d)1., F.S., published in Vol. 31, No. 44, of the November 7, 2005, issue of the Florida Administrative Weekly. The change is in response to written comments submitted by the staff of the Joint Administrative Procedures Committee. The change is as follows:

1. Subsection (1) shall read: “Landscape architecture work, which must be sealed under provisions of Chapter 481, F.S., to be stored or transmitted in electronic format, shall be signed, dated, and sealed by the Landscape Architect.”

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Juanita Chastain, Executive Director, Board of Landscape Architecture, 1940 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0750

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Pursuant to Chapter 2003-145, Laws of Florida, all notices for the Department of Environmental Protection are published on the Internet at the Department of Environmental Protection’s home page at <http://www.dep.state.fl.us/> under the link or button titled “Official Notices.”

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

Division of Medical Quality Assurance Boards

RULE NO.: 64B-3.001
 RULE TITLE: Definitions

NOTICE OF WITHDRAWAL

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the above-referenced rule, as noticed in Vol 31, No. 44, of the November 4, 2005, issue of the Florida Administrative Weekly, has been withdrawn. The person to be contacted regarding the rule is: Donna Erlich, Assistant General Counsel, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #A-02, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1703.

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

Board of Osteopathic Medicine

RULE NO.: 64B15-13.001
 RULE TITLE: Continuing Education for Biennial Renewal

NOTICE OF CHANGE

Notice is hereby given that the following changes have been made to the proposed rule in accordance with subparagraph 120.54(3)(d)1., F.S., published in Vol. 31, No. 35 of the September 2, 2005, issue of the Florida Administrative Weekly. The change is in response to written comments submitted by the staff of the Joint Administrative Procedures Committee. The Board, at its meeting held on November 19, 2005, voted to change the introductory language in subsection (3)(d). When changed, the introductory language shall read as follows:

“(d) The one hour of Risk Management may be fulfilled by attending at least three (3) hours of disciplinary matters at a regular meeting of the Board of Osteopathic Medicine in compliance with the following:”

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Pamela King, Executive Director, Board of Osteopathic Medicine, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C06, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3256.

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

Office of Public Health Research

RULE NO.: 64H-2.001
 RULE TITLE: Institutional Review Board

NOTICE OF WITHDRAWAL

Notice is hereby given that the above rule, as noticed in Vol. 31, No. 21, (May 27, 2005), Florida Administrative Weekly has been withdrawn.

**Section IV
 Emergency Rules**

BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE INTERNAL IMPROVEMENT TRUST FUND

Pursuant to Chapter 2003-145, Laws of Florida, all notices for the Board of Trustees of the Internal Improvement Trust Fund are published on the Internet at the Department of Environmental Protection’s home page at <http://www.dep.state.fl.us/> under the link or button titled “Official Notices.”

DEPARTMENT OF THE LOTTERY

RULE TITLE: Instant Game Number 635, BIG BINGO
 RULE NO.: 53ER05-96

SUMMARY OF THE RULE: This emergency rule describes Instant Game Number 635, "BIG BINGO," for which the Department of the Lottery will start selling tickets on a date to be determined by the Secretary of the Department. The rule sets forth the specifics of the game; determination of prizewinners; estimated odds of winning, value and number of prizes in the game.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE EMERGENCY RULE IS: Faith L. Schneider, Legal Analyst, Department of the Lottery, 250 Marriott Drive, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-4011

THE FULL TEXT OF THE EMERGENCY RULE IS:

53ER05-96 Instant Game Number 635, BIG BINGO.

(1) Name of Game. Instant Game Number 635, "BIG BINGO."

(2) Price. BIG BINGO lottery tickets sell for \$5.00 per ticket.

(3) BIG BINGO lottery tickets shall have a series of numbers in machine readable code (or bar code) on the back of the ticket, along with a validation number under the latex area on the ticket. To be a valid winning BIG BINGO lottery ticket, the ticket must meet the applicable requirements of Rule 53ER05-73, F.A.C.

(4) The "CALLER'S CARD" play symbols are as follows:

B B B B B B B B B B B B B B
 01 02 03 04 05 06 07 08 09 10 11 12 13 14 15
 I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I
 N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N
 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30
 G G G G G G G G G G G G G G G G
 31 32 33 34 35 36 37 38 39 40 41 42 43 44 45
 O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O
 46 47 48 49 50 51 52 53 54 55 56 57 58 59 60
 61 62 63 64 65 66 67 68 69 70 71 72 73 74 75

BINGO

(5) The "BIG BINGO CARD" play symbols are as follows:

01 02 03 04 05 06 07 08 09 10 11 12 13 14 15
 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30
 31 32 33 34 35 36 37 38 39 40 41 42 43 44 45
 46 47 48 49 50 51 52 53 54 55 56 57 58 59 60
 61 62 63 64 65 66 67 68 69 70 71 72 73 74 75

(6) The prize symbols and prize symbol captions are as follows:

\$1.00 ONE THY FIV \$250 THOHUNFTY	\$2.00 THO \$50.00 FIFTY \$500 FIV HUN	\$4.00 FOUR \$75.00 SVY FIV \$1,000 ONE THO	\$5.00 FIVE \$100 ONE HUN \$2,500 THY FIV HUN	\$10.00 TEN \$150 ONEHUNFTY \$5,000 FIVE THO	\$15.00 FIFTEEN \$200 THO HUN \$10,000 TEN THO	\$75,000 SVY FIV THO
--	---	--	--	---	---	-------------------------

(7) The legends are as follows:

CALLER'S CARD PRIZE

(8) Determination of Prizewinners.

(a) A ticket whose "Big Bingo Card" numbers match the "Caller's Card" numbers so as to form a complete horizontal line of five numbers shall entitle the claimant to the corresponding prize shown for that row. A ticket having a "BINGO" symbol in the "CALLER'S CARD" play area shall entitle the claimant to a prize of \$50.

(b) The prizes are: \$1.00, \$2.00, \$4.00, \$5.00, \$10.00, \$15.00, \$25.00, \$50.00, \$75.00, \$100, \$150, \$200, \$250, \$500, \$1,000, \$2,500, \$5,000, \$10,000 and \$75,000.

(9) The estimated odds of winning, value, and number of prizes in Instant Game Number 635 are as follows:

GAME PLAY	WIN	ODDS OF 1 IN	NUMBER OF WINNERS IN 34 POOLS OF 120.00 TICKETS PER POOL
\$1 x 5	\$5	30.00	136,000
(\$1 x 3) + \$2	\$5	30.00	136,000
\$1 + (\$2 x 2)	\$5	30.00	136,000
\$5	\$5	30.00	136,000
\$2 x 5	\$10	60.00	68,000
\$2 + (\$4 x 2)	\$10	60.00	68,000
(\$2 x 3) + \$4	\$10	60.00	68,000
\$1 + (\$2 x 2) + \$5	\$10	120.00	34,000
\$10	\$10	120.00	34,000
\$5 x 3	\$15	60.00	68,000
\$15	\$15	60.00	68,000

\$5 x 5	\$25	300.00	13.600
(\$5 x 2) + \$15	\$25	400.00	10.200
\$10 + \$15	\$25	300.00	13.600
(\$5 x 3) + \$10	\$25	300.00	13.600
\$5 + (\$10 x 2)	\$25	400.00	10.200
\$25	\$25	600.00	6.800
\$50	\$50	120.00	34.000
\$5 + (\$10 x 2) + \$50 (BINGO)	\$75	12,000.00	340
\$25 + \$50 (BINGO)	\$75	12,000.00	340
\$10 + \$15 + \$50 (BINGO)	\$75	2,000.00	2,040
(\$5 x 3) + \$10 + \$50 (BINGO)	\$75	2,000.00	2,040
\$75	\$75	12,000.00	340
(\$25 x 2) + \$50 (BINGO)	\$100	300.00	13.600
(\$25 x 4)	\$100	3,000.00	1.360
\$50 + \$50 (BINGO)	\$100	631.58	6.460
\$100	\$100	3,000.00	1.360
(\$100 x 3) + \$150 + \$50 (BINGO)	\$500	120,000.00	34
(\$100 x 2) + (\$150 x 2)	\$500	120,000.00	34
\$500	\$500	120,000.00	34
\$250 x 4	\$1,000	340,000.00	12
\$200 x 5	\$1,000	340,000.00	12
(\$250 x 2) + \$500	\$1,000	156,923.08	26
\$500 x 2	\$1,000	340,000.00	12
\$1,000	\$1,000	340,000.00	12
\$2,500 x 4	\$10,000	2,040,000.00	2
(\$2,500 x 2) + \$5,000	\$10,000	2,040,000.00	2
\$10,000	\$10,000	2,040,000.00	2
\$75,000	\$75,000	2,040,000.00	2

(10) The estimated overall odds of winning some prize in Instant Game Number 635 are 1 in 3.77. Prizes, including the top prizes, are subject to availability at the time of ticket purchase. Prizes may be unavailable due to prior sale or other causes occurring in the normal course of business including, but not limited to, ticket damage, defect, theft, or loss.

(11) For reorders of Instant Game Number 635, the estimated odds of winning, value, and number of prizes shall be proportionate to the number of tickets reordered.

(12) By purchasing a BIG BINGO lottery ticket the player agrees to comply with and abide by all prize payment rules of the Florida Lottery.

(13) Payment of prizes for BIG BINGO lottery tickets shall be made in accordance with rules of the Florida Lottery governing payment of prizes.

A copy of the current rule can be obtained from the Florida Lottery, Office of the General Counsel, 250 Marriott Drive, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-4011.

Specific Authority 24.105(9)(a), (b), (c), 24.109(1), 24.115(1) FS. Law Implemented 24.105(9)(a), (b), (c), 24.115(1) FS. History—New 12-20-05.

THIS EMERGENCY RULE TAKES EFFECT IMMEDIATELY UPON BEING FILED WITH THE DEPARTMENT OF STATE.

EFFECTIVE DATE: December 20, 2005

DEPARTMENT OF THE LOTTERY

RULE TITLE: Instant Game Number 628, CRAZY CASH
 RULE NO.: 53ER05-97

SUMMARY OF THE RULE: This emergency rule describes Instant Game Number 628, "CRAZY CASH," for which the Department of the Lottery will start selling tickets on a date to be determined by the Secretary of the Department. The rule sets forth the specifics of the game; determination of prizewinners; estimated odds of winning, value and number of prizes in the game.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE EMERGENCY RULE IS: Faith L. Schneider, Legal Analyst, Department of the Lottery, 250 Marriott Drive, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-4011

THE FULL TEXT OF THE EMERGENCY RULE IS:

53ER05-97 Instant Game Number 628, CRAZY CASH.

(1) Name of Game. Instant Game Number 628, "CRAZY CASH."

(2) Price. CRAZY CASH lottery tickets sell for \$1.00 per ticket.

(3) CRAZY CASH lottery tickets shall have a series of numbers in machine readable code (or bar code) on the back of the ticket, along with a validation number under the latex area on the ticket. To be a valid winning CRAZY CASH lottery ticket, the ticket must meet the applicable requirements of Rule 53ER05-73, F.A.C.

(4) The play symbols and play symbol captions are as follows:

TICKET	\$1.00	\$2.00	\$4.00	\$5.00	\$10.00
TICKET	ONE	TWO	FOUR	FIVE	TEN
\$15.00	\$25.00	\$50.00	\$100	\$500	\$2,000
FIFTEEN	THY FIV	FIFTY	ONE HUN	FIVE HUN	TWO THO

(5) Determination of Prizewinners.

(a) A ticket having three like amounts in the play area shall entitle the claimant to a prize of that amount. The prize amounts are: \$1.00, \$2.00, \$4.00, \$5.00, \$10.00, \$15.00, \$25.00, \$50.00, \$100, \$500 and \$2,000.

(b) A ticket having three "TICKET" symbols in the play area shall entitle the claimant to a \$1.00 instant ticket, except as follows. A person who submits by mail a CRAZY CASH lottery ticket that entitles the claimant to a prize of a \$1.00 ticket and whose mailing address is outside the state of Florida will receive a check for \$1.00 in lieu of an actual ticket.

(6) The estimated odds of winning, value, and number of prizes in Instant Game Number 628 are as follows:

Section V
Petitions and Dispositions Regarding Rule
Variance or Waiver

<u>GAME PLAY</u>	<u>WIN</u>	<u>ESTIMATED</u> <u>ODDS OF</u>	<u>NUMBER OF</u> <u>WINNERS IN</u> <u>84 POOLS OF</u> <u>180.00 TICKETS</u> <u>PER POOL</u>
<u>TICKET</u>	<u>\$1 TICKET</u>	<u>1 IN</u>	<u>PER POOL</u>
\$1	\$1	10.00	1,512,000
\$2	\$2	15.00	1,008,000
\$4	\$4	25.00	604,800
\$5	\$5	150.00	100,800
\$10	\$10	50.00	302,400
\$15	\$15	150.00	100,800
\$25	\$25	300.00	50,400
\$50	\$50	300.00	50,400
\$100	\$100	1,200.00	12,600
\$500	\$500	22,500.00	672
\$2,000	\$2,000	420,000.00	36
		1,260,000.00	12

BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE INTERNAL IMPROVEMENT TRUST FUND

Pursuant to Chapter 2003-145, Laws of Florida, all notices for the Board of Trustees of the Internal Improvement Trust Fund are published on the Internet at the Department of Environmental Protection’s home page at <http://www.dep.state.fl.us/> under the link or button titled “Official Notices.”

WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICTS

The St. Johns River Water Management District (District) announces its intent to grant a variance from the provisions of paragraph 40C-4.302(1)(c), F.A.C., and the associated portions of the Applicant’s Handbook: Management and Storage of Surface Waters (February 1, 2005), including Sections 10.1.1(c), 12.1.1(d), and 12.2.5(a) and (c), to Ponce Associates, LLC, for work related to a proposed residential and commercial development to be known as “Madeira at St. Augustine” in St. Johns County. These rules are designed to protect Class II and shellfish harvesting waters and require permit applicants to comply with additional criteria when the proposed work is located in, adjacent to, or in close proximity to Class II waters. The petitioner is seeking a variance pursuant to Section 373.414(17), F.S., in conjunction with Environmental Resource Permit Application 4-109-94964-1. The petitioner seeks the variance to conduct the following work: (1) remove an existing earthen crossing located in Robinson Creek and plant native vegetation where fill has been removed, (2) dredge and fill three existing golf course ponds that are currently connected via culverts to the Tolomato River in order to incorporate the ponds into a proposed stormwater management system, and (3) replace the three culverts connecting the golf course ponds to the Tolomato River with two culverts and a weir that would discharge treated stormwater to the Tolomato River as part of the proposed stormwater management system. The work described in (1) and some of the work described in (3) above is proposed to occur directly in portions of Robinson Creek and the Tolomato River that are Class II waters classified by the Department of Agricultural and Consumer Services as conditionally restricted for shellfish harvesting. The work described in (2) and some of the work described in (3) above is proposed to occur in the golf course ponds that are Class II waters that are not approved for shellfish harvesting. Notice of receipt of the petition for variance was published in the Florida Administrative Weekly on November 12, 2004, and notice of receipt of the amended petition for variance was published in the Florida Administrative Weekly on December 16, 2005. The District’s

(7) The estimated overall odds of winning some prize in Instant Game Number 628 are 1 in 4.04. Prizes, including the top prizes, are subject to availability at the time of ticket purchase. Prizes may be unavailable due to prior sale or other causes occurring in the normal course of business including, but not limited to, ticket damage, defect, theft, or loss.

(8) For reorders of Instant Game Number 628, the estimated odds of winning, value, and number of prizes shall be proportionate to the number of tickets reordered.

(9) By purchasing a CRAZY CASH lottery ticket the player agrees to comply with and abide by all prize payment rules of the Florida Lottery.

(10) Payment of prizes for CRAZY CASH lottery tickets shall be made in accordance with rules of the Florida Lottery governing payment of prizes.

A copy of the current rule can be obtained from the Florida Lottery, Office of the General Counsel, 250 Marriott Drive, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-4011.

Specific Authority 24.105(9)(a), (b), (c), 24.109(1), 24.115(1) FS. Law Implemented 24.105(9)(a), (b), (c), 24.115(1) FS. History—New 12-20-05.

THIS EMERGENCY RULE TAKES EFFECT IMMEDIATELY UPON BEING FILED WITH THE DEPARTMENT OF STATE.

EFFECTIVE DATE: December 20, 2005

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Pursuant to Chapter 2003-145, Laws of Florida, all notices for the Department of Environmental Protection are published on the Internet at the Department of Environmental Protection’s home page at <http://www.dep.state.fl.us/> under the link or button titled “Official Notices.”

Governing Board is scheduled to take final action on the petition for variance and the related permit application at its meeting on January 10, 2005.

A person whose substantial interests are or may be determined by the District's proposed decision has the right to request an administrative hearing by filing a written petition with the District. Mediation is not available. Pursuant to Chapter 28-106 and Rule 40C-1.1007, F.A.C., and Section 403.201, F.S., the petition must be filed (received) by hand delivery or mail with the District Clerk at District Headquarters, 4049 Reid St., Palatka, FL 32177, or by e-mail with the District Clerk at Clerk@sjrwmd.com, within fourteen (14) days of the District depositing notice of its decision in the mail (for those persons to whom the District sends actual notice) or within fourteen (14) days of newspaper publication of the notice of District decision (for those persons to whom the District does not send actual notice). A petition for an administrative hearing is deemed filed upon receipt of the petition by the District Clerk at the District Headquarters. Receipt by the District Clerk after 5:00 p.m. shall be considered filed as of 8:00 a.m. on the next regular business day. The District's acceptance of petitions filed by e-mail is subject to certain conditions set forth in the District's Statement of Agency Organization and Operation, which is available at www.sjrwmd.com or upon request to the District Clerk. The District does not accept petitions by facsimile. Petitions must comply with Sections 120.54(5)(b)4. and 120.569(2)(c), F.S., and Chapter 28-106, F.A.C. The right to an administrative hearing and the relevant procedures to be followed are governed by Chapter 120, F.S., and Chapter 28-106, F.A.C., and Rule 40C-1.1007, F.A.C.

If the Governing Board takes action which substantially differs from the notice of District intended action, persons who may be substantially affected have an additional 14 days from the date of receipt of notice of said action to request an administrative hearing, but the request for administrative hearing shall only address the substantial deviation.

Pursuant to Section 120.68, F.S., a person who is adversely affected by final District action may seek review of the action in the District Court of Appeal by filing a notice of appeal pursuant to the Florida Rules of Appellate Procedure within 30 days of the rendering of the final District action. For appeals to the District Courts of Appeal, a District action is considered rendered after it is signed on behalf of the District and is filed by the District Clerk.

A party to the proceeding before the District who claims that a District order is inconsistent with the provisions and purposes of Chapter 373, F.S., may seek review of the order pursuant to Section 373.114, F.S., by the Florida Land and Water Adjudicatory Commission, by filing a request for review with the Commission and serving a copy on the Department of Environmental Protection and any person named in the order within 20 days of the rendering of the District order. Review by the Florida Land and Water Adjudicatory Commission is not

available for final orders resulting from an evidentiary hearing held under Sections 120.569 and 120.57, F.S., or for rules adopted after issuance of a final order resulting from an evidentiary hearing under Section 120.56, F.S.

Failure to observe the relevant time frames for filing a petition will result in waiver of that right to review.

The petition for variance (F.O.R. 2004-66) and permit application files are available for public inspection during normal business hours, 8:00 a.m. through 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, except legal holidays, at St. Johns River Water Management District, 4049 Reid Street, Palatka, Florida 32177. Request for copies or inspection of these files should be made to Tara Boonstra, Assistant General Counsel, Office of General Counsel, at the address above, or by telephone at (386)329-4448.

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the South Florida Water Management District (SFWMD) Governing Board issued an Order Granting Waiver under Section 120.542, Fla. Stat. (SFWMD 2005-188-DAO-ROW), on December 14, 2005, to Thomas J. Dahlan. The petition for waiver was received by the SFWMD on January 24, 2005. Notice of receipt of the petition requesting the waiver was published in the Florida Administrative Weekly, Vol. 31, No. 6, on February 11, 2005. No public comment was received. This Order provides a waiver for the existing fence enclosure with vehicular access gates encroaching to the top of the canal bank and the partial encroachment of a children's swing set within the fencing to remain within the south right of way of C-2 Canal adjacent to 8951 S.W. 85th Street, Miami; S33/T54S/R40E, Miami-Dade County. Specifically, the Order grants a waiver from paragraph 40E-6.221(2)(j), Fla. Admin. Code, and the Basis of Review for Use or Occupancy of the Works or Lands of the District Permit Applications within the South Florida Water Management District, incorporated by reference in subsection 40E-6.091(1), F.A.C., which governs the placement of above-ground permanent and/or semi-permanent encroachments within 40 feet of the top of the canal bank landward within Works or Lands of the District. Generally, the Order sets forth the basis of the Governing Board decision to grant the waiver, as follows: 1) the facilities will not significantly interfere with the SFWMD's ability to perform necessary construction, alteration, operation and maintenance activities; and 2) the Order granting a waiver from the subject rule would prevent Thomas J. Dahlan, from suffering a substantial hardship.

A copy of the Order can be obtained from Kathie Ruff at the South Florida Water Management District, 3301 Gun Club Road, MSC 1410, West Palm Beach, FL 33406-4680; telephone number (561)682-6320; or by e-mail kruff@sfwmd.gov.

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the South Florida Water Management District (SFWMD) Governing Board issued an Order Granting Waiver under Section 120.542, Fla. Stat. (SFWMD 2005-189-DAO-ROW), on December 14, 2005, to Roberto and Connie Martinez. The petition for waiver was received by the SFWMD on November 16, 2005. Notice of receipt of the petition requesting the waiver was published in the Florida Administrative Weekly, Vol. 31, No. 48, on December 2, 2005. No public comment was received. This Order provides a waiver for existing trees and landscaping to remain within the south right of way of the C-2 Canal adjacent to 9281 S.W. 85th Street, Miami; S33/T54S/R40E, Miami-Dade County. Specifically, the Order grants a waiver from subsections 40E-6.011(4), (5) & (6), and paragraphs 40E-6.221(2)(a) and (j), F.A.C., and the Basis of Review for Use or Occupancy of the Works or Lands of the District Permit Applications within the South Florida Water Management District, incorporated by reference in subsection 40E-6.091(1), F.A.C., which governs the placement of above-ground permanent and semi-permanent encroachments within 40 feet of the top of the canal bank landward within Works or Lands of the District. Generally, the Order sets forth the basis of the Governing Board decision to grant the waiver, as follows: 1) the facilities will not significantly interfere with the SFWMD's ability to perform necessary construction, alteration, operation and maintenance activities; and 2) the Order granting a waiver from the subject rule would prevent Roberto and Connie Martinez, from suffering a violation of the principles of fairness.

A copy of the Order can be obtained from Kathie Ruff at the South Florida Water Management District, 3301 Gun Club Road, MSC 1410, West Palm Beach, FL 33406-4680; telephone number (561)682-6320; or by e-mail kruff@sfwmd.gov.

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on December 8, 2005, the Division of Hotels and Restaurants received a Petition for an Emergency Variance for subsections 61C-4.0101(1) and 61C-4.010(6), F.A.C., from Rafael's Fast Food located in Orlando. The above referenced Florida Administrative Codes address food supplies, food protection, and physical facilities-except as specifically provided in this rule, public food service establishments shall be subject to the provisions of chapter three and chapter six of the FDA Food Code. They are requesting to do open air food service on a Mobile Food Dispensing Vehicle.

A copy of the Petition can be obtained from:
 Xenia Bailey
 Division of Hotels and Restaurants
 1940 North Monroe Street
 Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1013.

The Division of Hotels and Restaurants will accept comments concerning the Petition for 14 days from the date of publication of this notice. To be considered, comments must be received on or before 5:00 p.m.

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on November 18, 2005, the Division of Hotels and Restaurants received a Petition for an Emergency Variance for subsections 61C-4.010(7) and 61C-1.004(1), F.A.C., from the Church II located in Orlando. The above referenced Florida Administrative Codes respectively state that each food service establishment must maintain a minimum of one public bathroom for each sex, properly designated and standards for plumbing and waste shall be governed Chapter 5 of the Food Code. They are requesting a variance to use centrally located bathrooms for employees and guests due to historical building restrictions and use an adjacent facilities utility sink for cleaning.

This variance was approved 12/19/2005 and is contingent upon Petitioner notifying guests to the location of the public bathroom facilities by directional signage, the public bathrooms have hot and cold running water at all times, operate in a clean and sanitary manner, provided with soap and an approved method to dry hands. Petitioner will have no more than 150 seats in the establishment, which includes any outside seating. If the operating hours or accessibility for the Church I changes, this variance request will be re-evaluated for the waiver of a service sink. All provisos and plan review deficiencies shall be met prior to licensing. This variance is not transferable under any conditions. The Petitioner shall follow all applicable Administrative Rules and Federal Food and Drug Administration Food Code references. Any violation of the variance is the equivalent of a violation of the rule and may result in a rescission of the variance, and subject the Petitioner to disciplinary sanctions as enumerated in Section 509.261, Florida Statutes.

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on November 14, 2005, the Division of Hotels and Restaurants received a Petition for a Routine Variance for subsection 61C-4.010(7), Florida Administrative Code from Lucy's Place located in Bradenton. The above referenced F.A.C. states ...each public food service establishment shall maintain a minimum of one public bathroom for each sex, properly designated.... They are requesting a variance to add an additional eight (8) seats for a total of eighteen (18) seats which exceeds the seating capacity with only one accessible bathroom facility accessible to customers.

A copy of the Petition can be obtained from:
 Xenia Bailey
 Division of Hotels and Restaurants
 1940 North Monroe Street,
 Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1013

The Division of Hotels and Restaurants will accept comments concerning the Petition for 14 days from the date of publication of this notice. To be considered, comments must be received on or before 5:00 p.m.

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on November 14, 2005, the Division of Hotels and Restaurants received a Petition for a Routine Variance for subsection 61C-4.010(7), F.A.C., from Lucy's Place located in Bradenton. The above referenced F.A.C. states ...each public food service establishment shall maintain a minimum of one public bathroom for each sex, properly designated.... They are requesting a variance to add an additional eight (8) seats for a total of eighteen (18) seats which exceeds the seating capacity with only one accessible bathroom facility accessible to customers.

This variance was approved December 20, 2005 and is contingent upon Petitioner paying the current licensing fee of \$312.00, keeping the license current, ensuring the public restroom inside of Lucy's Place is functional, has hot and cold running water at all times, provided with soap and an approved method to dry hands, and kept in a clean and sanitary manner. Seating shall not exceed eighteen (18) which includes inside and any outside seating. This variance is not transferable under any conditions. Any violation of the variance is the equivalent of a violation of the rule and may result in a rescission of the variance, and subject the Petitioner to disciplinary sanctions as enumerated in Section 509.261, Florida Statutes.

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on December 15, 2005, the Division of Hotels and Restaurants received a Petition for an Emergency variance for subsection 61C-4.010(7), F.A.C., from the Enigma Café located in Satellite Beach. The above referenced F.A.C. states ...each public food service establishment shall maintain a minimum of one public bathroom for each sex, properly designated.... They are requesting a variance to add an additional eighteen (18) seats for a total of twenty-eight (28) seats which exceeds the seating capacity with only one accessible bathroom facility accessible to customers.

A copy of the Petition can be obtained from:

Xenia Bailey
Division of Hotels and Restaurants
1940 North Monroe Street,
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1013

The Division of Hotels and Restaurants will accept comments concerning the Petition for 14 days from the date of publication of this notice. To be considered, comments must be received on or before 5:00 p.m.

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on December 15, 2005, the Division of Hotels and Restaurants received a Petition for an Emergency variance for subsection 61C-4.010(7), Florida Administrative Code from the Enigma Café located in Satellite

Beach. The above referenced F.A.C. states ...each public food service establishment shall maintain a minimum of one public bathroom for each sex, properly designated.... They are requesting a variance to add an additional eighteen (18) seats for a total of twenty-eight (28) seats which exceeds the seating capacity with only one accessible bathroom facility accessible to customers.

This variance request was approved December 20, 2005 and is contingent upon Petitioner ensuring the public restroom inside of the Enigma Café is functional, has hot and cold running water at all times, provided with soap and an approved method to dry hands, and kept in a clean and sanitary manner. Seating shall not exceed twenty-eight (28) which includes inside and outside seating. This variance is not transferable under any conditions. Any violation of the variance is the equivalent of a violation of the rule and may result in a rescission of the variance, and subject the Petitioner to disciplinary sanctions as enumerated in Section 509.261, Florida Statutes.

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on December 14, 2005, the Division of Hotels and Restaurants received a Petition for an Emergency Variance for subsections 61C-4.010(1) and 61C-4.010(6), F.A.C., from Baron Catering Corporation located in Ft. Myers. The above referenced Florida Administrative Codes address food supplies, food protection, and physical facilities-except as specifically provided in this rule, public food service establishments shall be subject to the provisions of chapter three and chapter six of the FDA Food Code. They are requesting to do open air food service on a Mobile Food Dispensing Vehicle.

A copy of the Petition can be obtained from:

Xenia Bailey
Division of Hotels and Restaurants
1940 North Monroe Street
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1013

The Division of Hotels and Restaurants will accept comments concerning the Petition for 14 days from the date of publication of this notice. To be considered, comments must be received on or before 5:00 p.m.

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on December 16, 2005, the Division of Hotels and Restaurants received a Petition for an Emergency variance for subsection 61C-4.010(7), F.A.C., from Nostalgia café located in Boca Raton. The above referenced F.A.C. states ...each public food service establishment shall maintain a minimum of one public bathroom for each sex, properly designated.... They are requesting a variance to add an additional fifteen (15) seats for a total of twenty-five (25) seats which exceeds the seating capacity with only one accessible bathroom facility accessible to customers.

A copy of the Petition can be obtained from:

Xenia Bailey
 Division of Hotels and Restaurants
 1940 North Monroe Street,
 Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1013

The Division of Hotels and Restaurants will accept comments concerning the Petition for 14 days from the date of publication of this notice. To be considered, comments must be received on or before 5:00 p.m.

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on November 14, 2005, the Division of Hotels and Restaurants received a Petition for an Emergency variance for subsection 61C-4.010(7), F.A.C., from Mucho Taco located in Ft. Myers. The above referenced F.A.C. states ...each public food service establishment shall maintain a minimum of one public bathroom for each sex, properly designated.... They are requesting a variance to add an additional sixteen (16) seats for a total of twenty-six (26) seats which exceeds the seating capacity with only one accessible bathroom facility accessible to customers.

A copy of the Petition can be obtained from:

Xenia Bailey
 Division of Hotels and Restaurants
 1940 North Monroe Street,
 Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1013

The Division of Hotels and Restaurants will accept comments concerning the Petition for 14 days from the date of publication of this notice. To be considered, comments must be received on or before 5:00 p.m.

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on December 15, 2005, the Division of Hotels and Restaurants received a Petition for an Emergency Variance for subsections 61C-4.0101(1) and 61C-4.010(6) F.A.C., from Nila Catering Services located in Orlando. The above referenced Florida Administrative Codes address food supplies, food protection, and physical facilities-except as specifically provided in this rule, public food service establishments shall be subject to the provisions of chapter three and chapter six of the FDA Food Code. They are requesting to do open air food service on a Mobile Food Dispensing Vehicle.

A copy of the Petition can be obtained from:

Xenia Bailey
 Division of Hotels and Restaurants
 1940 North Monroe Street
 Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1013

The Division of Hotels and Restaurants will accept comments concerning the Petition for 14 days from the date of publication of this notice. To be considered, comments must be received on or before 5:00 p.m.

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on December 2, 2005, the Division of Hotels and Restaurants received a Petition for an Emergency Variance for subsection 61C-4.010(7), F.A.C., from Matthew's San Marco Market located in Jacksonville. The above referenced F.A.C. states ...each public food service establishment shall maintain a minimum of one public bathroom for each sex, properly designated.... They are requesting a variance to add an additional twenty-five (25) seats for a total of thirty-five (35) seats which exceeds the seating capacity with only one accessible bathroom facility accessible to customers.

This variance request was approved December 20, 2005 and is contingent upon Petitioner ensuring the public restroom is functional, has hot and cold running water at all times, provided with soap and an approved method to dry hands, and kept in a clean and sanitary manner. Seating shall not exceed thirty-five (35) which includes inside and any outside seating. This variance is not transferable under any conditions. Any violation of the variance is the equivalent of a violation of the rule and may result in a rescission of the variance, and subject the Petitioner to disciplinary sanctions as enumerated in Section 509.261, Florida Statutes.

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Pursuant to Chapter 2003-145, Laws of Florida, all notices for the Department of Environmental Protection are published on the Internet at the Department of Environmental Protection's home page at <http://www.dep.state.fl.us/> under the link or button titled "Official Notices."

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

The Bureau of Water Programs hereby gives notice that it has received a petition, filed on December 8, 2005, from Aquatic Training Institute, Inc. seeking a variance of Rule 64E-9.018, F.A.C., establishing requirements with respect to public pool service technician certification courses. Comments on this petition should be filed with the Bureau of Water Programs, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-22, Tallahassee, Florida 32399. For a copy of the petition, contact: Bob Vincent, Department of Health, Bureau of Water Programs, HSEW, 4042 Bald Cypress Way, Bin # C-22, Tallahassee, FL 32399-1742.

FLORIDA HOUSING FINANCE CORPORATION

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on December 20, 2005, Florida Housing Finance Corporation received a Petition for Waiver of subsections 67-50.001(8) and 67-50.060(2), Florida Administrative Code, from Eagle Ridge Subdivision, LLC ("Petition"). The Petition is seeking a variance from the rule which limits the subsidy to 25% of the purchase price of the home.

A copy of the Petition can be obtained from: Sherry Green, Public Records Clerk, Florida Housing Finance Corporation, 227 North Bronough Street, Suite 5000, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1329.

Florida Housing will accept comments concerning the Petition for 14 days from the date of publication of this notice. To be considered, comments must be received on or before 5:00 p.m., Eastern Standard Time, on the 14th day after publication of this notice at Florida Housing Finance Corporation, 227 North Bronough Street, Suite 5000, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1329.

Section VI

Notices of Meetings, Workshops and Public Hearings

DEPARTMENT OF LEGAL AFFAIRS

The **Florida Commission on the Status of Women** will hold telephone calls during the week of January 9, 2006 to which all persons are invited.

LEGISLATIVE COMMITTEE

DATE AND TIME: January 10, 2006, 10:00 a.m.

ANNUAL REPORT COMMITTEE

DATE AND TIME: January 11, 2006, 10:00 a.m.

FINANCE & BUDGET COMMITTEE

DATE AND TIME: January 12, 2006, 10:00 a.m.

PLACE: Please call (850)414-3300 for instructions on participation

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Discuss General Issues.

Note: If a quorum of members does not attend, items on this agenda will be discussed as a workshop by those present, and notes will be recorded although no formal action will be taken. If you have any questions, please call (850)414-3300.

If you need an accommodation because of disability in order to participate, please notify FCSW 5 days in advance: Office of the Attorney General, The Capitol, Tallahassee, FL 32399-1050.

DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE AND CONSUMER SERVICES

The Florida **Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services** announces a regular business meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: January 17, 2006, 10:00 a.m. – 4:00 p.m.

PLACE: DACS Doyle Conner Bldg., Division of Plant Industry's Conference Room, 1911 S.W. 34th Street, Gainesville, Florida 32614, (352)372-3505

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Florida Coordinating Council on Mosquito Control

Questions and Comments may be directed to: James Clauson, Chairman, (850)922-7011, ext. 101, clausoj@doacs.state.fl.us or Jeff Blair (850)644-6320, jblair@mailers.fsu.edu

The **Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services, Division of Aquaculture** announces a meeting of the Clam Industry Task Force. Guests and other parties interested in participating should meet at the George Kirkpatrick Building, Room 130, Cedar Key, Florida.

DATE AND TIME: January 19, 2006, 1:30 p.m. – 3:00 p.m.

PLACE: George Kirkpatrick Building, Room 130, 11350 Southwest 153rd Court, Cedar Key, Florida 32625

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: This meeting will be an introductory meeting that will focus on meeting logistics, future meeting dates and times, and introductions of members.

A copy of the agenda can be obtained by contacting: Rachelle Coleman, 1203 Governor's Square Boulevard, Tallahassee, FL 32301, Phone (850)488-4033.

If special accommodations are needed to attend this meeting because of disability, please contact Rachelle Coleman as soon as possible.

The **Florida State Fair Authority** announces a meeting of the Agricultural Committee:

DATE AND TIME: Tuesday, January 24, 2006, 10:00 a.m.

PLACE: Florida State Fairgrounds, 4800 U.S. Highway 301 North, Tampa, FL 33610

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Old and New Business.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Ms. Lisa Hinton, Director of Agri-Business, Florida State Fairgrounds, P. O. Box 11766, Tampa, FL 33680

If special accommodations, due to a disability need to be arranged for attendance to this meeting, please contact Ms. Lisa Hinton at the address above or at (813)621-7821.

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

The Florida **Department of Education**, Office of Independent Education and Parental Choice, announces a public hearing of the Charter School Review Panel to which all persons are invited.

DATES AND TIME: January 9-10, 2006, 9:00 a.m. – 4:00 p.m.

PLACE: Cabinet Meeting Room, LL-03, The Capitol, Tallahassee, Florida

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: The Florida Department of Education shall regularly convene a Charter School Review Panel in order to review issues, practices, and policies regarding charter schools.

Special Accommodations: Persons with disabilities who require assistance to participate in these hearings are requested to contact: Office of Independent Education and Parental Choice, 325 West Gaines Street, Suite 522, Tallahassee, Florida 32399 or by phone (850)245-0502

The **Florida Institute of Phosphate Research** announces a meeting of the Board of Directors to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Friday, January 20, 2006, 9:30 a.m.

PLACE: FIPR – Education Building, 1855 West Main Street, Bartow, FL

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: To consider funding of research proposals and other business pertaining to the operation of the Institute.

A copy of the minutes of the October 21, 2005 Board Meeting may be obtained by writing: Dr. Paul R. Clifford, Executive Director, Florida Institute of Phosphate Research, 1855 West Main Street, Bartow, FL 33830

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY AFFAIRS

The **Florida Building Commission** announces the following meetings to which all persons are invited. The meetings will be held at:

DATE AND TIME: January 22, 2006, 1:00 p.m.

PLACE: Embassy Suites Hotel, 3705 Spectrum Boulevard, Tampa, Florida, (813)977-7066

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Meeting of the Product Approval Program Oversight Committee to consider applications for product approval and any other items on the meeting agenda.

DATE AND TIME: January 23, 2006, 8:00 a.m.

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Meeting of the Plumbing Technical Advisory Committee to consider proposed code changes to the 2004 Florida Building Code and any other items on the meeting agenda.; 8:00 a.m. – Meeting of the Code Administration Technical Advisory Committee to consider proposed code changes to the 2004 Florida Building Code and any other items on the meeting agenda.

Followed with the meeting of the Structural Technical Advisory Committee to consider proposed code changes to the 2004 Florida Building Code and any other items on the meeting agenda, continue as needed.

DATE AND TIME: January 24, 2006, 8:00 a.m.

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Meeting of the Structural Technical Advisory Committee to consider proposed code changes to the 2004 Florida Building Code and any other items on the meeting agenda, continue as needed.; 8:00 a.m. – Meeting of the Electrical Technical

Advisory Committee to consider proposed code changes to the 2004 Florida Building Code and any other items on the meeting agenda.

DATE AND TIME: January 25, 2006, 8:00 a.m.

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Meeting of the Structural Technical Advisory Committee to consider proposed code changes to the 2004 Florida Building Code and any other items on the meeting agenda.

PLACE: RACCA Inc., 1920 East Sligh Avenue, Tampa, Florida 33610, (813)870-2607

DATE AND TIME: January 26, 2006, 9:00 a.m.– Meeting of the Fire Technical Advisory Committee to consider proposed code changes to the 2004 Florida Building Code and any other items on the meeting agenda.

DATE AND TIME: January 30, 2006, 8:30 a.m.

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Meeting of the Energy Technical Advisory Committee to consider proposed code changes to the 2004 Florida Building Code and any other items on the meeting agenda.

PLACE: Kelly Training Room, 2555 Shumard Oak Boulevard, Tallahassee, Florida 32301, (850)487-1824

DATE AND TIME: February 1, 2006, 9:00 a.m.

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Meeting of the Special Occupancy Technical Advisory Committee to consider proposed code changes to the 2004 Florida Building Code and any other items on the meeting agenda.

PLACE: Rosen Plaza Hotel, 9700 International Drive, Orlando, Florida, (800)366-9700

DATE AND TIME: February 5, 2006, 9:00 a.m.

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Meeting of the Mechanical Technical Advisory Committees to consider proposed code changes to the 2004 Florida Building Code and any other items on the meeting agenda.; 1:00 p.m. – Meeting of the Fire Technical Advisory Committees to consider proposed code changes to the 2004 Florida Building Code and any other items on the meeting agenda.; 3:00 p.m. – Meeting of the Structural Technical Advisory Committees to consider proposed code changes to the 2004 Florida Building Code and any other items on the meeting agenda.

DATE AND TIME: February 6, 2006, 1:00 p.m.

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Meeting of the Accessibility Technical Advisory Committee to consider proposed code changes to the 2004 Florida Building Code and any other items on the meeting agenda.

A copy of the Committee and Commission meeting agendas and other documents may be obtained by sending a request in writing: Ms. Barbara Bryant, Building Codes and Standards Office, Division of Housing and Community Development, Department of Community Affairs, 2555 Shumard Oak

Boulevard, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2100, FAX (850)414-8436, or looking on the web site at www.florida-building.org

If a person decides to appeal any decision made by the Commission with respect to any matter considered at this meeting, they will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.

Any person requiring a special accommodation at the meetings because of a disability or physical impairment should contact: Ms. Barbara Bryant, Department of Community Affairs, (850)487-1824 at least ten days before the meetings.

If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the Department of Community Affairs using the Florida Dual Party Relay System which can be reached at: (800)955-8770 (voice) and (800)955-8771 (TDD).

The **Department of Community Affairs**, Century Commission for a Sustainable Florida (Century Commission) announces the following meeting to which all interested persons are invited:

DATES AND TIMES: Sunday, January 8, 2006, 5:00 p.m. through Monday, January 9, 2006, 4:00 p.m.

PLACE: Doubletree Hotel, 101 South Adams Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32301

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: This will be the second meeting of the Century Commission. The members will continue to discuss the Commission's statutory role, including how to address the impacts of population growth during the next 25-50 years through regional cooperation.

A copy of the agenda and other information regarding the meeting and the Century Commission may be obtained at the Internet address: (www.dca.state.fl.us) or by contacting: Steve Seibert, (850)321-9051 (steve@seibertlaw.com) or Rachel Roberts, (850)488-8466 (Rachel.Roberts@dca.state.fl.us).

Any person requiring special accommodation at the meeting because of a disability or physical impairment should contact the above mentioned: Rachel Roberts, Department of Community Affairs, 2555 Shumard Oak Boulevard, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2100 or at her contact number or email address listed above.

If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the Department of Community Affairs using the Florida Dual Party Relay System which can be reached at: (800)955-8770 (voice) or (800)955-9771 (TDD).

DEPARTMENT OF LAW ENFORCEMENT

The Florida **Department of Law Enforcement**, announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Wednesday, January 4, 2006, 10:00 a.m.

PLACE: The Florida Department of Law Enforcement, Classroom C, 2331 Phillips Road, Tallahassee, Florida

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: The Criminal and Juvenile Justice Information Systems Council will conduct its regular meeting to discuss state and national issues in areas of criminal and juvenile justice information systems and Jessica Lunsford Act recommendations.

Individuals with a disability as defined by the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) may call Government Analyst Wayne Quinsey or Christopher Ferris, (850)410-7116 about accommodations that would enable attendance.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by writing: Government Analysts Wayne Quinsey or Christopher Ferris, Florida Department of Law Enforcement, Division of Criminal Justice Information Systems, Strategic Planning and Systems Integrity, Post Office Box 1489, Tallahassee, Florida 32302, (850)410-7116, SUNCOM 210-7116.

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

The **Florida Highway Beautification Council (FHBC)** announces a meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATES AND TIMES: Tuesday, January 24, 2006, 1:00 p.m. – 5:00 p.m. and continuing on Wednesday, January 25, 2006, 8:30 a.m. – 4:00 p.m.

PLACE: Corporate Office, Conference Room 3A, 482 S. Keller Road, Orlando, FL 32810, (407)647-7275

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: The purpose of the meeting is to rank the 2006 grant applications and conduct general business.

For information please contact: Mr. Jeff Caster, State Transportation Landscape Architect, Florida Department of Transportation, 605 Suwannee Street, MS #37, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0450; (850)414-5267; jeff.caster@dot.state.fl.us

Any person requiring a special accommodation at this meeting because of a disability or physical impairment should contact Jeff Caster, (850)414-5267 prior to the meeting.

BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE INTERNAL IMPROVEMENT TRUST FUND

Pursuant to Chapter 2003-145, Laws of Florida, all notices for the Board of Trustees of the Internal Improvement Trust Fund are published on the Internet at the Department of Environmental Protection's home page at <http://www.dep.state.fl.us/> under the link or button titled "Official Notices."

STATE BOARD OF ADMINISTRATION

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN by the **State Board of Administration** of two public meetings of the Florida Commission on Hurricane Loss Projection Methodology to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Wednesday, January 25, 2006, 1:00 p.m. – 5:00 p.m. (EST)

PLACE: Room 116 (Hermitage Room), Hermitage Centre, 1801 Hermitage Blvd., Tallahassee, Florida

DATE AND TIME: Thursday, January 26, 2006, 9:00 a.m. – 12:00 Noon (EST)

PLACE: Emerald Coast Room 6th Floor, Hermitage Centre, 1801 Hermitage Blvd., Tallahassee, Florida

TELEPHONE: The conference call number for both meetings for those who wish to participate by telephone is (850)488-0979 or Suncom 278-0979.

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: To discuss outstanding issues related to modeling Commercial Residential exposure, to discuss simplification of the Commission's process and to review the study: "An Assessment of Computer Generated Loss Costs in Florida."

In addition, other general business of the Commission may be addressed.

Anyone wishing a copy of the agenda for the meetings noticed above, should contact: Donna Sirmons, State Board of Administration, P. O. Box 13300, Tallahassee, FL 32317-3300. In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, anyone needing special accommodation to attend any of these meetings is requested to call Donna Sirmons, (850)413-1349, five days prior to the meeting so that appropriate arrangements can be made.

DEPARTMENT OF CITRUS

The **Department of Citrus** announces a public meeting of the Citrus Harvesting Research Advisory Council to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Tuesday, January 10, 2006, 9:00 a.m.

PLACE: Florida Department of Citrus, 1115 E. Memorial Blvd., Lakeland, Florida

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: The Committee will meet to receive a quarterly status report on mechanical harvesting research for fiscal year 2005-06 and to discuss any other matters which might relate to this committee. In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this meeting is asked to advise the Department at least 48 hours before the meeting by contacting Mr. Bill Jones at the above address or by telephone at (863)499-2499.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

The Florida **Public Service Commission** announces its Internal Affairs Meeting to which all interested persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: January 24, 2006, Immediately following the Commission Conference which commences at 9:30 a.m. in Commission Hearing Room 148

PLACE: The Betty Easley Conference Center, 4075 Esplanade Way, Conference Room 140, Tallahassee, Florida

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: To discuss and make decisions on matters which affect the operation of the Commission.

A copy of the agenda of the Internal Affairs Meeting may be obtained by contacting: Division of the Commission Clerk and Administrative Services, Florida Public Service Commission, 2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850.

Any person requiring some accommodation at this meeting because of a physical impairment should call the Division of the Commission Clerk and Administrative Services, (850)413-6770 at least 48 hours prior to the meeting.

Any person who is hearing or speech impaired should contact the Commission by using the Florida Relay Service, which can be reached at (800)955-8771 (TDD) or (800)955-8770 (VOICE).

****This meeting is subject to cancellation without notification.**

The Florida **Public Service Commission** announces its regularly scheduled conference to which all interested persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: January 24, 2006, 9:30 a.m.

PLACE: The Betty Easley Conference Center, 4075 Esplanade Way, Commission Hearing Room 148, Tallahassee, Florida

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: To consider those matters ready for decision.

LEGAL AUTHORITY AND JURISDICTION: Chapters 120, 350, 364, 366, and 367, F.S. Persons who may be affected by Commission action on certain items on this agenda for which a hearing has not been held will be allowed to address the Commission concerning those items when taken up for discussion at this conference.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by any person who requests a copy, and pays the reasonable cost of the copy (\$1.00 per copy, Statement of Agency Organization and Operations), by contacting: Division of the Commission Clerk and Administrative Services, (850)413-6770 or writing: Director, Division of the Commission Clerk and Administrative Services, Florida Public Service Commission, 2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850. The agenda and recommendations are also accessible on the PSC Homepage, at <http://www.floridapsc.com>, at no charge.

If a person decides to appeal any decisions made by the Commission with respect to any matter considered at this conference, he will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which appeal is based.

Any person requiring some accommodation at this conference because of a physical impairment should call the Division of the Commission Clerk and Administrative Services, (850)413-6770 at least 48 hours prior to the conference.

Any person who is hearing or speech impaired should contact the Commission by using the Florida Relay Service, which can be reached at (800)955-8771 (TDD) or (800)955-8770 (VOICE).

The Florida **Public Service Commission** announces an undocketed workshop to which all investor-owned electric utilities, municipal electric utilities, rural electric cooperatives, local governments, experts on electric system design and operations, and all other interested persons are invited.

UNDOCKETED: Electric Infrastructure Workshop

DATE AND TIME: Monday, January 23, 2006, 9:00 a.m.

PLACE: Room 148, Betty Easley Conference Center, 4075 Esplanade Way, Tallahassee, Florida

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: The purpose of the workshop is to discuss the damage to electric utility facilities incurred due to recent hurricanes and explore ways of minimizing damage and resulting outages to customers in the future. One objective of this workshop will be to identify the type of damage incurred to existing facilities and whether any patterns can be discerned which would assist in developing mitigation techniques. A second objective is to identify areas for more in depth inquiry. The workshop will be conducted by Commission staff, however, one or more Commissioners may be present during the workshop. Utilities should be prepared to discuss in technical detail all studies conducted in house, or at the utility's request, or which they have reviewed, which examines the nature and extent of damage to different types of facilities.

State and local government officials are invited to make presentations at the beginning of the workshop. Presentations will be limited to 15 minutes per speaker in order to ensure that all who wish to speak are able to do so. By January 16, 2006, any state or local government official wishing to make a presentation should contact: Karla Barnes, (850)413-6101 or kbarnes@psc.state.fl.us, to sign up to speak.

Technical experts on electric system design and operations are invited to participate and provide presentations on their areas of expertise. By January 9, 2006, anyone wishing to make a technical presentation should contact Bob Trapp, (850)413-6632 or btrapp@psc.state.fl.us, to sign up to speak.

A copy of the workshop agenda is available on the Commission's web site at the link described below or you may obtain a copy by contacting Karla Barnes, using the contact information listed above.

If you wish to comment but cannot attend the workshop, please file written workshop comments with: Division of the Commission Clerk and Administrative Services, 2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850, or

you may file your comments electronically by following the directions posted at the following link: <http://www.psc.state.fl.us/RandR/e-req.cfm>. All comments should be filed on or before January 16, 2006, and should specifically reference Electric Infrastructure Workshop.

The agenda, pre-filed workshop comments, and other pertinent information are available on the Commission's web site under the following link: http://www.floridapsc.com/industry/electric_gas/ei_project.cfm.

One or more of the Commissioners of the Florida Public Service Commission may attend and participate in the workshop.

Any person requiring some accommodation at this workshop because of a physical impairment should call: Division of the Commission Clerk and Administrative Services, (850)413-6770 at least 48 hours prior to the hearing.

Any person who is hearing or speech impaired should contact the Florida Public Service Commission by using the Florida Relay Service, which can be reached at: 1(800)955-8771 (TDD).

EXECUTIVE OFFICE OF THE GOVERNOR

The **Governor's Office of Tourism, Trade and Economic Development**, will be hosting a meeting of the Governor's Commission on the Future of Space and Aeronautics in Florida to which all interested persons are invited to participate.

DATE AND TIME: Wednesday, January 18, 2006, 9:00 a.m. – 10:30 a.m.

PLACE: Knott Building, 111 St. Augustine Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: The purpose of the meeting is to announce the final recommendations that will be presented to the Governor and Legislature, and take a final vote on said recommendations.

For more information contact: Richard McAdams or Debra Corkhill, (850)487-2568.

If an accommodation is needed for a disability in order to participate in this activity please notify Richard McAdams, Office of Tourism, Trade and Economic Development, (850)487-2568, at least seven (7) days prior to the meeting.

Persons who are hearing or speech impaired, may contact the Office by using the Florida Relay Service, (800)955-8771 (TDD).

REGIONAL PLANNING COUNCILS

The **Northeast Florida Regional Council Planning and Growth Management Policy Committee** announces the following public meeting to which all persons are invited:

DATE AND TIME: Thursday, January 5, 2006, 8:30 a.m.

PLACE: Northeast Florida Regional Council, 6850 Belfort Oaks Place, Jacksonville, FL 32216

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: To discuss pending planning and growth management issues.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Northeast Florida Regional Council, 6850 Belfort Oaks Place, Jacksonville, FL 32216.

Notice is also given that two or more members of the Boards of County Commissioners, City/Town Councils/Commissions and other entities covered under Chapter 286, F.S., may attend and speak at the meeting.

The **Northeast Florida Regional Planning Council** Personnel, Budget, and Finance Policy Committee announces the following public meeting to which all persons are invited:

DATE AND TIME: Thursday, January 5, 2006, 9:00 a.m.

PLACE: Northeast Florida Regional Council, 6850 Belfort Oaks Place, Jacksonville, FL 32216

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: To discuss pending personnel, budget, and finance policy matters.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Northeast Florida Regional Council, 6850 Belfort Oaks Place, Jacksonville, FL 32216.

Notice is also given that two or more members of the Boards of County Commissioners, City/Town Councils/Commissions and other entities covered under Chapter 286, F.S., may attend and speak at the meeting.

The **Northeast Florida Regional Council** announces the following public meeting to which all persons are invited:

DATE AND TIME: Thursday, January 5, 2006, 10:00 a.m.

PLACE: Northeast Florida Regional Council, 6850 Belfort Oaks Place, Jacksonville, FL 32216

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Monthly Meeting.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Northeast Florida Regional Council, 6850 Belfort Oaks Place, Jacksonville, FL 32216.

If a person decides to appeal any decision made by the Council with respect to any matter considered at this meeting, he/she will have to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.

Individuals needing materials in alternate format, sign language interpreter, or other meeting information, call Peggy Conrad, (904)279-0880, extension 145, at least three working days prior to the meeting. Hearing-impaired callers use Florida Relay Service, (800)955-8771.

Notice is also given that two or more members of the Boards of County Commissioners, City/Town Councils/Commissions and other entities covered under Chapter 286, F.S., may attend and speak at the meeting.

The **Northeast Florida Regional Council Legislative Committee** announces the following public meeting to which all persons are invited:

DATE AND TIME: Thursday, January 5, 2006, 11:30 a.m. following monthly Board meeting

PLACE: Northeast Florida Regional Council, 6850 Belfort Oaks Place, Jacksonville, FL 32216

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: To discuss legislative issues.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Northeast Florida Regional Council, 6850 Belfort Oaks Place, Jacksonville, FL 32216.

Notice is also given that two or more members of the Boards of County Commissioners, City/Town Councils/Commissions and other entities covered under Chapter 286, F.S., may attend and speak at the meeting.

The **Withlacoochee Regional Planning Council** announces a public meeting of its Board of Directors to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Thursday, January 19, 2006, 7:00 p.m.

PLACE: Withlacoochee Regional Planning Council, 1241 S. W. 10th Street, Ocala, FL 34474-2798

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: To conduct the regular business of the Council.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by writing: Withlacoochee Regional Planning Council, 1241 S. W. 10th Street, Ocala, FL 34474-2798.

Affected persons are advised that it may be necessary for them to ensure that a verbatim record of the meeting is made, including the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.

The **East Central Florida Regional Planning Council** announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Wednesday, January 18, 2005, 10:00 a.m. Please be advised that committee meetings will begin at 9:00 a.m.

PLACE: 631 North Wymore Road, Suite 100, Maitland, Florida 32751, (Please call (407)623-1075, ext. 304 to confirm date, time and place)

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Regular Meeting of the East Central Florida Regional Planning Council

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by writing to: Mr. Jeff Jones, Acting Executive Director, East Central Florida Regional Planning Council, 631 North Wymore Road, Suite 100, Maitland, Florida 32751 or by visiting www.ecfrpc.org.

The ECFRPC desires to accommodate persons with disabilities. Accordingly, any physically handicapped person, pursuant to Chapter 286.26 F.S., should, at least 48 hours prior to the meeting, submit a written request to the Council that the physically handicapped person desires to attend the meeting.

The **Central Florida Regional Planning Council** will hold its public meeting and the Council's Executive Committee meeting, to which all persons are invited:

DATE AND TIME: Wednesday, January 11, 2006, 9:30 a.m.

PLACE: Polk County Agricultural Center, South Auditorium, 1702 US Highway 17 South, Bartow, Florida

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Regular Monthly Meeting of the Council and the Executive Committee.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by writing to: Central Florida Regional Planning Council, P. O. Box 2089, Bartow, Florida 33831.

If any person desires to appeal any decision with respect to any matter considered at the above cited meeting, such persons will need a record of the proceeding. For such purpose, he may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made to include the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.

The **Central Florida Regional Planning Council** announces a public meeting of the Local Emergency Planning Committee (LEPC), and its Membership Sub-Committee, Spill Review Sub-Committee, Public Relations Sub-Committee, and Exercise Sub-Committee, to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Wednesday, January 11, 2006, 10:00 a.m.

PLACE: The DeSoto County Extension Office, 2150 Northeast Roan Street, Arcadia, Florida

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Regular Bi-Monthly Meeting of the LEPC, and Special Sub-Committees, and to discuss the provisions of the Emergency Planning and Community Right To Know Law (EPCRA).

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by writing to: Central Florida Regional Planning Council, P. O. Box 2089, Bartow, Florida 33831.

If any person desires to appeal any decision with respect to any matter considered at the above cited meeting, such persons will need a record of the proceeding. For such purpose, he may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made to include the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.

The **Regional Business Alliance** announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Wednesday, January 11, 2006, 2:00 p.m.

PLACE: South Florida Regional Planning Council, 3440 Hollywood Boulevard, Suite 140, Hollywood, Florida 33021

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Regular monthly meeting to discuss regional issues impacting South Florida.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by writing: The Broward Workshop, 3440 Hollywood Boulevard, Suite 140, Hollywood, Florida 33021 or calling the South Florida Regional Planning Council, (954)985-4416. The Regional Business Alliance is comprised of business leaders from Miami-Dade, Broward, and Palm Beach counties including the South Florida Regional Transportation Authority.

If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the South Florida Regional Planning Council, (954)967-4152, Ext. 40 (TDD) if you require additional information regarding the meeting above. If you require special accommodations because of a disability or physical impairment, please contact the Council, (954)985-4416 at least five calendar days prior to the meeting.

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITIES

The Board of Directors for the **South Florida Regional Transportation Authority** will hold a meeting, attendance by South Florida Regional Transportation Authority Board Members may be in person or via conference telephone.

DATE AND TIME: Friday, January 13, 2006, 9:30 a.m.

PLACE: South Florida Regional Transportation, Administration Building, Board Room, 800 N.W. 33rd Street, Suite 100, Pompano Beach, Florida 33064.

If you have any questions regarding this meeting, please do not hesitate to contact the Executive Office, (954)788-7915.

In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act and Section 286.26, Florida Statutes, persons with disabilities needing special accommodation to participate in this proceeding, must at least 48 hours prior to the meeting, provide a written request directed to the Executive Office: 800 N.W. 33rd Street, Suite 100, Pompano Beach, FL 33064, or telephone (954)942-7245 for assistance; if hearing impaired, telephone (800)273-7545 (TTY) for assistance.

Any person who decides to appeal any decision made by the Board of Directors for the South Florida Regional Transportation Authority with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, will need a record of the proceedings, and that, for such purpose, he/she may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact the Executive Office, (954)788-7915.

This meeting replaces the regular Board meeting scheduled for January 27, 2006.

WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICTS

The **Suwannee River Water Management District** announces the following public meetings to which all interested persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: January 10, 2006, 9:00 a.m.

PLACE: District Headquarters, 9225 CR 49, Live Oak, FL

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Board Meeting - to consider District business, and conduct public hearings on regulatory and land acquisition matters.

Public hearing in accordance with Section 373.59, F.S., concerning the proposed purchase of the Frank and Olive Schulte/R-O Ranch Parcel, 1,493 acres located in Lafayette County, Florida, using funds from the Florida Forever Trust Fund; also the Advent Christian Village Inc./Suwannee River Wilderness Trail Parcel, 32 acres +/- located in Lafayette County, Florida, using funds from the Florida Forever Trust Fund; also the Pepper Land Company/Suwannee River Wilderness Trail Parcel, 8 acres +/- located in Lafayette County, Florida, using funds from the Florida Forever Trust Fund.

A copy of the agenda(s) may be obtained by writing: SRWMD, 9225 CR 49, Live Oak, Florida 32060.

If any person decides to appeal any decision with respect to any matter considered at the above cited meeting, such person may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made to include the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.

Persons with disabilities who need assistance in order to participate in this meeting may contact: Lisa Cheshire, (386)362-1001 or (800)226-1066 (Florida only), at least two business days in advance to make appropriate arrangements.

The **Southwest Florida Water Management District** announces a public meeting, hearing or workshop to which all persons are invited.

INDUSTRIAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE

DATE AND TIME: Tuesday, January 17, 2006, 9:00 a.m.

PLACE: Tampa Service Office, 7601 Highway 301 North, Tampa, Florida

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Conduct Committee Business

Some members of the District's Governing and Basin Boards may attend the meetings.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Southwest Florida Water Management District, 2379 Broad Street (U.S. 41 South), Brooksville, Florida 34604 or by calling (352)796-7211 or (800)423-1476 (Florida only) extension 4402.

The District does not discriminate based on disability. Anyone requiring reasonable accommodation under the ADA should contact (352)796-7211 or (800)423-1476 (Florida only) extension 4402 or TDD ONLY (800)231-6103 (Florida only).

The **Southwest Florida Water Management District** announces the following public meeting to which all interested persons are invited:

CITRUS COUNTY TSALA-APOPKA CHAIN OF LAKES TASK FORCE OF THE CITRUS/HERNANDO WATERWAYS RESTORATION COUNCIL

DATE AND TIME: Monday, January 9, 2006, 3:00 p.m.

PLACE: Lecanto Government Building, 3600 West Sovereign Path, Room 166, Lecanto, Florida 34461

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Discussion of Task Force business.

These are public meetings and agendas are available by contacting the Southwest Florida Water Management District, 2379 Broad Street, Brooksville, Florida 34604, (352)796-7211 or (800)423-1476 (Florida only), extension 4227.

The District does not discriminate based on disability. Anyone requiring reasonable accommodation under the ADA should contact (800)423-1476 (Florida), or (352)796-7211, extension 4226; FAX: (352)797-5806; TDD ONLY (800)231-6103 (Florida).

The **Southwest Florida Water Management District** (SWFWMD) announces the following public meeting(s) to which all interested persons are invited:

MANATEE CHAMBER WATER ALTERNATIVES COMMITTEE

DATE AND TIME: Friday, January 6, 2005, 8:00 a.m.

PLACE: Manatee Chamber Building, 222 10th Street, West, Bradenton, FL

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Consideration of Committee business. Some members of the District's Governing Board and Manasota Basin Board may attend and participate in the discussions.

GOVERNING BOARD WORKSHOP

DATE/TIME: Tuesday, January 10, 2006, 10:00 a.m.

PLACE: Green Swamp West Field Office, 13645 Ranch Road, Dade City, FL

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Discussion of Board policies and procedures, and strategic planning for future initiatives.

These are public meetings and agendas are available by contacting: Southwest Florida Water Management District, 2379 Broad Street, Brooksville, Florida.

The District does not discriminate based on disability. Anyone requiring reasonable accommodation under the ADA should contact (800)423-1476 (Florida only), extension 4609; TDD only (800)231-6103 (Florida only); FAX (352)754-6874.

NOTICE OF CANCELLATION – The South Florida Water Management District announces a public meeting to which all interested parties are invited:

DATE AND TIME: Tuesday, January 17, 2006, 5:00 p.m. – 8:00 p.m.

PLACE: Charles Deering Estate, 16701 S.W. 72nd Avenue, Village of Palmetto Bay, Florida 33157

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Water Resources Advisory Commission (WRAC) Biscayne Bay Coastal Wetlands Issues Workshop.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained: (1) District Website (www.sfwmd.gov/gover/wrac/webpage/agenda.html) or (2) by writing: South Florida Water Management District, Mail Stop 1131, P. O. Box 24680, West Palm Beach, FL 33416-4680.

Persons with disabilities who need assistance may contact the Director, Governing Board and Executive Services, (561)682-6371, at least two business days in advance of the meeting to make appropriate arrangements.

Those who want more information, please contact: Paula Moree, Governing Board and Executive Services, District Headquarters, 3301 Gun Club Road, Mail Stop Code 1131, West Palm Beach, FL 33406, (561)682-6447.

The South Florida Water Management District announces a public meeting to which all interested parties are invited:

DATE AND TIME: Wednesday, January 10, 2006, 1:00 p.m. until complete

PLACE: SFWMD Headquarters, B-1 Building, 3301 Gun Club Road, West Palm Beach, Florida 33416

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Regular Governing Board Human Resource and Outreach Committee to discuss and consider District business.

All or part of this meeting may be conducted as a teleconference in order to permit maximum participation of Governing Board members.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained: (1) District Website (www.sfwmd.gov/gover/GovBoard/webpage/agenda.html) or (2) by writing: South Florida Water Management District, Mail Stop 1131, P. O. Box 24680, West Palm Beach, FL 33416-4680.

Appeals from any South Florida Water Management District Board decision require a record of the proceedings. Although Governing Board meetings and hearings are normally recorded, affected persons are advised that it may be necessary for them to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, including the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.

Persons with disabilities who need assistance may contact the Director, Governing Board and Executive Services, (561)682-6371, at least two business days in advance of the meeting to make appropriate arrangements.

Those who want more information, please contact Director, Governing Board and Executive Services, (561)682-6371. District Headquarters, 3301 Gun Club Road, Mail Stop Code 1131, West Palm Beach, FL 33406.

The South Florida Water Management District announces a public meeting to which all interested parties are invited:

DATE AND TIME: Wednesday, January 25, 2006, 9:00 a.m.

PLACE: Southwest Florida Regional Planning Council, 1926 Victoria Avenue, Fort Myers, Florida 33901

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Water Resources Advisory Commission (WRAC) Lake Okeechobee Committee Meeting.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained: (1) District Website (www.sfwmd.gov/gover/wrac/webpage/agenda.html) or (2) by writing: South Florida Water Management District, Mail Stop 1131, P. O. Box 24680, West Palm Beach, FL 33416-4680.

Persons with disabilities who need assistance may contact the Director, Governing Board and Executive Services, (561)682-6371, at least two business days in advance of the meeting to make appropriate arrangements.

Those who want more information, please contact Paula Moree, Governing Board and Executive Services, (561)682-6447, District Headquarters, 3301 Gun Club Road, Mail Stop Code 1131, West Palm Beach, FL 33406.

The South Florida Water Management District announces a public meeting to which all interested parties are invited:

DATE AND TIME: Friday, January 27, 2006, 9:00 a.m.

PLACE: The South Florida Water Management District, Richard Rogers Conference Room in Building B-1, 3301 Gun Club Road, West Palm Beach, Florida

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Meeting of the Lake Belt Mitigation Committee, created pursuant to Section 373.41492, Florida Statutes, to review, discuss and approve 2006 Annual Report, meeting minutes and other mitigation committee matters. Meet Me# (850)410-8045; Suncom # 210-8045.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained: (1) District website: <http://www.sfwmd.gov/org/pld/proj/lakebelt/mitigcom.html> or (2) by writing: South Florida Water Management District, Attention: Beth McArdle, MSC 7350, 3301 Gun Club Road, P. O. Box 24680, West Palm Beach, FL 33416-4680.

Appeals from any South Florida Water Management District Board decision require a record of the proceedings. Although Governing Board meetings and hearings are normally recorded, affected persons are advised that it may be necessary

for them to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, including the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.

Persons with disabilities who need assistance may contact the District Clerk, (561)686-8800, at least two business days in advance of the meeting to make appropriate arrangements.

Those who want more information, please contact: Beth McArdle, Land Resources Department, District Headquarters, 3301 Gun Club Road, Mail Stop Code 7350, West Palm Beach, FL 33406, telephone (561)682-6172.

The **South Florida Water Management District** announces public meetings, which may be conducted by means of or in conjunction with communications media technology, specifically by telephonic conference to which all interested parties are invited:

DATE AND TIME: See List of Pre-Scheduled Meeting Dates Attached; 9:30 a.m. Unless Otherwise Noted

2006 Pre-Scheduled Conflict Resolution Board Meeting Dates and Location

Date	Room Assigned	Date	Room Assigned
January 5*	2B	January 20	2B
January 6**	2B	January 23***	3A
February 6	3A	February 21	Everglades Rm.
February 7	3A	February 22***	2B
March 6	3A	March 20	3A
March 7	3A	March 21	3B
April 5	3A	April 20	2A
April 6*	3B	April 21	3B
May 5	3B	May 22	3A
May 8	3A	May 23	3B
June 5	3B	June 20	3B
June 6	3A	June 21	2B
July 5	3B	July 20	2B
July 6	2B	July 21	2B
August 7	3A	August 21	3A
August 8	2B	August 22	2B
September 5	3A	September 20	3A
September 6	2B	September 21	2B
October 5	2B	October 20	2B
October 6	3A	October 23	3A
November 6	3A	November 20	3A
November 7	2B	November 21	2B
December 5	3B	December 20	2A
December 6	2B	December 21	2B

*Meeting begins at 11:00 a.m.

**Meeting begins at 2:00 p.m.

***Meeting begins at 1:00 p.m.

PLACE: South Florida Water Management District Headquarters, B-1 Building, 3301 Gun Club Road, West Palm Beach, Florida 33406

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Conflict Resolution Board Meeting.

A copy of the meeting dates and conference rooms is attached. All meetings will begin at 9:30 a.m. unless otherwise noted.

A copy of any meeting material may be obtained by writing: South Florida Water Management District, P. O. Box 24680, Mail Stop Code 6510, West Palm Beach, Florida 33416-4680.

Appeals from any South Florida Water Management District decision may require a record of the proceedings. Affected persons are advised that it may be necessary for them to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, including the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.

Persons with disabilities who need assistance may contact the Employee Relations Manager, (561)682-6352, at least two business days in advance of the meeting to make appropriate arrangements.

Those who desire more information may contact: Rosanne Smith, Employee Relations Manager, Human Resource Department, District Headquarters, 3301 Gun Club Road, West Palm Beach, Florida 33406, telephone (561)682-6352.

NOTICE OF CANCELLATION – The South Florida Water Management District announces a public meeting to which all interested parties are invited:

DATE AND TIME: Wednesday, January 4, 2006 from immediately after the Audit and Finance Committee Meeting on January 4, 2006 or 1:00 p.m., whichever comes first and until complete.

PLACE: SFWMD Headquarters, B-1 Building, 3301 Gun Club Road, West Palm Beach, Florida 33416

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Regular Governing Board Land Resource and Regulatory Committee to discuss and consider District business.

All or part of this meeting may be conducted as a teleconference in order to permit maximum participation of Governing Board members.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained: (1) District Website (www.sfwmd.gov/gover/GovBoard/webpage/agenda.html) or (2) by writing: South Florida Water Management District, Mail Stop 1130, P. O. Box 24680, West Palm Beach, FL 33416-4680.

Appeals from any South Florida Water Management District Board decision require a record of the proceedings. Although Governing Board meetings and hearings are normally recorded, affected persons are advised that it may be necessary

for them to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, including the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.

Persons with disabilities who need assistance may contact the Director, Governing Board and Executive Services, (561)682-6371, at least two business days in advance of the meeting to make appropriate arrangements.

Those who want more information, please contact: Director, Governing Board and Executive Services, District Headquarters, 3301 Gun Club Road, Mail Stop Code 1130, West Palm Beach, FL 33406, (561)682-6371.

NOTICE OF CANCELLATION – The South Florida Water Management District announces a public meeting to which all interested parties are invited:

DATE AND TIME: Wednesday, January 4, 2006, 9:00 a.m. until complete.

PLACE: SFWMD Headquarters, B-1 Building, 3301 Gun Club Road, West Palm Beach, Florida 33406

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Regular Governing Board Finance and Audit Committee to discuss and consider District business.

All or part of this meeting may be conducted as a teleconference in order to permit maximum participation of Governing Board members.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained: (1) District Website (www.sfwmd.gov/gover/GovBoard/webpage/agenda.html) or (2) by writing: South Florida Water Management District, Mail Stop 1130, P. O. Box 24680, West Palm Beach, FL 33416-4680.

Appeals from any South Florida Water Management District Board decision require a record of the proceedings. Although Governing Board meetings and hearings are normally recorded, affected persons are advised that it may be necessary for them to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, including the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.

Persons with disabilities who need assistance may contact the Director, Governing Board and Executive Services, (561)682-6371, at least two business days in advance of the meeting to make appropriate arrangements.

Those who want more information, please contact Director, Governing Board and Executive Services, District Headquarters, 3301 Gun Club Road, Mail Stop Code 1131, West Palm Beach, FL 33406, (561)682-6371.

REGIONAL UTILITY AUTHORITIES

The **Withlacoochee Regional Water Supply Authority** announces that the Authority’s Master Plan – Technical Review Committee will hold the following public meetings to which all persons are invited:

DATE AND TIME: January 12, 2006, 10:00 a.m.

PLACE: Hernando County Utilities Department, 21030 Cortez Boulevard, Brooksville, Florida 34601

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: To review data and assumptions for the Authority’s Master Plan update prepared by the Authority’s consultants.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by writing: WRWSA, P. O. Drawer 190, Tallahassee, Florida 32302.

Although these board meetings are normally recorded, affected persons are advised that it may be necessary for them to make their own arrangements if a verbatim record of the meeting is needed, including testimony and evidence upon which any appeal is to be based.

The **Withlacoochee Regional Water Supply Authority** announces that the Authority will hold its regular January monthly board meeting as scheduled. This is a public meeting to which all persons are invited:

DATE AND TIME: January 18, 2006, 4:30 p.m.

PLACE: Hernando County Government Center, County Commission Chambers, 20 N. Main Street, Brooksville, FL 34601

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: To conduct regular business of the Authority.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by writing: Withlacoochee Regional Water Supply Authority, P. O. Drawer 190, Tallahassee, Florida 32302.

Although these board meetings are normally recorded, affected persons are advised that it may be necessary for them to make their own arrangements if a verbatim record of the meeting is needed, including testimony and evidence upon which any appeal is to be based.

The **Peace River/Manasota Regional Water Supply Authority** announces the following Board of Directors meeting to which the public is invited.

DATE AND TIME: Wednesday, January 4, 2006, 10:00 a.m.

PLACE: DeSoto County Administration Building, 201 East Oak Street, Arcadia, FL

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: The Board of Directors will convene to conduct regular business of the Authority.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by writing: Peace River/Manasota Regional Water Supply Authority, 1645 Barber Road, Suite A, Sarasota, Florida 34240.

Although Authority board meetings are normally recorded, affected persons are advised it may be necessary for them to ensure a verbatim record of the meeting is made, including testimony and evidence upon which an appeal is to be based.

Persons with disabilities who need assistance may call (941)316-1776 at least two business days in advance to make appropriate arrangements.

DEPARTMENT OF VETERANS' AFFAIRS

The Florida **Department of Veterans' Affairs** announces a meeting for the Site Selection Committee for the seventh state veteran's home.

DATE AND TIME: Wednesday, January 11, 2006, 1:00 p.m. – 3:00 p.m.

PLACE: Mary Grizzle Building, 11351 Ulmerton Road, Largo, Florida 33778, or by meet me number, (850)410-0961, SunCom 210-0961

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: The Committee will discuss the site/sites available for consideration for placement of the new state veteran's home.

For additional information contact: Lyndette Aguirre, (727)518-3202 ext. 514

Any person requiring special accommodations due to a disability or physical impairment should contact the agency at least five days prior to the meeting in order to request any special assistance by calling (727)518-3202, ext 514.

SPACEPORT FLORIDA AUTHORITY

The **Florida Space Authority** announces a Pioneer Cup Committee meeting to which the public is invited.

DATE AND TIME: January 4, 2006, 9:00 a.m. – 11:00 a.m. EST

PLACE: Florida Space Authority Conference Room, 100 Spaceport Way, Cape Canaveral, Florida 32920-4003

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: The Committee will discuss the status of the Pioneer Cup program, including milestones and range safety requirements.

For more information, contact Glenn Vera, (321)730-5301, ext. 244. To obtain a copy of the agenda, write: Florida Space Authority, 100 Spaceport Way, Cape Canaveral, Florida 32920-4003 or visit their website at www.floridaspaceauthority.com.

Any person requiring special accommodation at this meeting because of a disability or physical impairment should contact Florida Space Authority at least seven (7) days prior to the meeting.

Please note that if a person decides to appeal any decision made by the Pioneer Cup Committee with respect to any matter considered at the above cited meeting or hearing, they will need a record of the proceedings, and for such purpose, they may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.

DEPARTMENT OF ELDER AFFAIRS

NOTICE OF CANCELLATION – The **Special Needs Shelter Interagency Committee** Meeting is hereby cancelled.

DATE AND TIME: Monday, January 9, 2006, 1:00 p.m. – 5:00 p.m.

PLACE: Department of Elder Affairs, Room 225F, 4040 Esplanade Way, Tallahassee, FL 32399-7000

If you have any questions or concerns please contact: Lisa McAdams, (850)245-4444, or by mail: 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-7000.

The **Department of Elder Affairs** will hold a conference call with the signers of the Triad Resolution and other interested parties:

DATE AND TIME: Tuesday, January 17, 2006, beginning at 11:00 a.m.

PLACE: The call in number is (850)410-0966 or suncom 210-0966

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: To discuss matters related to the Statewide Triad.

For a copy of the agenda contact: Ann Getman, (850)414-2072 or Suncom 994-2072.

The Florida **Department of Elder Affairs** is preparing the Master Plan on Aging, 2006-2008, a policy document that guides the actions and procedures for the provision of services to older citizens throughout the State of Florida. According to Chapter 430, F.S., "the plan must include policy goals and program strategies designed to respond efficiently to current and projected needs." Three public meetings are being held throughout the state to offer citizens the opportunity to provide input on the plan.

The meetings are scheduled as follows:

DATE AND TIME: Tuesday, January 17, 2006, 2:00 p.m. – 4:00 p.m.

PLACE: University Village Retirement Center, 12401 N. 22nd St., Tampa, FL 33612

DATE AND TIME: Wednesday, January 18, 2006, 9:00 a.m. – 11:00 a.m.

PLACE: Northwest Focal Point Senior Center, 6009 N.W. 10th Street, Margate, FL 33063

DATE AND TIME: Wednesday, February 1, 2006, 2:00 p.m. – 4:00 p.m.

PLACE: Radisson WorldGate Hotel, 3011 Maingate Lane, Kissimmee, FL 34747

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: The Master Plan will focus on several topic issues, including Formal Long-Term Care, Informal Long-Term Care, Housing, Transportation, Employment/Volunteerism, Health/Wellness, Disaster Preparedness, and Elder Rights.

If you would like to provide comments on any of these issues, written testimony can be submitted to the department by mail to: Master Plan on Aging, 4040 Esplanade Way, Tallahassee, FL 32399.

Note: Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any persons requiring special accommodations to participate in this meeting is asked to advise the department at least 48 hours before the meeting by contacting Sherilyn Toro, (850) 414-2000. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the department by calling (800)955-8771.

NOTICE OF CANCELLATION – The Department of Elder Affairs has cancelled the rule development workshop scheduled:

DATE AND TIME: January 11, 2006, until further notice

The workshop was scheduled to implement Section 430.203(9)(a), Florida Statutes, regarding the development of guidelines for the request for proposal process for a Community Care for the Elderly (CCE) lead agency.

Should the workshop be rescheduled, it will be noticed in the Florida Administrative Weekly.

The person to be contacted regarding the workshop: Jim Crochet, Department of Elder Affairs, 4040 Esplanade Way, Suite 315, Tallahassee, FL 32399-7000, telephone (850)414-2000, E-mail address: crochethj@elderaffairs.org.

The Florida **Department of Elder Affairs** announces a meeting of the direct support organization of the Statewide Public Guardianship Office to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: January 9, 2006, 10:00 a.m. – 5:00 p.m.

PLACE: Conference Room B, Tampa International Airport, Tampa Florida

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: This will be a general business meeting of the direct support organization (DSO).

Any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this meeting is asked to advise the Statewide Public Guardianship Office at least 48 hours before the meeting by contacting: Ms. Frankie Leland, (850)414-2381.

If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the department by calling (850)414-2001.

AGENCY FOR HEALTH CARE ADMINISTRATION

The **Agency for Health Care Administration** announces two public meetings of the Council for the Regular Disproportionate Share Program to which all persons are invited.

DATES AND TIMES: January 10, 2006, 1:30 p.m. – 3:30 p.m.; January 24, 2006, 1:30 p.m. – 3:30 p.m.

PLACE: The meeting will be held via conference call at (850)414-1711; telephone (850)414 -1711

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Discussion of current developments in the disproportionate share hospital (DSH) and upper payment limit (UPL) programs.

The person to be contacted regarding the workshop: Edwin Stephens, (850)413-8067 or Suncom 294-8067, with any questions or to obtain an agenda when it is set.

Meetings of the **Agency for Health Care Administration, Medicaid Reform Technical Advisory Panel:**

DATE AND TIME: January 13, 2006, 2:00 p.m. – 5:00 p.m.

PLACE: 2727 Mahan Drive, Building 3, Conference Room A, Tallahassee, FL

DATE AND TIME: January 27, 2006, 9:00 a.m. – 12:00 Noon

PLACE: 2727 Mahan Drive, Building 3, Conference Room A, Tallahassee, Florida

DATE AND TIME: February 8, 2006, Telephone Conference Call, 2:00 p.m. – 4:00 p.m. (Meet-Me # (850)922-7892, Suncom 292-7892)

DATE AND TIME: February 21, 2006, 1:30 p.m. – 4:30 p.m.

PLACE: 2727 Mahan Drive, Building 3, Conference Room A, Tallahassee, Florida

DEPARTMENT OF MANAGEMENT SERVICES

The **Department of Management Services** – Enterprise Information Technology Services, Wireless 911 Board announces the following meeting schedule information:

DATE AND TIME: January 5, 2006, 1:30 p.m. – 5:00 p.m.

PLACE: State Operator Conference Dial Up

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Wireless 911 Board Educational Training Standards Subcommittee Conference Call to discuss issues related to training standards – 2 or more Board Members to participate

If accommodation due to disability is needed in order to participate, please notify the DMS – Enterprise Information Technology Services Office/Wireless 911 Board in writing at least five (5) days in advance at 4050 Esplanade Way, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0950.

The **Department of Management Services** – Enterprise Information Technology Services, Wireless 911 Board announces the following meeting schedule information:

DATE AND TIME: January 26, 2006, 9:00 a.m. – 2:00 p.m.

PLACE: Conference #(850)922-7892 or SUNCOM 292-7892

DATE AND TIME: February 9, 2006, 9:00 a.m. – 2:00 p.m.

PLACE: Conference #(850)922-7892 or SUNCOM 292-7892

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Wireless 911 Board Conference Call to discuss issues related to the 2005 Annual Report.

If accommodation due to disability is needed in order to participate, please notify the DMS – Enterprise Information Technology Services Office/Wireless 911 Board in writing at least five (5) days in advance at 4050 Esplanade Way, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0950.

The **Governor's Mansion Commission** announces a joint meeting of the Governor's Mansion Commission, the Governor's Mansion Foundation and the Architectural Oversight Committee to which all interested persons are invited:

DATE AND TIME: Thursday, January 12, 2006, 12:00 Noon
PLACE: The Governor's Mansion, Tallahassee, Florida
GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Regular Commission Meeting.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by writing or by telephone to: Department of Management Services, Facilities Management, 4050 Esplanade Way, Suite 315, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0950, (850)488-2074.

Persons wishing to attend must submit written background information to Traci Gerrell at the address listed above on or before January 4, 2006 to allow for the required security check. This written information must contain the name, address, social security number and date of birth of the person planning to attend.

The **Governor's Accessible Electronic and Information Technology (AeIT) Task Force** announces a meeting of its members, and a public comment period, to which all interested persons are invited.

TASK FORCE MEETING
DATE AND TIMES: January 10, 2006, 8:30 a.m. – 9:00 a.m. and 10:00 a.m. – 5:30 p.m.

PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD
DATE AND TIME: January 10, 2006, 9:00 a.m – 10:00 a.m.
PLACE: Park Plaza Hotel, 415 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, FL 32301; (850)224-6000

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: To make recommendations on increasing accessibility to the state's electronic and information technology systems for persons with disabilities.

American Sign Language Interpreters, Certified Real Time Captioning, Audio/Visual Accommodations, and alternative formats will be available on site.

If you require a different type of accommodation as mandated by the Americans with Disabilities Act, please contact Stacia Woolverton, (850)922.4103 (VOICE/TTY) by January 6, 2006.

The Florida **Commission on Human Relations** announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited. The meeting is being held at:

DATE AND TIME: Wednesday, January 11, 2006, 1:00 p.m. – 5:00 p.m.

PLACE: Florida Commission on Human Relations, 2009 Apalachee Parkway, Suite 100, Tallahassee, Florida 32301

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: This meeting will be held to discuss the daily functions and activities of the Commission.

CONTACT: Florida Commission on Human Relations, 2009 Apalachee Parkway, Suite 100, Tallahassee, Florida 32301 or call (850)488-7082.

The **Florida Black Business Investment Board** announces its teleconference meetings, for the next quarter, of its Loan and Investment Committee to which all interested persons are invited.

DATES AND TIME: Wednesday, January 11, 2006, Wednesday, February 8, 2006, Wednesday, March 8, 2006; 10:00 a.m.

PLACE: Teleconference – Call (850)878-0826
GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: To consider financing requests, receive reports relating to loan and investment activities, and approve actions taken by the Chairman and/or President under delegated authority.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: The Florida Black Business Support Corporation, 1711 South Gadsden Street, Tallahassee, FL 32301, telephone (850)487-4850.

If a person decides to take an appeal with respect to any matter considered at these meetings, he/she will need a record of the proceedings and, for such purpose, he/she may need to ensure that verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record should include the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.

If an accommodation is needed for a disability in order to attend these meeting, please notify the FBBSC office at (850)487-4850 at least seven (7) days prior to the meetings.

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION

The Florida **Board of Architecture and Interior Design** announces the following meetings, to which all persons are invited to attend.

DATE AND TIME: January 9, 2006, 10:00 a.m.
PLACE: Smith, Thompson, Shaw & Manausa, P.A., 2075 Centre Pointe Boulevard, Tallahassee, Florida 32308-4893
GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Probable Cause Panel Meeting, portions may be closed to the public.

The following cases are open to the public:
Architectural Specialty Services, Inc., Case No. 2005-035530
Nikki Bowden, Case No. 2005-043163

Carrie's Interiors, Case No. 2005-024740
 Patty Castillo, Case No. 2005-47653
 David Cogswell, Case No. 2005-053442
 CV Interiors, Case No. 2005-053230
 Design Concepts, Inc., Case No. 2005-027027
 Jeanne Durr, Case No. 2005-056173
 Steven Greenhut, Case No. 2005-053440
 Jim Fazio, Case No. 2005-048937
 Joseph Gould, Case No. 2005-042951
 Klaybor and Associates, Inc., Case No. 2004-037271
 Patrick Knowles, Case No. 2004-043534
 Kenneth Lang, Case No. 2005-007436
 Bobby Lecroy-Lansdown, Case No. 2005-048266, 2005-048734 & 2005-041872
 Barrie Livingtone, Case No. 2005-039728
 Allison Paladino, Case No. 2005-040094 & 2005-040087
 Marie Pearson, Case No. 2005-027494
 Sawgrass Studio, Case No. 2005-045529

To obtain a copy of the agenda, further information, or submit written or other physical evidence, contact in writing: Smith, Thompson, Shaw & Manausa, P.A., 2075 Centre Pointe Boulevard, Tallahassee, Florida 32308-4893.

If a person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, he/she will need a record of the proceedings, and for such purpose he/she may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.

Any person requiring a special accommodation at this meeting because of a disability or physical impairment should contact the Smith, Thompson, Shaw & Manausa, P.A., (850)402-1570 at least five calendar days prior to the meeting. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the Board office using the Florida Dual Party Relay System which can be reached at (800)955-8770 (Voice) and (800)955-8771 (TDD).

The Florida **Board of Professional Engineers** announces a public meeting of the Rules Committee to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Wednesday, January 18, 2006, 8:30 a.m.

PLACE: Florida Board of Professional Engineers, 2507 Callaway Road, Suite 200, Tallahassee, FL 32303

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: General business of the Committee.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by writing: Florida Board of Professional Engineers, 2507 Callaway Road, Suite 200, Tallahassee, Florida 32303.

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting, they will need a record of the proceedings, and for such

purposes they may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record will include the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be made.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this meeting is asked to advise the Board at least forty-eight (48) hours before the meeting by contacting: Paul J. Martin, (850)521-0500.

The Florida **Board of Professional Engineers** announces a public meeting of the Education Task Force Committee which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Wednesday, January 18, 2006, 3:00 p.m.

PLACE: Florida Board of Professional Engineers, 2507 Callaway Road, Suite 200, Tallahassee, FL 32303

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: General business of the Committee.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by writing: Florida Board of Professional Engineers, 2507 Callaway Road, Suite 200, Tallahassee, Florida 32303.

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting, they will need a record of the proceedings, and for such purposes they may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record will include the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be made.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this meeting is asked to advise the Board at least forty-eight (48) hours before the meeting by contacting Paul J. Martin, (850)521-0500.

The Florida **Board of Professional Engineers** announces a board training workshop that is open to the public.

DATE AND TIME: Thursday, January 19, 2006, 8:30 a.m.

PLACE: Florida Board of Professional Engineers, 2507 Callaway Road, Suite 200, Tallahassee, FL 32303

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Board member training, review board policies and develop better procedures.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by writing: Florida Board of Professional Engineers, 2507 Callaway Road, Suite 200, Tallahassee, Florida 32303.

If any person decides to appeal and decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting, they will need a record of the proceedings, and for such purposes they may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record will include the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be made.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this meeting is asked to advise the Board at least forty-eight (48) hours before the meeting by contacting Paul J. Martin, (850)521-0500.

The **Board of Accountancy** announces the following public meetings to which all persons are invited:

DATES AND TIMES: Thursday, January 26, 2006, 9:00 a.m. until all Probable Cause Panel business is concluded; Thursday, January 26, 2006, 2:00 p.m. until all Budget Task Force business is concluded; Thursday, January 26, 2006, 3:30 p.m. until all Rules business is concluded; Friday, January 27, 2006, 9:00 a.m. until all Board Meeting business is concluded
PLACE: Marriott Orlando Downtown, 400 West Livingston Street, Orlando, FL 32801

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: The Probable Cause Panel will meet to conduct hearings on disciplinary matters. These meetings are closed to the public; however, there may be cases where probable cause was previously found which are to be reconsidered. The Budget Task Force will meet to discuss the budget. This is a public meeting. The Board will meet to discuss rule changes. This is a public meeting. The Board will meet to consider enforcement proceedings including consideration of investigation officers' reports and other general business. This is a public meeting.

A copy of any probable cause materials which are open to the public, any budget materials and/or the Board agenda may be obtained by writing: John W. Johnson, Division Director, Division of Certified Public Accounting, 240 N.W. 76th Drive, Suite A, Gainesville, Florida 32607.

Note: Portions of the Probable Cause Panel meeting may be closed to the public.

If a person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at these meetings, he/she may need to insure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is based.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/hearing/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 48 hours before the workshop/hearing/meeting by contacting: John W. Johnson, (850)487-1395.

If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency by calling (800)955-8711.

The **Florida Mobile Home Relocation Corporation** announces a meeting of its Board of Directors. The board will consider mobile home applications for abandonment and relocation compensation due to evictions as a result of a change in land use.

DATE AND TIME: Wednesday, January 11, 2006, 9:30 a.m.

PLACE: Shady Lane Oaks, 15777 Bolesta Rd., Clearwater, FL 33760

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Official business of the Florida Mobile Home Relocation Corporation. Review of mobile home owner applications for compensation for relocation and/or abandonment due to change in land use, and such other business as may come before the board. A schedule for the next meeting will be determined.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 48 hours before the meeting by contacting: Mandy Lemons, (888)862-7010.

Additional information may be obtained by contacting: Mandy Lemons, Executive Director, FMHRC, P. O. Box 14125 Tallahassee, FL 32317-4125, (888)862-7010.

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Pursuant to Chapter 2003-145, Laws of Florida, all notices for the Department of Environmental Protection are published on the Internet at the Department of Environmental Protection's home page at <http://www.dep.state.fl.us/> under the link or button titled "Official Notices."

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

The **Department of Health**, Office of Trauma, announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Wednesday, January 25, 2006, 2:00 p.m. – 4:00 p.m.

PLACE: Radisson Riverwalk Hotel, 1515 Prudential Drive, Jacksonville, FL 32207, (904)396-5100/(800)333-3333; Toll Free Number to call into meeting: (800)416-4245

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: A subcommittee (Trauma Agency/Trauma System Evaluation Subcommittee), appointed by the State Trauma System Plan Implementation Committee, is holding a meeting to assist the Department of Health in the implementation of a trauma system evaluation tool to evaluate trauma care in areas of the state that do not have trauma agencies.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by writing: Department of Health, Office of Trauma, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C-18, Tallahassee, FL 32399-1738 or by calling George Schaffer, (850)245-4440.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this conference call is asked to advise the agency before January 18, 2006, by contacting George Schaffer, (850)245-4440.

If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Dual Party Relay System which can be reached at (800)955-8770 (Voice) and (800)955-8771 (TDD). Purchase Order Number B00829.

The **Department of Health**, Office of Trauma, announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Thursday, January 26, 2006, 11:30 a.m. – 1:00 p.m.

PLACE: Radisson Riverwalk Hotel, 1515 Prudential Drive, Jacksonville, FL 32207, (904)396-5100/(800)333-3333, Toll Free Number to call into meeting: (800)416-4254

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: A committee appointed by the Office of Trauma is holding a meeting to assist the Department of Health in the implementation of the 1999 trauma legislation which requires the development of criteria for the consultation and transfer of trauma victims between trauma centers and acute care hospitals.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by writing: Department of Health, Office of Trauma, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-18, Tallahassee, FL 32399-1738 or by calling George Schaffer, (850)245-4440.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this meeting is asked to advise the agency before January 19, 2006, by contacting George Schaffer, (850)245-4440.

If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Dual Party Relay System which can be reached at (800)955-8770 (Voice) and (800)955-8771 (TDD). Purchase Order Number B00829.

The **Department of Health, Board of Clinical Social Work, Marriage and Family Therapy and Mental Health Counseling** announces an official Board meeting. All interested parties are invited to attend at the address listed below, which is normally open to the public.

DATES AND TIMES: January 26, 2006, 1:00 p.m.; January 27, 2006, 9:00 a.m.

PLACE: Rosen Centre Hotel, 9840 International Drive, Orlando, FL 32819, (407)996-2344

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Official Board Meeting.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by writing: Sue Foster, Executive Director, Department of Health, Board of Clinical Social Work, Marriage and Family Therapy and Mental Health Counseling 4052 Bald Cypress Way, BIN #C08, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3258.

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be made.

Those who are hearing impaired, using TDD equipment can call the Florida Telephone Relay System at (800)955-8771. Persons requiring special accommodations due to disability or physical impairment should contact Sue Foster, (850)245-4474 at least one week prior to the meeting.

The Florida **Board of Medicine's**, Probable Cause Panel (South) announces a telephone conference call to be held via meet me number.

DATE AND TIME: January 13, 2006, 2:00 p.m.

PLACE: Meet me Number: Contact Florida Board of Medicine, (850)245-4131 for the meet me number.

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: To conduct a private meeting to review cases for which a determination of probable cause is to be made and to conduct a public meeting to review cases on which probable cause has been made.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by writing: Gaynetta Rosier, Regulation Specialist II, Agency for Health Care Administration, Medical Services, Palmer Building, P. O. Box 14229, Tallahassee, Florida 32317-4229.

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be made.

NOTE: In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, persons needing a special accommodation to participate in this proceeding should contact the Medical Litigation Section no later than seven (7) days prior to the proceeding or meeting at which such special accommodation is required. The Medical Litigation Section may be contacted: P. O. Box 14229, Tallahassee, Florida 322317-4229, telephone (850)922-2414; (800)955-8771(TDD) or (800)955-8770(Voice) via Florida Relay Service.

The **Board of Nursing** Central Probable Cause Panel will hold a duly noticed teleconference call meeting, to which all persons are invited to attend.

DATE AND TIME: January 18, 2006, 5:00 p.m. – 8:00 p.m.

PLACE: Department of Health, Tallahassee at Meet Me Number (850)921-6433

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: For cases previously heard by the panel.

Any person requiring special accommodations at this meeting because of a disability or physical impairment should contact the Board, (850)245-4125 at least 48 hours prior to the

meeting. If you are a hearing or speech impaired, please contact the Board office using the Dual Party Relay System at (800)955-8770 (Voice) and (800)955-8771 (TDD).

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence from which the appeal is to be issued.

A copy of the agenda item may be obtained by writing to: Dan Coble, Executive Director, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C02, Tallahassee, FL 32399-3257.

The Florida Emergency Medical Services Advisory Council Committees, Constituency Groups, Florida Emergency Medical Services for Children Advisory Committee, and the Florida Emergency Medical Advisory Council will hold their quarterly meetings.

DATES AND TIMES: January 25, 2006, 8:00 a.m. – 6:00 p.m.; January 26, 2006, 8:00 a.m. – 6:00 p.m.; January 27, 2006, 8:00 a.m. – 2:00 p.m.

PLACE: Prime Osbourne Convention Center, 1000 Water Street, Jacksonville, FL 32204, (904)630-4000

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: To conduct general business of the council.

A schedule of meetings or an agenda may be obtained by contacting Desi Lassiter, Bureau of Emergency Medical Services, (850)245-4055.

Any person requiring a special accommodation at this meeting because of a disability or physical impairment, should contact: Bureau of Emergency Medical Services, (850)245-4055, at least 48 hours prior to the meeting.

If you are hearing or speech impaired, please call the Bureau of Emergency Medical Services using the Florida Dual Party Relay System which can be reached at (800)955-8770 (voice) and (800)955-8771 (TDD).

For further information, write: Desi Lassiter, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C18 (HEMS), Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1738 or call (850)245-4440.

DEPARTMENT OF CHILDREN AND FAMILY SERVICES

The **Council on Homelessness** announces a series of conference call meetings of its Barriers & Support Services, Data Collections, Supportive Housing Development, and Executive Committees, to which all persons are invited.

COMMITTEE: Barriers & Support Services

DATES AND TIME: Tuesday, January 3, 2006, February 3, 2006 and March 7, 2006, 2:00 – 3:00 p.m.

1st Tuesday

PLACE: Conference Call (850)488-7483 or Suncom 278-7483
Confirmation Number: 30g1129

COMMITTEE: Data Collection

DATES AND TIME: Thursday, January 5, 2006, February 2, 2006, March 2, 2006, 11:00 a.m. – 12:00 Noon

1st Thursday

PLACE: Conference Call (850)414-1710 or Suncom 944-1710

Confirmation Number: 30g1129

COMMITTEE: Planning/Executive

DATES AND TIME: Monday, January 9, 2006, February 6, 2006 and March 6, 2006, 3:00 – 4:00 p.m.

1st Monday

PLACE: Conference Call (850)414-1706 or Suncom 994-1706

Confirmation Number: 30c1129

COMMITTEE: Supportive Housing

DATES AND TIME: Thursday, January 26, 2006, February 23, 2006 and March 23, 2006, 2:00 p.m. – 3:00 p.m.

4th Thursday

PLACE: Conference Call (850)488-3676 or Suncom 278-3676

Confirmation Number: 30i1129

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: These conference calls will address the committees' continued development of policy recommendations and work tasks to address the Council's Strategic Plan to reduce the number of persons who may be facing homelessness in Florida.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Tom Pierce, State Office on Homelessness, 1317 Winewood Boulevard, Tallahassee, FL 32399-0700, (850)922-9850, Tom_Pierce@dcf.state.fl.us.

Pursuant to Section 286.26, Florida Statutes, any disabled person wishing to access this meeting who may be in need of special assistance should contact the Office on Homelessness (850)922-4691, at least 48 hours in advance of this meeting.

The **Department of Children and Family Services**, SunCoast Region Mental Health Program Office announces the following public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: January 11, 2006, 9:00 a.m. – 10:00 a.m.

PLACE: Department of Children and Family Services, 11351 Ulmerton Road, Room 142A, Largo, FL 33778

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Designation of a new 15 bed adult Crisis Stabilization Unit in St. Petersburg, FL as a Baker Act Receiving Facility.

Persons needing special accommodation to participate in the meeting because of a disability or physical impairment should call Gardenia Johnson, DCF, (727)588-6834 at least 3 days in advance.

The **Department of Children and Family Services**, SunCoast Region Mental Health Program Office announces the following public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: January 11, 2006, 10:00 a.m. – 11:00 a.m.
 PLACE: Department of Children and Family Services, 11351
 Ulmerton Road, Room 142A, Largo, FL 33778

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED:
 Designation of a new 15 bed adult Short-Term Residential
 Treatment facility in Pinellas Park, FL as a Baker Act
 Receiving Facility.

Persons needing special accommodation to participate in the
 meeting because of a disability or physical impairment should
 call Gardenia Johnson, DCF, (727)588-6834, at least 3 days in
 advance.

FLORIDA HOUSING FINANCE CORPORATION

Florida Housing Finance Corporation will hold one
 Universal Application workshop for the 2006 Universal
 Application Cycle. The workshop is scheduled for:

DATE AND TIME: Tuesday, January 17, 2006, 10:00 a.m.
 (start time) until finished – (no later than 4:00 p.m.)

PLACE: Tallahassee City Hall, Commission Chambers, 300
 South Adams Street, Tallahassee, FL

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED:
 During the workshop, Florida Housing staff will present basic
 information about using the Universal Application and discuss
 the changes between the 2005 and 2006 Universal
 Applications. Those planning to apply for the first time or who
 are unfamiliar with the Universal Application process, as well
 as persons who are familiar with the Universal Application, are
 encouraged to attend the workshop.

The workshop is open to the public. No pre-registration is
 required and there is no attendance fee.

The latest drafts of the Universal Application and Instructions,
 Qualified Allocation Plan (QAP) and Rule Chapters 67-21 and
 67-48, F.A.C., which govern the Universal Application
 Programs, are available on Florida Housing's Website
http://www.floridahousing.org/Home/Developers/Funding/2006UnivApp/2006UniversalApp_Instructions.htm

The final 2006 Universal Application, QAP and Rules will be
 available on Florida Housing's Website prior to the January 17
 workshop. These final documents will be used at the workshop
 and attendees should print and bring copies, as there will not be
 copies available for the public at the workshop.

IMPORTANT: Due to the complexity of the application
 process, attendees are encouraged to review the materials
 ahead of time and be prepared to ask questions at the
 workshop. If you wish to confirm the date and time for the
 workshop or if additional information is needed, please feel
 free to contact Jean Salmonsens by telephone at (850)488-4197
 or by e-mail at jean.salmonsens@floridahousing.org.

NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT

RULE CHAPTER TITLE: Homeownership Opportunity Pool Program
 RULE CHAPTER NO.: 67-57

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose of this rule chapter is
 to establish procedures for the Homeownership Opportunity
 Pool Program (HOPP) by which the Corporation shall:

(1) Administer the application process, determine loan
 amounts, service loans, and provide purchase assistance to
 eligible homebuyers under the Florida Homeownership
 Assistance Program (HAP); and

(2) Administer the application process, determine loan
 amounts, service loans, and provide purchase assistance to
 eligible homebuyers under the HOME Investment Partnerships
 Program (HOME).

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: The Rule
 Development Workshop will be held to receive comments and
 suggestions from interested persons.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 420.507, 420.5088, 420.5089 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 420.507(23), 420.5088, 420.5089(2)
 FS.

THE RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE
 HELD AT THE DATE, TIME AND PLACE SHOWN
 BELOW:

DATE AND TIME: Thursday, January 19, 2006, 10:00 a.m. –
 12:00 Noon

PLACE: Tampa Hyatt Regency, Two Tampa City Center, 211
 North Tampa Street, Tampa, FL 33602, telephone:
 (813)225-1234

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE
 PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS: Bridget Warring,
 Homeownership Loan Program Manager, Florida Housing
 Finance Corporation, 227 North Bronough Street, Tallahassee,
 Florida 32301, (850)488-4197

The preliminary text of the proposed rule will be posted on
 Florida Housing Finance Corporation's web site:
www.floridahousing.org when available.

Any person requiring special accommodation at this hearing
 because of a disability or physical impairment should contact
 Bridget Warring at the above address. If you are hearing or
 speech impaired, please use the Florida Dual Party Relay
 system, which can be reached at (800)955-8770 (Voice) or
 (800)955-9771 (TDD).

The **Florida Housing Finance Corporation** announces a
 meeting of the Board of Directors to which all interested
 parties are invited:

DATE AND TIME: January 20, 2006, 9:00 a.m. until
 adjourned

PLACE: Hyatt Regency Tampa, Two Tampa City Center,
 Tampa, FL 33602, (813)225-1234

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED:

1. Consider financing and acknowledgement resolutions for various multifamily developments, under any multifamily program, including the ranking of developments.
2. Consider appointment of professionals including but not limited to trustee and/or originator/servicer for upcoming and/or past multifamily programs and single-family programs.
3. Consider approval of all bond documents for and terms of all upcoming single-family and multifamily bond sales, including those secured by third-party guarantors, letters-of-credit, insurance or other mechanisms.
4. Consider adopting resolutions authorizing negotiated or competitive sale of bonds on various single-family and multifamily issues.
5. Consider directing Staff to submit summaries of various TEFRA/Public Hearings to the Governor.
6. Consideration of policy issues concerning ongoing and upcoming single-family bond issues including initiation of request for proposals on an emergency basis, and structuring new issues.
7. Consideration of all necessary actions with regard to the Multifamily Bond Program.
8. Consideration of approval of underwriters for inclusion on approved master list and teams.
9. Consideration of all necessary actions with regard to the HOME Rental Program.
10. Consideration of all necessary actions with regard to the HC (Housing Credits) Program.
11. Consideration of all necessary actions with regard to the SAIL (State Apartment Incentive Loan) Program.
12. Consideration of all necessary actions with regard to the SHIP (State Housing Initiatives Partnership) Program.
13. Consideration of all necessary actions with regard to the PLP (Predevelopment Loan) Program.
14. Consideration of all necessary actions with regard to the Homeownership Programs.
15. Consideration of all necessary actions for initiating new rules or rule amendments on an emergency or non-emergency basis.
16. Consideration of Appeals from Universal Cycle ranking and grading with entry of final orders.
17. Consideration of workouts or modifications for existing projects funded by the Corporation.
18. Consideration of matters relating to the stated purpose of the Corporation to provide safe and sanitary housing that is affordable for the residents of Florida.
19. Consideration of funding additional reserves for the Guarantee Fund.
20. Consideration of audit issues.
21. Evaluation of professional and consultant performance.
22. Such other matters as may be included on the Agenda for the January 20, 2006, Board Meeting.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained approximately two days prior to the meeting by contacting: Sheila Freaney, Board Liaison, Florida Housing Finance Corporation, 227 North Bronough Street, Suite 5000, Tallahassee, Florida 32301-1329, telephone number (850)488-4197, or by visiting the Corporation's website at www.floridahousing.org.

Any person requiring a special accommodation at this meeting because of a disability or physical impairment should contact Sheila Freaney at the Florida Housing Finance Corporation at (850)488-4197 at least five calendar days prior to the meeting. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the Corporation using the Florida Dual Party Relay System, which can be reached at (800)955-8770 (Voice) and (800)955-8771 (TDD).

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Corporation with respect to any matter considered at this meeting, he or she will need a record of the proceedings, and for such purpose, he or she may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings be made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.

FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION

The Florida **Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission** (FWC) announces a public meeting of the FWC, Florida Alligator Marketing and Education Committee, and the Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services (DACS) to which all interested persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Friday, January 6, 2006, 1:30 – 3:00 p.m. EST

PLACE: Call-In Meeting (850)487-8540

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: The purpose of this public meeting is to discuss possible changes to Sections 372.6673 and 372.6674, F.S., regarding transfers of monies from the FWC to DACS to support alligator marketing and education activities.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 calendar days before the workshop/meeting by contacting the ADA Coordinator, (850)488-6411.

If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency by calling (850)488-9542. For further information contact: Harry J. Dutton, 620 S. Meridian Street, Tallahassee, Florida, (850)488-3831.

The Florida **Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission** has scheduled a public meeting with the recreational stakeholders regarding the proposed framework for penalties applied to violations of statutes and Commission rules relative to recreational use of fish and wildlife resources under Chapter 370 or 372, F.S., to which all interested persons are invited:

DATE AND TIME: January 17, 2006, 6:00 p.m. – 8:00 p.m.
PLACE: 2nd Floor Auditorium, Bryant Building, 620 South Meridian Street, Tallahassee, Florida

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: The purpose of this meeting with the recreational stakeholders is to work out differences on those issues for which there is no concurrence. The goal is to provide consistency among similar recreational violations, create a schedule for increased penalties for those who repeatedly violate fish and wildlife laws, and add the Wildlife Violators Compact to Florida law.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in the workshop or meeting is asked to advise the Commission at least 5 calendar days prior by calling the ADA Coordinator, (850)488-6411. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency by calling (850) 488-9542.

The **Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission (FWC), Division of Law Enforcement**, announces the following Boating Advisory Council's Non-Motorized Vessels' Subcommittee public meeting, to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: January 31, 2006, 9:00 a.m.

PLACE: Hilton University of Florida Conference Center, 1714 S.W. 34th Street, Gainesville, FL 32607

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Meeting of the Boating Advisory Council's Non-Motorized Vessels' Subcommittee.

An agenda of the meeting may be obtained by contacting: Ms. Shelly Gurr, FWC, Division of Law Enforcement, Boating Advisory Council, 620 South Meridian Street, Room 235, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1600, (850)488-5600.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this meeting is asked to advise the agency at least five calendar days before the meeting by contacting: ADA Coordinator, (850)488-6411. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency by calling (850)488-9542.

The Florida **Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission** has scheduled a public meeting. This notice announces the date, time and place of that meeting to which all interested persons are invited:

DATES AND TIME: February 1-2, 2006, 8:30 a.m., each day

PLACE: Hilton-University of Florida Conference Center, 1714 S.W. 34 Street, Gainesville, Florida

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: To review and discuss substantive and procedural issues associated with the Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission and to take action on proposed rules and policy issues.

A copy of the proposed agenda may be obtained from: Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission, 620 S. Meridian St., Tallahassee, FL 32399-1600.

If any person decides to challenge any decision with respect to any matter considered at the above meeting, a record of the proceeding will be needed. For this purpose, you may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made which includes testimony and evidence upon which the challenge is to be based. Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in the workshop or meeting is asked to advise the Commission at least 5 calendar days prior by calling the, ADA Coordinator, (850)488-6411. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency by calling (850)488-9542.

LEGAL AUTHORITY: Article IV, Section 9, Florida Constitution.

The **Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission** announces a public workshop concerning shark, to which all interested persons are invited:

DATE AND TIME: January 16, 2006, 6:30 p.m. – 8:30 p.m.

PLACE: Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission South Regional Office, 8535 Northlake Blvd., West Palm Beach, Florida

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: The Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission is holding a workshop to gather public testimony regarding proposed rule language to designate Atlantic Angel Shark, Bigeye Sixgill Shark, Bigeye Thresher Shark, Bignose Shark, Caribbean Reef Shark, Dusky Shark, Galapagos Shark, Longfin Mako Shark, Narrowtooth Shark, Night Shark, Sevengill Shark, Sixgill Shark, and Smalltail Shark as prohibited species, thus prohibiting the harvest, landing, possession, purchase, and sale of these species of sharks due to concerns about their vulnerability to depletion. The rule is also being updated by deleting reference to "protected species" status, a designation that has ceased to have significance. The effect of the proposed rule will be to reduce fishing mortality on these species in order to rebuild the spawning stock and/or prevent these resources from becoming endangered, and to make our regulations more consistent with existing federal regulations.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 calendar days before the workshop/meeting by contacting the ADA Coordinator, (850)488-6411. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency by calling (850)488-9542.

For further information, contact: Mark Robson, 2590 Executive Center Circle, East, Suite 201, Tallahassee, Florida 32301, (850)487-0554.

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL SERVICES

The **Department of Financial Services** announces a meeting of the Task Force on Long-Term Solutions for Florida's Hurricane Insurance Market to which all interested persons are invited.

DATES AND TIMES: January 30, 2006, 9:00 a.m. – 5:00 p.m.; January 31, 2006, 9:00 a.m. – 3:00 p.m.

PLACE: University of Central Florida Student Union, 4000 Central Florida Blvd., Orlando, FL 32816; Monday (January 30) – Cape Florida Room 316 C & D; Tues. (January 31) – Key West Room 218 C & D

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Presentations and Task Force Discussion and general business of the Task Force. Any person requiring a special accommodation at this meeting because of a disability or physical impairment should contact Patty Cromartie, (850)413-2866 or Robbie Simpson, (850)413-2963, at least five calendar days prior to the meeting.

A copy of the agenda may be viewed at www.fldfs.com/HurricaneInsuranceTaskForce or obtained by contacting Patty Cromartie, (850)413-2866 or Robbie Simpson, (850)413-2963. A map of the University of Central Florida is located at: <http://campusmap.ucf.edu/flash/index.php> A map of the website for the Student Union with directions is located at: <http://www.studentunion.ucf.edu/info/directions.html>

The **Department of Financial Services, Division of State Fire Marshal**, announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: January 26, 2006, 9:00 a.m. – 12:00 Noon

PLACE: Prime Osborn Convention Center, 1000 Water Street, Jacksonville, FL

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Regular meeting of the Florida Firefighters Employment, Standards, and Training Council

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by writing: Department of Financial Services, Division of State Fire Marshal, 11655 N.W. Gainesville Road, Ocala, FL 34482-1486, or by calling (352)369-2800.

In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act and Section 286.26, Florida Statutes, persons needing a special accommodation to participate in this meeting or workshop should contact the address or phone number listed above no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting or workshop.

The **Department of Financial Services, Division of State Fire Marshal**, announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: January 26, 2006, 9:00 a.m. – 12:00 noon

PLACE: Prime Osborn Convention Center, 1000 Water Street, Jacksonville, FL

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Organizational and First Regular meeting of the Fire And Emergency Incident Information System Technical Advisory Panel

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by writing: Department of Financial Services, Division of State Fire Marshal, 11655 N.W. Gainesville Road, Ocala, FL 34482-1486, or by calling (352)369-2800.

In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act and Section 286.26, Florida Statutes, persons needing a special accommodation to participate in this meeting or workshop should contact the address or phone number listed above no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting or workshop.

FINANCIAL SERVICES COMMISSION

RESCHEDULED NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING – The Financial Services Commission announces a public hearing to which all persons are invited:

NEW DATE AND TIME: January 31, 2006, 9:00 a.m., during a regular meeting of the Financial Services Commission. Please note this was previously scheduled for January 11, 2005, as published December 23, 2005, in Vol. 31, No. 51, of the Florida Administrative Weekly.

PLACE: Cabinet Meeting Room, Lower Level, The Capitol, Tallahassee, Florida

SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: This is the Final Public Hearing to approve for adoption proposed new Rule 690-125.005, Florida Administrative Code, published on July 1, 2005, in Vol. 31, No. 26, of the Florida Administrative Weekly, No notice of change was published.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this program, please advise the contact person at least 5 calendar days before the program by contacting Michael Milnes at E-mail michael.milnes@fldfs.com.

FLORIDA CENTER FOR NURSING

The **Florida Center for Nursing** will conduct a Board of Directors meeting to which all interested persons are invited to participate.

DATES AND TIMES: Thursday, January 12, 2006, 1:00 p.m. – 5:00 p.m.; Friday, January 13, 2006, 8:00 a.m. – 2:00 p.m.

For further information contact Cathy at (407)823-0981.

COMMISSION ON MARRIAGE AND FAMILY SUPPORT INITIATIVES

The **Commission on Marriage and Family Support Initiatives** announces the following meetings of the commission to which all persons are invited to attend. All the meetings will be held via conference call.

MEETING TYPE: EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
 DATE AND TIME: Wednesday, January 4, 2006, 8:30 a.m. – 9:30 a.m.
 MEETING TYPE: PROGRAM COMMITTEE
 DATE AND TIME: Wednesday, January 4, 2006, 10:00 a.m. – 11:30 a.m.
 MEETING TYPE: POLICY COMMITTEE
 DATE AND TIME: Thursday, January 5, 2006, 9:00 a.m. – 11:00 a.m.
 MEETING TYPE: PUBLIC AWARENESS COMMITTEE
 DATE AND TIME: Friday, January 20, 2006, 10:00 a.m. – 12:00 Noon
 MEETING TYPE: RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE
 DATE AND TIME: Thursday, January 12, 2006, 11:00 a.m. – 12:00 Noon
 MEETING TYPE: PUBLIC AWARENESS CAMPAING
 DATE AND TIME: January 24, 2006, 10:00 a.m. – 12:00 Noon
 PLACE: 111 N. Gadsden Street, Suite 100, Tallahassee, FL 32301-1507

For a copy of the agendas and more information about how to attend the meetings contact Heidi Rodriguez at hrodriguez@ounce.org or (850)488-4952, ext. 135.

Persons with disabilities who require assistance to participate in the meeting are requested to notify the commission office at the same address or telephone number above at least seven days in advance so that their needs can be accommodated.

AREA AGENCY ON AGING OF PASCO-PINELLAS

The **Area Agency on Aging of Pasco-Pinellas, Inc.**(AAAPP) announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.
 DATE AND TIME: Monday, January 9, 2006, 9:30 a.m.; (Please call to confirm date, time and location)
 PLACE: Area Agency on Aging of Pasco-Pinellas, Inc., 9887 4th Street North, Suite 100, St. Petersburg, Florida
 GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO CONSIDERED: Area Agency on Aging of Pasco-Pinellas, Inc., Board Meetings
 Please note that if a person decides to appeal any decision made by AAAPP Board with respect to any matter considered at the above cited meeting or hearing, they will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is based.

ADVOCACY CENTER FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES

The **PAIMI Advisory Council (PAC)** of the **Advocacy Center for Persons with Disabilities** announces the following regular Council meeting to which all persons are invited:

DATE AND TIME: February 2, 2006, 1:00 p.m.
 PLACE: Homewood Suites, 2987 Apalachee Parkway, Tallahassee, FL 32301
 GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO CONSIDERED: Regular Council meeting.
 A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting JoAnne Burgess at (850)488-9071, ext. 234 or website joanneb@advocacycenter.org.
 If you need a disability related accommodation in order to participate in this activity, please notify JoAnne Burgess (850)488-9071, ext. 234, at least 10 business days prior to the meeting.

JOHNNIE B. BYRD, SR. ALZHEIMER'S CENTER AND RESEARCH INSTITUTE

The **Johnnie B. Byrd, Sr. Alzheimer's Center and Research Institute** announces a public meeting of artist presentations for its Art Selection Committee to which all persons are invited:
 DATES AND TIMES: Monday, January 23, 2006, 2:00 p.m.; Wednesday, January 25, 2006, 2:00 p.m.; Wednesday, February 1, 2006, 2:00 p.m.
 PLACE: USF Contemporary Art Museum
 Additional information may be obtained by contracting the Byrd Alzheimer's Institute, (813)866-1600.

TREASURE COAST EDUCATION, RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

The **Treasure Coast Education, Research and Development Authority** announces a public meeting to which all interested persons are invited:
 DATE AND TIME: Tuesday, January 10, 2006, 2:00 p.m.
 PLACE: St. Lucie County Administration Annex Building, Conference Room 3, 2300 Virginia Avenue, Fort Pierce, Florida
 GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Budget and release of funding, Executive Director recruitment, liability insurance, architectural design standards, new tenant application review, land lease transfer status, Master Plan, Nominating Committee appointments, and such other business as the Authority may deem appropriate. Those who desire a copy of the agenda or more information should contact Rick Minton, Chairman, at (772)370-7425, or Jane Bachelor, Secretary, at (772)468-3922, ext. 151. Anyone with a disability requiring accommodation to attend this meeting should contact Beth Ryder, St. Lucie County Community Services Director, at (772)422-1777 or T.D.D. (772)462-1428, at least forty-eight (48) hours prior to the meeting.

LEON COUNTY RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

The Board of Governors of the **Leon County Research and Development Authority** announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited:

DATE AND TIME: Every third Tuesday of each month, 8:30 a.m. through June 2006

PLACE: Innovation Park Administrative Centre, 1736 West Paul Dirac Drive, Tallahassee, Florida 32310

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: The development and operation of Innovation Park and related matters. Any person who desires to appeal a decision of the Leon County Research and Development Authority will need a record of the proceedings of the Authority conducted at such meetings. Special accommodations for persons with disabling conditions should be requested in writing at least 48 hours in advance. For information regarding the proposed agenda, interested persons may contact Ms. Lewis at (850)575-0031.

The Development Review Committee of the **Leon County Research and Development Authority** announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited:

DATE AND TIME: Every second Tuesday of each month, 8:30 a.m. through June 2006.

Meeting subject to cancellation, please call ahead to confirm

PLACE: Innovation Park Administrative Centre, 1736 West Paul Dirac Drive, Tallahassee, Florida 32310

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: This Committee reviews proposed construction plans for compliance with the protective covenants of Innovation Park. Any person who desires to appeal a recommendation of the review committee will need a record of the proceedings conducted at such meetings. Special accommodations for persons with disabling conditions should be requested in writing at least 48 hours in advance. For information regarding the proposed agenda, interested persons may contact Ms. Lewis at (850)575 0031.

SANTA FE COMMUNITY COLLEGE

The Florida Department of Law Enforcement, Region IV **Criminal Justice Training Council**, announces a public meeting to which all interested parties are invited:

DATE AND TIME: January 17, 2006, 1:30 p.m.

PLACE: Santa Fe Community College, Institute of Public Safety, Kirkpatrick Criminal Justice Training Center, 3737 N.E. 39th Avenue, Gainesville, Florida

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Approval of Region IV's Criminal Justice Training Trust Fund operating budget, FY 2006-2007.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: James F. Murphey, Training Center Director, Santa Fe Community College, Institute of Public Safety, 3737 N.E. 39th Avenue, Gainesville, Florida 32609.

FLORIDA ALLIANCE FOR DIABETES PREVENTION AND CARE – LEADERSHIP COUNCIL (LC)

The **Florida Alliance for Diabetes Prevention and Care – Leadership Council (LC)** members announce their quarterly meeting:

DATE AND TIMES: Tuesday, January 10, 2006, 10:30 a.m. – 11:30 a.m. (committees); 12:30 p.m. – 4:30 p.m. (LC)

PLACE: Florida Medical Quality Assurance, Inc., 5201 W. Kennedy Blvd., Suite 900, Tampa, FL 33609, phone (813)354-9111

This is a public meeting. If you would like to attend, have questions or require additional information, please contact M.R. Street at (850)245-4330. All requests for special accommodations must be received by Friday, January 6, 2006, 5:00 p.m. Eastern Time.

FLORIDA DIABETES ADVISORY COUNCIL (DAC)

The **Florida Diabetes Advisory Council (DAC)** members announce their quarterly meeting:

DATE AND TIME: Wednesday, January 11, 2006, 9:30 a.m. – 1:15 p.m.

PLACE: Florida Medical Quality Assurance, Inc., 5201 W. Kennedy Blvd. Suite 900, Tampa, FL 33609, phone (813)354-9111

This is a public meeting. If you would like to attend, have questions or require additional information, please contact M.R. Street at (850)245-4330. All requests for special accommodations must be received by Friday, January 6, 2006, 5:00 p.m. Eastern Time.

CITIZENS PROPERTY INSURANCE CORPORATION

Citizens Property Insurance Corporation announces a Claims Committee Meeting to be held:

DATE AND TIME: Tuesday, January 31, 2006, 1:00 – 4:00 p.m. (EDT)

PLACE: Tampa International Airport Marriott

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Items of discussion include, but are not limited to, Claims Handling 2006.

For additional information, please call 1(800)807-7647, extension 3744.

Citizens Property Insurance Corporation announces an Audit Committee Meeting to be held:

DATE AND TIME: Via conference call, Thursday, February 9, 2006, 1:00 p.m. – 3:00 p.m. (EDT)

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Items of discussion include the CAT Claims Audit Report and the Internal Audit Report Update. For additional information, please call 1(800)807-7647, extension 3744.

Section VII Notices of Petitions and Dispositions Regarding Declaratory Statements

BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE INTERNAL IMPROVEMENT TRUST FUND

Pursuant to Chapter 2003-145, Laws of Florida, all notices for the Board of Trustees of the Internal Improvement Trust Fund are published on the Internet at the Department of Environmental Protection's home page at <http://www.dep.state.fl.us/> under the link or button titled "Official Notices."

DEPARTMENT OF MANAGEMENT SERVICES

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Public Employees Relations Commission has received a Petition for Declaratory Statement filed by the Florida State Lodge, Fraternal Order of Police, Inc. on December 13, 2005. Case No.: DS-2005-004. The Florida State Lodge, Fraternal Order of Police, Inc. filed a petition for declaratory statement asking whether Chapter 447, F.S., empowers a county sheriff to preside over and resolve impasse resulting from collective bargaining between a sheriff and a sheriff's employees or an employee organization representing a bargaining unit of sheriff's employees.

A copy of the petition may be obtained by writing to: Clerk, Public Employees Relations Commission, 4050 Esplanade Way, Suite 150, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0950.

Any person desiring to submit a statement regarding the petition may do so by filing such statement at the above address within 20 days of the date of this publication

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Division of Florida Land Sales, Condominiums, and Mobile Homes, Department of Business and Professional Regulation, State of Florida, has issued a Declaratory Statement In Re: Petition for Declaratory Statement, Venetia Condominium Association, Inc., Docket Number 2005048159.

The Division declared that Section 718.404(2), Florida Statutes, does not apply to the subject condominium that was created prior to the effective date of the statutory amendment.

A copy of the Declaratory Statement, Docket Number 2005048159, may be obtained by writing to: Agency Clerk, Department of Business and Professional Regulation, Division of Florida Land Sales, Condominiums, and Mobile Homes, 1940 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2217.

The Construction Industry Licensing Board hereby gives notice that it has received a Petition for Declaratory Statement, which was filed by the Deputy Clerk on December 20, 2005, and submitted by Mark Pietanza (Petitioner). Petitioner seeks the Board's interpretation of Sections 489.105(3)(d) and 489.105(3)(e), Florida Statutes, with the following question: Does Chapter 489, F.S., require that a state-licensed sheet metal contractor subcontract the installation of a steel roof curb when the sheet metal contractor installs a hood exhaust system?

The Board will consider the Petition at its meeting, to be held on January 13, 2006, in Ocala, Florida.

Copies of the Petition may be obtained by writing: Tim Vaccaro, Executive Director, Construction Industry Licensing Board, 1940 N. Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1039.

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Regulatory Council of Community Association Managers, Department of Business and Professional Regulation, State of Florida, received a Petition for Declaratory Statement In Re: Petition for Declaratory Statement, Bob Ludeke, Petitioner, East Pass Towers II Condominium Association, Inc.; Docket No. 2005-063802.

Whether employment as the Operations Manager for the East Pass Towers II Condominium Association, Inc. falls under the definition of "community association management" as defined in Section 468.431(2), Florida Statutes, so as to require licensure with the Department of Business and Professional Regulation in accordance with Section 468.432, Florida Statutes.

A copy of the Petition for Declaratory Statement, Docket Number 2005-063802, may be obtained by writing to: Agency Clerk, Department of Business and Professional Regulation, 1940 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2217.

Please refer all comments to: Jessica Leigh, Assistant General Counsel, Department of Business and Professional Regulation, Regulatory Council of Community Association Managers, 1940 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0750.

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Pursuant to Chapter 2003-145, Laws of Florida, all notices for the Department of Environmental Protection are published on the Internet at the Department of Environmental Protection’s home page at <http://www.dep.state.fl.us/> under the link or button titled “Official Notices.”

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Florida Department of Health has issued a Declaratory Statement in response to a petition for a declaratory statement from Mora Santo, Inc. and Miguel Egea, Petitioners, in DOH Case No. DOH-05-2133-FD-HSE. The Petition lists Part II, Chapter 386, Florida Statutes, as the statutory provision upon which a declaratory statement is being sought. The Declaratory Statement advises that: A single unit in an office condominium complex where no work takes place does not meet the definition of an enclosed indoor workplace as contemplated by Chapter 386, Florida Statutes.

A copy of the Declaratory Statement may be obtained by writing: R. Sam Power, Agency Clerk, Department of Health, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, BIN #A-02, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1703.

The Board of Dentistry hereby gives notice that a Petition for Declaratory Statement filed by Ellie C. Almand has been withdrawn. At the Board meeting held on November 4, 2005, the Petitioner withdrew her Petition. The Notice of Petition For Declaratory Statement was published in Vol. 31, No. 42 edition of the October 21, 2005 edition of the Florida Administrative Weekly. The Petition sought the Board’s opinion concerning the application of Rule 64B5-17.010, F.A.C., to persons providing mouth guards to athletes involved in sporting events. The Petition was withdrawn and no Declaratory Statement opinion was issued by the Board.

Copies of the petition may be obtained from: Sue Foster, Executive Director, Board of Dentistry, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C08, Tallahassee, FL 32399-3258.

The Board of Dentistry hereby gives notice that a Petition for Declaratory Statement filed by Steven D. Budnick, D.D.S. has been withdrawn. The Notice of Petition for Declaratory Statement was published in Vol. 31, No. 41 of the October 14, 2005 edition of the Florida Administrative Weekly. Prior to the Board meeting held on November 4, 2005 the Petitioner advised the Board he was withdrawing his Petition. The Petition sought the Board’s interpretation of the Board rules concerning the use of laboratories outside of Florida and the necessity for clinicians in outside states to receive a Florida license. The Petition was withdrawn and no Declaratory Statement opinion was issued by the Board.

Copies of the Petition may be obtained from: Sue Foster, Executive Director, Board of Dentistry, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C08, Tallahassee, FL 32399-3258.

The Board of Dentistry hereby gives notice that it has issued an Order on the Petition for declaratory statement filed by Stuart B. Pechter, D.D.S.. The Notice of Petition for Declaratory Statement was published in Vol. 31, No. 41, of the October 14, 2005, Florida Administrative Weekly. The Board of Dentistry considered the Petition at its meeting held on November 4, 2005, in Jacksonville, Florida. The Board’s order, filed on December 2, 2005, denied the Petition without issuing an official Declaratory Statement opinion. The Petition was dismissed because it did not meet the technical requirements of subsections 28-105.002(4), (5), Florida Administrative Code, and because it requested an opinion concerning the Petitioner’s possible exposure to civil malpractice liability.

For a copy of the order contact: Sue Foster, Executive Director, Board of Dentistry, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C-08, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0783

The Board of Psychology hereby gives notice that on December 7, 2005, it received a Petition for Declaratory Statement filed by Thomas K. Zander, Psy.D. The petition seeks the Board’s interpretation of paragraph 64B19-11.005(2)(c), Florida Administrative Code and whether Dr. Zander’s plan for his post-doctoral psychological residency training experience meets the requirements set forth therein.

Copies of the petition may be obtained from: Susan Love, Executive Director, Board of Psychology, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C05, Tallahassee, FL 32399-3253.

**Section VIII
Notices of Petitions and Dispositions
Regarding the Validity of Rules**

Notice of Petition for Administrative Determination has been filed with the Division of Administrative Hearings on the following rules:

NONE

Notice of Disposition of Petition for Administrative Determination have been filed by the Division of Administrative Hearings on the following rules:

NONE

Section IX
Notices of Petitions and Dispositions
Regarding Non-rule Policy Challenges

NONE

Section X
Announcements and Objection Reports of
the Joint Administrative Procedures
Committee

NONE

Section XI
Notices Regarding Bids, Proposals and
Purchasing

**DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE AND CONSUMER
SERVICES**

INVITATION TO BID

As a Contractor, you are invited to submit a bid to the Florida Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services, Division of Forestry, hereinafter referred to as Owner, for the construction of building facilities at St. Lucie Forestry Station located on the east side of Peacock Road at the St. Lucie Fair Grounds in St. Lucie County which shall include all labor, equipment, materials necessary to construct the building. The Project Budget is: \$350,000.00.

PROJECT NAME & LOCATION: Construction of a Building at St. Lucie Forestry Station, St. Lucie County, Florida.

SOLICITATION DOCUMENT: The entire solicitation document, including plans and specifications, may be viewed and downloaded from the Vendor Bid System at <http://www.myflorida.com>, click on Business, Doing Business with the State of Florida, Everything for Vendors and Customers, Vendor Bid System, Search Advertisements, Bid Number ITB/DF-05/06-78, or by calling the Purchasing Office at (850)487-3727.

MANDATORY PRE-BID CONFERENCE/SITE VISIT: Each bidder must, before submitting a bid, attend the mandatory pre-bid conference/site visit. The pre-bid conference/site visit will be held on January 17, 2006, 10:30 a.m., at the Division of Forestry, Ft. Pierce Forestry Station, 1025 Edwards Road, Ft. Pierce, Florida 34950. During the pre-bid conference a site visit will be held for prospective bidders. It is the bidders' responsibility to consider any and all site conditions or requirements for the project. Plans and engineering specifications will be available at the mandatory pre-bid conference/site visit.

PUBLIC ENTITY CRIME INFORMATION STATEMENT: A person or affiliate who has been placed on the convicted vendor list following a conviction for a public entity crime may not submit a bid on a contract to provide any goods or services to a public entity, may not submit a bid on a contract with a public entity for the construction or repair of a public building or public work, may not submit bids on leases of real property to a public entity, may not be awarded or perform work as a contractor, supplier, subcontractor, or consultant under a contract with any public entity, and may not transact business with any public entity in excess of the threshold amount provided in Section 287.017, Florida Statutes, for Category Two for a period of 36 months from the date of being placed on the convicted vendor list.

DISCRIMINATION; DENIAL OR REVOCATION FOR THE RIGHT TO TRANSACT BUSINESS WITH PUBLIC ENTITIES: An entity or affiliate who had been placed on the discriminatory vendor list may not submit a bid on a contract to provide any goods or services to a public entity, may not submit a bid on a contract with a public entity for the construction or repair of a public building or public work, may not submit bids on leases of real property to a public entity, may not be awarded or perform work as a contractor, supplier, subcontractor, or consultant under a contract with any public entity, and may not transact business with any public entity.

PERFORMANCE BOND: A performance bond in the amount of one-hundred percent (100%) of the base bid price shall be required.

Sealed bids will be received, publicly opened and read aloud on:

DATE AND TIME: January 31, 2006, 2:30 p.m.

PLACE: Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services, 407 S. Calhoun Street, SB8 Mayo Building, Tallahassee, Florida 32399, (850)487-3727.

CONTRACT AWARD: The official Notice of Award Recommendation will be by electronic posting at http://fcn.state.fl.us/owa_vbs/owa/vbs_www.main_menu.

Failure to file a protest within the time prescribed in Section 120.57(3), Florida Statutes, shall constitute a waiver of proceedings under Chapter 120, Florida Statutes. If no protest is filed the contract will be awarded to the qualified, responsive low bidder in accordance with Chapter 60D-5, F.A.C., by the Owner.

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

NOTICE TO CONSTRUCTION MANAGERS

Florida State University announces that construction management services will be required for the project listed below:

Project No.: FS-274

Project and Location: Material Research Building for Florida State University at Innovation Park, Tallahassee, Florida

The project involves construction of a new 43,000 gsf building and will include research labs and offices for the Florida Advanced Center for Composite Technologies (FAC2T). The project will be built in Innovation Park, Tallahassee, Florida, by the FSU Department of Sponsored Research. Once completed, it will house the equipment, machinery, computers, apparatuses and infrastructure necessary to carry out the FAC2T research mission. Construction is anticipated to begin May 2006 and be complete by June 2007.

The estimated construction cost is \$12,883,800.00.

The contract for construction management services will consist of two phases. Phase one is pre-construction services, for which the construction manager will be paid a fixed fee. Phase one services include value engineering, constructability analyses, development of a cost model, estimating, and the development of a Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP) at 50% Construction Document phase. If the GMP is accepted, phase two, the construction phase, will be implemented. In phase two of the contract, the construction manager becomes the single point of responsibility for performance of the construction of the project and shall publicly bid trade contracts, encouraging the inclusion of Minority Business Enterprises (MBEs). Failure to negotiate an acceptable fixed fee for phase one of the contract, or to arrive at an acceptable GMP within the time provided in the agreement may result in the termination of the construction manager's contract.

Selection of finalists for interviews will be made on the basis of construction manager qualifications, including experience and ability; past experience; bonding capacity; record-keeping/administrative ability, critical path scheduling expertise; cost estimating; cost control ability; quality control capability; and qualifications of the firm's personnel, staff and consultants. Finalists will be provided with a copy of the building program and the latest documentation prepared by the project architect/engineer, a description of the final interview requirements and a copy of the standard Florida State University's construction management agreement. The Selection Committee may reject all proposals and stop the selection process at any time. The construction manager shall have no ownership, entrepreneurial or financial affiliation with the selected architect/engineer involved with this project.

Instructions:

Firms desiring to provide construction management services for the project shall submit a letter of application and the completed Florida State University "Construction Manager Qualifications Supplement." Proposals must not exceed 80 pages, including the Construction Manager Qualifications Supplement and letter of application. Pages must be numbered consecutively. Submittals which do not comply with these requirements or do not include the requested data will not be considered. No submittal material will be returned.

All applicants must be licensed to practice as general contractors in the State of Florida at the time of application. Corporations must be registered to operate in the State of Florida by the Department of State, Division of Corporations, at the time of application. As required by Section 287.133, Florida Statutes, a construction management firm may not submit a proposal for this project if it is on the convicted vendor list for a public entity crime committed within the past 36 months. The selected construction management firm must warrant that it will neither utilize the services of, nor contract with, any supplier, subcontractor, or consultant in excess of \$50,000.00 in connection with this project for a period of 36 months from the date of their being placed on the convicted vendor list.

The Florida State University Construction Manager Qualifications Supplement forms and the Project Fact Sheet may be obtained through the website at www.fpc.fsu.edu or by contacting: Lynetta Mills, Facilities Design & Construction, 109 Mendenhall Maintenance Building A, Florida State University, Tallahassee, Florida 32306-4152, telephone (850)644-2843, facsimile (850)644-8351

For further information on the project, contact: Kim Ball, Project Manager, at the address and phone listed above.

(6) Six bound copies of the required proposal data shall be submitted. Submittals must be received at the address listed above by 2:00 p.m., local time, Wednesday, February 1, 2006. Facsimile (FAX) or electronic submittals are not acceptable and will not be considered.

BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE INTERNAL IMPROVEMENT TRUST FUND

Pursuant to Chapter 2003-145, Laws of Florida, all notices for the Board of Trustees of the Internal Improvement Trust Fund are published on the Internet at the Department of Environmental Protection's home page at <http://www.dep.state.fl.us/> under the link or button titled "Official Notices."

WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICTS

Request for Bids 05/06-012 LM
Sandlin Bay North 2 Timber Sale

The Suwannee River Water Management District (SRWMD) announces its interest in obtaining bids for the Sandlin Bay North 2 Timber Sale. This is a 150-acre pine timber sale in a 20-year-old slash plantation. The hardwood is very scattered. This is a third row thinning. No other trees are to be removed.

Additional information and request for bids documents (RFB 05/06-012 LM) are available on the District's website at: <http://www.mysuwanneeriver.com/services/bids+and+contracts>.

Persons interested in submitting bids for this project should return those completed documents to: Gwen Lord, Administrative Assistant, Suwannee River Water Management District, 9225 County Road 49, Live Oak, Florida 32060.

For more information or assistance contact: Randy Hall, (386)362-1001 or (800)226-1066 (Florida only).

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Pursuant to Chapter 2003-145, Laws of Florida, all notices for the Department of Environmental Protection are published on the Internet at the Department of Environmental Protection's home page at <http://www.dep.state.fl.us/> under the link or button titled "Official Notices."

FLORIDA HOUSING FINANCE CORPORATION

Request for Proposals 2005-09

For Refinancing of Section 202 Program Housing

The Florida Housing Finance Corporation invites all owners of Section 202 Program Housing that wish to rehabilitate and improve these properties for the benefit of tenants and to make these properties more marketable to prospective tenants and comparable to other similar types of housing to submit proposals for consideration. Written, sealed proposals shall be accepted until 2:00 p.m., Eastern Time, Friday, January 20, 2006, to the attention of: Robin Grantham, Contracts Administrator, Florida Housing Finance Corporation, 227 North Bronough Street, Suite 5000, Tallahassee, Florida 32301-1329. For questions or additional information, please contact Robin Grantham, (850)488-4197 or robin.grantham@floridahousing.org.

To obtain a copy of the Request for Proposals, which outlines selection criteria and offeror's responsibilities, please submit your request to the attention of Robin Grantham, or you can download the Request for Proposals from the Florida Housing Finance Corporation web site at <http://www.floridahousing.org/Home/BusinessLegal/CurrentSolicitations/RequestForProposals.htm>. Any modifications that occur to the Request for Proposals will be posted at the web site and may result in an extension of the deadline.

DEPARTMENT OF MILITARY AFFAIRS

ADVERTISEMENT FOR BIDS

PROPOSALS ARE REQUESTED FROM QUALIFIED GENERAL OR BUILDING CONTRACTORS, LICENSED BY THE STATE OF FLORIDA, FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF:

PROJECT NO: CFMO-204070 ACCOUNTING CODE: NA
PROJECT NAME AND LOCATION: RENOVATION
SANFORD NATIONAL GUARD ARMORY, SANFORD,
FLORIDA

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: RENOVATION OF EXISTING
BUILDINGS INTERIOR AND EXTERIOR TO INCLUDE
EXTERIOR SITE WORK AS DEFINED IN THE
ARCHITECT/ENGINEERS SPECIFICATIONS.

FOR: Department of Military Affairs, Construction & Facility Management Office

MINORITY PROGRAM: Utilization of MBE participation is highly encouraged from all Bidders.

MANDATORY PRE-BID MEETING: A Mandatory Pre-Bid Meeting will be held for all interested Prime Bidders and MBE's certified by the Minority Business Advocacy and Assistance Office On: January 11, 2006, 2:00 pm. Local time at the Sanford National Guard Armory, 915 East First Street, Sanford, Florida 32271. All Prime Bidders interested in bidding on this project are required to attend and address subcontracting opportunities for MBE's.

PUBLIC ENTITY CRIME INFORMATION STATEMENT: A person, or affiliate, who has been placed on the convicted vendor list following a conviction for a public entity crime may not submit a bid on a contract to provide any goods or services to a public entity, may not submit a bid on a contract with a public entity for the construction or repair of a public building or public work, may not submit bids on leases of real property to a public entity, may not be awarded or perform work as a contractor, supplier, subcontractor, or consultant under a contract with any public entity, and may not transact business with any public entity in excess of the threshold amount provided in Section 287.017, Florida Statutes, for Category Two for a period of 36 months from the date of being placed on the convicted vendor list.

BID SECURITY: If the bid proposal amount is \$100,000 or less, a bid security (5%) is not required.

PERFORMANCE BOND AND LABOR AND MATERIAL PAYMENT BOND: If the construction contract award amount is \$100,000 or less, a Performance Bond and Labor and Material Payment Bond are not required.

Sealed bids will be received and publicly opened and read aloud on:

DATE AND TIME: February 2, 2006, 10:00 a.m. Local Time.

PLACE: Sanford National Guard Armory, 915 East First Street, Sanford, Florida 32271.

PROPOSAL: Bids may be submitted prior to bid opening date if received by the Department of Military Affairs, NO LATER THAN FEBRUARY 1, 2006, BEFORE CLOSE OF BUSINESS. Construction and Facility Management Office, Robert F. Ensslin Armory, ATTN: SEALED BIDS, Mr. Kenneth Hersey, 2305 State Road 207, St. Augustine, Florida, 32086, telephone (904)823-0282 in full accordance with the requirements of the Drawings, Specifications, Bidding Conditions, and Contractual Conditions, which may be examined and obtained from the:

ARCHITECT-ENGINEER: Hanson Professional Services, Inc.
TELEPHONE: (407)622-2050

Drawings and specifications may be purchased by FAX from Winter Park Blueprint, (407)645-1462 or by visiting on line to <http://plantrack.wpblue.com> then select ONLINE BIDDING to view and purchase full sets or individual drawings.

All technical questions shall be directed to the A/E until close of business January 25, 2006.

ARCHITECT-ENGINEER: HANSON PROFESSIONAL SERVICES, INC., TELEPHONE: (407)622-2050

CONTRACT AWARD: The official Notice of Award Recommendation (Intent to Award) will be by electronic posting on the Department's website at http://fcn.state.fl.us/owa_vbs/owa/vbs_www.main_menu.

Failure to file a protest within the time prescribed in Section 120.57(3), Florida Statutes, shall constitute a waiver of proceedings under Chapter 120, Florida Statutes. If no protest is filed the contract will be awarded to the qualified, responsive and responsible low bidder in accordance with Chapter 60D-5, F.A.C., by the Owner. In the event that the Bid tabulation/Notice of Award Recommendation (Intent to Award) can not be posted in this manner, then all bidders will be notified by certified United States Mail, return receipt requested.

Vendors submitting bids/proposals should be registered in the MyFloridaMarketPlace E-procurement system prior to the response due date. A vendor shall not be awarded a project until registered in the MFMP system.

The Department reserves the right to reject any and all submissions or accept minor irregularities in the best interest of the State of Florida.

AWARD OF CONTRACT IS CONTINGENT UPON THE AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS.

ADVERTISEMENT FOR BIDS

PROPOSALS ARE REQUESTED FROM QUALIFIED GENERAL OR BUILDING CONTRACTORS, LICENSED BY THE STATE OF FLORIDA, FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF:

PROJECT NO: CFMO-204071 ACCOUNTING CODE: NA
PROJECT NAME AND LOCATION: RENOVATION LIVE OAK NATIONAL GUARD ARMORY, LIVE OAK, FLORIDA

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: RENOVATION OF EXISTING BUILDINGS INTERIOR AND EXTERIOR TO INCLUDE EXTERIOR SITE WORK AS DEFINED IN THE ARCHITECT/ENGINEERS SPECIFICATIONS.

FOR: Department of Military Affairs, Construction & Facility Management Office

MINORITY PROGRAM: Utilization of MBE participation is highly encouraged from all Bidders.

MANDATORY PRE-BID MEETING: A Mandatory Pre-Bid Meeting will be held for all interested Prime Bidders and MBE's certified by the Minority Business Advocacy and Assistance Office On: January 10, 2006, 10:00 a.m. Local time at the Live Oak National Guard Armory, 1416 11th Street S.W., Live Oak, Florida 32064. All Prime Bidders interested in bidding on this project are required to attend and address subcontracting opportunities for MBE's.

PUBLIC ENTITY CRIME INFORMATION STATEMENT: A person, or affiliate, who has been placed on the convicted vendor list following a conviction for a public entity crime may not submit a bid on a contract to provide any goods or services to a public entity, may not submit a bid on a contract with a public entity for the construction or repair of a public building or public work, may not submit bids on leases of real property to a public entity, may not be awarded or perform work as a contractor, supplier, subcontractor, or consultant under a contract with any public entity, and may not transact business with any public entity in excess of the threshold amount provided in Section 287.017, Florida Statutes, for Category Two for a period of 36 months from the date of being placed on the convicted vendor list.

BID SECURITY: If the bid proposal amount is \$100,000 or less, a bid security (5%) is not required.

PERFORMANCE BOND AND LABOR AND MATERIAL PAYMENT BOND: If the construction contract award amount is \$100,000 or less, a Performance Bond and Labor and Material Payment Bond are not required.

Sealed bids will be received and publicly opened and read aloud on:

DATE AND TIME: January 31, 2006, 10:00 a.m. Local Time.

PLACE: Live Oak National Guard Armory, 1416 11th Street S.W., Live Oak, Florida 32064.

PROPOSAL: Bids may be submitted prior to bid opening date if received by the Department of Military Affairs, NO LATER THAN JANUARY 30, 2006, BEFORE CLOSE OF BUSINESS. Construction and Facility Management Office, Robert F. Ensslin Armory, ATTN: SEALED BIDS, Mr. Kenneth Hersey, 2305 State Road 207, St. Augustine, Florida, 32086, Telephone (904)823-0282, in full accordance with the requirements of the Drawings, Specifications, Bidding Conditions, and Contractual Conditions, which may be examined and obtained from the:

ARCHITECT-ENGINEER: Harper Aiken Partners, Inc., Telephone: (727)823-9110

Drawings and specifications may be purchased from: NGI, 5005 W. Laurel St., Suite 102, Tampa, Florida 33607. Telephone (813)286-8300; Facsimile (813)289-0342.

All technical questions shall be directed to the A/E until close of business January 24, 2006.

ARCHITECT-ENGINEER: HARPER AIKEN PARTNERS, INC., TELEPHONE: (727)823-9110

CONTRACT AWARD: The official Notice of Award Recommendation (Intent to Award) will be by electronic posting on the Department's website at http://fcn.state.fl.us/owa_vbs/owa/vbs_www.main_menu.

Failure to file a protest within the time prescribed in Section 120.57(3), Florida Statutes, shall constitute a waiver of proceedings under Chapter 120, Florida Statutes. If no protest is filed the contract will be awarded to the qualified, responsive and responsible low bidder in accordance with Chapter 60D-5,

F.A.C., by the Owner. In the event that the Bid tabulation/Notice of Award Recommendation (Intent to Award) can not be posted in this manner, then all bidders will be notified by certified United States Mail, return receipt requested.

Vendors submitting bids/proposals should be registered in the MyFloridaMarketPlace E-procurement system prior to the response due date. A vendor shall not be awarded a project until registered in the MFMP system.

The Department reserves the right to reject any and all submissions or accept minor irregularities in the best interest of the State of Florida.

AWARD OF CONTRACT IS CONTINGENT UPON THE AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS.

ADVERTISEMENT FOR BIDS

PROPOSALS ARE REQUESTED FROM QUALIFIED GENERAL OR BUILDING CONTRACTORS, LICENSED BY THE STATE OF FLORIDA, FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF:

PROJECT NO: CFMO-204072 ACCOUNTING CODE: NA
PROJECT NAME AND LOCATION: RENOVATION WINTER HAVEN NATIONAL GUARD ARMORY, WINTER HAVEN, FLORIDA

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: RENOVATION OF EXISTING BUILDINGS INTERIOR AND EXTERIOR TO INCLUDE EXTERIOR SITE WORK AS DEFINED IN THE ARCHITECT/ENGINEERS SPECIFICATIONS.

FOR: Department of Military Affairs, Construction & Facility Management Office

MINORITY PROGRAM: Utilization of MBE participation is highly encouraged from all Bidders.

MANDATORY PRE-BID MEETING: A Mandatory Pre-Bid Meeting will be held for all interested Prime Bidders and MBE's certified by the Minority Business Advocacy and Assistance Office On: January 11, 2006, 10:00 a.m. Local time at the Winter Haven National Guard Armory, 565 Avenue C, Winter Haven, Florida 33880. All Prime Bidders interested in bidding on this project are required to attend and address subcontracting opportunities for MBE's.

PUBLIC ENTITY CRIME INFORMATION STATEMENT: A person, or affiliate, who has been placed on the convicted vendor list following a conviction for a public entity crime may not submit a bid on a contract to provide any goods or services to a public entity, may not submit a bid on a contract with a public entity for the construction or repair of a public building or public work, may not submit bids on leases of real property to a public entity, may not be awarded or perform work as a contractor, supplier, subcontractor, or consultant under a contract with any public entity, and may not transact business with any public entity in excess of the threshold amount

provided in Section 287.017, Florida Statutes, for Category Two for a period of 36 months from the date of being placed on the convicted vendor list.

BID SECURITY: If the bid proposal amount is \$100,000 or less, a bid security (5%) is not required.

PERFORMANCE BOND AND LABOR AND MATERIAL PAYMENT BOND: If the construction contract award amount is \$100,000 or less, a Performance Bond and Labor and Material Payment Bond are not required.

Sealed bids will be received and publicly opened and read aloud on:

DATE AND TIME: February 1, 2006, 10:00 a.m. Local Time

PLACE: Winter Haven National Guard Armory, 565 Avenue C, Winter Haven, Florida 33880.

PROPOSAL: Bids may be submitted prior to bid opening date if received by the Department of Military Affairs, NO LATER THAN JANUARY 31, 2006, BEFORE CLOSE OF BUSINESS. Construction and Facility Management Office, Robert F. Ensslin Armory, ATTN: SEALED BIDS, Mr. Kenneth Hersey, 2305 State Road 207, St. Augustine, Florida, 32086, telephone (904)823-0282, in full accordance with the requirements of the Drawings, Specifications, Bidding Conditions, and Contractual Conditions, which may be examined and obtained from the:

ARCHITECT-ENGINEER: BGA, Inc., Telephone: (813)375-3399

Drawings and specifications may be purchased from BGA, Inc. All technical questions shall be directed to the A/E until close of business January 24, 2006.

ARCHITECT-ENGINEER: BGA, Inc., Telephone: (813)375-3399

CONTRACT AWARD: The official Notice of Award Recommendation (Intent to Award) will be by electronic posting on the Department's website at http://fcn.state.fl.us/owa_vbs/owa/vbs_www.main_menu.

Failure to file a protest within the time prescribed in Section 120.57(3), Florida Statutes, shall constitute a waiver of proceedings under Chapter 120, Florida Statutes. If no protest is filed the contract will be awarded to the qualified, responsive and responsible low bidder in accordance with Chapter 60D-5, F.A.C., by the Owner. In the event that the Bid tabulation/Notice of Award Recommendation (Intent to Award) can not be posted in this manner, then all bidders will be notified by certified United States Mail, return receipt requested.

Vendors submitting bids/proposals should be registered in the MyFloridaMarketPlace E-procurement system prior to the response due date. A vendor shall not be awarded a project until registered in the MFMP system.

The Department reserves the right to reject any and all submissions or accept minor irregularities in the best interest of the State of Florida.

AWARD OF CONTRACT IS CONTINGENT UPON THE AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS.

VISIT FLORIDA

Services required by VISIT FLORIDA
from Publishers responding to this
Request for Qualifications

Sections of RFQ:

- Goals
- Background
- Procedure and timing
- Outline of goods and services provided
- Specific questions for vendors

Goals:

VISIT FLORIDA requests statement of qualifications and experience from vendors who have demonstrated the capability to create and predictably deliver a totally integrated direct marketing solution to market Florida vacations to consumers. The proposed program should include both proactive and reactive efforts and use integrated print and electronic formats to deliver Florida's message.

VISIT FLORIDA's ultimate goal is to:

1. Increase the number of visitors to and within Florida
2. Increase the average length of a stay
3. Increase repeat visitation

However, directly measuring VISIT FLORIDA's ROI on the three goals listed above is difficult. Therefore, in addition to the goals listed above, VISIT FLORIDA is seeking a publishing partner who can help achieve the following benchmarks in alignment with its strategic plan through the integrated program described in this document:

1. Increase number of annual visitors who utilize VISIT FLORIDA as a planning resource
2. Increase percentage of the target markets who recognize VISIT FLORIDA as the trusted source for vacation or meeting planning
3. Increase economic impact gain through marketing initiatives by VISIT FLORIDA and its industry partners.

Background:

VISIT FLORIDA is a public/private partnership responsible for the marketing of tourism to and within Florida.

While VISIT FLORIDA is not required to go through an RFP process for an integrated marketing program, the organization believes it is prudent to conduct this RFQ to ensure that it is obtaining the best quality products and the best value for the Florida tourism industry.

Like most destinations, VISIT FLORIDA has created RFPs for many aspects of its operations. The timing of these RFPs has been on an as-needed basis, resulting in the maturation of contracts occurring at different times. Currently, VISIT FLORIDA contracts with several vendors to provide a variety of marketing and publishing services, although one

Florida-based vendor has been successful in being awarded the goods and services described in this document through a previous RFP process. Over time, VISIT FLORIDA has consolidated many services under one vendor, because it has found that this has resulted in creating efficiencies (less cost, more value) as well as successfully integrated marketing programs for the organization. The explicit intent of this RFQ process is to maintain an integrated approach to the development, production, solicitation and execution of its direct marketing efforts. If multiple firms wish to combine efforts to answer this RFQ, they must coordinate their efforts so that there is one main point of contact for the organization and so that no additional services or resources would be required by VISIT FLORIDA.

The contract for the Official Florida Vacation Guide is currently up for reconsideration while other elements of VISIT FLORIDA marketing program remain under contract. To perform due diligence and fulfill its obligation to the industry, VISIT FLORIDA is issuing this RFQ to determine the qualifications and experience of vendors who are capable of creating the turnkey, integrated solutions described in this document. Based on the results of this RFQ, VISIT FLORIDA will determine what RFPs will be issued and/or other actions it may take, such as in-person presentations.

Currently, revenue streams created through packaging of advertising and sponsorships in the integrated product lines support the program. Advertising and/or sponsorships are sold in a variety of products, including the Official Florida Vacation Guide, www.VISITFLORIDA.com, one million copies of special interest print products created in eight interest categories, and a series of monthly and seasonally timed e-zines and Value Offers delivered to a database of more than one million opt-in consumers.

In addition to strategic planning and production-based services, the successful vendor must also be able to create and maintain similar revenue streams to support the entire program. VISIT FLORIDA's total net income for the programs described below was \$62,007 for FY 2003, \$42,064 for FY 2004, and \$59,769 for FY 2005. These numbers represent the revenue received by VISIT FLORIDA from the current vendor for these programs less the direct expenses of hosting the web site. These figures do not include any development costs for the web site, which are scoped and quoted as individual projects, nor a one-time payment for the creation and launch of the dialogue system described below. Currently, VISIT FLORIDA experiences no out-of-pocket expenditures associated with the production of the vacation guide or direct marketing (both print and digital) publications.

VISIT FLORIDA is responsible for fulfillment of the Official Florida Vacation Guide once it receives the guide in its warehouse. VISIT FLORIDA is responsible for the postage associated with the special interest publications, but pays

nothing toward the creation of the distribution lists or any electronic deployment costs. These costs are not part of the net revenue calculation shown above.

VISIT FLORIDA reserves the right to decide what will be in its best interest.

Procedure and Timing:

- RFQ distributed on December 30, 2005.
- Provide intention to submit response to RFQ and all questions in writing to Dr. Dale Brill, Chief Marketing Officer, (dale@visitflorida.org, VISIT FLORIDA, 661 East Jefferson Street, Suite 300, Tallahassee, FL 32301) no later than 12:00 p.m. (noon) EST on January 18.
- Questions and response to questions documented and distributed to all identified potential vendors by February 3.
- One original and three copies of the vendor's response must be submitted by 4:00 p.m. on February 28. Responses must be delivered via standard mail or courier service to: VISIT FLORIDA, Attn: Dr. Dale Brill, Chief Marketing Officer, 661 East Jefferson Street, Suite 300, Tallahassee, FL 32301. Electronic or faxed proposals will not be accepted.
- In-person presentations may be requested during the week of March 6.
- VISIT FLORIDA will provide response and decision to potential vendors no later than 5:00 p.m. on March 13 or otherwise communicate revised schedule to all finalists.
- 2007 Vacation Guide content outline and production schedule begins immediately.
- 2007 Vacation Guide delivered to VISIT FLORIDA for distribution during third week of December, other materials assume reasonable production schedule as mutually determined.

Goods and Services Required by VISIT FLORIDA

Act as a Strategic Planning Partner

The selected vendor must act as a strategic planning partner for VISIT FLORIDA and its agency. These services should include the development of products based on expressed need by VISIT FLORIDA; in addition, the publisher should bring new ideas to the partnership. The publisher should be able to draw from experience and from the latest industry research to bring new product recommendations, processes and ideas for the creation of revenue streams to the table.

In the role of strategic partner, the successful vendor must display extensive knowledge of the tourism industry, with first-hand knowledge of Florida tourism of significant benefit. VISIT FLORIDA believes this experience is essential to creating solutions to the problems and challenges that the organization faces now and in the future.

VISIT FLORIDA requires a dedicated full-time account manager who will coordinate the program and communicate with VISIT FLORIDA. In addition to the account manager, VISIT FLORIDA desires access to individual staff members

within the vendor's organization wherein such contact will result in greater efficiency, quick response and/or specific expertise. The current vendor represents that it has allocated 20 full-time equivalents to the program described in this document, with approximately 10 staff members participating in strategic and tactical planning for the program.

As part of the strategic planning process, the vendor should be prepared to help concept, create, document and enforce business rules that guide in the implementation of all products described in this document. In addition, the vendor should be prepared to work collaboratively with VISIT FLORIDA's staff to raise awareness of Partnership and its benefits.

Revenue Generation Services

All of VISIT FLORIDA's print and electronic products include advertising and/or paid sponsorships as a revenue stream. The selected vendor must be able to:

- Offer advertising planning and consultation to VISIT FLORIDA, including advice on a sales strategy and rates
- Create marketing materials to support sales
- Distribute marketing materials to VISIT FLORIDA's Partners and other potential customers (approximately 3,800 communications)
- Field and manage a qualified statewide sales force with experience in both print and web sales (current vendor utilizes one sales manager and seven full-time sales people)
- Personally call on and service advertisers (telemarketing alone is not an acceptable solution)
- Provide free print and electronic ad creative to participating advertisers
- Accept creative from advertisers/agencies via online upload with real-time PDFx_1a compliance verification
- Provide sales services including billing and collections
- Provide customer support for all advertisers
- Provide detailed monthly performance reporting/ROI to VISIT FLORIDA as specified by standard finance department requirements
- Provide third-party, auditable reporting on web advertising to VISIT FLORIDA and advertisers

Data Collection & Annual Maintenance Services

The selected publisher must provide VISIT FLORIDA with comprehensive, proactive data collection and tracking services and assume responsibility for the accuracy of listings in all print and electronic publications. As VISIT FLORIDA is a Partnership (membership) organization and desires to deliver flawlessly on its brand promise as the "trusted source," it cannot afford to have Partner information incomplete or inaccurate. These services should include but not be limited to:

- Full-time staff members responsible for annual collection of information from approximately 3,300 tourism businesses, utilizing positive verification wherein the vendor must receive direct confirmation from all businesses listed (current vendor represents that it has

committed a data manager, two full-time employees and three seasonal employees to this effort)

- Ongoing maintenance of more than 3,300 tourism businesses (and growing annually) listed on www.VISITFLORIDA.com (current vendor represents that it commits one full-time employee to this effort year 'round)
- Online Data Extranet which allows industry partners to update their information online and upload images through secure access on a 24/7 basis
- Online Data Extranet that allows industry Partners to add and update their www.VISITFLORIDA.com Sun Savers/Hot Deals; system must notify VISIT FLORIDA when a deal is added and provide the ability to review all deals and de-activate if necessary
- Annual audit of Online Data Extranet
- Annual development and revision of collection questions and forms
- Transactional tracking and documentation of each change made to the database including who made the change and when it was made
- Staff-supported hotline and email support for ongoing data maintenance
- Complete report to VISIT FLORIDA of all data collection attempts made to all businesses
- List of "non-respondents" provided to VISIT FLORIDA prior to publication of the Official Florida Vacation Guide
- Weekly maintenance of the VISIT FLORIDA Partner list(s)
- Bi-monthly calendar of events import
- Additional services as needed, such as communicating with individual businesses to obtain permission for booking.

Print Publishing Services

The selected publisher must be able to supply turnkey print publishing services to VISIT FLORIDA. This currently includes the Official Florida Vacation Guide and eight special-interest publications. These services should include but not be limited to:

- Planning, consultation and creative ideas to VISIT FLORIDA
- Advertising Account Management Services related to the solicitation, close and servicing of advertising revenue accounts
- Printer interface, quality control services and press checks
- Shipping to designated locations
- Targeted distribution to approximately one million consumers for the special interest publications through major national publications (determined jointly with the vendor, with approval by VISIT FLORIDA)
- Editorial Services

Creation of detailed editorial calendar/content plan for the state's official vacation guide and special interest print publications for approval by VISIT FLORIDA

Creation of high-quality, original, experiential editorial content
Creation of a freelance writer network with a diversity of expertise and writing styles to address Florida's major drivers (current vendor utilizes approximately 40 professional travel writers to create original content)

- Management of professional freelance travel writers
- Fact-checking, proofreading and editing
- Revision of content as needed to appear across multiple platforms, adjusted as appropriate for the medium
- Design & Graphics Services
- Create and implement original designs that are cohesive with Florida's brand as communicated by VISIT FLORIDA's agency
- Layout and design
- Cartography services for all maps in VISIT FLORIDA publications
- Typography
- Photography (including direction of photo shoots and image selection)
- Creation and maintenance of a photo library adequate to meet the needs of the program's products (current vendor maintains a photo library of approximately 7,000 Florida images)
- Formatting and purging of listings of industry members
- Advertising creative (print and electronic) for industry partners for inclusion in VISIT FLORIDA's products at no charge to the advertiser

Reader Response Services

The selected publisher must provide reader response measurement tools to VISIT FLORIDA. The reader response system must:

- Be offered as a benefit to advertisers and VISIT FLORIDA in the Official Florida Vacation Guide and in all special interest publications
- Allow for the entry of data manually from cards mailed or faxed to the vendor
- Allow the reader to electronically enter data via www.VISITFLORIDA.com
- Allow advertisers to access their leads online to through an extranet wherein:
 - Advertisers have 24-hour access to their leads
 - Advertisers can print their leads directly from the website in Avery Label 5160 format or download their leads into a database as an Excel file
 - Advertisers can e-mail consumers information directly from the website
 - Advertisers can review leads grouped by zip code (for ease in bulk mailing) or by readers' date of arrival (respond to those arriving soonest, first)
 - Advertisers can "Target Market" to leads by selecting readers with special interests such as golf or antiques, target leads from different parts of the country, and target readers for promotions or mailings the advertiser may

- have at different times of year
- Advertisers can analyze their leads by domestic and international groups and tally the leads by origin
- Advertisers can review their leads from previous weeks
- Provide VISIT FLORIDA with online access to view reports on the status of the entire reader response program

Web Publishing Services

The selected publisher will be responsible for publishing services for VISIT FLORIDA’s award-winning web sites.

Currently there are six complete sites:

VISITFLORIDA.com Consumer Web Site

Storage Requirements:

Approx 1.2 Gigabytes for logs, pages and site assets

Traffic/Bandwidth Requirements:

50 Million+ Page views per year

10 Million+ Sessions per year

Over 3.5 Terabytes of data transfer per year

Size Estimates:

Roughly 15,000 pages when indexed

Five Individual Language-Specific VISITFLORIDA.com Web Sites:

Storage Requirements:

Approx .5 Gigabytes for logs, pages and site assets (All five sites combined)

Traffic/Bandwidth Requirements:

No historical traffic data available

Assume a fraction of the consumer site accesses

Size Estimates:

Roughly 25,000 pages when indexed (all five sites combined)

Hosting Services

Provider must meet or exceed these hosting requirements:

Hardware:

- “Least Connections” load balancer
- Three dual-processor web servers
- Development server
- Dedicated database server or servers

Facility and Network:

- Tier 1 network and peer-to-peer relationships
- Secure, disaster-proof hosting facility
- Redundant power backup
- Redundant HVAC and fire suppression

Services

- DNS management for 100+ domains
- Daily incremental and weekly full backup with offsite storage
- One-hour hardware replacement guarantee
- Seven-day provisioning of additional hardware if required

Necessary Services and Functions

These services include, but are not limited to:

- Planning, consultation and creative ideas to VISIT FLORIDA

- Development of new technology and functionality
- Design and graphics services
- PHP programming
- .NET programming
- Macromedia Flash programming
- MySQL database development
- Microsoft SQL Server development (including integration of the above mentioned industry database)
- Online advertising (display and text) delivery and reporting
- Maintain server software
- Monitor performance
- Provide periodic security audits
- Maintain current patches and fixes on all software
- DNS management, domain registration and configuration
- 24/7 monitoring of hardware, server software and application performance
- 24/7 incident response
- Oversee and coordinate maintenance of day-to-day content issues and functionality
- Act as maintenance point of contact and manage Response@MilesMedia.com services for immediate turnaround on maintenance requests
- Monitor all site feedback for technical issues and content related issues, follow through on resolution where applicable
- Add and remove new contest information and manage contest collection and completion
- Provide minor development for non-cost incurred projects, as well as implementing corrections on technical issues
- Monitor and follow up fulfillment complaints for digital publications
- Response to and/or distribution of “webmaster” email
- Response or acknowledgement of client requests within four business hours
- Build databases and write code for all scoped work for client
- Customizations and alterations to existing components
- Bug and security fixes on existing components
- Advertising Account Management Services
- Advertising creative Services
- Provide third-party, auditable reporting on web advertising to VISIT FLORIDA and advertisers
- Editorial Services
- Creation of detailed editorial calendar/content plan for the state’s official web site and related web materials
- Creation of high-quality, original, experiential editorial content
- Creation of a freelance writer network with a diversity of expertise and writing styles to address Florida’s major drivers (current vendor utilizes approximately 40 professional travel writers to create original content)
- Management of professional freelance travel writers
- Annual fact-checking, updating and ongoing maintenance

- of all content on the site
 - Proofreading and editing
 - Translations and proofreading for five international websites
 - Design & Graphics Services
 - Create original designs that are cohesive with VISIT FLORIDA's brand
 - Layout and design
 - Cartography services
 - Typography
 - Photography (including direction of photo shoots and image selection)
 - Create, maintain and adjust to growth of photo library currently with approximately 7,000 Florida images
 - Advertising creative for industry partners for inclusion in VISIT FLORIDA's products at no charge to the advertiser
 - Research and analysis of new technologies proactively or at client's request
 - Research, Development, Analysis and Consultative Services
 - Detailed "due diligence" investigation of potential vendors or relationships on behalf of the client, such as exploring the benefits and costs of working with a particular software or service vendor and providing recommendations to VISIT FLORIDA on adoption, implementation and contract
 - Provide creative solutions for occasional publishing issues
 - Accurate web site traffic reporting for use by VISIT FLORIDA and its agency
 - Electronic Marketing Program Creation and Deployment Services
 - The selected vendor must be able to support VISIT FLORIDA's email marketing program focusing on consumers' special interests.
 - Ongoing planning, program improvement testing and consultation to VISIT FLORIDA services include but are not limited to:
 - Editorial Services
 - Creation of detailed editorial calendar/content plan and scheduling for the email marketing program
 - Creation of a freelance writer network with a diversity of expertise and writing styles to address Florida's major drivers (current vendor utilizes approximately 40 professional travel writers to create original content)
 - Management of professional freelance travel writers
 - Creation of high-quality, original, experiential editorial content
 - Fact-checking, proofreading and editing
 - Liaison and planning services for CVBs and other customers for sponsored content in email marketing program
 - Graphic Design
 - 4-6 consumer email communications each month (more than 52 per year) to a current database size of more than one million names that includes:
 - Welcome email – welcoming consumers to the program
 - Special Interest Electronic Travel Magazines (focusing on seven to nine different special interests, each delivered four times per year to consumers of that interest)
 - Value emails – (focusing on seven to nine different special interests, each delivered two times per year to consumers of that interest)
 - Monthly Electronic Travel Magazine (to consumers with interest in Florida travel)
 - Content Building and Testing
 - Creation of multiple templates to accommodate content rotation of messages for sponsored content and color palette changes
 - Extensive e-mail, SPAM and legibility testing in all known email clients prior to deployment
 - Recommendations to VISIT FLORIDA on how to improve email performance
 - Programming
 - Database list management and segmentation of messages for deployments
 - Processing of unsubscribes according to SPAM requirements
 - Development of new modules and future enhancements to the program
 - Database Management and Growth
 - Full database management service for more than one million names
 - Growth and refreshing of the database of consumer leads through lead-generation programs
 - Research and Development
 - Implementation of controlled test grids to gather statistical data
 - Tracking and reporting on each message deployed
 - Planning and incorporation of ongoing research and development feedback findings to the main product line
 - Recommendations for improvements to the program based on tracking results
 - Revenue Program Support
 - Provide sales and advertising account management support for advertising that includes:
 - Sponsorships
 - Anchor Ads
 - Articles
 - Text Ads
- CRM Database and Data Management Services
- The selected publisher must provide VISIT FLORIDA with CRM services for the management of both the consumer and travel professional databases. The system must allow for the management of active lists and custom lists; allow deployment of customized messages to specified groups; and allow import of messages from multiple sources. Functions of the CRM system and staff must include but are not limited to:
- Database Management: Importing New Contacts

- Accommodating various file types, data formats, and other inconsistencies
- Logging and reporting
- New records
- Duplicates (database, source_type, source_detail, source_interest, file)
- Export and upload of 'new' records, including name, interest categories, and any other data fields used for deployments or tracking
- Trigger a welcome email
- Capture file-upload and welcome email deployment statistics, and return them to the database
- Admin section to import, manage, adjust, re-import, enter and retrieve statistics

Database Management: Synchronization

- Regular exports/upload to update the deployment database
- Recently modified contacts - an 'update' upload
- Recently unsubscribed contacts - an 'unsubscribe' upload
- Regular retrieval of deployment statistics (API pull)
- Contact activity (open/click)
- Contact status (active/unsubscribe/bounce)
- Per-request retrieval of deployment statistics
- Deployment-specific stats (messages sent, messages opened, etc.)

Deployment Configuration

- Test, proof, configure, and deploy regular e-Newsletters
- Rotate message content evenly across all deployments
- Deploy messages to interest-specific groups
- Segment Messages
- First name, interest, activity (opener/non-opener), and any other data field, or combination of data fields
- Specify exact segment sizes, or percentages of total group size
- Test multiple subject-lines, in accordance with the segmentation requirements
- Personalize subject lines

Display Content

- Generate content dynamically from MySQL databases
- Text ads
- Email menus
- Article content
- Generate 'email version' and 'web version' with slightly different options/features

Secondary (support) Pages

- Unsubscribe
- Change Email
- Update Interests
- Forward to a Friend
- Weather
- Archive

Tracking and Reporting

- Track features for each contact
- By segment, source, and date

- Unsubscribes
- Click-tracking
- Articles
- Text ads
- Opens

Per-request Retrieval of Deployment Statistics

- Deployment-specific stats (messages sent, messages opened, etc.)
- Web page reports with various criteria for use of VISIT FLORIDA, advertisers and vendor

Specific Questions for Potential Vendors:

Vendors responding to this RFQ must answer the following questions:

General

1. Indicate the company's specific expertise in creating integrated tourism publishing services as identified in this document including:

- a. Name of clients
- b. Length of contractual relationship
- c. Services provided
- d. Total revenue generated for the client
- e. Percentage of cost of program offset by revenue
- f. Contact information for client references
- g. Provide samples of tourism print products as well URLs to tourism web sites and email marketing programs the company has produced

2. Indicate the number of years the company has been in business.

3. Indicate the number of years and nature of the company's experience and expertise in the tourism industry and, if applicable, the Florida tourism industry.

4. Please indicate awards and accolades the company has won for work that is pertinent to this project.

5. Describe the expertise of the personnel to be utilized for each aspect of this project. Provide the following:

- a. Number of full-time equivalents assigned to this project
- b. Bio/resume of account executive responsible for this contract
- c. Bio/resume of dedicated team. Indicate which team members will be touch points for VISIT FLORIDA within your organization
- d. Number of years of experience on related projects for each team member
- e. Specific knowledge of Florida tourism and familiarity with Florida travel destinations.

6. Indicate how Microsoft Project or other comparable scheduling technology will be used to monitor and manage all aspects of this project.

7. Indicate which services provided by the vendor are outsourced to subcontractors. If subcontractors are to be used, indicate your process for information flow and subcontractor management. For each identified subcontractor, provide answers to questions 2-5.

8. Reviewed or audited financial statements for the past three years.

Strategic Planning

1. Describe the company's ability to act as a strategic planning partner for VISIT FLORIDA and its agency. Provide examples.

2. Indicate what research and tourism industry knowledge (and, if applicable, Florida tourism industry knowledge) will enable the company to recognize and recommend new strategies and products.

Revenue Generation Services

1. Indicate how the company will provide each of the services identified under the "Revenue Generation Services" section within the "Goods and Services Required by VISIT FLORIDA" heading. Respond specifically to each bulleted item.

2. Indicate the company's experience generating revenue through print and online advertising sales within the tourism industry and, if applicable, the Florida tourism industry. Include number of accounts currently serviced and annual advertising revenue generated both outside and within Florida.

3. Identify the company's Florida sales management structure and the territories of account representatives. All sales employees must be included in the bios above.

Data Collection & Annual Maintenance Services

1. Indicate how the company will provide each of the services identified under the "Data Collection & Maintenance Services" section within "Goods and Services Required by VISIT FLORIDA" heading. Respond specifically to each bulleted item.

2. Indicate the platform and technical specifications of the company's database system.

3. Indicate the number of clients this database system is currently serving and the number of listings currently maintained.

4. Indicate the process the company will use to guarantee the accuracy of Partner listings included in these products.

5. Identify staffing for collection and maintenance of listing data. All data employees must be included in the bios above.

Print Publishing

1. Indicate how the company will provide each of the services identified under the "Print Publishing" section within the "Goods and Services Required by VISIT FLORIDA" heading. Respond specifically to each bulleted item.

2. Identify staffing for print publishing services. All employees must be included in the bios above.

3. Identify how the company will obtain and manage an adequate number of qualified third-party endorsed (e.g., SATW) freelance travel writers to provide content for these products.

Reader Response Services

1. Indicate how the company will provide a Reader Response System that provides services comparable or better to those identified under the "Reader Response Services" section within the "Goods and Services Required by VISIT FLORIDA" heading. Respond specifically to each bulleted item.

2. Indicate the clients currently utilizing these Reader Response Services and the number of leads your company processes in a year.

3. Identify staffing to support Reader Response Services. All employees must be included in the bios above.

Web Publishing Services

1. Indicate how the company will provide a comprehensive, dynamic state destination web site as identified under the "Web Publishing Services" section within the "Goods and Services Required by VISIT FLORIDA" heading. Respond specifically to each bulleted item.

2. Indicate the tourism web sites currently published by the company, and their relative size and scope when compared with www.VISITFLORIDA.com.

3. Indicate the percentage of web publishing services provided by the company that is outsourced and/or subcontracted to other companies or freelance agents.

4. Identify staffing to support web site development services. All employees must be included in the bios above.

Electronic Marketing Program Creation & Deployment Services

1. Indicate how the company will provide a program as identified under the "Electronic Marketing Program Creation & Deployment Services" section within the "Goods and Services Required by VISIT FLORIDA" heading. Respond specifically to each bulleted item.

2. Indicate the company's process for testing for anti-spam compliance and deliverability.

3. Indicate the tourism-specific electronic marketing programs the company currently is providing for clients. Include the number of deployments annually and the total number of messages delivered annually.

4. Indicate what percentage of electronic marketing services is outsourced and/or subcontracted to other companies or freelance agents.

5. Identify staffing to support electronic marketing services. All employees must be included in the bios above.

CRM Database & Data Management Services

1. Indicate how the company will provided each of the services identified under the “CRM Database & Data Management Services” section within the “Goods and Services Required by VISIT FLORIDA” heading. Respond specifically to each bulleted item.
2. Indicate the platform and technical specifications of your CRM system.
3. Indicate the number of clients this CRM system is currently serving and the number of listings currently maintained.
4. Identify staffing for CRM data management. All data employees must be included in the bios above.

**Section XII
Miscellaneous**

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY AFFAIRS

DCA Final Order No.: DCA05-OR-238
STATE OF FLORIDA

In re: LAND DEVELOPMENT
REGULATIONS ADOPTED BY
CITY OF KEY WEST ORDINANCE
NO. 05-27

FINAL ORDER

The Department of Community Affairs (the “Department”) hereby issues its Final Order, pursuant to Sections 380.05(6) and (11), F.S., (2005), approving a land development regulation adopted by a local government within the City of Key West Area of Critical State Concern as set forth below.

FINDINGS OF FACT

1. The City of Key West is a designated area of critical state concern.
2. On October 31, 2005, the Department received for review City of Key West Ordinance No. 05-27, which was adopted by the City of Key West City Commission on October 31, 2005 (“Ord. 05-27”). Ord. 05-27 amends Chapter 122 of the Code of Ordinances entitled “Zoning” by adding an intent section. This section requires that proposed development provide affordable housing in a manner that reflects the percentage of the workforce at each income level. Ord. 05-27 provides additional definitions for affordable housing income limits, establishes set-asides of units for workforce housing in multi-unit developments, establishes four categories of affordable housing including low income, medium income, middle and moderate income. Ord. 05-27 contains provisions

for income increases and establishes when leases will be terminated due to income changes, and allows for infill of affordable housing on commercial sites.

3. Ord. 05-27 is consistent with the City’s Comprehensive Plan.

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

4. The Department is required to approve or reject land development regulations that are adopted by any local government in an area of critical state concern based upon consistency with the Principles for Guiding Development applicable to that area of critical state concern. Sections 380.05(6) and 380.05(11), F.S., (2005).

5. The City of Key West is an Area of Critical State Concern. Section 380.05, F.S. (2005) and Rule 28-36.001, F.A.C.

6. “Land development regulations” include local zoning, subdivision, building and other regulations controlling the development of land. Section 380.031(8), F.S. (2005). The regulations adopted by Ord. 05-27 are land development regulations.

7. All land development regulations enacted, amended or rescinded within an area of critical state concern must be consistent with the principles for guiding development for the particular area (the “Principles”). Section 380.05(6), F.S.; see *Rathkamp v. Department of Community Affairs*, 21 F.A.L.R. 1902 (Dec. 4, 1998), *aff’d*, 740 So. 2d 1209 (Fla. 3d DCA 1999). The Principles for the City of Key West Area of Critical State Concern are set forth in Rule 28-36.003(1), F.A.C.

8. Ord. 05-27 promotes and furthers the following Principles in subsection 28-36.003(1), F.A.C.:

(a) To strengthen local government capabilities for managing land use and development.

9. Ord. 05-27 is not inconsistent with the remaining Principles. Ord. 05-27 is consistent with the Principles for Guiding Development as a whole.

WHEREFORE, IT IS ORDERED that Ord. 05-27 is found to be consistent with the Principles for Guiding Development of the City of Key West Area of Critical State Concern, and is hereby APPROVED.

This Order becomes effective 21 days after publication in the Florida Administrative Weekly unless a petition is filed as described below.

DONE AND ORDERED in Tallahassee, Florida.

James L. Quinn, State Planning Administrator
Division of Community Planning
Department of Community Affairs
2555 Shumard Oak Boulevard
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2100

NOTICE OF ADMINISTRATIVE RIGHTS

ANY PERSON WHOSE SUBSTANTIAL INTERESTS ARE AFFECTED BY THIS ORDER HAS THE OPPORTUNITY FOR AN ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEEDING PURSUANT TO SECTION 120.569, FLORIDA STATUTES, REGARDING THE AGENCY'S ACTION. DEPENDING UPON WHETHER YOU ALLEGE ANY DISPUTED ISSUE OF MATERIAL FACT IN YOUR PETITION REQUESTING AN ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEEDING, YOU ARE ENTITLED TO EITHER AN INFORMAL PROCEEDING OR A FORMAL HEARING.

IF YOUR PETITION FOR HEARING DOES NOT ALLEGE ANY DISPUTED ISSUE OF MATERIAL FACT CONTAINED IN THE DEPARTMENT'S ACTION, THEN THE ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEEDING WILL BE AN INFORMAL ONE, CONDUCTED PURSUANT TO SECTIONS 120.569 AND 120.57(2) FLORIDA STATUTES, AND CHAPTER 28-106, PARTS I AND III, FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE. IN AN INFORMAL ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEEDING, YOU MAY BE REPRESENTED BY COUNSEL OR BY A QUALIFIED REPRESENTATIVE, AND YOU MAY PRESENT WRITTEN OR ORAL EVIDENCE IN OPPOSITION TO THE DEPARTMENT'S ACTION OR REFUSAL TO ACT; OR YOU MAY EXERCISE THE OPTION TO PRESENT A WRITTEN STATEMENT CHALLENGING THE GROUNDS UPON WHICH THE DEPARTMENT HAS CHOSEN TO JUSTIFY ITS ACTION OR INACTION.

IF YOU DISPUTE ANY ISSUE OF MATERIAL FACT STATED IN THE AGENCY ACTION, THEN YOU MAY FILE A PETITION REQUESTING A FORMAL ADMINISTRATIVE HEARING BEFORE AN ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE OF THE DIVISION OF ADMINISTRATIVE HEARINGS, PURSUANT TO SECTIONS 120.569 AND 120.57(1), FLORIDA STATUTES, AND CHAPTER 28-106, PARTS I AND II, FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE. AT A FORMAL ADMINISTRATIVE HEARING, YOU MAY BE REPRESENTED BY COUNSEL OR OTHER QUALIFIED REPRESENTATIVE, AND YOU WILL HAVE THE OPPORTUNITY TO PRESENT EVIDENCE AND ARGUMENT ON ALL THE ISSUES INVOLVED, TO CONDUCT CROSS-EXAMINATION AND SUBMIT REBUTTAL EVIDENCE, TO SUBMIT PROPOSED FINDINGS OF FACT AND ORDERS, AND TO FILE EXCEPTIONS TO ANY RECOMMENDED ORDER.

IF YOU DESIRE EITHER AN INFORMAL PROCEEDING OR A FORMAL HEARING, YOU MUST FILE WITH THE AGENCY CLERK OF THE DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY AFFAIRS A WRITTEN PLEADING ENTITLED, "PETITION FOR ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEEDINGS" WITHIN 21 CALENDAR DAYS OF PUBLICATION OF THIS NOTICE.

A PETITION IS FILED WHEN IT IS RECEIVED BY THE AGENCY CLERK, IN THE DEPARTMENT'S OFFICE OF GENERAL COUNSEL, 2555 SHUMARD OAK BOULEVARD, TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 32399-2100.

THE PETITION MUST MEET THE FILING REQUIREMENTS IN SUBSECTION 28-106.104(2), FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE. IF AN INFORMAL PROCEEDING IS REQUESTED, THEN THE PETITION SHALL BE SUBMITTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH RULE 28-106.301, FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE. IF A FORMAL HEARING IS REQUESTED, THEN THE PETITION SHALL BE SUBMITTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH SUBSECTION 28-106.201(2), FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE.

A PERSON WHO HAS FILED A PETITION MAY REQUEST MEDIATION. A REQUEST FOR MEDIATION MUST INCLUDE THE INFORMATION REQUIRED BY RULE 28-106.402, FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE. CHOOSING MEDIATION DOES NOT AFFECT THE RIGHT TO AN ADMINISTRATIVE HEARING.

YOU WAIVE THE RIGHT TO AN INFORMAL ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEEDING OR A FORMAL HEARING IF YOU DO NOT FILE A PETITION WITH THE AGENCY CLERK WITHIN 21 DAYS OF PUBLICATION OF THIS FINAL ORDER.

CERTIFICATE OF FILING AND SERVICE

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the original of the foregoing Final Order has been filed with the undersigned designated Agency Clerk, and that true and correct copies have been furnished to the persons listed below by the method indicated this 20th day of December, 2005.

Paula Ford, Agency Clerk

By U.S. Mail:
The Honorable Morgan McPherson
Mayor, City of Key West
P. O. Box 1409
Key West, Florida 33041

Cheryl Smith
Clerk to the City Commission
P. O. Box 1409
Key West, Florida 33041

Robert Tischenkel
City Attorney
P. O. Box 1409
Key West, FL 33041

DCA Final Order No.:DCA05-OR-242
STATE OF FLORIDA

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY AFFAIRS
In re: LAND DEVELOPMENT
REGULATIONS ADOPTED BY
CITY OF KEY WEST ORDINANCE
NO. 05-28

FINAL ORDER

The Department of Community Affairs (the "Department") hereby issues its Final Order, pursuant to Sections 380.05(6) and (11), F.S., (2005), approving a land development regulation adopted by a local government within the City of Key West Area of Critical State Concern as set forth below.

FINDINGS OF FACT

- 1. The City of Key West is a designated area of critical state concern.
- 2. On November 7, 2005, the Department received for review City of Key West Ordinance No. 05-28, which was adopted by the City of Key West City Commission on November 2, 2005 ("Ord. 05-28"). Ord. 05-28 amends Chapter 114 of the Code of Ordinances entitled "Signs" by adding Section 114-42. This section provides regulations for signs on temporary construction walls.
- 3. Ord. 05-28 is consistent with the City's Comprehensive Plan.

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

- 4. The Department is required to approve or reject land development regulations that are adopted by any local government in an area of critical state concern based upon consistency with the Principles for Guiding Development applicable to that area of critical state concern. Sections 380.05(6) and 380.05(11), F.S., (2005).
- 5. The City of Key West is an Area of Critical State Concern. Section 380.05, F.S. (2005) and Rule 28-36.001, F.A.C.
- 6. "Land development regulations" include local zoning, subdivision, building and other regulations controlling the development of land. Section 380.031(8), F.S. (2005). The regulations adopted by Ord. 05-28 are land development regulations.
- 7. All land development regulations enacted, amended or rescinded within an area of critical state concern must be consistent with the principles for guiding development for the particular area (the "Principles"). Section 380.05(6), F.S.; see *Rathkamp v. Department of Community Affairs*, 21 F.A.L.R. 1902 (Dec. 4, 1998), *aff'd.*, 740 So. 2d 1209 (Fla. 3d DCA 1999). The Principles for the City of Key West Area of Critical State Concern are set forth in subsection 28-36.003(1), F.A.C.

8. Ord. 05-28 promotes and furthers the following Principles in subsection 28-36.003(1), F.A.C.:

- (a) To strengthen local government capabilities for managing land use and development.
- (e) Protection of the historical heritage of Key West and Key West Historical Preservation.
- (h) To protect the public, health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of the Florida Keys and maintain the Florida Keys as a unique Florida Resource.

9. Ord. 05-28 is not inconsistent with the remaining Principles. Ord. 05-28 is consistent with the Principles for Guiding Development as a whole.

WHEREFORE, IT IS ORDERED that Ord. 05-28 is found to be consistent with the Principles for Guiding Development of the City of Key West Area of Critical State Concern, and is hereby APPROVED.

This Order becomes effective 21 days after publication in the Florida Administrative Weekly unless a petition is filed as described below.

DONE AND ORDERED in Tallahassee, Florida.

James L. Quinn, State Planning Administrator
Division of Community Planning
Department of Community Affairs
2555 Shumard Oak Boulevard
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2100

NOTICE OF ADMINISTRATIVE RIGHTS

ANY PERSON WHOSE SUBSTANTIAL INTERESTS ARE AFFECTED BY THIS ORDER HAS THE OPPORTUNITY FOR AN ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEEDING PURSUANT TO SECTION 120.569, FLORIDA STATUTES, REGARDING THE AGENCY'S ACTION. DEPENDING UPON WHETHER YOU ALLEGE ANY DISPUTED ISSUE OF MATERIAL FACT IN YOUR PETITION REQUESTING AN ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEEDING, YOU ARE ENTITLED TO EITHER AN INFORMAL PROCEEDING OR A FORMAL HEARING.

IF YOUR PETITION FOR HEARING DOES NOT ALLEGE ANY DISPUTED ISSUE OF MATERIAL FACT CONTAINED IN THE DEPARTMENT'S ACTION, THEN THE ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEEDING WILL BE AN INFORMAL ONE, CONDUCTED PURSUANT TO SECTIONS 120.569 AND 120.57(2) FLORIDA STATUTES, AND CHAPTER 28-106, PARTS I AND III, FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE. IN AN INFORMAL ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEEDING, YOU MAY BE REPRESENTED BY COUNSEL OR BY A QUALIFIED REPRESENTATIVE, AND YOU MAY PRESENT WRITTEN OR ORAL EVIDENCE IN OPPOSITION TO THE DEPARTMENT'S ACTION OR REFUSAL TO ACT; OR YOU MAY EXERCISE THE OPTION TO PRESENT A

WRITTEN STATEMENT CHALLENGING THE GROUNDS UPON WHICH THE DEPARTMENT HAS CHOSEN TO JUSTIFY ITS ACTION OR INACTION.

IF YOU DISPUTE ANY ISSUE OF MATERIAL FACT STATED IN THE AGENCY ACTION, THEN YOU MAY FILE A PETITION REQUESTING A FORMAL ADMINISTRATIVE HEARING BEFORE AN ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE OF THE DIVISION OF ADMINISTRATIVE HEARINGS, PURSUANT TO SECTIONS 120.569 AND 120.57(1), FLORIDA STATUTES, AND CHAPTER 28-106, PARTS I AND II, FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE. AT A FORMAL ADMINISTRATIVE HEARING, YOU MAY BE REPRESENTED BY COUNSEL OR OTHER QUALIFIED REPRESENTATIVE, AND YOU WILL HAVE THE OPPORTUNITY TO PRESENT EVIDENCE AND ARGUMENT ON ALL THE ISSUES INVOLVED, TO CONDUCT CROSS-EXAMINATION AND SUBMIT REBUTTAL EVIDENCE, TO SUBMIT PROPOSED FINDINGS OF FACT AND ORDERS, AND TO FILE EXCEPTIONS TO ANY RECOMMENDED ORDER.

IF YOU DESIRE EITHER AN INFORMAL PROCEEDING OR A FORMAL HEARING, YOU MUST FILE WITH THE AGENCY CLERK OF THE DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY AFFAIRS A WRITTEN PLEADING ENTITLED, "PETITION FOR ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEEDINGS" WITHIN 21 CALENDAR DAYS OF PUBLICATION OF THIS NOTICE. A PETITION IS FILED WHEN IT IS RECEIVED BY THE AGENCY CLERK, IN THE DEPARTMENT'S OFFICE OF GENERAL COUNSEL, 2555 SHUMARD OAK BOULEVARD, TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 32399-2100.

THE PETITION MUST MEET THE FILING REQUIREMENTS IN SUBSECTION 28-106.104(2), FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE. IF AN INFORMAL PROCEEDING IS REQUESTED, THEN THE PETITION SHALL BE SUBMITTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH RULE 28-106.301, FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE. IF A FORMAL HEARING IS REQUESTED, THEN THE PETITION SHALL BE SUBMITTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH RULE 28-106.201(2), FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE.

A PERSON WHO HAS FILED A PETITION MAY REQUEST MEDIATION. A REQUEST FOR MEDIATION MUST INCLUDE THE INFORMATION REQUIRED BY RULE 28-106.402, FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE. CHOOSING MEDIATION DOES NOT AFFECT THE RIGHT TO AN ADMINISTRATIVE HEARING.

YOU WAIVE THE RIGHT TO AN INFORMAL ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEEDING OR A FORMAL HEARING IF YOU DO NOT FILE A PETITION WITH THE AGENCY CLERK WITHIN 21 DAYS OF PUBLICATION OF THIS FINAL ORDER.

CERTIFICATE OF FILING AND SERVICE

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the original of the foregoing Final Order has been filed with the undersigned designated Agency Clerk, and that true and correct copies have been furnished to the persons listed below by the method indicated this 21st day of December, 2005.

Paula Ford, Agency Clerk

By U.S. Mail:

The Honorable Morgan McPherson
Mayor, City of Key West
P. O. Box 1409
Key West, Florida 33041

Cheryl Smith
Clerk to the City Commission
P. O. Box 1409
Key West, Florida 33041

Robert Tischenkel
City Attorney
P. O. Box 1409
Key West, FL 33041

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

The Florida Department of Transportation intends to issue an "Airport Site Approval Order," in accordance with Chapter 330, Florida Statutes, "Regulation of Aircraft, Pilots, and Airports" and Chapter 14-60, Florida Administrative Code, "Airport Licensing, Registration, and Airspace Protection" for the following site:

Helicopters International, LLC, a private airport, in Orange County, at Latitude 28° 27' 52" and Longitude 81° 27' 35", to be owned and operated by Mr. José Carlos Guarilha, 7751 Kingspointe Parkway, Unit 127, Orlando, FL 32819.

A copy of the Airport Site Approval Order, the Airport's application, the applicable rules, and other pertinent information may be obtained by contacting: Mr. William J. Ashbaker, P.E., State Aviation Manager, Florida Department of Transportation, Aviation Office, 605 Suwannee Street, Mail

Station 46, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0450, (850)414-4500; aviation.fdot@dot.state.fl.us. Website: <http://www.dot.state.fl.us/aviation>.

ADMINISTRATIVE HEARING RIGHTS: Any person whose substantial interests will be determined or affected by this Airport Site Approval Order has the right, pursuant to Section 120.57, Florida Statutes, to petition for an administrative hearing. The petition for an administrative hearing must conform to the requirements of Rule Chapter 28-106, Florida Administrative Code, and must be filed, in writing, within twenty-one days of the publication of this notice, with the Clerk of Agency Proceedings, Office of General Counsel, Florida Department of Transportation, 605 Suwannee Street, Mail Station 58, Room 550, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0450. Failure to file a petition within the allowed time constitutes a waiver of any right such person has to request a hearing under Chapter 120, Florida Statutes.

The Northwest Florida Transportation Corridor Authority is seeking applications for the position of Executive Director. Resumes should be sent to: Randall McElheney, Chairman of the Northwest Florida Transportation Corridor Authority, 132 Harrison Avenue, Panama City, Florida 32401 and should be received no later than 5:00 p.m. (local time) on January 13, 2006. Resumes must evidence significant experience in all aspects of transportation planning, public transportation, public finance and right of way acquisition. Applicants must also have significant administrative experience. Resumes must include educational background, prior experience and references.

The Florida Department of Transportation intends to issue an "Airport Site Approval Order," in accordance with Chapter 330, Florida Statutes, "Regulation of Aircraft, Pilots, and Airports" and Chapter 14-60, Florida Administrative Code, "Airport Licensing, Registration, and Airspace Protection" for the following site:

Collier Regional Medical Center, a private airport, in Collier County, at Latitude 26° 06' 07.08" and Longitude 81° 41' 08.76", to be owned and operated by Mr. J. Michael Mastej, 5811 Pelican Bay Boulevard, Suite 500, Naples, FL 34108.

A copy of the Airport Site Approval Order, the Airport's application, the applicable rules, and other pertinent information may be obtained by contacting: Mr. William J. Ashbaker, P.E., State Aviation Manager, Florida Department of Transportation, Aviation Office, 605 Suwannee Street, Mail

Station 46, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0450, (850)414-4500, aviation.fdot@dot.state.fl.us. Website: <http://www.dot.state.fl.us/aviation>.

ADMINISTRATIVE HEARING RIGHTS: Any person whose substantial interests will be determined or affected by this Airport Site Approval Order has the right, pursuant to Section 120.57, Florida Statutes, to petition for an administrative hearing. The petition for an administrative hearing must conform to the requirements of Rule Chapter 28-106, Florida Administrative Code, and must be filed, in writing, within twenty-one days of the publication of this notice, with the Clerk of Agency Proceedings, Office of General Counsel, Florida Department of Transportation, 605 Suwannee Street, Mail Station 58, Room 550, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0450. Failure to file a petition within the allowed time constitutes a waiver of any right such person has to request a hearing under Chapter 120, Florida Statutes.

DEPARTMENT OF HIGHWAY SAFETY AND MOTOR VEHICLES

Notice of Publication for a New Point Franchise Motor Vehicle Dealer in a County of More than 300,000 Population

Pursuant to Section 320.642, Florida Statutes, Thunder Mountain Custom Cycles, Inc., intends to allow the establishment of Adamec Cycle Sales Co., Inc., d/b/a Adamec Harley-Davidson at Regency, as a dealership for the sale of Thunder Mountain Custom motorcycles, 10399 Atlantic Boulevard, Jacksonville, (Duval County), Florida 32225, on or after December 9, 2005.

The name and address of the dealer operator(s) and principal investor(s) of Adamec Cycle Sales Co., Inc., d/b/a Adamec Harley-Davidson at Regency are dealer operator(s): Mark A. Adamec and Chris R. Adamec, c/o Adamec Cycle Sales Co., Inc., 10399 Atlantic Boulevard, Jacksonville, Florida 32225; principal investor(s): Mark A. Adamec and Chris R. Adamec, c/o Adamec Cycle Sales Co., Inc., 10399 Atlantic Boulevard, Jacksonville, Florida 32225.

The notice indicates intent to establish the new point location in a county of more than 300,000 population, according to the latest population estimates of the University of Florida, Bureau of Economic and Business Research.

Certain dealerships of the same line-make may have standing, pursuant to Section 320.642, Florida Statutes, to file a petition or complaint protesting the application.

Written petitions or complaints must be received by the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles within 30 days of the date of publication of this notice and must be submitted to: Mr. Ronald D. Reynolds, Administrator, Dealer License Section, Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles, Room A-312, Neil Kirkman Building, 2900 Apalachee Parkway, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0635.

A copy of such petition or complaint must also be sent by US Mail to: Mari Amaya, Controller, Thunder Mountain Custom Cycles, 5836 Wright Drive, Loveland, Colorado 80538.

If no petitions or complaints are received within 30 days of the date of publication, a final order will be issued by the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles approving the establishment of the dealership, subject to the applicant's compliance with the provisions of Chapter 320, Florida Statutes.

Notice of Publication for a New Point

Franchise Motor Vehicle Dealer in a County of Less than 300,000 Population

Pursuant to Section 320.642, Florida Statutes, notice is given that Thunder Mountain Custom Cycles, Inc., intends to allow the establishment of Adamec Cycle Sales Co., Inc., d/b/a Adamec Harley-Davidson of Orange Park, as a dealership for the sale of Thunder Mountain Custom motorcycles, 1520 Wells Road, Orange Park, (Clay County), Florida 32073, on or after December 9, 2005.

The name and address of the dealer operator(s) and principal investor(s) of Adamec Cycle Sales Co., Inc., d/b/a Adamec Harley-Davidson of Orange Park, are dealer operator: Mark A. Adamec and Chris R. Adamec, c/o Adamec Cycle Sales Co., Inc., 1520 Wells Road, Orange Park, Florida 32073; principal investor(s): Mark A. Adamec and Chris R. Adamec, c/o Adamec Cycle Sales Co., Inc., 1520 Wells Road, Orange Park, Florida 32073.

The notice indicates intent to establish the new point location in a county of less than 300,000 population, according to the latest population estimates of the University of Florida, Bureau of Economic and Business Research.

Certain dealerships of the same line-make may have standing, pursuant to Section 320.642, Florida Statutes, as amended by Chapter 88-395, Laws of Florida, to file a petition or complaint protesting the application.

Written petitions or complaints must be received by the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles within 30 days of the date of publication of this notice and must be submitted to: Mr. Ronald D. Reynolds, Administrator, Dealer License Section, Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles, Room A-312, Neil Kirkman Building, 2900 Apalachee Parkway, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0635.

A copy of such petition or complaint must also be sent by US Mail to: Maria Amaya, Controller, Thunder Mountain Custom Cycles, 5836 Wright Drive, Loveland, Colorado 80538.

If no petitions or complaints are received within 30 days of the date of publication, a final order will be issued by the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles approving the establishment of the dealership, subject to the applicant's compliance with the provisions of Chapter 320, Florida Statutes.

Notice of Publication for a New Point

Franchise Motor Vehicle Dealer in a County of More than 300,000 Population

Pursuant to Section 320.642, Florida Statutes, Hyosung Motors America, Inc., intends to allow the establishment of Atlantic Moto Sports, as a dealership for the sale of Hyosung motorcycles, 1400 Mayport Road, Atlantic Beach, (Duval County), Florida 32233, on or after December 7, 2005.

The name and address of the dealer operator(s) and principal investor(s) of Atlantic Moto Sports are dealer operator(s): Kirt W. Lynch, 55 North Roscoe Boulevard, North, Ponte Vedra, Florida 32082; principal investor(s): Kirt W. Lynch, 55 North Roscoe Boulevard, North, Ponte Vedra, Florida 32082.

The notice indicates intent to establish the new point location in a county of more than 300,000 population, according to the latest population estimates of the University of Florida, Bureau of Economic and Business Research.

Certain dealerships of the same line-make may have standing, pursuant to Section 320.642, Florida Statutes, to file a petition or complaint protesting the application.

Written petitions or complaints must be received by the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles within 30 days of the date of publication of this notice and must be submitted to: Mr. Ronald D. Reynolds, Administrator, Dealer

License Section, Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles, Room A-312, Neil Kirkman Building, 2900 Apalachee Parkway, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0635.

A copy of such petition or complaint must also be sent by US Mail to: Edward Park, President, Hyosung Motors America, Inc., 502 Shartom Drive, Augusta, Georgia 30907.

If no petitions or complaints are received within 30 days of the date of publication, a final order will be issued by the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles approving the establishment of the dealership, subject to the applicant's compliance with the provisions of Chapter 320, Florida Statutes.

Notice of Publication for a New Point
Franchise Motor Vehicle Dealer in a County of More
than 300,000 Population

Pursuant to Section 320.642, Florida Statutes, the Infiniti Division of Nissan North America, Inc., intends to allow the establishment of Infiniti of Fort Myers, LLC, d/b/a Infiniti of Fort Myers, as a dealership for the sale of Infiniti vehicles, at:

A part of a parcel described in O.R. Book 2103, Pages 2904 and 2905. Parcel of land in the South 1/2 of the Southeast 1/4 of Section 26, Township 45 South, Range 24 East, Lee County, Florida for land Southeast of the rerouting of S.R. 865 and Northeast of interconnection of existing and rerouted S.R. 865; said parcel is more particularly described as follows:

From the Southwest corner of the Southeast 1/4 of said Section 26 run North 89° 07' 28" East along the South line of said section 822.67 feet to an intersection with the Southeasterly right-of-way line of rerouted S.R. 865; thence North 19° 19' 37" East along said Southeasterly right-of-way line, 318.25 feet; thence continue North 19° 19' 37" E, along said right-of-way line, 179.72 feet to the beginning of a curve concave to the Southeast having a radius of 1,130.00 feet and central angle of 27° 03' 10"; thence Northeasterly along said right-of-way line and arc of curve 271.84 feet; thence continue along an arc of a curve, said curve having a radius 1,130.00 feet, central angle of 24° 30' 10", run along the arc of said curve 483.25 feet to the end of said curve; thence South 18° 05' 52" East for 4.45 feet; thence run along the arc of a 1,136.23 feet radius curve, said curve having a central angle of 17° 15' 59", run along the curve of said curve for 342.41 feet to the end of said curve; thence continue along said Southerly right-of-way line North 89° 10' 07" East for 36.50 feet; thence run South 00° 50' 30" East for 5.00 feet; thence North 89° 09' 30" East for 57.93 feet; thence South 00° 50' 30" East for 15.75 feet; thence

North 89° 09' 30" East, 338.33 feet; thence South 62° 34' 51" West for 13.52 feet to an intersection with the West right-of-way line S.R. 45; thence South 00° 35' 21" East, along said Westerly right-of-way line, 465.14 feet to the beginning of a curve concave to the East having a radius of 2,932.79 feet and central angle of 05° 55' 11"; thence Southerly along the arc of curve and said Westerly right-of-way line 303.01 feet to the Point of Beginning. From said Point of Beginning thence run South 89° 19' 37" West for the 611.60 feet; thence run South 01° 27' 35" East for 275.02 feet to an intersection with the Northerly right-of-way line of Old Gladiolus Drive; thence run North 89° 19' 37" East for 649.18 feet to an intersection with the West right-of-way of U.S. 41 (SR45); thence run along the arc of a 2932.79 feet radius curve to the right, said curve having a central angle of 05° 26' 07", a tangent of 139.21 feet, run along the arc of said curve 278.22 feet to the Point of Beginning, Fort Myers, (Lee County), Florida, on or after March 1, 2006.

The name and address of the dealer operator(s) and principal investor(s) of Infiniti of Fort Myers, LLC, d/b/a Infiniti of Fort Myers are dealer operator(s): Andres J. Perez, 3145 Cypress Pond Pass, Duluth, Georgia 30097, and John I. Williams, Jr., 3505 Georgia Highway 20, Buford, Georgia 30519; principal investor(s): Andres J. Perez, 3145 Cypress Pond Pass, Duluth, Georgia 30097, and John I Williams, Jr., 3505 Georgia Highway 20, Buford, Georgia 30519.

The notice indicates intent to establish the new point location in a county of more than 300,000 population, according to the latest population estimates of the University of Florida, Bureau of Economic and Business Research.

Certain dealerships of the same line-make may have standing, pursuant to Section 320.642, Florida Statutes, to file a petition or complaint protesting the application.

Written petitions or complaints must be received by the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles within 30 days of the date of publication of this notice and must be submitted to: Mr. Ronald D. Reynolds, Administrator, Dealer License Section, Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles, Room A-312, Neil Kirkman Building, 2900 Apalachee Parkway, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0635.

A copy of such petition or complaint must also be sent by US Mail to: Jeffrey Harris, Regional Vice President, Infinity Division – East, 1501 Cottontail Lane, Somerset, New Jersey 08873-1269.

If no petitions or complaints are received within 30 days of the date of publication, a final order will be issued by the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles approving

the establishment of the dealership, subject to the applicant's compliance with the provisions of Chapter 320, Florida Statutes.

the establishment of the dealership, subject to the applicant's compliance with the provisions of Chapter 320, Florida Statutes.

Notice of Publication for a New Point
Franchise Motor Vehicle Dealer in a County of Less
than 300,000 Population

Pursuant to Section 320.642, Florida Statutes, notice is given that Kawasaki Motors Corp., U.S.A., intends to allow the establishment of Nassau Power Sports, Inc., as a dealership for the sale of Kawasaki motorcycles, 463362 State Road 200, Yulee, (Nassau County), Florida 32097, on or after February 28, 2006.

The name and address of the dealer operator(s) and principal investor(s) of Nassau Power Sports, Inc., are dealer operator(s): William Goetz, 1301 Oak Haven Road, Jacksonville, Florida 32207, Mark Goetz, 10657 Crooked Tree Court, Jacksonville, Florida 32256, and Glenn Goetz, 1117 Old Hickory Road, Jacksonville, Florida 32207; principal investor(s): William Goetz, 1301 Oak Haven Road, Jacksonville, Florida 32207, Mark Goetz, 10657 Crooked Tree Court, Jacksonville, Florida 32256, and Glenn Goetz, 1117 Old Hickory Road, Jacksonville, Florida 32207.

The notice indicates intent to establish the new point location in a county of less than 300,000 population, according to the latest population estimates of the University of Florida, Bureau of Economic and Business Research.

Certain dealerships of the same line-make may have standing, pursuant to Section 320.642, Florida Statutes, as amended by Chapter 88-395, Laws of Florida, to file a petition or complaint protesting the application.

Written petitions or complaints must be received by the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles within 30 days of the date of publication of this notice and must be submitted to: Mr. Ronald D. Reynolds, Administrator, Dealer License Section, Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles, Room A-312, Neil Kirkman Building, 2900 Apalachee Parkway, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0635.

A copy of such petition or complaint must also be sent by US Mail to: Jim Capps, Regional Sales Manager, Kawasaki Motors Corp., U.S.A., 6110 Boat Rock Boulevard, Southwest, Atlanta, Georgia 30336.

If no petitions or complaints are received within 30 days of the date of publication, a final order will be issued by the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles approving

**BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE INTERNAL
IMPROVEMENT TRUST FUND**

Pursuant to Chapter 2003-145, Laws of Florida, all notices for the Board of Trustees of the Internal Improvement Trust Fund are published on the Internet at the Department of Environmental Protection's home page at <http://www.dep.state.fl.us/> under the link or button titled "Official Notices."

AGENCY FOR HEALTH CARE ADMINISTRATION

AGENCY FOR HEALTH CARE ADMINISTRATION
CERTIFICATE OF NEED

DECISIONS ON BATCHED APPLICATIONS

The Agency for Health Care Administration made the following decisions on Certificate of Need applications for Hospital Beds and Facilities batching cycle with an application due date of September 14, 2005:

County: Lake Service District: 3
CON # 9869 Decision Date: 12/16/2005 Decision: D
Facility/Project: Leesburg Regional Medical Center
Applicant: Leesburg Regional Medical Center
Project Description: Establish a long-term care hospital of 50 beds

Approved Cost: \$0
County: Lake Service District: 3
CON # 9870 Decision Date: 12/16/2005 Decision: D
Facility/Project: Promise Healthcare of Florida III, Inc.
Applicant: Promise Healthcare of Florida III, Inc.
Project Description: Establish a long-term care hospital of 40 beds

Approved Cost: \$0
County: Lake Service District: 3
CON # 9871 Decision Date: 12/16/2005 Decision: D
Facility/Project: Select Specialty Hospital – Lake, Inc.
Applicant: Select Specialty Hospital – Lake, Inc.
Project Description: Establish a long-term care hospital of 44 beds

Approved Cost: \$0
County: Clay Service District: 4
CON # 9872 Decision Date: 12/16/2005 Decision: D

Facility/Project: Baptist Medical Center of Clay, Inc.
Applicant: Baptist Medical Center of Clay, Inc.
Project Description: Establish an acute care hospital of 84 beds
Approved Cost: \$0
County: Clay Service District: 4
CON # 9873 Decision Date: 12/16/2005 Decision: A
Facility/Project: Orange Park Medical Center, Inc.
Applicant: Orange Park Medical Center, Inc.
Project Description: Establish an acute care hospital of 100 beds
Approved Cost: \$128,124,906
County: Clay Service District: 4
CON # 9874 Decision Date: 12/16/2005 Decision: D
Facility/Project: St. Vincent's Medical Center, Inc.
Applicant: St. Vincent's Medical Center, Inc.
Project Description: Establish an acute care hospital of 98 beds
Approved Cost: \$0
County: Orange Service District: 7
CON # 9876 Decision Date: 12/16/2005 Decision: D
Facility/Project: Kindred Hospitals East, L.L.C.
Applicant: Kindred Hospitals East, L.L.C.
Project Description: Establish a long-term care hospital of 60 beds
Approved Cost: \$0
County: Orange Service District: 7
CON # 9877 Decision Date: 12/16/2005 Decision: D
Facility/Project: Ten Broeck Orlando, Inc.
Applicant: Ten Broeck Orlando, Inc.
Project Description: Establish an adult psychiatric hospital of 49 beds
Approved Cost: \$0
County: Orange Service District: 7
CON # 9878 Decision Date: 12/16/2005 Decision: A
Facility/Project: UHS of Maitland, Inc.
Applicant: UHS of Maitland, Inc.
Project Description: Establish an adult psychiatric hospital of 49 beds
Approved Cost: \$17,962,562
County: Orange Service District: 7
CON # 9879 Decision Date: 12/16/2005 Decision: D
Facility/Project: Ten Broeck Orlando, Inc.
Applicant: Ten Broeck Orlando, Inc.
Project Description: Establish a child/adolescent psychiatric hospital of 90 beds
Approved Cost: \$0

County: Orange Service District: 7
CON # 9880 Decision Date: 12/16/2005 Decision: A
Facility/Project: UHS of Maitland, Inc.
Applicant: UHS of Maitland, Inc.
Project Description: Establish a child/adolescent psychiatric hospital of 71 beds
Approved Cost: \$17,962,562
County: Brevard Service District: 7
CON # 9881 Decision Date: 12/16/2005 Decision: A
Facility/Project: Holmes Regional Medical Center, Inc.
Applicant: Holmes Regional Medical Center, Inc.
Project Description: Establish an acute care hospital of 84 beds
Approved Cost: \$104,875,753
County: Charlotte Service District: 8
CON # 9882 Decision Date: 12/16/2005 Decision: D
Facility/Project: Peace River Regional Medical Center
Applicant: Port Charlotte HMA, Inc.
Project Description: Establish a 10-bed Level II Neonatal Intensive Care Unit
Approved Cost: \$0
County: Lee Service District: 8
CON # 9883 Decision Date: 12/16/2005 Decision: D
Facility/Project: Cape Memorial Hospital
Applicant: Cape Memorial Hospital, Inc.
Project Description: Establish a 10-bed Level II NICU
Approved Cost: \$0
County: St. Lucie Service District: 9
CON # 9884 Decision Date: 12/16/2005 Decision: D
Facility/Project: Kindred Hospitals East, L.L.C.
Applicant: Kindred Hospitals East, L.L.C.
Project Description: Establish a long-term care hospital of 50 beds
Approved Cost: \$0
County: St. Lucie Service District: 9
CON # 9885 Decision Date: 12/16/2005 Decision: D
Facility/Project: Promise Healthcare of Florida IX, Inc.
Applicant: Promise Healthcare of Florida IX, Inc.
Project Description: Establish a long-term care hospital of 40 beds
Approved Cost: \$0
County: St. Lucie Service District: 9
CON # 9886 Decision Date: 12/16/2005 Decision: D
Facility/Project: Select Specialty Hospital – St. Lucie, Inc.
Applicant: Select Specialty Hospital – St. Lucie, Inc.

Project Description: Establish a long-term care hospital of 44 beds
 Approved Cost: \$0
 County: St. Lucie Service District: 9
 CON # 9887 Decision Date: 12/16/2005 Decision: D
 Facility/Project: Martin Memorial Medical Center, Inc.
 Applicant: Martin Memorial Medical Center, Inc.
 Project Description: Establish an acute care hospital of 80 beds
 Approved Cost: \$0
 County: Broward Service District: 10
 CON # 9888 Decision Date: 12/16/2005 Decision: D
 Facility/Project: Promise Healthcare of Florida X, Inc.
 Applicant: Promise Healthcare of Florida X, Inc.
 Project Description: Establish a long-term care hospital of 40 beds
 Approved Cost: \$0
 County: Broward Service District: 10
 CON # 9889 Decision Date: 12/16/2005 Decision: D
 Facility/Project: Select Specialty Hospital – Broward, Inc.
 Applicant: Select Specialty Hospital – Broward, Inc.
 Project Description: Establish a long-term care hospital of 44 beds
 Approved Cost: \$0
 County: Dade Service District: 11
 CON # 9891 Decision Date: 12/16/2005 Decision: D
 Facility/Project: Promise Healthcare of Florida XI, Inc.
 Applicant: Promise Healthcare of Florida XI, Inc.
 Project Description: Establish a long-term care hospital of 60 beds
 Approved Cost: \$0
 County: Dade Service District: 11
 CON # 9892 Decision Date: 12/16/2005 Decision: D
 Facility/Project: Select Specialty Hospital – Dade, Inc.
 Applicant: Select Specialty Hospital – Dade, Inc.
 Project Description: Establish a long-term care hospital of 60 beds
 Approved Cost: \$0
 County: Dade Service District: 11
 CON # 9893 Decision Date: 12/16/2005 Decision: D
 Facility/Project: Miami Jewish Home and Hospital for the Aged, Inc.
 Applicant: Miami Jewish Home and Hospital for the Aged, Inc.
 Project Description: Establish a long-term care hospital of 30 beds

Approved Cost: \$0
 County: Dade Service District: 11
 CON # 9894 Decision Date: 12/16/2005 Decision: D
 Facility/Project: Kindred Hospitals East, L.L.C.
 Applicant: Kindred Hospitals East, L.L.C.
 Project Description: Establish a long-term care hospital of 60 beds
 Approved Cost: \$0
 County: Dade Service District: 11
 CON # 9895 Decision Date: 12/16/2005 Decision: D
 Facility/Project: Mount Sinai Medical Center of Florida, Inc.
 Applicant: Mount Sinai Medical Center of Florida, Inc.
 Project Description: Establish an acute care hospital of 116 beds through the transfer of 116 beds from Mount Sinai Medical Center
 Approved Cost: \$0
 A request for administrative hearing, if any, must be made in writing and must be actually received by this department within 21 days of the first day of publication of this notice in the Florida Administrative Weekly pursuant to Chapter 120, Florida Statutes, and Chapter 59C-1, Florida Administrative Code.

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION

The Division of Alcoholic Beverages and Tobacco, Department of Business and Professional Regulation, announces it will be accepting applications beginning JANUARY 15, 2006 and continuing through APRIL 14, 2006 for inclusion in the drawing for seventeen (17) new quota liquor licenses to be issued in SANTA ROSA COUNTY. DBPR Form ABT 4000-033L is the only application that will be accepted for filing into these drawings. All other application forms from prior drawings will be denied. All interested persons should contact the Division's district office serving their area of interest or visit the Division's Internet website at www.myflorida.com/dbpr/abt to obtain the proper application form. Further information may also be obtained by calling (850)488-8284 or writing to: Division of Alcoholic Beverages and Tobacco, Bureau of Licensing, New Quota License Drawing, 1940 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, FL 32399-1021.

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Pursuant to Chapter 2003-145, Laws of Florida, all notices for the Department of Environmental Protection are published on the Internet at the Department of Environmental Protection's home page at <http://www.dep.state.fl.us/> under the link or button titled "Official Notices."

DEPARTMENT OF JUVENILE JUSTICE

The Florida Department of Juvenile Justice has posted the draft of the Detention Services Manual for review and comment at: <http://www.djj.state.fl.us/DJJServices/Administration/policies/procedures/manualreview.html>.

This manual is designed to assist detention staff in complying with juvenile laws and procedures, enhance public protection, ensure program integrity and provide for quality services to delinquent youth while in the custody of DJJ. It's purpose is twofold: (1) to articulate the Department's policy governing the operation of state operated detention facilities and (2) to provide interpretive guidelines to assist detention facilities in implementing the policy. The manual is being posted for a single 20 working day review and comment period. The closure date for submission of comments on the manual is January 30, 2006. Comments should be sent to the person identified on the above Website utilizing the Matrix of Comments.

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

On December 14, 2005, M. Rony François, M.D., M.S.P.H., Ph.D., Secretary of the Department of Health, issued an Order of Emergency Suspension with regard to the license of Abel Cabral, R.N. license number RN 3069652. This Emergency Suspension Order was predicated upon the Secretary's findings of an immediate and serious danger to the public health, safety and welfare pursuant to Sections 456.073(8) and 120.60(6), Florida Statutes. The Secretary determined that this summary procedure was fair under the circumstances, in that there was no other method available to adequately protect the public.

On December 14, 2005, M. Rony François, M.D., M.S.P.H., Ph.D., Secretary of the Department of Health, issued an Order of Emergency Suspension with regard to the license of Carlos E. Ibanez, R.N. license number RN 9164050. This Emergency Suspension Order was predicated upon the Secretary's findings

of an immediate and serious danger to the public health, safety and welfare pursuant to Sections 456.073(8) and 120.60(6), Florida Statutes. The Secretary determined that this summary procedure was fair under the circumstances, in that there was no other method available to adequately protect the public.

On December 14, 2005, M. Rony François, M.D., M.S.P.H., Ph.D., Secretary of the Department of Health, issued an Order of Emergency Restriction with regard to the license of Thomas Thomas, Jr., M.D. license number ME 29154. This Emergency Restriction Order was predicated upon the Secretary's findings of an immediate and serious danger to the public health, safety and welfare pursuant to Sections 456.073(8) and 120.60(6), Florida Statutes. The Secretary determined that this summary procedure was fair under the circumstances, in that there was no other method available to adequately protect the public.

On December 16, 2005, M. Rony François, M.D., M.S.P.H., Ph.D., Secretary of the Department of Health, issued an Order of Emergency Suspension with regard to the license of Patrick Murphy, R.N. license number RN 2885592. This Emergency Suspension Order was predicated upon the Secretary's findings of an immediate and serious danger to the public health, safety and welfare pursuant to Sections 456.073(8) and 120.60(6), Florida Statutes. The Secretary determined that this summary procedure was fair under the circumstances, in that there was no other method available to adequately protect the public.

On December 16, 2005, M. Rony François, M.D., M.S.P.H., Ph.D., Secretary of the Department of Health, issued an Order of Emergency Suspension with regard to the certificate of Linda Youmas, C.N.A. Certificate number 0295*****6257. This Emergency Suspension Order was predicated upon the Secretary's findings of an immediate and serious danger to the public health, safety and welfare pursuant to Sections 456.073(8) and 120.60(6), Florida Statutes. The Secretary determined that this summary procedure was fair under the circumstances, in that there was no other method available to adequately protect the public.

On December 16, 2005, M. Rony François, M.D., M.S.P.H., Ph.D., Secretary of the Department of Health, issued an Order of Emergency Suspension with regard to the license of Karen Jeanne Greenwood, L.P.N. license number PN 1345991. This

Emergency Suspension Order was predicated upon the Secretary's findings of an immediate and serious danger to the public health, safety and welfare pursuant to Sections 456.073(8) and 120.60(6), Florida Statutes. The Secretary determined that this summary procedure was fair under the circumstances, in that there was no other method available to adequately protect the public.

On December 19, 2005, M. Rony François, M.D., M.S.P.H., Ph.D., Secretary of the Department of Health, issued an Order of Emergency Suspension with regard to the license of John O. Moses, R. Ph. License #26291. This Emergency Suspension Order was predicated upon the Secretary's findings of an immediate and serious danger to the public health, safety and welfare pursuant to Sections 456.073(8) and 120.60(6), Florida Statutes. The Secretary determined that this summary procedure was fair under the circumstances, in that there was no other method available to adequately protect the public.

FINANCIAL SERVICE COMMISSION

Office of Financial Regulation

Notice is hereby given that the Office of Financial Regulation, Division of Financial Institution, has received the following application. Comments may be submitted to the Director, 200 East Gaines Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0371, for inclusion in the official record without requesting a hearing. However, pursuant to provisions specified in Chapter 69U-105, Florida Administrative Code, any person may request a public hearing by filing a petition with the Clerk, Legal Services Office, Office of Financial Regulation, Division of Financial Institutions, 200 East Gaines Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0379. The Petition must be received by the Clerk within twenty-one (21) days of publication of this notice (by 5:00 p.m., January 20, 2006):

APPLICATION FOR A NEW FINANCIAL INSTITUTION

Applicant and Proposed Location: Hillcrest Bank Florida, 5325 Airport Road, Naples, Collier County, Florida 34109
Correspondent: John P. Greeley, 255 South Orange Avenue, Suite 800, Orlando, Florida 32801

Received: December 20, 2005

Section XIII
Index to Rules Filed During Preceding Week

RULES FILED BETWEEN December 12, 2005
 and December 16, 2005

Rule No.	File Date	Effective Date	Proposed Vol./No.	Amended Vol./No.
----------	-----------	----------------	-------------------	------------------

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY AFFAIRS

Division of Emergency Management

9G-19.002	12/14/05	1/3/06	31/25	
9G-19.003	12/14/05	1/3/06	31/25	
9G-19.005	12/14/05	1/3/06	31/25	31/44
9G-19.007	12/14/05	1/3/06	31/25	
9G-19.008	12/14/05	1/3/06	31/25	31/44
9G-19.009	12/14/05	1/3/06	31/25	
9G-19.010	12/14/05	1/3/06	31/25	

BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE INTERNAL IMPROVEMENT TRUST

18-21.003	12/12/05	1/1/06	31/45	
18-21.011	12/12/05	1/1/06	31/45	

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

25-24.511	12/16/05	1/5/06	31/45	
25-24.512	12/16/05	1/5/06	31/45	
25-24.567	12/16/05	1/5/06	31/45	
25-24.569	12/16/05	1/5/06	31/45	
25-24.720	12/16/05	1/5/06	31/45	
25-24.730	12/16/05	1/5/06	31/45	
25-24.810	12/16/05	1/5/06	31/45	
25-24.815	12/16/05	1/5/06	31/45	

DEPARTMENT OF MANAGEMENT SERVICES

Division of Retirement

60S-1.004	12/12/05	1/1/06	31/28	
-----------	----------	--------	-------	--

Rule No.	File Date	Effective Date	Proposed Vol./No.	Amended Vol./No.
----------	-----------	----------------	-------------------	------------------

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION

Barbers' Board

61G3-20.002	12/12/05	1/1/06	31/42	
-------------	----------	--------	-------	--

Construction Industry Licensing Board

61G4-15.032	12/15/05	1/4/06	31/18	31/32
-------------	----------	--------	-------	-------

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

Board of Medicine

64B8-8.001	12/15/05	1/4/06	31/45	
64B8-8.017	12/15/05	1/4/06	31/45	

Board of Psychology

64B19-12.0041	12/13/05	1/2/06	31/44	
64B19-12.006	12/13/05	1/2/06	31/44	
64B19-13.003	12/13/05	1/2/06	31/44	
64B19-17.002	12/13/05	1/2/06	31/44	

FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION

Freshwater Fish and Wildlife

68A-15.065	12/15/05	1/4/06	31/43	
------------	----------	--------	-------	--

Marine Fisheries

68B-14.0036	12/12/05	1/1/06	31/43	
-------------	----------	--------	-------	--

Vessel Registration and Boating Safety

68D-24.005	12/12/05	1/1/06	31/37	31/43
------------	----------	--------	-------	-------

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL SERVICES

Division of State Fire Marshal

69A-37.037	12/13/05	1/2/06	31/44	
------------	----------	--------	-------	--